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APPEAKANCES

For Taxpayer:

A. E. GRAUPNER, Esq.

For Comm'r:

T. M. MATHER, Esq.,

ALVA C. BAIRD, Esq.

Docket No. 93668

WILSON BROTHERS & COMPANY, (WILSON
BROS. AND 00.,) a corporation.

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

DOCKET ENTRIES
1938

May 21—Petition received and filed. Taxpayer noti-

fied. (Fee paid).

May 21—Copy of petition served on General

Counsel.

June 21—Answer filed by General Counsel.

June 21—Request for circuit hearing in San Fran-

cisco, California, filed by General Coimsel.

June 25—Notice issued placing proceeding on San

Francisco, California Calendar. Service

of answer and request made.
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1939

Mar. 25—Hearing set May 29, 1939, San Francisco,

Calif.

June 6-7—Called 5-28-39. Hearing had before Mr.

Disney on merits. Submitted, Motion to

consolidate Dockets 83397 and 93668

granted. Stipulation as to the facts filed.

Briefs due Aug. 1, 1939; Reply Sept. 1,

1939.

June 24—Transcript of hearing June 6, 1939 filed.

June 24—Transcript of hearing June 7, 1939 filed.

July 6—Motion for leave to file amended petition,

amended petition lodged, filed by tax-

payer. 7-10-39 granted. 7-11-39 copy

served on General Counsel.

July 28—Brief filed by taxpayer.

July 31—Answer to amended petition filed by Gen-

eral Coimsel.

Aug. 2—Copy of brief served on General Counsel.

Aug. 3—Copy of answer to amended petition

served on taxpayer.

Aug. 29—Reply brief filed by taxpayer.

1940

May 22—Memorandum opinion rendered, Richard

L. Disney, Div. 4. Decision will be en-

tered imder Rule 50.

June 17—Motion for review by the entire Board,

or for reconsideration, filed by taxpayer.

June 20—Computation of deficiency filed by Gen-

eral Counsel.

June 28—Order denying petitioner's motion for re-

consideration, entered.
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1940

July 2—Order denying review by the Board, en-

tered.

July 9—Hearing set July 31, 1940, on settlement.

[1*]

July 22—Consent to settlement filed by taxpayer.

Aug. 6—Decision entered, R. L. Disney, Div. 4.

Oct. 31—Petition for review by United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit, with

assignments of error filed by taxpayer.

Oct. 31—Affidavit of service filed by taxpayer.

Nov. 1—Proof of service of petition for review

filed.

Dec. 30—Certified copy of order from 9th circuit

enlarging time to 2-3-41 to prepare and

transmit record filed.

1941

Jan. 8—Statement of evidence filed by taxpayer.

Feb. 3—Certified copy of order from the 9th Cir-

cuit, extending the time to April 3, 1941,

to prepare and transmit record, filed.

Mar. 11—Agreed revised statement of evidence filed.

Mar. 11—Statement of points on which petitioner

intends to rely filed, with proof of serv-

ice thereon.

Mar. 11—Agreed designation of contents of record

filed, with proof of service thereon.

Mar. 14—Certified copy of an order from the 9th

Circuit, consolidating Dockets 83397,

93668, filed. [2]

•Page numbering appearing at foot of page of original certified

Transcript of Eecord.
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United States Board of Tax Appeals

Docket No. 93668

WILSON BROTHEES AND COMPANY (Wilson

Bros. & Co.), a corporation, Petitioner

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

MOTION FOR ORDER GRANTING LEAVE
TO FILE AMENDED PETITION

Now comes the petitioner above-named by its

counsel, Adolphus E. Graupner and Louis D. Janin,

and moves this Honorable Board to grant petitioner

leave to file an amended petition in the above-

entitled proceeding, which said amended petition is

presented herewith for consideration on this motion.

The foregoing motion is made in order to have

the pleadings accord with the proofs submitted at

the hearing of this proceeding in San Francisco,

California, on June 6th and 7th, 1939, and to com-

ply with the provisions of Rule 6(e) of this Board.

Respectfully submitted,

ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNER
LOUIS D. JANIN

Counsel for Petitioner.

Dated July 1, 1939.

Granted July 10, 1939.

(Signed) [Illegible]

Member U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed July 6, 1939.

[3]
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[Title of Board and Cause.]

AMENDED PETITION

Upon consent of the above-entitled Board to

amend the petition in the above-entitled proceeding

to conform to the proofs submitted at the hearing

thereof and without waiver of right to challenge

the constitutionality of any part of any Revenue

Act involved in this proceeding or any act of the

Commissioner of Internal Revenue or his subordi-

nates, or to object to the jurisdiction of this Board,

the petitioner above named hereby petitions for a

redetermination of the alleged deficiency set forth

by the Commissioner of Internal Revenue in his

notice of deficiency (IT :Aj-RLT-25579-90D) dated

March 8, 1938, and as a basis of this proceeding

alleges as follows:

1. The petitioner is a corporation duly organ-

ized and existing under the laws of the State of

Nevada, with its principal office at 1112 Russ Build-

ing in the City and Coimty [4] of San Francisco,

State of California.

2. The notice of deficiency upon which the peti-

tion is based (a copy of which is hereunto attached

and marked Exhibit ''A") was mailed to the peti-

tioner on March 8, 1938.

3. The asserted deficiency in tax here in con-

troversy is for alleged income taxes for the calendar

year 1934, and, as asserted in said purported de-

ficiency notice, in the amount of not more than $14,-

313.88 for said year, including surtax and penalty
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for alleged negligence on the part of petitioner in

the respective amounts of $11,017.81 and $681.61.

4. The determination or proposal of a deficiency

as set forth in said notice of deficiency is erroneous

in each and every one of the following particulars

assigned as errors:

(a) The Commissioner erred in proposing, de-

termining and asserting against petitioner any

amount as a deficiency in income tax for the cal-

endar year 1934.

(b) The Commissioner erred in concluding, de-

termining and asserting that petitioner was for the

taxable calendar year 1934, subject to the provi-

sions of Section 102(a) of the Revenue Act of 1934,

as a corporation formed or availed of for the pur-

pose of preventing the imposition of the surtax or

any other tax on its shareholders, or was in any

way used to prevent imposition of tax upon any

person.

(c) The Commissioner erred in failing to de-

termine the proper adjusted basis for depreciation

as of December 31, 1931, with respect to the steam-

ships "Idaho" and "Oregon" and the furniture and

fixtures belonging to petitioner and in using an er-

roneous alleged "cost" as such basis. [5]

(d) The Commissioner erred in disallowing the

sum of $5,211.21 or any portion of the depreciation

claimed by petitioner as a deduction from gross

income for the taxable calender year 1934, and in

not allowing at least $2,639.89 depreciation in addi-

tion to the amount claimed on the return.
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(e) The Commissioner erred in disallowing the

sum of $15,144.40 or any portion of the allowance

or deduction for bad debts or losses claimed by

petitioner as a deduction from gross income for the

taxable calendar year 1934.

(f) The Commissioner erred in adding to peti-

tioner's income, as returned for the taxable calen-

dar year 1934, the amoimt of $25,057.00, or any por-

tion thereof, representing dividends received by

petitioner in said year from domestic corporations

subject to tax under the provisions of the Revenue

Act of 1934 and earlier Revenue Law^s.

(g) The Commissioner erred in asserting, de-

termining and attempting to impose on the peti-

tioner in addition to the tax liability as returned

by petitioner, as a penalty asserted for negligence

as defined in Section 293(a) of the Revenue Act of

1934, the sum of $681.61 or any other amounts.

(h) The Commissioner erred in alleging, assert-

ing and determining that petitioner received income

in or was liable to tax for the calendar year 1934

in any amount greater than that as returned by

petitioner for said year, and particularly in at-

tempting to impose additions to petitioner's income

and tax for said year under alleged authority of

Sections 102(a) or 293(a) of the Revenue Act of

1934. [6]

5. The facts upon which petitioner relies as a

basis for this proceeding are as follows:

(a) Petitioner is a corporation duly organized

on December 14, 1928, under the laws of the State
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of Nevada. Its correct name and title is ''Wilson

Bros. & Co." instead of "Wilson Brothers and Com-

pany", as stated in the notice of deficiency. Its sole

stockholders are Francis A. Wilson and Winfred T.

Wilson.

(b) Petitioner was formed to take over the busi-

ness of a copartnership of the same name and to

acquire, own and operate timber lands, saw mills,

logging railroads and equipment, and steamships;

also, to buy, sell and transport lumber, to own,

operate and maintain steamships and to utilize the

same for the transport of cargoes.

(c) During said taxable year, petitioner kept

and maintained its books of accoimt on the accrual

basis.

(d) On or about March 15, 1935, petitioner filed

its income tax return for the taxable calendar year

1934 in which it reported no taxable income for

said year. Said return stated specifically the items

of petitioner's gross income, the deductions and

<?redits claimed by it.

(e) The Commissioner has erroneously and ille-

gally proposed and determined against petitioner

for the taxable year 1934 a deficiency in income tax

in the amoimt of $2,614.46, an additional tax for

said year in the amomit of $13,632.27 by erroneous

and illegal application of Section 102(a) of the

Revenue Act of 1934, and penalties of five per cent

on each of the amounts above mentioned by er-

i:oneous and illegal [7] application of Section
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293(a) of the Revenue Act of 1934; or a total de-

ficiency and penalty of $14,313.88.

(f) Respondent added to the amount of total

income reported by petitioner in its income tax

return for the taxable calendar year 1934 the

amount of $5,211.21 designated in the deficiency

notice as ''Excessive depreciation". Petitioner had

claimed as deductible depreciation in its return the

following and only the following items and amounts

with respect to assets used in the trade or business

:

Wooden buildings J$ 500.00

Steamers "Idaho" and ''Oregon" 8,750.00

Furniture and fixtures 500.00

Automobiles 1,649.85

Or a total of $11,399.85

Respondent's disallowance of items of deduction in

the deficiency notice in this proceeding has not been

itemized or specifically explained therein, or in his

answer to the original petition on file herein or by

proofs at hearing of this proceeding.

(g) Petitioner has stipulated to the disallow-

ance of depreciation claimed on wooden building in

the amount of $500.00 which was the total amount

claimed. Petitioner has also stipulated that the al-

lowable depreciation on automobiles for the year

1934 is the amount of $1,163.66.

(h) The basis to petitioner for depreciation of

its 75% interest in the steamship "Idaho", without

allowance for depreciation in prior years, was on
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December 31, 1931, at least $200,216.67; the depre-

ciation claimed and allowed by respondent [8] to

said date was $108,750.00, as has been stipulated;

the petitioner's depreciable basis on said steamship

as of December 31, 1931, as adjusted for deprecia-

tion allowed and allowable for prior years was at

least $91,466.67.

(i) As determined in said deficiency notice said

steamship "Idaho" had a useful depreciable life

of not in excess of fifteen years from January 1,

1932, and an annual rate of depreciation of 6%
per cent from said date; and petitioner is and was

entitled to an annual depreciation allowance of not

less than $6,097.11 for said period.

(j) The basis to petitioner for depreciation on

its 100% interest in the steamship "Oregon", with-

out allowance for depreciation in prior years, was

on December 31, 1931, at least $205,766.32; the de-

preciation claimed and allowed by respondent to

said date was $109,231.69, as has been stipulated;

the petitioner's depreciable basis on said steamship

as of December 31, 1931, as adjusted for deprecia-

tion allowed and allowable for prior years was at

least $96,434.63.

(k) As determined in said deficiency notice said

steamship "Oregon" had a useful depreciable life

not in excess of fifteen years from January 1, 1932,

and an annual rate of depreciation of 6% per cent

from said date, and petitioner is and was entitled

to an annual depreciation allowance of not less than

$6,437.64 for said period.
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(1) That on January 2, 1929, petitioner acquired

furniture and fixtures of a fair market value of

not less than $5,000.00, on which respondent has

determined a useful and depreciable life of ten

years. Prom January 2, 1929, respondent [9] has

allowed $1,500.00 depreciation on said furniture and

fixtures to December 31, 1931, and has determined

a rate of 10% for depreciation on the remaining ten

years of life thereof. Petitioner is therefore enti-

tled to allowance for depreciation on said furniture

and fixtures in an amount not less than $350.00 for

the taxable year 1934.

(m) In its income tax return for the taxable

calendar year 1934 petitioner sought deduction of

the amount of $15,144.40 for bad debts which re-

spondent has disallowed in the deficiency notice in

this proceeding and added to petitioner's gross in-

come for said year. Said deductions were for the

following items:

Partial write oif for depreciated value

of Kentucky Fuel Gas Corporation

Bonds $5,500.00

Partial write off of indebtedness of

Woodhead Lumber Co. of California 5,000.00

Partial write off of indebtedness of

shareholders in the Steamship '

' Svea '

' 4,644.40

All of the foregoing items were written off in peti-

tioner's books of account during the year 1934 after

investigation of the real worth of said items made

on behalf of petitioner and determination by it that
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the amounts so written off were beyond hope of

recovery and worthless, which was in fact the case,

(n) Petitioner is therefore entitled to deduct

from its gross income of $63,901.60 as reported in

its income tax return for the year 1934 and ac-

cepted by respondent in the deficiency notice upon

which these i^roceedings were brought, the follow-

ing [10] deductible items, viz:

Rent on business property, as accepted by

respondent $ 1,140.00

Taxes, as accepted by respondent 396.09

Loss on steamship operations, as accepted by

respondent 2,173.18

Bad debts:

Kentucky Fuel Gas Co.—partial write-off 5,500.00

Woodhead Lumber Co.—partial write-off... 5,000.00

Steamship "Svea" expense, partial write-off 4,644.40

Dividends, as accepted by respondent 25,057.00

Depreciation

:

Steamship "Idaho", 75% interest, not less

than 6,097.77

Steamship "Oregon", 100% interest, not

less than 6,437.64

Furniture and Fixtures, not less than 350.00

Automobiles, as stipulated 1,163.66

Salaries and wages, accepted by respondent 5,815.00

General expense, accepted by respondent - 4,117.44

or a total of $67,892.18

and an excess over deductions claimed in the

return of 2,649.22

with a resulting loss of 3,990.57

(o) Petitioner was not formed or availed of

for the purpose of preventing the imposition of

surtax upon its shareholders or the shareholders of
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any other corporation through the medium of per-

mitting gains and profits to accumulate instead of

being divided or distributed.

(p) During the year 1934 the economic and

financial depression which started in 1929 continued

and the impaired and shrunken market value of

the assets of petitioner made it in- [11] advisable

under soimd business practice to declare any divi-

dends or in any other way further impair the as-

sets of the corporation and thus endanger the ac-

complishment of the business purposes for which

petitioner was organized.

(q) Under the facts of this proceeding peti-

tioner is not liable for surtax under section 102 of

the Revenue Act of 1934, in any amount upon any

possible fair adjustment of its net income for the

taxable calendar year 1934.

(r) Under the facts of this proceeding peti-

tioner is not liable for the penalty of five per cent

sought to be imposed by respondent under the al-

leged authority of section 293(a) of the Revenue

Act of 1934, because the deficiency notice and the

testimony adduced shows no negligence, or inten-

tional disregard of rules and regulations, and re-

spondent failed to offer proof in support of his

attempt to impose such a penalty.

Wherefore, petitioner prays that this Board may
hear the proceeding and grant to petitioner such

relief from deficiency, additional tax and penalty
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asserted by Commissioner as may be within the

jurisdiction of the Board.

ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNER
LOUIS JANIN

Attorneys for Petitioner,

1110 Balfour Building,

San Francisco, California. [12]

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

Francis A. Wilson, being duly sworn, says that

he is the president of the above-named incorporated

petitioner and that he is authorized to verify the

foregoing petition; that he has read the foregoing

petition and is familiar with the statements con-

tained therein, and that the facts stated are true,

except as to those facts stated to be upon informa-

tion and belief, and those facts he believes to be

true.

FRANCIS A. WILSON (signed)

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 30th day

of June, 1939.

HAZEL E. THOMPSON
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

My Commission Expires September 21, 1942. [13]
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EXHIBIT '^A"

TREASURY DEPARTMENT
Washington

Mar. 8, 1938

Office of

Commissioner of

Internal Revenue

Address Reply

to

Commissioner of

Internal Revenue

And Refer to

Wilson Brothers and Company,

1112 Russ Building,

San Francisco, California.

Sirs:

You are advised that the determination of your

income tax liability for the taxable year(s) ended

December 31, 1934 discloses a deficiency of $14,-

313.88, income tax, surtax and penalties, as shown

in the statement attached.

In accordance with section 272(a) of the Reve-

nue Act of 1934, notice is hereby given of the de-

ficiency mentioned. Within ninety days (not count-

ing Sunday or a legal holiday in the District of

Columbia as the ninetieth day) from the date of the

mailing of this letter, you may file a petition with

the United States Board of Tax Appeals for a re-

determination of the deficiency.



16 Wilso7i Brothers S Company

Should you not desire to file a petition, you are

requested to execute the enclosed form and forward

it to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Wash-

ington, D. C, for the attention of IT:C1:P:7. The

signing and filing of this form will expedite the

closing of your return (s) by permitting an early

assessment of the deficiency and will prevent the

accumulation of interest, since the interest period

terminates thirty days after filing the form, or on

the date assessment is made, whichever is earlier.

Respectfully,

GUY T. HELVERING,
Commissioner.

By JOHN R. KIRK (signed)

Deputy Commissioner.

Enclosures

:

Statement

Form 870 [14]
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STATEMENT

Wilson Brothers and Company,

1112 Russ Building,

San Francisco, California

SUMMAEY OF TAX LIABILITY

Income Tax Section 13

Taxable Year Tax Tax 5%
Ended Liability Assessed Deficiency Penalty

December 31, 1934 $ 2,614.46 None $ 2,614.46 $ 130.'/

Surtax, Section 102

December 31, 1934 11,017.81 None 11,017.81 550.8

Total 13,632.27 None 13,632.27 681.e

Total Deficiencies and penalties $14,313.8

Net loss reported on return l,341.c

Add:
1. Excessive depreciation 5,211.21

2. Bad debts disallowed 15,144.40 20,355.6

Net income adjusted for income tax $19,014.2

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENTS
1. The excessive depreciation has been disal-

lowed in accordance with section 23(1) of the Rev-

enue Act of 1934 and Treasury Decision 4422, the

computation of which is shown in exhibit (a) of

the revenue agent's report, a copy of which was

furnished you on April 12, 1937.

2. The bad debts have been disallowed in accord-

ance with section 23 (k) of the Revenue Act of 1934

for the reason no evidence has been submitted to
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establish the worthlessness thereof and no permis-

sion has been granted you to change from the actual

bad debt basis elected in prior years to the reserve

basis. [15]

Computation of Income Tax, Section 13

Net income subject to 13%% tax $19,014.25

Income tax liability 2,614.46

Income tax assessed None

Income tax deficiency $ 2,614.46

5% penalty „ „ 130.72

Total income tax deficiency and penalty— _ $ 2,745.18

Computation of Surtax, Section 102

Net income adjusted for income tax $19,014.25

Add:
Dividends received 25,057.00

Net income adjusted subject to 25% surtax $44,071.25

Surtax liability _ -....- $11,017.81

Surtax assessed — None

Surtax deficiency $11,017.81

5% penalty 550.89

Total surtax deficiency and penalty $11,568.70

Total income and surtax deficiencies and penalties...$14,313.88

An examination of the balance sheets submitted

with the return leads the Bureau to conclude that

your corporation is an investment corporation and

subject to the provisions of section 102 of the Reve-

nue Act of 1934.
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The understatement of tax for the year 1934 is

attributable to negligence and in accordance with

the provisions of section 293(a) of the Revenue Act

of 1934 a penalty of 5 percent of the deficiencies

attached. [16]

The interest due on the deficiencies as provided

by law will be computed by this office and demanded

by the collector of internal revenue at the time you

are called upon to pay the tax.

Payment should not be made until a bill is re-

ceived from the collector of internal revenue for

your district and remittance should then be made

to him.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed July 10, 1939.

[17]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

ANSWER TO AMENDED PETITION

Comes now the Commissioner of Internal Reve-

nue, respondent above named, by his attorney, J.

P. Wenchel, Chief Counsel, Bureau of Internal

Revenue, and for answer to the amended petition

filed by the above-named petitioner, admits and de-

nies as follows:

1. Admits the allegations contained in paragraph

1 of the amended petition.

2. Admits the allegations contained in paragraph

2 of the amended petition.

3. Admits the allegations contained in paragraph

3 of the amended petition.
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4. (a) to (h), inclusive. Denies the Commis-

sioner erred in the determination of the deficiency

as alleged in subparagraphs (a) to (h), inclusive,

of paragraph 4 of the amended petition. [18]

5. (a) Admits the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (a) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition.

(b) Denies the allegations contained in subpara-

graph (b) of paragraph 5 of the amended petition.

(c) Admits the allegations contained in subpara-

graph (c) of paragraph 5 of the amended petition.

(d) Admits on or about March 15, 1935, peti-

tioner filed its income tax return for the taxable

calendar year 1934 in which it reported no taxable

income for said year, as alleged in subparagraph

(d) of paragraph 5 of the amended petition, but

denies the remaining allegations contained in said

subparagraph.

(e) Denies the allegations contained in subpara-

graph (e) of paragraph 5 of the amended petition.

(f) Admits respondent added to the amount of

total income reported by petitioner in its income

tax return for the taxable calendar year 1934 the

amount of $5,211.21 designated in the deficiency

notice as "Excessive depreciation" as alleged in

subparagraph (f) of paragraph 5 of the amended

petition, but denies the remaining allegations con-

tained in said subparagraph.

(g) Admits the allegations contained in subpara-

graph (g) of paragraph 5 of the amended petition.

(h) Admits the depreciation allowed by respond-
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ent was $108,750.00 as stipulated, as alleged in sub-

paragraph (h) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition, but denies the remaining allegations con-

tained in said subparagraph. [19]

(i) Admits, as determined in said deficiency no-

tice said steamship ''Idaho" had a useful deprecia-

ble life of not in excess of fifteen years from Jan-

uary 1, 1932, and an annual rate of depreciation of

6% per cent from said date, as alleged in subpara-

graph (i) of paragraph 5 of the amended petition,

but denies the remaining allegations contained in

said subparagraph.

(j) Admits the depreciation allowed by respond-

ent was $109,231.69 as stipulated, as alleged in sub-

paragraph (j) of paragraph 5 of the amended peti-

tion, but denies the remaining allegations contained

in said subparagraph.

(k) Admits, as determined in said deficiency

notice said steamship ''Oregon" had a useful de-

preciable life not in excess of fifteen years from

January 1, 1932, and an annual rate of depreciation

of 6% per cent from said date, as alleged in sub-

paragraph (k) of paragraph 5 of the amended peti-

tion, but denies the remaining allegations contained

in said subparagraph.

(1) Denies the allegations contained in subpara-

graph (1) of paragraph 5 of the amended petition.

(m) Admits in its income tax return for the

taxable calendar year 1934 petitioner sought deduc-

tion of the amount of $15,144.40 for bad debts which

respondent has disallowed in the deficiency notice
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in this proceeding and added to petitioner's gross

income for said year, as alleged in subparagraph

(m) of paragraph 5 of the amended petition, but

denies the remaining allegations contained in said

subparagraph. [20]

(n), (o), (p), (q), (r). Denies the allegations

contained in subparagraphs (n), (o), (p), (q) and

(r) of paragraph 5 of the amended petition.

6. Denies generally and specifically each and

every allegation in the amended petition not here-

inbefore admitted, qualified or denied.

Wherefore, it is prayed that the Commissioner's

determination be approved and that the petitioner's

appeal be denied.

(Signed) J. P. WENCHEL
Chief Coim^el,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

Of Counsel:

ALVA C. BAIRD,
T. M. MATHER,

Special Attorneys,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

TMMremb 7-22-39

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed July 31, 1939.

[21]
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United States Board of Tax Appeals

Docket No. 83397,

Docket No. 93667.

WILSON BROTHERS AND COMPANY, (WH-

son Bros. & Co.), a corporation.

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

STIPULATION OF FACTS

It is hereby stipulated by and between the above-

named parties hereto, through their respective

counsel that the statements hereinafter contained

may be considered as true, without prejudice of the

right of either party to introduce other and fur-

ther evidence not inconsistent herewith.

1. The two above numbered proceedings may be

heard together and the facts herein stipulated and

all material evidence and testimony introduced at

such hearing may be considered by the Board of

Tax Appeals in making its findings of fact and de-

cisions in both or each of the above-numbered pro-

ceedings. [22]

2. The taxable years involved in Docket No,

83397 are 1932 and 1933 and the taxable year in-

volved in Docket No. 93667 is 1934.

3. Prior to the organization of petitioner and on

January 31, 1927, F. A. Wilson and W. T. Wilson

formed a co-partnership under the name of Wilson
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Bros. & Co., which co-partnership continued to do

business under that name until after the formation

of petitioner corporation under the same name,

when said co-partnership was dissolved in January,

1929.

4. Wilson Bros. & Co. is a corporation duly or-

ganized and existing under the laws of the State of

Nevada, with its principal office, during the taxable

years involved, at room 1112 Russ Building, San

Francisco, California.

5. On December 14, 1928, said F. A. Wilson and

W. T. Wilson caused the incorporation of petitioner

with a capital stock of 200,000 shares of a par

value of twenty-five dollars per share to take over

and continue the busmess of said co-partnership.

6. On December 31, 1918, each of said F. A.

Wilson and W. T. Wilson purchased twenty shares

of such capital stock (or a total of forty shares)

and each paid to petitioner for said shares so pur-

chased the amount of $500.00, or a total of $1,000.00.

7. No other shares of the petitioner corporation

have ever been issued by it.

8. For the taxable years involved, petitioner

filed income tax returns with the Collector of In-

ternal Revenue, First District of California, as fol-

lows: [23]

For the taxable year 1932 March 31, 1933,

For the taxable year 1933 March 15, 1934,

For the taxable year 1934 March 15, 1935.
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9. By waivers the time for mailing notice of

deficiency for the taxable year 1932 was extended

±0 December 31, 1935, and notice of deficiency for

that year was timely mailed.

10. The depreciation on wooden buildings as

computed and disclosed in the statement attached

to the deficiency notice for the taxable years 1932

and 1933 and as disallowed in the deficiency notice

for the taxable year 1934 is accepted as being cor-

rect.

11. The amounts of depreciation deducted to

December 31, 1931, on the shares or interests ac-

quired by petitioner on January 2, 1929, in the

steamships ''Idaho" and "Oregon" as computed

and allowed in the statement attached to the de-

ficiency notice for the taxable years 1932 and 1933

are as follows:

Steamship "Idaho" $108,750.00

Steamship "Oregon" $109,231.69

12. The values, life and depreciation allowances

of automobiles as set forth in the schedule attached

to the report of the Revenue Agent for the year

1934, dated April 12, 1937, and which have been

adopted and applied in the deficiency notices for

each of the years herein involved are hereby ac-

cepted as correct, as follows

:

Acqaired Cost

1929 Lincoln $5,498.75

1930 Ford 652.50

1932 Studebaker 2,098.00

Depreciation

to 12/31/31 Balance

Remaining
Life

Allowable

per annum

$4,648.75 $850.00 2 years $425.0(

652.50 3 years 214.1(

4 years $524.5(

[24;
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13. The history of the Steamship "Idaho'' to

the time it was acquired by petitioner on January

2, 1929, is as follows:

The wooden hull of the vessel was built at Aber-

deen, Washington, and completed about December

14, 1916. The vessel was constructed on order of

and contract with Henry Wilson, for a sixty-five

one-hundredths share, Charles R. Wilson Estate,

Inc., a twenty-five one-hundredths share and A. B.

Johnson a ten one-hundredths share. The completed

cost of the vessel was to be and was $200,000.00

On December 14, 1916, the vessel was given tem-

porary enrollment as a barge and was thereafter

towed to Oakland, California, for installation of en-

gines, machinery, and rigging. On or about Feb-

ruary 6, 1917, the vessel was completed and Henry

Wilson gave to his wife Mary H. Wilson, a twenty

one-hundredths share in the vessel, to Winfred T.

Wilson, his son, a five one-hundredths share and to

Francis A. Wilson, his son, a five one-himdredths

share. On February 6, 1917, a permanent enroll-

ment certificate was granted by the Bureau of Navi-

gation, in which the gross tonnage was stated as

1047 tons and the net tonnage as 558 tons. The

names of the then owners were therein stated as

Henry Wilson 35/lOOths

Mary H. Wilson 20/lOOths

F. A. Wilson :. 5/lOOths

W. T. Wilson 5/lOOths

Others 35/lOOths
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On June 6, 1924, Henry Wilson executed a bill

of sale with respect to his remaining interest of

thirty-five [25] one-hundredths in favor of Mary H.

Wilson, his wife. Said bill of sale stated a nominal

consideration and was filed for record with the De-

partment of Commerce, Bureau of Navigation on

June 7, 1928. A copy of said bill of sale is attached

hereto and marked Exhibit "A".

On July 17, 1925, A. B. Johnson and Mariett

Johnson, his wife, executed a bill of sale to F. A.

Wilson, covering their ten one-hundredths interest

in the ''Idaho''. This transaction was evidenced by

bill of sale stating a nominal consideration, dated

July 17, 1925 and recorded July 20, 1955.

On July 21, 1925, F. A. Wilson transferred to

W. T. Wilson, a five one-hundredths interest in said

vessel by bill of sale stating a nominal consideration,

dated July 21, 1925, and recorded on the same day.

On January 2, 1929, said Mary H. Wilson, W. T.

Wilson and F. A. Wilson conveyed all of their in-

terests, or a total of seventy-five one-hundredths

shares in the steamship "Idaho" to petitioner. The

instrument of transfer stated a nominal considera-

tion and was recorded on June 3, 1929.

The dead weight tonnage of said "Idaho" was

determined in 1918 by the United States Shipping

Board to be 1834 tons.

14. The history of the steamship "Oregon" to

the time it was acquired by petitioner on January

2, 1929, is as follows:
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The wooden hull of the vessel was built in Aber-

deen, Washington, and completed on August 9,

1916. The vessel was [26] constructed on order of

and contract with Henry Wilson, for fifteen thirty-

seconds, Charles R. Wilson Estate, Inc. for fifteen

thirty-seconds, and A. B. Johnson, for two thirty-

seconds shares. The completed cost of the vessel

was to be and was $140,386.15.

On August 9, 1916, the vessel was given temporary

enrollment as a barge and w^as thereafter towed to

Oakland, California, for installation of engines,

machinery and rigging. On or about October 25,

1916, the vessel was completed and a permanent

enrollment certificate was granted by the Bureau

of Navigation, in which the gross tonnage was stated

as 989 tons and the net tonnage as 628 tons. The

names of the then ow^ners were stated therein as:

Henry T. Wilson 15/32nds

A. B. Johnson _ 2/32nds

C. R. Wilson Estate, Inc 15/32nds

On December 4, 1918, Henry Wilson executed two

bills of sale, each covering a 5/32nds interest in the

SS "Oregon", one bill of sale named his son^ Win-

fred T. Wilson as grantee, and the other named his

son, Francis A. Wilson, as grantee, instruments

w^ere recorded on March 21, 1919.

On November 22^ 1918, a certificate of partial

ownership was recorded showing the distribution on

liquidation of the C. R. Wilson Estate, Inc. of

fifteen thirty-seconds interest in the "Oregon" to
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Margaret A. Wilson, as trustee, for herself and her

children, who were the heirs of Charles R. Wilson,

deceased, and the stockholders of the C, R. Wilson

Estate, Inc.

On September 30, 1919, Margaret A. Wilson, as

trustee as aforesaid, conveyed the interests in the

*' Oregon" formerly held by the C. R. Wilson Estate,

Inc. as follows:

To Henry T. Wilson. 5/32nds

To F. A. Wilson 5,/32nds, and

To W. T. Wilson 5/32nds.

[27]

The bills of sale were recorded December 4, 1919,

and the transfer was made upon a consideration

based on a valuation of $125,000.00 for the entire

vessel, or at a cost of $19,531.25 to each of the

above named vendees.

On June 6, 1924, Henry Wilson executed a bill

of sale with respect to a ten thirty-seconds interest

in the "Oregon" in favor of Mary H. Wilson his

wife. Said instrument stated a nominal considera-

tion and was acknowledged on that date and filed

for record with the Department of Commerce, Bu-

reau of Navigation on June 7, 1928. A copy of said

bill of sale is attached hereto and marked Exhibit

On July 17, 1925, F. A. Wilson purchased from

A. B. Johnson a two thirty-seconds share in the

'* Oregon". The bill of sale therefore was executed

July 17, 1925, and recorded July 20, 1925.
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On July 21, 1925 F. A. Wilson conveyed a one

thirty-seconds share in the '' Oregon" to his brother,

W. T. Wilson, and the bill of sale, stating a nominal

consideration, was recorded on the same day.

On January 2, 1929, said Mary H. Wilson, F. A.

Wilson and W. T. Wilson transferred their entire

interests, or a total of thirty-two thirty-seconds in

the steamship ''Oregon" to petitioner. The instru-

ment of transfer, stated a nominal consideration

and was recorded on July 3, 1929.

The dead weight tonnage of the said "Oregon"

was determined in May, 1918 by the United States

Shipping Board to be 1803 tons.

15. Throughout the years 1932, 1933 and 1934

[28] the ownership of petitioner in said steamships

continued respectively as follows

:

Steamship "Idaho" 75% interest

Steamship "Oregon" 100% interest

Witness our hands this 5th day of June, 1939.

ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNER
LOUIS JANIN

Counsel for Petitioner

J. P. WENCHEL
Mather

Chief Counsel,

Bureau of Internal Revenue,

Counsel for Respondent.

[Endorsed}: U.-S. B. T. A. Filed June 6,

1939. [29]
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[Title of Board and Cause.]

Docket Nos. 83397, 93668.

Adolphus E. Graupner, Esq., and Lonis D. Janin,

Esq., for the petitioner.

Alva C. Baird, Esq., and T. M. Mather, Esq., for

the respondent.

MEMORANDUM OPINION.

Disney : These proceedings are for a redetermina-

tion of deficiencies in normal income taxes, sur-

taxes and negligence penalties, asi follows:

Additional Tax
under section

Docket No. Year Normal Tax 104, 1932 Act Penalty Total

83397 1932 $ 477.61 $10,865.75 $ 567.17 $11,910.53

83397 1933 2,870.25 19,207.76

(Under section

102, 1934 Act)

1,103.90 23,181.91

93668 1934 2,614.46 11,017.81 681.61 14,313.88

Pursuant to stipulation the two proceedings were

heard together and are therefore consolidated for

rendition of opinion. [30]

A stipulation of a part of the facts was filed. The

facts stipulated are adopted by reference as a part

of our findings of fact and, so far as deemed nec-

essary to a determination of the issues involved,

are, literally or in substance, set forth herein, to-

gether with other material facts found by us.

Amended petitions and answers were filed in both

proceedings.
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The issues are excessive depreciation of prop-

erties, mainly those of depreciation of the steamers

"Idaho" and "Oregon," and furniture and fixtures

for the three years involved, the expense of main-

tenance of the steamships for the years 1932 and

1933, a question of interest for the years 1932 and

1933, the surtax for all of the years, partial write-

off of bad debts as set up for 1933 and 1934, and a

5 per cent negligence penalty.

The particular items and amounts at issue allo-

cated to each of the years involved are as follows

:

1932 1933 1934

1. Additional income asserted

Alleged additional interest $5,442.32 $ 445.18 None

2. Maintenance of steamships

Disallowed as "Steamship

operations" 4,547.05 4,412.26 Allowed

3. Partially Bad Debts Written Off

(a) Woodhead Lumber Co., Acct's. rec. None None $5,000.00

(b) SS "Svea", Acct. Rec None 2,160.80 4,644.40

(c) Kentucky Fuel Gas Corp. (bonds) None None 5,500.00

4. Additional depreciation allowable

(a) Steamship "Idaho" 3,865.66 3,865.66 3,865.66

(b) Steamship "Oregon" 5,487.24 5,487.24 5,487.24

(c) Furniture and fixtures 151.98 151.98 151.98

5. Additional Tax alleged to be due under section 104 of the Revenue

Act of 1932 and section 102 of the Revenue Act of 1934.

6. Negligence Penalty of 5 per cent alleged to be due under the pro-

visions of section 293(a) of the Revenue Acts of 1932 and 1934.

[31]

On January 31, 1927, F. A. Wilson and W. T.

Wilson formed a copartnership under the name of

Wilson Bros. & Co., which copartnership continued
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to do business under that name until after the for-

mation of petitioner corporation under the same

name, when said copartnership was dissolved in

January 1929.

The petitioner is a corporation organized under

the laws of Nevada with an authorized capital stock

of 200,000 shares of a par value of $25 each, and

with its principal office at 1112 Russ Building, San

Francisco, California. It was organized on Decem-

ber 14, 1928, by F. A. Wilson and W. T. Wilson, to

take over and continue the business of the part-

nership. On December 31, 1928, F. A. Wilson and

W. T. Wilson each purchased 20 shares of stock

and each paid to the petitioner therefor $500. No
other shares have ever been issued. Petitioner dur-

ing the taxable years kept its books upon the ac-

crual system of accounting and filed income tax re-

turns with the Collector for the First District of

California.

Certain issues as to depreciation upon wooden

buildings and automobiles have been settled by

stipulation which will be reflected in decision under

Rule 50. The other issues will be considered in the

order above set forth, the facts, except the general

facts as to incorporation stated above, being set

forth separately in connection with discussion of

each issue.

I. The first issue is with respect to additional

income from interest, asserted in deficiency notices

by respondent in amoimts of $5,442.32 for the year

1932 and $445.18 for the year 1933. Those amounts
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were, as [32] interest on bank deposits, added by

the Commissioner to the respective amounts of $12,-

949.58 and $9,035.81 reported by the petitioner, de-

rived from bonds, accounts receivable and banks.

The respondent did not specify any particular

smns upon which tbe alleged additional interest was

accmed or paid to petitioner, but simply increased

interest accrued or received in the amomits above

stated. The petitioner adduced direct and positive

testimony that it kept a monthly record of total in-

terest received and that all interest accrued or paid

to it during the years 1932 and 1933 from every

source was included by it in its income tax returns,

for the respective taxable years. It failed, however,

to show all specific amounts of interest accrued or

paid to it on the respective items, bank deposits,

etc., during the taxable years, 1932 and 1933, now in

issue, to produce the monthly accounts or to explain

fully as to interest on a bank deposit of approxi-

mately $480,000.

Had the petitioner shown the specific amount of

interest accrued or paid it on particular items, bank

deposits and other items drawing interest, its evi-

dence touching the same would be more satisfac-

tory. However, a certified public accountant testi-

fied for the petitioner to the effect that he had

verified and compared and ledgers of the banks and

of the petitioner, and that all interest shown on the

bank ledgers appeared on the books of the corpora-

tion, and that he could not find the interest items

of $5,442.32 for 1932 and $445.18 for 1933 which the
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respondent had added to petitioner's income. The

deficiency notices mention only interest on bank de-

posits. In view of the direct and positive testimony

[33] touching the subject, to the effect that the cor-

poration kept an interest account of total interest

received each month, and that ALL interest accrued

or paid to it fromALL sources was duly reported and

included in its income tax returns and the books of

the corporation and the bank ledgers agreed,

though the monthly records were not introduced,

we are of the opinion, find and hold that the pre-

sumption of the correctness of the respondent's de-

termination on this issue is overcome. Since peti-

tioner reported approximately $13,000 interest for

1932 and about $9,000 for 1933, the interest on the

$480,000 deposit is reasonably explained. We find

and hold that with respect to this issue the respond-

ent erred in determining that petitioner was tax-

able in 1932 on $5,442.32 as additional interest and

$445.18 as additional interest in 1933, and deter-

mine this issue in favor of the petitioner. [34]

II. This issue relates to the maintenance and

upkeep of two steamers, Idaho and Oregon. The
facts involved are simple: The steamers were ac-

quired by the petitioner in January, 1929 princi-

pally for the purpose of transporting liunber. After

acquisition they were operated only five or six

months before they were "laid up," because busi-

ness got so bad that they could not be operated at

a profit. The country then was experiencing a de-

pression which lasted several years. During the tax-
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able years in issue the steamers were kept in a sea-

worthy condition, in order that petitioner might

use them if opportunity was afforded to profitably

resume liunber transportations. The ships were

never abandoned, but always were in charge of

some one to look after them. The ships were put in

dry dock and their bottoms were painted to protect

and preserve them. Watchmen were employed and

paid to look after them and certain supplies w^re

furnished. Repairs were made to maintain the ships

in proper serviceable condition. Petitioner always

expected to put the ships back into commission and

reengage in the shipping of lumber when conditions

became favorable and the vessels, though not ac-

tively in use, were considered a part of the operat-

ing assets of the petitioner.

Under conditions in 1934 similar to those in 1932

and 1933, petitioner made claim in its 1934 return

under the head of ''Steamship operations" for the

amoimt of $2,173.18, which sum was allowed as a

deduction by the respondent. In each of the three

taxable years the amounts reported in the income

tax returns under the head of "steamship opera-

tions" were for the maintenance and upkeep of the

Idaho and Oregon.

In our opinion expenses upon the vessels while

temporarily laid up because of business conditions

are in no different category than expenses while the

vessels are at sea. The vessels were not abandoned.

The business [35] of operating vessels had not been

abandoned. On the entire record as presented we
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hold on this issue that the respondent erred in not

allowing the claimed deductions for maintenance

and upkeep of the two steamers, for the years 1932

and 1933, as ordinary and necessary expense of

business.

III. Whether the Commissioner erred in disal-

lowing deductions for certain allegedly partially

worthless debts claimed for the years 1933 and

1934, and charged off on the direct write-off method,

is the next issue for our determination. The facts

may be briefly stated, in connection with each item

:

(a) Woodhead Lmnber Company.—On Janu-

ary 1, 1934, the petitioner had accounts receivable

from the Woodhead Lumber Co. of California

amounting to $43,276.06. In its return for 1934, pe-

titioner took a deduction for bad debts in the

amount of $15,144.40, all of which was disallowed

by the Commissioner. The petitioner was on the

actual charge-off method of deducting bad debts.

In 1934 petitioner caused an examination of the

affairs of the Woodhead Liunber Co. of California

and from disclosures resulting from such examina-

tion reached the conclusion in 1934 that there could

be only a partial recovery on said accounts receiv-

able and that $5,000 would be a reasonable amount

to write off and take as a deduction for such al-

leged partial bad debt during the year 1934 and

such was taken.

There were two companies bearing the name of

"Woodhead Lumber 'Company, " one of California

and the other of Nevada. In 1932, the Woodhead
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Lumber Co. of Nevada bought the inventory and

assets of the Woodhead Lumber Co. of California

and gave to the latter its note for $25,000 and as

collateral $37,000 face value of its capital stock,

both of which were turned over to the petitioner.

[36]

One witness was of the opinion that the note and

stock described were of little or no value, but no

facts appear to bear out such a conclusion. After

the acquisition of the California company by the

Nevada company, the petitioner did business with

the Nevada company and is still selling lumber to

it. Upon consideration of the entire record we find

and determine that the alleged worthless character

of the debt from the Woodhead Lumber Co. of Cali-

fornia has not been showTi. We therefore find and

hold that the Commissioner did not err in disallow-

ing the $5,000 deduction claimed.

(b) SS Svea.—^^The next item is with respect to

accounts receivable from the steamship "Svea,''

which were written off by petitioner in the amount

of $2,160.80 in 1933 and the amount of $4,644.40 in

1934 and disallowed by the Commissioner.

On January 1, 1933, accounts receivable from the

steamship Svea amounted to $9,081.78 and on Janu-

ary 1, 1934, they amounted to $10,804.01. These ac-

counts arose as follows : The Svea was a boat owned
by many small owners, among whom were W. T.

Wilson owning 7/128ths and F. A. Wilson owning
a 9/128ths interest. The petitioner through the tax-

able years, 1933 and 1934, owned no interest in the
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Svea, but was the managing, disbursing and collec-

tion agent for the steamship. When the boat was in

operation, petitioner got a commission on the

freight, but when the boat was not in operation pe-

titioner received nothing, though the owners would

expect the petitioner to make necessary advances to

keep the boat in condition to be placed in operation

again. There was a moral obligation to do so. Peti-

tioner could anticipate repayment only from earn-

ings or recovery from the owners of the boat. In

1933 the petitioner consulted its attorney as to

whether it could recover sums which had been paid

or advanced by it to the Svea for [37] maintenance

of the boat, and was told that it did not look like

recovery could be made and suit would be foolish.

Thereupon $2,160 was written off as a bad debt;

$2,160 was 20 per cent of the total expenditure. In

1934 it did not look like the boat would be put in

operation for some little time, the account was con-

stantly growing larger, and petitioner wrote off $4,-

644.40 as a bad debt.

The above facts do not, in our opinion, prove a

deductible partially worthless debt. It is at least

doubtful whether there was any promise on the part

of anyone to pay, for the sole witness referred to

petitioner's moral obligation to make the advances.

No contractual obligation is shown. In the absence

of a maturity date, and with an apparent limitation

upon collectibility in that it was to be from earn-

ings of the boat, there was no ordinary right of a
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creditor. Commissioner v. Schmoll Fils Associated,

Inc., Fed. (2d) (C. C. A., 2nd Cir., March

18, 1940). Assuming, however, a debt and a debtor,

there is no showing that the debtors were unable to

pay. Who they are is not shown, except that the two

stockholders of petitioner owned a one-eighth inter-

est in the boat. The boat itself is not shown to have

been encumbered so that collection by sale was im-

possible. In fact, all that petitioner shows is that it

did not look as if the boat would be put into opera-

tion for some little time, and that an attorney ad-

vised that it would be foolish to sue and it did not

look like anything could be recovered. Such opinion

seems directed to the nature of the obligation as

moral rather than legal. If it was devoted to sol-

vency of the owners, it does not constitute the

showing of fact required as to the debtor's finan-

cial condition. We hold that no error is shown in

the disallowance of the deduction for partially

worthless debts. [38]

(c) Kentucky Fuel and Gas Corporation

Bonds.—^^The petitioner insists that the Commis-

sioner erred in not allowing as a deduction, a write-

off as a partial bad debt of $5,500 in 1934, with re-

spect to Kentucky Fuel and Gas Corporation bonds.

In 1934 petitioner owned bonds of Kentucky Fuel

and Gas Corporation. Investigation was made dur-

ing the year, upon which $5,500 was written off as

a partial bad debt and deducted in petitioner's re-

turn. The bonds were a first mortgage upon the

property of the company, which was an operating
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company with considerable assets. It went into re-

ceivership about 1931. The record does not show

when or from whom the bonds were acquired, the

cost, nor whether in 1934 there was basis for par-

tial charge off which did not exist in 1933 or earlier.

The market value of the bonds, as shown by bid

prices, declined from $74 on January 1, 1930, to $5

on December 31, 1931, to $2 on December 31, 1933,

and $4.50 on December 31, 1934. Obviously such a

record does not show error on the part of the Com-

missioner in denying the deduction. We hold that

there was no error.

IV. The next issue is as to the proper amount

of depreciation allowable in each of the taxable

years on (a) the steamship Idaho, (b) the steam-

ship Oregon, and (c) furniture and fixtures. The

additional depreciation allowable as contended for

by petitioner is for the years and in the amounts

heretofore set forth above.

On January 2, 1929, the petitioner acquired a

75/lOOths interest in the Idaho, and the entire in-

terest in the Oregon, after a history of the two

ships and in a manner, as follows:

(a) The wooden hull of the Idaho was com-

pleted about December 14, 1916. The vessel was

constructed on order and contract with Henry

Wilson for a 55/lOOths share, Charles R. Wilson

Estate, Inc., a 25/lOOths share, and A. B. Johnson a

10/lOOths share. The completed cost of the vessel

was to be and was $200,000. Its fair market value

on February 6, 1917, was not less than [39]
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$395,000. The vessel Idaho was completed about

February 6, 1917, and Henry Wilson gave his wife,

Mary H. Wilson, a 20/lOOths share in the vessel,

to his son, Winfred T. Wilson, a 5/lOOths share,

and to another son, Francis A. Wilson, a 5/lOOths

share. On February 6, 1917, a permanent enroll-

ment certificate was granted by the Bureau of

Navigation in which the gross tonnage was stated

to be 1,047 tons and the net tonnage as 558 tons.

The names of the then owners were therein

stated as:

Henry Wilson _ 35/lOOths

Mary H. Wilson 20/lOOths

F. A. Wilson _ _ 5/lOOths

W. T. Wilson „ _ _ 5/lOOths

Others _ 35/lOOths

On Jime 6, 1924, Henry Wilson executed a bill of

sale with respect to his remaining interest of

35/lOOths in the Idaho in favor of Mary H. Wilson,

his wife. Said bill of sale stated a nominal con-

sideration but was in fact a gift and was filed for

record with the Department of Commerce, Bureau

of Navigation, on June 7, 1928. On July 17, 1925,

A. B. Johnson and Mariett Johnson, his wife, exe-

cuted a bill of sale to F. A. Wilson, covering their

lO/lOOths interest in the Idaho. This transaction

was evidenced by bill of sale, stating a nominal

consideration, though in fact F. A. Wilson paid

them $11,716.67. On July 21, 1925, F. A. Wilson, in

consideration of one-half the above sum, trans-
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ferred to W. T, Wilson a 5/l(X)ths interest in said

vessel by bill of sale which, however, stated a nomi-

nal consideration and was recorded on the same

day. On January 2, 1929, said Mary H. Wilson,

W. T. Wilson and F. A. Wilson conveyed all of

their interests, or a total of 75/lOOths shares, in the

steamship Idaho to petitioner. The instrument of

transfer stated a nominal consideration of $10 and

was recorded on June 3, 1929, but no consideration

was paid. The transfer was a contribution [40] to

petitioner's capital from Mary H. Wilson, F. A.

Wilson and W. T. Wilson. The dead weight ton-

nage of said Idaho was determined in 1918 by the

United States Shipping Board to be 1,834 tons.

(b) The wooden hull of the Oregon was com-

pleted on August 9, 1916. The vessel was con-

structed on order of, and contract with, Henry

Wilson for 15/32nds, Charles H. Wilson Estate,

Inc., for 15/32nds, and A. B. Johnson for 2/32nds,

shares. The completed cost of the vessel was to be

and was $140,386.15. Its fair market value on Janu-

ary 10, 1918, and on December 4, 1918, was not less

than $385,000. About October 25, 1916, the vessel

was completed and a permanent enrollment certifi-

cate was granted by the Bureau of Navigation in

which the gross tonnage was stated as 989 tons and

the net tonnage as 628 tons. The names of the then

owners were stated therein as:

Henry T. Wilson 15/32nds

A. B. Johnson 2/32nds

C. R. Wilson Estate, Inc. .._ 15/32nds
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On or about January 10, 1918, Henry Wilson and

Mary H. Wilson, his wife, executed and delivered

a deed of gift to W. T. Wilson and F. A. Wilson,

each, to a 5/32nds interest in the various properties

operated or held in the fiiTn name of Wilson Bros. &

Co., including real estate, securities, merchandise,

machinery, vessels, etc. On December 4, 1918,

Henry Wilson executed two bills of sale, each

covering a 5/32nds interest in the steamship Ore-

gon. One bill of sale named his son, W. T. Wilson,

as grantee, and the other named his son, F. A.

Wilson, as grantee. The instruments were recorded

on March 21, 1919, and were confirmatory of the

gifts of January 10, 1918. On November 22, 1918, a

certificate of partial ownership was recorded show-

ing the distribution on liquidation of the C. R.

Wilson Estate, Inc., of 15/32nds interest in the

Oregon to Margaret A. Wilson, as trustee, for her-

self and her [41] children, who were the heirs of

Charles R. Wilson, deceased, and the stockholders

of the C. R. Wilson Estate, Inc.

On September 30, 1919, Margaret A. Wilson, as

trustee as aforesaid, conveyed the interests in the

Oregon formerly held by the C. R. Wilson Estate,

Inc., as follows:

To Henry T. Wilson 5/32nds

To F. A. Wilson 5/32nds, and

To W. T. Wilson 5/32nds.

The bills of sale were recorded December 4, 1919,

and the transfer was made upon a consideration
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based on a valuation of $125,000 for the entire ves-

sel, or at a cost of $19,531.25 to each of the above

named vendees. On June 6, 1924, Henry Wilson

executed a bill of sale with respect to a 10/32nds

interest in the Oregon (a gift) in favor of Mary
H. Wilson, his wife. Said instrument stated a nomi-

nal consideration and was acknowledged on that

date and filed for record with the Department of

Commerce, Bureau of Navigation, on June 7, 1928.

On July 17, 1925, F. A. Wilson purchased from A.

B. Johnson a 2/32nds share in the Oregon. The bill

of sale therefor was executed July 17, 1925, and

recorded July 20, 1925. The consideration paid was

$4,954.72. On July 21, 1925, F. A. Wilson for and

in consideration of one half of said amoimt con-

veyed a l/32nd share in the Oregon to his brother,

W. T. Wilson, and the bill of sale, stating a nominal

consideration, was recorded on the same day. There-

after, F. A. Wilson and W. T. Wilson each owned

ll/32nds interest in the Oregon and their mother,

Mary H. Wilson, owned 10/32nds interest therein.

On January 2, 1929, said Mary H. Wilson, F. A.

Wilson and W. T. Wilson transferred their entire

interests, or a total of 32/32nds, in the steamship

Oregon to petitioner, the transfers being a [42]

contribution without consideration, though the in-

strument of transfer stated a nominal consideration

and was recorded on July 3, 1929. The dead weight

tonnage of the Oregon was determined in May 1918

by the United States Shipping Board to be 1,803

tons.
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Throughout the years 1932, 1933 and 1934 the

owTiership of petitioner in said steamships contin-

ued respectively as follows:

Steamship *

' Idaho '

' 757c interest

Steamship '

' Oregon '

' 100% interest

The dispute between the parties on this issue is

due to the difference in the basis selected to be used

for depreciation. The amounts of depreciation de-

ducted to December 31, 1931, on the shares or inter-

ests acquired by petitioner on January 2, 1929, in

the steamships Idaho and Oregon as computed and

allowed in the statement attached to the deficiency

notice for the taxable years 1932 and 1933 are as

follows

:

Steamship '
' Idaho '

' $108,750.00

Steamship "Oregon" 109,231.69

The petitioner accepts the totals of depreciation

allowable and allowed to December 31, 1931, accepts

15 years as the extended life of the depreciable

items and 6-2/3 per cent as the proper rate of de-

preciation, all as determined by the respondent in

the deficiency notices, but insists the respondent

adopted an incorrect basis for depreciation as of

January 1, 1932, resulting in error in the amount

of depreciation allow^able thereon for the three tax-

able years, 1932, 1933 and 1934; also that in fixing

a basis for depreciation on the two vessels the re-

spondent relied upon the original cost of the steam-

ships and did not take into consideration the fact

that the interests owned by the petitioner on Jan-
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uary 2, 1929, came into possession of the donors

thereof in fractional shares acquired at different

times and [43] under different circumstances. Pe-

titioner's position is therefore that the total of the

bases of the shares, with allowance for depreciation

only for the period such shares were held by peti-

tioner's donors, constitutes the basis of depreciable

value for each ship. The parties seem in agreement

upon the proposition that the basis for depreciation is

cost, the fair market value on date of any gift, made

prior to January 1, 1921, and as to acquisitions by

gift made after December 31, 1920, cost or other

basis in the hands of the donor or the last preced-

ing owner by whom it was not acquired by gift.

Section 114 (a) and 113 (a) (2), (4), Revenue Act

of 1932.

The respondent now contends as to the 75 per

cent interest owned by the petitioner in the Idaho

that 10 per cent was purchased July 17, 1925, at a

cost of $11,716.67, that 30 per cent was acquired by

gift February 6, 1917, of a value of $131,666.66, and

that 35 per cent was acquired by gift on June 6,

1924, but that no basis is shown. He therefore cal-

culates a total base of $143,383.33, and, it being

agreed that $108,750 had already been allowed as

depreciation prior to January 1, 1932, contends for

a residual base of $34,633.33. The petitioner agrees

that the 10 per cent interest cost $11,716.67 on pur-

chase on July 17, 1925, but contends that the 30 per

cent interest acquired February 6, 1917, had a value

of $118,500, being 30 per cent of a total value for
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the Idaho of $395,000; also that the gift of a 35 per

cent interest made July 6, 1924, had a base of $70,-

000, based on a construction cost of $200,000. It

thus appears that we must decide (a) the value of

the boat on February 6, 1917, and (b) what basis,

if any, is proved for the gift of a 35 per cent inter-

est on June 6, 1924. The evidence establishes, and

we find, that the Idaho had a total value of $395,-

000 on February 6, 1917. The evidence is, and we

find, that in 1917 the fair [44] market value of a

fractional interest in a boat was its proportionate

part of the total value. Therefore the 10 per cent

interest which passed without consideration other

than stock to the corporation in January 1929 from

its two stockholders, W. T. Wilson and F. A. Wil-

son, would have a basis of $39,500, since under sec-

tion 113 (a) (8) (B), Revenue Acts of 1932 and

1934, such contribution to the corporation takes a

basis the same as in their hands, and they having

acquired it by gift from their father prior to Janu-

ary 1, 1921, in their hands the base was the fair mar-

ket value at time of acquisition by them. Section

113 (a) (4), Revenue Acts of 1932 and 1934. Like-

wise the other 10 per cent contributed to the cor-

poration by the two stockholders and acquired by

them by purchase in 1925 takes a basis of cost to

them, i. e., $11,716.67. As to the basis for the gift

of a 35 per cent interest made June 6, 1924: The

total cost of construction of the Idaho was $200,000.

Was the cost to Henry Wilson, donor on June 6,

1924, proportionate thereto? The respondent con-
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tends that cost to Henry Wilson has not been shown.

On the deficiency notice introduced in evidence in

general, with respondent's counsel stating that he

has no objection, it appears that the respondent in

computing the depreciation used $200,000 as ''cost,"

75 per cent as "Interest owned by Wilsons" and

''cost of interest" as $150,000. It is stipulated that

the vessel was constructed on order of and contract

with Henry Wilson for a "fifty-five one hundredths

share." We think that the evidence clearly indi-

cates that his base for 55 per cent would be 55 per

cent of $200,000, or $110,000. He gave away 30 per

cent on February 6, 1917, leaving only 25 per cent

of the 55 per cent. Where [45] did he acquire the

other 10 per cent which on February 6, 1917, he is

recorded as owning on the permanent enrollment

certificate issued by the Bureau of Navigation? Is

the stipulation as to 55 per cent being constructed

on his order a mistake intended to read "65%" or

did he, between the time of construction of the ship

and prior to February 6, 1917, acquire it in some

other manner? The record is in fact silent, and

therefore no base is clearly shown as to 10 per cent

donated to his wife on June 6, 1924. We are in-

clined to believe that "65%" was intended, for the

reason that the stipulation recites that the vessel

was constructed 55 per cent on order of Henry Wil-

son, 25 per cent on order of Charles R. Wilson Es-

tate, Inc., and 10 per cent on order of A. B. John-

son, thus totalling only 90 per cent. The construc-

tion of the hull was completed December 14, 1916.
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Within 60 days, i. e., on February 6, 1917, Henry

Wilson owned the missing 10 per cent, for he is re-

corded as owning 35 per cent after gifts of 30 per

cent to his wife and sons. Moreover, as above set

forth, the respondent in determining the deficiency

gave the entire 75 per cent eventually acquired by

petitioner a basis of cost of $200,000 total and $150,-

000 for the 75 per cent. Section 113 (a) (2) of the

Revenue Act of 1932 provides as to basis of gifts

after December 31, 1920:

* * * If the facts necessary to determine

such basis are unknown to the donee, the Com-

missioner shall, if possible, obtain such facts

from such donor or last preceding owner, or

any other person cognizant thereof. If the Com-

missioner finds [46] it impossible to obtain such

facts, the basis shall be the fair market value

of such property as found by the Commission-

er as of the date or approximate date at which,

according to the best information that the Com-

missioner is able to obtain, such property was

acquired by such donor or last preceding owner.

We therefore conclude and hold that the basis of

the entire 65 per cent donated on June 6, 1924, was

cost, $130,000. Of the 65 per cent, 20 per cent

passed by gift to Mary H. Wilson in 1917 and 35

per cent in 1924, and from her to the petitioner cor-

poration in 1929. Since she was not a stockholder,

this constituted a gift and under section 113 (a) (2)

of the Revenue Acts of 1932 and 1934, the basis is

that of the last preceding owner by whom the prop-
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erty was not acquired by gift. The basis, therefore,

of the 55 per cent is the cost to Henry Wilson,

donor to Mary, or $110,000, being 55 per cent of

the $200,000 cost of construction of the boat. Thus

the total basis for the 75 per cent interest acquired

by petitioner is $162,216.67. Subtracting therefrom

$108,750 deducted to December 31, 1931, leaves $53,-

466.67, the imadjusted basis for depreciation on De-

cember 31, 1931.

Petitioner argues that this should be adjusted

by the subtraction of such portion of the $108,750

as was allowed as depreciation prior to acquisition

of the 10 per cent interest by purchase on July 17

and 21, 1925, by the Wilson brothers. The neces-

sary facts so to do are not in the record. The rec-

ord shows the total depreciation $108,750 and peti-

tioner urges us to prorate it over the years between

construction of the boat and December 31, 1931.

But the deficiency notice, above referred to, shows

that the rate was not uniform throughout [47] the

years. How many times it may have changed and

therefore how much depreciation was in fact al-

lowed to A. B. Johnson prior to his sale of the in-

terest on July 17, 1925, the record does not show.

We therefore hold that the basis for depreciation

on December 31, 1931, as to the 75 per cent interest

in the Idaho was $53,466.67.

(b) As to depreciation on the Oregon the parties

agree on most of the items of basis in the sum of

$164,429.22, but disagree as to the basis for gifts

made after December 31, 1920, that is, a gift of
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10/32nds interest on June 6, 1924, from Henry Wil-

son to his wife, Mary H. Wilson. We find that

5/32nds thereof was acquired by purchase from

Margaret Wilson, Trustee, at a cost of $19,531.25

and that 5/32nds was acquired at cost of construc-

tion, i. e., 5/32nds of $140,386.15, or $21,935.35, and

therefore conclude and hold that the total basis for

depreciation to petitioner is therefore $205,796.32.

Depreciation allowed prior to January 1, 1932, was

$109,231.69, leaving $96,564.63 as unadjusted basis

of depreciation on that date. Petitioner, as in case

of the Idaho above discussed, urges adjustment to

eliminate the depreciation allowed prior to pur-

chase of interests donated to the petitioner. For

the same reasons above set forth as to the Idaho,

the lack of facts in the record, with which to make

the desired adjustment, we hold that the basis for

depreciation as to the Oregon on December 31, 1931,

was $96,564.63.

(c) The furniture and fixtures of petitioner were

taken over from its predecessor January 2, 1929,

at a valuation of $5,000 and were so set up as an

asset on its books of account. Petitioner in its re-

turns began to depreciate said items on the basis

of such value for a ten-year life and took deduc-

tions for depreciation thereon in its income tax re-

turns for the years 1929, 1930 and 1931, in the

amount of $500 per annum, or a 10 per cent rate

[48] of depreciation, which for the said three years

were allowed by the respondent. The record does

not show when the furniture and fixtures were ac-
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quired by the partnership (petitioner's predecessor)

though they were taken over by the petitioner in

January 1929 at a valuation of $5,000.

After recognizing for three years the $5,000 valu-

ation and allowing a deduction for depreciation at

a 10 per cent rate—$500 per year—the respondent

determined that the furniture and fixtures instead

of costing and having a value of $5,000, at which

figure they were taken over by petitioner, cost the

partnership and had a value of only $3,480.20 and

after allowing the $1,500 depreciation for three

years previously taken by the petitioner, found the

residual cost and value to be only $1,980.20, upon

which he allowed an annual 10 per cent rate of de-

duction for depreciation, $198.02, instead of $350,

contended for by petitioner presumably on the as-

sumption that the respondent having previously

considered the cost and value as $5,000 was bound

thereby and estopped from reaching a different find-

ing and determination, although it was never shown

at what date the furniture and fixtures were ac-

quired by the partnership or that their cost was

in fact more than $3,480.20^ ultimately determined

by respondent. The burden of making a full and

satisfactory showing touching the cost and deduc-

tion claimed, the age, condition and remaining use-

ful life, etc., of the assets in question, rested upon

the petitioner and we find and determine were not

satisfactorily showTi by petitioner, and therefore

we sustain the action of the respondent with re-

spect to this issue. See T. D. 4422 and section 23
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(k) of the Revenue Act of 1932 and article 165 of

Regulations 69, 65 and 62 as amended, which in

part states the following: [49]

* * * The deduction for depreciation in re-

spect of any depreciable property for any tax-

able year shall be limited to such ratable amount

as may reasonably be considered necessary to

recover during the remaining useful life of the

property the unrecovered cost or other basis.

The burden of proof will rest upon the taxpay-

er to sustain the deduction claimed. There-

fore, taxpayers must furnish full and complete

information with respect to the cost or other

basis of the assets in respect of which depre-

ciation is claimed, their age, condition and re-

maining useful life, the portion of their cost

or other basis which has been recovered through

depreciation allowances for prior taxable years,

and such other information as the Commission-

er may require in substantiation of the deduc-

tion claimed.

V. The next question is whether the Commis-

sioner erred in determining deficiencies against the

petitioner by adding, under section 104, Revenue

Act of 1932^, 50 per cent, and under section 102,

^Sec. 104. Accumulation of Surplus to Evade Sur-
taxes. ,

(a) If any corporation, however created or or-

ganized, is formed or availed of for the purpose of

preventing the imposition of the surtax upon its

shareholders through the medium of permitting its
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Revenue Act of 1934, 25 per cent, of net income as

defined in subsection (c). The Commissioner made

his determination under sections 104 and 102 as

follows

:

Tax LiabUlty

Total or Net at 50 % ander

Income adjusted 104(a) [or 25%
Net Income under 104(c) [or under 102(a),

under Dividends 102(c), Revenue Revenue Act

Year Section 21 added Act of 1934] of 1934}

1932 $ 3,473.50 $18,258.00 $21,731.50 $10,865.75

1933 20,874.51 17,541.00 38,415.51 19,207.76

1934 19,014.25 25,057.00 44,071.25 11,017.81

[50]

The facts so far as material on this question may
be summarized, and we find as follows: Petitioner

was organized to engage in the business of logging,

gains and profits to accumulate instead of being di-

vided or distributed, there shall be levied, collected,

and paid for each taxable year upon the net income
of such corporation a tax equal to 50 per centum
of the amount thereof, which shall be in addition

to the tax imposed by section 13 and shall be com-
puted, collected, and paid upon the same basis and
in the same manner and subject to the same provi-

sions of law, including penalties, as that tax.

(b) The fact that any corporation is a mere
holding or investment company, or that the gains
or profits are permitted to accumulate beyond the

reasonable needs of the business, shall be prima
facie evidence of a purpose to escape the surtax.

(c) As used in this section the term ^'net in-

come" means the net income as defined in section

21, increased by the sum of the amount of the divi-

dend deduction allowed under section 23 (p) and
the amount of the interest on obligations of the

United States issued after September 1, 1917, which
would be subject to tax in whole or in part in the
hands of an individual owner.
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manufacture, purchase, sale and transportation of

lumber, and operation of steamships. The steam-

ers Oregon and Idaho were acquired in January

1929, were operated by the petitioner for about six

months and were then laid up, and had not again

been put into operation at the close of the taxable

years. Some lumber and allied business was carried

on. The corporation always had the purpose of re-

engaging in the lumber and shipping business. The

partnership which had preceded the corporation

had about $1,500,000 in the logging, lumbering and

milling business and it would have required about

that much capital at the time of the hearing. The

petitioner did not reenter the lumber-logging-mill-

ing business prior to or during 1932, 1933 and 1934,

because the losses were heavy in the logging busi-

ness, the sawmills were taking big losses, business

was depressed, no building was going on and it was

very hard to sell lumber, and it would have been

improfitable to go into a business which was losing

money. The petitioner reported in Federal income

tax returns gross sales as follows : 1932—$28,725.96

;

1933—$92,262.09 ; 1934—$170,239.51. Net losses were

reported by petitioner as follows : 1932—$11,740.89

;

1933—$1,341.36 ; 1931—$118.75. The petitioner had

during the taxable years a net loss from its opera-

tions other than ownership of stocks. It had in-

come, however, from dividends on stocks of domes-

tic corporations, and reported imder that heading,

and deducted, as follows: 1932—$18,258 ; 1933—

$17,541 ; 1934—$25,057. On balance sheets attached
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to the income tax returns undivided profits (else-

where in the returns for 1932 and 1933 referred to

as ''surplus and undivided profits") were reported

as of December 31 in each taxable year as follows:

1932—$19,309.75; 1933—$36,732 ; 1934—$25,447.64.

[51]

The income tax returns showed common stock on

January 1 of the years from time of incorporation,

as follows:

1929 _ _ $696,000 1932 _...._ ....- $2,500,000

1930 746,000 1933 - ....._ 2,500,000

1931 800,000 1934 _ 2,500,000

Common stock as of December 31, 1934, was re-

turned as $2,535,000. The only stock ever issued

was $1,000, to W. T. Wilson and F. A. Wilson, for

$500 paid by each on December 31, 1928.

Capital contributions of cash were from time to

time made by F. A. Wilson and W. T. Wilson.

With such constributions the petitioner purchased

securities, in practically all cases stocks of domestic

corporations. All stocks were purchased by the cor-

poration for cash. No stocks or bonds were trans-

ferred by W. T. Wilson or F. A. Wilson to the cor-

poration. The income tax returns filed by peti-

tioner and its records, as placed in evidence, do not

agree in important particulars. The income tax re-

turns in part show as follows:
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Deceaiber 31

1932 1933 1934

Assets
~~~

Cash $1,106,377.07 $1,022,123.45 $ 972,147.49

Securities of Domestic

Corporations 1,000,943.50 1,032,190.55 1,077,778.05

Liabilities

Notes payable 200,000.00 — —
Common stock 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 2,535,000.00

However, we find that the petitioner included in

the amounts returned as cash, for each of said tax-

able years, I.O.U.'s in large amounts, and we find

the facts to be as follows, with respect to the re-

spective items above set out: [52]

December 31

1932 1933 1934

Assets

Cash, as shown by Account

Books and records $ 96,638.23 $ 9,186.43 $ 73,707.36

Securities of Domestic Corpo-

rations as shown by Books

of account and Record

(cost) 750,943.50 782,190.55 837,778.05

(market value)... 439,961.87 777,792.00 810,797.75

Liabilities

Notes payable as shown by

record — — —
Common stock per record 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

The petitioner's records carried no item of $200,-

OCK) notes payable, though such item appeared in

the income tax returns for 1929, 1930, 1931, and

1932. The petitioner kept no record of petty cash,

and no account of the I.O.U.'s placed in the cash

box by W. T. Wilson and F. A. Wilson. At the
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time of trial petitioner's cash box contained one

I.O.U. for $843,438.54, consisting of two equal items,

one purportedly due from W. T. Wilson and the

other from F. A. Wilson. A certified public ac-

countant who testified for petitioner attempted to

take a trial balance from petitioner's general ledger

as of January 1, 1932, December 31, 1932, Decem-

ber 31, 1933, and December 31, 1934, but was unable

to do so because the general ledger accounts lacked

other accounts necessary to a complete balance of

the records. Francis Wilson, an officer of the com-

pany, furnished the accountant necessary informa-

tion as to identity of additional accounts and a bal-

ance of the books was then completed. On January

31 (year not shown) the books show ''transfer from

treasury stock $10,000." W. T. Wilson testified

that "we put in that much cash to take it up." The

ledger of the corporation carried two accounts head-

ed "treasury stock," totalling $250,000, but there

was in fact [53] no treasury stock. The corporate

books do not show the years, though dates of days

and months appear. No di^adends or salaries to

officers were paid by the petitioner from incorpora-

tion until after the end of the taxable years here

in question.

W. T. Wilson paid about $150 Federal income

tax in 1932, and none in 1933 and 1934. F. A. Wil-

son paid none for 1932, 1933 and 1934.

Petitioner's books showed accounts receivable

from F. A. Wilson as follows:
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Net Due
Year Charges Credits Deeeatber SI

1933 $82,597.77 $39,363.40 $43,234.37

1934 _ 62,199.38 69,821.25 35,612.50

On January 2, 1935, F. A. Wilson was credited with

$35,612.50 by purchase of Kennecott Copper stock.

The general ledger trial balances showed accounts

receivable from P. A. Wilson to be $28,091.96 on

December 31, 1933. "W. Wilson" is shown as

owing accounts receivable on December 31 of the

taxable years 1932, 1933 and 1934, in the following

respective amounts : $17,717.88, $16,917.88, $16,-

917.88.

What do the facts above epitomized signify with

reference to purpose to escape surtax within the

purview of section 104 of the Revenue Act of 1932

and section 102 of the Revenue Act of 1934? Pat-

ently the record is unsatisfactory and often contra-

dictory, and the corporate books kept in no normal

manner.

Pirst, we hold that the corporation was not

PORMED for the purpose interdicted by the above

sections. The parties have stipulated that petition-

er was incorporated 'Ho take over and continue the

business of said co-partnership." This indicates a

business purpose in formation of the [54] corpora-

tion. Por a short time, about five or six months,

after formation of the corporation and acquisition

of the two steamers in January 1929, the corpora-

tion operated the steamers. Shortly thereafter came

the financial crash of October 1929. We are not
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prepared to say that the two incorporators at the

inception of this corporation formed it for the pur-

pose involved in the statutes under consideration.

Was the corporation AVAILED OF during 1932,

1933 and 1934 for the purpose of preventing impo-

sition of surtax upon its two stockholders through

the medium of permitting its gains and profits to

accumulate instead of being divided or distributed?

The respondent so considered in determining the

tax as set forth in the deficiency notices, and the

burden is upon the petitioner to show to the con-

trary. Chicago Stock Yards Co., 41 B. T. A
(No. 87, March 20, 1940). Though the petitioner

was not, in our opinion, a "mere" holding or in-

vestment company, within the statutory phrase we

find it to be, during the taxable years, primarily

such a holding or investment company. Actual busi-

ness operations were comparatively small. No cash

book was kept because transactions were too few

and too small, and vouchers w^ere used instead. The

boats were laid iw long ])efore the taxable >^ears, and

net loss from business operations (except ownership

of securities) was taken each taxable year. No

dividends were paid. No salaries were paid to of-

ficers. At the same time, the two sole stockholders

contributed large amounts of cash to their corpora-

tion. The evidence of one of the stockholders indi-

cates that such contributions of cash and other as-

sets amounted to $1,279,314.24. We are unable to

make such finding of fact, for the record is to a con-

siderable extent contradictory and it is plain that
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the testimony of the witness can not be accepted

herein at face value. [55]

The witness, W. T. Wilson, testified that in the

month of incorporation, December 1928, $695,000 in

cash and other assets was put into the corporation,

that $50,000 was added about January 1, 1929, that

in January 1930, $54,000 w^as contributed, making

a balance of $800,000 on January 1, 1931, that dur-

ing January 1931, $480,312.24 which he and his

brother had in a San Francisco bank was added (in

addition to $1,700,000 in I.O.U.'s), that $35,000 was

transferred from profit and loss into the surplus

account, and then from book surplus to capital, but

that there was a net loss from operations. Explain-

ing the increase in cash from $56,593.58 on Decem-

ber 31, 1930, to $1,642,298.24 on December 31, 1931,

he said ''Oh, we just put a few I.O.U.'s in the cash

box," and that a large part of the difference was

I.O.U.'s; that they used I.O.U.'s right along; that

he kept corporate books and they balance every

year perfectly. However, W. T. Wilson and his

brother, the only other stockholder, for four con-

secutive years swore to income tax returns of the

petitioner, stating cash in large amounts—up to

about $1,000,000—which the corporation did in fact

not possess, and w^hich the witness at the hearing

explained as I.O.U.'s from his brother and himself.

At the time of hearing, petitioner's cash box still

contained such an I.O.U. in the amount of $843,-

438.54. The same oaths represented for four con-

secutive years that the petitioner owed notes pay-
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able of $200,000', contrary to the fact, represented

stocks of domestic corporations to be about $250,000

more than was the fact, and for six years represent-

ed common stock to be from $696,000 to $2,535,000

when in fact it was $1,000. One sworn statement

appears to have equal weight with another, par-

ticularly when all are with reference to the same

proposition—petitioner's income taxes. Evan V.

Quinn et al., 26 B. T. A. 970. It is apparent, how-

ever, from the bank [56] books, that the two stock-

holders did contribute large amounts in cash to the

petitioner and made other contributions of assets.

With the money, stocks, principally, if not wholly,

of domestic corporations, and some bonds were pur-

chased. In the taxable years the dividends received

from domestic corporations were deducted.

Was the purpose of the individuals to escape sur-

tax by causing the corporation to accumulate its

gains and profits'? It did so accumulate its imdi-

vided profits through the taxable years. Petitioner

argues that such accumulation was within the rea-

sonable needs of its business, that the former part-

nership had had about $1,500,000 invested, and that

the same was reasonably necessary. The evidence

does not, we think, bear out petitioner's contention.

The witness above referred to said that the same

amount would be necessary ''today," i. e., at the

date of hearing, in 1939. What the reasonable re-

quirements of the business were in 1932, 1933 and

1934 is left by the record to conjecture. Indeed,

what little is shown as to the taxable years indi-
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cates that there was no reasonable business need

for the accumulations, for W. T. Wilson when asked

to explain 'Vhy you did not reenter such business

before the years '32, '33 and '34, or during those

years," responded that in the logging- business losses

were heavy, that in the manufacture of lumber the

sawmills were taking big losses and ''It would be

unprofitable to go into a business which was losing

business." Elsewhere he said that business was

depressed, no building was going on and that it was

very hard to sell lumber. Again he testified to the

purpose "to reengage" in the shipping and lumber

business. Though these statements almost put the

company out of business in the taxable years, v/e

think that such can not fairly be said, for some

business was conducted. They do, however, in [57]

our opinion, prove an intent not to reenter a losing

business during the period of such losing business

and depression, and demonstrate that the small un-

divided profits accruing largely from security hold-

ings can not reasonably be said to have been ac-

cumulated as a reasonable business necessity. There

is no evidence as to how the money would be ex-

pended, or of any intent to go into business to the

same extent as had the partnership a few years

earlier. A mere comparison with an earlier part-

nership business constitutes no sufficient showing

of the financial needs of the corporation in the tax-

able years. Petitioner disproves, rather than

proves, reason for not paying dividends during the

taxable years. It might have been that looking into
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the long future and comparing with the business of

the partnership in 1928 and earlier years, the peti-

tioner's officers might have wished to accumulate,

not only the capital contributions, and securities in

which they were invested, but the undivided profits

from dividends from domestic corporations. But

we think no showing has been made of any imme-

diate, or reasonably immediate, need for conserving

both the large amounts of securities and the com-

paratively small amount of undivided profits. It

can not reasonably be thought, with the depression

so seriously affecting the shipping and lumber in-

dustry as petitioner shows, that the company would

suddenly find conditions so changed as to require

liquid assets to the full extent of not only its large

assets, but its current gains and profits. After a

painstaking study of the often confusing and con-

tradictory record, we come to the conclusion that

the petitioner has not adduced the proof necessary

to meet its burden of proof. This conclusion is

strengthened by the manner in which the corpora-

tion dealt with its two sole stockholders. If there

was reasonable business reason to accumulate the

undivided profits, why was F. A. Wilson permitted

to have credit as shown by accounts receivable from

him of $43,234.37 at the end of 1933 when undivided

profits were reported as $36,732, and of $35,612.50

at the end of [58] 1934 when undivided profits were

reported as $25,447.64? It is plain that the two

stockholders dealt with their corporation much as

they desired. There is no showing of the financial
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responsibility of F. A. Wilson for the credit he en-

joyed from his corporation. Indeed, no consistent

record was even kept of the matter. Though an ac-

count receivable set up as to him individually

showed the above figures, on the general ledger trial

balances placed in evidence, he is listed among bills

receivable wdth $28,091.96 as the amount on Decem-

ber 31, 1933—instead of $43,234.37 as above seen,

and on the list of accounts receivable of petitioner

as at December 31, 1933, placed in evidence by pe-

titioner, no item as to F. A. Wilson appears. Like-

wise, "W. Wilson," whom we think it reasonable

in the absence of explanation to assume to be W.
T. Wilson, the other stockholder, also owed the cor-

poration as follows: December 31, 1932—$17,717.88

;

December 31, 1933—$16,917.88 ; December 31, 1934—

$16,917.88. He reduced the amount only $800 in

two years. In our opinion the petitioner presents

a picture similar in outline to that in Rands, Inc.,

34 B. T. A. 1094, where we commented upon the

financial dealings between a sole stockholder and his

corporation and the fact that had he employed his

fimds instead of lending them to the corporation,

he would have had substantial taxable income. The

categoric denial of intent to avoid surtax, by the

Witness W. T. Wilson, must be compared with his

earlier sworn statements in the income tax returns

and the manner in which petitioner's books were

balanced perfectly by use of fictitious cash, com-

mon and treasury stock and notes payable. We hold

that the petitioner was availed of in the taxable
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years for the purpose of preventing imposition of

surtax upon its shareholders through the medium

of permitting its gains and profits to accumulate

instead of being divided or distributed. [59]

VI. The respondent further determined as to

each taxable year that the petitioner was subject to

the 5 per cent negligence penalty mider section 293

of the Revenue Acts of 1932 and 1934. The facts

above set forth and reviewed in connection with the

discussion of section 104 are here applicable with at

least equal force. The remarkable way in which the

petitioner kept its record and made its returns, set-

ting up false statements as to large amounts of cash

as to notes receivable and as to amount of capital

stock, maintainin.G: no cash book, and no record of

I. O. U.'s owing by its stockholders, requires the

application of the negligence penalty. The cases

cited by petitioner as to honest mistake or misunder-

standing do not apply to books kept in the manner

prescribed by the principal witness herein. Ob-

viously, a part of the deficiency was due to "negli-

gence or intentional disregard of rules and regula-

tions" without which the tax in this case could have

been ascertained without all of the difficulty encoun-

tered. We hold that the Commissioner did not err

in the application of the 5 per cent negligence pen-

alty under section 293.

Decision will be entered under Rule 50.

Enter

:

Entered May 22, 1940. [60]



68 Wilson Brothers <k Company

United States Board of Tax Appeals

Washington

Docket No. 93668.

WILSON BROTHERS & CO.,

Petitioner,

V.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

DECISION.

Pursuant to the Memorandum Opinion of the

Board entered May 22, 1940, the respondent herein

having on June 20, 1940, filed a recomputation of the

tax, and the petitioner having on July 22, 1940, filed

an acquiescence in said recomputation, now, there-

fore, it is

Ordered and decided: That there are deficiencies

in normal tax and surtax and a penalty for the year

1934 as follows:

Normal Tax—$1,912.05.

Additional Tax under section 102, 1934 Act

—

$9,740.70.

Penalty—$582.63.

Enter

:

[Seal] (Signed) R. L. DISNEY,
Member.

Entered Aug. 6, 1940. [61]
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[Title of Board and Cause.]

PETITION FOR REVIEW OF DECISION OF
THE UNITED STATES BOARD OF TAX
APPEALS BY THE UNITED STATES
CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE
NINTH CIRCUIT.

To the Honorable, The Judges of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

:

Wilson Brothers and Company (properly entitled

Wilson Bros. & Co.), your petitioner, pursuant to

the provisions of Sections 1141 and 1142 of the In-

ternal Revenue Code respectfully petitions this Hon-

orable Court to review the decision of the United

States Board of Tax Appeals entered on the 6th day

of August, 1940, and finding deficiences in income

tax, together with additional tax under Section 102

of the Revenue Act of 1934, and a negligence pen-

alty under Section 293(a) of said Act in the total

of $12,235.38 for the taxable calendar year 1934. [62]

Jurisdiction

Your petitioner is a corporation organized under

the laws of the State of Nevada, having, during the

taxable years involved, its principal office and place

of business in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, State of California. Petitioner timely filed its

Federal income tax returns in respect to which the

aforementioned tax liabilities arose with the Col-

lector of Internal Revenue, 1st District of Califor-

nia, located in the City and County of San Fran-
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Cisco, State of California, which is situated within

the jurisdiction of the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Judicial Circuit.

II.

Prior Proceedings

The Commissioner of Internal Revenue, by his

letter dated December 30, 1935, asserted a deficiency

in petitioner's tax liability for the year 1932 in the

sum of $11,343.36 and a penalty of five percentum

in the amount of $567.17, he also asserted a de-

ficiency in petitioner's tax liability for the year 1933

in the sum of $22,078.01 and a penalty of five per

centum in the amount of $1,103.90. By his letter of

March 8, 1938, the Commissioner asserted a de-

ficiency in petitioner's tax liability for the year 1934

in the sirni of $13,632.27 and a penalty of five per-

centum in the amount of $681.61.

Thereafter, and within the times prescribed by

law, the petitioner filed with the United States

Board of Tax Appeals its petitions under the afore-

said two letters requesting the redetermination of

such deficiences. The proceedings duly came on for

hearing on June 6, 1939, at which time the two pro-

[63] ceedings were consolidated for hearing. The

proceedings were submitted to the Board upon a

written stipulation of facts, oral testimony of wit-

nesses and documentary evidence applicable to the

two proceedings.

Thereafter, and on May 22, 1940, the United

States Board of Tax Appeals made its report and

rendered a memorandum opinion, through a single
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member sitting as Division No. 4 of said Board, ap-

proving in part the determinations of the Commis-

sioner.

Thereafter and on August 6, 194-0, decisions were

made and entered in each of the two proceedings

by the United States Board of Tax Appeals whereby

final orders of redetermination of deficiencies for the

respective years involved were made and entered

as follows:

Additional Tax
Under Section 104,

1932 Act and
Section 102,

Year Normal Tax 1934 Act Penalty

1932 None $ 3,316.84 $165.84

1933 $1,499.93 14,224.80 786.24

1934 1,912.05 9,740.70 582.63

III.

Statement of the Nature of the Controversy

This proceeding is for the year 1934 (Docket No.

93368) and involves income taxes, together with sur-

tax alleged under the provisions of Section 102 of

the Revenue Act of 1934 and a five percentimi pen-

alty for asserted negligence under Section 293(a) of

said Act, for the taxable calendar year 1934.

The controversy between petitioner (appellant be-

fore the Court) and the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue involves several issues which, for the years

involved, will be presented [64] in the order in

which they are discussed in the report or memoran-

dum opinion of the Board of Tax Appeals.

1. (Issue III (a) in the report memorandum

opinion) Whether petitioner was entitled to write
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off and deduct as a partially worthless or bad debt

for the taxable year 1934 the amount of $5,000. from

the simi of $43,276.06 owed to it by the Woodhead
Lumber Co. of California.

2. (Issue III(c) in the report or memorandum
opinion) Whether petitioner was entitled to write

off and deduct as a partially worthless or bad debt

for the taxable year 1934 the amount of $5,500. with

respect to bonds of Kentucky Fuel Gas Corporation,

a bankrupt corporation.

3. (Issue IV (a) in the report or memorandum
opinion) Whether the basis for depreciation of

petitioner's 75% interest in the steamship ''Idaho"

adjusted to January 1, 1932 is $52,466.67 as de-

termined in the memorandum opinion, or $91,466.67.

This issue is one of law and arises from the differ-

ence between the cost ($40,000) of said interest to

Henry Wilson and its value $79,000) on February

6, 1917 when he made a gift thereof to his wife,

Mary H. Wilson, who in turn made a gift thereof to

petitioner on January 2, 1929.

4. (Issue V in the report or memorandum opin-

ion) Whether the petitioner corporation was availed

of during the taxable years involved for the purpose

of preventing imposition of surtax upon its two

shareholders through the medium of permitting its

gains and profits to accumulate instead of being-

divided or distributed.

5. (Issue VI in the report or memorandum opin-

ion) Whether the petitioner was subject to the five

per centum negligence [65] penalty under Section

293(a) of the Revenue Act of 1934.



vs. Comm. of Int. Rev. 73

Due ii] part to the fact that the report or mem-
orandum opinion of the Board subdivides its find-

ings as it subdivides its opinion on the several issues,

thereby disregarding findings of fact made on some

issues material to other issues, a consideration of

the evidence as well as a consideration of all of the

facts found is necessarily involved in the review of

the Board's decision.

lY.

Assignments of Error

In assigning the errors which petitioner believes

to have been committed by the United States Board

of Tax Appeals, assignment is made in the order in

which the issues were decided and numbered in the

report or memorandum opinion of the Board en-

tered May 22, 1940, for the two proceedings docketed

and numbered 83,397 and 93,668. For convenience

of reference, the issues as considered in the report

or memorandum opinion are designated by the Ro-

man numerals, employed in subdividing said report

or memorandum opinion into separate parts. No
assignments of error are made to issues I and II

considered in said report or memorandum opinion.

Petitioner assigns as error the following acts and

omissions of said United States Board of Tax Ap-

peals :

III.

(1) The failure to find and determine that the

$43,276.06 account receivable due from the Wood-

head Lumber Co. of California was impaired during

the year 1934 in at least the amount ($5,000.00)
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charged off by petitioner in said year against said

account as a partial bad debt. {j6Q~\

(2) The faihire to find and determine that peti-

tioner had fully met its burden of proving error on

the part of respondent in disallowing the claimed

deduction of such partial bad debt, such disallow-

ance being predicated entirely on the false assump-

tion that no direct write-off had been made of said

$5,000.

(3) The making of a purported finding of fact

contrary to the evidence, record and issue involved

as follows:

''Upon consideration of the entire record we

find and determine that the alleged worthless

character of the debt from the Woodhead Lum-

ber Co. of California has not been shown. We
therefore find and hold that the Commissioner

did not err in disallowing the $5,000 deduction

claimed.^'

(4) The failure to find that the cost to petitioner

of its bonds of the Kentucky Fuel Gas Corporation

were impaired during the year 1934 in at least the

amoxmt ($5,500) charged off by petitioner in said

year against the cost of said bonds as a partial bad

debt.

(5) The failure to find and determine that peti-

tioner had fully met its burden of proving error on

the part of respondent in disallowing the claimed

deduction of such partial bad debt, such disallow-

ance being entirely predicated entirely on the false

assumption that no direct write-off had been made

of said $5,000.
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(6) The making of a purported finding with re-

spect to the deduction of said $5,500 contrary to the

evidence, record and issue involved as follows:

^'ObAdously such a record does not show error

on the part of the Commissioner in denying the

deduction. '

'

XV.

(7) The failure to allow as a basis for depre-

ciation on the Steamship "Idaho" from January 1,

1932, the amount of $91,377.78 [67] and to determine

that petitioner was entitled to deduct depreciation

on said steamship for each of the taxable years 1932,

1933 and 1934 in the amount of $6,100.77 per annum.

(8) The failure to allow as a part of the basis

of depreciation of the Steamship "Idaho" from

January 1, 1932, the amount of $79,000. as the fair

market value of a twenty per cent interest therein

given to Mary H.Wilson on February 6, 1917, by her

husband, at which time said steamship had a fair

market value of $395,000., which said twenty per

cent interest was donated to petitioner by said Mary
H. Wilson on January 2, 1929.

(9) The determination that the basis (unad-

justed) of property acquired by gift prior to De-

cember 31, 1920 is changed from the value at the

time of said gift to cost to the donor of said gift

when said property is made the subject matter of a

gift by said donee after December 31, 1920.

V.

(10) The making of a purported iinding with

respect to all of the taxable years involved and with-
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out discrimination between the circumstances and

facts relating to each of the years 1932, 1933, and

1934, to the effect

:

*'We hold that the petitioner was availed of

in the taxable years for the purpose of prevent-

ing imposition of surtax upon its shareholders

through the medium of permitting its gains and

profits to accumulate instead of being divided

or distributed."

when in fact the record and that part of the record

considered in the report or memorandum opinion

with respect to such finding is contrary to such find-

ing and said finding is inconsistent with other find-

ings upon which it is purportedly based.

(11) The determination that for the taxable year

1932 petitioner is liable under the alleged authority

of Section 104(a) of the [68] Revenue Act of 1932

in the amount of $3,316.84 as a surtax for the alleged

accumulation of surplus contrary to the provisions

of said section.

(12) The determination that for the taxable year

1933 petitioner is liable under the alleged authority

of Section 104(a) of the Revenue Act of 1932 in the

amount of $14,224.80 as a surtax for the alleged

accumulation of surplus contrary to the provisions

of said section.

(13) The determination that for the taxable year

1934 petitioner is liable under the alleged authority

of Section 102(a) of the Revenue Act of 1934 in the

amount of $9,740.70 as a surtax for the alleged

accumulation of surplus contrary to the provisions

of said section.
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(14) In making the determinations complained

of in assignments 10 to 13 hereof inclusive, the

failure to consider the true earned surplus of peti-

tioner as distinguished from its taxable earnings

and profits as determined in the report or memoran-

dum opinion.

(15) In making the determinations complained

of in assignments 10 to 13 hereof, inclusive, the fail-

ure to make any finding as to what surplus, if any,

petitioner had accumulated in each of the taxable

years involved.

VI.

(16) The determination that for the taxable year

1932 petitioner is liable for a negligence penalty

under the alleged authority of Section 293(a) of

the Revenue Act of 1932 in the amoimt of $165.84,

when the record does not disclose that any part of

the deficiency determined was ''due to negligence or

intentional disregard of rules and regulations". [69]

(17) The determination that for the taxable year

1933 petitioner is liable for a negligence penalty

under the alleged authority of Section 293(a) of the

Revenue Act of 1932 in the amomit of $785.24, when

the record does not disclose that any part of the de-

ficiency determined was ''due to negligence or in-

tentional disregard of rules and regulations".

(18) The determination that for the taxable year

1934 petitioner is liable for a negligence penalty

under the alleged authority of Section 293(a) of the

Revenue Act of 1934 in the amount of $582.63, when

the record does not disclose that any part of the de-
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ficiency determined was ''due to negligence or in-

tentional disregard of rules and regulations".

General

(19) The failure to make comprehensive and

generally applicable findings of facts which would

apply equally to all issues involved in the proceed-

ings and be adequate for proper determination of all

the issues involved.

(20) The setting forth separately in the report

or memorandum opinion in connection with the dis-

cussion and determination of each of the issues in-

volved therein of inadequate facts to suppoi-t the

conclusions reached in such opinion on the majority

of said issues.

(21) The severance of facts in the relation to

each of the issues discussed and determined in the

report or memorandum opinion so that purported

findings with regard to one issue do not have appli-

cation to the other issues involved.

(22) The determination of separate issues with-

out regard to facts found to be true with respect

to other issues involved in the proceedings. [70]

(N.B. The errors nimibered 19, 20, 21 and 22

are manifest from a reading of the report or

memorandiun opinion on the various nmnbered

issues and from the following express language

of the opinion:

"Certain issues as to depreciation upon

wooden buildings and automobiles have been

settled by stipulation which will be reflected in

decision under Rule 50. The other issues will be
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considered in the order above set forth, the

facts, except the general facts as to incorpora-

tion stated above, hei7ig set forth separately in

connection tuith the discussion of each issue.

(Italics supplied.)

(23) The intermingling of findings of fact, con-

clusions as to facts and conclusions of law in such

manner as to render the decision of the Board in its

report or memorandum opinion arbitrary and theo-

retical.

(24) In making its findings of fact and conclu-

sions of law therefrom the Board failed to make

findings of fact in conformance with the evidence.

Wherefore, the petitioner prays that the decision

of the United States Board of Tax Appeals be re-

viewed by the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit ; that a transcript of the

record be prepared in accordance with law and the

rules of said Court for filing, and that appropriate

action be taken to the end that the errors com-

plained of herein be reviewed and corrected by said

Court.

WILSON BROS. & CO.

By FRANCIS A. WILSON,
President.

ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNER
LOUIS JANIN

Counsel for Petitioner

1110 Balfour Building,

San Francisco, California. [71]
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State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

Francis A. Wilson being first and duly sworn

says, I am president of Wilson Bros. & Co., the

petitioner and appellant above-named; that I have

read the foregoing petition for review and know the

contents thereof and the facts set forth therein are

true as I verily believe; that said petition is filed

in good faith and not for purposes of delay.

FRANCIS A. WILSON
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29th day

of October, 1940.

[Seal] ELEANOR J. SMITH,
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

My commission expires Dec. 31, 1942. [72]

[Endorsed]: U. S. B. T. A. Filed Oct. 31, 1940.

[Title of Board of Cause.]'

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL

Louis Janin, being first duly sworn, deposes and

says:

That he is a citizen of the United States, and over

the age of 21 years, and not a party to the above-

entitled proceedings. That on this 30th day of Octo-

ber, 1940, he deposited in the United States Post

Office in San Francisco, California, addressed to the

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Internal Reve-
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nue Building, Washington, D. C, a copy of petition

for revievv' in the above-entitled proceedings, to-

gether with a notice of mailing petition for review,

addressed to said Commissioner of Internal Reve-

nue, and to John P. Wenchel, Chief Counsel, At-

torney for Commissioner. That said copy of petition

and notice for filing petition were enclosed in an

envelope addressed to the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue, Internal Revenue Building, Washington,

D. C, with air mail postage prepaid thereon for

immediate and prompt delivery.

LOUIS JANIN.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 30th day

of October, 1940.

[Notarial Seal] EDITH VIA,

Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed Oct. 31, 1940. [73]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

To Commissioner of Internal Revenue, and to John

P. Wenchel, Chief Counsel, Attorney for Re-

spondent, Bureau of Internal Revenue Build-

ing, Washington, D. C.

:

You are hereby notitled that on this 31st day of

October, 1940, a petition for review by the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, of the decision of the United States Board of



82 Wilson Brothers <fc Compamy

Tax Appeals, heretofore rendered in the above-

entitled cause, was mailed by air mail to the Clerk

of said Board. A copy of the petition as filed is at-

tached hereto, and served upon you.

Dated: This 30th day of October, 1940.

ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNER
LOUIS JANIN

Service of the foregoing notice of filing and of a

copy of the petition for review is hereby acknowl-

edged this 31st day of October, 1940.

J. P. WENCHEL
Chief Counsel, Bureau of

Internal Revenue,

Attorney for Respondent.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed Nov. 1, 1940. [74]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

STATEMENT OF POINTS ON WHICH
PETITIONER INTENDS TO RELY

In compliance with paragraph (d) of Rule 75 of

the Rules of Civil Procedure for the District Court

of the United States as made applicable for review

of a decision of the United States Board of Tax

Appeals by Rule 30 of the Rules of the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit the above-named petitioner herewith states the

points on which it intends to rely on the pending
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petition for review of the decision of said Board in

the above-entitled proceeding.

Petitioner will rely upon all of the assignments of

error set forth in the petition for review of decision

in the above-entitled proceedings by the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit filed with the United States Board of Tax

Appeals on October 31, 1940.

With respect to the above-entitled proceeding in-

volving the taxable calendar year 1934 and, as a

necessary incident the [75] years 1932 and 1933 a

concise statement of the points involved in the ap-

peal is as follows

:

1. The Board erred in determining that for the

year 1934 petitioner was not entitled to write-off

and deduct as a partial bad debt the amount of

$5,000 of a total of $43,276.06 owing to it from the

Woodhead Lumber Co. of California.

2. The Board erred in determining that for the

year 1934 petitioner was not entitled to write-off

and deduct as a partial bad debt at least the amount

of $5,500 on the impaired value of bonds of the

Kentucky Fuel Gas Corporation.

3. The Board of Tax Appeals erred in failing

to allow petitioner a valuation, as a basis for de-

preciation on the Steamship "Idaho" from January

1, 1932, of the amount of $91,377.78 and to determine

that petitioner was entitled to deduct depreciation

on said steamship for each of the taxable years

1932, 1933 and 1934 in the amount of $6,100.78 per

annum. Such error resulted from failure to deter-
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mine as a part of the basis of depreciation, the

amount of $79,000 as the fair market value of a

twenty per cent interest in said steamship given to

Mary H. Wilson on February 6, 1917, and by her

donated to petitioner on January 2, 1929.

4. The Board of Tax Appeals erred in finding

with respect to all the taxable years involved, viz

:

1932, 1933 and 1934, as follows:

''We hold that the petitioner was availed of

in the taxable years for the purpose of prevent-

ing imposition of surtax upon its shareholders

through the medium of permitting its gains and

profits to accumulate instead of being divided

or distributed."

and further erred in determining that for the year

1932 petitioner is liable under Section 104(a) of the

Revenue Act of 1932 for [76] $3,316.84 as a surtax

for alleged accumulation of surplus ; also, it further

erred in determining that for the year 1933 peti-

tioner is liable under the aforesaid section for $14,-

224.80 as a surtax for alleged accumulation of sur-

plus; also, it fui*ther erred in determining that for

the year 1934 petitioner is liable under Section

102(a) of the Revenue Act of 1934 for $9,740.70 as

a surtax for the alleged accumulation of surplus.

In making such determinations the Board failed

to consider petitioner's true earned surplus as dis-

tinguished from its taxable earnings and profits as

determined in the report or memorandum opinion

and, also, failed to make any findings as to what



vs. Comm. of Int. Rev. 85

surplus, if any, ])etitioner had accumulated in each

of the taxable years involved.

5. The Board erred in determining that for the

taxable year 1934 petitioner is liable for a negligence

penalty under Section 293(a) of the Revenue Act

of 1934 when the record does not disclose that any

part of the deficiency determined in said year was

"due to negligence or intentional disregard of rules

and regulations."

6. The Board erred in failing to make compre-

hensive or general finding of facts applicable to all

issues involved and further erred in segregating and

separating the findings made so that findings made

on one issue, although properly material and applic-

able to other issues, are made inapplicable to other

issues to which they are material and controlling as

is evidenced by the following preliminary statement

in the report or memorandum opinion.

"Certain issues as to depreciation upon

wooden buildings and automobiles have been

settled by stipulation which will be reflected in

decision imder Rule 50. The other issues will

be considered in the order above set forth, the

facts, except the general facts as to in- [77]

corporation stated above, heing set forth sepa-

rately in connection tvith the discussion of each

issue." (Italics supplied).

The Board further erred in failing to make findings

of fact in conformance with the evidence, and in

intermingling, as findings of fact, facts, conclusions



86 Wilson Brothers <& Compa/ny

as to facts, and conclusions of law in such manner
as to conflict with the record and the law\

ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNER
LOUIS JANIN

Attorneys for Petitioner,

1110 Balfour Building,

San Francisco, California.

Admission of service of the foregoing statement

of points on which petitioner intends to rely is

hereby admitted this 11th day of March, 1941.

J. P. WENCHEL
Chief Counsel, Bureau of Internal Revenue,

Attorney for Respondent on Review.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed March 11, 1941.

[78]

United States Board of Tax Appeals

Docket No. 83397 and Docket No. 93668

WILSON BROTHERS and COMPANY (Wilson

Bros. & Co.), a corporation,

Petitioner,

V.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

REVISED STATEMENT OF THE EVIDENCE

The above entitled and numbered proceedings

came on for consolidated hearing before the Honor-

able Richard L. Disney, Member of the United
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States Board of Tax Appeals, on June 6th and 7th,

1939, at the City and County of San Francisco,

State of California.

The following represents a narrative statement of

the evidence submitted to said United States Board

of Tax Appeals at said times and place.

A consolidated partial stipulation of facts was

filed for both proceedings and the respective de-

ficiency notices for the two proceedings were ad-

mitted in evidence and marked Petitioner's Exhibits

No. 1 and 2. (These Exhibits are respectively Ex-

hibits A to the two petitions on file in the [79] above

entitled proceedings).

WINFRED T. WILSON
was called as a witness by and on behalf of the peti-

tioner and having been first duly sworn testified on

June 6th, 1939, in substance as follows

:

Direct Examination

I am a shareholder and the secretary and treas-

urer of the petitioner corporation and am familiar

with and identify the corporation's income tax re-

turns for each of the calendar years 1932, 1933^ and

1934. (Whereupon said returns were offered and

admitted in evidence and marked respectively Peti-

tioner's Exhibits No. 3, No. 4 and No. 5.) I was

secretary and treasurer of the corporation during

the years 1932, 1933 and 1934 and my brother Fran-

cis A. Wilson was the president. I perfoiTned the

general duties of a secretary and treasurer and, in

addition, kept the books.
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(Testimony of Winfred T. Wilson.)

The corporation was organized in December of

1928 to engage in the logging business, the manu-

facture of lumber, the transportation of lumber, the

operation of steamships as a part of the logging

and lumber business, the buying and selling of lum-

ber, and engaging in the general lumber business.

My brother and I had been continuously and actively

engaged in the lumber business since 1906.

It was never intended that the corporation was

to be organized as a holding investment company.

My brother and I never discussed the element of

taxation as a reason for forming [80]' the corpora-

tion. Subsequent to the year of organization of the

corporation, including the years 1932, 1933 and 1934,

by brother and I never discussed the use of the

corporation for any Federal tax purposes or for any

special tax purposes. Nor during the years 1929 to

1934 inclusive did my brother and I discuss or reach

any conclusion that the corporation was to be

availed of for accumulating surplus or avoiding

surtax.

No stock of the corporation was ever issued be-

yond the forty shares subscribed for by my brother

and myself when the corporation was formed. The

corporation never declared any dividends in either

cash or stocks and paid no compensation to its offi-

cers from the time of its organization through the

taxable years involved because the earnings were in-

sujfficient to pay dividends and the assets were im-

paired.



vs. Comm. of Int. Rev. 89

(Testimony of Winfred T. Wilson.)

I kept the books of account of the corporation

during the years 1932, 1933 and 1934 and have such

books with me. Here is the stock record and certifi-

cate book ; the articles of incorporation and the cor-

porate record of Wilson Brothers & Company; the

banl^ books of the Crocker First National Bank,

Wells Fargo Bank; statements of the Bank of

America, Crocker First National Bank and Wells

Fargo Bank; sales books for 1932, 1933 and 1934;

the journal for those years, and the ledger. The

books were kept on an accrual basis. We did not

keep a cash book because the transactions w^ere too

few. Instead, when w^e sent out a bill for lumber

we sent out two bills and when the customer paid

he sent back one of the bills which w^as our [81]

record of payment. Then the payment was entered

in the ledger and deposited in bank. Where some

customers did not send back bills, they sent us

voucher checks and we kept the voucher on the end

of the check. All cash received went into the bank

accounts except now and then a small check would

be cashed for petty cash. The vouchers received and

the bank books took the place of the cash book. The

journal was kept in such manner that it reflected

the ordinary transactions made by the corporation,

although it did not reflect all of the cash transac-

tions, because the volume of business was so small

that it was not necessary. The ledger reflected the

business transactions of the corporation during the

three years involved and correctly stated the cash
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(Testimony of Winfred T. Wilson.)

position of the corporation at the opening and clos-

ing of each of said three years.

The witness was then shown a paper (afterwards

admitted as Petitioner's Exhibit No. 6) prepared

from the ledger, bank books and bank accounts,

which showed the cash status of the corporation at

the begiiming and end of each of the years involved

as follows:

Bank 1-1-32 12-31-32 12-31-33 12-31-34

San Francisco Bank $403,750.00 $51,324.00 None None
Crocker 1st Natl. Bk -25.25 2,3,989.81 $ 539.04 $ 142.48

Wells Fargo Bank 320.83 21,324.42 8,647.39 21,415.06

Bank of America 259.79 None None 52,149.82

Anglo-Cal. Natl. Bank 4,694.28 None None None

Total $408,999.65 $96,638.23 $9,186.43 $73,707.36

[82]

Other than petty cash, the corporation had no money

elsewhere than in the above-listed banks.

In the balance sheets forming a part of the in-

come tax returns for the three taxable years in-

volved cash was shown thereon as follows:

December 31, 1931 $1,642,498.24

December 31, 1932 1,106,377.07

December 31, 1933 _ 1,022,123.45

December 31, 1934 972,145.49

The above cash statements contained in the returns

were not correct and did not correspond with the

cash position as shown in the ledger. The differ-

ence between the amounts shown in the ledger and

those shown in the returns was represented by
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(Testimony of Winfred T. Wilson.)

I.O.U.s which my brother and I placed in the cash

box and carried as cash. Those I.O.U.s did not rep-

resent any money borrowed from the corporation

and our intent in putting them into the cash box

was that some day my brother and I might make

enough money to pay them up and we would have

a good sized corporation. We wanted to show a

great deal of assets. From time to time my brother

and I did make contributions on these I.O.U.'s. The

money was deposited in bank, entries were made in

the books. The amount paid in on an I.O.U. was

deducted from it, showing a smaller I.O.U. In

other words we destroyed one I.O.U. and then in-

serted the smaller one in its place. The cash posi-

tion shown on the returns was out of balance with

the cash position shown by the ledger and the bank

account to the difference of [83] the face value of

the I.O.U.s, and the amount of cash paid on such

I.O.U.s.

The misstatement of the cash position on the sec-

ond page of the corporation's returns in each of

the taxable years did not effect its taxable income

or the deductions from taxable income reported.

The witness was handed four papers or lists

(afterward admitted as Petitioner's Exhibits Nos.

7, 8, 9 and 10) which he identified as the complete

record of stocks of domestic corporations held and

owned by petitioner as of January 1, 1932, Decem-

ber 31, 1932, December 31, 1933, and December 31,

1934.
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(Testimony of Winfred T. Wilson.)

The costs shown on the lists, are the true costs of

the stock to the corporation and correspond with

the costs shown by the ledger entries. All of the

stocks were acquired by purchase for cash. The

approximate market values of the stocks set forth

in the four lists at the beginning and end of each

of the years involved, excepting the stock of

Weeden & Co., were taken from the Financial

Chronicle and other recognized journals recording

sales and transactions in the stock and bond mar-

kets of the United States. The market value of the

stock of Weeden & Co., which is not a listed stock,

was obtained from that company which acts as

broker in buying and selling its own stock for clients

or buying for itself. The totals of cost and approxi-

mate market values of the stocks of domestic cor-

porations owned by petitioner as shown by said Ex-

hibits 7, 8, 9 and 10 for the opening and closing of

each of the taxable years [84] herein involved are

respectively as follows:

—

Approximate

Date Cost Market Value

January 1, 1932 $516,670.00 $273,115.12

December 31, 1932 750,943.50 434,961.87

December 31, 1933 782,190.55 777,792.00

December 31, 1934 837,778.05 810,797.75

The witness was handed a paper or list (after-

ward admitted as Petitioner's Exhibit No. 11, ex-

cept as to data on bonds of Kentucky Fuel Gas Cor-

poration) which he identified as showing all of the

bonds owned by petitioner. The cost of the bonds



vs, Comm. of Int. Rev. 93

(Testimony of Winfred T. Wilson.)

shown on the list is the cost as shown by petitioner's

ledger. The market value as of the respective dates

was obtained from the brokers who sold the bonds

to petitioner and checked against quotations of the

market for the bonds in the New York Financial

Chronicle. The totals of cost and market value of

said bonds (exclusive of market value of Kentucky

Fuel Gas. Corp. bonds) for the opening and closing

of each of the taxable years as shown by said Ex-

hibit 11 are as follows:

Date Cost Market Valae

January 1, 1932 $ 3,975.00 $ 3,680.00

December 31, 1932 3,975.00 4,000.00

December 31, 1933 3,975.00 4,000.00

December 31, 1934 20,775.00 22,800.00

On January 2, 1929, Mary H. Wilson, W. T. Wil-

son and F. A. Wilson conveyed to petitioner a sev-

enty-five percent [85] interest in the Steamship

"Idaho" and a one-hundred percent interest in the

Steamship "Oregon" as a contribution without con-

sideration. (Bills of Sales of Enrolled Vessels for

each of the interests so conveyed were admitted in

evidence and marked Petitioner's Exhibit Nos. 12

and 13.) Mary H. Wilson, one of the grantors

above named, was the mother of W. T. Wilson and

Francis A. Wilson.

The vessels were acquired for the purpose of

transporting lumber for the corporation and there

was no intent to use those vessels for any other

purpose. The vessels were employed in the lumber
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(Testimon}^ of Win fred T. Wilson.)

business for five or six months after January 2,

1929. Then business got very bad and we were un-

able to obtain cargoes that could be sold at a profit

so we laid the vessels up.

Five or six months after January, 1929, we had

a great panic or depression in the country and it

continued in the lumber and shipping business

through the years 1932, 1933 and 1934. The com-

pany continued its ownership of those ships during

all that period for the purpose of operating them

as soon as conditions would permit. During the

three years in these proceedings involved the ves-

sels were docked in the Oakland Estuary or the Ala-

meda Estuary.

(The remainder of the testimony on pages 42 to

47 of the official report relates to deductions for

maintenance of the vessels as found and allowed in

issue II in the Memorandum Opinion of the Board,

from which no appeal is taken.) [86]

(Testimony regarding additional interest claimed

against petitioner on pages 48 and 49 of the re-

porters transcript of testimony is omitted because

no appeal is taken from issue I in the Memorandum
Opinion of the Board.)

During the years 1932 to 1934 the corporation

charged off particular items as bad debts. The

books showed a reserve for bad debts but that re-

serve was not in excess of the particular items

charged off. (Testimony regarding a charge-off of

$2,160. on accoimt of the Steamship ^'Svea" follows
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(Testimony of Winfred T. Wilson.)

on pages 51 to 55 is omitted because no appeal is

taken on that item which forms part (b) of issue

HI in the Memorandum Opinion of the Board.)

On December 31, 1934, the corporation wrote off

$5,000. as a partial loss on account of the financial

condition of the Woodhead Lumber Company of

California. I went to Los Angeles and went over

the books of the company and found it was in very

bad shape. There was a heavy mortgage on the

assets. There was a bond issue of about $200,000.

which came ahead of everjrthing else. The bonds

and the interest preceded the general creditors and

that was on a specific piece of land. The balance

of the assets consisted of accounts receivable which

I judged "were no good". The improvements and

the Imnber business were on rented property which

was held on a month to month basis and if it were

thrown off that property those improvements would

be practically worthless. The only hope of recov-

ery was if business conditions kept on improving

so the [87] company could make money they could

pay out. After a careful examination of the books

I determined that with the best advantage to the

company our corporation would lose $5,000. and

I wrote that amount off the corporation books in

1934 as being a reasonable deduction for partial

loss on account of the Company's indebtedness to

our corporation. We have never recovered that $5,-

000. Since 1934 the Woodhead Lumber Company

of California went along as a business until it
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(Testimony of Winfred T. Wilson.)

formed another corporation which took over a part

of the assets. The old company started to lose some

of their other assets through foreclosure and as-

signments due to agreements which it had and which

preceded our accoimt, in other words the company

owned some houses on which there were mortgages

and the mortgages were preferred against us so

that a good many of the assets disappeared that

way. The financial status of the company was worse

in after years than at the time I investigated in

1934 and became steadily worse, it was in default

on its bonds and was unable to pay the interest on

the bonds.

In the year 1934 we charged off $5,500. as a par-

tial loss on bonds of the Kentucky Fuel & Gas Cor-

poration which our corporation owned. We made
the charge-off because the company went into a re-

ceivership and it appeared that we would not re-

cover the full amount but would take a loss in the

amount charged-off. I made an investigation through

the people who issued the bonds and that was their

opinion. I had a list of the assets and liabilities

of the corporation and in studying [88] the balance

sheet it appeared that ''there certain assets that

were 0. K. and that there would be some recovery

due to that fact." I discussed the matter with my
brother, the other stockholder of our corporation,

and we reached the determination that the situation

of the Kentucky Fuel & G-as Corporation looked

pretty bad and that the amount of $5,500. should
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be written off as there was no way to get it back.

We did not come to the conclusion that the bonds

were entirely worthless ; the bonds were a first mort-

gage on the property of the company and there

must have been some residue for the bondholders

because it was an operating company with consid-

erable assets. That amount was written off in 1934.

(Testimony regarding deduction for depreciation

of furniture and fixtures in pages 62 to 67 of the

reporter's transcript is omitted because no appeal

is taken on that issue which is decided as subdi-

vision (c) of issue IV in the Memorandum Opinion

of the Board.)

Petitioner was the owner of 75/lOOths interest in

the steamship "Idaho" and a 100 per cent interest

in the Steamship '* Oregon" during the taxable

years involved. It was a practice of the shipping

trade on the Pacific Coast during the years 1916,

1917, and 1918 and since that time to have vessels

owned in shares and a fractional interest in a vessel

was valued at its proportion to the value of the

vessel as a whole. That is, a one-tenth share in a

vessel would be equal in value to one-tenth of the

vessel. [89]

On February 6, 1917, my father, Henry Wilson

gave my mother, Mary H. Wilson a 20/lOOths in-

terest in the Steamship "Idaho" and S/lOOths in-

terest to each of my brother, F. A. Wilson, and me,

or a total of 30/lOOths. The value of such interests

on said date was in proportion to the value of the
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boat, which was $395,000. as set by the United States

Board of Tax Appeals. These interests continued

to be held by ray mother, my brother and myself

until January 2, 1929, when they were given '*as

a contribution without consideration" to the peti-

tioner corporation. On January 6, 1924, my father

gave my mother an additional 35/lOOths interest in

the Steamship "Idaho". The bill of sale (Exhibit

A to Stipulation, marked for the record as Peti-

tioner's Exhibit 15) recites a consideration of

$10.00, but the transfer was a gift without consid-

eration. In July, 1925, my brother and I each ac-

quired an additional 5/lOOths interest in the Steam-

ship "Idaho" by purchase we paid a total of $11,-

716.67 for the 10/lOOths interest o\Mied by Mr. John-

son, each of us pajdng one-half. This purchase

gave each of my brother and me 10/lOOths interest

in the Steamship "Idaho" while my mother owned

55/lOOths, making the seventy-five percent interest

in the vessel which we transferred to the petitioner

corporation on January 2, 1929, as "a contribution

without any consideration".

On December 4, 1918, my father gave to each of

my brother and me a 5/32ds interest in the wooden

Steamship "Oregon". (Deeds of gift for 5/32nds

interest in said vessel dated January 10, 1918, by

Henry T. Wilson and Mary H. Wilson [90] to each

of Winfred T. Wilson and Francis A. Wilson were

admitted in evidence "and respectively marked Peti-

tioner's Exhibit 16 and Petitioner's Exhibit 17.)
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These instruments were executed and delivered on

account of '^my father's wish to make us members

of the firm". At the time the deeds of gift were

made to my brother and me and from the time the

boat was constructed it had been owned in the fol-

lowing shares:— My father, Henry Wilson, owned

15/32nds; A. B. Johnson owned 2/32nds and the

C. R. Wilson Estate, Incorporated, owned 15/32nds.

On January 6, 1924, my father gave my mother,

Mary H. Wilson a 10/32nds interest in the ^'Ore-

gon". My brother and I each purchased a l/32nds

interest in the ** Oregon" from A. B. Johnson for

a total consideration of $4,954.72. (The Stipula-

tion of Facts shows that on September 30, 1919,

each of Henry A. Wilson, F. A. Wilson and W. T.

Wilson acquired a 5/32nds interest in the ^^ Oregon"

from Margaret A. Wilson, as trustee in liquidation

of the C. R. Wilson Etate, Inc. for a consideration

of $19,531.25 from each, or a total consideration for

15/32nds of $125,000.) After the acquisition by my
brother and me of the A. B. Johnson interests in

the '' Oregon", the ownership of that vessel was

in the following persons:— Mary H. Wilson, my
mother, owned 10/32nds, F. A. Wilson, my brother,

owned ll/32nds and I owned ll/32nds. That own-

ership continued to January 2, 1929, when the three

persons named transferred the 32/32nds shares in

the ''Oregon" to the petitioner corporation as "a

contribution without consideration." Since Janu-

ary 2, 1929, petitioner has [91] continuously been
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the owner of a hundred percent of the ''Oregon"

and seventy-five percent of the "Idaho".

(From page 82 to page 94 of the record the tes-

timony relates to values and valuation of the Steam-

ships "Idaho" and "Oregon". While the witness

gave opinion evidence as to higher values, he con-

ceded that the valuations by the Board of Tax Ap-

peals in its decision in the proceeding of Henry

Wilson et al. v. Commissioner, 16 B. T. A. 1208 had

not been appealed but accepted. These valuations

on the entire vessels, as of the dates stated, were as

follows :^

—

Steamship "Idaho", March, 1917,

(February 6, 1917) $395,000.00

Steamship "Oregon", January 2, 1917 $385,000.00

These valuations having been adopted in the Memo-

randum Opinion of the Board in the present pro-

ceedings and being accepted by petitioner, recital

of the testimony in regard to values are omitted.)

After the "Idaho" and "Oregon" were trans-

ferred to petitioner on January 2, 1929, they were

operated in the lumber business for about six

months when their operations were stopped and

they were laid up. The vessels have been laid up,

but we have consistently tried to maintain them in

a condition where they could be easily and quickly

repaired and put into commission, if business op-

portunities afforded.- (On pages 95 to 97 of the rec-

ord follows testimony as to the probable useful life

of the vessels which is omitted because that factor
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is not at issue.) While the vessels have been laid

up from [92] year to year we have kept a man on

board each of them. He keeps the boat in pretty

fair condition and does the painting on it. We usu-

ally try to dock the boats and to paint and repair

the bottoms once a year to keep the boats in sea-

worthy condition. (On pages 99 and 100 of the

record follows testimony as to requirements and

estimates of cost of putting the vessels into com-

mission, which is omitted because immaterial to

issues on appeal.)

The two vessels have been constantly retained

and maintained by petitioner, even though they have

not been operated, because we expected to put them

back in commission. It has always been the pur-

pose of the corporation to re-engage in the shipping

and lumbering business and the two vessels have

always been considered a part of its operating

assets.

Petitioner did not declare any dividends during

the years 1932, 1933 and 1934 because we did not

believe the earnings sufficient, owing to the impaired

value of the assets. My brother and I have never

abandoned the original idea of operating the com-

pany as a logging, milling and shipping company.

If we were to enter the logging, lumbering and mill-

ing business today, I estimate that it would require

fully a million and a half dollars, if not more. When
we were operating before the dissolution of our

business we had about a million and a half dollars
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in it. Timber lands are not so cheap today and

mills and logging equipment are tremendously ex-

pensive. We acquired and held the securities which

the [93] corporation owns in order to have liquid

assets for the time when we would go back into the

lumber, logging and milling business. They could

quickly be sold and we would have the cash when

we wanted to buy anything we wished.

We did not re-enter the business before or during

the taxable years involved because losses in the log-

ging business were pretty heavy and in the manu-

facturing of lumber the saw-mills were taking big

losses. It would be unprofitable to go into a busi-

ness which was losing money.

The witness identified a copy of his income tax

return for 1933. I did not return or pay any tax

for that year. I have been unable to locate my re-

turns for 1932 and 1934. I paid no tax in 1934 and

I paid something like $150.00 in 1932. I helped

my brother in checking his income tax returns for

each of the years involved. The witness identified

copies of the income tax returns of his brother,

Francis A. Wilson, for the years 1932 and 1933 and

stated that he had seen the return for 1934. The

returns of my brother for the years 1932 and 1933

showed no tax returned for either year and to the

best of my knowledge the return for 1934 showed

no tax. The failure of the corporation to declare

dividends during the years 1932, 1933 and 1934 had

very little effect upon the individual income upon
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either my brother's individual income or my indi-

vidual income. The failure to declare dividends

did not result from any discussion between my
brother and me of possible taxes falling upon either

of us individually. [94]

I desire to correct a statement made in my testi-

mony this morning. The amount of money on de-

posit with the Anglo California Bank as of Decem-

ber 31, 1931, or January 1, 1931, is not shown by

the ledger sheets in my possession. At the time I

made the corporation return for 1932 the ledger

sheet was available and I am absolutely sure that

the amount stated in that income tax return as the

balance in that bank was correct. Our books were

kept on the accrual basis and the items of interest

which had accrued during each of the taxable years

1932 and 1933 were correctly reported for each year.

Cross-Examination

June 6, 1939.

The witness identified the petitioner corporations

income tax returns for each of the years 1929, 1930

and 1931 which were respectively marked for pur-

poses of identification only as Respondent's Exhibits

A, B, and C.

At all the times since incorporation I have been

the secretary and treasurer of the corporation and

have kept its books. Referring to Exhibits ''A",

"B" and "C" marked for identification I would

say that I think the balance sheets appearing there-
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in were taken from the books of the corporation.

Referring to the opening balance sheet in Re-

spondent's Exhibit "A" for identification I have

no recollection concerning a cash item of $200,000.,

nor the $200,000. notes payable, nor the item under

liabilities of common stock $698,000. shown therein,

or recall what they are. The $466,000. item repre-

sents stock in domestic corporations. I don't re-

call [95] where those stocks came from.

(On interruption by petitioner's coimsel, the wit-

ness testified in substance as follows:— I do not

have the books of account for the years 1929, 1930

and 1931 in my possession here in court. At no

time during the preparation of this case was my
attention in any way called to the books of accoimt

for those years. On the questions being asked I have

not seen the record for many years.)

Cross-Examination

Resumed

I presume our books of account would show what

those items represented for the year 1929 when the

corporation first started business. As I recall, my
brother and I paid a thousand dollars into the cor-

poration for stock and I do not recall having paid

any other money. I do not recall what the item of

$695,000. on the balance sheet represents; nor the

item of cash of $131,173.43 on the closing balance

sheet for December 31, 1929, or that such item was

represented by I.O.U.'s; nor where the money came
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from to purchase the $486,000. worth of stock shown

on the balance sheet at December 31, 1929. I have

no information with respect to the note payable

item at the end of December 31, 1929, of $200,000.

(On being shown the exhibit from which he was

being questioned the witness testified.) The $200,-

000. note payable item went out of the balance sheet

on December 31, 1932, and it was in the opening

balance sheet for December 31, 1931. I have for-

gotten what it represented.

The cash shown in the balance sheet of December

31, [96] 1930, on Respondent's Exhibit ''C" for

identification was $56,593.58, but I do not recall

whether it was cash or whether we might have had

some I.O.U.'s in the cash box. In preparing the

returns we took the figures representing cash from

the books and the I.O.U.'s, if we had any, in the

cash box. We used I.O.U.'s right along and I do

not recall whether the $200,000. in the opening bal-

ance sheet was represented by an I.O.U.

As shown by the balance sheet for December 31,

1930, stocks of domestic corporations were pur-

chased increasing the investments up to $504,595.

On the liability side of that balance sheet common

stock is shown at $800,000., an increase from the

opening balance sheet which showed $748,000.

For the year 1931 the balance sheets show an in-

crease from $56,593.58 to $1,642,298.24, a large part

of which was represented by I.O.U.'s, but how much

I cannot recall. I have no record of the I.O.U.'s in
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our books of account and we have no record of

petty cash. I have no ledger sheets in which the

I.O.U.'s or petty cash appear. I can balance my
books without the record of those items. The bal-

ance shows $2,500,000. as common capital stock at

December 31, 1931. The books and records of the

corporation show the profit and loss from the lum-

ber business for the years 1929 to 1934. I do not

recall whether they show a profit or not. "Busi-

ness was very depressed then; it was awful hard

to sell lumber. There was no building going on.

It was no criterion of the conditions of the lumber

business imder normal conditions." [97]

The ledger states the capital account of the cor-

poration as of January 2nd, $2,500,000. The capi-

tal account represents the I.O.U.'s and various in-

vestments and the boats. The investment in the

boats is $75,000. for the "Idaho" and $100,000. for

the "Oregon" in the year w^e formed the corpora-

tion. The page of the ledger sheet from which I

am reading does not state any specific year but the

entry was made in the year which the corporation

was formed.

Referring to the entry of capital account, I do

not see any stock dividend of $35,000. there. The

item "March 30, Transfer from surplus $35,000"

represents transfer from surplus and I can make

no other explanation. The item "January 31st

Transfer from treasury stock, $10,000." represents

transfer from the treasury stock and I can make
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no other explanation. The ledger shown me is the

ledger for the years 1932, 1933 and 1934. We have

another ledger covering the years 1937, 1938 and

1939, but I do not know whether we have a ledger

covering the years 1929, 1930 and 1931. (At request

of respondent's counsel the ledger identified as cov-

ering the years 1932, 1933, and 1934 was ordered

marked for identification only as Respondent's Ex-

hibit "D".)

The corporation has a journal which I have here

and which covers the years 1932 to 1934. It does

not cover the years 1929 to 1932, we kept a journal

for that time but I do not know what became of it

and doubt whether I would be able to find it. [98]

(Counsel for respondent requested that the books

for the years 1929 to 1932 be produced and he ad-

vised that in the absence of production he proposed

to offer secondary evidence regarding the financial

condition of petitioner corporation for that period.

Counsel for petitioner explained that he considered

that the books of 1929-1932 had nothing to do with

the issues and were entirely immaterial, that he

had not called upon petitioner to produce accounts

for years prior to the years involved. The presid-

ing member of the Board made no order for pro-

duction but on the day following the books for the

years 1929 to 1932 were produced at the hearing.)

The corporation maintains such books and rec-

ords as it maintains in Los Angeles, iu Reno, Ne-

vada, and in San Francisco. The business of the
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corporation is all done in Los Angeles and is con-

ducted in part by myself, my brother and a man
in Los Angeles. Our business in Los Angeles is

done in the Wilson Building on Wilshire Boule-

vard and at our lumber yard on Pico Boulevard.

We started business in Los Angeles witli thv <M)r-

poration when we formed it on December 14, 1928.

We have maintained a bank account in Los An-

geles with the Los Angeles branch of the Bank of

America. The bank book is in Los Angeles but the

bank statements for that account are mailed to us

in San Francisco and I have them here.

I kept the books on the accrual basis. Besides

the ledger (Respondents Exhibit D for identifica-

tion) we have various records here, sales books and

various records. There [99] was a bank book kept

in Los Angeles imder my supervision and direction

but I do not know whether it was kept under my
supervision and direction from 1929 to 1934.

Resumed Hearing

June 7, 1939.

(At this session two witnesses, Albert F. Pills-

bury and S. A. Livingston, w^ere called by petition-

er to testify as to the value of the Steamship

*'Idaho" as of February 6, 1917, and the Steam-

ship "Oregon" as of January 10, 1918. As the

value of those vessels has been determined by the

Board and such valuation is accepted by petitioner,

no statement of the testimony of those witnesses is

presented.)
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Cross-Examination

of Winfred T. Wilson

Resumed

The stocks of domestic corporations shown in Pe-

titioner's Exhibit 7 were in the possession of the

corporation in 1932 and were acquired prior to Jan-

uary 1, 1932, by purchase for cash. The stocks

shown on Exhibits 8, 9 and 10 were also purchased

for cash. The cash came from the capital of the

corporation not out of earnings. In December, 1928,

we put in $1,000'. That was the beginning of the

corporation. Later we put in $685,000. contributed

in cash and other assets. Later $50,000. more cash

was put in making a balance of $746,000. as of Jan-

uary, 1930. During January, 1930, $54,000. was

contributed in cash making a balance of $800,000.,

January 1, 1931. During 1931 $1,700,000. in I.O.U.'s

plus $480,312.24 which we had in the San Francisco

Bank was contributed. The $480,000. [100] was

contributed by myself and my brother 50-50 during

1931 from the account in the San Francisco Bank
belonging to myself and my brother.

After the $480,000. was contributed to capital in

1931, $35,000. was transferred from the book sur-

plus. This amount came from profit and loss into

the surplus account and as profit and loss it repre-

sented the total operations of the business.

I cannot tell you the amount of interest the cor-

poration received from bonds during the year 1932.

We have a record of the total interest received each
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month but it is not itemized. From accounts re-

ceivable during the year 1932, my notations show

that we got $1,726.41 from Woodhead Lumber Com-

pany; $1,324. from the San Francisco Bank in De-

cember and $1,312.50 in April; $8.40 and $10.59

from Hutton in January and $7.34 from Hutton

in May. The principal source of interest was the

Woodhead Lumber Company and the San Fran-

cisco Bank.

The interest account for 1933 in our general

ledger does not make a break-down of the total in-

terest received for the various items, bonds, accounts

receivable and bank accounts. We kept an account

of the total interest received each month without

segregation. Our bank books would show the in-

terest received from banks. We get the informa-

tion which we enter in our ledger account from

payments made each month—^we get a payment from

the Woodhead Lumber Company and we get the

bank statements of the interest allowed from the

bank. I have no [101] itemization here to show

whether the Woodhead Lumber Company paid in-

terest in 1935. For the year 1934 and the other

years here involved there is some itemization.

I examined the books of the Woodhead Lumber

Company. I am not an officer or stockholder of

that corporation and have no interest of any kind

in it.

I was permitted to examine the corporation's

books because it owed us a great deal of money and
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Mr. Woodhead was a friend of mine. We wanted

to know if we were going to get our money. It

looked pretty bad. So Mr. Woodhead showed us

everything he had. I believe I made the examina-

tion in 1934.

The Woodhead Lumber Company of Nevada

bought the inventory and physical assets of the

Woodhead Lumber Company of California in the

latter part of 1932 and in consideration gave its

note for $25,000. and $37,000. worth of its capital

stock. The Woodhead Lumber Company of Cali-

fornia was indebted to the petitioner but the Ne-

vada corporation was not, except that we started

to sell lumber to it. The Woodhead Lumber Com-

pany of California turned over to us as security

the note for $25,000. secured by the $37,000. par

value stock of the Nevada corporation, but the stock

did not have any $37,000. of value. We still sell

lumber to the new company.

Cross examination was interrupted and S. A. Liv-

ingston was sworn and testified as to valuation of

the Steamships ^' Idaho" and '* Oregon". As this

testimony is not material to any issue on appeal it

is omitted. [102]

Cross-Examination

of W. T. Wilson resumed.

(Here follows testimony on pages 189 to 192 of

the record concerning the account of the petitioner

corporation with respect to the Steamship "Svea".
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As no issue concerning this account is involved in

the appeal, statement of the evidence is omitted.)

Testifying from a document not in evidence but

furnished by respondent's counsel, I paid personal

income tax deficiency in the amount of $506.09 for

1933 plus a penalty of $25.30 though I reported a

net loss for that year. I do not remember whether I

paid any personal income tax for the years 1929,

1930 and 1931.

(Testimony concerning the witnesses experience

and knowledge regarding sales of vessels or inter-

ests in vessels and construction and operation of

vessels follows on pages 195 to 204 of the reporter's

record. As this cross-examination relates to the wit-

nesses qualification to testify to the value and life of

vessels and as no such issue is on appeal, statement

of such evidence is omitted.)

Redirect Examination

of Winfred T. Wilson

With regard to the amounts of capital or contri-

butions to the petitioner to which I testified on

cross-examination, the usual form of the contribu-

tions was in the form of I. O. IT.'s. Sometimes we

v^ould pay a little on them and sometimes we

wouldn't and they are still in the cash box.

I kept the books of accoimt of the corporation

dur- [103] ing the years 1929 to 1931 inclusive. Since

my testimony given on cross examination yesterday

I have found additional books, documents, records
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and papers relating to the financial history of the

petitioner during the years 1929 to 1931. (Here the

witness identified the ledger for the years 1929, 1930

and 1931.) The ledger is not all complete. The main

accounts are here, the profit and loss accounts. The

accounts receivable is not complete as to some of the

smaller accounts.

(Here follows on pages 206 to 208 of the record

testimony relating to the deduction sought in rela-

tion to the Steamship "Svea". As this point is not

at issue on appeal, no statement of such evidence is

given.)

I am not a Certified Public Accountant, have

never acted as a bookkeeper other than for peti-

tioner, and have never had any training as a book-

keeper. Whenever I have had any disputes with

respect to income tax liability I have hired Certified

Public Accoimtants to put in the facts because I am

not able to do it myself.

Explaining my testimony on cross-examination

yesterday regarding a $10,000. reduction on the

books with respect to treasury stock, we put in that

much cash to take it up. No stocks or bonds were

transferred to the corporation by my brother and

me,

I don't understand the technical meaning of the

term "surplus" as compared with the term "paid in

surplus" very well, I am not an expert on book-

keeping. [104]

With respect to the Woodhead Company account

concerning which I gave testimony this afternoon,
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we never recovered the $5,000. The account was a

large account and we recovered only a portion

thereof through life insurance which Mr. Woodhead
assigned to us to save us from loss of all that money.

(Here follows on pages 210 to 213 of the record

testimony relating to value and condition of the

Steamships "Idaho" and "Oregon", which, because

it does not relate to any issue on appeal, is not re-

duced to statement.)

Recross-Examination

of Winfred T. Wilson

On direct examination I testified that a receiver

had been appointed for the Kentucky Fuel and Gas

Corporation, I think it went into receivership in

1931, but I am not sure. In my investigation I

looked up quotations on the 6% bonds of the cor-

poration. We claimed partial deduction on those

bonds for 1934. I looked up the market quotations

of the bonds in 1932 but do not recall the sale or

bid and asked prices with respect to them. I think

the charge-off was a general one against the bonds

we owned. I have the book of account where the

charge-off of Kentucky Fuel and Gas bonds was

made. The book shows that we acquired the bonds

December 1st but does not give the year. I do not

know from whom we acquired the bonds of a face

value of $15,000. in 1932.



vs. Comm. of Int. Rev. 115

THOMAS MURPHY
was called as a witness by and on behalf of the peti-

tioner and [105] having- been first duly sworn testi-

fied on June 7, 1939, in substance as follows:

Direct Examination

I am a Certified Public Accountant employed by

Barrow, Wade, Guthrie & Co., a firm of national

and international accountants, as a senior account-

ant. The nature of my work as a senior accountant

covers the general field of auditing, cost accounting

and Federal and State income taxation. I am ad-

mitted to practice before the Treasury Department

and the Board of Tax Appeals.

In my capacity as an employee of Barrow, Wade,

Guthrie & Co. I have made an examination of the

books of petitioner. My firm was employed to make

that examination by Judge Graupner, counsel for

petitioner, subject to the approval of Francis A.

Wilson, an officer of the corporation, in August of

1938. My instructions were given by Judge Graup-

ner. He stated that he wished to have an impartial

examination made of the books and records and all

other papers which would be made subject to my
inspection and from those records to prepare bal-

ance sheets for the years ended December 31, 1932,

and annually thereafter to include December 31,

1934, to reflect in the amended statements all adjust-

ments of errors which I located in the course of my
examination, including particularly those errors of

principle which I discovered. Also, I was to make a

survey of income and earned surplus accounts and
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to make such adjustments in those accounts as I

foimd necessary, [106]

I was advised that the purpose of the examination

and m}^ report was for use in relation to petitioner's

income tax disputes for the years 1932 to 1934 in-

clusive. Also, I was told it was desired to have a

report which would provide the basis for more com-

plete accounting for the years thereafter. This re-

port was completed by my firm and submitted to the

client. When it became apparent that this case was

^o go to trial I made additional examinations of sev-

eral matters and prepared additional schedules and

made slight adjustments in two schedules so as to

make the facts more informative.

In the preparation of the report the scope of my
examination did not go so far as to be a detailed

one, but I was to make an analysis of all of the

balance sheet accounts and to make due adjustments

for any errors that I located in the course of my
examination. I was also to make a survey of all

of the income accounts for the years 1929 to 1934

inclusive so as to properly state the earned surplus

account at each of the balance sheet dates included

in the period of examination.

The books that were made available to me were

the general ledger, journal and the lumber sales

sheets for the years 1932 to 1934 inclusive. Also, I

saw the minute book and the capital stock record

book, but I found no other evidence of any other

records or books of accoimt than those which I have

detailed. In my opinion, those books were kept on
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the accrual basis with the possible exception in re-

spect of dividends on the stocks of domestic cor-

porations. This diversion of [107] treatment of divi-

dends is somewhat common and is apt to occur in

accounting.

As to items of income and deduction, the books

and returns were in accord each with the other. I

attempted but was im^able to take a trial balance

from the general ledger as of January 1, 1932, De-

cember 31, 1932, December 31, 1933, and December

31, 1934, because the general ledger accounts, as sub-

mitted to me, lacked certain other accounts neces-

sary to establish a complete balance of the records.

From information furnished me by Francis A. Wil-

son, one of the officers of the corporation, I was able

to complete a balance of the books for all four dates

named. I went further than that: I compared the

completed trial balance, with the reconcilement

items, with the returns filed for the three years and

found that in each case a combination of the indi-

vidual items found in the general ledger would tie

in with the classification appearing in the balance

sheets in the returns. (The witness then identified

three sheets of typewritten paper as being general

ledger trial balances for the three years ''before

reconciliation.") The information from these sheets

was taken from the books of the company. No year

dates were available but the information was sup-

plied by officers of the corporation. Because I ulti-

mately was able to reconcile the figures through the
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additional information supplied and to tie them into

the Federal tax returns for those years, it is my
opinion that these trial balances are coi'rect, even

though there may be [108] deficient information

contained in the books. The three sheets of paper

fastened together were offered in evidence for the

purpose of showing what the books of petitioner

show for the periods indicated and were submitted

and marked Petitioner's Exhibit No. 18.

T made certain reconciliations with respect to the

general ledger trial balance for the purpose of indi-

cating specifically the particular items which were

omitted. There was no ledger sheet in the books of

the taxpayer to evidence the account of the Anglo-

California National Bank which showed a balance

of $4,694.28 on January 1, 1932. I verified that item

by examining the cancelled bank book that was

issued by the bank to evidence that account. I also

have seen the account of the Atlantic Lumber Com-

pany showing the balance due the taxpayer on Jan-

uary 1, 1932, in the sum of $45.00. That account

will be found in the ledger that was presented as

evidence this morning by Mr. Wilson. Other than

that I have not seen any of the accoimts which I

have attempted to reconcile as shown by the schedule

of reconciliations which I prepared, and hold in my
hand and I have never seen ledger sheets to sub-

stantiate them, but have been given explanations by

officers of the company as to what they consisted.

When I say ''other than that I have not seen the
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accounts", I refer to the cash item which is shown

for the first three years in excess of one million

dollars and at December 31, 1934, of 898,000 odd

dollars. It was explained to me that those items were

represented by I. O. U.'s which were placed in the

cash drawer of Wilson Brothers [109] & Company

and that it was necessary to take into accomit those

I. O. U.'s in effecting a balance of the general

ledger. I had not seen any of those I. O. U.'s at the

time of preparing the statement of reconciliation.

I have not seen any of the I. O. U.'s which would

induce the particular amounts but I have seen one

that is currently being carried in the cash box of

the taxpayer. It is for $843,438.54, consisting of two

equal parts, one of which is purportedly due by

Francis A. Wilson and the remainder owing by

Winfred T. Wilson. (Petitioner offered in evi-

dence the schedule or statement of reconciliation

concerning which the witness testified as Petition-

er's Exhibit No. 19 and the objection to admission

thereof by Respondent's counsel was sustained by

the presiding Member.)

The attention of the witness was called to Peti-

tioner's Exhibit No. 6, entitled "Wilson Bros, and

Co. Cash in banks," showing total cash in banks as

follows

:

December 31,
January 1,

1932 1932 1933

$408,999.65 $96,638.23 $9,186.43 $73,707.36
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I prepared the original of this exhibit. I determined

the cash in banks as of the various dates shown

from examining the ledger sheets of the company
and comparing them with the ledger sheets in pos-

session of the listed banks, bank statements or bank

pass books. There was no additional amount of cash

shown by the books of the company.

The attention of the witness was called to Peti-

tioner's Exhibit No. 3. (Corporation Income Tax

Return of petitioner for [110] calendar year 1932.)

I attempted to reconcile the cash shown on the re-

turn as $1,642,298.24 as of January 1, 1932, with the

cash for that date shown on Exhibit 6 as $408,999.65,

but I could locate no additional cash either in the

form of cash, currency or bank deposits. The atten-

tion of the witness was called to Petitioner's Exhibit

No. 4 (Corporation Income Tax Return of peti-

tioner for calendar year 1933). The exhibit shows

cash at the beginning of the taxable year as $1,106,-

377.07 and I could not reconcile the difference be-

tween that amomit and the $96,638.23 shown on Ex-

hibit 6 for the same date. I could locate no further

deposits or other forms of cash. At the end of the

year 1933 cash in Petitioner's Exhibit No. 4 is

shown to be $1,022,123.45. I could not reconcile this

figure with the $9,186.43 shown in Exhibit No. 6 for

the same date for the reasons given before. In Peti-

tioner's Exhibit No. 5 (Corporation Income Tax

Return of Petitioner for calendar year 1934) cash

at the end of the year 1934 is shown as $972,147.49.
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I could not reconcile that figure with the $73,707.36

shown in Exhibit No. 6 for the same reasons.

I have examined the books of petitioner but did

not encounter any item or sheet relating to $200,000.

of notes payable.

The witness identified a paper as being a state-

ment of accounts receiyable of the petitioner as of

January 1, 1932. The items on that paper, with the

exception of the accounts of Fisher Company $35.

and E. F. Hutton & Company $5,173.99 were [111]

taken from the ledger of the company which are

here in the court room. With the exception of the

items relating to Fisher Company and E. F. Hutton

& Company the statement was admitted in eyidence

and marked Petitioner's Exhibit No. 19. (As ad-

mitted, Exhibiit No. 19 shows accounts receiyable as of

January 1, 1932, to be $62,107.06.)

The witness identified a paper as being a state-

ment of the accounts receiyable of the petitioner as

at December 31, 1932. The statement shows all the

accounts receiyable of petitioner that are set forth

in the books of account. Also, it shows an account

in the name of J. C. Smith Lumber Company in the

sum of $87.89 which is not disclosed in the ledger

sheets. With the exception of the item $87.89 under

the name J. C. Smith Lumber Company, the state-

ment was admitted in eyidence and marked Peti-

tioner's Exhibit No. 20. (As admitted Exhibit No.

20 shows accoimts receiyable as of December 31,

1932, to be $72,574.58.)
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The witness identified a paper as being a list of

the accomits receivable of petitioner as at December

31, 1933. The list was compiled from the books of

account of the company present in the court room

—

with the exception of the item Advance Lumber

Company $100. With the exception of the item of

$100. as to Advance Lumber Company, the list was

admitted in evidence and marked as Petitioner's

Exhibit No. 21. (As admitted Exhibit No. 21 shows

accounts receivable as of December 31, 1933, to be

$94,824.91.) [112]

The witness identified a paper as the schedule of

accounts receivable of petitioner as of December 31,

1934. That schedule is complete from the books of

account of the company without exception. I dis-

covered accounts receivable with respect to the

shareholders and officers of petitioner but did not

list them on this schedule. I classified them sep-

arately on the balance sheet which I prepared for

the information they may contain in this proceed-

ing. This schedule, together with the three exhibits

immediately preceding, indicate only those accoimts

receivable which had to do with the company's trade

in business, namely: the sale of lumber and the ac-

counts representing advancements in respect to the

Steamship "Svea". The schedule was admitted in

evidence and marked Petitioner's Exhibit No. 22.

(Exhibit No. 22 shows total accounts receivable as

of December 31, 1934, to be $103,002.60).

The witness identified a paper as being an anlysis
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of the ledger sheet appearing in Petitioner's books

of account present in the courtroom. The analysis

concerns the account of petitioner carried with F. A.

Wilson for the period April 26, 1933, to January

2, 1935, inclusive. The dates and amounts are shown

on the ledger sheet of that accoimt but the explana-

tions in the schedule are taken from journal

entries and other ledger entries which show that Mr.

Wilson, as a stock broker, bought and sold securities

for which he was accountable to petitioner. The

schedule was admitted in evidence and [113] marked

Petitioner's Exhibit No. 23.

In my opinion as an expert accountant petitioner,

during the years 1933 and 1934, kept its accounts on

the direct write-off method with respect to bad debts

and the books so reflect. The account entitled "Re-

serve for Bad Debts" which appears in the books of

the corporation is not unusual. Coi-porations fre-

quently set up a "Reserve for Bad Debts" in which

there is provision made for debts knowTi or believed

to be bad, and such reserve is a balance sheet item

and operates to reduce the carrying value of the

asset related to it. The reserve for bad debts expres-

sion may be used in two entirely different senses,

and it is my opinion that in this case the term is

used as a valuation balance sheet account and does

not show by which means it elected to take off de-

ductions for bad debts from a tax point of view.

It is my opinion that the petitioner is on a direct

write-off basis under the Revenue Act, irrespective
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of the fact that for accounting purposes it carried

a reserve for bad debts.

(Here follows testimony on pages 265 to 269 of

the reporter's record and the admission of Peti-

tioner's Exhibits Nos. 24 and 25 relating to mainte-

nance expenses of the Steamships "Idaho" and

"Oregon" and the accoimts receivable of the Steam-

ship "Svea". As these items are not at issue on

appeal no statement of the testimony in relation

thereto is included. Following such testimony on

pages 269 and 270 of the record the witness further

testified to his examination [114] relatmg to the

bank interest accounts of petitioner. As this item

is not at issue on appeal the testimony I'elating

thereto is omitted.)

In connection with the reserve for bad debts, with

exception of the provision for uncollectibility of the

Steamship "Svea" account, immediately, or at least

as of the same date, which was December 31 of the

years involved, the entry setting up the provision

for bad debts was followed immediately by a charge

back to reserve for bad debts account and a credit

to the related assets account. That applies with re-

spect to the Kentucky Gas bonds and the Woodhead

Lumber Company.

For the year 1933 there were nine specific ac-

counts receivable which were credited, thereby elim-

inating the accounts as assets from the books of the

corporation, but leaving the Steamship "Svea" pro-

vision in the reserve for bad debts. In the year 1934
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the two credits to asset accoimts with corresponding

charges to the reserve for bad debts were with re-

spect to the Kentucky Fuel & Gas Corporation

bonds and the Woodhead Lumber Company in re-

spective amounts of $5,500. and $5,000.

(Here follows testimony on pages 272 and 273 of

the reporter's record relating to interest on bank

deposits which, because not material to issue on ap-

peal, is omitted.)

Referring to Petitioner's Exhibit No. 7 (Stocks

of Domestic Corporations as of January 1, 1932.) I

prepared the schedule. The figures under the head-

ing "Number of Shares" [115] were taken from the

ledger sheets carried individually for each invest-

ment of petitioner. The information as to the names

of the corporations were taken from the same source

and also the figures shown under "Cost". The fig-

ures for "Approximate Market Value" were taken

from bank and quotation records. The figure I used

in each case was the exact amount of the last sale

and, if there did not happen to be a last sale, I took

the bid price. However, there were two exceptions.

With respect to the Anglo National Corporation I

went to the office of the San Francisco Stock Ex-

change where the stock was listed and secured from

its official records the price at which the last sale

occurred. In connection with the Weeden & Co. stock

I commmiicated with an officer of that corporation

and was given orally a price at which sales had been

negotiated through that company for shares of its
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own stock about the time of the balance sheet date.

The same explanation applies with equal force to

Exhibits 8, 9 and 10. (Petitioner's Exhibits Nos. 8,

9 and 10 are schedules of ^' Stock of Domestic Cor-

porations" as of December 31, 1932, 1933 and 1934

respectively.) There is an exception to Exhibit No.

10 wherein the last item on the schedule is labeled

"Unidentified difference" and opposite that item

under "Approximate Market Value" there is the

word "none", indicating no value whatever. Under

the word "Cost" are the red ink figures of $212.50

indicating a deduction from the other assets to come

to a net balance which would be $212.50 less than

the aggregate cost as shown by the [116] Exhibit.

There is simply no way of explaining this difference.

Petitioner's ledger accounts are thus $212.50 greater

than the amount appearing in the Federal income

tax return.

There is another exception involving $250,000.

The petitioner's book shows two ledger accounts en-

titled "Treasury Stock" and that $250,000'. did not

represent actual value in the form of treasury stock.

As shown by the capital stock records, there never

had been any capital stock issued in excess of $1,000.

par value. I could find no records to indicate any

repurchase or other acquisition of any stock of the

corporation, therefore, I eliminated the $250,000. as

being of no value whatever.

Referring to Petitioner's Exliibit No. 11

(schedule of "Bonds of Domestic Corporations"),

I prepared this statement. The cost figures for the
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four dates (January 1, 1932, and December 31 for

each of the years 1932, 1933 and 1934) are taken

from the ledger accounts and are in agreement. The

cost figures for Kentucky Fuel Gas Corp. bonds as

shown by Exhibit 11 are as follows

:

$18,000. 1st lien s. f. 61/2% A bonds due 1942,

at January 1, 1932 $9,000.00

15,000. 1st lien s. f. 61/2% A bonds due 1942,

at December 31st, 1932 450.00

10,000. 1st lien s. f. 61/2% A bonds due 1942,

at December 31, 1933 20.00

$43,000. total par value of said bonds had a cost on

December 31, 1933, of $9,470.00

I made an inyestigation upon which I could base

an opinion as to whether or not there was any loss

in value of the bonds of the Kentucky Fuel & Gas

Corporation. I have here [117] information which I

acquired with respect to those bonds. In the first

place, due to the rapid shrinkage of the market

yalue of those bonds, it was evident that a sub-

stantial loss of value had occurred from one of two

reasons: First, a mere fluctuation in market condi-

tions which might be due to extrinsic factors and

also it might represent a final and permanent loss

of value within the bond itself. That would be par-

ticularly true because these bonds were a senior

issue ; they had sinking fund provision ; they carried

a fairly high coupon and yet sold as low as $2. per

hundred dollar bonds therefore, I considered market

value would have a very considerable bearing on

evidence of worth or lack of it.
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The source of my information as to these market

values is the Bank and Quotation Record and as to

the first sinking fund 6% bonds of 1942, I will give

the bid and ask prices in that order and e^ch quota-

tion will be on the basis of a $100. bond

:

January 1, 1930 $74.00 and $79.00

December 31, 1930 $35.00 and $45.00

December 31, 1931 $ 5.00 and $ 7.00

December 31, 1932 $ 1.25 and $ 4.00

December 31, 1933 $ 2.00 and $ 4.00

December 31, 1934 $ 4.50 and $ 6.00

For the years 1935 and thereafter for the dates

given I will state only the bid price: December 31,

1935, $8.00; December 31, 1936, $18.50; November

30, 1937, $8.00.

Assuming for the moment that the deduction of

$5,500. claimed with respect to Kentucky Fuel & Gas

Corporation bonds might not be allowed for some

technical reason, it is my opinion that from an ac-

counting point of view as distinguished from a [118]

tax point of view there should be provision to re-

duce the book value and the carrying value of these

bonds to at least as low a figure as appears in the

accounts of this corporation. I think that the pro-

vision of $5,500. is certainly not greater than would

be made under good accounting practice in a finan-

cial statement of the company.
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Cross-Examination

of Thomas Murphy
With respect to Kentucky Fuel & Gas Corpora-

tion debentures 6%s of 1938 the bid and ask prices

from 1930 to 1934 were respectively as follows:

January 1, 1930 $73.00 and $77.00

December 31, 1930 $45.00 and $55.00

December 31, 1931 $ 1.25 and $ 1.50

December 31, 1932 none and $ 2.00

December 31, 1933 none and $ 2.00

December 31, 1934 none and $ 2.00

Whereupon, the petitioner rested and respondent

offered documents marked for identification as Re-

spondent's Exhibits *'A", ''B" and '*€'' (Peti-

tioner's income tax return for the years 1929, 1930

and 1931 respectively) in evidence. Over objection

by petitioner and on exception the documents were

admitted in evidence as Respondent's Exhibits "A",

*'B"and ^'C".

The foregoing evidence together with the Stipula-

tion of Facts filed with the United States Board of

Tax Appeals on June 6, 1939, and the Exhibits re-

ferred to in the foregoing statement constitute all

of the material evidence adduced at the hearing

before said Board and relating to the issue involved

[1192 ui the petition for review of the decision of

said Board.
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The deficiency notices attached to the petitions on

file in the above-entitled and numbered proceedings

and designated in the foregoing statement as Peti-

tioner's Exhibits numbered 1 and 2 are to be con-

sidered as before the court without additional trans-

cript thereof for the record on appeal.

There are to be attached hereto and made a part

hereof on transmission of the record from the Clerk

of the United States Board of Tax Appeals to the

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals,

Ninth Circuit, the following Exliibits offered by the

parties to the proceedings and admitted in evidence,

viz:

Petitioner'*

Exhibit

3—Petitioner's income tax return for 1932

4—Petitioner's income tax return for 1933

5—Petitioner's income tax return for 1934

6—Statement of Petitioner's cash in banks

7—Statement of Petitioner's stock ownership 1/1/32

8—Statement of Petitioner's stock o^vnership 12/31/82

9—Statement of Petitioner's stock ownership 12/31/33

10—Statement of Petitioner's stock ownership 12/31/33

11—Statement of Petitioner's bond ownership

18— (3 Sheets) Petitioner's General Ledger Trial

Balances (after closing) 1932-1934

19—Petitioner's accounts receivable 1/1/32

20—Petitioner's accounts receivable 12/31/32

21—Petitioner's accounts receivable 12/31/33

22—Petitioner's accounts receivable 12/31/34 [120]
23—Analysis petitioner's accounts receivable from

F. A. Wilson

Respondent's

Exhibit

A—Petitioner's income tax return for 1929

B—Petitioner's income tax return for 1930

C—Petitioner's income tax return for 1931
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The foregoing Revised Statement of the Evidence
is approved by the undersigned as attorneys for the

petitioner and respondent on review.

ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNER
LOUIS JANIN

Attorneys for Petitioner

on Review

J. P. WENCHEL
Counsel for Respondent

on Review. [121]
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Schedule A
1. Cost of sales (where inventories are an income-deter-

mining factor)

[Not filled in]

2. Cost of operations (where inventories are not an income-

determining factor)

[Not filled in]

Schedule B
Profit From Sale of Real Estate, Stocks, Bonds), Etc.

[Not filled in]

Schedule C—Compensation of Officers

[Not filled in]

Schedule D—Cost of Repairs

[Not filled in]

Schedule E—Taxes Paid

[Not filled in]

Schedule F—Explanation of Losses by Fire, Storm, Etc.

[Not filled in]

Schedule G—Bad Debts

[Not filled in]

Schedule H—Dividends Deductible

[Not filled in.]
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AFFIDAVIT

We, the undersiged, president and treasurer of

the corporation for which this return is made, be-

ing severally duly sworn, each for himself deposes

and says that this return, including the accompany-

ing schedules and statements, has been examined

by him and is, to the best of his knowledge and be-

lief, a true and complete return, made in good faith,

for the taxable year stated, pursuant to the Reve-

nue Act of 1932 and the Regulations issued there-

under.

F. A. WILSON
President.

W. T. WILSON
[Corporate Seal] Treasurer.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 31 day of

March, 1933.

W. J. O'CONNOR,
[Notarial Seal] Dep. CoU. [125]

CONSENT FIXING PERIOD OF LIMITATION
UPON ASSESSMENT OF INCOME AND
PROFITS TAX

IT:E:Aj

RLT-25579

, 193

In pursuance of the provisions of existing In-

ternal Revenue Laws Wilson Brothers and Com-

pany, a taxpayer of San Francisco, California, and

the Commissioner of Internal Revenue hereby con-

sent and agree as follows:
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That the amount of any income, excess-profits, or

war-profits taxes due under any return (or returns)

made by or on behalf of the above-named taxpayer

for the taxable year (or years) 1932, under exist-

ing acts, or under prior revenue acts, may be as-

sessed at any time on or before Dec. 30, 1935, ex-

cept that, if a notice of a deficiency in tax is sent

to said taxpayer by registered mail on or before

said date, then the time for making any assessment

as aforesaid shall be extended beyond the said date

by the number of days during which the Commis-

sioner is prohibited from making an assessment and

for sixty days thereafter.

WILSON BROS. & CO.

Taxpayer.

[Seal*] By F. A. WILSON,
Pres.

GUY T. HELVERING
Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

By C C D 5/2/35.

(Date)

*If this consent is executed on behalf of a cor-

poration, it shall be signed with the corporate name,

followed by the signature and title of such officer

or officers of the corporation as are empowered

under the laws of the State in which the corpora-

tion is located to sign for the corporation, in addi-

tion to which the seal, if any, of the corporation

must be affixed. Where the corporation has no seal,

the consent must be accompanied by a certified copy
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of the resolution passed by the board of directors,

giving the officer authority to sign the consent. [126]

RLT/REK-2

Mailed

May -4 1935

IT:E:Aj

RLT-25579

Mr. L. L. Pryor,

155 Sansome Street,

San Francisco, California.

In re: Wilson Brothers and Company,

1312 Russ Building,

San Francisco, California.

Sir:

Receipt is acknowledged of your letter dated

April 24, 1935, and the consent transmitted there-

with, extending the period of limitation for assess-

ment of income tax on the return of the above-

named taxpayer for the year 1932 to December 30,

1935.

The consent has been accepted by the Commis-

sioner. In this connection it is desired to assure

you that it is our purpose to proceed to a final de-

termination of the tax liability as expeditiously as

possible, and your cooperation to that end will be

appreciated.

Respectfully,

CHAS. T. RUSSELL,
Deputy Commissioner.

By (Signed) J. W. CARTER
RLT/CCM-2 Chief of Section.

[127]
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CONSENT FIXING PERIOD OF LIMITATION
UPON ASSESSMENT OF INCOME AND
PROFITS TAX

IT:E:Aj

RLT-25579

Jan. 31, 1935

In pursuance of the provisions of existing In-

ternal Revenue Laws Wilson Brothers and Com-

pany, a taxpayer of 1312 Russ Building, San Fran-

cisco, California, and the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue hereby consent and agree as follows:

That the amount of any income, excess-profits, or

war-profits taxes due under any return (or returns)

'made by or on behalf of the above-named taxpayer

for the taxable year (or years) 1932 under existing

acts, or under prior revenue acts, may be assessed

at any time on or before Jmie 30, 1935, except that,

if a notice of a deficiency in tax is sent to said tax-

payer by registered mail on or before said date,

then the time for making Siny assessment as afore-

said shall be extended beyond the said date by the

number of days during which the Commissioner is

prohibited from making an assessment and for sixty

days thereafter.

WILSON BROS. & CO.

Taxpayer.

[Seal*] By F. A. WILSON,
President.

' GUY T. HELVERING
Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

By C C D 3/1/35.

(Date)
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*If this consent is executed on behalf of a cor-

poration, it shall be signed with the corporate name,

followed by the signature and title of such officer

or officers of the corporation as are empowered

under the laws of the State in which the corpora-

tion is located to sign for the corporation, in addi-

tion to which the seal, if any, of the corporation

must be affixed. A¥liere the corporation has no seal,

the consent must be accompanied by a certified copy

of the resolution passed by the board of directors,

giving the officer authority to sign the consent.

rlt:/aa3

[Endorsed]: Petitioner's Exhibit No. 3. Ad-

mitted in evidence June 6, 1939. [128]
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Schedule A
1. Cost of sales (where inventories are an income-deter-

mining factor)

[Not filled in]

2. Cost of operations (where inventories are not an income-

determining factor)

[Not filled in]

Schedule B
Profit from Sale of Stocks, Bonds, Real Estate, etc.

[Not filled in]

Schedule C—Compensation of OflScers

None

Schedule D—Cost of Repairs

[Not filled in]

Schedule E—Taxes Paid

[Not filled in]

Schedule F—Explanation of Losses by Fire, Storm, etc.

[Not filled in]

Schedule G—Bad Debts

[Not filled in]

Schedule H—Dividends Deductible

[Not filled in]
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AFFIDAVIT

We, the undersigned, president (or vice presi-

dent, or other principal officer) and treasurer (or

assistant treasurer) of the corporation for which

this return is made, being severally duly sworn,

each for himself deposes and says that this return,

including the accompanying schedules and state-

ments, has been examined by him and is, to the best

of his knowledge and belief, a true and complete re-

turn, made in good faith, for the taxable year stated,

pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1932 and the Na-

tional Industrial Recovery Act and the Regulations

issued thereunder.

F. A. WILSON
President

W. T. WILSON
[Corporate Seal] Secretary

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 15th day

of March, 1934.

W. SHINE,

[Notarial Seal] Dep. Coll. [132]

NOTICE TO CORPORATIONS

This form should be executed and [illegible] In-

come Tax Form 1120' for the calendar year 1933.

If the corporation merely [illegible] person or per-

sons employed to assist in the preparation of the

return, the name [illegible] advisor, together with

a statement showing the extent to which such ad-

vice was received, is sufficient. If the return was
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actually prepared by any such person or persons,

this form must be signed and sworn to by such per-

son or persons.

Bid the corporation employ anyone especially to

prepare or advise in the preparation of its income

tax return for the calendar year 1933? (Answer

''yes" or "no")—No. If so, give name and ad-

dress and state to what extent such assistance or ad-

vice was received:

I/We, acting as (Attorney or advisor)

for the hereto subscribed taxpayer, afi&rm that I/we

prepared the return, that the information set out

in the return and accompanying schedules, if any,

correctly and truly represents the information fur-

nished or discovered by me/us during the course of

preparation of the return, and that such informa-

tion is true to the best of my/our information and

belief.

(Attorney or advisor)

(Address)

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day

of , 1934.

(Signature of officer administering oath) (Title)

[Notarial Seal] [133]
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Form 1100

Treasury Department

Internal Revenue Service

RETURN OF INFORMATION

By Brokers and Other Agents—Calendar Year 1933

Name and address of guarantor of account:

Names and addresses of others with power to

make withdrawals of cash, securities, or commodi-

ties from the account:

Name and address of customer and title of account

:

Wilson Bros. & Co.,

1312 Russ Bldg.,

San Francisco, Calif.

Total purchases, $107,860. Total sales, $120,821.

Name and address of broker or agent

:

Francis A. Wilson,

1312 Russ Bldg.,

San Francisco, Calif.

Instructions

Prepare this form in accordance with the instruc-

tions on return Form 1100-A. Forward with return

Form 1100-A to reach the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue, Sorting Section, Washington, D. C, on or

before February 15, 1934. [134]
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1933 RETURN OF CAPITAL STOCK TAX
For Year Ending Jime 30, 1933

Domestic Corporations

(Sec. 215, National Industrial Recovery Act,

73d Congress, Public, No. 67)

This return must be filed with the Collector of In-

ternal Revenue for your district on or before July

31, 1933, and the tax must be paid on or before that

date.

Duplicate 781

First California

Assessment List, Form 23A

Sep. 1933

43526

Examined by:

1. Name—Wilson Bros. & Co.,

2. Address—1312 Russ Bldg., San Francisco, California

3. Name of parent company, if any— (District filed— )

4. Name of subsidiary, if any— No. shares held

—

(District filed— )

5. Nature of business in detail—Lumber & Shipping

6. Incorporated or organized in State of—Nevada

Month—November Year—1928

See Instructions on Reverse Side

7. Date of close of the last income-tax taxable year ending

on or prior to the year ended June 30, 1933*—Decem-

ber 31, 1932.

*If no income-tax taxable year ending on or prior to year ended June 30,

1933, use dale of organization.

8. Capita] account as shown on balance sheet as of the date

set forth in item 7 (no other date should be used)

:
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Nnmber of shares Par value per share Total

(a) Common stock 20 $2500000.

(b) First preferred stock

(c) Second preferred stock-

—

(d) Surplus (or deficit) 19300.75

(e) Undivided profits

(f) Total 25019309.75

Computation of Tax

9. Original declared value for entire capital stock

as of the date shown in item 7 $400000.

10. Tax at rate of $1 for each full $1,000 in item

9 (omit cents ) 400.

11. Penalty of 25 percent for delinquency in filing

return

12. Interest _ ~ _.

13. Total tax, penalty and interest _..

Sep. 5, 1933

State of California,

County of San Francisco—ss:

We, F. A. Wilson, President, and W. T. Wilson,

Treasurer, of the corporation for which this return

for capital stock tax imposed by section 215 of the

National Industrial Recovery Act is made, being

severally duly sworn, each for himself, deposes and

says that the items entered in the foregoing report,

including any statements attached to or accompany-

ing this return, are, to his best knowledge and be-

lief and from such information as he has been able

to obtain, true and correct.

F. A. WILSON
President.

W. T. WILSON
Treasurer.
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Sworn to and subscribed before me this 31st day

of August, 1933.

[Illegible]

[Illegible]

[Seal]

(Official capacity)

[Endorsed] : Petitioner's Exhibit No. 4. Admitted

in evidence June 6, 1939. [135]
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1934 RETURN OF CAPITAL-STOCK TAX

For year ending June 30, 1934

Domestic Corporations

(Sec. 701, Revenue Act of 1934, 73d Congress,

Public, No. 216)

This return must be filed with the Collector of In-

ternal Revenue for your district on or before July

31, 1934, and the tax must be paid on or before that

date.

Duplicate 1571

First-California

September, 1934

(Page) 4413 (Line) 4

Examined by:

1. Name Wilson Bros. & Co.

2. Address 1312 Russ Bldg., San Francisco, Calif.

3. Name of parent company, if any

(District filed )

4. Name of subsidiary, if any

No. shares held (District filed _ )

5. Nature of business in detail Wholesale Lumber.

6. Incorporated or organized in State of Nevada.

Month December. Year 1928.

Declaration of the Value of the Capital Stock

Important.—Before declaring a value for the

capital stock, carefully read the instructions below,

as a value once declared cannot later be amended.

If you file your income tax return on a calendar

year basis, or would do so if subject to income tax,
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declare in the space below a value for the entire

capital stock of your corporation as of December 31,

1933, which you are willing to have accepted in this

and subsequent years, as a basis, subject to statu-

tory adjustments, on which to pay capital-stock tax

and excess-profits tax.

If you file your income-tax return on a fiscal year

basis, or would do so if subject to income tax, de-

clare the value as of the close of such fiscal year.

If your corporation was organized during the

year July 1, 1933, to June 30, 1934, both dates in-

clusive, and if neither the first calendar year nor

the first fiscal year for income-tax purposes has

ended during the year July 1, 1933, to June 30,

1934, both dates inclusive, declare the value as of

the date of organization.

If your corporation is without a capital stock

represented by shares, declare a value for the net

worth of the corporation.

(See Instruction No. 3 for additional information)

7. *Yalue of Entire Capital Stock $400,000.

Exemptions. (See Instruction No. 4)

8. Is exemption from the tax claimed ? Answer Yes

or No. ( ).

9. If exemption is claimed, check the block which

shows basis of claim and furnish the informa-

tion required on page 2.

n Section 101, Revenue Act of 1934.

Insurance company,

n Not doing business.

*A specific and unqualified value must be shown
in this space. If the capital stock is of no value

insert the word "None."
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For use of For use of

Computation of Tax Taxpayer Department

10. Amount shown in item 7 $400000 $

11. Tax at rate of $1 for each full

$1,000 in item 10 (omit cents) 400

12. Penalty of 25 percent for delin-

quency in filing return

13. Interest [Stamped] 8524

14. Total tax, penalty, and interest 400

Affidavit

We, the undersigned, president (or vice presi-

dent, or other principal officer) and treasurer (as-

sistant treasurer or chief accounting officer) of the

corporation for which this return is made, being

severally duly sworn, each for himself deposes and

says that this return, including the accompanying

schedules and statements, has been examined by him

and is, to the best of his knowledge and belief, a

true and complete return, made in good faith, for

the taxable year stated, pursuant to the Revenue

Act of 1934 and the Regulations issued thereunder.

[Corporate

Seal] F. A. WILSON
President

W. T. WILSON
Treasurer.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 30th day

of Aug., 1934.

[Notarial Seal] C. MEHEGAN. [140]

D.C.
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REVENUE ACT OF 1934

Title V—Cai)ital-Stock and Excess-Profits Taxes

Section 701. Capital-Stock Tax

(a) For each year ending June 30, beginning

with the year ending Jime 30, 1934, there is hereby

imposed upon every domestic corporation with re-

spect to carrying on or doing business for any part

of such year an excise tax of $1 for each $1,000 of

the adjusted declared value of its capital stock.

(b) For each year ending June 30, beginning

with the year ending June 30, 1934, there is hereby

imposed upon every foreign corporation with re-

spect to carrying on or doing business in the United

States for any part of such year an excise tax

equivalent of $1 for each $1,000 of the adjusted de-

clared value of capital employed in the transaction

of its business in the United States.

(c) The taxes imposed by this section shall not

apply:

(1) to any corporation enumerated in section

101;

(2) to any insurance company subject to the

tax imposed by section 201, 204, or 207;

(3) to any domestic corporation in respect of

the year ending June 30, 1934, if it did

not carry on or do business during a part

of the period from the date of the enact-

ment of this act to June 30, 1934, both

dates inclusive; or

(4) to any foreign corporation in respect of

the year ending June 30, 1934, if it did
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not carry on or do business in the United

States during a part of the period from

the date of the enactment of this act to

June 30, 1934, both dates inclusive.

(d) Every corporation liable for tax under this

section shall make a return under oath within one

month after the close of the year with respect to

which such tax is imposed to the collector for the

district in which is located its principal place of

business or, if it has no principal place of business

in the United States, then to the collector at Balti-

more, Md. Such return shall contain such informa-

tion and be made in such manner as the Commis-

sioner, with the approval of the Secretary, may by

regulations prescribe. The tax shall, without assess-

ment by the Commissioner or notice from the col-

lector, be due and payable to the collector before the

expiration of the period for filing the return. If the

tax is not paid when due, there shall be added as

part of the tax, interest at the rate of 1 per centum

a month from the time when the tax became due,

imtil paid. All provisions of law (including penal-

ties) applicable in respect of the taxes imposed by

section 600 of the Revenue Act of 1926 shall, inso-

far as not inconsistent with this section, be ap-

plicable in respect of the taxes imposed by this sec-

tion. The Commissioner may extend the time for

making the returns and paying the taxes imposed

by this section, under such rules and regulations as

he may prescribe, with the approval of the Secre-
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tary, but no such extension shall be for more than

60 days.

(e) Returns required to be filed for the purpose

of the tax imposed b}^ this section shall be open to

inspection in the same manner, to the same extent,

and subject to the same provisions of law, including

penalties, as returns made under title II of the

Revenue Act of 1926.

(f) For the first year ending Jime 30 in respect

of which a tax is imposed by this section upon any

corporation, the adjusted declared value shall be the

value, as declared by the corporation in its first re-

turn under this section (which declaration of value

cannot be amended), as of the close of its last in-

come-tax taxable year ending at or prior to the close

of the year for which the tax is imposed by this sec-

tion (or as of the date of organization in the case of

a corporation having no income-tax taxable year

ending at or prior to the close of the year for which

the tax is imposed by this section). For any subse-

quent year ending June 30, the adjusted declared

value in the case of a domestic corporation shall be

the original declared value plus (1) the cash and

fair market value of property paid in for stock or

shares, (2) paid in surplus and contributions to

capital, (3) its net income, (4) the excess of its in-

come wholly exempt from the taxes imposed by

title I over the amount disallowed as a deduction by

section 24(a) (5) of such title, and (5) the amount

of the di^ddend deduction allowable for income-tax

purposes, and minus (A) the value of property dis-
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tributed in liquidation to shareholders, (B) distri-

bution of eaiTiings or profits, and (C) the excess of

the deductions allowable for income-tax purposes

over its gross income; adjustment being made for

each income-tax taxable year included in the period

from the date as of which the original declared

value was declared to the close of its last income-tax

taxable year ending at or prior to the close of the

year for which the tax is imposed by this section.

The amount of such adjustment for each such year

shall be computed (on the basis of a separate re-

turn) according to the income-tax law applicable to

such year. For any subsequent year ending June 30,

the adjusted declared value in the case of a foreign

corporation shall be the original declared value ad-

justed (for the same income-tax taxable years as in

the case of a domestic corporation), in accordance

with regulations prescribed by the Commissioner,

with the approval of the Secretary, to reflect in-

creases or decreases in the capital employed in the

transaction of its business in the United States.

Section 702. Excess-Profits Tax

(a) There is hereby imposed upon the net in-

come of every corporation, for each income-tax tax-

able year ending after the close of the first year in

respect of which it is taxable under section 701, an

excess-profits tax equivalent to 5 per centum of such

portion of its net income for such income-tax tax-

able year as is in excess of 12% per centum of the

adjusted declared value of its capital stock (or in

the case of a foreign corporation the adjusted de-
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clared value of capital employed in the transaction

of its business in the United States) as of the close

of the preceding income-tax taxable year (or as of

the date of organization if it had no preceding

income-tax taxable year) determined as provided in

section 701. If the income-tax taxable year in re-

spect of which the tax under this section is imposed

is a period of less than 12 months, such adjusted de-

clared value shall be reduced to an amount which

bears the same ratio thereto as the number of

months in the period bears to 12 months. For the

purposes of this section the net income shall be the

same as the net income for income-tax purposes for

the year in respect of which the tax under this sec-

tion is imposed.

(b) All provisions of law (including penalties)

applicable in respect of the taxes imposed by title I

of this act, shall, insofar as not inconsistent with

this section, be applicable in respect of the tax im-

posed by this section, except that the provisions of

section 131 of that title shall be not applicable.

Section 703. Capital-Stock Tax and Excess-Profits

Tax Imposed by National Industrial Recovery Act

Sections 217(d) and (e) of the National Indus-

trial Recovery Act are amended to read as follows

:

*'(d) The capital-stock tax imposed by sec-

tion 215 shall not apply to any taxpayer in

respect of any year except the year ending Jime

30, 1933.

''(e) The excess-profits tax imposed by sec-

tion 216 shall not apply to any taxpayer in re-
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spect of any taxable year ending after June

30, 1934."

[Endorsed] : Petitioner's Exhibit No. 5. Admitted

in evidence June 6, 1939. [141]

PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 6

Wilson Bros, and Co.

CASH IN BANKS
As at Dates Shown Hereunder

T < December 31st,
January 1,

1932 1932 1933 1934

San Francisco Bank $403,750.00 $51,324.00 none none

Crocker First Nat 'IBank —25.25 23,989.81 $ 539.04 $ 142.48

Wells Fargo Bank 320.83 21,324.42 8,647.39 21,415.06

Bank of America 259.79 none none 52,149.82

Anglo California

National Bank 4,694.28 none none none

$408,999.65 $96,638.23 $9,186.43 $73,707.36

[142]
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PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 7

Wilson Bros, and Co.

STOCKS OF DOMESTIC CORPORATIONS

As at January 1, 1932

Number of Approximate
Shares Security Cost Market Value

400 Anglo National Corporation $ 21,000.00 $ 6,800.00

900 Canadian Pacific R. R. Co 16,257.50 10,012.50

300 Continental Oil Co 1,842.50 1,800.00

203 Electric Bond and Share Co 4,937.50 2,207.62

100 Gulf Oil Co 3,307.50 2,675.00

1,100 Great Northern R. R. Co 23,362.50 19,250.00

100 International Harvester Co 3,832.50 2,400.00

700 The National Cash Register Co 9,752.50 5,687.50

300 Northern Pacific R. R. Co 4,952.50 4,762.50

500 New York Central R. R. Co 27,495.00 14,500.00

500 The Ohio Oil Co 3,650.00 2,812.50

500 The Pennsylvania Railroad Co 9,250.00 9,062.50

200 Royal Dutch Co 2,722.50 2,825.00

500 Standard Oil Co. of Indiana 8,850.00 7,250.00

700 Standard Oil Co. of Kentucky 9,872.50 9,625.00

200 Socony Vacuum Oil Co 1,977.50 1,825.00

900 Standard Oil Co. of California 24,905.00 22,500.00

900 Southern Pacific R. R. Co 44,342.50 24,975.00

400 Simmons Company : 3,655.00 3,000.00

2,100 Shell Union Oil Co 9,242.50 6,300.00

2,238 Transamerica Corp 139,595.00 5,595.00

800 The Texas Corporation 12,165.00 9,600.00

400 Underwood Elliott Fisher Co 10,862.50 6,400.00

200 Union Oil Associates 3,197.50 2,225.00

1,100 Union Oil Co 15,642.50 14,025.00

2,500 Weeden and Co 100,000.00 75.000.00

$516,670.00 $273,115.12
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PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 8

Wilson Bros, and Co.

STOCKS OF DOMESTIC CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 1932

Number of Approximate
Shares Security Cost Market Value

200 A. T. & S. F. Railway $ 13,320.00 $ 8,075.00

1,652 Byron Jackson Co 13,168.50 2,065.00

400 Anglo National Corporation - 21,000.00 4,100.00

4,500 Continental Oil Co 26,262.50 27,000.00

1,900 Canadian Pacific Railroad 27,932.50 27,312.50

303 Electric Bond and Share Co 5,935.00 5,567.62

200 Gulf Oil Co 6,277.50 5,300.00

3,500 Great Northern R. R. Co 61,732.50 28,000.00

100 International Harvester Co 3,832.50 2,175.00

2,400 National Cash Register Co 24,572.50 18,300.00

900 Northern Pacific R. R 12,807.50 12,037.50

1,400 New York Central R. R. Co 49,965.00 26,425.00

1,300 The Ohio Oil Co 10,610.00 8,775.00

800 The Pennsylvania Railroad Co 13,877.50 11,400.00

1,000 Royal Dutch Co 14,175.00 20,750.00

500 Standard Oil Co. of Indiana 8,850.00 10,875.00

1,400 Standard Oil Co. of Kentucky 18,495.00 14,875.00

200 Socony Vacuum Oil Co 1,977.50 1.525.00

1,100 Standard Oil Co. of California 29,855.00 26,812.50

1,500 Southern Pacific R. R. Co „ 58,502.50 24,187.50

400 Simmons Co 3,655.00 2,600.00

3,600 Shell Union Oil Co 14,642.50 18,900.00

2,238 Transamerica Corp 139,595.00 12,029.25

1,800 The Texas Corp 23,340.00 25,200.00

500 Underwood Elliott Fisher Co 12,380.00 6,000.00

400 United Fruit Co 7,470.00 9,500.00

200 Union Oil Associates _ 3,197.50|

1,100 Union Oil Co. of California 23,515.00^

2,500 Weeden and Co _ 100,000.00 62,500.00

$750,943.50 $434,961.87

[ 144 ]
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PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 9

Wilson Bros, and Co.

STOCKS OP DOMESTIC CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 1933

Number of Approximate
Shares Security Cost Market Value

300 A. T. & S. F. Railway $ 17,940.00 $ 16,875.00

1,652 Byron Jackson Co _ 13,168.50 6,814.50

400 Anglo National Corp 21,000.00 1,260.00

4,500 Continental Oil Co „ 26,262.50 79,312.50

1,900 Canadian Pacific R. R. Co 27,932.50 24,462.50

303 Electric Bond and Share Co 5,935.00 3,636.00

500 General Electric Co 6,525.00 9,750.00

200 Gulf Oil Co 6,277.50 11,950.00

3,500 Great Northern R. R. Co 61,732.50 68,687.50

500 Great Northern Iron Properties 3,925.00 5,500.00

100 International Harvester Co 3,832.50 4,000.00

2,400 National Cash Register Co 24,572.50 43,500.00

1,100 Northern Pacific R. R 15,343.65 25,300.00

1,400 New York Central R. R. Co 49,965.00 46,725.00

1,300 The Ohio Oil Co 10,610.00 17,550.00

800 The Pennsylvania Railroad Co 13,877.50 24,000.00

1,000 Royal Dutch Co 14,175.00 36,000.00

500 Standard Oil Co. of Indiana 8,850.00 16,125.00

1,500 Standard Oil Co. of Kentucky 19,493.40 22,500.00

200 Socony Vacuum Oil Co 1,977.50 3,250.00

400 Swift and Co _ 6,670.00 5,700.00

300 Sears Roebuck and Co 4,302.50 12,750.00

1,100 Standard Oil Co. of California 29,855.00 45,100.00

1,500 Southern Pacific R. R 58,502.50 29,625.00

400 Simmons Co 3,655.00 7,250.00

3,600 Shell Union Oil Co 14,642.50 28,350.00

2,238 Transamerica Corp 139,595.00 15.106.50

1,800 The Texas Corp ..._ 23,340.00 43,875.00

500 Underwood Elliott Fisher Co 12,380.00 18,750.00

200 U. S. Steel Corp _ 9,140.00 9,550.00

200 Union Oil Associates ., 3,197.50

1

1,100 Union Oil Co. of California 23,515.00J

2,500 Weeden and Co 100,000.00 70,000.00

$782,190.55 $777,792.00

[145]
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PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 10

Wilson Bros, and Co.

STOCKS OF DOMESTIC CORPORATIONS
As at December 31, 1934

Number of Approximate
Shares Security Cost Market Value

200 A. T. & S. F. Railway $ 13,320.00 $ 10,750.00

1,652 Byron Jackson Co 13,168.50 11,977.00

400 Anglo National Corp 21,000.00 2,650.00

4,500 Continental Oil Co 26,262.50 84,937.50

2,600 Canadian Pacific R. R 36,155.00 29,900.00

303 Electric Bond and Share Co 5,935.00 2,272.50

900 General Electric Co 13,520.00 20,025.00

200 Gulf Oil Co 6,277.50 11,450.00

3,500 Great Northern R. R. Co 61,732.50 59,500.00

500 Great Northern Iron Properties 3,675.00 6,000.00

300 International Harvester Co 8,767.50 12,675.00

2,400 National Cash Register Co 24,572.50 42,300.00

1,100 Northern Pacific R. R 15,343.65 22,687.50

1,800 New York Central R. R. Co 57,510.00 36,450.00

1,300 The Ohio Oil Co 10,610.00 13,325.00

1,000 The Pennsylvania Railroad Co 18,537.50 24,375.00

1,000 Royal Dutch Co 14,175.00 29,250.00

500 Standard Oil Co. of Indiana 8,850.00 12,750.00

1,500 Standard Oil Co. of Kentucky 19,493.40 27,562.50

200 Socony Vacuum Oil Co „ 1,977.50 2,950.00

400 Swift and Co „ 6,670.00 7,600.00

300 Sears Roebuck and Co 4,302.50 11,887.50

1,100 Standard Oil Co. of California 29,855.00 35,750.00

1,800 Southern Pacific R. R. Co 63,480.00 32,400.00

400 Simmons Co 3,655.00 4,000.00

3,600 Shell Union Oil Co 14,642.50 25,200.00

2,238 Transamerica Corp _ 139,595.00 13,148.25

1,800 The Texas Corp 23,340.00 37,800.00

500 Underwood Elliott Fisher Co 12,380.00 28,750.00

800 U. S. Steel Corp 26,785.00 31,200.00

200 Union Oil Associates 3,197.50|

1,800 Union Oil Co. of California 23,515.00j
31,750.00

200 Westinghouse Electric Co 5,690.00 7,525.00

2,500 Weeden and Co 100,000.00 80,000.00

Unidentified difference —212.50 none

$837,778.05 $810,797.75

[ 146 ]
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Union Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, 1st lien s.f. 5/35

Kentucky Fuel Gas Corpora-

tion, 1st lien s.f. 61/^%
A bonds due 1942

Kentucky Fuel Gas Corpora-

tion, 1st lien s.f. 61/2%

A bonds due 1942 „

Par Value

$ 4,000.00

$18,000.00

15,000.00

$33,000.00

10,000.00

$43,000.00

$16,000.00 New York Central R. R.

Totals

Kentucky Fuel Gas Corpora-

tion, 1st lien s.f. 6^/2%

A bonds due 1942

PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 11
Wilson Bros, and Co.

BONDS OF DOMESTIC CORPORATIONS
As at Dates Shown Hereunder

January 1, 1932

Cost
Market
Value

December 31, 1932

Market
Cost Value

December 31, 1933

Market
Cost Value

170

December 31, 1934

Market
Cost Value

$ 3,975.00 $3,680.00 $ 3,975.00 $4,000.00 $ 3,975.00 $4,000.00 $ 3,975.00 $ 4,000.00

9,000.00 900.00 9,000.00] 9,000.00^

}> 412.50

450.00 450.00

20.00

9,000.00

450.00

860.00 1,935.00

20.00

16,800.00 18,800.00

Deduct:

Charge to 1934 income in

respect of partial worth-

lessness of Kentucky Fuel

Gas Corp. debentures

$12,975.00 $4,580.00 $13,425.00 $4,412.50 $13,445.00 $4,860.00 $30,245.00 $24,735.00

5,500.00

$12,975.00 $4,580.00 $13,425.00 $4,412.50 $13,445.00 $4,860.00 $24,745.00 $24,735.00

[147]
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PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 18

Wilson Bros, and Co.

GENERAL LEDGER TRIAL BALANCES
(After Closing)

January 1, 1932

Dr. Cr.

Bank of America, Los Angeles... $ 259.79

Crocker First National Bank $

The San Francisco Bank 403,750.00

Wells Fargo Bank 320.83

Capital

Surplus

Treasury stock 250,000.00

Treasury stock

Capital stock tax account

Bond 12.975.00

Bond Trading

Merchandise 20,942.18

Autoaccount 5.400.00

Sales tax

Furniture and fixtures 3,500.00

Reserve bad accounts

Realestate 47,000.00

S. S. Idaho 56,250.00

S. S. Oregon 75,000.00

Str.Svea 6,420.36

Str. Idaho minority interest

Str.Svea --

Atchison, Topeka & Santa

Fe R. R
Anglo Natl. Corp 21,000.00

Byron Jackson Co

Canadian Pacific R. R. Co._ 16,257.50

Continental Oil Co 1,842.50

Call loans -

Electric Bond & Share Co 4,937.50

Economy Lumber Co

General Electric Co

Gulf Oil Co 3,307.50

Great Northern R. R. Co 23,362.50

Great Northern Iron Properties

International Harvester Co 3,832.50

The National Cash Register Co. 9,752.50

Northern Pacific R. R. Co 4,952.50

New York Central R. R. Co 27,495.00

The Ohio Oil Co 3,650.00

The Pennsylvania Railroad Co.... 9,250.00

Royal Dutch Co 2,722.50

(Forward ) $1,014,180.66

2,500,000.00

12,792.64

December 31, 1932

Dr. Cr.

25.25 $ 23,989.81

51,324.00

21,324.42

250,000.00

13,425.00

4,500.00

3,000.00

46,000.00

52,500.00

70,000.00

9,081.78

3,409.11

13,320.00

21,000.00

13,168.50

27,932.50

26,262.50

100,000.00

5,935.00

6,277.50

61,732.50

3,832.50

24,572.50

12,807.50

49,965.00

10,610.00

13,877.50

14,175.00

$2,500,000.00

19,309.75

3,064.68

December 31, 1933

Dr. Cr.

539.04

8,647.39

250,000.00

$2,500,000.00

36,732.00

13,425.00

20.00

6,500.00

2,850.15

2,500.00

45,000.00

45,000.00

60,000.00

10,804.01

17,940.00

21,000.00

13,168.50

27,932.50

26,262.50

151,000.00

5,935.00

152.43

6,525.00

6,277.50

61,732.50

3,925.00

3,832.50

24,572.50

15,343.65

49,965.00

10,610.00

13,877.50

14,175.00

400.00

2,160.80

2,378.71

December 31, 1934

Dr. Cr.

52,149.82

142.48

21,415.06

250,000.00

$2,535,000.00

25,447.64

10,000.00

7,925.00

16,820.00

3,946.60

1,200.30

2,000.00

44,500.00

41,250.00

55,000.00

12,861.01

350.00

13,320.00

21,000.00

13,168.50

36,155.00

26,262.50

171,000.00

5,935.00

13,520.00

6,277.50

61,732.50

3,675.00

8,767.50

24,572.50

15,343.65

57,510.00

10,610.00

18,537.50

14,175.00

1,188.06

6,884.90

2,058.33

5,516,227.00 $ 950,613.51 $2,522,374.43 $ 919,512.67 541,671.51 $1,031,122.42 $2,580,578.93
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PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 18

(Continued)

Wilson Bros, and Co,

GENERAL LEDGER TRIAL BALANCES
(After Closing)

January 1, 1932 December 31, 1932 December 31, 1933 December 31, 1934

Dr. Ci\ Dr. Ci\ Di\ Cr. Dr^ Cr.

(Forwarded) $1,014,180.66 $2,516,227.00 $ 950,613.51 $2,522,374.43 $ 919,512.67 $2,541,671.51 $1,031,122.42 $2,580,578.93

Standard Oil Co. of Indiana 8,850.00 8,850.00 8,850.00 8,850.00

Standard Oil Co. of Kentucky 9,872.50 18,495.00 19,493.40 19,493.40

Socony Vacuum Oil Co 1,977.50 1,977.50 1,977.50 1,977.50

Swift & Co 6,670.00 6,670.00

Sears, Roebuck & Co 4,302.50 4,302.50

Standard Oil Co. of Calif 24,905.00 29,855.00 29,855.00 29,855.00

Southern Pacific R. R. Co 44,342.50 58,502.50 58,502.50 63,480.00

Simmons Company 3,655.00 3,655.00 3,655.00 3,655.00

Shell Union Oil Co 9,242.50 14,642.50 14,642.50 14,642.50

Transamerica Corp 139,595.00 139,595.00 139,595.00 139,595.00

The Texas Corporation 12,165.00 23,340.00 23,340.00 23,340.00

Underwood Elliott Fisher Co 10,862.50 12,380.00 12,380.00 12,380.00

U. S. Steel Corp 9,140.00 26,785.00

Union Oil Associates 3,197.50 3,197.50 3,197.50 3,197.50

United Fruit Co 7,470.00

Union Oil Co 15,642.50 23,515.00 23,515.00 23,515.00

Weeden & Co 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

Westinghouse Electric Co 5,690.00

Bills receivable „ 14,000.00

Associated Lumber Co 969.42

Angelus Lumber Co 90.00 531.34

Columbia Studio, Inc „ 800.79

Ellis Bros. Lumber Co 761.35 331.35

Exposition Lumber Co 107.50 142.50

Dolan Wrecking & Constr. Co 684.30 664.12

Fox Film Corp 8,918.43

General Mill & Lumber Co 82.80 82.80

Gorden Mill & Supply Co 547.92 349.36

Glick Bros. Sash & Door 447.76

Giles Lumber Co 40.42

Hayman Bldg. Supply Co 25.00

Phil Hart Lumber Co 1,128.04 1,128.04

Herzog Lumber & Door Co 591.61 3,800.90 734.69

Hubner Lumber Co 137.73 140.00

Hudson-Bowney Lumber Co 134.81

T. P. Hogan Co 100.00 100.00

Hufe Lumber Co 687.50

Imperial Lumber Co 271.16 216.50 1,501.89 1,005.69

(Forward) $1,403,193.10 $2,516,227.00 $1,413,695.17 $2,522,374.43 $1,384,866.36 $2,541,671.51 $1,531,257.15 $2,580,578.93
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PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 18
(Continued)

Wilson Bros, and Co.

GENERAL LEDGER TRIAL BALANCES
(After Closing)

173

January 1, 1932 December 31, 1932 December 31, 1933 December 31, 1934

Dr.

(Forwarded) $1,403,193.10

Johnson Lumber Co

Lucas Manufacturing Co

Murphy Lumber Co

Pico Lumber Co

Paramount Productions

Read-Pratt Co

E. M. Strawn Lumber Co

Southwestern Lumber Co

R. K. 0. Studios, Inc

Karl Rohberg ~

Peninsula Lumber Co

Valley Salvage Co

Ventura Wrecking Co „

H. A. Van Der Top

Woodhead Lumber Co.—Calif....

Woodhead Lumber Co.—Nevada

W. Wilson

F. A. Wilson

Mrs. H. Wilson

Warner Bros „

Stanger Lumber Co

Mel Coe Lumber Co

Inglewood Lumber Co

Hyman Bldg. Co

J. R. Duffield & Co

800.00

899.41

310.39

195.00

721.23

Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr.

,516,227.00 $1,413,695.17

800.00

899.41

242.21

500.00

182.87

721.23

47,036.19 44,368.96

11,594.97

17,717.88

15,000.00

17,717.88

17,132.40 1,000.00 21,248.51

159.22

350.00 114.36

365.32

25.00

75.00

$1,488,980.14 $2,532,227.00 $1,512,085.57

2,522,374.43 $1,384,866.36 $2,541,671.51

402.50

500.00

28.24

43,276.06

33,422.98

16,917.88

28,091.96

21,128.51

$1,531,257.15 $2,580,578.93

632.26

2,672.07

804.23

227.41

185.78

215.03

500.00

162.89

37,145.76

32,494.49

16,917.88

35,612.50

21,128.51

2,395.34

$2,522,374.43 $1,528,634.49 $2,541,671.51 $1,682,351.30 $2,580,578.93
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PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 19

Wilson Bros, and Co.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

January 1, 1932

Angelus Lumber Co $ 90.00

Ellis Bros. Lumber Co 761.35

Dolan Wrecking and Construction Co 684.30

General Mill and Lumber Co „ 82.80

Garden Mill and Supply Co 547.92

Click Bros. Sash and Door Co „ 447.76

Phil Hart Lumber Co 1,128.04

Herzog Lumber and Door Co 591.61

T. P. Hogan Co „ „ 100.00

Imperial Lumber Co „ 271.16

Lucas Manufacturing Co 800.00

Read-PrattCo 899.41

Southwestern Lumber Co 310.39

Peninsula Lumber Co 195.00

Ventura Wrecking Co _ 721 .23

Woodhead Lumber Co 47,036.19

Stangor Lumber Co „ 159.22

Mel Coe Lumber Co 350.00

Inglewood Lumber Co _ 365.32

HymanBldg. Co „ 25.00

J. R. Duffield & Co 75.00

Atlantic Lumber Co 45.00

Fisher Co „ 35.00

E. F. Hutton Co _ „ 5,173.99

S. S. Svea _ 6,420.36

$67,316.05

[ 151 ]
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PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 20

Wilson Bros, and Co.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

December 31, 1932

Atlantic Lumber Co $ 462.13

Angelus Lumber Co - 531.34

Ellis Bros. Lumber Co 331.35

Dolan Wrecking and Construction Co 664.12

General Mill and Lumber Co 82.80

Garden Mill and Supply Co 349.36

Giles Lumber Co ^0.42

Hayman Building Supply Co ~ 25.00

Phil Hart Lumber Co - 1,128.04

Hubner Lumber Co 137.73

T. P. HoganCo - - 1^0.00

Imperial Lumber Co - 216.50

Lucas Manufacturing Co - 800.00

Read-Pratt Co -- ^^9.41

Southwestern Lumber Co 242.21

KarlRohberg - ^00.00

J. C. Smith Lumber Co 87.89

Peninsula Lumber Co -
182.87

Mel Coe Lumber Co 114.36

Ventura Lumber Co - - 721.23

Woodhead Lumber Co. of California 44,368.96

Woodhead Lumber Co. of Nevada 11,594.97

S.S.Svea - - 9,081-78

$72,662.47

[152]
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PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 21

Wilson Bros, and Co.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

December 31, 1933

Advance Lumber Co $ 100.00

Economy Lumber Co 152.43

Exposition Lumber Co _ 107.50

Herzog Lumber and Door Co „ 3,800.90

Hubner Lumber Co _ 140.00

Hufe Lumber Co _ _ 687.50

Imperial Lumber Co _ 1,501.89

Johnson Lumber Co 402.50

KarlRohberg 500.00

H. A. Van der Top „ _ 28.24

Woodhead Lumber Co. of California 43,276.06

Woodhead Lumber Co. of Nevada 33,422.98

S. S. Svea 10,804.01

$94,924.01

[153]

PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 22

Wilson Bros, and Co.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

December 31, 1934

Associated Lumber Co $ 969.42

Columbia Studio, Inc 800.79

Exposition Lumber Co 142.50

Fox Film Corp 8,918.43

Herzog Lumber and Door Co 734.69

Hudson-Bowney Lumber Co 134.81

Imperial Lumber Co 1,005.69

Murphy Lumber Co 632.26

Pico Lumber Co _ 2,672.07

Paramount Productions _ 804.23

E. M. Strawn Lumber Co 227.41
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Southwestern Lumber Co _ — 185.78

R. K. 0. Studios, Inc _ - 215.03

Karl Kohberg _ _.... 500.00

Valley Salvage Co _ _ 162.89

Woodhead Lumber Co. of California ~ 37,145.76

Woodhead Lumber Co. of Nevada „ 32,494.49

S. S. Svea _ 12,861.01

Warner Bros .- 2,395.34

$103,002.60

[154]

PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 23

Wilson Bros, and Co,

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE—F. A. WILSON

—1933:
26—Proceeds sale of Great Northern Pfd.

and other shares $17,112.50

I^ay 31—Profit on General Electric Company

shares traded 437.00

31—Proceeds sale of Simmons Co., and

other shares 28,516.25

June 20—Proceeds sale of General Electric

Co., shares 2,471.00

July 30—Proceeds sale of United Fruit Co. shs. 19,185.75

1—Proceeds sale of General Electric

Co. shares 3,377.37

20—Proceeds sale of A. T. & S. F. Ry. shs. 608.50

24—Proceeds sale of International

Harvester Co. shares 10,113.00

Nov. 8—Profit on U. S. Steel Corp. traded 776.40 $ 82,597.77
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Credits—1933

:

July 24—Borrowing tax on United Fruit

Co. shares 8.40

Oct. 14—Deposit Wells Fargo Bank account

of Wilson Bros, and Co 15,000.00

Oct. 20— 3,925.00

Sept. 27—Purchase Swift and Co 6,670.00

Dec. 30—Purchase of U. S. Steel Corp. shs 13,760.00 39,363.40

Due from F. A. Wilson December 31, 1933 $ 43,234.37

Charges—1934

:

Jan. 29—Proceeds sale of U. S. Steel Corp.

shares 17,454.60

Sept. 15— 100.00

Oct. 15— 30.00

Oct. 23— 60.00

Nov. 27—Cash paid by Wilson Bros, and Co 4,607.50

Nov. 9—Cash paid by Wilson Bros, and Co 2,581.03

Dec. 22—Cash paid by Wilson Bros, and Co 19,368.75

Dec. 14—Cash paid by Wilson Bros, and Co 17,997.50 62,199.38

$105,433.75

Credits—1934

:

July 26—Purchase U. S. Steel Corp. shs $55,940.00

Oct. 30—Purchase U. S. Steel Corp. shs 6,340.00

Nov. 5—Purchase Canadian Pac. Rd. shs 1,180.00

Nov. 21—Purchase Canadian Pac. Rd. Shs 4,607.50

Dec. 20—Purchase Southern Pac. Co. shs 1,742.50

Dec. 30—Shipping charges on shares 11.25 69,821.25

Due from F. A. Wilson December 31, 1934 $ 35,612.50

Credits—1935:

Jan. 2—Purchase of Kennecott Copper Co.

and other shares 35,612.50

[155]
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Schedule A—Cost of Manufacturing or Producing Goods

[Not filled in]

Schedule B

Profit from Sale of Real Estate, Stocks, Bonds, etc.

[Not filled in]

Schedule C—Compensation of Officers

[Not filled in]

Schedule D—Cost of Repairs

[Not filled in]

Schedule E—Taxes Paid

[Not filled in]

Schedule F—Explanation of Losses by Fire, Storm, etc.

[Not filled in]

Schedule G—Bad Debts

[Not filled in]

Schedule H—Dividends Deductible

[Not filled in]
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Affidavit

We, the undersigned, president and treasurer of

the corporation for which this return is made, being

severally duly sworn, each for himself deposes and

says that this return, including the accompanying

schedules and statements, has been examined by him

and is, to the best of his knowledge and belief, a

true and complete return made in good faith, for

the taxable year stated, pursuant to the Revenue

Act of 1928 and the Regulations issued thereunder.

[Corporate

Seal] T. A. WILSON
President

W. T. WILSON
Treasurer.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 15th day

of March, 1930.

[Notarial Seal] JOHN J. MAY, DO
Attach a separate sheet if any of the above sched-

ules do not provide sufficient space.

[Endorsed]: Respondent's Exhibit A. Admitted

in evidence June 7, 1939. [159]
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QUBflTIONS

KIND OF MISINIM

1 By MAM of the k*T trt(«n firm belo*. IdMi^tfy th« eofporattoA't aftin

UtvoMM-produduc ftrtivHjr wHb om o/ Um fBMr%l «teMM. ud (oUow Uto by «

pectAl dMcrtpUoa trf lb* btiiini wifflcwDt to glv* Um Informftlion mOM far

' "T ttwiar each auMral cIm*.

A.— Agrtcuhura Aod ralfttad indiMtrim, iMludlnc ftiUD<, kiolnf. ie* hAnwi-
U^ air . and also the taMtag d aucb pruperty 8ute the pvudurt or producU.

B.— iliu^ and quanriof. iDcludiof ^« and oil «cU#. aM alw th« h—trm >d

•Mh propBTly. SUU tha product or produrl*. C— Maaufarturiof. flUto

\h» product and abo Iha naUrtaJ 1/ not tmpbcd by the nainr uf tb« product.

0.—C«iMlnirtk>o—«icavalioQa, buUdiagi, bndfm. railitj*da, stiipt, ttc-, al*o

rqiilpptof and lartaUiof aaoM witb •yatrnu, dcvieei, ur siarhincry, wttbuut

tbeir matiufartura. Htato oature u/ rtructurca built, matenab tMni, or Uad ol

luctaUaliuoa. Kt.—Tranrpurtatioii— rail, water, kical, etc. 8taia Iba bind aud
prrlal pruduct tranipur1«d. If any Bl.— IHibUc utiUtka—gaa (oafural, oual,

or aalcr), elortrtc \^h.X ur powrr (hydro or itcam gmrrttt«d); baatlog (rtcam ur

bot water); tctcpboitc, matcrwork* ur puwrr. Bft.—8tora(«—witbout trading

or proit fruB lalaa— (ck% atur*. warrbuuaM, itorkyanb, etc ). Stat* product

rtorad i.^Laaaluf tranrportattua or utUitica. htata kind u/ ptupcrl)

v.—Trading Id fuod* bought and iu4 produced by the trading roDCcra. 8taU-
]

BOAooar of trade, whether » luileeak. n-tail, or *TTWint^'irn. aud product handled

Kak» with rtwrafi witb pruAl pniuanly from ealea. O.—ticnico—dogi—lAc.
lucludiug hoteU, f—tauraate. etc , iiiiieMiiiiili. other prrrfiMinnai. pcraoaal, or

trcbokal acrvtce. tMaU the aerMcc .— nnaaea, iitcludiag baaking, raal

cetate, Inatuaoea. L—Cooearaa not faUmg In above daeaaa (aj baeauaa ol
|

rombttUog aavaral ol than with do predooainaitt biirinaaa, or (k) for otbrr

3 CoDeoru whoaa btiiiiw Uivolrra activity falllDg la two or Bof* <d the

alwvr faaaral elaaaea, whera the mbu pfWutf la cocMemed. aboukl NfKirt buai-

ttaaa aa klaoUAed with but ooe (rf the above geDeral claaaaai for esaapte. eoo- '

aana la A or B which alao Iraaapori aad oiarket their own product eiduaiTcly

or Hkaialy, ahould atUl ba tdutUAed with claaaea A or B, ooaccraa la C (maDufac- i

tunag) which own or ooatrol their aiiurrc uf material uipply la A or Baad which
abi> trauaport. arU, ur Inaiall tb«lr uwd product eieluaivcly or auuJy, aboukl
ba idrotifted with manufactuflDg, oooecnu in D may cuutrU ur uwd Um auuraa

of eupply of malenala uoad culualvaly or nauly in tbetr euoatructiTa wurk;

I ift El or E3 Okay own or eoatrul the auurea *A their nalanal or puwar;

t P nay Iraaapart or alora ttkdr uwd Bkcrchaadua, byt Ito ptoductiua
w.'uld tdaottfy then witb A, B. or C.

» Aorwan ^
(•) GMeral daaa (uaa key Wtter riaa^fnallna)._ /TT.
(k) kUia laaoii produdi^ buatoaaa (give apartftf^lly the lafor—tkin

eaUad for UMlar ODch key letter, alao wb««bar actAag oa prtMlpal.

or M ofMii oa wimlwliin. atal* tf IomUv* or ! Uquidatkio)

%. Did the eorporattoe file a rvtura under tha aaaa mi

tauble year? <^#_*.. Wm the rorporalk>a in aay way m outcruvih,

raauit, eooUnuatMn, or raorgaauatjun \A a buataaaa or hiiilnMM

during tbu or any prkir year alnee Daccaibcr 31, 1917?

la "yva." fire aaaa and addrnaa vt each pradeoeaaur butucaa, abd

tha cte^a la aalJly. . ^

If anncr
the date ^d

rpoo aurh -*"TigT wvra any aaart valure incrraard i>r d«rrv«aed'

U tha anwrer la "yea," ckxtag balaDce aberu uf old tuMBaaaapd

hiiiti td new bu^neaa nuat ba funuehed

BASIS OF RcnmN
7 lethkreiVBBndaoatbahaaUnfartuaJrvedpiaaad

If not, dMvttM fvUy vWt other baala ur otetbod wm uard ta

VALUATION or INVDOOAICS

t. Btato wto(k« tha U*v«tonea at the begioning aad and of tka

wan nluad at ooat, or ooet ut uarkrt. whichever la lower U oti

uaad, daaenba fully, atatn why lyad and the date Inrvatory wm

with Mocfc. .._

AmuAiiONS wmi onoii conpoftAnoNB

4. la thla a eooaolidated rvtunt U two ur morr cNiriM»mtN>oa7 ^^^
prucure fruoi the CuUacU>r \A Intemal Revenue i ' yuur d^alnet Fom i

AAliaiiuiie Hcbetlktle. which ahail ba flllwl In. ewom to nd aMH M a pf# *d tfto

return (kaa Article 13 u) nad (4). Begiilaltona 7k

1 Did tha aurpumliun tie a ewMutidilnd i«tura fur tLa [aearttig tai^la

J^T .—

U9T or ATTACWD BCHEDUUS

%. !« below n IM (rf nD achrdulM aeeoMpaaying thla tvtum, givli^ for anck

\ bfM Ulla nnd tlM aebadt^ numtier. Tta noMa aad addmea utf tha eur|Mwntiua
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

B. T. A. Docket No. 83397

WILSON BROTHERS AND COMPANY,
(Wilson Bros. & Co.), a corporation,

Petitioner on Review,

V.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent on Review.

B. T. A. Docket No. 93668

WILSON BROTHERS AND COMPANY,
(Wilson Bros. & Co.), a corporation.

Petitioner on Review,

V.

COMMISSIONER OP INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent on Review.

ORDER FOR CONSOLIDATION OF THE
RECORD

Upon consideration of the motion filed herein by

counsel for the petitioner on review in the above-

entitled proceedings, moving the Court to consoli-

date said proceedings for purposes of record, brief-

ing, hearing and decision, and for other purposes, it

is this 10th day of March, 1941.
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Ordered that the said motion be and it is hereby

granted.

And It Is Further Ordered that a certified copy

of [168] the motion and this order be transmitted

by the Clerk of this Court to the Clerk of the United

States Board of Tax Appeals.

(s) CURTIS D. WILBUR
U. S. Circuit Judge.

A true copy.

Attest: March 10, 1941.

' [Seal] PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk.

By FRANK A. SCHMID,
Deputy Clerk.

[Endorsed]: Filed March 10, 1941. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed March 14, 1941.

[169]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

DESIGNATION OF CONTENTS OF RECORD
ON APPEAL

In compliance with the provisions of paragraph

(a) of Rule 75 of the Rules of Civil Procedure for

the District Courts of the United States as made

applicable to review of a decision of the United

States Board of Tax Appeals by Rule 30 of the

Rules of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-



vs. Comm. of Int. Rev. 197

peals for the Ninth Circuit, the above-named peti-

tioner hereby designates the portions of the record,

'proceedings, and evidence to be contained in the

record on review of the above-entitled proceedings,

as follows:

1. Docket entries of the proceedings before the

Board of Tax Appeals.

2. Motion for order and order granting leave to

file amended petition.

3. Amended petition filed July 10, 1939.

4. Answer to amended petition filed July 31,

1939.

5. Stipulation of facts filed in the proceeding,

excepting there- [170'] from copies of bills of sale of

enrolled vessels attached thereto and referred to as

Exhibits A and B to said stipulation.

6. Finding of Fact and Memorandum Opinion

of the Board promulgated May 22, 1940.

7. Decision of the Board of Tax Appeals entered

August 6, 1940.

8. Petition for Eeview of Decision of the Board

by the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit, filed October 31, 1940.

9. Notice of filing of petition for review and ad-

mission of service thereof.

10. Orders enlarging time for preparation,

transmission and delivery of the record [not in-

cluded in record].

11. Revised Statement of the Evidence.

12. Designation of contents of record on appeal.

13. Statement of Points on which petitioner in-

tends to rely.
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14. Petitioner's Exhibits 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11,

18, 19, 20, 21, 22 and 23 and Respondent's Exhibits

A, B and C.

15. Order of the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals, Ninth Circuit, for consolidation of the

record.

ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNER
LOUIS JANIN

Counsel for Petitioner,

1110 Balfour Building,

San Francisco, California.

Service of the foregoing designation of the con-

tents of the record on appeal is hereby admitted and

agreed to this 11th day of March, 1941.

J. P. WENCHEL,
• Chief Counsel, Bureau of In-

ternal Revenue, Attorney for

Respondent on Review.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed March 11, 1941.

[171]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE

I, B. D. Gamble, clerk of the U. S. Board of Tax

Appeals, do hereby certify that the foregoing pages,

1 to 171, inclusive, contain and are a true copy of

the transcript of record, papers, and proceedings on

file and of record in my office as called for by the

Praecipe in the appeal (or appeals) as above num-
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bered and entitled.

In testimony whereof, I hereunto set my hand

and affix the seal of the United States Board of Tax

Appeals, at Washington, in the District of Colum-

bia, this 20th day of March, 1941.

B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, United States Board of

Tax Appeals. [172]

[Endorsed]: No. 9781. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Wilson

Brothers and Company, (Wilson Bros. & Co.,) a

corporation, Petitioner, vs. Commissioner of In-

ternal Revenue, Respondent. Transcript of the

Record upon Petition to Review a Decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

Filed March 31, 1941.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 9781 B. T. A.

Docket No. 83397

WILSON BROTHERS AND COMPANY,
(Wilson Bros. & Co.), a corporation,

Petitioner on Review,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent on Review.

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF DESIGNATION
OF CONTENTS OF RECORD AND STATE-
MENT OF POINTS FILED WITH THE
BOARD OF TAX APPEALS.

To the Honorable Justices of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit:

Notice is hereby given that the Petitioner on Re-

view in the above entitled proceedings hereby adopts

for the purposes of petition on review to the above

entitled court, the Designation of Contents of

Record and Statement of Points filed with the Clerk

of the United States Board of Tax Appeals in the

above numbered proceedings on March 11, 1941.

Dated this 16th day of April, 1941.

ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNER
LOUIS JANIN

Attorneys for the Above

Named Petitioner.

[Endorsed]: Filed April 17, 1941. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk. [173]



No. 9782

Winittii ^mts

Circuit Court of Appeals

Jfor tfee Mintb Circuit,

WILSON BROTHERS AND COMPANY, (Wil-

son Bros. & Co.,) a corporation,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

^rausfcript of tfj? i^ecortr

Upon Petition to Review a Decision of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals.

PARKER PRINTING COMPANY. B45 SANSOME STREET. SAN FRANCISCO
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APPEARANCES:
For Taxpayer:

A. E. GRAUPNER.

For Comm'r:

T. M. MATHER,
ALVA C. BAIRD.

Docket No. 83397

WILSON BROTHERS AND COMPANY,
(WILSON BROS. AND COMPANY,
a Corporation),

Petitioner,

V.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

DOCKET ENTRIES
1936

Mar. 25—Petition received and filed. Taxpayer noti-

fied. (Fee paid).

Mar. 25—Copy of petition served on General

Counsel.

Apr. 30—Answer filed by General Counsel.

May 5—Copy of answer served on taxpayer.

1937

May 1—Hearing set week of July 6, 1937, San

Francisco, Calif.

May 20—Motion for a continuance filed by General

Counsel. Granted.
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1939

Mar. 25—Hearing set May 29, 1939 in San Fran-

cisco, California.

June 6-7—Called 5/29/39. Hearing had before Mr.

Disney on merits. Submitted. Motion to

consolidated Dockets 83397 and 93668

granted. Stipulation as to the facts filed.

Briefs due Aug. 1, 1939, Reply 9/1/39.

June 24—Transcript of hearing of June 6, 1939,

filed.

June 24—Transcript of hearing of June 7, 1939,

filed.

July 5—Motion for leave to file amended petition

filed by taxpayer. Amended petition

lodged. 7/10/39 granted. 7/11/39 copy

served on General Counsel.

July 28—Brief filed by taxpayer. 8/2/39 copy

served on General Coimsel.

July 31—Answer to amended petition filed by Gen-

eral Counsel.

Aug. 1—Brief filed by General Counsel.

Aug. 3—Copy of answer to amended petition

served on taxpayer.

Aug. 29—Reply brief filed by taxpayer.

1940

May 22—Memorandum opinion rendered, Richard

L. Disney, Div. 4. Decision will be entered

under Rule 5Q.

June 17—Motion for review by the entire Board or

for reconsideration filed by taxpayer.

June 20—Computation of deficiency filed by Gen-

eral Counsel.
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1940

June 28—Order denying petitioner's motion for re-

consideration, entered.

July 2—Order denying review by the Board,

entered. [1*]

1940

July 9—Hearing set July 31, 1940 on settlement.

July 22—Consent to settlement filed by taxpayer.

Aug. 6—Decision entered, R. L. Disney, Div. 4.

Oct. 31—Petition for review by United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit, with

assignments of error filed by taxpayer.

Oct. 31—Affidavit of service filed by taxpayer.

Nov. 1—Proof of service of petition for review

filed.

Dec. 30—Certified copy of an order from 9th Cir-

cuit extending time to 2/3/41 to complete

and transmit record, filed.

1941

Jan. 8—Statement of evidence filed by taxpayer.

Feb. 3—Certified copy of order from the 9th Cir-

cuit enlarging the time to 4/3/41 within

which to prepare, transmit and file record,

filed.

Mar. 11—Agreed revised statement of evidence filed.

Mar. 11—Statement of points on which petitioner

intends to rely filed, with proof of service

thereon.

•Page numbering appearing at foot of page of original certified

Transcript of Record.
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Mar. 11—Agreed designation of contents of record

filed, with proof of service thereon.

Mar. 14—Certified copy of order from the 9th Cir-

cuit, consolidating 83397 and 93668, filed.

[2]

United States Board of Tax Appeals

Docket No. 83397

WILSON BROTHERS AND COMPANY,
(Wilson Bros. & Co.), a corporation,

Petitioner,

V.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

MOTION FOR ORDER GRANTING LEAVE TO
FILE AMENDED PETITION.

Now comes the petitioner above-named by its

counsel, Adolphus E. Graupner and Louis D. Janin,

and moves this Honorable Board to grant petitioner

leave to file an amended petition in the above-en-

titled proceeding, which said amended petition is

presented herewith for consideration on this motion.

The foregoing motion is made in order to have

the pleadings accord with the proofs submitted at

the hearing of this proceeding in San Francisco,
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California, on June 6th and 7th, 1939, and to com-

ply with the provisions of Rule 6(e) of this Board.

Dated, July 1, 1939.

Respectfully submitted,

ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNER,
LOUIS D. JANIN,

Counsel for Petitioner.

Granted July 10, 1939.

(Signed) R. L. DISNEY,
Member U. S. Board of Tax

Appeals.

[Endorsed]: U. S. B. T. A. Filed July 5, 1939.

[3]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

AMENDED PETITION

Upon consent of the above-entitled Board to

amend the petition in the above-entitled proceeding

to conform to the proofs submitted at the hearing

thereof and without waiver of right to challenge the

constitutionality of any part of any Revenue Act

involved in this proceedmg or any act of the Com-

missioner of Internal Revenue or his subordinate,

or to object to the jurisdiction of this Board, the

above named petitioner hereby petitions for a re-

determination of the alleged deficiency set forth by

the Commissioner of Internal Revenue in his pur-

ported notice of deficiency (IT :E :Aj-RLT-25579-

90D) dated December 30, 1935, and as a basis of

this proceeding alleges as follows

:
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1. The petitioner is a corporation duly organ-

ized and existing under the laws of the State of Ne-

vada, with its principal office at 1112 Russ Building

in the City and County of [4] San Francisco, State

of California.

2. The purported notice of deficiency upon which

this petition is based (a copy of which is hereunto

attached and marked Exhibit '*A") was apparently

mailed to the i^etitioner on December 30, 1935.

3. The asserted deficiency in tax here in contro-

versy is for alleged income taxes for the calendar

years 1932 and 1933 and, as asserted in said pur-

ported deficiency notice, in the amount of not more

than $11,343.36 for the year 1932 and in the amount

of not more than $22,078.01 for the year 1933, or for

not more than the sum of $33,421.37 for the said two

years.

4. The alleged determination or proposal of a

deficiency in tax set forth in said purported notice

of deficiency is erroneous in each and every of the

following particulars assigned as errors:

(a) The Commissioner erred in proposing, de-

termining and asserting against petitioner any

amount as a deficiency in income tax for either of

the calendar taxable years 1932 and 1933.

(b) The Commissioner erred in holding that pe-

titioner was availed of for the purpose of prevent-

ing the imposition of surtax or any internal revenue

tax upon its shareholders for either or both of the

taxable years herein involved, or that petitioner is

liable for any additional tax or tax penalty for per-
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mitting its gains and profits to accumulate instead

of being divided or distributed to its shareholders,

or that it in anyway violated, or is subject to taxa-

tion or penalty under, the provisions of section 104

of the Revenue Act of 1932 for the years [5] 1932

and 1933.

(c) The Commissioner erred in disallowing the

amount of $5,225.02 as depreciation claimed by peti-

tioner as a deduction for the taxable calendar year

1932, and in not allowing at least $2,326.08 deprecia-

tion in addition to that claimed on the return for

said year.

(d) The Commissioner erred in disallowing the

amount of $13,975.02 as depreciation claimed by pe-

titioner as a deduction for the taxable calendar year

1933.

(e) The Commissioner erred in disallowing the

amount of $4,547.05 claimed by petitioner as a de-

ductible loss on steamship operation for the taxable

year 1932.

(f) The Commissioner erred in disallowing the

amount of $4,412.26 claimed by petitioner as a de-

ductible loss on steamship operation for the taxable

year 1933.

(g) The Commissioner erred in failing to de-

termine the proper adjusted basis for depreciation

as of December 31, 1931, on the steamships ''Idaho"

and "Oregon" and on the furniture and fixtures

belonging to petitioner and in using an erroneous

alleged "cost" as such basis.
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(h) The Commissioner erred in adding to peti-

tioner's income, as returned by it for the taxable

year 1932, the amount of $5,442.32 as taxable in-

come received by way of interest from bank de-

posits.

(i) The Commissioner erred in adding to peti-

tioner's income, as returned by it for the taxable

year 1933, the amount of $445.18 as taxable income

received by way of interest from [6] bank deposits.

(j) The Commissioner erred in adding to peti-

tioner's income, as returned by it for the taxable

year 1933, the amount of $2,160.80 by disallowance

thereof as deduction for bad debts.

(k) The Commissioner erred in adding to peti-

tioner's income, as returned by it for the taxable

year 1932, the amount of $18,258.00 representing

dividends received by it from domestic corporations

subject to tax.

(1) The Commissioner erred in adding to peti-

tioner's income, as returned by it for the taxable

year 1933, the amount of $17,541.00 representing

dividends received by it from domestic corporations

subject to tax.

(m) The Commissioner erred in adding to the

tax returned by petitioner for the taxable year 1932

and the erroneous and illegal computation of an al-

leged deficiency made by him of the amount of

$567.17 as a penalty pretended to be imposed for

negligence as defined by section 293(a) of the Reve-

nue Act of 1932.

(n) The Commissioner erred in adding to the
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tax returned by petitioner for the taxable year 1933

and the erroneous and illegal computation of an al-

leged deficiency made by him of the amount of $1,-

103.90 as a penalty pretended to be imposed for

negligence as defined by section 293(a) of the Reve-

nue Act of 1932.

(o) The Commissioner erred in attempting to

compute any deficiency in income tax against peti-

tioner for either or both of the taxable years 1932

and/or 1933, and particularly in attempting to com-

pute any deficiency in income tax against petitioner

[7] for either or both of said years under the pro-

visions of section 104 of the Revenue Act of 1932.

5. The facts upon which petitioner relies as a

basis for this proceeding are as follows:

(a) Petitioner is a corporation duly organized

on December 14, 1928, under the law^s of the State

of Nevada. Its correct name and title is '^Wilson

Bros. & Co." instead of "Wilson Brothers and

Company" as stated in the Notice of deficiency. Its

sole stockholders are Francis A. Wilson and Win-

fred T. Wilson.

(b) Petitioner was formed to take over the busi-

ness of a copartnership of the same name and to ac-

quire, own and operate timberlands, saw^ mills,

logging railroads and equipment, and steamships;

also, to buy, sell and transport lumber, to own, oper-

ate and maintain steamships and to utilize the same

for the transport of cargoes.

(c) During said taxable years petitioner kept

and maintained its books of account on the accrual

basis.
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(d) On or about March 31, 1933, petitioner filed

its income tax return for the taxable year 1932 in

which it reported no taxable income for said year.

Said return stated specifically the items of peti-

tioner's gross income, the deductions and credits

claimed by it.

(e) On or about March 15, 1934^ petitioner filed

its income tax return for the taxable year 1933 in

which it reported no taxable income for said year.

Said return stated specifically the items of peti-

tioner's gross income, the deductions and credits

claimed by it. [8]

(f) The Commissioner has erroneously and il-

legally proposed and determined a deficiency in in-

come tax against petitioner for the taxable year

1932 in the amount of $477.61, an additional tax for

said year in the amount of $10,865.75 by erron-

eously and illegally applying the terms of section

104(a) to the income of petitioner, and a penalty of

five percentum on the sum of the above mentioned

amounts by illegally applying section 293(a) of the

Revenue Act of 1932 to the return filed by petitioner

as aforesaid, or a total of deficiency and penalty of

$11,910.53.

(g) The Commissioner has erroneously and il-

legally proposed and determined a deficiency in in-

come tax against petitioner for the taxable year

1933 in the amount of. $2,870.25, an additional tax

for said year in the amount of $19,207.76 by erron-

eously applying the terms of section 104(a) to the
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income of petitioner, and a penalty of five percen-

tum on the sum of the above mentioned amounts by

illegally applying section 292(a) of the Revenue

Act of 1932 to the return filed by petitioner as

aforesaid, or a total deficiency and penalty of $23,-

181.91.

(h) Respondent added to the amount of total in-

come reported by petitioner in its income tax re-

turns for the respective years 1932 and 1933, under

designation in the deficiency notice for said years as

'* Excessive depreciation", the following amounts:

For the year 1932 $ 5,225.02,

For the year 1933 , 13,975.02

Petitioner has claimed as deductible depreciation in

its return for said years the following and only the

following items and amounts with respect to assets

used in the trade or business, viz : [9]

Depreciable Itemi 1932 1933

Wooden Buildings $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00

Steamships "Idaho" and "Oregon" 8,750.00 17,500.00

Furniture and Fixtures 500.00 500.00

Automobiles 900.00 1 ,649.85

Or a total of _ $11,150.00 $20,649.85

Respondents disallowance of items of deduction in

the deficiency notice in this proceeding has not been

itemized or specifically explained therein or in his

answer to the original petition on file herein or by

proofs at hearing of this proceeding.

(i) Petitioner has stipulated to the disallowance

of depreciation claimed on wooden buildings in the
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total amount claimed for each of the years 1932 and

1933. Petitioner has also stipulated that the allow-

able depreciation on automobiles for each of the two

years involved is $900.00 for the year 1932 and $1,-

649.85 for the year 1933.

(j) The basis to petitioner for depreciation of

its 75% interest in the steamship ^' Idaho", without

allowance for depreciation in prior years, was on

December 31, 1931, at least $200,216.67; the depre-

ciation claimed and allowed by respondent to said

date was $108,750.00, as has been stipulated; the

petitioner's depreciable basis on said steamship as

adjusted for depreciation allowed and allowable for

years prior to December 31, 1931, was at least

$91,466.67.

(k) As determined in said deficiency notice said

steamship "Idaho" had a useful depreciable life of

not in excess of fifteen years from January 1, 1932,

and an annual rate of depreciation of 6% per cent

from said date; and petitioner [10] is and was en-

titled to an annual depreciation allowance of not

less than $6,097.11 for said period.

(1) The basis to petitioner for depreciation on

its 100% interest in the steamship "Oregon", with-

out allowance for depreciation in prior years, was

on December 31, 1931, at least $205,766.32; the de-

preciation claimed and allowed by respondent to said

date was $109,231.69, as has been stipulated; the pe-

titioner's depreciable basis on said steamship as of

December 31, 1931, as adjusted for depreciation al-
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lowed and allowable for prior years was at least

$96,434.63.

(m) As determined in said deficiency notice said

steamship ''Oregon" had a useful depreciable life

not ill excess of fifteen years from January 1, 1932,

and an annual rate of depreciation of 6% per cent

from said date, and petitioner is and was entitled to

an annual depreciation allowance of not less than

$6,437.64 for said period.

(n) On January 2, 1929, petitioner acquired fur-

niture and fixtures of a fair market value of $5,-

000.00, on which respondent has determined a useful

depreciable life of ten years from December 31,

1931. Respondent has allowed $1,500.00 depreciation

on said furniture and fixtures to December 31, 1931,

and determined a rate of depreciation of 10% on

the remaining ten years of life thereof. Petitioner is

therefore entitled to allowance for depreciation on

said furniture and fixtures in an amount not less

than $350.00 per annum for each of the taxable

years 1932 and 1933.

(o) During the taxable years 1932 and 1933 pe-

titioner was required to protect, maintain and keep

in repair the steam- [11] ships "Idaho" and "Ore-

gon" in order to keep such vessels in seaworthy con-

dition and prevent their undue deterioration and de-

preciation. For such purpose petitioner expended

the amount of $4,547.05 during the taxable year 1932

and the amount of $4,412.26 during the taxable year

1933. Such expenditures were proper and necessary

business expenses and petitioner is entitled to de-
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duct said amounts for the respective years despite

the disallowance of the same by the respondent.

(p) During the years 1932 and 1933 and prior

thereto, petitioner was the managing agent for the

steamship "Svea" and as such was required to pro-

tect, maintain and keep said vessel in repair. Peti-

tioner was not an owner of any interest in said

steamship but as agent w^as required to perform the

services mentioned. Due to said steamship being

laid up and making no earnings from which peti-

tioner might reimburse itself and the refusal of the

owners to contribute to such expense, petitioner in

the year 1933 wrote-off the amount of $2,160.80 as a

partial write-off of a bad debt. Said write-off was

made after attempts to collect the same from the

shareowners of said steamship and advice of counsel

that petitioner had no right of recovery and the de-

termination by petitioner that said amount was be-

yond hope of recovery.

(q) Petitioner is therefore entitled to deduct

from its gross income for the years 1932 and 1933

as reported in its income tax returns for the re-

spective years the following statutory deductible

items: [12]
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Oeductions 1932 1933

Rent, as accepted by respondent $ 1,415.50 $ 1,140.00

Taxes, as accepted by respondent 752.39 1,284.18

Steamship operations (maintenance) 4,547.05 4,412.26

Dividends, as accepted by respondent 18,258.00 17,541.00

Depreciation—Steamship '

' Idaho '

'

75% interest 6,097.77 * 6,097.77

Steamship "Oregon"
100% interest „ 6,437.64 6,437.64

Automobiles, as

accepted 900.00 1,649.85

Furniture and fixtures... 350.00 350.00

Bad debts, as accepted by respondent 19,223.24

Deduction for partial write-off of ad-

vancements steamship "Svea" 2,160.80

Salaries and wages, as accepted by

respondent 5,780.00 5,785.00

General expense, as accepted by re-

spondent 2,403.52 3,501.70

$46,941.67 $69,583.44

(r) During the years 1932 and 1933 petitioner

in its income tax returns reported for said years re-

spectively the amounts of $12,949.58 and $9,035.81

as income from interest. Respondent without ex-

planation in his deficiency notice or affirmative

pleading in his answer in this proceeding asserted

interest on bank deposits to be taxable in the

amount of $5,442.32 for the year 1932 and $445.18

for the year 1933 and in his deficiency notice added

said amounts to petitioner's income for the said re-

spective years, although petitioner had reported as

taxable income from interest on bank deposits

amounts in excess of said addition, and although no
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amounts of interest in addition to [13] that re-

ported were paid to or accruable to petitioner for

said years or either of them.

(s) Petitioner's gross income was correctly re-

ported in its income tax returns for the years 1932

and 1933 as follows:

1932 1933

Gross ineonie returned $ 32,565.57 $75,579.28

From which should be deducted at

least _ 46,941.87 69,583.44

Resulting in net taxable income of ($-14,476.30) $ 5,995.84

(t) Petitioner was not formed or availed of for

the purpose of preventing the imposition of any

surtax or internal revenue tax upon its shareholders

through the medium of permitting its gains and

profits to accumulate instead of being divided or

distributed.

(u) During the years 1932 and 1933 the eco-

nomic and financial depression which started in 1929

continued and the impaired and shrunken market

value of the assets of petitioner made it inadvisable

under sound business practice to declare any divi-

dends or in any other way further impair the assets

of the corporation and thus endanger the accom-

plishment of the business purposes for which peti-

tioner was organized.

(v) Under the faT3ts of this proceeding peti-

tioner is not liable for surtax under section 104 of

the Revenue Act of 1932 as amended in any amount

upon any possible fair adjustment of its net income
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for the taxable calendar years 1932 and 1933. [14]

(w) Under the facts of this proceeding peti-

tioner is not liable for the penalty of five percent

sought to be imposed by respondent under the al-

leged authority of section 293(a) of the Revenue

Act of 1932, because the deficiency notice and the

testimony adduced shows no negligence, or inten-

tional disregard of rules and regulations, and re-

spondent failed to offer any proof in support of

his attempt to impose such a penalty.

Wherefore, the petitioner prays that this Board

may hear the proceeding and grant to petitioner

such relief from the deficiency, additional tax and

penalty asserted by the Commissioner as may be

within the jurisdiction of the Board.

ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNER
LOUIS JANIN

Attorneys for Petitioner,

1110 Balfour Building,

San Francisco, California.

[15]

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—^ss.

Francis A. Wilson, being duly sworn, says that

he is the president of the above named incorporated

petitioner and that he is authorized to verify the

foregoing petition; that he has read the foregoing

petition and is familiar with the statements con-

tained therein, and that the facts stated are true,

except as to those facts stated to be upon infor-
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mation and belief, and those facts he believes to be

true.

FRANCIS A. WILSON
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 30th day

of June, 1939.

HAZEL E. THOMPSON
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

My Commission Expires September 21, 1942. [16]

EXHIBIT ''A"

Office of

Commissioner of Internal Revenue

TREASURY DEPARTMENT
Washington

Dec. 30, 1935

Wilson Brothers and Company,

1112 Russ Building,

San Francisco, California.

Sirs:

You are advised that the determination of your

income tax liability for the years 1932 and 1933,

discloses a deficiency of $35,092.44, tax and penalty

as shown in the statement attached.

In accordance with section 272(a) of the Rev-

enue Act of 1932, as amended by section 501 of the

Revenue Act of 1934, notice is hereby given of the

deficiency mentioned. Within ninety days (not

counting Sunday or a legal holiday in the District

of Columbia as the ninetieth day) from the date

of the mailing of this letter, you may file a petition

with the United States Board of Tax Appeals for a
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redetermination of the deficiency.

Should you not desire to file a petition, you are

requested to execute the enclosed form and forward

it to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue Wash-

ington, D. C, for the attention of IT:C:P-7. The

signing and filing of this form will expedite the

closing of your returns by permitting an early as-

sessment of the deficiency and will prevent the ac-

cumulation of interest, since the interest period

terminates thirty days after filing the form, or on

the date assessment is made, whichever is earlier.

Respectfully,

GUY T. HELVERIKG,
Commissioner.

By W. T. SHERWOOD
Acting Deputy Commissioner.

Enclosures

:

Statement

Form 870

Schedule A [17]

STATEMENT
In re: Wilson Brothers and Company,

1112 Russ Building,

San Francisco, California.

5%
Year Tax Liability Tax Assessed Deficiency Penalty

(Consent on

1932 to

12/30/35)

1932 $11,343.36 None $11,343.36 $ 567.17

1933 22,078.01 None 22,078.01 1,103.90

Totals $33,421.37 None $33,421.37 $1,671.07

Total deficiencies and penalties $35,092.44
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The report of the internal revenue agent in

charge at San Francisco, California has been re-

viewed and is approved by this office.

After careful consideration of your Federal in-

come tax returns and of all other available infor-

mation the Bureau holds that your corporation is

subject to taxation imder the provisions of section

104 of the Revenue Act of 1932 for the years 1932

and 1933.

1932

Net loss reported on return _ $11,740.89

Add:
1. Excessive depreciation $5,225.02

2. Loss on steamship operation 4,547.05

3. Interest 5,442.32 15,214.39

Net income adjusted, section 21 $ 3,473.50

Add:
Dividends received _ 18,258.00

Net income adjusted, section 104(c) $21,731.50

[18]

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENTS

1. The excessive depreciation has been disal-

lowed in accordance with section 23 (k) of the Rev-

enue Act of 1932 and Treasury Decision 4422. TJie

computation of the depreciation allowable is shown

in schedule A attached.

2. The loss on steamship operation has been dis-

allowed for the reason no evidence has been sulv

mitted to substantiate the loss as a deduction al-

lowable imder the provisions of section 23 of the

Revenue Act of 1932.
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3. Interest on bank deposits constitutes taxable

income in accordance with section 22 of the Revenue

Act of 1932.

COMPUTATION OF TAX
Net income, section 21 $ 3,473.50

Tax liability at 13 3/4%, section 13(a) $ 477.61

Net income, section 104(c) 21,731.50

Tax liability at 50%, section 104(a) 10,865.75

Total tax liability $11,343.36

Tax assessed _ None

Deficiency $11,343.36

5% penalty 567.17

Total deficiency and penalty $11,910.53

1933

Net loss reported on return _ $ 118.75

Add:
1. Excessive depreciation 13,975.02

2. Reserve for bad debts _ 2,160.80

3. Loss on steamship operation 4,412.26

4. Interest 445.18 20,993.26

Net income adjusted, section 21 $20,874.51

[19]

Brought forward $20,874.51

Add:
Dividends 17,541.00

Net income adjusted, section 104(c) $38,415.51

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENTS
1. See #1 under 1932.

2. The reserve for bad debts has been disal-

lowed in accordance with section 23(j) of the Rev-

enue Act of 1932, since your basis as established



224 Wilson Brothers d; Compamy

is the actual bad debt basis and no permission has

been ^^ranted by the Commissioner to change to the

reserve basis.

3. See #2 mider 1932.

4. See #3 under 1932.

COMPUTATION OF TAX
Net income, section 21 $20,874.51

Tax liability at 133/^%, section 13(a) $ 2,870.25

Net income, sections 104(c) 38,415.51

Tax liability at 50%, section 104(a) 19,207.76

Total tax liability __ _....$22,078.01

Tax assessed None

Deficiency $22,078.01

5% penalty _ 1,103.90

Total deficiency and penalty $23,181.91

[20]

The imderstatement of tax for the years 1932

and 1933 is attributable to negligence as defined in

the regulations and imder the provisions of section

293(a) of the Revenue Act of 1932 and a penalty

of 5% of each deficiency attaches. The 5% penalty

is included in the above assessments.

The interest due on the deficiencies in accord-

ance ^\^th the provisions of section 292 of the ReA^-

enue Act of 1932 will be computed by this office and

demanded by the collector of internal revenue at

the time you are called Upon to pay the tax.

Payment should not be made imtil a bill is re-

ceived from the collector of internal revenue for

your district and remittance should then be made

to him. [21]



WILSON BROTHERS AND COMPANY
Interest Depreciation Depreciation

Date Owned by Deducted to Date Acquired Deducted to

Kind of Property Built Cost Wilsons Interest Dec. 31, 1928 by Taxpayer Cost Dec. 31, 1931

S. S. Idaho 1916 $200,000.00 75% $150,000.00 $90,000.00 January 2, 1929 $60,000.00 $18,750.00

S. S. Oregon - 1916 140,386.15 100% 140,386.15 84,231.69 January 2, 1929 56,154.48 25,000.00

Wooden building 1916 7,500.00 4,875.00 January 2, 1929 2,625.00 3,000.00

Furniture and fixtures „ January 3, 1929 3,480.20 1,500.00

Automobiles 1932

Total -

[Endorsed] : U.S.B.T.A. Lodged July 5, 1939. Filed July 10, 1939.
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Residual
Cost

Jan. 1, 1932
Rate From
Jan. 1, 1932

Depreciation
1932

Allowable
1933

$41,250.00 6%% $2,750.00 $2,750.00

31,154.46 6%% 2,076.96 2,076.96

None None None

1,980.20 10 % 198.02 198.02

8,249.25 5 % 900.00 1,649.85

$5,924.98 $6,674.83

[22]
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[Title of Board and Cause.]

ANSWER TO AMENDED PETITION

Comes now the Commissioner of Internal Rev-

enue, respondent above named, by his attorney, J.

P. Wenchel, Chief Counsel, Bureau of Internal

Revenue, and for answer to the amended petition

filed by the above-named petitioner, admits and

denies as follows:

1. Admits the allegations contained in paragraph

1 of the amended petition.

2. Admits the allegations of fact contained in

paragraph 2 of the amended petition.

3. Admits that the deficiency in tax here in con-

troversy is for taxes for the calendar years 1932

and 1933 as asserted in the deficiency notice, as al-

leged in paragraph 3 of the amended petition, but

denies the remaining allegations contained in said

paragraph. [23]

4. (a) to (c), inclusive. Denies the Commis-

sioner erred in the determination of the deficiency

as alleged in subparagraphs (a) to (c), inclusive,

of paragraph 4 of the amended petition.

5. (a) Admits the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (a) of paragraph 5 of the amended

petition.

(b) Denies the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (b) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition.

(c) Admits the allegations contained in sub-
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paragraph (c) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition.

(d) Admits on or about March 31, 1933, pe-

titioner filed its income tax return for the taxable

year 1932 in which it reported no taxable income

for said year as alleged in subparagra])h (d) of

paragraph 5 of the amended petition, but denies

the remaining allegations contained in said sub-

paragraph.

(e) Admits on or about March 15, 1934, pe-

titioner filed its income tax return for the taxable

year 1933 in which it reported no taxable income

for said year, as alleged in subparagraph (e) of

paragraph 5 of the amended j^etition, but denies

the remaining allegations contained in said sub-

paragraph.

(f) Denies the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (f) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition.

(g) Denies the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (g) of paragraph 5 of the amended

petition.

(h) Admits i*espondent added to the amoimt of

income reported by the petitioner for the year

1932 $5,225.02 and for the year 1933 [24] $13,975.02

as excessive depreciation, as alleged in subpara-

graph (h) of paragraph 5 of the amended petition,

but denies the remaining allegations contained in

said subparagraph.

(i) Admits the allegations contained in sub-
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paragraph (i) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition.

(j) Admits the depreciation allowed bv re-

spondent v/as $108,750.00 as stipulated, as alleged

in subparagraph (j) of Paragraph 5 of the amended

petition, but denies the remaining allegations con-

tained in said subparagraph.

(k) Admits, as determined in said deficiency

notice said steamship ''Idaho" had a useful depre-

ciable life of not in excess of fifteen years from

January 1, 1932, and an annual rate of deprecia-

tion of 6% per cent from said date, as alleged in

subparagraph (k) of paragraph 5 of the amended

petition, but denies the remaining allegations con-

tained in said subparagraph.

(1) Admits the depreciation allowed by re-

spondent was $109,231.69 as stipulated, as alleged

in subparagraph (1) of paragraph 5 of the

amended petition, but denies the remaining alle-

gations contained in said subparagraph.

(m) Admits, as determined in said deficiency

notice said steamship ''Oregon" had a useful depre-

ciable life not in excess of fifteen years from Janu-

ary 1, 1932, and an annual rate of depreciation of

6% per cent from said date, as alleged in subpara-

graph (m) of paragraph 5 of the amended petition,

but denies the remaining allegations contained in

said subparagraph. [25]

(n) Denies the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (n) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition.

(o) Denies the allegations contained in sub-
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paragraph (o) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition.

(p) Denies the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (p) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition.

(q) Denies the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (q) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition.

(r) Admits during the years 1932 and 1933 pe-

titioner in its income tax returns reported for said

years respectively the amounts of $12,949.58 and

$9,035.81 as income from interest, as alleged in

subparagraph (r) of paragraj)!! 5 of the amended

petition, but denies the remaining allegations con-

tained in said subparagraph.

(s) Denies the allegations contained in subpara-

graph (s) of paragraph 5 of the amended petition.

(t) Denies the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (t) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition.

(u) Denies the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (u) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition.

(v) Denies the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (v) of paragraph 5 of the amended pe-

tition.

(w) Denies the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (w) of paragraph 5 of the amended

petition. [26]

6. Denies generally and specifically each and

every allegation in the amended petition not here-

inbefore admitted, qualified or denied.
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Wherefore, it is prayed that the Commissioner's

determination be approved and that the petitioner's

appeal be denied.

[Signed] J. P. WENCHEL
TMM

Chief Counsel, Bureau of In-

ternal Revenue.

Of Counsel:

ALVA C. BAIRD,
T. M. MATHER

Special Attorneys,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

TMM:emb 7-22-39

[Endorsed]: U.S.B.T.A. Filed July 31, 1939.

[27]

United States Board of Tax Appeals

Washington

Docket No. 83397.

WILSON BROTHERS & CO.,

Petitioner,

V.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

DECISION.

Pursuant to the Memorandum Opinion of the

Board entered May 22, 1940, the respondent herein

having on June 20, 1940, filed a recomputation of
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the tax, and the petitioner having on July 22, 1940,

filed an acquiescence in said recomputation, now,

therefore, it is

Ordered and Decided : That there are deficiencies

in normal taxes, surtaxes, and penalties as follows:

Additional Tax
under section

Year Normal Tax 104, 1932 Act Penalty

1932 None $ 3,316.84 $165.84

1933 $1,499.93 14,224.80 786.24

Enter

:

[Seal] (Sidled) R. L. DISNEY
Member. [28]

Entered Aug. 6, 1940.

[Title of Board and Cause.]

PETITION FOR REVIEW OF DECISION OF
THE UNITED STATES BOARD OF TAX
APPEALS BY THE UNITED STATES
(CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS FOR
THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

To the Honorable, The Judges of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

:

Wilson Brothers and Company (properly en-

titled Wilson Bros. & Co.), your petitioner, pur-

suant to the }U'ovisions of Sections 1141 and 1142

of the Internal Revenue Code respectfully peti-

tions this Honorable Court to review the decision

of the United States Board of Tax Appeals en-

tered on the 6th day of August, 1940, and finding

deficiencies in income tax, together with additional
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tax luider Section 104 of the Revenue Act of 1932

and a negligence penalty under Section 293(a) of

said Act in the total of $3,482.68 for the taxable

calendar year 1932 and in the total of $16,510.97

for the taxable calendar year 1933. [29]

I

Jurisdiction

Your petitioner is a corporation organized under

the laws of the State of Nevada, having, during

the taxable years involved, its principal office and

place of business in the City and County of San

Francisco, State of California. Petitioner timely

tiled its Federal income tax returns in respect to

which the aforementioned tax liabilities arose with

the Collector of Internal Revenue, 1st District of

California, located in the City and Coimty of San

Francisco, State of California, which is situated

within the jurisdiction of the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Judicial Circuit.

II

Prior Proceedings

The Commissioner of Internal Revenue, by his

letter dated December 30, 1935, asserted a deficiency

in petitioner's tax liability for the year 1932 in the

sum of $11, 343.36 and a penalty of five percentum

in the amoimt of $567.17, he also asserted a de-

ficiency in petitioner's tax liability for the year

1933 in the sum of $22,078.01 and a penalty of five

per centum in the amount of $1,103.90. By his letter

of March 8, 1938, the Commissioner asserted a
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deficiency iii petitioner's tax liability for the year

1934 in the sum of $13,632.27 and a penalty of

five percentum in the amount of $681.61.

Thereafter, and within the times ])rescribed by

law, the petitioner filed with the United States

Board of Tax Appeals its petitions under the afore-

said two letters requesting the redetermination of

such deficiencies. The proceedings duly came on

for hearing on June 6, 1939, at which time the two

proceedings were [30] consolidated for hearing.

The proceedings were submitted to the' Board

upon a written stipulation of facts, oral testimony

of witnesses and documentaiy evidence applicable

to the two proceedings.

Thereafter, and on May 22, 1940, the United

States Board of Tax Appeals made its report and

rendered a memorandum opinion, through a single

member sitting as Division No. 4 of said Board,

approving in part the determinations of the

Commissioner.

Thereafter, and on August 6, 1940, decisions were

made and entered in each of the two |)roceedings

by the United States Board of Tax Apy)eals where-

by final orders of redetermination of deficiencies

for the respective years involved were made and

entered as follows:

Additional Tax Under Section

104, 1932 Act and Section 102

Year Normal Tax 1934 Act Penaltj

1932 None $ 3,316.84 $165.84

1933 $1,499.93 14,224.80 786.24

1934 1,912.05 9,740.70 582.63
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III

Statement of the Nature of the Controversy

This proceeding^ is for the years 1932 and 1933,

(Docket No. 83,397) and involves income taxes,

together with surtax alleged under the provisions

of Section 104 of the Revenue Act of 1932 and

a tive percentum penalty for asserted negligence

under Section 293 (a) of said Act, for the taxable

calendar years 1932 and 1933.

The controversy between petitioner (appellant

before the Court) and the Commissioner of In-

ternal Revenue involves several issues which, for

the years involved, wall be presented in the order

in which they are discussed in the report or mem-

orandum opinion of [31] the Board of Tax Ap-

peals.

1. (Issue IV (a) in the report or memorandum
opinion) Whether the basis for depreciation of pe-

titioner's 75% interest in the steamshiy) "Idaho"

adjusted to January 1, 1932 is $52,466.67 as deter-

mined in the memorandum opinion, or $91,466.67.

This issue is one of law and arises from the differ-

ence between the cost ($40,000) of said interest

to Henry Wilson and its value $79,000) on Febru-

ary 6, 1917 when he made a gift thereof to his

wife, Mary H. Wilson, who in turn made a gift

thereof to petitioner on January 2, 1929.

2. (Issue V in the report or memorandum opin-

ion). Whether the petitioner corporation was

availed of during the taxable years involved for the

purpose of preventing imposition of surtax upon
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its two shareholders through the medium of per-

mitting its gains and profits to accumulate instead

of heing divided or distributed.

3. (Issue VI in the report or memorandum
opinion) Whether the petitioner was subject to the

five per centmn negligence penalty under Section

293(a) of the Revenue Act of 1932.

Due in j)art to the fact that the report or memor-

andirni opinion of the Board subdivides its findings

as it subdivides its opinion on the several issues,

thereby disregarding findings of fact made on some

issues material to other issues, a consideration of

the evidence as well as a consideration of all of

the facts found is necessarily involved in the re-

view of the Board's decision.

IV

ASSIGNMENTS OF EREOR
In assigning the errors which petitioner believes

to have been committed by the United States Board

of Tax Appeals, [32] assignment is made in the

order in which the issues were decided and num-

bered in the report or memorandum opinion of the

Board entered May 22, 1940, for the two pro-

ceedings docketed and nmnbered 83,397 and 93,668.

For convenience of reference, the issues as con-

sidered in the report or memorandum opinion are

designated by the Roman numerals, employed in

subdividing said report or memorandiun opinion

into separate parts. No assignments of error are

made to issues I and II considered in said report

or memorandum opinion.
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Petitioner assigns as error the following acts

and omissions of said United States Board of Tax

Appeals :

—

III.

(1) The failure to find and determine that the

$43,276.06 account receivable due from the Wood-

head Lumber Co. of California was impaired dur-

ing the year 1934 in at least the amount ($5,000.00)

charged off by petitioner in said year against said

account as a partial bad debt.

(2) The failure toi fmd and determine that

petitioner had fully met its burden of proving

error on the part of the respondent in disallowing

the claimed deduction of such partial bad debt, such

disallowance being predicated entirely on the false

assumption that no direct write-off had been made

of said $5,000.

(3) The making of a purported finding of fact

contrary to the evidence, record and issue involved

is as follows:

"Upon consideration of the entire record

we find and determine that the alleged worth-

less character of the debt from the Wood-

head LumJ^er C^o. of California has not lieen

shown. We therefore find and hold that the

Commissioner did not err in disallowing the

$5,000 deduction claimed." [33]

(4) The failure to find that the cost to peti-

tioner of its bonds of the Kentucky Fuel Gas C^or-

poration were impaired during the year 1934 in at

least the amount ($5,500.00) charged off by peti-
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tioner in said year against the cost of said bonds

as a partial bad debt.

(5) The failure to find and determine that

petitioner had fully met its burden of proving error

on the part of respondent in disallowing the claimed

deduction of such partial bad debt, such dis-

allowance being entirely predicated entirely on the

false assumption that no direct write-off had been

made of said $5,000.

(6) The making of a purported finding with

respect to the deduction of said $5,500 contrary

to the evidence, record and issue involved as fol-

lows :

''Obviously such a record does not show

error on the part of the Commissioner in deny-

ing the deduction.
'

'

IV

(7) The failure to allow as a basis for depre-

ciation on the Steamship "Idaho" from January

.1, 1932, the amoimt of $91,377.78 and to determine

that petitioner w^as entitled to deduct depreciation

on said steamship for each of the taxable years

1932, 1933 and 1934 in the amomit of $6,100.77 })er

annum.

(8) The failure to allow as a part of the basis

of depreciation of the Steamshi]) "Idaho" from

January 1, 1932, the amount of $79,000. as the fair

market value of a twenty per cent interest therein

given to Mary H. Wilson on Februaiy 6, 1917, by

her husband, at which time said steamship had a

fair market value of $395,000., which said twenty
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per cent interest was donated to petitioner by said

Maiy H. Wilson on January 2, 1929. [34]

(9) The determination that the basis (unad-

justed) of property acquired by ^^ft prior to De-

cember 31, 1920 is changed from the value at the

time of said gift to cost to the donor of said gift

when said property is made the subject matter of a

gift by said donee after December 31, 1920.

V
(10) The making of a purported finding with

respect to all of the taxable years involved and

without discrimination between the circumstances

and facts relating to each of the years 1932, 1933,

and 1934, to the effect:

''We hold that the petitioner was availed

of in the taxable years for the purpose of pre-

venting imposition of surtax upon its share-

holders through the medium of permitting its

gains and profits to accumulate instead of being-

divided or distributed."

when in fact the record and that part of the record

considered in the report or memorandum opinion

with respect to such finding is contrary to such

finding and said finding is inconsistent with other

findings upon which it is purportedly based.

(11) The determination that for the taxable

year 1932 petitioner is liable under the alleged

authority of Section 104 (a) of the Revenue Act of

1932 in the amount of $3,316.84 as a surtax for

the alleged accumulation of surplus contrary to

the provisions of said section.
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(12) The determination tJiat for the taxable

3^ear 1933 petitioner is liable under the alleged

authority of Section 104(a) of the Revenue Act

of 1932 in the amount of $14,224.80 as a surtax

foi' the alleged accumulation of surplus contrary to

the })rovisions of said section. [35]

(13) The determination that for the taxable

year 1934 petitioner is liable under the alleged au-

thority of Section 102(a) of the Revenue Act of

1934 in the amomit of $9,740.70 as a surtax for

the alleged accumulation of surplus contrary to the

provisions of said section.

(14) In making the determinations complained

of in assignments 10 to 13 hereof, inclusive, the

failure to consider the true earned surplus of pe-

titioner as distinguished from its taxable earnings

and profits as determined in the repoi-t or mem-

orandum opinion.

(15) In making the determinations complained

of in assignments 10 to 13 hereof, inclusive, the

failure to make any finding as to what surplus, if

any, petitioner had accumiTlated in each of the

taxable years involved.

VI

(16) The determination that for the taxable

year 1932 petitioner is liable for a negligence pen-

alty under the allegexl authority of Section 293(a)

of the Revenue Act of 1932 in the amoimt of

$165.84, when the record does not disclose that any

part of the deficiency determined was ''due to

negligence or intentional disregard of rules and

regulations".
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(17) The determiiiation that for the taxable

year 1933 petitioner is liable for a negligence pen-

alty under the alleged authority of Section 293(a)

of the Revenue Act of 1932 in the amount of

$785.24, when the record does not disclose that any

part of the deficiency determined was ''due to negli-

gence or intentional disregard of rules and regula-

tions".

(18) The determination that for the taxable

year 1934 petitioner is liable for a negligence pen-

alty under the alleged authority of Section 293(a)

of the Revenue Act of 1934 in the amount of

$582.63, [36] when the record does not disclose

that any part of the deficiency determined was ''due

to negligence or intentional disregard of rules and

regulations".

General

(19) The failure to make comprehensive and

generally applicable findings of facts which would

apply equally to all issues involved in the proceed-

ings and be adequate for proper determination of

r]] the issues involved.

(20) The setting forth separately in the report

or memorandum opinion in connection with the

discussion and determination of each of the issues

involved therein of inadequate facts to support the

conclusions reached in such opinion on the majority

of said issues.

(21) The severance of facts in the relation to

each of the issues discussed and determined in the

report or memorandum opinion so that purported
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findings with regard to one issue do not have

application to the other issues involved.

(22) The determination of separate issues with-

out regard to facts found to be true with respect

to other issues involved in the proceedings.

(N. B. The errors numbered 19, 20, 21, and

22 are manifest from a reading of the report

or memorandum opinion on the various num-

bered issues and from the following express

language of the opinion:

"Certain issues as to depreciation upon

wooden buildings and automobiles have been

settled by stipulation which will be reflected

in decision under Rule 50. The other issues

will be considered in the order above set forth,

the facts, except the general facts as to in-

corporation stated aboA^e, being set forth sep-

arately in connection with the discussion of

each issue." (Italics supplied.) ) [37]

(23) The intenningling of fibdings of fa'ct,

conclusions as to facts and conclusions of law in

such manner as to render the decision of the Board

in its report or memorandum opinion arbitrary

and theoretical.

(24) In making its findings of fact and con-

clusions of law therefrom the Board failed to make

findings of fact in conformance with the evidence.

Wherefore, the petitioner prays that the decision

of the United States Board of Tax Appeals be

reviewed by the United States Circuit Coui-t of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit; that a transcript of
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the record be prepared in accordance with law

and the rules of said Court for filing, and that ap-

propriate action be taken to the end that the errors

complained of herein be reviewed and corrected by

said Court.

WILSON BROS. & CO.,

By FRANCIS A. WILSON
President.

ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNER,
LOUIS JANIN

Counsel for Petitioner

1110 Balfour Building,

San Francisco, California. [38]

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco.—ss.

Francis A. Wilson being first and duly sworn

says, I am president of Wilson Bros. & Co., the

petitioner and appellant above-named; that I have

read the foregoing petition for review and know

the contents thereof and the facts set forth therein

are true as I verily believe; that said petition is

filed in good faith and not for purposes of delay.

FRANCIS A. WILSON
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 24th day

of October, 1940.

[Seal] ELEANOR J. SMITH
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

My commission expires Dec. 31, 1943.

[Endorsed] : U.S.B.T.A. Filed Oct. 31, 1940. [39]
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[Title of Board and Cause.]

Docket No. 83,397

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL

Louis Janin, being' first duly sworn, deposes and

says

:

That he is a citizen of the Ignited States, and

over the a^e of 21 years, and not a party to the

above-entitled proceedings. That on this 30th day

of October, 1940, he deposited in the United States

Post Office in San Francisco, California, addressed

to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Internal

Revenue Building, Washington, D. C, a copy of pe-

tition for review in the above-entitled proceed-

ing's, together with a notice of mailing petition for

review, addressed to said Commissioner of Internal

Revenue, and to John P. Wenchel, Chief Counsel,

Attorney for Commissioner. That said copy of pe-

tition and notice of filing j)etition w^ere enclosed in

an envelope addressed to the Commissioner of In-

ternal Revenue, Internal Revenue Building, Wash-

ington, D. C, with air mail postage prepaid there-

on for immediate and prompt delivery.

LOUIS JANIN
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 30th day

of October, 1940.

[Notarial Seal] EDITH VIA
Notary Public in and for the City and County

of San Francisco, State of California.

[Endorsed] : U.S.B.T.A. Filed Oct. 31, 1940. [40]
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[Title of Board and Cause.]

To Commissioner of Internal Fevenue, and to John

P. Wenchel, Chief Comisel, Attorney for Re-

spondent, Bureau of Internal Revenue Build-

ing, Washington, D. C:

You are hereby notified that on this 31st day of

October 1940, a petition for review by the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Nmth Cir-

cuit, of the decision of the United States Board of

Tax Appeals, heretofore rendered in the above-

entitled cause, was mailed by air mail to the Clerk

of said Board. A copy of the petition as filed is

attached hereto, and served upon you.

Dated: This 30th day of October, 1940.

(s) ADOLPHUS E. GRAUPNEK
(s) LOUIS JANIN

Attorneys for Petitioner.

Service of the foregoing notice of filing and of a

copy of the petition for review is hereby acknowl-

edged this 31st day of October, 1940.

(s) J. P. WENC^HEL
Chief Comisel, Bureau of In-

ternal Revenue

Attorney for Respondent.

[Endorsed]: U.S.B.T.A. Filed Nov. 1, 1940. [41]
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[Title of Board and Cause.]

STATEMENT OF POINTS ON WHICH PETI-
TIONER INTENDS TO RELY

In compliance \Wtli paragraph (d) of Rule 75

of the Rules of C^ivil Procedure for the District

Court of the United States Board of Tax Appeals

by Rule 30 of the Rules of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

the above-named petitioner herewith states, the

points on which it intends to rely on the pending

petition for review of the decision of said Board

in the above-entitled proceeding.

Petitioner will rely upon all of the assignments of

error set forth in the petition for review of de-

cision in the above-entitled proceedings by the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit filed with the United States Board

of Tax Appeals on October 31, 1940.

With respect to the above-entitled proceeding in-

volving the taxable calendar years 1932 and 1933

a concise statement of the points involved in the

appeal is as follows: [42]

1. The Board of Tax Appeals erred in failing

to allow petitioner a valuation, as a basis for de-

preciation on the Steamship "Idaho" from January

1, 1932 of the amount of $91,377.78 and to deter-

mine that petitioner was entitled to deduct depre-

ciation on said steamship for each of the taxable

years 1932, 1933 and 1934 in the amount of $6,100.78

per annum. Such error resulted from failure to

determine as a part, of the basis of depreciation,
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the amount of $79,000 as tlie fair market value of

a twenty pei' cent interest in said steamship given

to Mary H. Wilson on February 6, 1917, and by

her donated to petitioner on January 2, 1929.

2. The Board of Tax Ajjpeals erred in finding

with respect to all the taxable years involved, viz:

1932, 1933 and 1934, as follows:

''We hold that the petitioner was availed

of in the taxable years for the purpose of

preventing imposition of surtax upon its share-

holders through the medium of permitting its

gains and profits to accumulate instead of be-

ing divided or distributed."

and further erred in determining that for the year

1932 petitioner is liable under Section 104(a) of

the Revenue Act of 1932 for $3,316.84 as a surtax

for alleged accumulation of surplus ; also, it further

erred in determining that for the year 1933 peti-

tioner is liable under the aforesaid section for

$14,224.80 as a surtax for alleged accumulation of

surplus.

In making such determinations the Board failed

to consider petitioner's true earned surplus as dis-

tinguished from its taxable earnings and ])rofits as

determined in the report or memorandum opinion

and, also, failed to make any findings as to what

surplus, if any, petitioner had accumulated in each

of the taxable years involved. [43]

3. The Board erred in determining that for each

of the taxable years 1932 and 1933 petitioner is

liable for a negligence penalty under Section 293(a)
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of the Revenue Act of 1932 when the record does

not disclose that any part of the deficiency deter-

mined in each of said years was "due to nepjlig'ence

or intentional disregard of rules and regulations."

4. The Board erred in failing to make compre-

hensive or general finding of facts applicable to all

issues involved and further ei'red in segregating

and separating the findings made so that findings

made on one issue, although properly material and

applical^le to other issues, are made inapplicable

to other issues to which they are material and con-

trolling as is evidenced by the following prelim-

inary statement in the report or memorandiun

opinion

:

"Certain issues as to depreciation upon

wooden buildings and automobiles have been

settled by stipulation which will be reflected in

decision under Rule 50. The other issues will

be considered in the order above set forth, the

facts, except the general facts as to incorpora-

tion stated above, being set forth separately in

connection ivith the discussion of each issue."

(Italics supplied.)

The Board further erred in failing to make findings

of fact in conformance with the evidence, and in

intermingling, as findings of fact, facts, conclusions

as to facts, and conclusions of law in such manner

as to conflict with the record and the law.

ADOLPHUSi E. CtRAUPNER
LOUIS JANIN
Attorneys for Petitioner.
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Admission of service of the foregoing statement of

points on which petitioner intends to rely is

hereby admitted this 11th day of March, 1941.

J. P. WENCHEL
Chief Counsel, Bureau of In-

ternal Revenue, Attorney for

Respondent on Review.

[Endorsed]: U.S.B.T.A. Filed Mar. 11, 1941. [44]
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U. S. Board of Tax Appeals Filed March 14, 1941

In The United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

B. T. A.

Docket No. 83397

WILSON BROTHERS AND COMPANY,
(Wilson Bros. & Co.,) a corporation.

Petitioner on Review,

V.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent on Review.

B. T. A.

Docket No. 93668

WILSON BROTHERS AND COMPANY,
(Wilson Bros. & Co.,) a corporation,

Petitioner on Review,

V.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent on Review.

ORDER FOR (CONSOLIDATION OF
THE RECORD

Upon consideration of the motion filed herein

by counsel for the petitioner on review in the above-

entitled proceedings, moving the Court to consoli-

date said proceedings for purposes of record, brief-

ing, hearing and decision, and for other purposes,

it is this 10th day of March, 1941
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Ordered that the said motion be and it is hereby

granted.

And it is further ordered that a certified copy of

[45} the motion and this order be transmitted

by the Clerk of this Court to the Clerk of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

(s) CURTIS D. WILBUR
U. S. Cricuit Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed March 10, 1941. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.

A true copy

Attest: March 10, 1941

[Seal] PAUL P. O'BRIEN
Clerk.

By FRANK A. SCHMID,
Deputy Clerk

[Endorsed]: U.S.B.T.A. Filed March 14, 1941.

[46]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

DESIGNATION OF CONTENTS OF RECORD
ON APPEAL

In compliance with the provisions of paragraph

(a) of Rule 75 of the Rules of Civil Procedure for

the District Courts of the United States as made

applicable to review of a decision of the United

States Board of Tax Appeals by Rule 30 of the

Rules of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit, the above-named peti-

tioner hereby designates the portions of the record,
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proceedings, and evidence to be contained in the

record on review of the above-entitled proceedings,

as follows:

1. Docket entries of the proceedings before the

Board of Tax Appeals.

2. Motion for order and order granting leave

to file amended petition.

3. Amended petition filed Jnly 10, 1939.

4. Answer to amended petition filed July 31,

1939. [47]

5. Stipulation of facts tiled in the proceeding,

excepting therefrom copies of bills of sale of en-

rolled vessels attached thereto and referred to as

Exhibits A and B to said stipulation.

6. Findings of fact and memorandum opinion

of the Board promulgated May 22, 1940.

7. Decision of the Board of Tax Appeals en-

tered August 6, 1940.

8. Petition for Review of Decision of the Board

by the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit, filed October 31, 1940.

9. Notice of filing of petition for review and

admission of service thereof.

10. Orders enlarging time for preparation,

transmission and delivery of the record.

11. Revised Statement of the Evidence.

12. Designation of contents of record on appeal.

13. Statement of Points on which petitioner in-

tends to rely.

14. Petitioner's Exhibits 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10,

11, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22 and 23 and Respondent's Ex-

hibits A, B and C.



vs. Comm. of Int. Rev. 253

15. Order of the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals, Mnth Circuit, for consolidation of the

record.

ADOLPHUS E. aRAUPNER
LOUIS JANIN

Counsel for Petitioner,

1110 Balfour Building,

San Francisco, California.

Service of the fores^oino^ designation of the con-

tents of record on appeal is hereby admitted and

agreed to this day of March, 1941.

J. P. WENCHEL,
Chief Counsel, Bureau of In-

ternal Revenue, Attorney for

Respondent on Review.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed March 11, 1941.

[48]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE

I, B. D. Gamble, clerk of the U. S. Board of

Tax Appeals, do hereby certify that the foregoing-

pages, 1 to 48, inclusive, contain and are a true

copy of the transcript of record, papers, and pro-

ceedings on file and of record in my office as called

for by the Praecipe in the appeal (or appeals) as

above numbered and entitled.

In testimony whereof, I hereunto set my hand

and affix the seal of the United States Board of
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Tax Appeals, at Washington, in the District of

Columbia, this 20th day of March, 1941.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE
Clerk,

United States Board of Tax

Appeals.

[49]

[Endorsed]: No. 9782. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Wilson

Brothers and Company (Wilson Bros. & Co.,) a

corporation, Petitioner, vs. Commissioner of In-

ternal Revenue, Respondent. Transcript of the Rec-

ord upon Petition to Review a Decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

Filed March 31, 1941.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.
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In The United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

No. 9782

B. T. A.

Docket No. 93668

WILSON BROTHERS AND COMPANY,
(Wilson Bros. & Co.,) a corporation.

Petitioner on Review,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent on Review.

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF DESIGNATION
OF CONTENTS OF RECORD AND STATE-
MENT OF POINTS FILED WITH THE
BOARD OF TAX APPEALS.

To the Honorable Justices of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit:

Notice is hereby given that the Petitioner on

Review in the above entitled proceedings hereby

adopts for the purposes of petition on review to the

above entitled court, the Designation of contents

of Record and Statement of Points filed with the

Clerk of the United States Board of Tax Appeals

in the above numbered proceedings on March 11,

1941.

Dated this 16th day of April, 1941.

ADOLPHUS E. CRAUPNER
LOUIS JANIN
Attorneys for the Above Named

Petitioner.

[Endorsed]: Filed April 17, 1941. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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Nos. 9781 and 9782

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Wilson Brothers and Company (Wil-

son Bros. & Co.) (a corporation),

Petitioner,

vs. r

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Respondent.

PETITIONER'S OPENING BRIEF.

I. THE STATUTORY PROVISIONS FOR JURISDICTION.

These consolidated appeals involve income taxes

and delinquency penalties for the taxable years 1932,

1933 and 1934, as follows:

Tax Delinquency Penalty Total

1932 $ 3,316.84 $ 165.84 $ 3,482.72

1933 15,724.73 786.24 16,510.97

1934 11,652.75 582.63 12,235.38

Totals $30,694.32 $1,534.71 $32,229.07

and are taken from the decisions of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals entered August 6, 1940. (R.

68, 231.)



Petitions were filed by Wilson Bros. & Co., the

petitioner herein with the United States Board of Tax

Appeals in each of the proceedings herein involved

within ninety days after the respective deficiency

notices were mailed to petitioner (R. 1, 203), viz.:

petition in Docket No. 83,397 was filed March 25, 1936,

that in Docket No. 93,667 was filed May 21, 1938.

The petitions for review m the two appeals in-

volved were filed with the United States Board of Tax

Appeals October 31, 1940 (R. 69, 232), pursuant to the

provisions of Sections 1141 and 1142 of the Internal

Revenue Code. The two cases were ordered consoli-

dated by this Court for purposes of record, briefing,

hearing and decision (R. 195, 250) with a complete

transcript of the record to be filed only in case No.

9781, which of itself only concerns the taxable year

1934. Therefore to be included in the decision by this

Court will be case No. 9782 which is printed in skele-

ton form in the Transcript (R. 195) and which in-

cludes the taxable years 1932 and 1933.

Orders enlarging time within which to transmit,

prepare and file the records on appeal in the two cases

were duly made by this Court and transmitted to the

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

Petitioner is a corporation organized luider the laws

of the State of Nevada, having, during the taxable

years involved, its offices in the City of Reno, Nevada,

and the City and County of San Francisco, California

(R. 33), and filed its income tax returns for all years

involved with the Collector of Internal Revenue, First

California District.



n. STATEMENT OF THE CASES.

The petitions involved apply only to such parts of

the decisions rendered as are covered by the herein-

after numbered issues stated in the memorandum re-

port or opinion of the United States Board of Tax

Appeals, viz.: Ill(a) and (c) (R. 37, 40), IV(a)

(R. 41), V (R. 54) and VI (R. 67). These bring be-

fore the Court the following questions: (1) The right

of petitioner to deduct amoimts charged off as partial

bad debts and deducted for the year 1934; (2) The

right of petitioner to deduction of additional deprecia-

tion on the steamship ''Idaho" for all three years;

(3) Whether petitioner is liable imder section 104 of

the Revenue Act of 1932 and section 102 of the Reve-

nue Act of 1934 for surtax for accumulation of sur-

plus; (4) Whether petitioner is liable for a five per

cent negligence penalty for each of the three years

under section 293(a) of the Revenue Acts of 1932 and

1934, and (5) Whether the Board by subdividing its

findings of fact to apply to separated issues and not

having general findings of fact which would apply to

all issues to which they were material did not grossly

err in its decisions. To the foregoing questions the

following statement of material facts will be confined.

m. STATEMENT OP FACTS.

1. Prior to the organization of petitioner and on

January 31, 1927, F. A. Wilson and W. T. Wilson

formed a copartnership to engage in the lumber and

shipping business under the name of Wilson Bros. &



Co., which continued to do business under that name
until after the formation of the petitioner corporation

with the same name, when said copartnership was

dissolved in January, 1929. (R. 23, 33.) The two

brothers had been continuously and actively engaged

in the lumber business since 1906. (R. 88.)

2. Petitioner, Wilson Bros. & Co. (erroneously

entitled as Wilson Brothers and Company in the de-

ficiency notices in the proceedings involved (R. 32)

is a corporation organized under the laws of the State

of Nevada, December 14, 1928, with office in Reno,

Nevada, and its principal office in San Francisco, Cali-

fornia, during the taxable years involved. The cor-

poration was organized by F. A. Wilson and W. T.

Wilson, brothers and partners in the above-described

partnership, with an authorized capital stock of

200,000 shares of a par value of $25.00 per share to

take over and continue the business of said copartner-

ship. Each of the brothers purchased 20 shares of

said capital stock, each paid the petitioner $500.00

therefor, and no other shares have ever been issued.

(R. 24, 33.)

3. During the taxable years petitioner kept its

books of account on the accrual system and filed in-

come tax returns with the Collector of Internal Reve-

nue for the First District of California. (R. 33, 89.)

4. Petitioner corporation was organized to take

over the business of the copartnership, to acquire, own

and operate timber lands, to engage in the logging

business, the manufacture and transportation of lum-

ber, the operation of steamships as a part of the



logging and lumber business, the buying and selling

of lumber, and engaging in the general lumber busi-

ness. (R. 35, 36, 55, 60, 88.)

5. There was never any intention on the part of

the two stockholders that the corporation was to be

organized as a holding investment company (R. 55,

60) or that it was to be availed of for the accumula-

tion of surplus or avoidance of surtax on the share-

holders. There was never any discussion between or

decision by the two stockholders concerning any ele-

ment of taxation as a reason for forming the corpora-

tion or its subsequent failure to pay dividends during

the years from its formation through the taxable years

involved. (R. 88, 103.)

6. When the corporation was formed the inflated

prosperity of late 1928 and early 1929 held sway and

petitioner's stockholders had great expectations for

petitioner's future. By July of 1929 the impending

crash of October, 1929, had so effected the lumber

industry that petitioner was forced to '4ay up" the

three steamships which it operated because their op-

eration ceased to be profitable. (R. 60, 94, 100.) How-

ever, at no time from the formation of the corpora-

tion through the taxable years involved did the stock-

holders abandon their plan to enlarge petitioner's busi-

ness by engaging in logging, lumbering, and shipping,

which required larger capital than that represented

by the net assets of petitioner. (R. 35, 36, 100-103.)

7. The books of account of petitioner were kept

on a simple basis and consisted of journal, ledger, sales

books and bank books. Instead of a cash book, bills



were sent out in duplicate and, when a customer paid,

one of the copies was kept by petitioner as a record of

payment. Such payments were entered in the ledger

and the payment was deposited in bank. This system

of accounting sufficiently reflected the business trans-

actions of the corporation to the satisfaction of the

stockholders. (R. 89, 117.) In the balance sheets made

up by the corporation, including those in the income

tax returns for the taxable years involved, the cash

on hand was incorrectly overstated and did not cor-

respond with the cash position shown in the ledger for

the years involved. (R. 90.) These differences between

the amounts shown in the ledger and in the balance

sheets, including those shown in the returns, arose

from a peculiar custom of the two stockholding

brothers. From year to year each of the brothers

without any consideration whatsoever therefor would

place in the cash box of the corporation an I.O.U.

for considerable and equal amounts and which they

considered the equivalent of cash and called ''cash".

Those I.O.U. 's did not represent any money borrowed

from the corporation and the purpose of putting them

into the cash box was to stimulate the brothers to pay

them up and produce ''a good sized corporation" and

at the same time to show (to themselves) large assets.

From time to time each of the brothers made contribu-

tions on the I.O.U 's. Such contributions were de-

posited in bank and the amounts were then entered in

the corporation's books. The existing I.O.U. 's were

then destroyed and new ones for smaller amounts were

inserted in their place. Such strange custom threw

the books of account out of balance with the cash



position shown on the trial balances on the income tax

returns and incorrectly indicated a large capital or

paid-in surplus in the hands of the corporation. The

misstatement of the cash position in the income tax

returns did not affect petitioner's taxable income or

earned surplus for the years involved in these cases.

(R. 91, 117.)

8. When the above-mentioned partnership was dis-

solved after the organization of petitioner corpora-

tion, the partners transferred all their interests in

the partnership, excepting accounts receivable and

payable, to petitioner. In addition, and over and

above the $1000.00 subscribed for shares of stock, the

two stockholders contributed assets consisting of cash,

stocks in domestic corporations, interests in steam-

ships, land buildings and furniture and fixtures, which,

with certain gifts to the corporation by their mother

(R. 27, 30, 93) had a book value of $696,000.00. (R.

181, Schedule K, Respondent's Exhibit A.) The

cash contributed was, with the exception of a small

amount required for operating expenses, used for the

purchase of securities.

9. The contributions in cash after the organiza-

tion of the corporation and down through the years

herein involved, were made in equal amounts by each

of the stockholders as follows : During the latter part

of 1929, $50,000.00; during January, 1930, $54,000.00;

and during 1931, $480,312.24, which the brothers had

on deposit in the San Francisco Bank. (R. 58, 62,

109.)

10. On the organization of petitioner corporation

Mary H. Wilson, the mother of F. A. Wilson and
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W. T. Wilson, donated to the corporation, without any

consideration to her, a 55/lOOths interest in the steam-

ship ^' Idaho" (R. 27, 43) and also a 10/32nds inter-

est in the steamship "Oregon". (R. 30, 45.) Both of

said donations were made on January 2, 1929. Each

of F. A. Wilson and W. T. Wilson individually owned

a 10/lOOths interest in the steamship ''Idaho" and

an ll/32nds interest in the steamship "Oregon" which

had not formed a part of the partnership assets but

were contributed by them to petitioner on January

2, 1929. (R. 93.) The value of these steamship in-

terests was set up on the books of the corporation at

$175,000.00. (R. 181.)

11. The history of the steamship "Idaho", until

the interests of Mary H. Wilson, F. A. Wilson and

W. T. Wilson passed to the petitioner corporation on

January 2, 1929, is set forth in paragraph 13 of the

Stipulations of Facts (R. 26) and is of importance

because of the issue relating to the proper amount of

depreciation to be allowed petitioner on the vessel.

When on February 16, 1917, Henry Wilson, husband

of Mary H. Wilson and father of F. A. Wilson and

W. T. Wilson, gave his wife a 20/lOOths interest in

the steamship and each of his sons a 5/lOOths interest,

the steamship had a fair market value of $395,000.00.

(16 B. T. A. 1284, Memorandum Opinion in these

proceedings, R. 48.) In 1917 the fair market value

of a fractional interest in a vessel was its propor-

tionate part of that of the total value. (R. 48, 106.)

12. In addition to owning the steamship interests

mentioned above, petitioner managed and was disburs-



ing and collection agent for the steamship ''Svea".

(R. 38, 39.)

13. During the taxable years involved petitioner

carried on and conducted its lumber business to such

extent as could be done under the conditions resulting

from the economic and financial depression existing

during said years. (R. 56, 88, 102.)

14. Petitioner corporation declared no dividends

during the taxable years 1932, 1933 and 1934 herein

involved because the profits of the petitioner were not

believed to be sufficient to warrant dividends, were

desired for future expansion purposes, and the value

of its assets, as compared with the costs thereof, were

impaired. (R. 101.) The failure to declare dividends

was not because of a plan by the brothers to avoid in-

dividual taxes. (R. 103.) The two stockholders and

officers of the corporation, F. A. Wilson, president,

and W. T. Wilson, secretary-treasurer, drew no

salaries, for the same reasons they did not have peti-

tioner pay dividends. (R. 61.)

15. The assets and particularly the securities were

being conserved because the two stockholders had

never abandoned their original idea of enlarging the

business by re-entering the logging, lumbering and

milling business, which according to their estimate

would require fully a million and a half dollars. (R.

101, 102.) The securities were acquired and held by

the corporation in order to have liquid assets which

would enable them to raise cash quickly and buy any-

thing the stockholders selected for the enlargement of

their business. (R. 102.)
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16. During the year 1934 petitioner claimed cer-

tain deductions for partially worthless debts, which

it charged off on the direct write-off method in the

total of $15,144.40, as follows:

Woodhead Lumber Company of California $5,000.00

Steamship '

' Svea '

'

4,644.40

Kentucky Fuel and Gas Corporation bonds 5,500.00

These deductions were denied in part III of the

memorandum opinion. (R. 32, 37, 94.)

(a) The partial write-off and claimed deduction

of $5000.00 as a partially worthless bad debt of the

Woodhead Lumber Company of California resulted

after the corporation had transferred its going busi-

ness ,to another corporation and had remaining assets

of such dubious character and value that, after in-

vestigation made by the Secretary-Treasurer of peti-

tioner, it was determined that at least $5000.00 of the

debt owing petitioner could not be recovered. (R. 95.)

(b) In 1933 petitioner wrote off as a partial bad

debt owing from the owners of the wooden steamship

''Svea" the amount of $2160.80 and in 1934 it simi-

larly wrote off the amount of $4644.40, which amounts

were claimed respectively as deductions in petition's

returns for the years mentioned. The petitioner

owned no interest in the ''Svea" but was managing,

disbursing and collection agent therefor. On January

1, 1933, accounts receivable from the "Svea"

amounted to $9081.78 and on January 1, 1934, to

$10,804.01. The vessel was owned by many small

owners who expected petitioner to make the necessary

advances to keep the boat in condition to be main-
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tained in condition, which it was bound to do and did.

Petitioner could anticipate repayment only from

earning or recovery from the many owners. As the

vessel had not been operated for several years there

were no earnmgs from which to recoup and in 1933

their attorney advised them that a suit to recover

would be inadvisable, while in 1934 it appeared that

the vessel could not be placed in operation for some

time. (R. 38.)

(N. B. While petitioner admits that the ac-

counts receivable from the ''Svea" were not

proven deductible for normal income tax pur-

poses it will later contend that such accounts must

be reduced by their actual value in determining

the amoimt of petitioner's earned surplus and an-

nual earnings available for dividends.)

(c) On January 1, 1934, petitioner was the owner

of first lien s.f. 6% A Bonds of the Kentucky Fuel

and Gas Corporation due 1942, having a par value of

$43,000.00 acquired as follows

:

$18,000.00 par value acquired before January 1, 1932

at a cost of $9,000.00

$15,000.00 par value acquired during the year 1932

at a cost of — . 450.00

$10,000.00 par value acquired during the year 1933

at a cost of 20.00

$43,000.00 total par value having a cost on January

1, 1934, of $9,470.00

(R. 127, 170.) On December 31, 1934, when the peti-

tioner wrote off the amount of $5500.00 as a partially

bad debt on account of said bonds and thereafter
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claimed that amount as a deduction in its income tax

return for the year 1934, the market quotations on

the basis of a $100.00 bond as of December 31, 1934,

show $4.50 bid and $6.00 asked. (R. 128.) At that

time the company was in receivership and it appeared

that petitioner would at least take a loss in the

amount charged-off. (R. 96.) At December 31, 1934

on "bid basis", the bonds were worth only $1935.00

and on an ''asked" basis they were worth $2580.00,

while, on the value for partial deduction taken by

petitioner there remained as an asset value for said

bonds the amount of $3970.00, which was in excess of

both the "bid" and "asked" valuations.

17. During the taxable years involved, for which

the Board of Tax Appeals held that petitioner was

availed of for the purpose of preventing imposition of

surtax upon its shareholders (R. 67), W. T. Wilson

paid about $150.00 Federal mcome tax in 1932 and

none in 1933 and 1934, while F. A. Wilson, the other

stockholder, paid no tax for any of the three years.

(R. 59.)

IV. SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS RELIED UPON.

Errors are specified in abbreviated form in the

order in which they were assigned in the petitions for

review of the two proceedings before the United

States Board of Tax Appeals (R. 69, 232) and are

arranged to cover in one statement the errors alleged

to warrant review and partial reversal of the deci-

sions of the Board based upon the consolidated re-
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port or memorandum opinion of the Board (R. 31)

for the three taxable years involved, viz.

:

1. The Board erred in failing to find and deter-

mine that the $43,276.06 account receivable due from

the Woodhead Lumber Co. of California was im-

paired during the year 1934 in the amount of

$5000.00, as charged off and deducted by petitioner

for said year as a partial bad debt, and that petitioner

was entitled to a deduction for said year of said

$5000.00. (R. 73, 237.)

2. The Board erred in failing to find and deter-

mine that the cost of bonds of the Kentucky Fuel Gas

Corporation owned by petitioner was impaired in

value during the year 1934 in the amount of $5500.00,

as charged off and deducted by petitioner for said

year as a partial bad debt, and that petitioner was

entitled to a deduction for said year of said amoimt

of $5500.00. (R. 74, 237.)

3. The Board erred in failing to find and deter-

mine that petitioner was entitled to deduct for each

of the three taxable years involved the amount of

$6100.77 per annum for depreciation on the steam-

ship ^' Idaho" and to allow a value as a basis of de-

preciation from January 1, 1932, in the amount of

$91,337.78. It further erred in failing to allow peti-

tioner, as a part of the basis of depreciation of said

steamship "Idaho" from January 1, 1932, the

amount of $79,000.00 as the fair market value of a

twenty per cent interest therein given to Mary H.

Wilson on February 6, 1917, by her husband, when

said steamship had a total fair market value of
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$395,000.00, which said twenty per cent interest was

donated to petitioner by said Mary H. Wilson on

January 2, 1929. (R. 75, 238.)

4. The Board erred in finding and determining

with respect to all of the taxable years involved and

without discrimination or distinction between and

contrary to the circumstances and facts relating to

the several years 1932, 1933 and 1934 that petitioner

was availed of in each of said taxable years for the

purpose of preventing imposition of surtax upon its

shareholders through the medium of permitting its

gains and profits to accumulate instead of being

divided or distributed. The Board erred in determin-

ing that for the taxable years 1932 and 1933 peti-

tioner w^as liable for the respective amounts of

$3316.84 and $14,224.80 as surtaxes for the alleged ac-

cumulation of surplus during each of said years con-

trary to the provisions of section 104(a) of the

Revenue Act of 1932. It further erred in detennining

that for the taxable year 1934 petitioner was liable

for the amount of $9740.70 as a surtax for the alleged

accumulation of surplus contrary to the provisions of

section 102(a) of the Revenue Act of 1934. (R. 75,

76, 239, 240.)

5. The Board erred m finding and determining

that for each of the taxable years involved petitioner

was liable for a five percentum negligence penalty

under section 293(a) of the Revenue Acts of 1932

and 1934. (R. 77, 240.)

6. The Board erred in not making its findings

of fact comprehensive and general so that, where
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material, they would apply equally to and be adequate

for the proper determination of all the issues in-

volved. The Board further erred in separating and

severing its findings of fact under separate and in-

dependent issues in its report or memorandum
opinion and thus making facts of material general

import applicable only to one issue when they should

have been made applicable to other issues to which

they were also material. (R. 78, 241.)

7. The Board erred in intermingling findings of

facts, conclusions of fact and conclusions of law in

the several subdivisions of its report or memorandum
opinion so as to render the decisions based thereon

arbitrary and erroneous in law and fact. (R. 79, 242.)

8. The Board erred in not making its findings of

fact and conclusions of law conform to the evidence.

(R. 79, 242.)

V. ARGUMENT OF THE CASES.

1. THE BOARD ERRED IN DETERMINING THAT PETITIONER
WAS NOT ENTITLED TO DEDUCT FROM THE ACCOUNT
RECEIVABLE DUE IT FROM THE WOODHEAD LUMBER CO.

OF CALIFORNIA THE AMOUNT OF $5000.00 AS A PARTIAL
BAD DEBT WHICH IT HAD WRITTEN OFF AND DEDUCTED
FOR THE TAXABLE YEAR 1934.

The partial write off made and deduction claimed

against the Woodhead Lumber Co. of California in

the amount $5000.00 for the year 1934 was disposed

of in the deficiency notice by the following explana-

tion :-

*'2. The bad debts have been disallowed in

accordance with section 23 (k) of the Revenue
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Act of 1934 for the reason no evidence has been

submitted to establish the worthlessness thereof

and no permission has been granted you to

change from the actual bad debt basis elected in

prior years to the reserve basis." (R. 17.)

The second clause of the explanation refers to re-

spondent's claim that the partial deduction was not

a write-off but a transfer to a reserve for bad debts,

which transfer could not be made without permission

granted by the Commissioner. (Regulations 86, Art.

23(k)-l-(2).) However, this part of respondent's ex-

planation and claim is entirely erased by the report

or memorandum opinion of the Board wherein it is

found that :

'

' The petitioner was on the actual charge-

off method of deducting bad debts" (R. 37), and

consequently did not use the method of transfer to

reserves for bad debts.

Section 23 (k) of the Revenue Act of 1934 which

relates to the deduction from gross income of bad

debts, reads as follows:

*'(k) Bad Debts—Debts ascentained to be

worthless and charged off in the taxable year
* * *; and when satisfied that a debt is recover-

able only in pai^, the Commissioner may allow

such debt, in an amount not in excess of the part

charged off within the taxable year, as a deduc-

tion."

The allowance by the Commissioner of the partial

deduction of a bad debt is to be found in Regula-

tions 86, Art. 23(k)-l-(2) where it is provided.:

^'If all the surrounding and attending cir-

cumstances indicate that a debt is worthless,
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either wholly or in part, the amount which is

worthless and is charged off or written down to

a nominal amount on the books of the taxpayer

shall he allowed as a deduction in computing net

income." (Italics supplied.)

With regard to the deduction of $5000.00 as a par-

tially worthless debt of the Woodhead Lumber Co. of

California, it may be said that that part of the report

or memorandum opinion which refers thereto (R. 37,

38) is confused, incorrect, and erroneous. The uncon-

tradicted facts which show this follow.

On January 1, 1934, and throughout that year,

petitioner had accounts receivable from the Wood-
head Lumber Co. of California amounting to

$43,276.06. On December 31, 1934, petitioner wrote-

off $5000.00 of the total accounts receivable from that

company as a partial loss and in its income tax re-

turn for 1934 deducted that amount from its gross in-

come as a partial bad debt. (R. 37.)

In 1932 the Woodhead Lumber Co. of Nevada

bought the inventory and some of the physical assets

of the Woodhead Lumber Co. of California in con-

sideration of its promissory note for $25,000.00 and,

as collateral, $37,000.00 par value of its capital stock.

The California corporation turned over to petitioner

as security for its indebtedness of $43,276.06 the note

for $25,000.00, secured by $37,000.00 par value stock

of the Nevada corporation, which stock petitioner did

not believe to have a value of $37,000.00. (R. 38, 39.)

The face value of the $25,000.00 note only may be

considered as the maximum value of the pledge.
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During 1934 the secretary-treasurer of petitioner

went to Los Angeles and went over the books and

affairs of the Woodhead Lumber Co. of California to

ascertain its financial condition. He found that books

of the company disclosed that ''it was in very bad

shape"; that there was a heavy mortgage on the as-

sets; that there was a bond issue of about $200,000.00

on a specific piece of land and that the bonds and

interest rights preceded those of general creditors, of

which petitioner was one ; that the improvements and

lumber business of the corporation were located on

rental property which was held on a month to month

basis and that if the corporation was thrown off that

property the improvements thereon would become

practically worthless; and that the balance of the

assets of the corporation consisted of accounts re-

ceivable which he judged ''were no good". After care-

ful examination of the books of the California cor-

poration, the secretary-treasurer of petitioner deter-

mined that with the best advantage to that corpora-

tion, petitioner would lose at least $5000.00 and there-

fore wrote that amount off the corporation's books in

1934 as being a reasonable deduction for partial loss.

Petitioner never recovered the $5000.00 which it de-

ducted, and the affairs of the Woodhead Lumber Co.

of California continued to grow steadily worse. (R.

95.)

The foregoing supplies the evidence of partial

worthlessness which respondent apparently lacked or

never sought when he made his explanation of

reasons for denying the deduction. (Supra.) Other

than that statement in the deficiency notice, there is



19

no plea or proof of defense of respondent's denial of

the deduction.

Conceding that the promissory note of the Nevada

corporation which had been turned over to petitioner

by the California corporation as security was worth

its face value, the status of the account receivable of

petitioner from the California corporation in 1934

was as follows:

Accounts receivable, Woodhead Lumber Co. of

California $43,276.06

Unpaid promissory note for $25,000.00 as security. . . . 25,000.00

Balance due petitioner, unsecured $18,276.06

With the California corporation shown by the un-

controverted evidence recited above to be in a hope-

less financial condition, the deduction of $5000.00, less

one-third of the $18,276.06, may not be deemed to be

an unreasonable write-off and deduction for a par-

tially worthless bad debt. Petitioner has made proof

of the '* surrounding and attending circumstances"

which indicated that the debt of the Woodhead Lum-

ber Co. of California was partially worthless within

the intendment of Regulations 86, Art. 23(k)-l-(2)

(supm) and respondent did not introduce a single

item of evidence to prove the contrary. All that re-

spondent did was to attempt to confuse the issues by

injecting the dealings of petitioner with the Wood-

head Lumber Co. of Nevada. Over this confusion the

deciding member of the Board of Tax Appeals seems

to have stumbled and made his erroneous decision.

Under part III (a) of the report or memorandum
opinion, the Board (R. 37) apparently finds that
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there were two deductions sought on the accounts

receivable from the Woodhead Lumber Co. of Cali-

fornia: (1) $15,144.40 and (2) $5000.00. This is a

confusion, for only $5000.00 was sought as a deduc-

tion. (R. 95.) It is next found that petitioner was on

the actual charge-off method instead of the reserve

method of deducting bad debts. (R. 37.) These deter-

minations entirely defeat the Commissioner's reasons

set forth in the deficiency notice (supra) for disallow-

ing the deductions.

The next finding is that petitioner caused an ex-

amination of the affairs of the Woodhead Lumber Co.

of California and from resulting disclosures reached

the conclusion in 1934 that $5000.00 would be a

reasonable amount to write-off and take as a deduc-

tion for such alleged partial debt during the year

1934 and such was taken. (R. 37.) There is no finding

that the examination made by petitioner was super-

ficial, or that the conclusion reached was unsound, or

that the conclusion was not supported and sustained

by the examination. (R. 37.) Under such conditions

and upon such findings petitioner was entitled to the

naturally consequent finding that the $5000.00 was

deductible.

Mooch Electric Supply Co. v. Commissioner,

41 B. T. A. 1209, 1211.

The findings and conclusions then fall into the con-

fusion raised by respondent at the trial as a smoke-

screen of defense. Apparently on the sole groimd that

petitioner was doing business with the Woodhead

Lumber Company of Nevada it is fomid that the

worthlessness of the debt of the Woodhead Lumber
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Co. of California, an entirely different entity, has not

been shown. (R. 38.) The worthlessness of the debt of

the California corporation is a matter separate, its

solvency is something- apart, and the Board erred in

considering anything; concerning the Nevada corpora-

tion in denying the deduction to petitioner.

The finding and determination of the Board on this

issue is not supported by the facts and is clearly

erroneous. As stated in Clark v. Commissioner, 85

Fed. (2d) 622, 624, (C. C. A. 3.)

^'A taxpayer is expected to be reasonable and
honest, but the taxing act does not require him to

be an incorrigible optimist; * * * neither should

he be 'unduly pessimistic' when claiming deduc-

tions for bad debts. He 'must make a reasonable

investigation of the facts and draw a reasonable

inference from the information thus obtain-

able '.''

The facts show that the petitioner met every require-

ment of his rule and the determination of the Com-
missioner and the re-determination of the Board

should be reversed.

2. THE BOARD ERRED IN DETERMINING THAT PETITIONER
WAS NOT ENTITLED TO DEDUCT THE AMOUNT OF
$5500.00 AS A PARTIAL LOSS OR BAD DEBT RESULTING
FROM DEPRECIATION IN VALUE OF BONDS OF THE
KENTUCKY FUEL GAS CORPORATION OWNED BY PETI-
TIONER AND WHICH IT HAD WRITTEN OFF AND DE-
DUCTED FOR THE TAXABLE YEAR 1934.

The explanation for the denial of tlie deduction

found in the deficiency notice and the statutory and

regulation provisions applicable are quoted at the
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opening of the argument on the preceding point, and

will not be repeated.

The gist of the denial of the deduction found in the

memorandum opinion of the Board (R. 41) is stated

as follows:
'

' The record does not show when or from whom
the bonds were acquired, the cost, nor whether in

1934 there was a basis for partial charge-off

which did not exist in 1933 or earlier."

This premise for affirmation of the Commissioner's

denial of the deduction is in part erroneous and in

part immaterial assumption, (a) The record does

show ''when" the bonds were acquired as far as nec-

essary for the purpose of partial deduction: viz.

$18,000.00 par value bonds were acquired before Jan-

uary 1, 1932 ; during 1932 $15,000.00 par value bonds

were acquired, and during 1933 $10,000.00 par value

bonds were acquired. All that is material as to date

of acquisition, viz.: acquisition before 1934, is shown

in the record. (R. 127, 170.)

(b) ''From whom the bonds were acquired" is

entirely immaterial. Such information would not and

could not in any way affect the cost, 1934 worth, or

depreciated value of the bonds.

(c) "The cost" of the bonds is shown by the

record (R. 127) at a total of $9470.00.

(d) "Whether in 1934 there was a basis for par-

tial charge-off which did not exist in 1933 or earlier"

is not material to the allowance of a partial charge-off

and deduction in 1934. The uncollectible portion of a

debt not wholly worthless may be charged off at any
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time. The rule which is applicable to a total charge-

ofl and deduction does not apply to a partial write-off

and deduction.

Moock Electric Supply Co. v. Commissioyier

,

1209, 1211.

To close its argument to deny the partial deduction

by petitioner on the partial worthlessness of the

Kentucky Ftiel Gas Corporation bonds in 1934 and to

sustain the Commissioner the memorandum opinion

cites the bid prices on the bond for only a portion

of the years from January 1, 1930 to December 31,

1934, using a fragment of the evidence and ignoring

the remainder to bolster its conclusion that there was

no error. (R. 41.)

The market values of the bonds were taken from

the Bank and Quotation Record (R. 128) and were

as follows:

Bid Asked

January 1, 1930 $74.00 $79.00

December 31, 1930 35.00 45.00

December 31, 1931 5.00 7.00

December 31, 1932 1.25 4.00

December 31, 1933 2.00 4.00

December 31, 1934 4.50 6.00

December 31, 1935 8.00

December 31, 1936 18.50

November 30, 1937 8.00

When we subtract the bid figures for any of the years

from the cost of the bonds to the petitioner we find

in each year a balance in excess of the partial deduc-

tion sought by petitioner. How then may the Board

select any one year, particularly the year 1934, and
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determine which year was the proper one in which

to take a partial deduction, or to say that 1934 was

not the proper year.

This decision of the Board was made despite prior

declarations by it of the rights of a taxpayer, viz.

:

*'The ascertainment, under the statute, of par-

tial or (total) worthlessness of a debt is obvi-

ously for the petitioner, in the exercise of his

best judgment, first to make. Billon Supply Co.,

20 B. T. A. 404, 409. The facts and circumstances

surrounding the petitioner's decision should

establish it as that of a prudent person of sound
judgment. Anna Bissell, 23 B. T. A. 572, 578."

(Italics in text supplied.)

Henry A. Hunting v. Commissioner, 32 B. T.

A. 495, 500.

Furthermore, the finding of no proof was made in

the face of uncontradicted testimony of the secretary-

treasurer of the corporation that ''We made the

charge-off because the company went into a receiver-

ship and we would not recover the full amount but

would take a loss in the amount charged off. I made

an investigation through the people who issued the

bonds and that was their opinion. I had a list of the

assets and liabilities of the corporation and in study-

ing the balance sheet it appeared that 'there (were)

certain assets that were O. K. and that there would

be some recovery due -to that fact.' I discussed the

matter with my brother, the other stockholder in the

corporation, and we reached the determination that

the situation of the Kentucky Fuel & Gas Corpora-

tion looked pretty bad and that the amount of
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$5500.00 should be written off as there was no way

to set it back." (R. 96.)

The foregoing quotation from the record, which

was not disputed or overcome by any evidence offered

by respondent, clearly shows that petitioner complied

with the rule adopted by the Board and cited in

Huntiyig v. Commissioner, supra.

The only real attempt of respondent to overcome

the position assumed by petitioner in deducting the

$5500.00 on account of the partial worthlessness of

the first sinking fund 6^/0% bonds of 1942 of the

Kentucky Fuel Gas Corporation bonds which peti-

tioner owned, was to bring out on cross examination

the bid and asked prices on the coi^poration's de-

bentures 6%s of 1938, an entirely different security

from that owned by petitioner. (R. 129.) If this testi-

mony is relative or material to the issue involved, it

certainly confirms the judgement of petitioner's

officers in determining to make the partial write-off

and deduction, because it shows a static condition for

1932, 1933 and 1934 of nothing bid and $2.00 asked

for such securities.

An accountant testifying for the petitioner stated

that in his opinion that a substantial loss of value of

the bonds had occurred. Also, that because the bonds

owned by petitioner were the senior issue and con-

tained a sinking fund provision, the market quota-

tions were a very definite index of the extent of the

impairment of actual value, that is, the amount col-

lectible on such bonds. He further testified that good

accounting practice required the write-off of the cost
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of these bonds by at least the amount of $5500.00

claimed as a deduction. (R. 127-128.)

It appears that the memorandmn opinion (R. 41)

apparently assumes that a further downward change

in market value of the bonds was necessary in 1934

in order to warrant the partial write-off and deduc-

tion. This assumption is contrary to the rule applic-

able to partial deductions as adopted by the Board

and the courts, viz.:

''And nothing seems to be better settled than

the partial worthlessness, as distingiiished from
total uncollectibility, is a ground for deduction

which may be pursued or relinquished by a tax-

payer entirely at his option. If he fails to take a

deduction for partial worthlessness in any year,

it does not have the effect of foreclosing him

from a relicmce upon different developments at

another time. Blair v. Commissioner, 91 Fed.

(2d) 992 (C. C. A. 2d Cir.) ; See American Ciga-

rette & Cigar Co. v. Bowers, 92 Fed. (2d) 596

(C. C. A. 2nd Cir.) ; Freeman-Dent-Sullivan Co.

V. United States, 21 Fed. Supp. 972; G. C. M.
18525, 1937-1 C. B. 80, 82." (Italics in text

supplied.)

Mooch Electric Supply Co. v. Commissioner,

41 B. T. A. 1209, 1211.

In view of the foregoing it is respectfully submitted

that part III(c) of the report or memorandum

opinion of the Board 'is subject to unqualified re-

versal.
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3. THE BOARD ERRED IN FAILING TO FIND AND DETER-

MINE THAT PETITIONER WAS ENTITLED TO DEDUCT FOR
EACH OF THE THREE TAXABLE YEARS INVOLVED THE
AMOUNT OF $6100.77 PER ANNUM FOR DEPRECIATION ON
THE STEAMSHIP "IDAHO" AND TO ALLOW A VALUE AS
A BASIS OF DEPRECIATION FROM JANUARY 1, 1932, IN

THE AMOUNT OF $91,337.78.

This issue involves part IV of the report or

memorandum opinion of the Board of Tax Appeals

(R. 41) and involves but a single question of law. The

Board held that the basis of petitioner's 75% interest

in the Steamship Idaho, acquired by tranfers to it in

1929 was to be determined for purposes of deprecia-

tion as follows:

10/]00ths transferred by F. A. and W. T. Wilson. . . $ 39,500.00

10/lOOths purchased by above brothers and trans-

ferred to petitioner 11,716.67

35/lOOths transferred by Mary H. Wilson 70,000.00

20/lOOths transferred by Mary H. Wilson 40,000.00

Giving petitioner a total basis (unadjusted) of $161,216.67

The Board further held that the adjustment for de-

preciation allowed or allowable, with respect to the

foregoing interests, was $108,750.00, resulting in an

adjusted basis on January 1, 1932 of $52,466.67. (R.

47-51.) As petitioner is in accord with, the Board's

determination on this issue in all respects, except as

to the basis applicable to the 20/lOOths interest ac-

quired by Mary IT. Wilson as a gift from her husband

February 16, 1917, and transferred by her to peti-

tioner in January, 1929, detailed facts applicable to

the other interests will be omitted.

The parties are in agreement that the adjusted

basis as of January 1, 1932 is subject to a depreciation
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allowance of 6%%, on a fifteen year remaining use-

ful life. The Board's figures, supra, result in an annual

allowance of $3497.77 as compared to petitioner's

present claim (less than claimed before the Board)

of $6097.77.

The dispute as to the basis of the 20/lOOths interest

transferred by Mary H. Wilson to Petitioner in 1929

is dependent upon the effect to be accorded vSection

113 of the Revenue Act of 1928. The facts applicable

to the question are stated briefly:

On February 6, 1917, Mary H. Wilson was given

a 20/lOOths interest in the
'

' Idaho '

'. This interest had

a cost of $40,000.00 but on that date had an admitted

fair market value of $79,000.00. (R. 48-50.) On Janu-

ary 2, 1929, she contributed this interest to petitioner.

Respondent claims the basis to petitioner to be the cost

to Mary H. Wilson's donor, or $40,000.00. Petitioner

claims the basis to be market value as of February 6,

1917, or $79,000.00. (R. 47-50.)

The Board erroneously quotes and relies solely

upon section 113(a)(2) of the Revenue Act of 1932

in making its determination upon this point. (R. 50.)

As the transfer was made by Mary H. Wilson in

January, 1929, the Revenue Act of 1932 has no appli-

cation. However, the Revenue Act of 1928, provides

the applicable statutory provisions and from that we

quote.

Section 113(a)(2) of the Revenue Act of 1928

provides

:

''If the property was acquired by gift after

December 31, 1920, the basis shall be the same as
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it would be in the hands of the donor or the last

preceding owner by whom it was not acquired

by gifts. * * *"

Section 113(a)(4) of the Revenue Act of 1928,

which is highly important and which the Board en-

tirely ignores, reads, as far as material, as follows:

"If the property was acquired hy gift or

transfer in trust hefore December 31, 1920, the

basis shall be the fair market value of such

pi'-operty at the time of such acqtdsition/'

(Italics supplied.)

These subsections find their inception in Section

202(a) of the Revenue Act of 1921, which Section, in

so far as material, provides:

''(2) In the case of such property acquired

by gift after December 31, 1920, the basis shall

be the same as that which it would have in the

hands of the donor or the last preceding owner
by whom it was not acquired by gift. * * *"*******
"In the case of such property acquired by gift

on or before December SI, 1920, the basis * * *

shall be the fair market value of such property

at the time of such acquisition." (Italics sup-

plied.)

The second paragraph of the quotations from sec-

tion 202 (a) (2) was put into the act to specify ex-

isting law. Seideman's Legislative History, 784, 785.

Therefore the basis of the 20/lOOths interest of the

Idaho, from Februaiy 6, 1917 until Mary H. Wilson

parted with it was clearl}^ its value on February 6,

1917, i.e., $79,000.00.
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Section 202(a)(2) of the Revenue Act of 1921 was

adopted in order to prevent tax evasion. The evasion

in question was the result of a simple expedient. A
man who had property with a low basis to himself

would not sell it when its value was high, he would

give it to his wife and she would sell the property. If

he had sold it he would have been taxed with the gain.

Because the wife's gain was only the difference be-

tween the value at the time of the gift and what she

received on the sale (practically no difference) and

the transaction escaped tax.

Seideman's Legislative History, 784, 785.

The purpose of the amendment was to prevent

future evasion. An unsuccessful attempt was made to

make the rule retroactive to all gifts after February

28, 1913. The amendment as adopted left the basis of

property in the hands of existing donees exactly as it

had been before, and did so deliberately.

Seideman's Legislative History, 785.

With this legislative history and purpose in mind

it becomes pertinent to consider the language of Sec-

tion 113(a)(2) of the Revenue Act of 1928, quoted

supra. The section provides that the basis ''shall be

the same as it would be in the hands of the donor or

the last preceding owner by ivhom it wa^s not acquired

by gift.''

If this section ended with the word donor, peti-

tioner's contention would clearly be correct, without

consideration of section 113 (a) (4). If it did not

contain the words ''the donor" respondent's inter-

pretation would have to be sustained, if section
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113(a)(4) could be discarded. But the statute actu-

ally contains both expressions, and it must be as-

sumed that their inclusion was deliberate rather than

accidental, particularly in view of the expressed pur-

pose of the amendment.

If Congress meant that m all cases the basis would

be the same as that of the last preceding owner by

whom it was not acquired by gift it would have left

out the words ''the donor" and the congressional in-

tent would be explicit in the language. What was

very definitely intended was that the basis of future

gifts would not be changed by the making of the gift.

It intended only a prospective application of the

amendment, not a retrospective application that would

change the existing basis.

The addition of the last paragraph in section

202(a)(2) quoted above and its perpetuation in sec-

tion 113(a)(4) quoted above (which the Board has

completely ignored), proves the argument made above.

The absurdity of the construction contended for by

respondent may be simply illustrated. Let us assume

that the gift to Mary H. Wilson was made four years

earlier, on February 6, 1913. Let us further assume

that there has been many earlier gifts of the same

property, and that the last preceding owner who had

paid a full consideration had purchased it in 1800 for

$10.00, and that the petitioner sells it in 1942 for

$300,000.00. Can the Commissioner ignore the value

of the property on February 6, 1913, or March 1, 1913

in measuring taxable income ? Under the construction

which respondent urges he would be required to find

a taxable gain of $299,990.00.



32

Such a construction is directly opposed to the intent

of the words used, the purpose of Congress in enact-

ing the amendment, and the meaning of the word '^in-

come". If the statute means what respondent con-

tends it to mean, it is so capricious, illogical, retroac-

tive and unreasonable that it is violative of the Fifth

and Sixteenth Amendments to the Constitution.

4. THE BOARD ERRED IN DETERMINING THAT PETITIONER
WAS AVAILED OF IN THE TAXABLE YEARS FOR THE
PURPOSE OF PREVENTING IMPOSITION OF SURTAX UPON
ITS SHAREHOLDERS THROUGH THE MEDIUM OF PER-

MITTING ITS GAINS AND PROFITS TO ACCUMULATE IN-

STEAD OF BEING DIVIDED OR DISTRIBUTED.

No evidence exists in support of the Board's opin-

ion on this issue. All of the evidence supports the

business reasons for the failure to pay dividends. In-

controvertible evidence supports the disbelieved posi-

tive testimony that the purpose was not to avoid tax

on the shareholders. No reason exists for the disbelief

of the testimony. The Board's opinion on this issue

is arbitrary and irrational.

The Board's decision relates to sections 104(a) of

the Revenue Acts of 1932 and 102(a) of the Revenue

Act of 1934 which read respectively as follows

:

"Sec. 104. Accumulation of Surplus to Evade

Surtaxes.

(a) If any corporation, however created or

organized, is formed or availed of for the purpose

of preventing the imposition of the surtax upon

its shareholders through the medium of per-

mitting its gains and profits to accumulate instead

of being divided or distributed, there shall be
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levied, collected, and paid for each taxable year

upon the net income of such corporation a tax

equal to 50 per centum of the amount thereof,

which shall be in addition to the tax imposed by
section 13 and shall be computed, collected and

paid upon the same basis and in the same manner
and subject to the same provisions of law, includ-

ing penalties, as that tax."

"Sec. 102. Surtax on Corporations Improperly

Accumulating Surplus.

(a) Imposition of Tax. There shall be levied,

collected, and paid for each taxable year upon the

adjusted net income of every corporation (other

than a personal holding the company as defined

in section 351) if such corporation, however

created or organized, is formed or availed of for

the purpose of preventing the imposition of the

surtax upon its shareholders or the shareholders

of any other corporation, through the medium of

permitting its gains and profits to accimiulate in-

stead of being divided or distributed, a surtax

equal to the sum of the following

:

(a) 25 per centum of the amount of the ad-

justed net income not in excess of $100,000. plus

(b) 35 per centum of the amount of the ad-

justed net income in excess of $100,000.
'

'

While the two sections above quoted differ in their

wording, their purpose is the same.

The Board determined "that the corporation" (peti-

tioner) "was not FORMED for the purpose inter-

dicted by the above sections". (R. 60.) Therefore the

issue before the Court is on the alternative: "Was
the corporation AVAILED OF during 1932, 1933 and
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1934 for the purpose of preventing imposition of sur-

tax upon its two stockholders through the medium of

permitting its gains and profits to aecumuhite instead

of being divided or distributed?" (R. 61.)

Before discussing the "purpose" of the corporation

and the findings of the Board in relation thereto, we

desire to call the attention of the Court to the very

peculiar arrangement of the report or memorandum

decision so that findings are isolated under discussion

and determination of certain issues and eliminated

where they may be material to the consideration and

determination of other issues, such as the one being

discussed. This feature constitutes grievous error

and, except by condoning the commission of such error,

the Board cannot be sustained in its determination

that petitioner is liable for surtaxes.

After making general findings as to the formation

of a copartnership by F. A. Wilson and W. T. Wilson

imder the name of Wilson Bros. & Co. on January

31, 1927, and the organization of a corporation under

the same name by the two partners on December 14,

1928, the report or memorandum opinion, after stat-

ing that certain issues had been settled by stipulation,

declares

:

"The other issues will be considered in the order

above set forth, the facts, except the general facts

as to incorporation stated above, being set forth

sepmxitely in connection with discussion of each

issue." (R. 33.) (Italics supplied.)

Thus no matter how material a finding of fact may

be, it is not to be considered, says the Board, in the
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determination of any other issue, unless re-found as

applicable to such other issue. A declaration such as

this, if sustained, means that a Board or Court can

use or exclude testimony and evidence to suit its own

purposes or that the j)etitioner or plaintiff must an-

ticipate what the Board or Court may deem the issues

and re-offer his testimony and evidence as being ap-

plicable in part or in whole to each of the several and

specific issues involved. Such a situation is inconceiv-

able, particularly in tax proceedings where the Com-

missioner's determinations are presumed to be prima

facie correct and the burden of proof is placed on the

taxpayer.

The findings made by the Board '^as material" to

the present issue are insufficient, omit important facts,

and engage in error. Therefore, we will restate the

material facts to accord wdth the several material find-

ings made by the Board and the uncontradicted evi-

dence applicable to all issues.

Petitioner was organized on December 14, 1928, by

F. A. Wilson and W. T. Wilson to continue the busi-

ness of the partnership. (General Finding, R. 33.) A
partnership which was not engaged in logging or

manufacturing lumber and owned no ships. (Special

findings in issues II and III, R. 36, 43, 45.) Peti-

tioner was organized to engage in the business of

logging, manufacture, purchase, sale and transporta-

tion of lumber, and operation of steamships. (Special

finding on issue V, R. 55.) The two stockholders had

been continuously and actively engaged in the lumber

business since 1906 (R. 88) and organized the cor-
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poration to engage in a much enlarged endeavor. The

steamers "Oregon" and "Idaho" were acquired in

January, 1929, were operated by the petitioner for

about six; months and were then laid up, and had not

again been put into operation at the close of the

taxable years. (Special finding on issue Y, R. 56.)

The steamers were acquired by petitioner in January,

1929 principally for the purpose of transporting lum-

ber. After acquisition they were operated only five

or six months before they were "laid up" because

business got so bad that they could not be operated at

a profit. The country then tvas experiencing a depres-

sion which lasted several years. During the taxable

years in issue the steamers were kept in serviceable

condition, in order that petitioner might use them if

opportunity was afforded to profitably resume lumber

transportations. Petitioner always expected to put

the ships back into commission and re-engage in the

shipping of lumber when conditions became favorable

and the vessels, though not actively in use, were con-

sidered a part of the operating assets of the petitioner.

(Special finding on issue II wherein deductions for

maintenance of the steamships were sustained. R. 35

and 36.)

During the taxable years involved some lumber and

allied business was carried on. The corporation

always had the purpose of re-engaging in the lumber

and shipping business, TDut did not re-enter the log-

ging, lumbering and milling business during the tax-

able years, which would have required a capital of

about $1,500,000.00, because losses were then heavy in

the logging and sawmill business, business was de-
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pressed, no building was going on, it was hard to sell

lumber, and it w^ould have been unprofitable to go into

a business which then was losing money. (Special

findings on issue V, R. 56.) The record shows that

approximately $1,500,000.00 or more would be re-

quired to re-enter the logging, lumbering and milling

business (R. 101) and petitioner did not have this

amount in cash or securities in any of the taxable

years. (R. 58.)

After the formation of the corporation and during

the years 1929, 1930 and 1931, in addition to the origi-

nal assets set up on the books at a value of $696,000.00,

capital cash contributions were made to petitioner by

its two stockholders in equal amoimts in total as fol-

lows : during 1929, $50,000.00 ; during 1930, $54,000.00

;

and during 1931, $480,312.24. During the taxable

years, no capital contributions were made. ( Statement

of evidence, R. 109.) With such contributions of cash

the petitioner purchased securities, in practically all

cases stocks of domestic corporations. No stocks or

bonds were transferred by the stockholders to peti-

tioner. (Special findings on issue V, R. 57.) The

Board found (Special findings on issue V, R. 61) that

contributions by the stockholders included "large

amounts of cash" made during the taxable years in-

volved. The contributions of the stockholders were

principally made prior to 1932 (R. 109) and the record

contains no evidence of any other contributions than

those pointed out above.

The securities acquired from all sources, as shown

by the books of account and record, had a cost and

market value for the taxable years as follows

:
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December 31, 1932 Cost $750,943.50 Market value $439,961.87

December 31, 1933 " 782,190.55 '' " 777,792.00

December 31, 1934 " 837,778.05 '' " 810,797.75

(Special findings on issue V, R. 58.) The securities

were acquired cmd held by the petitioner in order to

have liquid assets for the time when it would go back

into the lumber, logging and milling business. They

could be sold quickly and provide cash with which to

buy anything petitioner wanted. (Statement of

evidence, R.102.) At no time did the security invest-

ments plus cash on hand equal the $1,500,000.00 re-

quired for the proposed enlargement of the business.

(R. 58.)

The total cash contributions to capital during 1929,

1930, and 1931 as stated above was $584,312.24. (R.

109.) As respondent's exhibits A, B and C show that

for 1929 petitioner had net taxable income of $56.72

;

for 1930, a loss of $22,894.68 and for 1931, a net tax-

able income of $6305.00 (R. 180, 186, 190.) most of

the cost of securities in excess of the $584,312.24

shown above was paid by the original cash capital of

petitioner rather than from any accumulation of

earned surplus. During all the taxable years involved

the market value of the securities held was less than

cost by considerable amounts. (Supra.)

During the taxable years no dividends were paid

and no salaries were paid the officers of petitioner.

(Special finding on issue' V, R. 61.) Petitioner did not

declare dividends during the taxable years involved

because it was believed that the earnings were not

sufficient to warrant dividends, an increase of assets

was desired for future business purposes, and the
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value of the assets was impaired. (Testimony, R.

101.) Such failure to declare dividends had very

little effect upon the individual income taxes of the

two stockholders. The failure to declare dividends did

not result from any discussion between the stock-

holders of possible taxes falling upon either one of

them individually. (Testimony, R. 102.) The findings

on the income taxes payable by the two stockholders

for the three taxable years involved would indicate

that such a discussion was entirely pointless because

W. T. Wilson paid only $150.00 income tax in 1932

and none in the years 1933 and 1934 while F. A.

Wilson paid no tax in any of the years. (Special

findings on issue V, R. 59.)

The Board's findings comment on the differences

between the balance sheets shown on the income tax

returns of petitioner for the three years involved and

the balance sheets as they w^ould have to be adjusted

to accord with the books of account and the facts.

(R. 57, 58 and 59.) These books of account were kept

and the returns were made by one of the stockholders

who confessedly was not a trained bookkeeper or

accountant. (Statement of evidence, R. 89, 113.)

While the stockholders of petitioner were satisfied

with the system of accounting and could determine its

financial status therefrom, nevertheless they readily

assented to the employment of a highly reputable firm

of certified public accountants to clarify their records

of accounts and reconcile them with their income tax

returns for the taxable years involved for the pur-

poses of presenting petitioner's cause to the Bureau

of Internal Revenue and the Board. (Statement of
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evidence, R. 115.) It was petitioner, not respondent,

who pointed out the defects in the returns and the

books of account. (Statement of the evidence R. 88

et seq,, Exhibits 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 18, 19,

20, 21, 22 and 23.) What was disclosed to the Board

by petitioner was a primitive way of keeping ac-

counts, which could be and was, analysed to show the

real status of petitioner's affairs and an egotistical

but tax harmless method of enlarging capital or sur-

plus by personal I. O. U.'s which meant nothing to

anybody but the stockholders.

In its report or memorandum opinion the Board

accepts on the testimony introduced by petitioner, not

by respondent, the adjustments on the books of ac-

count and returns. (Special findings on issue V, R. 57

et seq; Special findings on issue II, R. 35.) On the

other hand it rejects certain items proven by the

testimony and supported by exhibits admitted in evi-

dence. Furthermore, in its endeavor to sustain the

Commissioner on its issue V and thus determine peti-

tioner liable for a surtax for accumulation of surplus,

the report or memorandum opinion '^ assumes" as

facts certain things which do not appear in evidence

and which, if important, should have been inquired

into on cross-examination by respondent. (R. 66.)

In order to present to the Court the essentials of

petitioner's financial status for the years in dispute it

is necessary to deal with its balance sheets.

Those balance sheets for the years in dispute, cor-

rected to accord with the memorandum findings of

fact and opinion of the Board, are as follows:
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Assets

:

1932 1933 1934

Cash $ 96,638.23 $ 9,186.43 $ 73,707.36 R. 58

Notes Receivable 14,000.00 — — R. 172

Call Loans 100,000.00 151,000.00 171,000.00 R. 171

Accounts Receivable,

Trade 72,662.47 94,924.01 103,002.60 R. 37, 40,

176-178

Accounts Receivable,

F. A. Wilson — 43,234.37 35,612.50 R. 178, 179,

60

Accounts Receivable,

W. Wilson 17,717.18 16,917.88 16,917.88 R. 60

Accounts Receivable,

Mary H. Wilson 21,248.51 21,128.51 21,128.51 R. 173

Merchandise — 6,500.00 3,946.60 R. 171

Bonds (cost) 13,425.00 13,445.00 30,245.00 R. 40, 170

Stocks 750,943.50 782,190.55 837,778.05 R. 58,

167-169

Land 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 R. 181

"Oregon", net after

depreciation 90,126.99 83,869.35 77,251.71 R. 52

''Idaho", net after

depreciation 48,968.89 45,471.11 41,943.33 R. 51

Furniture & Fixtures,

net 1,782.18 1,584.16 1,386.14 R. 53

Autos, net after

depreciation 2,436.84 1,263.18 524.52 R. 25

Total Assets $1,259,950.49 $1,299,715.35 $1,449,972.20

Liabilities

:

Accounts Payable $ 3,064.68 $ 2,778.71 $ 3,246.39 R. 171

Capital 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 R. 57, 58

Earned Surplus

(1931—$12,792.64) 19,426.64 47,875.92 86,838.71 R. 68, 231,

171,71
Capital Surplus 1,236,459.17 1,248,060.72 1,358,789.10

Total Liabilities $1,259,950.49 $1,299,715.35 $1,449,972.20
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In the foregoing balance sheet assets and earned

surplus are inclusive of the amount of bad debt de-

ductions claimed by petitioner but disallowed by the

Board. Similarly, depreciable assets appear at the

figures determined by the Board. If petitioner's con-

tentions are sustained, some fairly substantial ad-

justments will be required for:

Accounts receivable (Woodhead, ''Svea")

Bonds (Kentucky Fuel Gas)

''Idaho" (Basis and depreciation)

Earned Surplus (Partial bad debts, Svea Ac-

count, additional deprecia-

tion, income tax liability

accrued)

Some adjustment will also be required for "capital

surplus".

The actualities of earned surplus accumulations are

of the greatest significance, because without consider-

able accumulations no purpose to avoid surtax can be

foimd. The petitioner's earned surplus as found by

the Board and the adjustments thereto contended for

by petitioner for the purpose of determining peti-

tioner's accumulations are as follow^s:

1931 1932 1933 1934

Surplus per B. T. A. $12,792.64 $19,426.64 $47,875.92 $86,838.71

Woodhead, partial

bad debt ' 5,000.00

Kentucky Fuel Gas, do. 5,500.00

'

' Svea '
'—expenditures

not an asset 6,420.36 9,081.78 10,804.01 12,861.01

Add'l depr. Idaho 2,600.00 5,200.00 7,800.00

Surplus adjusted $ 6,372.28 $ 7,744.86 $31,871.91 $55,677.70
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Any corporate director of ordinary intelligence, in

determining the amount of earned surplus available

for distribution as dividends would consider care-

fully the market value of the more important assets.

The charges made against the Woodhead Lumber

Co. of California and the Kentucky Fuel Gas Bond

accounts in 1934 were actually insufficient to reduce

those accounts to their true worth. An expert wit-

ness, testifying for petitioner, stated that irrespective

of the deductibility of the charge off on the Kentucky

Fuel Gras Bonds, their asset value should be written

down by at least $5500.00 for purposes of corporate

financial statements. (R. 128.)

Certainly the same observation is true of the

$42,000.00 account receivable of the Woodhead Lum-

ber Co. of California, a corporation out of business

and with assets of a maximum value of $25,000.00. By
the end of 1934 this account should have appeared at

not more than such maximum, with a further reduc-

tion in earned surplus of more than $12,000.00.

The '^account receivable" resulting from the peti-

tioner's expenditures for maintenance of the ^^Svea",

as managing, disbursing, and collecting agent, was

never an asset. The Board, in discussing the deducti-

bility of the write offs against this account finds only

a moral obligation to repay petitioner for these ex-

penditures, and that petitioner was not a creditor as

to them. (R. 39, 40.)

The Board committed grevious error in considering

these accoimts only with respect to the deductibility

of the charges made against them, and in failing to
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consider them with respect to the question of peti-

tioner's accumulation of surplus. In fact, the Board

wholly failed to determine in the memorandum find-

ings of fact and opinion what surplus petitioner had

accumulated

!

In addition to the reductions of earned surplus

hereinabove discussed, further reduction should be

made for other impaired assets. The steamers '^ Ore-

gon" and "Idaho", while having a very substantial

cost basis, had not been in operation for several years

because they could not be operated at a profit. (R. 35,

36.) During the years in question they necessitated

large expenditures for maintenance and repairs. If

petitioner could not profitably operate those steam-

ers in its own business, their value to anyone would

be very speculative and very small.

Thus, in realistic sense, petitioner, during the years

in question, never had or accumulated any earned

surplus whatever.

The respondent's determination on this issue for

1934 is in the following language:

''An examination of the balance sheets sub-

mitted with the return leads the Bureau to con-

clude that your corporation is an investment

corporation and subject to the provisions of Sec-

tion 102 of the Revenue Act of 1934." (R. 18.)

In the deficiency notice for 1932 and 1933 re-

spondent stated: "after careful consideration of your

Federal income tax returns and of all other available

evidence the Bureau holds that your corporation is

subject to taxation under the provisions of Section
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104 of the Revenue Act of 1932 for the years 1932 and

1933."

The balance sheets upon which respondent's deter-

mination was based were erroneous, principally in

their treatment of shareholders' I. O. U.'s as being the

equivalent of cash. No specific reason is stated for re-

spondent's determination for 1932 and 1933, but ap-

parently after examining the balance sheets con-

tained in the returns he concluded, as he did for 1934,

that petitioner was a mere holding or investment

corporation.

While petitioner had large investments, it was not

an investment corporation. It was organized for a

particular purpose, i.e., logging, manufacture of lum-

ber, and the purchase, sale, and transportation of

lumber and the operation of steamships. (R. 56.)

While the realization of that purpose was delayed

by a worldwide depression, every act and omission

of petitioner is consistent with that purpose.

A very large capital would be required. Petitioner's

two shareholders undertook to supply it by equal

contributions and by the preservation of the corpo-

rate assets. Their failure to declare dividends or pay

salaries to themselves, particularly in the face of the

impairment in value of many of the corporate as-

sets is consistent with that purpose. The corrected

balance sheets show some capital contributions dur-

ing the taxable years. Apparently the respondent and

the Board would require petitioner to declare and

pay dividends to the shareholders at the same time

they were making capital contributions to petitioner

for its business purposes.
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Both the respondent and the Board ignored the

business purijose of the petitioner. The Board de-

termined that petitioner was FORMED for that

business purpose. (R. 60.) It then holds that was

AVAILED OF for the prohibited purpose of avoid-

ing surtax on its shareholders. The Board does not

find that the purpose for which petitioner was orga-

nized was ever abandoned; it could not so find in the

face of the positive and uncontradicted evidence to

the contrary. (.R. 101.) The fulfilment of that purpose

was postponed for business reasons—the fact that

lumber and shipping concerns were operating at a

loss—but it was never abandoned. (R. 101-102.)

In discussing and allowing petitioner's expenditures

for the maintenance of the '^ Idaho" and the ''Svea"

the Board said (R. 35, 36)

:

^'The steamers were acquired by petitioner in

January, 1929 principally for the purpose of

transporting lumber. After acquisition they were

operated only five or six months before they were

*laid up', because business got so bad that they

could not be operated at a profit. The country was

then experiencing a depression which lasted sev-

eral years. During the taxable years the steamers

were kept in a seaworthy condition, in order that

petitioner might use them if opportunity was

afforded to profitably resume lumber transporta-

tion. The ships were never abandoned, but were

always in charge of some one to look after them.

The ships were put in dry dock and their bot-

toms were painted to protect and preserve them.

Watchmen were employed and paid to look after

them and certain supplies were furnished. Re-

pairs were made to maintain the ships in proper
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serviceable condition. Petitioner always expected

to put the ships back into commission and re-

engage in the shipping of lumber when conditions

became favorable * * *"

These same facts are most material to the surtax

issue but receive but little mention by the Board in its

findmg and opinion relating thereto. The Board does

find that the corporation ''always had the purpose of

engaging in the lumber and shipping business", that

the partnership's capital in such business had been

$1,500,000.00 and that at the date of the hearing at

least as large an amount would be required. (R. 56,

63.)

In sustaining the respondent on this issue the

Board's opinion may be said to consist of the following

arguments

:

(1) "Because the testimony of the capital required

by petitioner for full and complete logging, lumber

manufacturing, and shipping business did not relate

specifically to the taxable years, no business reason

was shown for the accumulation of its comparatively

small surplus." (R. 63, 64.)

(2) "The positive and uncontradicted testimony of

W. T. Wilson would defeat the imposition of the tax

if believed. It is discredited, however, by the false

balance sheets annexed to the returns, which returns

were over the oath of the same witness." (R. 62, 63,

66.)

(3) "The corporation did but little business dur-

ing the taxable years, and did not re-engage in logging,

lumber manufacturing, and shipping because those



48

businesses were losing money—these statements almost

put petitioner out of business." (R. 64.)

(4) "F. A. Wilson and W. Wilson (whom we can

assume to be W. T. Wilson) were permitted to owe

petitioner on aecoimts receivable. They therefore

treated petitioner pretty much as they pleased." (R.

65, 66.)

(5) "The two shareholders of petitioner paid no

income tax during the years in question, except for

about $150.00 paid by W. T. Wilson for 1932. Hence

they gained a substantial tax advantage by petitioner's

failure to pay dividends." (R. 59, 66.)

The foregoing points made by the Board will be dis-

cussed in the order in which they appear above.

(1) The Board's argument with respect to the

absence of proof of a reasonable business need for the

accumulation of petitioner's small earned surplus is

self-defeative. While it is true that petitioner's actual

business was small and required little capital, its con-

templated operations were extensive and would require

a great deal. The actual amount required could not

possibly be accurately known in 1932, 1933 and 1934

because the petitioner did not, in each of those years,

contemplate immediate enlargement of its business.

Petitioner contemplated the enlargement of its busi-

ness as soon as a reasonable demonstration of probable

profits indicated it could profitably do so. Naturally

the culmination of that purpose would be post|)oned

for as long as other logging, lumber manufacturing

and shipping concerns were losing money. Petitioner's
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business purpose would be defeated if its assets were

invested in a losing enterprise. It was promoted by

investments in liquid income-paying assets. While

petitioner could unquestionably purchase timberlands

for less when those lands could not be profitably

logged, it naturally preferred to wait and pay more

later when it had a reasonable assurance of profits.

Evidence of the cost of full scale operations during

the taxable years in question is absolutely immaterial

to the issue. They were all depression years and while

timberland speculation during them might be justified,

business investment could not.

The business need for the accumulation was the

greater because of these facts. Petitioner could not

and did not know how much ready capital it would

need as conditions improved and prices rose. It

wanted to have enough to meet that need, whatever it

might be. Therefore, it paid neither salaries nor divi-

dends to its officer-shareholders.

The Board's argument is interesting on this phase

of the issue. As heretofore stated, it would take a

prescience beyond that of petitioner's officers to ac-

curately estimate its cash (or equivalent) needs. Yet

the Board of Tax Appeals can say ''you have more

than you need (needed) ; our judgment is superior to

yours when it comes to an estimate of your needs".

The Board's determination on this phase of the

issue is directly contrary to two cases in which it was

held that the prospective needs of the future con-

templated enlarged activities were the governing con-

sideration. As long as the intention to enlarge opera-
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tions continued to be the reason for accumulation of

surplus, the surtax asserted was improper.

William C\ De Mille Productions, Inc., 30 B.

T. A. 827, 830;

CecU B. De Mille, et ah, 31 B. T. A. 1161, 1175,

aff'd 90 F. (2d) 14.

The facts in the last cited case are similar but much

less favorable to the taxpayer. The taxpayer's income

was from contracts for personal services, its surplus

as high as $1,606,575.33.

(2) Admittedly the balance sheets were inaccurate

from the standpoint of an expert accountant. W. T.

Wilson was not an expert accountant and made errors

inconceivable to an expert. The greatest errors were

in treating the I.O.U.'s of himself and his brother as

the equivalent of cash and in treating capital surplus

as capital. The other errors followed almost inevit-

ably from these two, with the further factor that the

two brothers were the sole shareholders, officers and

directors of petitioner and understandably omitted

formal corporate procedure. Thus when they agreed

that the corporation should have treasury stock, they

failed to actually transfer shares to it. As far as

they were concerned, they understood the act as the

same as if actually accomplished. No one was injured

by this procedure. There were virtually no creditors.

The Federal Government was not prejudiced in any

way. The gross income of the corporation was cor-

rectly stated, and except for the disputable items of

partial bad debts and depreciation allowance, so were

the deductions.
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Regardless of how inexcusable are the errors in the

balance sheets, they illustrate no desire to defeat or

defraud either the Federal Government or anyone else.

It has been shown {supra) that it was the petitioner

who undertook to supply the respondent and the

Board with accurate balance sheets. The only effect

of the errors contained in the returned balance sheets

was to lead respondent to believe that a surtax was due

(R. 18, 222), and therefore make a determination

which otherwise would probably not have been made.

These facts do not excuse the Board in treating the

direct, positive, and otherwise unchallenged testimony

of W. T. Wilson as the equivalent of perjury, or be-

lieving it in pai*t and discarding it in the parts dis-

advantageous to the conclusions sought to be reached.

(3) While petitioner's active business transactions

were limited and not particularly profitable, it must be

remembered that the years in question were the years

of severest depression. Petitioner was doing the best

it could and all it could to maintain a going business

in the face of adverse circumstances. The Court will

take judicial notice that like conditions existed with

like and other lines of business throughout the

country.

The Board member was obviously guilty of an

error of law when he considered the surplus accumu-

lations in the light of actual business operations

rather than in the light of contemplated business

operations and needs. Cecil B. De Mille, et al., supra.

The member's conclusion that the witness' state-

ments almost put the petitioner out of business is
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hardly worthy of comment. The witness testified

that logging, lumber manufacturing, and shipping

businesses were losing money during the years 1932-

1934, and that, therefore, petitioner did not engage

in any of those enterprises. (R. 64.) This testimony

related to petitioner's delay in fulfilling its business

purpose to the complete limit of that purpose. It

had nothing to do with petitioner's wholesale lumber

business.

Petitioner's lumber business was increasing during

the years in question, as shown in the following table

:

1&29 1930 1931 1932 1933 1934

Sales $353,833.46 $139,196.14 $64,571.55 $28,725.96 $92,862.09 $170,239.5!

Gross Profit

on sales 47,757.63 11,914.14 (5,151.15) (4,629.77) 8,424.60 20,152.56

(R. 180) (R. 186) (R. 190) (R. 132) (R. 142) (R. 153)

The Board member in stating that petitioner had

no immediate need in 1932-1934 for the small surplus

accumulated may be even logical from the viewpoint

of 1940, when he considered the proceedings. How
immediate the need seemed to petitioner's officers at

any time during 1932, 1933 and 1934 is another ques-

tion. And of course, because the surtax can be found

only where the intent was to accumulate, not for

business reasons, but for avoidance of tax by the

shareholders, our inquiiy must be to things as they

seemed.

Petitioner's business in 1933 was better than it

had been in 1932. It was better yet in 1934. With

this improvement naturally the time for full-fledged

operations in accordance with petitioner's purpose

seemed more imminent.
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The Board apparently considered the smallness of

business done by petitioner and the absence of large

profits therefrom to have been the result of deliberate

self-sabotage. It apparently chose to ignore the self-

interest of petitioner in making profits, and also, at

this point, the imiversally known facts concerning the

depression.

(4) The Board seemed to place great emphasis

and reliance on the fact that F. A. Wilson and W.
Wilson (assumed by the Board, without a shred of

evidence to support its conclusion, to be W. T. Wil-

son) were permitted to owe the petitioner on ac-

counts receivable. From this fact and assumption it

concluded that the shareholders treated petitioner

pretty much as they saw fit. (R. 65.)

The record proves the contrary. In the first place,

these accoiuits receivable were being reduced at the

same time each of petitioner's shareholders were

making contributions to petitioner's capital! They

were not borrowing sums from the corporation.

In the second place, the detailed analysis of the

account of F'. A. Wilson discloses the account to be

the result of stock brokerage transactions undertaken

by him for the benefit of the corporation, in reality

a trust relationship rather than a debtor-creditor re-

lationship. This account was closed by petitioner's

payment to F. A. Wilson of $37,366.25 in December

of 1934 and his delivery to petitioner of Kennecott

Copper Co. and other shares costing $35,612.50 on

January 2, 1935. He wasn't dealing with the corpo-

ration, he was acting for it. (R. 178, 179.)
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In the third place, upon what basis does the Board

assume "W. Wilson" to be W. T. Wilson? There

is no evidence or testimony upon which such an as-

sumption could properly be made.

The Board felt that the picture of the accounts

receivable was similar to that presented in Rands,

Inc., 34 B. T. A. 1094. (R. 66.) Petitioner fails to see

the similarity.

In the Rands case, supra, the corporation was or-

ganized by the principal shareholder with the con-

veyance to it of $1,502,273.17 in stocks and bonds.

It was formed as a speculative medium for dealing

in stocks, bonds and real estate. One shareholder

held over 99 per cent of the stock of the tax payer

and alone guided its policy. The tax payer's principal

activities consisted of trading in common stocks of

a speculative nature, amounting to between 100 and

160 transactions per day. The principal shareholder

lent sums running to nearly $2,000,000.00 to the tax

payer for stock speculations. His remaining assets

consisted largely of tax exempt bonds. The tax defi-

ciencies involved (principally the 50% surtax)

amounted to $315,306.91 for 1927, $475,025.87 for

1928, $239,051.62 for 1929, and $28,614.83 for 1930,

indicating average earnings of more than $500,000.00

per year, none of which were distributed.

On the other hand, this petitioner was formed for

a business purpose and this purpose was never aban-

doned. The years in question were depression rather

than "boom" years. Petitioner's two shareholders

lent none of their funds to petitioner. It does not
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appear that any of their holdings were tax exempt

and because of respondent's failure to offer evidence

on that point we may safely assmne they were not

tax exempt. If petitioner had currently distributed

all of its very small earnings each year little or no

tax would have had to be paid by the shareholders.

Petitioner's earnings never exceeded 3 per cent of

its capital. The annual earnings of Rands, Inc.

amounted to as much as 50 per cent of its capital.

Petitioner's shareholders had no transactions with it

during the years in question; Rand's principal share-

holder had many.

Where is the similarity? There is none whatever.

Rmid^s Inc., supra, rather than supporting the Board,

indicates the arbitrariness and unreasonableness of

the Board's opinion on this issue.

Furthermore, in the Rand's case, swpra, and in all

other cases in w^hich the imposition of the surtax has

been sustained, no business purpose was shown for

the acquisition of stocks and bonds. Here the busi-

ness purpose was shown and was found to exist dur-

ing the taxable years. The Board accedes to the pur-

pose but substitutes its own judgment as to the rea-

sonableness of the need.

The contributions of petition's shareholders to it

were of cash rather than of stocks and bonds. There

is therefore no implication in the record that if peti-

tioner had never been created their income would

be any greater than it was after petitioner's creation.

The larger transfers to petitioner, at least, were of

cash lying idle in bank, and were not the result of
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sales by the shareholders. (R. 90, 109.) Can it be

assumed that in the absence of the transfers to peti-

tioner its shareholders would have invested this cash?

They had not done so prior to the transfers.

(5) The Board apparently felt that the fact peti-

tioner's shareholders (with the single exception of

W. T. Wilson for 1932) paid no income tax what-

ever was proof that petitioner was availed of for the

prohibited purposes. Petitioner believes that this

fact is positive and incontrovertible proof of the con-

trary. Unless tax was in fact avoided, the prohibited

intention cannot be found.

It is significant that the originals of the returns

of petitioner's shareholders were in respondent's

possession, but were not placed in evidence in this

proceeding. It may well be that those returns would

show, with the single exception above noted, that if

all the earnings of petitioner had been currently dis-

tributed, no increase in tax would have resulted.

Even in the absence of its business purpose it

w^ould not be reasonable to require petitioner to dis-

tribute the last cent of its annual earnings and profits.

Some of petitioner's assets and particularly the

steamships, the Kentucky Fuel Gas Bonds, the ac-

counts receivable from Woodhead, and the account

represented by expenditures on the Svea, were of a

value far less than that carried on the books. If

these items had been written down to their true worth,

petitioner would have no eamed surplus to distribute

in any of the tax years involved, which same years

presented a very doubtful and uncertain picture for

the future.
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The net earnings of petitioner for the year 1932

were less than $7000.00, as found by the Board.

And the Board found that as to the $6420.36 item

of iSvea advances, petitioner was not a creditor;

it was only a moral obligation. (R. 38, 39.)

The taxes determined in this proceeding are

$3316.84 ifor 1932, $11,652.75 for 1933, and $15,724.73

for 1934. The original deficiencies asserted were much

larger. (R. 69, 31.)

Even assuming that the entire earnings for 1932

as found by the ;Board were distributed pro-rata to

the shareholders, each would have to report a dividend

of $3317.00. F. A. Wilson's tax on this might be noth-

ing and could not possibly exceed $33.17. W. T. Wil-

son's additional tax could, not possibly exceed $375.36.

These figures assmne the respective shareholders to

have other net income subject to surtax (and in excess

of their allowable credits) of $6000.00 and $18,250.00,

respectively.

Revenue Act of 1932, Section 12(a).

If petitioner had distributed xoll of its earnings for

1933 as found by the Board, ($28,449.28), the maxi-

mum possible tax liability of each would have been

$479.94 on a surtax net income of $20,449.28.

Revenue Act of 1933, Section 12(a).

If petitioner had distributed all of its earnings

for 1934 as found by the Board ($38,962.79) the maxi-

mum possible tax liability of each would have been

$1813.83 on a surtax net income of $23,481.40.

Revenue Act of 1934, Section 12(b).
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All the figures above-given of possible maximum
tax liability assume sufficient other income to exhaust

all deductions, exemptions and credits and yet leave

surtax net income up to the point of commencement

of surtax liability.

It would be just as reasonable to assume, during

these depression years, that the shareholders had bad

debts and other deductions which would eliminate any

additional tax from complete distribution of petition-

er's earnings.

The Board's determination, as hereinbefore stated,

was not based upon any adjusted figures of petition-

er's earned surplus. It was apparently based, as was

the Commissioner's determination, upon the figures

set forth in the deficiency notice. (R. 55.) A com-

parison of these figures with those as corrected to

accord with the Board's opinion will show that the

essential premise of accumulations of surplus was

greatly exaggerated.

1932 1933 1934

Annual Earnings

per respondent $21,731.50 $38,415.51 $44,071.25 (R. 55)

As corrected

for decision 6,634.00 28,449.28 38,962.79

Difference $15,097.50 $ 9,966.23 $ 5,108.46

The respondent's determination was clearly pred-

icated on errors, and' the Board never took these

errors into consideration. Petitioner believes that in

the argument on the preceding issues additional errors

have been established, the effect of which is to fur-

ther destroy one of the essentials which must exist
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in order for petitioner to be held liable for the surtax.

The effect of these errors must be taken into con-

sideration, and if necessary, the case should be re-

manded 'to the Board to consider their effect.

It is one thing for the Commissioner and Board

to say the accumulation of $22,000.00. of earnings in

1932 exhibits the prohibited purpose. That is bad

enough. But it is far worse when the determination

based upon $22,000.00 is sustained without discussion

or consideration that the $22,000.00 never existed and

was an exaggeration of 300 per cent!

The Board' should have determined, prior to making

its determination on this surtax issue, just exactly

what petitioner's accumulations were. It should then

have determined how much of those small accumu-

lations, if any, were available for and should have

been distributed currently as dividends. It should

finally have considered the effect upon the share-

holders' tax liability of the distribution of such

dividends.

The Board actually did none of these things. If it

had done them it would have discovered that little or

no tax liability was saved petitioner's shareholders.

It would then have been forced to believe W. T.

Wilson when he testified that dividends were not de-

clared because the assets were impaired; because a

large liquid capital was desired with which to en-

gage, as had a predecessor partnership with a capital

of $1,500,000.00, invested in logging, timber lands

and lumber mills, and engaged in operating steamers.

It would have been forced to believe that witness
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when he testified that the failure to pay dividends was

not the result of any discussion between the share-

holders of possible taxes on either of them. (R. 101-

103.)

The foregoing testimony was positive and un-

equivocal. It was not made the subject of any cross-

examination nor contradicted by any other evidence.

It is a part and parcel of all of the evidence and is in

accord with it, and was disbelieved solely because peti-

tioner's balance sheets contained errors immaterial to

any issue in this or any other proceeding. It is di-

rectly supported by the evidence and findmgs of peti-

tioner's business purpose, the transfers made to peti-

tioner every year pursuant to that purpose, and the

absence of any material increase in the shareholders'

tax liability had petitioner never been created or had

petitioner currently distributed all its earnings.

Petitioner submits that the surtax liability deter-

mined against it was improper and is not supported

by any evidence. The Commissioner erroneously de-

termined an excessive amount of earnings for each

year. The Board failed to correct the Commissioner's

errors. Certain amounts of petitioner's earnings are

still in dispute. It had a legitimate business reason

for accumulating all the liquid assets it could acquire

and its shareholders, by transfers to capital surplus,

were aiding that purpose. It was not, as erroneously

found by the Board, being dealt with by its share-

holders as they pleased. Neither of them borrowed

from nor loaned to it in the taxable years. F. A. Wil-

son dealt for petitioner as a stock broker, and not with
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it. Because of small earnings, impaired assets, and

its business purpose petitioner paid no dividends. Its

failure to pay dividends was not because of any dis-

cussion between or j^urpose of its shareholders to

avoid tax on their individual incomes. Little, if any,

additional tax would have been paid by those share-

holders if the petitioner had currently distributed all

of its income as found by the Board. The Board's

determination of income was excessive. Petitioner had

no net earnings available for dividends.

Petitioner submits that on this issue the Board of

Tax Appeals should be reversed. At the very least,

and in fairness to petitioner, the cause should be re-

manded 'to the Board to reconsider this issue in' the

light of petitioner's earnings of each year as cor-

rected by this Court, its earnings available for divi-

dends, and the effect of the payment of 'dividends

on both the corporation, in the light of its business

purpose, and upon the shareholders, in the light of

their individual tax liability for the years in question.

5. THE BOARD ERRED IN FINDING AND DETERMINING FOR
EACH OF THE TAXABLE YEARS INVOLVED THAT PETI-
TIONER WAS LIABLE FOR A FIVE PER CENTUM NEGLI-
GENCE PENALTY.

In his deficiency notices upon which the tw^o pro-

ceedings were initiated before the Board of Tax Ap-
peals the Commissioner states as his reason for the

determmation of the negligence penalty for each of

the taxable years involved as follows:

"The understatement of tax * * * is attribu-

table to negligence." (R. 19, 224.)
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This statement contains the only issue petitioner was

required to meet and the only ground upon which

the Board can have jurisdiction, to determine a

negligence penalty under such deficiency notices. Had
there been an intentional disregard of rules and regu-

lations the Board could not consider it, because the

Commissioner did not determine the alternative

ground provided in section 293(a), jjost, as a basis for

the penalty, nor plead it in his answers. For any-

thing beyond his assertions in the deficiency notices

the burden was on the Commissioner to plead and

prove. As to facts, we again have an example of the

Board's isolation of specific findings from general

findings. The Board makes no findings in this issue

VI, but states: "The facts above set forth and re-

viewed in discussion of section 104" (Issue V in the

report or memorandum opinion and part 4 of this

brief) "are here applicable with equal force." The

purpose and terms of section 104 are so far apart

from the provisions of the statute here to be con-

sidered that we cannot conceive how the Board could

for one moment consider the facts under one statutory

provision to be "applicable with equal force" to an

entirely different ' provision. Moreover, the facts on

issue V do not apply to issue VI.

To clarify this assertion, we quote the material part

of section 293 of the Revenue Act of 1932, which is

identical in language with section 293 of the Revenue

Act of 1934, Viz:

"Sec. 293. Additions To The Tax In Case Of
Deficiency.
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(a) Negligence. If any part of any deficiency

is due to negligence, or intentional disregard of

rules and regulations but without intent to de-

fraud, 5 per centum of the total amount of

the deficiency (in addition to such deficiency)

shall be assessed, collected, and paid in the same

manner as if it were a deficiency * * *"

(N. B.) By its punctuation the above section

clearly makes "negligence" something apart from

''mtentional disregard of rules and regulations.")

The Commissioner in his application of the above

quoted section asserted that the penalty for each year

was added to the deficiency because "the under-

statement of tax" * * * "is attributable to negligence"

(R. 19, 224.) but he did not refer to "rules and

regulations" nor define w^hat acts or omissions con-

stituted the negligence upon which he imposed the

penalty by any explanation in the deficiency notices;

nor did he plead affirmative allegations in his answers

which enlarged the reasons set forth in the deficiency

notices or in any way referred to "disregard of rules

and regulations." (R. 19, 227.) We are therefore left

with but one cause for the assertion of the penalty,

viz: the returns failed to report income or sought

deductions which reasonable judgment did not war-

rant. No matter how poorly the books of account of

petitioner may have been kept, and such fact seems

to bef the basis of the Board's decisions, let us look

for "the understatement of the tax" in the returns

which, as far as the record shows w^as, in the Com-

missioner's mind when he asserted negligence. The
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section quoted above deals only with negligence in

reporting income, not in keeping books and records.

(1) Gross Income as reported for normal tax in

the returns for petitioner (Exhibits 3, 4, and 5) was:

$32,565.57 for 1932; $75,579.28 for 1933; and $63,-

901.60 for 1934. The only challenge the Commissioner

made to gross income as returned was to add interest

to that income for the years 1932 and 1933. These ad-

ditions were disallowed by the Board in issue I of its

report or memorandum opinion. (R. 33-35.) Certainly

there was no negligence on the part of petitioner in

reporting gross income.

(2) Deductions sought by petitioner in its returns

for the three years involved constitute the main

grounds for dispute between the parties in relation to

the net taxable income for normal tax. (R. 32.)

(a) For maintenance of steamships petitioner's

returns claimed $4547.05 for 1932; $4412.26 for 1933;

and $2173.18 for 1934. The Commissioner allowed the

deduction for 1934 and the Board sustained petition-

er's claims for 1932 and 1933 in issue II of its report

or memorandum opinion. (R. 35-37.) Where was the

negligence on this point ?

(b) Partially bad debts written off consist of

three items, viz.: on accounts receivable from Wood-

head Lumber Co. of California in the amount of

$5000.00 for 1934; accounts receivable from ''S. S.

Svea" in the amounts of $2160.80 for the year 1933

and $4644.40 for the year 1934; and accounts receiv-

able on bonds of the Kentucky Fuel Gas Corporation
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in the amount of $5500.00 for the year 1934. While the

Board has determined adversely to the petitioner on

these claimed deductions, it has not done so on the

grounds of any negligence on the part of petitioner,

excepting, perhaps, in failure of proof on hearing to

which section 293, supra, would not apply. On the

other hand petitioner has ai:>pealed to this Court from

the Board's determinations of non-deductibility of the

partial write-offs and deductions relating to the ac-

counts of the Woodhead Lumber Co. of California and

Kentucky Fuel Gas Corporation bonds under the firm

belief that the determination of the Board was erro-

neous. As argued under Point No. 1 supra, the deter-

mination of a partial write-off is a matter of judgment

and if this Court seeks to sustain the Board in disal-

lowing these claimed deductions it cannot determine

that an error in judgment is negligence. With regard

to the deductions sought on the accounts receivable

from the ''S. S. Svea", while we do not appeal from

the decision of the Board, it may be said that there

were advised errors in judgment under circumstances

which in no way may be attributed to negligence. The
fact that the Board finds that the accounts receivable

amounted to $9081.78 on January 1, 1933, and to $10,-

804.01 on January 1, 1934; that there was a moral

obligation on the petitioner to keep the vessel in re-

pair, and that it was advised by an attorney that ''it

did not look like recovery could be made and a suit

would be foolish" (R. 39) would naturally lead peti-

tioner to seek partial deductions. If there was a fail-

ure of proof before the Board, as foimd (R. 40), such

failure on hearing before the Board cannot constitute
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negligence in making the returns and the Board in

denying the deduction does not so find. (R. 38-40.)

(c) Depreciation constitutes the next items of de-

ductions sought and, for each of the years, as per the

returns, was as follows:

1932 1933 1934

Wooden buildings $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $ 500.00

Automobiles 900.00 1,649.85 1,649.85

S.S. Idaho and Oregon 8,750.00 8,750.00 8,750.00

Furniture and fixtures 500.00 500.00 500.00

The parties stipulated the depreciation allowances on

the wooden buildings and automobiles before the pro-

ceeedings came before the Board. (R. 33.) Therefore,

those items were not before the Board for considera-

tion in any way and it was not called upon to pass

judgement on the claims of petitioner or the adjust-

ment with respondent in any way. With regard to the

steamships we would point out that after the returns

for the three years had been filed, the Commissioner

extended the depreciable life of the vessels by fifteen

years and changed the theretofore accepted rate of

depreciation. (R. 46, 225.) He also decreased the re-

sidual value of the vessels which petitioner contested

and, as to '^S. S. Idaho", is contesting in these cases.

These factors could not have been considered by peti-

tioner in making its returns. However, on the de-

termination of the amount of depreciation made by

the Board and its decision made upon the computation

of respondent, $9935.42, or $1185.42 in excess of the

amount claimed by petitioner in its returns, was de-

cided to be the amount which petitioner was entitled

to deduct as depreciation on the two vessels. If there
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was negligence here, it certainly was not such as

should subject petitioner to a penalty. With regard to

depreciation on furniture and fixtures the petitioner

took the same deduction for 1929, 1930, and 1931 as it

did for the three years involved and such deductions

were allowed for the first three years by respondent.

(R. 52.) Can it be said that petitioner was negligent in

1932, 1933 and 1934 for what the Commissioner al-

lowed for the first three years of the petitioner's life?

We do not think so. Long after the deductions of the

first three years had been followed for the next

three years (R. 220, 225) the Commissioner changed

the cost basis and increased the depreciable life of the

furniture and fixtures, thereby reducing the annual

rate of depreciation. In contesting this action before

the Board, the Commissioner's acts were approved,

but on account of petitioner's failure to sustain the

burden of proof of cost at the hearing and not on the

ground of negligence in making the returns. (R. 53,

54.)

We have covered all of the items which affect the

net income of petitioner for normal tax for the three

years involved and can discover no ''understatement

of tax * * * attributable to negligence" as claimed by

the Commissioner. The poor bookkeeping methods and

the I. O. U.'s upon which the report or memorandum
opinion dilates have nothing to do with the penalty for

negligence which the Commissioner contemplates in

his assertion of reasons for imposing one. When we
compare the Commissioner's enlargement of income in

his deficiency notices for normal tax purposes with

petitioner's returned income for each of the years and
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with the income determined by the Board, we find the

greater error on his part. Was he negligent?

1932 1933 1934

Normal tax returned by petitioner None None None
Normal tax determined by Commissioner $11,343.36 $22,078.01 $2,614.46

Normal tax determined by Board None 1 ,499.93 1,912.05

We believe that these figures show that there were

matters involving controversy between the parties but

that, when the Commissioner so woefully fails to sus-

tain his enlargement of the tax he cannot under the

reasons alleged by him claim penalty against peti-

tioner, and the Board erred in sustaining even a frag-

ment of his asserted penalty.

(d) A penalty for negligence for failing to return

a surtax is something difficult to comprehend, because

a taxpayer who reasons that he should not dividend

his surplus and forms his judgment and makes his

return on that basis must dem^ his reasons and deem

his judgment poor if he does return and pay surtax.

The Board found and this Court may take judicial

notice of the fact that during the taxable years the

nation was in such a state of depression and economic

panic that no one could tell what the morrow would

bring. There was no negligence as far as the books of

account or the returns are concerned in setting forth

the items which might render petitioner liable for

surtax. The income from all sources was accurately re-

ported in the returns. We believe that we have shown

in our argument on the imTuediately preceding issue

that the surplus accumulated was not adequate to 7*e-

quire a return for surtax. But, if this court should

determine to the contrary, there is no negligence such
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as the Commissioner contemplated to warrant the im-

position of a five percentum penalty. More important

is the fact that there is no place on a corporation re-

turn to report surtax, nor any provision in any law

requiring the reporting of surtax liabilities.

We ask the Court to read the short opinion on issue

VI (R. 67) to see what fallacious reasoning is used to

deteritiine the penalty. The negligence asserted by the

Commissioner relates to ''understatement of the tax",

not to enlargement of cash through I. O. U. 's, erroneous

treatment of capital stock, or maintaining no cash

book. The things which the Commissioner claimed as

a result of these things, with the exception of the sur-

tax, were entirely demolished by the Board's findings

and decision, as shown by the comparative tabulation

above. Yet the Board says: ''Obviously, a part of the

deficiency was due to 'negligence or intentional dis-

regard of rules and regulations' without which the

tax in this case could have been ascertained without

all the difficulty encountered". What "part of the de-

ficiency was due to negligence" the Board does not

find. "Obviously" the deficiencies were made more

difficult to ascertain through the unwarranted acts of

the Commissioner than they were by any acts of peti-

tioner as is clearly disclosed by the tabulation of nor-

mal tax shown above. "Obviously", other than in the

dogmatic statements contained in issue IV of the re-

port or memorandum opinion, there is no finding that

there was any negligence on the part of petitioner, and

certainly no specific findings of fact upon which the

opinion could be based. Incompetence or ignorance

do not constitute negligence.
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As we have pointed out, the adjustment of normal

income which produced the deficiencies found by the

Board resulted entirely from adjustments of deduc-

tions sought by petitioner in its returns. As we have

shown in the foregoing argument there was reason-

able ground for petitioner to claim all its deductions

and to differ from the conclusions reached by the re-

spondent. Under such circumstances no negligence

penalty should be allowed.

Herman Senner v. Commissioner, 22 B. T. A.

655, 658; Acq. X-2 C. B. 64;

FranU T. Heffelfinger v. Commissioner, 32

B. T. A. 1232, 1234;

Davis Regulator Co. v. Commissioner, 36 B. T.

A. 437, 444; Acq., 1937-2 C. B. 7.

6. THE BOARD ERRED IN NOT MAKING ITS FINDINGS OF
FACT COMPREHENSIVE AND GENERAL SO THAT, WHERE
MATERIAL, THEY WOULD APPLY TO ALL ISSUES. IT

FURTHER ERRED IN SEPARATING AND DIVIDING ITS

FINDINGS UNDER SEPARATE ISSUES AND THUS MAKING
FACTS APPLICABLE ONLY TO ONE ISSUE AND EXCLUD-
ING SUCH FACTS FROM OTHER ISSUES TO WHICH THEY
WERE MATERIAL. IT FURTHER ERRED IN INTER-

MINGLING FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF FACT
AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW SO AS TO RENDER PORTIONS
OF ITS DECISIONS ARBITRARY AND ERRONEOUS IN FACT
AND LAW. IT ALSO ERRED IN NOT MAKING ITS FIND-

INGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW CONFORM TO
THE EVIDENCE.

Under this heading we have consolidated specifica-

tions of error numbered 19 to 24 in the Petitions for

Review. (R. 78, 241.) In making these assignments of

error, we appreciate that we are doing the unusual.
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However, the report or memorandum opinion for the

two cases is so imusual as to require special treat-

ment and comment. In no reported case within the

knowledge of the writers hereof has a Court or Board

by specific direction excluded findings from considera-

tion on all issues to which they might be material and

confined their application to a single issue as the

Board has done by its declaration

:

''The other issues will be considered in the

order above set forth, the facts, except the general

facts as to incorporation stated above, being set

forth separately in connection with discussion of

each issue." (R. 33.)

If facts are to be found issue by issue, then the facts

should be found fully as to each issue. This the Board

did not do.

This error is particularly noticeable in issue VI of

the report or memorandum opinion where no facts ap-

plicable to the issue are foimd. Reference is made to

the facts found in issue Y, which make no reference to

negligence nor any facts applicable to negligence.

As we have pointed out the strange results of the

strange separation of findings of fact in our discus-

sion of the prior assignments of error we will not ex-

tend this brief by reiteration. We believe we have

shown that, by its isolation of facts in finding sepa-

rately for different issues, the Board has violated the

rules laid down for its observance by the Courts.

"The Board of Tax Appeals, recognizing the

fact that its rulings of law are reviewable, should

make all reasonably requisite findings of fact."

Brampton Woolen Co. v. Commissioner, (CCA
1), 45 Fed. (2d) 327.
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VI. PRAYER FOR RELIEF.

Wherefore, petitioner prays this Court to hear

the proceedings and to reverse the decisions of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals on the issues

hereinbefore presented, and for such other and

further relief as to this Court may seem meet and

proper.

Dated, San Francisco,

June 6, 1941.

Adolphus E. Graupner,

Louis Janin,

Counsel for Petitioner.
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OPINION BELOW

The memorandum opinion of the Board of Tax Ap-

peals (R. 31-67) is mireported.

JUBISDICTION

The Board entered its decisions on August 6, 1940

(R. 68, 231-232) finding deficiencies as follows

:

Year Normal In-
come Tax

Additional
Tax under

Section 104 of

the 1932 Act,
and Section
102 of the
1934 Act

Penalty

1932 None
$1, 499. 93

1, 912. 05

$3, 316. 84

14, 224. 80

9, 740. 70

$165. 84

786 241933. -

1934 .___ 582 63

(1)



The case is brought to this Court by the taxpayer's

petitions for review filed October 31, 1940 (R. 69-82,

232-245), pursuant to the provisions of Sections 1141

and 1142 of the Internal Revenue Code.

QUESTIONS PRESENTED

1. Is there substantial evidence to support the

Board's conclusion that the Commissioner was justi-

fied (under Section 23 (k) of the Revenue Act of

1934) in refusing to permit deductions for the year

1934 on account of debts alleged to have become par-

tially worthless in that year?

2. Did the Board properly determine the basis for

depreciation purposes (under Sections 113 (a) (2),

113 (a) (8), 113 (b), and 114 (a) of the Revenue

Acts of 1932 and 1934) of property acquired by tax-

payer corporation by gift or acquired by its stock-

holders by gift and contributed by them to its capital ?

3. Is there substantial evidence to support the

finding of the Board that in the years 1932 to 1934,

inclusive, the taxpayer w^as availed of to avoid the

imposition of surtaxes upon its shareholders and

therefore was subject to Section 104 of the 1932 Act

and Section 102 of the 1934 Act, providing for addi-

tions to normal taxes under such circumstances?

4. Is there substantial evidence to support the find-

ing of the Board that part of the deficiency for each

of the years 1932 to 1934, inclusive, was due to negli-

gence and therefore that the deficiencies for those

years were subject to penalties as provided for in

Section 293 (a) of the Revenue Acts of 1932 and

1934?



5. Is there any error in the arrangement of the

Board's memorandum opinion which discusses sepa-

rately each of the issues presented, grouping to-

gether a recitation of the facts and of the reasoning

and conchisions with respect to each issue? The ap-

pHcable statute is Section 1117 (b) of the Internal

Revenue Code.

STATUTES AND REGULATIONS INVOLVED

The statutes and regulations are set forth as fol-

lows: Those pertaining to the first issue in Appen-

dix A, infra, pp. 34-36 ; those pertaining to the second

issue in Appendix B, infra, pp. 37-39 ; those pertaining

to the third issue in Appendix C, infra, pp. 40-49;

those pertaining to the fourth issue in Appendix D,

infra, p. 50; and those pertaining to the fifth issue in

Appendix E, infra, p. 51.

STATEMENT

The facts have been partially stipulated. (R. 23-

30.) The record also contains oral testimony and

exhibits. (R. 86-193.) This recitation of those facts

which are pertinent to the issues on appeal will fol-

low in general the arrangement used by the Board

of Tax Appeals in its memorandum opinion; that is,

certain general facts will be stated first, following

which particular facts will be discussed as they per-

tain to each of the issues on appeal.

Two petitions were filed with the Board of Tax
Appeals seeking a redetermination of the normal

taxes, additional taxes and negligence penalties as-

serted by the Commissioner against taxpayer, Wilson
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Brothers & Company, a corporation, for the years

1932, 1933 and 1934. (R. 31.) On January 31, 1927,

F. A. Wilson and W. T. Wilson formed a partnership

under the name of Wilson Brothers & Company,

which continued to do business under that name until

the taxpayer corporation was formed and took over

that business in January, 1929. (R. 32-33.) Tax-

payer corporation was organized under Nevada law,

with an authorized capital stock of 200,000 shares of a

par value of $25 each. Twenty shares were initially

purchased by F. A. Wilson for $500 and twenty shares

were initially purchased by W. T. Wilson for $500.

No other shares have ever been issued. During the

years in question the books of taxpayer corporation

were kept on the accrual basis. (R. 33.)

(a) With respect to first issue.

In its return for 1934, taxpayer took a deduction

of $5,000 on account of indebtedness due it from

Woodhead Lumber Co. of California which was al-

leged to be partially worthless in the year 1934. The

total debt due it from Woodhead Lumber Co. of Cali-

fornia at the beginning of the year was $43,276.06.

This debt was secured by collateral consisting of a note

of another corporation (Woodhead Lumber Co. of

Nevada) for $25,000 and stock of the other corporation

having a face value of $37,000. Though there was

testimony that the collateral had little or no value,

taxpayer continued to do business with Woodhead

Lumber Co. of Nevada-. The Board concluded that

the taxpayer had failed to show that the debt due from

Woodhead Lumber Co. of California had become



worthless in the indicated amount, and found no error

in the Commissioner's disallowance of the $5,000 de-

duction claimed. (R. 37-38.)

In its return for 1934, the taxpayer deducted $5,500

on account of a debt alleged to be partially worthless

in that amount represented by bonds of Kentucky

Fuel & Gas Corporation. The bonds were a first mort-

gage upon the property of the company, which was an

operating company with considerable assets. It went

into receivership about 1931. The Board concluded

that the record did not give sufficient particulars con-

cerning the acquisition of the bonds or their cost to

furnish a basis for the deduction sought and also found

that there was nothing to show that the alleged worth-

lessness had not occurred in a prior year. It pointed

out that the bid prices for the bond declined from

$74 in 1930 to $5 in 1931, $2 in 1933 and $4.50 in 1934.

The Commissioner's disallowance of the deduction was

sustained. (R. 40-41.)

The steamship Idaho was constructed under a con-

tract with Henry Wilson, the Charles R. Wilson Es-

tate, Inc., and A. B. Johnson. Though the record is

somewhat confused upon the point, the Board deter-

mined that the original ownership shares were as fol-

lows : Henry Wilson 65/100, Charles R. Wilson Estate,

Inc., 25/100 and A. B. Johnson 10/100. (R. 41, 49-50.)

The cost of the vessel was $200,000. It was com-

pleted about February 6, 1917, and its fair market

value at that date was not less than $395,000. At that

time Henry Wilson gave away the following shares in

the vessel—to his wife, Mary Wilson, 20/100, to his

200763—41 2
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son, W. T. Wilson, 5/100, and to his son, F. A. Wilson,

5/100. (R. 41-42.)

On Jime 6, 1924, Henry Wilson gave his wife the

35/100 interest which he then still owned. In July,

1925, F. A. Wilson and W. T. Wilson bought the

10/100 owned by A. B. Johnson (and wife) for

$11,716.67. On January 2, 1929, Mary Wilson, W. T.

Wilson and F. A. Wilson conveyed their interests in

the Idaho (75/100 of it) to taxpayer corporation with-

out consideration. (R. 42-43.)

The dispute upon this appeal is about the 20/100

interest given to Mary Wilson in 1917 and given by

her to the corporation in 1929. The Board deter-

mined that it was acquired by the corporation by gift

and that its basis in the corporation's hands was the

same as the basis of the last preceding owner, who

did not acquire it by gift, namely, Henry Wilson.

Revenue Acts of 1932 and 1934, Section 113 (a) (2).

The Board therefore took as the basis for this interest

a pro rata part of the, original cost of the vessel, re-

jecting taxpayer's contention that the basis should be

a pro rata part of the value of the vessel at the date

when this interest was given to Mary Wilson. (R.

50-51.)

(c) With respect to third and fourth issues.

Taxpayer was organized to engage in the business

of logging, milling, transportation of and dealings in

lumber and operation of steamships. (R. 55-56.)

The steamships Oregon and Idaho were acquired in

1929, operated for six months and then laid up. They

continued to be laid up through the taxable years 1932,

1933 and 1934, which are the years here in question.



(R. 56.) The taxpayer corporation was preceded by

a partnership which had about $1,500,000 invested in

its business of logging, luinbermg, milling and ship-

ping, and a similar business would have required

about that much capital at the time of the hearing.

(R. 56.) However, prior to 1932 taxpayer had ceased

to carry on a logging, milling and shipping business.

Though there was an intention to reenter that busi-

ness at some time, it was not done during the tax

years in question. During those years taxpayei' en-

gaged in a small lumber business and allied business.

The logging and milling business was a losing business

during those years. (R. 56.)

Other particulars of the taxpayer's business for the

years in question are as follows (R. 56-57) :

Year Gross sales

Net losses

from opera-
tions

Dividends
from stocks

Undivided
profits

1932

1933

1934

$28, 725. 96

92, 262. 09

170, 239. 51

$11,740.89

1, 341. 36

118. 75

$18, 258. 00

17, 541. 00

25, 057. 00

$19, 309. 75

36, 732. 00

1 60, 447. 64

I Consisting of $25,447.64 shown as undivided profits and $35,000 transferred to capital account.

(R. 106, 154.)

The income tax returns filed by taxpayer show the

common stock of taxpayer to have been the follow-

ing amounts on the following dates (R. 57) :

January 1, 1929 $696,000

1, 1930 746,000

1, 1931 800,000

1, 1932 2,500,000

1, 1933 2,500,000

1, 1934 2,500,000
December 31, 1934 2,535,000

However, the only stock ever issued was that in the

amount of $1,000 originally issued to W. T. Wilson and
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F. A. Wilson. (R. 57.) Cash contributions were

made to taxpayer by F. A. Wilson and W. T. Wilson

from time to time. With such cash, taxpayer from

time to time purchased stocks of domestic corpora-

tions. (R. 57.)

The income tax returns of the taxpayer show the

following, among other things (R. 57-58) :

December 31

1932 1933 1934

Assets

Cash

Securities of Domestic Corporations

Liabilities

$1,100,377.07

1.000,943. ,50

200. 000. 00

2, .500, 000. 00

$1.022,123.4,5

1,032.190.55

.$972, 147. 49

1, 077, 778. 05

Common stock 2. '00, 000. 00 2, 535, 000. 00

However the Board found that those items should

have been as follows (R. 58)

:

Assets:

Cash, as shown by Account Books and records

Securities of Domestic Corporations as shown by Books of

account and Record (cost)

Securities of Domestic Corporations as shown by Books of

account and Record (market value)

Liabilities:

Notes payable as shown by record

Common stock per record

December 31

1932

$96, 638. 23

750, 943. 50

439, 961. 87

1.000.00

$9, 186. 43

782, 190. 55

777, 792. 00

1, 000. 00

1934

$73, 707. 36

837, 778. 05

810, 797. 75

1,000.00

The taxpayer's records carried no item of $200,000

notes payable, though such an item appeared in the

income tax returns, not only for the year 1932 as

shown but also for the years 1929, 1930 and 1931.

Taxpayer's records did not show that it possessed

any I. O. U.'s. However, large amounts of I. O. U.'s
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were included in computing the cash on hand shown

in the returns. These I. O. U.'s were given by W. T.

Wilson and F. A. Wilson. At the time of the trial,

the cash box contained an I. O. U. for $843,438.54

showing two equal items, one purportedly due from

W. T. Wilson, the other from F. A. Wilson (R. 58-

59.) :

A certified public accountant was unable to take

trial balances from taxpayer's general ledger at the

beginning and end of 1932 and at the end of 1933 and

1934 because the general ledger accounts were incom-

plete. A balance was accomplished only after Francis

Wilson, an officer, furnished the accountant with in-

formation concerning the identity of certain additional

accounts. One of the items on the books dated Jan-

uary 31 (no year) was labeled "transfer from treas-

ury stock $10,000". W. T. Wilson testified ''we put

in that much cash to take it up." The ledger of the

corporation carried two accounts headed "treasury

stock" totaling $250,000 but there was, in fact, no

treasury stock. The corporate books did not indicate

the years in which the recorded transactions occurred.

(R. 50.)

No dividends or salaries to officers were paid by

taxpayer between the date of its incorporation and

the end of the last taxable year here involved. (R.

59.) No federal income taxes were paid by either

W. T. Wilson or F. A. Wilson in the years 1932, 1933

or 1934, except about $150 paid by W. T. Wilson

in 1932. (R. 59.)



10

Taxpayer's books show accounts receivable from

F. A. Wilson as follows (R. 59-60)

:

Year Charges Credits
Net Due

December 31

1933 $82, 597. 77

62, 199. 38

$39. 363. 40

69,821.25

$43, 234. 37

35 612 501934....

On January 2, 1935, F. A. Wilson was credited with

$35,612.50 by the purchasers of certain stock. The gen-

eral ledger trial balance shows a different sum as of De-

cember 31, 1933, namely, $28,091.96. (R 60.)

Accounts receivable from W. Wilson (presumably

W. T. Wilson) are shown as $17,717.88, $16,917.88 and

$16,917.88 at the ends of the years 1932, 1933 and 1934,

respectively. (R. 60.)

The Board concluded that the record was unsatis-

factory and often contradictory and that the corporate

books were kept in no normal manner. (R. 60.)

Primarily, taxpayer was a holding or investment com-

pany in the tax years in question, actual business op-

erations being so few and far between that vouchers

instead of a cashbook were used to record them. No
dividends or salaries to officers were being paid.

(R. 60-61.)

The sole stockholders contributed large sums of cash

to taxpayer. The testimony of one of them was that

such contributions amounted to nearly $1,300,000

though there is much contradiction in the record and

that figure is not accepted by the Board. (R. 61-62.)

W. T. Wilson testified to the following contributions

of cash and other assets: December, 1928, $695,000;

January 1, 1929, $50,000 ; January, 1930, $54,000; Janu-
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ary 1, 1931, $480,000; and to the contribution of

$1,700,000 in I. O. U.'s. He testified to a transfer of

$35,000 from profit and loss to surplus and then from

surplus to capital, though there was a net loss from

operations. He explained an increase in cash on hand

from $56,593.58 in December, 1930, to $1,642,298.24 in

December, 1931, by saying '*we just put a few I. O. U.'s

in the cash box" and that I. O. U.'s were used right

along. The two Wilsons for four consecutive years

swore to income tax returns showing large amounts of

cash which was really not cash at all but I. O. U.'s

(R. 62.)

The same sworn statements for four consecutive

years represented notes payable of $200,000 contrary

to the facts, stocks of domestic corporations in the

amount of $250,000 more than was the fact, and a

capitalization of the taxpayer from $696,000 to

$2,535,000 in excess of what it in fact was. (R. 62-

63.) Thus, while no particular statement is worthy

of consideration because of the many contradictions,

it is apparent that the stockholders did contribute

large amounts in cash and other assets with which

stock and some bonds were purchased by the taxpayer.

(R. 63.)

There was testimony by one witness that $1,500,000

would be needed to carry on in 1939 a business compa-

rable to that carried on by the partnership prior to

1929, but there was no testimony pertaining to the re-

quirements of such a business in the tax years in ques-

tion, namely, 1932 to 1934. Whereas, the testimony

indicates that some lumber business was carried on



12

during those years, the large lumbering and milling

business which the partnership had engaged in was not

carried on and there was no showing that the accumula-

tions from securities which were not distributed in the

years in questioii were a business necessity. There

was no showing of any intent to resume a business of

the size formerly carried on by the partnership nor

were any details given as to the real scope of the busi-

ness which was expected to be undertaken. (R. 63-64.)

The failure to make an adequate showing as to alleged

future business needs was emphasized by the failure to

show the business necessity for the large contributions

of cash to the corporation which were invested in secu-

rities. The Board concluded that the taxpayer had not

satisfied the burden of proving that earnings were not

accumulated beyond business needs and that taxpayer

was not availed of in the tax years to avoid surtaxes to

its stockholders. (R. 65.)

The Board thought its conclusion strengthened by

the credits permitted to stockholders which would not

have been permitted if the accumulations were needed

for business capital and by the fact that the corporation

was used by the two stockholders, not wholly for legiti-

mate business purj^oses, but as a sort of incorporated

family pocketbook. (R. 65-66.)

The Board also concluded that taxpayer's method of

keeping books and making returns was negligent. It

determined that a part of the deficiency obviously was

due to this negligence and imposed the 5 percent

penalty. (R. 67.)
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SirMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. It is in the Commissioner's discretion to allow

or not to allow a deduction for debts alleged to have

become partially worthless in the tax year. When the

Commissioner has refused to allow such a deduction

the inquiry of the Court is limited to the question

whether the Commissioner has abused his discretion,

that is, whether he has acted arbitrarily and capri-

ciously. An additional requisite for such a deduction

is that the taxpayer must have ascertained that the

portion of the debt claimed as a deduction became

worthless in the tax year for which the deduction is

sought. Whether the taxpayer did so ascertain is a

question of fact as to which the finding of the Board

of Tax Appeals is conclusive if supported by substan-

tial evidence.

Taxpayer claimed that a $43,000 del)t due it from

Woodhead Lumber Company of California became

worthless to the extent of $5,000 in the tax year. It is

inherently improbable that the taxpayer could have as-

certained with any degree of certainty that so small a

part as one-ninth of the debt became worthless in the

tax year. The only evidence to support its claim was

the interested testimony of one of taxpayer's two

stockholders, which was vague and contained an ad-

mission that there was substantial security behind the

debt. As to bonds of Kentucky Fuel & Gas Corpora-

tion alleged to have been partially worthless in the tax

year, there was no adequate showing of cost. Further-

more, the taxpayer 's own evidence clearly discloses that

200763—41 3
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the partial worthlessness alleged had occurred prior to

the tax year.

Taxpayer did not sustain the burden of proving that

either of these debts became worthless to the extent

claimed in the tax year and did not show facts indi-

cating that the Conmiissioner abused his discretion in

refusing the deductions.

2. Taxpayer disputes the Board's determination as

to the basis for depreciation purposes of a one-fifth

interest in the steamship IdaJio acquired by the tax-

payer as a gift from the mother of its two shareholders

or acquired by -the shareholders as a gift from their

mother and contributed by them to the taxpayer's capi-

tal. The mother had acqiiired this interest as a gift

from her husband. Taxpayer claims that the basis in

the corporation's hands should be the same as it was in

the mother's, that is, it should be the fair market value

of the property when given to the mother. However,

the statute is clear that in the case of two consecutive

gifts of the same property, the second donee is required

to take the basis of the first donor. In the instant case,

that means that the taxpayer's basis for the interest in

question is the cost of that interest to the father of tax-

payer's shareholders, as the Board found.

3. Taxpayer carried on a small lumber business in

the tax years in question. It maintained during those

years a very large balance of cash and securities. The

income from those securities was not distributed to the

two shareholders of taxpayer but was accumulated.

That failure to distribute saved the shareholders some
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surtaxes. The cash and securities held by taxpayer

exceeded taxpayer's current needs for working capital.

The explanation that taxpayer intended to greatly ex-

pand its business is given only by the interested testi-

mony of one of taxpayer's two shareholders. This

testimony w^as vague and, for adequate reasons ad-

vanced by the Board, hardly credible. There is sub-

stantial evidence to support the Board's conclusion

that the taxpayer was primarily a holding or invest-

ment company, that its earnings were accumulated

beyond its reasonable business needs, and that it was

availed of to avoid the imposition of surtax upon its

shareholders.

4. It is a reasonable inference from the record in

the instant case that at least a part of the deductions

claimed by the taxpayer in its returns and disallowed

by the Board of Tax Appeals were claimed because of

the carelessness of the taxpayer in keeping its records,

making its returns, or studying the applicable statutes

and Treasury Regulations. The Board was justified

in finding that at least a part of the deficiency was due

to negligence. Under the applicable statute, the pen-

alty was properly imposed upon the entire amount of

the deficiency.

5. The Board was not required to separate its find-

ings of fact from its opinion. The arrangement of its

memorandum opinion was a matter for its own dis-

cretion. The arrangement it chose was best calculated

to promote a clear understanding of a lengthy and

complicated case.
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ARGUMENT

I

The Board correctly refused to upset the Commissioner's de-

termination not to allow certain deductions claimed by the

taxpayer in 1934 on account of debts alleged to be partially

worthless

Section 23 (k) of the Revenue Act of 1934, Appendix

A, infra, authorizes deductions for debts ascertained

to be partially or wholly worthless and charged oft

accordingly. The allowance of a deduction for a par-

tially worthless debt, as distinguished from a debt which

is wholly worthless, is within the Commissioner's dis-

cretion. The statutory words are "and when satisfied

that a debt is recoverable only in part, the Commis-

in an fimount not in ^xQm^. of tJ ^_^ ^i^miAi €tdi} $^

taxpayer's determination that a specific part of the

debt has become worthless, the Commissioner's judg-

ment is controlling. The Commissioner's decision may

be upset by the courts only if it cannot be reasonably

supported upon any theory, that is, only as it represents

arbitrary and capricious action amounting to abuse of

discretion. Olympia Harbor Lumber Co. v. Commis-

sioner, 79 F. (2d) 394 (C. C. A. 9th) ; United States v.

Beckman, 104 F. (2d) 260 (C. C. A. 3rd), certiorari de-

nied sub nom. Doty v. United States, 308 U. S. 593;

Stranahan v. Commissioner, 42 F. (2d) 729 (C. C. A.

6th), certiorari denied, 283 U. S. 822; Commissioner

V. Liberty Bank & Trust Co., 59 F. (2d) 320 (C. C. A.

6th) ; Ross v. Commissioner, 72 F. (2d) 122 (C. C. A.

7th) ; Clark v. Commissioner, 85 F. (2d) 622 (C. C. A.

3rd).
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It has been held repeatedly that, as in the case of a

deduction clamied for a wholly uncollectible debt, a de-

duction for part of a debt will be allowed only if it is

shown that that part was ascertained to have become

worthless in the taxable year for which deduction is

sought. American Sav. Bank dc Trust Co. v. Burnet,

45 F. (2d) 548 (C. C. A. 9th) ; Pacific Nat. Bank v. Com-

missioner, 91 F. (2d) 103, 105 (C. C. A. 9th) ; Santa

Wonica Mountain Park Co. v. United States, 20 F.

Supp. 209, 211 (S. D. CaL), affirmed, 99 F. (2d) 450

(C. C. A. 9th), certiorari granted and dismissed by

stipulation of counsel, 306 U. S. QQQ; Jones v. Commis-

sioner, 38 F. (2d) 550 (C. C. A. 7th) ; Hotter y. Wallace,

72 F. (2d) 678 (C. C. A. 10th) ; Austin v. Helvering, 11

F. (2d) 373, 374 (App. D. C.) ; Johnson, Drake & Piper

V. Helvering, 69 F. (2d) 151 (C. C. A. 8th), certiorari

denied, 292 U. S. 650."

We think that the same conclusion is compelled by

the Treasury Regulations. Article 23 (k)-l of Treas-

- Mooch Electric Supply Co. v. Commissioner^ 41 B. T. A. 1209,

quoted from by taxpayer (Br. 26), is not to the contrary. The
quotation which taxpayer gives lacks this significant sentence

which immediately follows it (p. 1212) :

Total worthlessness or disposition of the obligation remained
open to this petitioner as a ground for deduction, notwith-

standing the possibility that partial worthlessness may have
appeared in an earlier year.

The rationale of the Mooch opinion and of cases like Blair v. Com-
missioner, 91 F. (2d) 992 (C. C. A. 2d), which it cites, is that a

taxpayer may wait until a debt is wholly uncollectible before tak-

ing any deduction. These cases do not hold that a debt which
becomes uncollectible by 50 per cent in year A and is still uncol-

lectible by that amount in year B may be deducted to the extent of
50 per cent in either year A or year B, as the taxpayer may choose.
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iiry Regulations 86, pertaining to the 1934 Act, Appen-

dix A, infra, reads in part

:

Before a taxpayer may charge off and deduct a

debt in part, he must ascertain and be able to

demonstrate, with a reasonable degree of cer-

tainty, the amount thereof which is uncollectible.

The same provision has appeared in all Treasury Regu-

lations from 1921 to date."* It has come to have the

force of law. Helvering v. Wilshire Oil Co., 308 U. S.

90; Helvering v. Winmill, 305 U. S. 79, 83; Morgan v.

Commissioner, 309 U. S. 78, 81.

If the law were otherwise, a taxpayer who had once

ascertained that a debt was worthless in a given amount

could take a deduction for that amount in any year

thereafter when it best suited him, or, if he chose, could

divide the worthless portion up into as many parts as

was convenient and take a deduction for one part in

each of several years. "The mind rebels against the

notion that Congress * * * was willing to foster

an opportunity for juggling so facile and so obvious.'^

Woolford Realty Co. v. Rose, 286 U. S. 319, 330.

It may be observed also that the question "When did

the taxpayer first ascertain the partial worthlessness

claimed * * *?" is a question of fact. The burden

is upon the taxpayer to show that it was ascertained in

the year for which the deduction is claimed, and the

^ Treasury Regulations 62, 1921 Act, Article lol ; Treasury

Regulations 65, 1924 Act, Article 151; Treasury Regulations 69,

1926 Act, Article 151 ; Treasmy Regulations 74, 1928 Act, Article

191; Treasury Regulations 77, 1932 Act, Article 191; Treasury

Regulations 94, 1936 .Vet, Article 23 (k)-l ; Treasury Regulations

101, 1938 Act, Article 23 (k)-l ; Treasury Regulations 103, Inter-

nal Revenue Code, Section 19.23 (k)-l.
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determination of the Board upon the point must be

sustained by the Circuit Court of Appeals, if supported

by any substantial evidence. Theatre Inv. Co. v. Com-

missioner, 119 F. (2d) 477 (C. C. A. 9th) ; UM Estate

Co. V. Commissioner, 116 F. (2d) 403, 405 (C. C. A.

9th) ; Person Const. Co. v. Commissioner, 116 F. (2d)

94, 95' (C. C. A. 7th) ; Curtis v. Helvering, 110 F. (2d)

1014 (CCA. 2d).

In the light of the foregoing analysis, it will be evi-

dent that there is no basis for reversal of the decision

of the Board which affirmed the disallowance by the

Commissioner of claimed deductions for partial worth-

lessness of the debt due the taxpayer from Woodhead

Lumber Company and of the indebtedness represented

by Kentucky Fuel & Gas Corporation bonds owned by

the taxpayer. Both deductions were claimed in the

year 1934.

At the beginning of 1934, taxpayer was owed about

$43,000 by Woodhead Lumber Company, and has

claimed partial worthlessness of only $5,000, or about

one-ninth of the total debt. On its face, this claim

would be more reasonable if it was for an addition to

bad debt reserve. However, taxpayer admits that it

does not have that character. Therefore, taxpayer has

left itself with a very difficult burden of proof, that is,

the burden of showing, as the applicable regulation

(quoted supra) requires, that $5,000 may, with a rea-

sonable degree of certainty, be said to be the amomit by

which this $43,000 debt became worthless in 1934.

The only testimony on that point was the interested

testimony of W. T. Wilson, half owner of the taxpayer

corporation, appearing at pages 94-96 and 110-111 of
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the record. This testimony is obviously of such a con-

fused character as to give no clear picture of the

debtor's true condition. Nothing so certain as a bal-

ance sheet of the debtor is offered and analyzed. The

witness admitted that collateral was held consisting of

a $25,000 note of another corporation and $37,000 face

amount of the other corporation's stock. It was the

Board's function to appraise the testimony of this wit-

ness and its judgment that such testimony did not sus-

tain the burden upon taxpayer i^ binding upon the

appellate court. Helvering v. Nat. Grocery Co., 304

U. S. 282, 294-295.

Two patent defects appear in the taxpayer's case

for a deduction of partial worthlessness of bonds of

Kentucky Fuel & Gas Corporation. First, cost was

shown only by entries upon the taxpayer's books dated

at the end of each year. (R. 127, 170.) The inaccu-

racy of those books fully appears from that portion

of the Board's opinion (R. 54-67) which relates to

what we call third issue (discussed infra under Point

III). The Board was entirely justified in rejecting

those book entries in the absence of some substantiating

evidence concerning the transactions by which the

bonds were acquired and the i)rices paid for them.

Second, the testimony of the accountant, upon which

the taxpayer must rely for the claimed deduction,

clearly shows that the partial worthlessness claimed

had occurred and was ascertained in a prior year.

The bonds dropjjed from a bid price of $74 in 1930 to

$5 in 1931, $1.25 in 1932, $2 in 1933, and $4.50 in 1934

(the year in which deduction was claimed). (R.

127-128.)
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II

The Board correctly determined that the donee's basis for

property which was the subject of two consecutive gifts

was the cost to the first donor

The dispute here has to do solely with ^% o o interest

in the steamship Idaho, which was given by Henry

Wilson to his wife on February 16, 1917, and in turn

transferred by her to the taxpayer corporation (which

was owned by her two sons) in 1929. The question is

what basis to assign to the property in taxpayer's hands

for depreciation purposes.

The transfer by Mary Wilson to taxpayer corpora-

tion amounted either to a gift to the corporation or a

gift to F. A. and W. T. Wilson, Mary's sons, and capi-

tal contributions by them to taxpayer. If the latter,

the capital contributions were tax-free when made.

Cf. Treasury Regulations 74, Article 67, Appendix B,

mfra. Consequently taxpayer's basis for the purposes

of depreciation computations in 1932, 1933 and 1934,

the years here involved, is the basis (with adjustments)

of the property in the hands of the Wilson brothers,

transferors to the corporation. Revenue Acts of 1932

and 1934, Section 113 (a) (8), 113 (b), and 114 (a).

Appendix B, mfra. Since the Wilson brothers ob-

tained the contributed property by gift in 1929, their

basis is to be determined by Section 113 (a) (2) of the

Revenue Act of 1928, c. 852, 45 Stat. 791, the pertinent

portion of which is unchanged in Section 113 (a) (2)

of the Revenue Acts of 1932 and 1934, Appendix B,

infra.

On the other hand, if the 1929 transfer by Mary Wil-

son to taxpayer corporation was a gift directly to tax-

200763—41 4
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payer, then its basis must be determined by Section

113 (a) (2) of the Revenue Acts of 1932 and 1934,

Appendix B, infra.'

Thus either analysis leads to the same basic statutory

provision (appearing- in Section 113 (a) (2) of the 1928,

1932 and 1931 Acts.) That provision is

:

If the property was acquired by gift after De-
cember 31, 1920, the basis shall be the same as it

would be in the hands of the donor or the last

preceding owner by whom it was not acquired by
gift.

The obvious purport of this provision is as follows:

If the proi^erty is purchased by A and given to B, B
shall take A's cost (with adjustments) as his basis; and

if property is purchased by A, who gives it to B, who

gives it to C, C shall take A's cost (with adjustments)

as his basis.

Section 113 (a) (4) of the 1928, 1932 and 1934 Acts

provides that property given before 1921 shall have a

basis in the donee's hands equal to its fair market

value at the time of the gift. Taxpayer argues that

w^here A gives to B before 1921 and B gives to C after

1921, C should take B's basis (value of the property

when given to B) instead of cost to A. Such a result

ignores the fact that Section 113 (a) (4) has no bearing

upon C's basis, which must be determined by Section

113 (a) (2). Such a result would violate the express

mandate of the words "the basis shall be the same as

it would be in the hands of * * * the last preced-

* Point 3 of taxpayer's brief (pp. 27-32) is in error in looking

to an earlier statute to determine basis in taxpayer's hands for the

purpose of the years 1032, 1933, and 1934.
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ing owner by whom it was not acquired by gift" used

in Section 113 (a) (2). We believe no further argu-

ment is required to demonstrate that the taxpayer's

position is wholly untenable.

Taxpayer hints at unconstitutionality, charging a

retroactive application of the statute. This charge is

based upon the fact that the first of the sequence of two

gifts was made prior to 1921, when the above-quoted

provisions first appeared in the tax laws (as Section 202

(a) (2) of the Revenue Act of 1921, c. 136, 42 Stat. 227).

This is not significant. When the 1929 gift was made

by Mary Wilson, the quoted provision was in effect and

both donor and donee were upon notice of the basis

which the donee would be required to take. Further-

more, Congress could, if it chose, have taxed the entire

amount of a gift as income to the donee, either when

received or when converted into cash. Donating prop-

erty costs the donee nothing. Thus, the quoted statu-

tory provision merely provides a method for alleviating

the hardship which would result to the donee from as-

signing a zero basis to gift property. The taxpayer

cannot complain about the mechanics employed by Con-

gress in fixing that basis so as to prevent the accrual of

tax-free increments of value. Helvering v. Campbell,

decided by the Supreme Court March 31, 1941, not offi-

cially reported but found in 1941 C. C. H., Vol. 4, par.

9359; Helvering v. Reynolds, decided by the Supreme
Court May 26, 1941, not officially reported but found in

1941 C. C. H., Vol. 4, par. 9484.
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III

The Board's determination that taxpayer corporation was
availed of in the years 1932, 1933 and 1934 to avoid surtax

upon its shareholders is supported by substantial evidence

The applicable statutes are Section 104 of the Revenue

Act of 1932 and Section 102 of the Revenue Act of 1934

(Appendix C, infra) . They provide, in effect, that the

income of a corporation (including dividends received

by it) shall be subject to a surtax if the corporation was

formed or availed of for the purpose of preventing the

imposition of surtax upon its shareholders through the

medium of permitting gains and profits to accumulate

instead of being distributed. Each statute provides

that if a corporation is a mere holding or investment

company, or if its gains or profits are permitted to ac-

cmnulate beyond its reasonable business needs, either

of those facts shall be prima facie evidence of a pur-

pose to avoid surtax.

In the instant case the Board found that the taxpayer

corporation, though not formed to avoid surtax to its

shareholders, was availed of for that purpose in each

of the years 1932, 1933 and 1934. That determination,

and the subsidiary determinations that the corporation

was primarily a mere holding or investment company

and that its gains or profits were accumulated beyond

its reasonable business needs, are determinations which

must be affirmed if supported by any substantial evi-

dence ; also, since the burden of proof was on the tax-

payer, they may be supported by the presumption of

correctness of the Commissioner's determination in the

absence of adequate rebutting evidence. Uelvervng v.
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Nat. Grocery Co., 304 U. S. 282; Perry & Co. v. Com-

missioner (C. C. A. 9th), decided May 23, 1941, not

officially reported but found in 1941 C. C. H., Vol. 4,

par. 9492 ; Commissioner v. Cecil B. de Mille Produc-

tions, 90 F. (2d) 12 (C. C. A. 9tli), certiorari denied,

302 U. S. 713 ; R. L. Blaffer d Co. v. Commissioner, 103

F. (2d) 487 (C. C. A. 5th), certiorari denied, 308 U. S.

576; Almours Securities v. Commissioner, 91 F. (2d)

427 (C. C. A. 5th) ; A. D. Saenger, Inc. v. Commis-

sioner, 84 F. (2d) 23 (C. C. A. 5th).

We take the liberty of reproducing for the Court

the Rule 50 recomputation made pursuant to the

Board's opinion and approved by the Board of the net

income of taxpayer corporation and dividends received

by the taxpayer in each of the years 1932, 1933 and 1934

(not in the record) :

Year
Net income
e.xclusive of
dividends

Dividends Total

1932 -.. - ($11. 624. 33)

10, 908. 61

13, 905. 79

$18, 258. 00

17, 541. 00

25, 057. 00

$6, 633. 67

1933 28, 449. 61

1934 38, 962. 79

The foregoing figures compare with the following

reported in the taxpayer's returns for the indicated

years (R. 132-156)

:

Year
Net income
e.xclusive of

dividends
Dividends Total

1932 ($11, 740. 89)

(118. 75)

(1,341.36)

$18, 258. 00

17,541.00

25, 057. 00

$6,517 11

1933 17, 422. 25

23, 715. 641934

The returns of taxpayer's stockholders, W. T. Wil-

son and F. A. Wilson, are not in the record. From oral
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testimony the Board found that neither paid any in-

come tax in the tax years in question except that W. T.

Wilson paid about $150 tax in 1932. (R. 59.) Tax-

payer seeks to attach significance to the fact that the

Commissioner failed to produce the returns of these

individuals. (Br. 56.) The burden of proof being

upon the taxpayer, any unfavorable inference from

failure to produce those returns must redound against

the taxpayer rather than the Commissioner. Conse-

quently, for the purposes of this analysis, we are en-

titled to assume that in each of the years when no tax

was paid by individual stockholders, the addition of a

single dollar to the income of either would have re-

sulted in tax.

It is apparent that for the years 1933 and 1934 a

distribution of taxpayer's earnings would have placed

the income of both shareholders in surtax brackets,

whether the earnings found by the Board or those re-

ported in taxpayer's returns are used. In 1933 sur-

taxes started with $6,000 net income and in 1934 with

$4,000 net income. Revenue Acts of 1932 and 1934,

Section 12. The di:fference between the two statutes

is compensated for, however, by the fact that in com-

puting income subject to surtax, credits for personal

exemption and dependents (Sec. 25) are not allowed

under the 1932 Act, whereas they are allowed under the

1934 Act. Thus, under either statute we are entitled

to assume that a distribution of about $4,000 from the

taxpayer corporation to, each of its two shareholders

would have brought the income of each shareholder into

the surtax brackets. The income available for distri-
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bution was considerably in excess of $4,000 for each of

the two shareholders.

In 1932 it may be assumed, perhaps, that a distribu-

tion of earnings would not have resulted in surtax to

F. A. Wilson. But it certainly would have put the

income of W. T. Wilson into the surtax brackets, for

he paid a tax of $150, indicating an income over and

above personal exemption and credit for dependents of

approximately $3,750. Adding to this amount $3,000

from the taxpayer and an exemption and credit for

dependents of, say, $3,000 would give him an income

of about $10,000, well within the surtax area.

It cannot be denied, therefore, that surtaxes to the

individual shareholders of taxpayer were avoided by

not distributing to them the earnings of taxpayer which

accumulated in each of the tax years in question. The

fact that the surtaxes avoided were small is certainly not

conclusive of no purpose to avoid surtax. Equally in-

conclusive is the fact that in one of the years only one

of the two shareholders was saved from surtax by tax-

payer's retention of its earnings.

An argument is made (Br. 42^4) that the earnings

available for distribution should be deemed reduced by

a shrinkage in value of assets such as securities, notes,

and accounts receivable. The Board found that tax-

payer owned securities in the following amounts in each

of the years in question (R. 58) :

Year Market value Cost

1932 Approximately $440, 000

778, 000

810, 000

$751, 000

1933 782, 000

1934 838, 000
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It is readily apparent that considerable fluctuation in

value of such a large block of securities is inevitable and

is not material to the issue whether the income from

those securities has been withheld from distribution to

the shareholders for the purpose of saving them sur-

taxes. That it is not material has been established by

authoritative decisions. Helvering v. Nat, Grocery Co.,

supra; A. D. Saenger, Inc. v. Commissioner, supra. It

is even more readily apparent that that issue is not

affected by the fact that taxpayer may have thought

certain accounts receivable among its assets were par-

tially worthless, or that certain bonds had declined in

value below their cost to the taxpayer. See taxpayer's

\

•ttally worthies 8 debte, and
real unzieoessarily aoovxmulated

11 iiciii^xc^ yji.Li.y tiic xuiiuwing gross lumber business

(R. 56, 58) :

Year Gross sales
Cash and securities on

hand

1932 $28, 725. 96

92, 262. 09

170, 239. .51

Approximately .$536,000.

1933 -- 787,000.

1934 884,000.

It is also significant that the business carried on by

taxpayer made no profit in any of the three years and

that the income which accrued and was accimiulated in

each year resulted from dividends upon its investments

in securities. We do not believe that a reasonable ar-

gument could be made to the effect that the very large

accumulation of cash and securities available to the
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taxpayer was necessary to carry on the business which

it did in the tax years in question.

Taxpayer's principal claim (Br. 32-61) is that it

contemplated a renewal of operations on a very much

larger scale, including the operation of its boats and

the carrying on of milling and logging business. It

points to the testimony of one of its two stockholders

that for such a business a capital of $1,500,000 was

required.

The Board rightfully deemed that the testimony of

taxpayer's shareholder concerning the purpose to ex-

pand and the amount of capital which would be re-

quired, was inadequate to sustain the burden upon the

taxpayer. This testimony appears at pages 101 et seq.

of the record. It is of a vague and general character.

No details of the expansion contemplated are given.

No time for the expansion is set or estimated. Though

the reason for the restricted business in the tax years

was said to be the business depression, there is no tes-

timony that the expansion had occurred at any time

prior to the trial in 1939 ; it is common knowledge that

a business recovery had occurred before that time.

The testimony concerning the need for capital of

$1,500,000 related to the time of the trial. No estimate

was made for the capital which would have been neces-

sary to resume the full business in the tax years or

immediately thereafter.

In addition to the vagueness of the testimony, the

Board was reluctant to give it full credence because of

the many inconsistencies in the sworn statements of the

witness and his brother. (R. 62-67.) The weight and
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credibility of interested testimony of this type is for

the Board to determine. If it had so chosen, the Board

could have disregarded this testimony altogether.

Helvering v. Nat. Grocery Co., supra, at pp. 494-495.

From the whole record, it was reasonable to infer

that in the years 1932 to 1934, inclusive, taxpayer had

no such inmiediate intention to greatly expand as would

require the accumulation of securities income on top

of the securities and cash already held. It was rea-

sonable to infer that taxpayer was to be used primarily

as a holding or investment company, not only in the

tax years, as the Board found, but in subsequent years

as well. Its large investments in bonds and stocks

were accumulated to a great extent out of contributions

to the capital of the corporation by its tw^o shareholders.

Cf. Helvering v. Nat. Grocery Co., supra; Perry & Co.

V. Commissioner, supra; R. L. Blaffer <& Co. v. Com-

missi07ier, supra. It was rather obviously the incorpo-

rated pocketbook of the Wilson family. Cf. R. L.

Blaffer d Co. v. Commissioner, supra; Ahnours Securi-

ties V. Commissioner, supra; A. D. Saenger, Inc. v.

Commissioner, supra. The existence of large accounts

receivable from its two shareholders in each of the

years in question is indicative that the accumulations

of earnings w^ere not necessary for w^orking capital.

Cf. Helvering v. Nat. Grocery Co., supra; Perry & Co.

V. Commissioner, supra; A. D. Saenger, Inc. v. Com-

missioner, supra; United Business Corp. v. Commis-

sioner, 62 F. (2d) 754 (C-. C. A. 2d), certiorari denied,

290 U. S. 635.

Typical of the taxpayer's protest against the Board's

findings is its statement (Br. 53) that there is not a
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shred of evidence to support the Board's conclusion

that accounts receivable from ''W. Wilson" shown on

the books were accounts receivable from W. T. Wilson,

half owner and treasurer of the taxpayer corporation.

Taxpayer, who bore the burden of proof, has not sug-

gested who else ''W, Wilson" might be or made any

reasonable explanation for loans to some other party

than W. T. Wilson.

We submit that there is ample evidence to sustain

the Board's determination that taxpayer was primarily

a holding or investment company, that earnings were

accumulated beyond the reasonable needs of its busi-

ness, and that it was availed of to avoid surtaxes to its

stockholders in the tax years in question.

IV

The Board's imposition of the negligence penalty should be

sustained

While the specific items of negligence and resulting

deficiency giving rise to the penalty were not recited by

the Board, we believe there is substantial evidence to

support the Board's conclusions that some part of the

deficiency flowed from the taxpayer's negligence.

Under the statute, the penalty falls upon the entire

deficiency if any part of it is due to negligence. Rev-

enue Acts of 1932 and 1934, Section 293 (a). Appendix

D, infra.

The negligence penalty certainly is warranted if the

taxpayer takes deductions the improper size or char-

acter of which would have been revealed by careful

bookkeeping or a reasonably careful analysis of ihe
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statutes and regulations. We believe the penalty to

be warranted when a deduction is taken, though its

propriety can be neither proved nor disproved because

of carelessly incomplete records. It is a fair inference

from this record that at least some of the deductions

disallowed by the Board resulted from careless or in-

complete bookkeeping or a failure to make a reasonably

careful attempt to follow the law and Treasury rules.

V

The form of the Board's memorandum opinion reveals no

error

The Board was not required to make separate fact

findings and separately state conclusions of law. No

form for a memorandum opinion is specified by statute.

Internal Revenue Code, Section 1117 (b), Appendix E,

infra. California Iron Yards Co. v. Commissioner, 47

F. (2d) 514, 518 (C. C. A. 9th) ;
Insurance d Title

Guarantee Co. v. Commissioner, 36 F. (2d) 842 (C. C. A.

2d), certiorari denied, 281 U. S. 748; Emerald Oil Co.

V. Commissioner, 72 F. (2d) 681 (C. C. A. 10th). The

Board's separate grouping of the facts and discussion

pertaining to each issue is, to say the least, helpful to a

clear consideration of this case. It is hard to see how

this wise arrangement can seriously be criticized,

though taxpayer has undertaken to do so. We think

taxpayer unwarranted in inferring that the Board, in

discussing each issue, closed its mind to the facts and

circumstances recited in connection with other issues.

The fair assumption is, we think, that the facts pri-

marily concerning each issue were analyzed by the

Board against the background of the entire case.
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CONCLUSION

The decision of the Board of Tax Appeals should be

affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

Samuel O. Claek, Jr.,

Assistant Attorney General.

J. Louis Monarch,

Arthur A. Armstrong,

Special Assistayits to the Attorney General.

June, 1941.



APPENDIX A

STATUTE AND REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO FIRST ISSUE

Revenue Act of 1934, c. 277A, 48 Stat. 680:

Sec. 23. Deductions from gross income.

In computing net income there shall be al-

lowed as deductions

:

* * * * *

(k) Bad Debts.—Debts ascertained to be
worthless and charged off within the taxable

year (or, in the discretion of the Commissioner,
a reasonable addition to a reserve for bad
debts) ; and when satisfied that a debt is recov-

erable only in x)art, the Commissioner may allow

such debt, in an amount not in excess of the part
charged off within the taxable year, as a deduc-
tion.

* * » * *

(U. S. C, Title 26, Sec. 23.)

Treasury Regulations 86, promulgated under the

Revenue Act of 1934:

Art. 23 (k)-l. Bad debts.—Bad debts may be
treated in either of two ways

—

(1) By a deduction from income in respect

of debts ascertained to be worthless in whole
or in part, or

(2) By a deduction from income of an addi-
tion to a reserve for bad debts.

* * * •St 4(.

If all the surrounding and attending circum-
stances indicate that a debt is worthless, either
wholly or in part^ the amount which is worthless
and charged off or written down to a nominal
amount on the books of the taxpayer shall be
allowed as a deduction in computing net income.

(34)
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There should accompany the return a statement

showing the propriety of any deduction claimed

for bad debts. No deduction shall be allowed

for the part of a debt ascertained to be worthless

and charged off prior to January 1, 1921, unless

and until the debt is ascertained to be totally

worthless and is finally charged off or is written

down to a nominal amount, or the loss is deter-

mined in some other manner by a closed and
completed transaction. Before a taxpayer may
charge off and deduct a debt in part, he must as-

certain and be able to demonstrate, with a rea-

sonable degree of certainty, the amount thereof
which is uncollectible. Any am,ount subse-

quently received on account of a bad debt or on
account of a part of such debt previously charged
off and allowed as a deduction for income tax
purposes, must be included in gross income for
the taxable year in which received. In deter-

mining whether a debt is worthless in whole or
in part the Commissioner will consider all per-
tinent evidence, including the value of the col-

lateral, if any, securing the debt and the financial

condition of the debtor. Partial deductions will

be allowed with respect to specific debts only.*****
Art. 23. (k)-4. Worthless hovds and similar

obligations.—Bonds, if ascertained to be w^orth-

less, may be treated as bad debts to the amount
actually paid for them. Bonds of an insolvent
corporation secured only by a mortgage from
which on foreclosure nothing is realized for the
bondholders are regarded as ascertained to be
worthless not later than the year of the fore-
closure sale, and no deduction for a bad debt is

allowable in computing a bondholder's income
for a subsequent year.

A taxpayer (other than a dealer in securities)
possessing debts evidenced by bonds or other
similar obligations can not deduct from gross
income any amount merely on account of mar-
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ket fluctuation. If a taxpayer ascertains, bow-
ever, that due, for instance, to the financial

condition of the debtor, or conditions otlier tlian

market fluctuation, be will recover upon ma-
turity none or only a part of the debt evidenced
by the bonds or other similar obligations and so

demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Commis-
sioner, he may deduct in computing net income
the uncollectible part of the debt evidenced by
the bonds or other similar obligations.



APPENDIX B

STATUTES AND EEGULATIONS PERTAINING TO SECOND ISSUE

Revenue Acts of 1932, c. 209, 47 Stat. 169; and 1934,

c. 277, 48 Stat. 680:

The following provisions are identical in the two

Acts, except that the italicized portion of Section 113

(a) (2) appears in the 1934 Act only; and of Section

114 (a) in the 1932 Act only.

Sec. 113. Adjusted basis for determining
GAIN or loss.

(a) Basis (Unadjusted) of property.—The
basis of property shall be the cost of such prop-
erty; except that

—

^ * * * *

(2) Gifts after Decemher 31, 1020.—li the
property was acquired by gift after December 31,

1920, the basis shall be the same as it would be in

the hands of the donor or the last preceding owner
by whom it was not acquired by gift, except that

for the purpose of determining loss the basis

shall he the basis so determined or the fair market
value of the property at the time of the gift,

whichever is lower. If the facts necessary to

determine the basis in the hands of the donor
or the last preceding owner are unknown to the

donee, the Commissioner shall, if possible, obtain
such facts from such donor or last preceding
owner, or any other person cognizant thereof. If
the Commissioner finds it impossible to obtain
such facts, the basis in the hands of such donor or
last preceding owner shall be the fair market
value of such property as found by the Commis-
sioner as of the date or approximate date at

which, according to the best information that the

(37)
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Commissioner is able to obtain, such property
was acquired by such donor or last preceding
owner.*****

(8) Property acquired by issuance of stock or
as paid-in surplus.—If the property was ac-

quired after December 31, 1920, by a corpora-
tion

—

(A) by the issuance of its stock or securities

in connection with a transaction described in sec-

tion 112 (b) (5) (including also, cases where part
of the consideration for the transfer of such prop-
erty to the corporation was property or money,
in addition to such stock or securities), or

(B) as paid-in surplus or as a contribution to

capital, then the basis shall be the same as it

would be in the hands of the transferor, increased
in the amount of gain or decreased in the amount
of loss recognized to the transferor upon such
transfer under the law applicable to the year in

which the transfer was made.
* 4fr * * *

(b) Adjusted Basis.—The adjusted basis for

determining the gain or loss from the sale or other
disposition of property, whenever acquired, shall

be the basis determined under subsection (a),

adjusted as hereinafter provided.

(1) General rule.—Proper adjustment in re-

spect of the jjroperty shall in all cases be made

—

(A) for expenditures, receipts, losses, or other

items, properly chargeable to capital account,

including taxes and other carrying charges on
unimproved and unproductive real property, but

no such adjustment shall be made for taxes or

other carrying charges for which deductions have
been taken by the taxpayer in determining net

income for the taxable year or prior taxable

years

;

(B) in respect of any period since February
28, 1913, for exhaustion, wear and tear, obsoles-

cence, amortization, and depletion, to the extent
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allowed (but not less than the amount allowable)

under this Act or prior income tax laws. * * ******
(U. S. C, Title 26, Sec. 113.)

Sec. 114. Basis for depeeciation and deple-

tion.

(a) Basis for Depreciation.—The basis upon
which exhaustion, wear and tear, and obsoles-

cence are to be allowed in respect of any property
shall be the adjusted basis provided in section

113 (b) for the purpose of determining the gain
or loss upon the sale or other disposition of such
property.*****
(U.S.C, Title 26, Sec. 114.)

Treasury Regulations 74, promulgated under the Rev-

enue Act of 1928

:

Art. 67. Contributions to corporation hy share-
holders.—Where a corporation requires addi-

tional funds for conducting its business and ob-

tains such needed money through voluntary pro
rata payments by its shareholders, the amounts so

received being credited to its surplus account or

to a special capital account, such amounts will not
be considered income, although there is no in-

crease in the outstanding shares of stock of the
corporation. The payments in such circum-
stances are in the nature of voluntar}^ assess-

ments upon, and represent an additional price

paid for, the shares of stock held by the indi-

vidual shareholders, and will be treated as an
addition to and as a part of the operating capital

of the company. (See articles 64 and 282.

)



APPENDIX C

STATT^TES AND REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO THIRD ISSUE

Revenue Act of 1932, c. 209, 47 Stat. 169:

Sec. 104. Accumulation of surplus to evade
surtaxes.

(a) If any corporation, however created or

organized, is formed or availed of for the pur-
pose of preventing- the imposition of the surtax

upon its shareholders through the medium of

permitting its gains and profits to accumulate
instead of being divided or distributed, there

shall be levied, collected, and paid for each tax-

able year upon the net income of such corpora-

tion a tax equal to 50 per centum of the amount
thereof, which shall be in addition to the tax

im]}osed by section 13 and shall be computed, col-

lected, and paid upon the same basis and in the

same manner and subject to the same provisions

of law, including penalties, as that tax.

(])) The fact that any cori)oration is a mere
holding or investment comj^any, or that the gains

or ])rofits are permitted to accumulate beyond
the reasonable needs of the business, shall be

l^rima facie evidence of a purpose to escape the

surtax.

(c) As used in this section the term "net in-

come" means the net income as defined in section

21, increased by the sum of the amount of the

dividend deduction allowed under section 23 (p)
and the amount of the interest on obligations of

the United States issued after September 1, 1917,

which Avould be subject to tax in whole or in

])art in the hands of an individual owner.

(d) The tax imposed by this section shall not

apply if all the shareholders of the corporation

(40)
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include (at the time of filing their returns) in

their gross income their entire distributive

shares, whether distributed or not, of the net

income of the corporation for such year. Any
amount so included in the gross income of a
shareholder shall be treated as a dividend re-

ceived. Any subsequent distribution made by
the corporation out of the earnings or profits for

such taxable year shall, if distributed to any
shareholder who has so included in his gross in-

come his distributive share, be exempt from tax

in the amount of the share so included.

Eevenue Act of 1934, c. 277, 48 Stat. 680:

Sec. 102. Surtax on corporations improperly
accumulating surplus.

(a) Imposition of Tax.—There shall be levied,

collected, and paid for each taxable year upon
the adjusted net income of every corporation

(other than a personal holding company as de-

fined in section 351) if such corporation, how-
ever created or organized, is formed or availed

of for the purpose of preventing the imposition
of the surtax upon its shareholders or the share-

holders of any other corporation, through the

medium of permitting gains and profits to ac-

cumulate instead of being divided or distributed,

a surtax equal to the sum of the following

:

(1) 25 per centum of the amount of the ad-

justed net income not in excess of $100,000, plus

(2) 35 per centum of the amount of the ad-

justed net income in excess of $100,000.

(b) Prima Facie Evidence.—The fact that any
corporation is a mere holding or investment com-
pany, or that the gains or profits are permitted
to accumulate beyond the reasonable needs of the

business, shall be prima facie evidence of a pur-

pose to avoid surtax.

(c) Definition of '^Adjusted Net Income^'.—
As used in this section, the term "adjusted net

income '

' means the net income computed without
the allowance of the dividend deduction other-
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wise allowable, but diminished by the amount of
dividends paid during- the taxable year.

(d) Payment of Surtax on Pro Rata Shares.—
The tax imposed by this section shall not apply if

all the shareholders of the corporation include
(at the time of filing their returns) in their gross

income their entire pro rata shares, whether dis-

tributed or not, of the '* adjusted net income" of

the corporation for such year. Any amount so

included in the gross income of a shareholder
shall be treated as a dividend received. Any sub-

sequent distribution made by the corporation out
of earnings or profits for such taxable year shall,

if distributed to any shareholder who has so in-

cluded in his gross income his i3ro rata share,

be exempt from tax in the amount of the share
so included.

(e) I'a.r on Persona] llold'nui Companies.—
For surtax on personal holding companies, see

section 351. (U. S. C, Title 26, Sec. 104.)

Treasury Regulations 77, promulgated mider the

Revenue Act of 1932

:

Art. 541. Taxation of eorporation utilized for
evasion of surtax.—Section 104 is designed to

discourage the formation or use of a corporation
for the purpose of preventing the imposition of
surtaxes upon its shareholders, through the de-

vice of permitting its gains and profits to accu-
mulate instead of being distributed. If a

domestic or foreign corporation is so formed or
availed of, it is subject to a tax at the rate of 50
per cent upon its net income in addition to the
tax imposed by section 13. However, the addi-
tional tax at the rate of 50 per cent does not
apply for 1932 or any subsequent taxable year
if all the shareholders of the corporation include
(at the time of filing their returns) in their gross
income their entire distributive share, whether
distributed or not, of the net income of the cor-

poration for such year or years. Any amount
so included in the gross income of a shareholder



43

shall be treated as a dividend received, and any
subsequent distribution made by the corporation

out of the earnings or profits for such taxable

years shall, if distributed to any shareholder

who has so included in his gross income his dis-

tributive share, be exempt from tax in the

amount of the share so included.

Art. 542. Purpose' to escape surtax.—Prima
facie evidence of a purpose to escape the surtax

exists where a corporation is a mere investment

company, where a corporation has practically

no business except holding stocks, securities, or

other property and collecting the income there-

from or investing therein, or where a corpora-

tion other than a mere holding or investment
company permits its gains and profits to accumu-
late beyond the reasonable needs of the business.

The statutory presumption that a mere holding
or investment company is subject to the addi-

tional tax imposed by section 104 may be over-

come if the corporation can show, either by
reason of the fact that it distributed a large por-
tion of its earnings for the year in question, or
that its stock was held not by the members of a
family or of a small group but by a large number
of persons and in comparatively small blocks, or
by other evidence, that it was not availed of for
the purpose of preventing the imposition of the
surtax upon its shareholders.

The business of a corporation is not merely
that which it has previously carried on, but in-

cludes in general any line of business which it

may legitimately undertake. However, a radi-

cal change of business when a considerable sur-

plus has been accumulated may aiford evidence
of a purpose to escape the surtax. When one
corporation owns the stock of another corpora-
tion in the same or a related line of business and
in effect operates the other corporation, the
business of the latter may be considered in sub-
stance the business of the first corporation.
Gains and profits of the first corporation put
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into the second thi'onoli the purchase of stock

or otherwise may therefore, if a subsidiary re-

lationship is established, constitute employment
of the income in its own business. To establish

that the business of one corporation can be re-

garded as including" the Inisiness of another it

is ordinarily essential that the first corporation
own substantially all of the stock of the second.

Investment by a corporation of its income in

stock and securities of another corporation is

not without anything fui'ther to be regarded
as employment of the income in its business.

Art. 543. Unreasonahle accumulation of prof-
its.—An accumulation of gains and profits is un-
reasonable if it is not required for the purposes
of the business, considering all the circumstances
of the case. It is not intended, however, to

prevent reasonable accumulations of surplus

for the needs of the business. No attempt
can be made to enumerate all the ways in which
gains and profits of a corporation may be ac-

cumulated for the reasonable needs of the busi-

ness. Distributions made by a corporation

shortly after the close of its taxable year shall

be taken into consideration in determining the

reasonableness of the amount of earnings and
profits of the corporation retained by it for such
year. Undistributed income is properly ac-

cunmlated if invested in increased inventories or

additions to plant reasonably needed by the busi-

ness. It is properly accumulated if retained for

working capital required by the business or in

accordance with contract obligations placed to

the credit of a sinking fund for the purpose of

retiring bonds issued by the corporation. In the

case of a banking institution the business of

which is to receive and loan money, using capi-

tal, surplus, and deposits for that purpose, un-

distributed incom'e actually represented by loans

or reasonably retained for future loans is not

accumulated beyond the reasonable needs of the

business. The nature of the investment of gains
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and profits is immaterial if they are not in fact

needed in the business. It is an unreasonable
accumulation of gains and profits by corpora-
tions with the purpose of enabling their share-

holders to escape surtaxes on such gains and
profits which subjects such corporations to the

additional tax imposed by section 104. Among
other things, the financial condition of the cor-

poration at the close of the taxable year and
the manner in which its funds are invested at

that date, determine the reasonableness of the

accumulations.
For the purpose of section 104 the term "net

income" means the net income of the corpora-
tion as defined in section 21 increased by the

sum of (1) the amount received as dividends and
allowed as a deduction by section 23 (p), plus

(2) the amount of interest on obligations of the

United States issued after September 1, 1917,

which would be subject to tax in whole or in

part in the hands of an individual owner. The
Commissioner, or any collector upon direction
from the Commissioner, may require any cor-

poration to furnish a statement of its accumu-
lated gains and profits, the name and address
of, and number of shares held by, each of its

shareholders, an4 the amounts that would be
payable to each, if the income of the corpora-
tion were distributed. (See section 148 (c).)

^

Treasury Regulations 86, promulgated under the

Revenue Act of 1934:

Art. 102-1. Taxation of corporation formed
or utilized for avoidance of surtax.—Section 102
imposes a graduated income tax or surtax upon

^ Amendments of Articles 541, 542, and 543 of Treasury Regu-
lations 77 were made in 1934 by T. D. 4470, XIII-2 Cum. Bull.

151, but they are not of sufficient significance to the present con-

troversy to reproduce here.
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any domestic or foreign organization formed or
availed of to avoid the imposition of the indi-

vidual surtax upon its shareholders or the share-

holders of any other corporation through the

medium of permitting gains and i)rofits to ac-

cumulate instead of dividing or distributing

them. However, personal holding companies,
as defined in section 351, being taxed separately
in accordance with the provisions thereof, are
excej)ted from taxation under section 102. The
surtax imposed by section 102 applies whether
the avoidance was accomplished through the
formation or use of only one corporation or a
chain of corporations. For example, if the

capital stock of the M Corporation is held by
the N Corporation so that the dividend distribu-

tions of the M Corporation would not be re-

turned as income subject to the individual
surtax until distributed in turn by the N Cor-
poration to its individual shareholders, never-
theless the surtax imposed by section 102 applies

to the M Corporation, if that corporation is

formed or availed of for the purpose of pre-

venting the im])osition of the individual surtax
upon the individual shareholders of the N Cor-
poration. The surtax is in addition to the taxes
levied upon corporations generally by Title I.

For the computation of the surtax see article

102-4.

Art. 102-2. Purpose to avoid surtax.—The
Act provides two prima facie presumptions of

the existence of a purpose to avoid surtax. The
fact (1) that any corporation is a mere holding
or investment company, or (2) that the gains and
profits are permitted to accumulate beyond the
reasonable needs of the business, constitutes

prima facie evidence of a purpose to avoid the

individual surtax. A corporation having prac-
tically no activities except holding i)roperty, and
collecting the income therefrom or investing

therein, shall be considered a holding company
within the meaning of section 102. If the activ-
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ities further include, or consist substantially of,

buying and selling stocks, securities, real estate,

or other investment property (whether upon an
outright or a marginal basis) so that the income
is derived not only from the investment yield

but also from profits upon market fluctuations,

the corporation shall be considered an invest-

ment company within the meaning of section 102.

The assumed purpose to avoid the individual

surtax is subject to disproof by competent evi-

dence like any other question. Proof of the pur-
pose, therefore, depends upon the particular cir-

cumstances of each case. In other words, the
purpose may be evidenced by circmnstances
other than the presumptions specified in the Act.
A corporation is subject to taxation under sec-

tion 102 when it is formed or availed of for the
purpose of preventing the imposition of the in-

dividual surtax regardless of whether it is a mere
holding or investment company, or whether the
accumulations, if any, are in excess of the busi-
ness needs. On the other hand, the statutory
presumptions will be overcome if the corporation
can show, by a disclosure of all the facts, that it

was neither formed nor availed of for the pur-
pose of avoiding the individual surtax, but the
mere fact that it distributed a large portion of
its earnings for the year in question is not suffi-

cient to overcome the presumption. All the cir-

cumstances which might be construed as evidence
of the purpose can not be outlined. Among
other things the following will be taken into con-
sideration in determining the existence of such
purpose: (1) Dealings between the corporation
and its shareholders such as withdrawals by
the shareholders as personal loans or the ex-
penditure of funds by the corporation for the
personal benefit of the shareholders and (2) the
investment by the corporation of undistributed
earnings in assets having no reasonable connec-
tion with the business.



48

Art. 102-3. UnreasonahJe accumulation of
profit.—^An accumulation of gains and profits

(including the undistributed earnings or profits

of prior years) is unreasonable if it is not re-

quired for the purposes of the business, con-

sidering all the circumstances of the case. It

is not intended, however, to prevent reasonable
accumulations of surplus for the needs of the
business if the purpose is not to prevent the im-
position of the surtax. No attempt can be made
to enumerate all the ways in which gains and
profits of a corporation may be accumulated for

the reasonable needs of the business. Undis-
tributed income is j)roperly accumulated if

retained for working capital needed by the busi-

ness ; or if invested in additions to plant reason-

ably required by the business; or if in accordance
with contract obligations placed to the credit of a

sinking fund for the purpose of retiring bonds
issued by the corporation. The nature of the

investment of gains and profits is immaterial if

they are not in fact needed in the business.

Among other things, the nature of the business,

the financial condition of the corporation at the

close of the taxable year, and the use of the un-
distributed earnings or profits will be considered
in determining the reasonableness of the accu-

mulations.

The business of a corporation is not merely
that which it has previously carried on, but in-

cludes in general any line of business which it

may legitimately undertake. However, a radical

change of business when a considerable surplus

has been accumulated may afford evidence of a
purpose to avoid the surtax. If one corporation
owns the stock of another corporation in the

same or a related line of business and in effect

operates the other corporation, the business of

the latter may be considered in substance the

business of the first corporation. Gains and
profits of the first corporation put into the sec-

ond through the purchase of stock or otherwise
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may, therefore, if a subsidiary relationship is

established, constitute employment of the income
in its own business. To establish that the busi-

ness of one corporation can be regarded as in-

cluding the business of another it is ordinarily

essential that the first corporation own substan-

tially all of the stock of the second. Investment
by a corporation of its income in stock and se-

curities of another corporation is not of itself

to be regarded as employment of the income in

its business.

The Commissioner, or any collector upon di-

rection from the Commissioner, may require any
corporation to furnish a statement of its accum-
ulated gains and profits, the name and address
of, and number of shares held by each of its

shareholders, and the amounts that 'would be
payable to each, if the income of the corporation
were distributed. (See section 148 (c).)



APPENDIX D

STATUTES PERTAINING TO FOURTH ISSUE

Revenue Acts of 1932, c. 209, 47 Stat. 169 ; and 1934,

c. 277, 48 Stat. 680:

Sec. 293. Additions to the tax ix case of
deficiency.

(a) Negligence.—If any part of any deficiency

due to negligence, or intentional disregard of

rules and regulations but without intent to de-

fraud, 5 per centum of the total amount of the

deficiency (in addition to such deficiency) shall

be assessed, collected, and paid in the same man-
ner as if it were a deficiency, except that the

provisions of section 272 (i), relating to the pro-
rating of a deficiency, and of section 292, relat-

ing to interest on deficiencies, shall not be
applicable.

* * * ^e- *

(U. S. C, Title 26, Sec. 293.)

(oO)

i



APPENDIX E

Internal Revenue Code

:

Sec. 1117. Reports and decisions.

4fr * * * *

(U.S.C, Title 26, Sec. 293.)

(b) Inclusion of Findings of Fact or Opinions
in Report.—It shall be the duty of the Board and
of each division to include in its report upon any
proceeding its findings of fact or opinion or
memorandum opinion. The Board shall report
in writing all its findings of fact, opinions and
memorandum opinions.

(51)
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Nos. 9781 and 9782

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Wilson" Brothers and Company (Wil-

son Bros. & Co.) (a corporation),

Petitioner,

vs.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Respondent.

PETITIONER'S REPLY BRIEF.

This brief is in response to the Brief for the Re-

spondent filed in the above-entitled proceedings for

review and served on petitioner on July 9, 1941.

A. THE QUESTIONS PRESENTED.

Although respondent has stated the questions in dif-

ferent form than as presented by petitioner (Respon-

dent's Brief pp. 2 and !3) we accept the form and

order in which he has presented them and will reply

accordingly.

B. RESPONDENT'S STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

(Respondent's Brief, pp. 3-12.)

In making his statement of the case respondent an-

nounces that
'

' certain general facts will be stated first,

following which particular facts will be discussed as

they pertain to each of the issues on appeal.
'

' In this

feature he follows the error of the Board in its mem-



orandmn opinion, of which we complain, by attempt-

ing to segregate proven facts and confine them to

selected separate issues rather than have all the facts

open for consideration where material on all of the

issues.

Even while attempting to adopt the scattered find-

ings of the Board, respondent modifies some of their

language to benefit his argument. As an instance, the

Boards finds :

'

' the petitioner did not reenter the lum-

ber-logging-milling business prior to or during 1932,

1933 and 1934." (R. 56.) Respondent states: *'How-

ever, prior to 1932 taxpayer had ceased to carry on a

logging, milling and shipping business." (Brief p. 7.)

This change in language is of considerable assistance

to respondent in making his argument to sustain the

third question stated in his brief, (p. 2.) It is mislead-

ing because petitioner corporation had never engaged

in the lumber-logging-milling business, its plans to do

so were delayed by the panic of 1929 and the subse-

quent depression.

As respondent has gone beyond the record in its ar-

gument (Brief p. 25) we venture to correct the record

as show^n by the Board's findings (R. 56) and respon-

dent's statement (Brief p. 7) that: ''The taxpayer cor-

poration was preceded by a partnership which had

about $1,500,000 invested in its business of logging,

lumbering, milling and shipping." Due to faulty re-

porting in the transcript of evidence, the record fails

to show^ that it was not the immediate predecessor of

petitioner that was engaged in such wide spread busi-

ness with such a large investment but a prior partner-

ship of the same name. It was this older firm that pe-

titioner sought to emulate.



Respondent states that there was no showing of any

intent to resume a business of the size carried on by

the former partnership, referring to the opinion of the

Board only. From the testimony (R. 101, 102) it is

clear that the business in mind was at least equal to

that of the prior partnership.

Other glaring incidents of enlargement of the effect

of the record in attempt to show petitioner liable for

surtax are to be found in respondent's statement of

the facts. The most reprehensible of these is the state-

ment: ''Accounts receivable fom W. Wilson (presum-

ably W. T. Wilson) are shown" * * * (Brief p. 10,

italics supplied.) There is not one scintilla of evidence

to show that W. Wilson and W. T. Wilson were the

same person or in any way related, hence the pre-

sumption is something imwarranted except for the

prosecuting purposes of respondent.

Other discrepancies and misstatements will be

pointed out from place to place in the following ar-

gument.

C. REPLY ARGUMENT.
I.

THE BOARD ERRED IN SUSTAINING THE COMMISSIONER'S
DETERMINATION NOT TO ALLOW CERTAIN DEDUCTIONS
CLAIMED BY THE TAXPAYER IN 1934 ON ACCOUNT OF
BAD DEBTS ALLEGED TO BE PARTIALLY WORTHLESS.

Under part I of his argument (Brief pp. 16 to 20)

respondent consolidates parts I and II of petitioner's

argument. (Brief pp. 12-26.) Respondent properly

considers the two items covered by his argument as

''deductions claimed by the taxpayer in 1934 on ac-

count of debts alleged to be partially worthless." How-



ever, he improper!}^ seeks to enlarge the grounds of

his defense in order to argue that the Board should

be sustained on its denial of such claims.

The respondent having failed by special affirmative

allegations in his answer (R. 19) to allege grounds of

denial of the claims for deductions made by petitioner

is confined to sustaining the Board's action solely

upon the grounds for denial thereof found in the de-

ficiency notice. (R. 17.) Petitioner could not be re-

quired to do more than submit evidence to overcome

the direct reasons expressed by the Commissioner for

his denial of the deductions claimed. These reasons

were two in niunber: (1) That no evidence had been

submitted to establish the pai'tial worthlessness and

(2) no permission had been granted to change from

an actual bad debt basis to a reserve basis. As the

Board held that ''petitioner was on the actual charge-

off method of deducting bad debts" (R. 37) the second

reason for denial of the claim for deduction has been

determined adversely to respondent and requires no

further discussion, because it is an issue upon which

no error has been assigned.

The task of determining, writing-off and claiming

deduction for partially worthless bad debts falls upon

the taxpayer and if the surrounding circumstances in-

dicate that the debt is partially woii:hless and is

charged off the amount of the write-off ''shall he al-

lowed as a deduction in ^,omputing net income." (Re-

gulations 86, Art. 23 (k)-l-(2), Petitioner's Opening

Brief, p. 16.)

The only point for consideration on the propriety of

the deduction is the consideration of the e"\adence to

establish partial worthlessness of the two debts, i. e.



that of Woodhead Lumber Co. of California and that

of Kentucky Fuel & Gas Corporation. What evidence

the Commissioner had or did not have before him

when the deficiency notice for 1934 was prepared we

do not know.

Evidence was available to respondent regarding the

status of both corporations and it would appear that

neither respondent nor his agents performed the duty

of checking against such evidence to test the reason-

ableness of petitioner's claims for deductions. Also, it

would appear that respondent had arbitrarily denied

the deductions, without effort to ascertain their merit.

Furthermore, at the hearing of the proceedings, re-

spondent introduced no evidence to overcome the

proofs introduced by petitioner.

Respondent indulges in rather specious statement to

bolster his argument to sustain the disallowance of the

partial deductions. He seeks to belittle the testimony

of W. T. Wilson (Brief p. 19) because he was an in-

terested party, ''half owner of the taxpayer corpora-

tion". Who would be expected to make an examina-

tion, form judgment, and reach a conclusion as to the

worthlessness of a debt but someone in close interest

to the taxpayer?

Next he misrepresents the amount of security held

by petitioner for payment of the indebtedness by stat-

ing "The witness admitted that collateral was held

consisting of a $25,000 note of another corporation

and $37,000 face amount of the other corporation's

stock". Such a statement leads to the inference that

petitioner held collateral amounting to $62,000 or $18,-

723.94 in excess of the indebtedness, when such is not

the fact. No such admission was made by the witness.



He testified that the note for $25,000 with the stock,

which he believed had little value, as collateral for the

note had been turned over to petitioner as partial

security for the indebtedness. (R. 38. See Petition-

er's Opening Brief pp. 18-19.) This left an unsecured

indebtedness of $18,276.06 from which the $5,000 was

wi'itten off. A reading of the record (R. 95) shows

that everything essential for the taxpayer to deter-

mine the amount of deduction for partial worthless-

ness had been perfoi-med. The finding or determina-

tion by the Board of non-deductibility seems to be

jjredicated more upon the fact that petitioner did

business with the Woodhead Lumber Co. of Nevada.

(R. 38.) The injection or inclusion of this element is

gross error, for the deduction was not claimed against

the Nevada corporation, which apparently was a sol-

vent corporation with a going business.

With regard to the partial woi*thlessness of the

bonds of the Kentucky Fuel & Gas Corporation re-

spondent defends his action of disallowance on the

assertion of what he calls "two patent defects" in peti-

tioner's case. "First, cost ivas shoivn only by entries

upon the taxpayer's books at the end of each year."

(Brief p. 20.) If the "cost was shown", as respondent

admits, it does not matter whether it was shown in

May, June or December. Cost during a specific year

was cost of the bonds to petitioner, and that is all the

petitioner is required to 'show. From whom the bonds

were purchased, the precise date of purchase, and the

other details of purchase are immaterial. "Cost" is

the "price paid", although respondent would seem to

attempt to create a difference in the meaning. To

escape his admission that "cost was shown", respon-



dent seeks to deny the accuracy of the books of ac-

count of petitioner. The accuracy and correctness of

the cost set up in the books of account was never chal-

lenged by respondent during the hearing before the

Board, and the differences between the balance sheets

in the corporation's income tax return and the books

of petitioner did not affect the taxable income of pe-

titioner nor the cost of the bonds. It is interesting to

note that the Board accepted petitioner's ^^cost" as

shown by entries on its books of account for all other

securities which it owned. (R. 58.)

Respondent next asserts: "Second, the testimony

* * * clearly shows that the partial worthlessness

claimed had occurred mid was ascertaified in a prior

year/' (Brief p. 20.) Such statement is incoiTect and

not supported by the record cited. (R. 127-128.) It is

true that the bonds dropped to a low^ figure in 1930

and fluctuated at lower prices thereafter, but peti-

tioner had the hopeful right to await a rise or com-

plete collapse in value, and, when neither event hap-

pened, to take a w^rite-off for partial worthlessness.

We do not dispute the rules and decisions cited by

respondent on pages 16 and 18 of his brief where they

are applicable. How^ever, they are not applicable to

the conditions of these cases.

We refer to the cases cited in our opening brief

(pp. 15-26) as being the applicable authorities for the

issues here under argument. In footnote 2 (Brief p.

17) respondent erroneously states and seeks to over-

come the rule laid down in Mooch Electric Supply Co.

V. Commissioner, 41 B. T. A. 1209, 1211. (Petitioner's

Brief p. 26.) If his contentions are correct, then there

could never be a deduction for partial w^orthlessness
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unless the taxpayer had early and definite knowledge

of the first trend toward insolvency of a debtor in the

first year in which the decline toward insolvency took

place. Such contention would nullify the applicable

portion of section 23 (k) of the Revenue Act of 1934

and Article 23 (k)-l-(2) of Regulations 86. (Peti-

tioner's Brief p. 16.) The contention conflicts with

that portion of Article 23 (k)-l of Regulations 86

cited by respondent on page 18 of his brief. Before

petitioner sought its deductions for partial worthless-

ness of the two debts it complied with the regulation

quoted by respondent. (R. 95, 96.) As the respondent

acquiesced to the decision of the Board in Moock case

(supra) he should not be permitted here to deny the

rule which he has accepted.

All that a taxpayer is required to do is to establish

a prima facie case against respondent on a partially

worthless debt, particularly where the groimds stated

for disallowances in the deficiency notice are so in-

definite and vague as in this case. It has only to show

that it has made a reasonable investigation of the facts

and drawn a reasonable inference from the informa-

tion thus obtainable, then the burden of proof passes

to respondent. This burden of proof was never under-

taken by him.

It must be borne in mind that it is tlie Commis-

sioner's determination of non-deductibility which is

before the Court and that the Board merely affirms

the Commissioner. Therefore the closing paragraphs

of the opinion in Clark v. Commissioner, 85 Fed. (2d)

(CCA. 3) 622, 625, seem applicable.

"The taxpayer who knew them" (the circum-

stances) '*at the place and time was in a better



position to make a fair and honest estimate of the

value of his security than any one else could pos-

sibly be years afterward. The subsequent events

show that his estimate was just and reasonable

and that the commissioner's is not in accordance

with the facts.

^'The deteraiination of the commissioner is set

aside, the order of re-determination of the Board
of Tax Appeals is reversed, and the return of the

petitioner reinstated.
'

'

II.

THE BOARD IMPROPERLY DETERMINED THAT THE DONEE'S
BASIS FOR PROPERTY WHICH WAS THE SUBJECT OF
TWO CONSECUTIVE GIFTS WAS THE COST TO THE FIRST
DONOR.

This issue is dealt with in Part V-3 (pp. 27-32) of

Petitioner's Opening Brief. Respondent is correct in

stating that the dispute under this issue has to do

solely with 20/lOOths interest in the steamship Idaho,

which was given by Henry Wilson to Mary H. Wilson,

his wife, on February 16, 1917, and transferred by her

as a gift to petitioner (which was owned by her two

sons) in 1929. The question is what basis to assign to

the petitioner as of the date of gift on the 20/lOOths

interest for purposes of depreciation. (Respondent's

Brief p. 21.)

As the second paragraph of respondent's argument

on this point seems to be somewhat confusing, we re-

state it in line with the facts. The transfer by Mary H.

Wilson of the 20/lOOths interest on January 2, 1929

was a direct gift to the petitioner (R. 93) and, as a

gift, was subject to neither gift tax nor income tax.

The basis of the value of the gift to petitioner is the
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adjusted value to the donor at the time of the gift as

detennined under section 113 (a) (4) of the Revenue

Act of 1928. The provisions of the Revenue Acts of

1932 and 1934 cannot, as respondent seems to argue,

affect the depreciable basis of the 20/lOOths interest

acquired by petitioner in 1929. Such a basis was

established at the time of the gift by the Revenue Act

then in force and there has been no statutory attempt

to provide for a change of such basis. By footnote

respondent (Brief p. 22) seeks to obliterate the effect

of legislative history recited by petitioner in its open-

ing brief (pp. 29-31). Legislative history is always

material in studying the purpose of a development in

statutory provisions. We again refer to such history

as corroborative of our interpretation of the statute.

If as respondent argues subsection (4) of section

113 (a) is to be ignored as establishing the basis of

value of the 20/lOOths interest in the steamship

** Idaho" in the hands of petitioner on January 2,

1929, and thereafter, why then was that subsection

continued in the Act of 1928? Because the gift to

Mary H. Wilson was made before January 21, 1921,

and on February 6, 1929, she had an unrestricted and

continuing vested interest in the property which had

an admitted fair market value of 20/lOOths of $395,-

000 on February 6, 1917 (R. 41), the status of that

gift was fixed by Section 113 (a) (4) and the basis

thereunder was not changed when the property was

transferred to petitioner because there is no provision

for such change provided by statute. Section 113 pro-

vides thirteen methods of ascertaining a basis of

value, and excepting where a subsection is restricted

or enlarged in effect by reference to other subsection
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or section of the Act, each method is independent and

self controlling. Subsection (4) does not refer to sub-

section (2) of section 113, nor vice versa.

Respondent seems to be hard driven to sustain his

point by speculation of doubtful merit as is demon-

strated by his statement (Brief p. 23): ''Congress

could, if it chose, have taxed the entire amount of a

gift to the donee, either when received or when con-

verted into cash." We are not concerned with what

Congress might have done but with what it did and

what it failed to do. It failed to enact any law which

supports respondent's contention on this point.

The cases cited by respondent have no application

to the merits of the issue as far as we understand

them.

In quoting Section 113 (a) (2) in his argument on

page 22, respondent has shown the weakness of his

position by deleting the all significant words ''the

donor or". See petitioner's opening brief pp. 30-32.

III.

THE BOARD'S DETERMINATION THAT TAXPAYER CORPORA-
TION WAS AVAILED OF IN YEARS 1932, 1933 AND 1934 TO
AVOID SURTAX UPON ITS SHAREHOLDERS IS NOT SUP-
PORTED BY ANY SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE, BUT IS CON-
TRARY TO THE CONCLUSIVE EVIDENCE.

Respondent urges generally (Brief pp. 24-25) that

the determination of the Board of Tax Appeals on

this issue must be sustained because the similar deter-

mination made in the deficiency notice is prima facie

correct, because petitioner was primarily a holding or

investment company, and accumulated earnings and

profits beyond its reasonable business needs, either of

which is prima facie evidence of a purpose to avoid
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surtax, but by his silence on this score concedes that

there was no direct evidence from which even an in-

ference of a purpose or intent to avoid surtax can be

di'awn. (Note. In the second tabulation on page 25

of respondent's Brief, he has transposed the figui'es

of "Net income exclusive of dividends" for 1933 and

1934. See Brief p. 7.)

Respondent urges that any unfavorable inference to

be drawn from the fact that the shareholders' returns

were not introduced in evidence must operate against

petitioner. (Brief p. 27.) Petitioner cannot accede to

this. The returns were in respondent's possession and

were not in the possession of or made available to pe-

titioner.

Respondent assumes (Brief pp. 26-27) that mider

either the 1932 or 1934 Revenue Acts a distribution of

$4,000 of petitioner's earnings in 1933 and 1934 to

each shareholder would have brought each shareholder

within surtax brackets. The record does not disclose

what losses the shareholders had to offset this distri-

bution and respondent's assumption is unwarranted

except as showing the maximum of possible surtax

liability which could have been avoided.

However, en arguendo, let us see where respond-

ent's assumptions lead. In the first place respond-

ent's assumptions are incomplete because he does not

state and the Board did not find what amount should

have been distributed by petitioner to produce divi-

dends. Ceriainly petitioner would not be required to

distribute its entire earnings, particularly in view of

its recognized business purpose and its impaired bonds

and accounts receivable. Furthermore its actual earn-

ings for tax purposes have not yet been determined,

let alone its distributable income.
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If petitioner's contentions as to distributable in-

come being reduced by additional depreciation, the

impaimient of bonds and accounts receivable are cor-

rect, as they seem to be, virtually no surtax was

avoided. (See petitioner's opening brief pp. 42-43.)

On the other hand, the maximum of tax liability,

on the basis of respondent's assumptions (Brief p.

27), assuming all earnings and profits as determined

by the Board to be distributable, was approximately

as follows:

1932 1933 1934

W. T. Wilson $375.00 $220.00 $1,190.00

F. A. Wilson none 220.00 1,190.00

Respondent states (on the basis of his assumptions)

that some surtax was in fact avoided and urges that

the pettiness of the avoidance is conclusive of nothing.

This might possibly be true if that fact were the sole

evidence in the case, but it is not and directly confirms

the positive uncontradicted oral testimony which the

Board chose to disregard. Certainly for the purpose

of avoidance to exist it must be necessary that some-

thing existed which it was desired to avoid. Here

that something is at the greatest so inconsequential,

particularly to persons of means such as petitioner's

shareholders, that the avoidance purpose is inconceiv-

able. Under the law of common sense it is incon-

ceivable that petitioner or its stockholders would de-

liberately incur the corporation penalty liability for

the surtax respondent seeks to impose, when the stock-

holders' surtax, on respondent's own assumptions,

would be so small.

As to petitioner's earnings and profits available for

dividends respondent urges (Brief p. 28) that other

courts have determined a decline in market values of
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stocks as being immaterial. His cited authorities deal

with cases in which no business purpose or need for

the cash equivalent of the stocks has been shown to

exist. Here the business purpose when the time came

for its consummation, required an investment in cash

of a great deal more than petitioner's securities would

bring. The obvious purpose of the frequent contribu-

tions of cash to the petitioner and the petitioner's ac-

quisition of stocks therewith was to obtain an enlarged

capital in order to fulfill that purpose.

Respondent further urges that it is even more ap-

parent that what petitioner thought with ]'espect to

the impairment of its bonds and receivables is im-

material. But when we are dealing with a purpose

we are dealing with intent and what the taxpayer

thought. If the taxpayer and its shareholders thought

its income was nil, as far as intent and purpose is

concerned, it was nil.

C. H. Spitzner <£• Son, Inc., 37 B. T. A. 511,

519-523;

Bill Manufdcturifig Co., 39 B. T. A. 1023, 1030.

Respondent lists the petitioner's gross sales of

lumber on page 28 of his brief. Petitioner accedes

that for the business actually conducted no reasonable

need existed for any considerable amount of liquid

assets, despite the fact that under the efforts of pe-

titioner and its officers lumber sales increased from

$28,725.96 in 1932 to $170,239.51 in 1934. This increase

is distinctly confirmatory of petitioner's purpose and

endeavor to greatly enlarge the scope of its operations

as shown by the testimony in the record.

Respondent in effect urges that a contemplated busi-

ness expansion is not a business purpose and that the

testimony of the plan of expansion was somewhat



15

vague. (Brief pp. 28-29.) Confessedly the time for

petitioner's intended expansion could not be fixed in

advance, it depended upon the improvement in busi-

ness conditions in the lumber and shipping industries

which were sorely affected by the depression which

continued through the years involved. Similarly and

because the time of such expansion could not be fixed

in advance of such change of circumstances neither

could the details of asset acquisition and cost be pre-

determined. Petitioner's officer-shareholders were not

gifted with prescience, they were not astrologers or

prophets—they were business men engaged in a busi-

ness in which they had been engaged since 1906 and

which they desired to enlarge as soon as in their judg-

ment enlargement w^as practical at whatever cost

would then be necessary to accomplish the desired

enlargement.

The testimony of taxpayer's shareholder was not

vague and was of a somewhat general character only

because of necessity under the foregoing circum-

stances. It was direct and to the point and was not

even made the subject of cross-examination. Tax-

payer's purpose was to engage in the lumber and

shippmg business to the full extent its stockholders

had contemplated when the corporation was organ-

ized; to the same extent it had been carried on by a

predecessor partnership which had had over $1,500,-

000 invested therein. This purpose would require ex-

pense on reconditioning petitioner's steamers, ''laid-

up" in the summer of 1929 because during the de-

pression they could not be operated at a profit. Tim-

berlands and mill properties w^ould have to be ac-

quired and expensive logging equipment purchased.
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Logging roads would have to be constructed. Costs

had increased.

Confirmatory of petitioner's business purpose,

found as a fact by the Board (R. 36), was its main-

tenance of its steamers in substantial repair so that

they could easily and quickly be recommissioned at

any time. (N. B. The findings isolated to determine

that issue [II of the Memorandum Opinion, R. 35]

were not as firmly restated in determining this issue.)

Petitioner was endeavoring to increase its lumber

sales and did increase them by 600 per cent in the

years involved. Petitioner's shareholders were con-

stantly enlarging petitioner's liquid assets by cash

contributions, kept invested in liquid assets so that

the desire for expansion could be met whenever the

right time came. (See petitioner's opening brief pp.

48-50.)

Respondent states that as a matter of common

knowledge a business recovery had occurred prior to

1939. (p. 29.) This was not in the shipping or lumber-

ing business nor applicable to the taxable years under

review and certainly was not of the character to

warrant the risk at any time prior to 1940 of a million

and a half dollars or more in those industries.

Certainly it is true that the weight and credibility

to be accorded testimony is a matter for the discretion

of the Board. But when that testimony is strongly

substantiated by accepte'd facts, when the facts testi-

fied to are the only ones which can be correlated with

the accepted facts, it is an abuse of discretion not to

follow that testimony. This is particularly true when

the stated reason for the refusal is that errors were
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made and sworn to on the balance sheets incorporated

in petitioner's income tax returns, errors which could

result in no possible detriment to anyone, least of all

respondent. (See petitioner's opening brief pp. 50-51.)

On page 28 of his brief respondent states: ''It is

also significant that the business carried on by peti-

tioner made no profit in any of the three years and

that the income which was accrued and was accumu-

lated in each year resulted from dividends upon its

investments in securities." Is respondent confessing

error? The Board determined that petitioner's in-

come for 1933 and 1934, exclusive of dividends was,

respectively, $10,908.61 and $13,905.79 (see respond-

ent's brief p. 25) and this despite the fact that ex-

tensive depreciation and repairs were held deductible

with respect to the steamers, productive of no income.

Petitioner reported a gross profit from sales for those

years of $8,424.60 and $20,152.56, respectively. (R.

142, 153.)

Respondent has asserted his business judgment as

superior to that of petitioner's officers who had been

engaged in the lumber business thirty-four years at

the date of hearing when he attempts to state (p. 30)

what amount of cash and securities would be required

by petitioner's business purpose. He infers that ihe

expansion was not immediately intended during the

years 1932 to 1934 and that implying, in effect, peti-

tioner could have distributed its earnings and the

shareholders could have later contributed the distri-

butions back again. But why such circuity when the

eventual purpose always existed?
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Respondent states that petitioner was rather obvi-

ously the incorporated pocketbook of the Wilson fam-

ily, but does not say how or why. To us it is anything

but obvious. In what transactions did petitioner's

shareholders deal with it as an incorporated pocket-

book ? It neither borrowed from or loaned to either of

them during any year before the Board.

Respondent speaks of large accomits receivable

from the two shareholders during the years 1932 to

1934. As to "W. Wilson" he is assuming again. Until

the writing of briefs respondent was silent as to the

account receivable of ''W. Wilson" as being some-

thing different from the other accomits receivable

shown on petitioner's Exhibit 18. (R. 171-173.) As to

F. A. Wilson he is ignoring the fact that the accounts

receivable represented the balance on F. A. Wilson's

books as a stock broker in favor of petitioner, F. A.

Wilson was bujdng and selling securities for peti-

tioner as its broker, not bon-owing money from it. (R.

178.) (See also, petitioner's opening brief pp. 53-56.)

Petitioner submits that the Board committed error

in determining this issue against petitioner, and that

it should be reversed.

IV.

THE BOARD'S IMPOSITION OF THE NEGLIGENCE PENALTY IS

CLEAR ERROR AND CANNOT BE SUSTAINED.

Respondent's argument on this point (Brief j). 31)

is so w^eak as to be a tacit admission that it is without

merit or hoj^e. Not a single point of petitioner's argu-

ment on this issue (Brief pp. 61-70) has been met or

refuted. Respondent states (Brief p. 32) :
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''We believe the i3enalty to be warranted when
a deduction is taken, though its propriety can he

neither proved nor disproved because of carelessly

kept records. It is a fair inference from this rec-

ord that at least some of the deductions disallowed

by the Board resulted from carelessness or in-

complete bookkeeping or a failure to make a

reasonably careful attempt to follow the law and
Treasury Rules." (Italics supplied.)

In the deficiency notices respondent assei1;s the

penalty only as ''attributable to negligence." (R. 19,

224.) Now he argues nothing about negligence and

pleads for a "fair inference" on an unfair ground

which has nothing to do with "negligence." Mistakes

in seeking deductions are common because of the con-

fusion of the law and respondent here argues that if a

taxpayer erroneously seeks a deduction because of un-

certainty as to the year or amount for which it should

be taken he is to be penalized. Such a position is not

one to be commended by this Court.

V.
THE FORM OF THE BOARD'S MEMORANDUM OPINION

IS ERRONEOUS.

We quite agree with respondent that the Board is

not required to make separate findings of fact and

separately state conclusions of law. Nor is any form

for a memorandum opinion specified by statute. How-
ever, the Board is required to make findings of the

facts upon which it basis its o])iniori.

Diller v. Commtissioner, (C. C. A. 9) 91 Fed.

(2d) 194, 195.
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Furthennore such findings of fact where generally

applicable may not be restricted so that their effect

is denied to pertinent issues.

Brampton Woolen Co. v. Commissioner, (C. C.

A. 1) 45 Fed. 327, 328.

We charge the Board with isolating its findings in

some of the issues so as to render them applicable

only to such issues when they are momentous to others

and, also, in making no findings on other issues ex-

cepting by reference to immaterial facts found specif-

ically for another issue. This is certainly error.

As an instance in making its findings on issue V
(R. 54) relating solely to the liability of petitioner

for surtax for accumulation of surplus no finding is

made concerning any negligence of petitioner within

the contemplation of section 293 (a) of the Revenue

Acts of 1932 and 1934. Yet in determining issue VI
(R. 67) the Board's memorandum opinion makes its

fiindings in connection with the discussion of section

104 ''applicable with at least equal force" to issue

VI. This is not proper finding.

D. CONCLUSION.

It is respectfully submitted that the decision of the

Board of Tax Appeals should be reversed to the ex-

tent of the errors assigned by petitioner.

Dated, San Francisco,-

July 16, 1941.

Adolphus E. Grat^pner,

Louts Janin,

Counsel for Petitioner.
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In the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of California, Central Di-

vision.

In Bankruptcy No. 26685-Y

Proceedings for Composition or Extension Under

Section 74 of the Bankruptcy Act.

In the Matter of

JACK DAVE STERLING,

Debtor.

DEBTOR'S PETITION

To the Honorable Judges of the Above Entitled

Court:

The petition of Jack Dave Sterling, of 3750

Effingham Place, Los Angeles, County of Los An-

[2] geles. State of California, Southern District,

respectfully represents

:

I.

That your petitioner has resided for the greater

portion of six months next immediately preceding

the filing of this petition at 3750 Effingham Place,

Los Angeles, in the County of Los Angeles, State

of California, within said judicial district.

- II.

That he is unable to meet his debts as they

mature and that he desires to effect a composition

or extension of time to pay his debts under Section

74 of the Bankruptcy Act as amended.
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ni.

That your petitioner has been unable to prepare

schedules containing a full, true and accurate state-

ment of all assets and liabilities and the names

and places of residence of his creditors. That said

schedules are being prepared and that the same will

be filed within ten days following the filing of this

petition.

IV.

That for some time past your petitioner has been

and now is engaged in the business of drilling for,

producing, marketing and distributing oil in the

Southern District of California ; that petitioner has

conducted said oil business through and by means

of seven separate corporate organizations, the

names of which are as follows : [3]

1. The Huntington Shore Oil Company;

2. Tide Petroleum Company;

3. Huntington Investment Corporation;

4. Olmstead Petroleum Corporation;

5. E. L. Olmstead Oil Company;

6. Lion Petroleum Corporation;

7. Hill Petroleum Corporation.

That said corporations are the alter ego of your

petitioner; that your petitioner is the sole owner

thereof and of all of the outstanding shares thereof,

and that the directors and officers thereof other than

your petitioner are merely nominees and trustees

for your petitioner. That the assets and obligations

of said companies are so interwoven that serious
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injustice will result to your petitioner and the

creditors of said corporations and of petitioner if

said corporate entities are not disregarded. That

it is the desire of your petitioner that all of said

corporations, together with all the property thereof

and of your petitioner be administered by the above

entitled Court as a whole and that said corporate

entities be disregarded.

V.

That The Huntington Shore Oil Company is the

owner of a certain oil well known as The Hunting-

ton Shore Well, and Tide Petroleum Company is

the ovmer of a certain oil well known as the Tide

Well, which wells are on adjacent premises located

in the Huntington Beach oil field in the County of

Orange, State of California, in said Southern Dis-

[4] trict of California; that said oil wells are now

on production and are capable of producing one

thousand (1,000) barrels of oil per day.

VI.

That said Huntington Investment Corporation is

the owner of four oil wells, to-wit, Huntington

Investment No. la, Huntington Investment No. 2,

E. L. Olmstead McKenzie No. 1 and E. L. Olmstead

McKenzie No. 2. Said four wells are located in the

Signal Hill oil field, in' the County of Los Angeles,

State of California, in said Southern District of

California, and are at the present time off produc-
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tion. Said four wells have been involved in certain

actions in the Superior Court of the State of Cali-

fornia, in and for the County of Los Angeles,

wherein certain adjoining and nearby landowners

have alleged that said wells have trespassed upon

and under their property; that a stipulation has

been entered into in said actions that said wells

will not be produced from the present location, but

that the same will be surveyed and if found to

trespass on other lands will be plugged back to the

property from which your petitioner has the legal

and lawful right to produce; that your petitioner

intends that said stipiilation shall be carried into

effect.

VII.

That said Lion Petroleum Corporation is the

owner of a certain oil well known as Lion No. 1,

located in said Signal Hill oil field, w^hich well is

[5] now on production and is capable of producing

approximately four himdred barrels of oil per day.

VIII.

That said Hill Petroleum Corporation is the

owner of an oil lease in said Signal Hill oil field,

and is now drilling thereon a well known as Hill

Petroleum No. 1, which well is at a depth of ap-

proximately thirty-seven hundred (3,700) feet.

IX.

That as above set forth, all of said corporations

are the alter ego of your petitioner and that their
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affairs are intermingled to such an extent that a

segregation thereof would be impracticable and

would work a great injustice upon the creditors of

your petitioner; that your petitioner is not insol-

vent, but is unable to meet his obligations as they

mature, and that there are a great many outstand-

ing obligations and your petitioner is now threat-

ened with attachment and foreclosure proceedings

by creditors and unless an extension of time is given

your petitioner, his assets will be dissipated and

wholly lost, to the irreparable injury of your peti-

tioner and his creditors.

X.

That your petitioner's financial condition and the

nature and condition of his assets and liabilities are

such that the need for reorganization is essential

and compelling and can best be adequately, expedi-

ently and economically effected only imder the di-

rec- [6] tion and control of this Court: that this

petition is filed in good faith and is neither col-

lusive nor for the purpose of obtaining any prefer-

ence or improper advantage for any one creditor,

or any party in interest, or any class of parties

in interest, over any other creditor, or any other

party in interest, or any other class of parties in

interest, save as such classes are lawfully entitled

to such preferences, if any, by virtue of liens or

securities; that this debtor is informed and believes

and therefore alleges that a great majority of the
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creditors desire as does your petitioner the assist-

ance of this Court in effecting such reorganization.

XI.

That if your petitioner is left in charge and pos-

session of his assets, he has agreed with the larger

creditors that said creditors may select a creditors'

committee and that said creditors' committee will

supervise the operations of the debtor's property

and generally control all receipts and disburse-

ments in respect thereto, pending the submission of

a plan of extension or composition by your peti-

tioner. That your petitioner proposes only to oper-

ate said producing wells and to sell the oil there-

from, pending the meeting of creditors in the above

entitled matter, and does not intend to operate said

wells involved in said trespass actions as above al-

leged.

Wherefore, your petitioner prays that his peti-

tion be approved by the above entitled court and

[7] that proceedings be had in accordance with the

provisions of Section 74 of the Bankruptcy Act as

amended; that pending further proceedings in the

above entitled matter your petitioner prays that the

above entitled Court enter an order allowing your

petitioner to remain in control of the above de-

scribed properties and that all creditors, marshals,

sheriffs and attorneys be restrained from proceed-

ing with any action of any character affecting your

petitioner's assets, and particularly the properties

described in this petition, and that your petitioner
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be granted a period of ten days from the filing of

this petition in which to prepare and file herein his

schedules setting forth a statement of his assets and

liabilities and the names and places of residences of

his creditors, and that your petitioner be granted

such other and further relief as may be just and

proper in the premises.

JACK DAVE STERLING
Petitioner

THOMAS REYNOLDS
FRANCIS B. COBB

Attorneys for Petitioner

United States of America

Southern District of California

Central Division

State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

Tack Dave Sterling, being the above named

debtor mentioned and described in the foregoing

[8] petition, does hereby make solemn oath that the

statements therein contained are true to the best of

my knowledge, information and belief.

JACK DAVE STERLING
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 14th day

of October, 1935.

[Seal] VTNCEL GARNER
Notary Public in and for the Coimty of Los An-

geles, State of California.

[Endorsed]: Filed 1:30 Oct. 14, 1935. R. S.

Zimmerman, Clerk.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER APPROVING DEBTOR'S PETITION
UNDER SECTION 74 AND RESTRAIN-
ING ORDER.

Upon reading and filing the verified petition of

Jack Dave Sterling, debtor in the above entitled

matter, and it appearing therefrom that the debtor

has filed a voluntary petition under Section 74 of

the Bankruptcy Act, as amended, and the same hav-

ing been presented to and considered by this Court,

and it appearing from said petition that the debtor

is a proper person and party to file a petition under

said Section 74, and that he has resided in the

Southern District of California, Central Division

at 3750 Effingham Place, Los Angeles, California,

for more than six months next preceding the filing

of said petition, and it further appearing that said

[9] debtor is solvent, but is unable to meet his ob-

ligations as they mature, and that he desires to

effect a composition or extension of time to pay

his debts, and the Court being satisfied that the

petition has been filed in good faith, and having

been fully advised in the premises.

Now, Therefore, on motion of Thomas Rejniolds

and Francis B. Cobb, attorneys for the debtor.

It Is Ordered:

1. That said petition be and it is hereby ap-

proved as having been filed in good faith, and in

accordance with Section 74 of the Bankruptcy Act

as amended.
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2. That within ten days from the date of this

Order the above named debtor file his verified

schedules of his assets and liabilities, as provided

by law, with the above entitled Court; and the

debtor is hereby granted said period of ten (10)

days from the date hereof within which to file the

same.

3. That the above named debtor remain in pos-

session and control of the properties and assets de-

scribed in his petition, as well as his other property

wheresoever located, pending a meeting of creditors.

4. That all persons, firms and creditors, includ-

ing all creditors of the above named debtor and of

the corporations named in said petition, their rep-

resentatives, attorneys and servants and all sheriffs,

marshals and other officers and their deputies,

representatives and servants, and all other persons

[TO]whomsoever, be and they hereby severally are

enjoined and restrained from instituting or pro-

ceeding with any suit or action of any character

involving or affecting any of the assets and prop-

erty described in the petition or any assets and

property in the possession of or owned by the above

named debtor or any of said corporations, or in

which the above named debtor has an interest: and

said parties are severally further enjoined from

proceeding with any -action now pending, or pro-

curing the appointment of any receiver, or from

taking or attempting to take into their possession

any of said assets or properties, or from inter-
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fering in any way with the possession thereof by

the debtor.

5. That this Court reserves full right of juris-

diction to make from time to time such orders as the

Court may deem proper in respect to the operation

of the business of the debtor, and the fixing of a

reasonable time within w^hich claims of the respec-

tive parties may be filed and determined, and to

modify or limit this order.

Dated this 14th day of October, 1935.

LEON R. YANKWICH
Judge of the above entitled

court.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 14, 1935. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. [11]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PETITION BY DEBTOR FOR
ADJUDICATION.

To the Honorable Leon Yankwich, Judge of the

Above Entitled Court:

The verified petition of Jack Dave Sterling re-

spectfully shows:

I,

That he has heretofore filed a petition under Sec-

tion 74 of the Bankruptcy Act as amended.

That the Court entered an order allowing your

petitioner to remain in charge of his assets pending

the calling of a meeting of creditors.

That your petitioner has been operating imder
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the supervision of a creditors' committee appointed

by Earl E. Moss, Referee in said proceeding, and

also under a Receivership, which receiver was ap-

pointed by the above entitled Court.

II.

That your petitioner has submitted to the larger

creditors a draft of the debtor's proposal, and has

had an audit made of his books and records, as well

as of the corporations referred to in the debtor's

original petition on file.

That your petitioner finds that the larger cred-

itors have recovered preferences within four months

prior to the filing of the proceeding. That they are

unwilling to agree upon a plan whereby each of

[12] them will surrender said preferences and their

securities.

That your petitioner finds that he is unable to

procure the agreement of the different classes of

creditors in respect to the amoimts and classifica-

tion of their claims.

That a large amount of time has been expended

in endeavoring to work out a proposal that would

be acceptable to the required number of (*reditoi^.

That after diligent effort your petitioner has been

unable to receive any assurance that he can obtain

the consent of his creditors to any proposal.

That your petitioner's creditors are demanding

that they be given a day in court, and that some

action be taken.
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III.

That your petitioner has concluded that he is

helpless to proceed with a proposal that will meet

the approval of his creditors, and that further delay

and expense will be entailed if a hearing is had and

a proposal is made which will not be approved by

the required number of creditors.

That your petitioner has decided to, and does

hereby petition the above entitled Court to adjudge

him a bankrupt, pursuant to subdivision "1" of

section 74 of the Bankruptcy Act as amended.

IV.

That your petitioner has heretofore prepared

schedules as required by the Bankruptcy Act as

[13] amended as to all of your petitioner's assets

and liabilities, as well as the assets and liabilities of

the corporations referred to in the debtor's original

petition. That said corporations referred to in said

petition are filing voluntary petitions in bankruptcy

with the above entitled Court, in order that all of

the assets may be under the custody and control of

the above entitled court, and in order that the ad-

ministration may be had of said assets in an equit-

able and economic manner.

Wherefore your petitioner prays that the above

entitled Court enter an order adjudicating your

petitioner to be a bankrupt pursuant to the Acts

of Congress relating to Bankruptcy, as amended.

JACK DAVE STERLING
Petitioner.

FRANCIS B. COBB
Attorney for Petitioner.
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United States of America

Southern District of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

I, Jack Dave Sterling, the petitioning debtor

mentioned and described in the foregoing petition,

do hereby make solemn oath that the statements

contained therein are true according to the best of

my knowledge, information and belief.

JACK DAVE STERLING
Petitioner.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 22nd day

of November 1935.

[Seal] FRANCIS B. COBB
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California.

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 23, 1935. Earl E. Moss,

Referee. Phyllis Gray, Clerk.

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 26, 1935. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ADJUDICATION AND ORDER OF
REFERENCE

(Under Section 74 Bkcy. Act)

At Los Angeles, in said District, on November 26,

1935, before said Court in Bankruptcy, the Certifi-

cate of the Referee that Jack Dave Sterling, Debtor

under Section 74 of the Bankruptcy Act in the
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above entitled matter should be adjudged bankrupt

within the true intent and meaning of the Acts of

Congress relating to bankruptcy having been heard

and duly considered, the said Jack Dave Sterling,

is hereby declared and adjudged bankrupt accord-

ingly.

It is thereupon ordered that said matter be re-

ferred to Earl E. Moss, Esq., one of the referees in

bankruptcy of this court, to take such further pro-

ceedings therein as are required by said Acts; and

that the said Jack Dave Sterling shall attend be-

[15] fore said referee on December 3, 1935 at his

office in Los Angeles, California, at 10 o'clock a. m.,

and shall submit to such orders as may be made by

said referee or by this Court- relating to said matter

in Bankruptcy.

Witness, the Honorable Wm. P. James, Judge of

said Court, and the seal thereof, at Los Angeles, in

said District on November 26, 1935.

R. S. ZIMMERMAN,
Clerk

By L. WAYNE THOMAS
Deputy Clerk

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 26, 1935. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. [16]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER OF RE-REFERENCE
It appearing to the Court that E. R. Utley, Esq.,

has been duly appointed and has qualified as Ref-

eree in Bankruptcy for the Southern District of

California to take the place of Earl E. Moss, Esq.

It Is Ordered that the above entitled cases be

and they hereby are re-referred to E. R. Utley, Esq.,

as Referee in Bankruptcy, to take such further pro-

ceedings therein as are required by the Acts of Con-

gress relating to bankruptcy.

Dated: Apr 1 1936

WM. P. JAMES
U. S. District Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 1, 1936. [17]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

APPOINTMENT OF TRUSTEE BY
CREDITORS

At Los Angeles, in said District, on the 6 day

of January, 1936, before Earl E. Moss, Referee in

Bankruptcy.

This being the day ap})ointed by the Court for

the first meeting of creditors in the above bank-

ruptcy, and of which due notice has been given in

the Los Angeles Daily Journal, we, whose names

are hereunder written, being the majority in num-

ber and in amount of claims of the creditors of the
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said bankrupt, whose claims have been allowed, and

who are present at this meeting, do hereby appoint

Hubert F. Laugharn, of Los Angeles, in the Coimty

of Los Angeles, and State of California, to be the

trustee of the said bankrupt's estate and effects,

and suggest a bond in the sum of $100,000.00.

Signature of Creditors Amount of Debt

Oil Tool Exchange, Ind. $ 349.47

J. D. Rush 2,658.59

5,658.59

Standard Pipe & Supply Co. 5,256.49

Baash-Ross Tool Co. 1,026.26

Baker Oil Tool 1,395.00

By R. Dechter

It Is Hereby Ordered that the above Appoint-

ment of Trustee be, and the same is approved, and

all claims filed at or before this meeting are hereby

allowed miless otherwise noted on said claims.

It Is Further ordered that before said Trustee

shall take into his possession any property of this

estate exceeding in value the amount of his bond

as above set forth he shall file and have approved a

bond equal to the value of the said property.

EARL E. MOSS
Referee in Bankruptcy

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 3, 1941. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. [18]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

APPOINTMENT OF TRUSTEE BY
CREDITORS

At Los Angeles, in said District on the 7th day

of January, 1941, before Ernest R. Utley, Referee

in Bankruptcy,

Hubert F. Laugham, Trustee herein, having filed

his resignation as such trustee, and this being the

day appointed by the Court, for the meeting of

creditors to elect a new Trustee under the said

Bankruptcy, and of which due notice has been given

to the creditors and interested parties herein, we,

whose names are hereunder written, being the ma-

jority in number and in amount of claims of the

creditors of the said bankrupt, whose claims have

been allowed, and who are present at this meeting,

do hereby appoint George Goggin, of Los Angeles,

in the County of Los Angeles, and State of Cali-

fornia, to be the trustee of the said bankrupt's es-

tate and effects, and suggest a bond in the sum of

$25,000.00.

Signature of Creditors Amount of Debt

Oil Well Supply Company $116,568.40

JOSEPH RIFKIND
Attorney for Oil Well

Supply Company.

It Is Hereby Ordei-ed that the above Appoint-

ment of Trustee be, and the same is approved.

It Is Further Ordered that before said Trustee

shall take into his possession any property of this

estate exceeding in value the amount of his bond
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as above set forth he shall file and have approved

a bond equal to the value of the said property.

ERNEST R. UTLEY
Referee in Bankruptcy.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 2, 1941. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. [21]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PETITION OF TRUSTEE IN BANKRUPTCY
FOR INSTRUCTIONS RELATIVE TO
HUNTINGTON SHORE WELL

Comes Now Hubert F. Laugham and respect-

fully represents and petitions as follows;

I

That he is the duly appointed, qualified and act-

ing Trustee in Bankruptcy in the above entitled

matter.

II

That the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, a corpora-

tion, has commenced the redrilling of that certain

oil well commonly known and designated as "Pe-

troleum Well" at Huntington Beach, California,

covered by Easement No. 290-1 granted by the

State of California.

Ill

That petitioner is informed and believes and on

that ground alleges that the proposed course of re-

drilling said "Petroleum Well" will cause the same

to come within one hundred (100) feet of the
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'' Huntington Shore Well" of the above entitled

bankrupt estate, which is situated on that certain

real property in the County of Orange, State of

California, more particularly described as follows:

Lot Two (2) in Block Three Hundred Nine-

teen (319) of Huntington Beach Seventeenth

Street Section in the City of Huntington Beach,

as per Map recorded in Book 4, Page 10 of

Miscellaneous Maps, Records of said County,

covered by Easement No. 309-21 granted by the

State of California. [23]

IV
That petitioner is further informed and believes

and on that ground alleges that the surveys, as

plotted, and their intersection with the inclined

planes show that it will be impossible to redrill the

"Petroleum Well" without coming within one him-

dred (100) feet of the oil sands perforated by and

from which production is obtained by the "Himt-

ington Shore Well", particularly at thirty-seven

hundred (3700) feet, thirty-eight hundred (3800)

feet, thirty-nine hundred (3900) feet and four thou-

sand (4000) feet, and thereby causing infiltration

of oil, mud, cement and other foreign substances,

and that the same will result in irreparable damage

to and possible loss of said "Huntington Shore

Well".

V
That said "Huntington vShore Well" was placed

on production on August 15, 1937. The average

daily production for the past twelve (12) months

has been approximately two hundred ninety-five
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(295) barrels per day. The estimated value of said

well is Three Hundred Fifty Thousand ($350,-

000.00) Dollars. That attached hereto and made a

part hereof is an affidavit of Vernon L. King, a

geologist and petroleum engineer who was employed

in connection with the redrilling of the ''Hunting-

ton Shore Well" and as such, is familiar with the

underground course and oil sands from which said

"Huntington Shore Well" is producing. That at-

tached hereto and made a part hereof is also an

affidavit of Jack Dave Sterling, under whose direc-

tion the "Huntington Shore Well" was redrilled

and who, because of his many years of practical

experience in the oil business, together with his fa-

miliarity by reason of the redrilling of the said

"Huntington Shore Well", is familiar with the con-

ditions thereof.

Wherefore, your petitioner, by reason of the

value of said well and the irreparable loss and dam-

age which will probably result thereto by reason of

the redrilling of the said [24] "Petroleum Well",

desires that the court give instructions to said pe-

titioner as to the action and proceedings which

should be taken by the Trustee in Bankruptcy in

the matter.

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN
Trustee in Bankruptcy

JOSEPH J. RIFKIND and

RAPHAEL DECHTER
By JOSEPH J. RIFKIND
By

Attorneys for Trustee in Bankruptcy
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United States of America

Southern District of California

Central Division—ss.

Hubert F. Laugharn, being by me duly sworn,

deposes and says: that he is the Petitioner in the

above entitled action; that he has read the forego-

ing Petition of Trustee in Bankruptcy for Instruc-

tions Relative to Huntington Shore Well and knows

the contents thereof; and that the same is true of

his own knowledge, except as to the matters which

are therein stated upon his infonnation or belief,

and as to those matters that he believes it to be

true.

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20th day

of April, 1940.

[Seal] PHYLLIS GRAY
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California. [25]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT OF VERNON L. KING IN CON-
NECTION WITH PETITION OF THE THE
TRUSTEE IN BANKRUPTCY FOR IN-

STRUCTIONS RELATIVE TO HUNTING-
TON SHORE WELL.

State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

Vernon L. King, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says:
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That he is aiid for the past twenty-three (23)

years has been a geologist and petroleum engineer;

that for the past twelve (12) years he has been a

consulting engineer in Southern California ; that he

acquired his education as a geologist and petroleum

engineer at Department of Mining and Geology of

Stanford University and graduated therefrom in

1917.

That affiant has made an examination and analy-

sis of the surveys, plats, courses, charts and other

data w^hich is on file with the Division of Lands of

the State of California showing the course of the

Petroleum Well at Huntington Beach, California,

covered by Easement No. 290-1 gi'anted by the State

of California, which is and for several months last

past has been off production and which the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation has commenced to redrill.

That affiant has also made an examination and

analysis of the plats, courses, charts and other data

which is on file with the Division of Lands of the

State of California showing the course of the Hunt-

ington Shore Well at Huntington Beach, Califor-

nia, covered [26] by Easement No. 309-2a, granted

by the State of California.

That the surveys of said wells are made by inde-

pendent and impartial experts and technicians en-

gaged and specializing in surveying and plotting

the underground courses of oil wells. That affiant

was the consulting geologist and petroleum engineer

employed in connection with the redrilling of the

Huntington Shore Well, and as such is intimately
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familiar with the underground course and oil sands

from which said Huntington Shore Well is pro-

ducing.

That the surveys, as plotted, and their intersec-

tion with the inclined planes, show, in affiant's opin-

ion, that it will be impossible to redrill the Pe-

troleum Well without coming within one hundred

(100) feet of the oil sands perforated by and from

which production is obtained by the Huntington

Shore Well, particularly at thirty-seven hmidred

(3700) feet, thirty-eight himdred (3800) feet, thir-

ty-nine hundred (3900) feet and four thousand

(4000) feet, and thereby, in affiant's opinion, caus-

ing infiltration of oil, mud, cement and other for-

eign substances which wall, in affiant's opinion, re-

sult in irreparable damage to, if not possibly the

loss of, the well.

That the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation commenced

the redrilling of said Petroleum Well or or about

Aj^ril 15, 1940. That said Huntington Shore Well

is drilled at an angle into the tidelands of the State

of California under easement, as previously stated,

and for that reason any change in the gas pressure

or shifting of underlying oil sands makes remedial

work exceedingly difficult and extremely hazardous.

That said Huntington Shore Well was placed on

production on August 15, 1937, the average daily

I)roduction of said Huntington Shore Well, for the

past twelve (12) months, has been approximately

two hundred ninety-five (295) barrels per day, that

the fail* and [27] reasonable value of said Hunting-
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ton Shore Well, in affiant's opinion, is approxi-

mately Three Hundred Fifty Thousand ($350,-

000.00) Dollars.

VERNON L. KING
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 18th day

of April, 1940.

[Seal] HERTHA N. EBERT
Notary Public in and for the Coimty of Los An-

geles, State of California. [28]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT OF JACK DAVE STERLING IN

CONNECTION WITH PETITION OF
TRUSTEE IN BANKRUPTCY FOR IN-

STRUCTIONS RELATIVE TO HUNTING-
TON SHORE WELL

State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

Jack Dave Sterling, being first duly sworn, de-

poses and says:

That he has been engaged in the oil business in

Southern California for the past 8 years; that the

''Huntington Shore Well" of the above entitled

bankrupt estate was originally drilled and there-

after redrilled imder the direction and supervision

of affiant; that in addition to the personal knowl-

edge of the course and formations through which

said "Huntington Shore Well" was drilled, affiant

has made and examination of plats, course charts
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and other data showing the course of the ''Hunt-

ington Shore Well" at Huntington Beach, Califor-

nia, covered by Easement No. 309-2a granted by the

State of California, and also of the course of "Pe-

troleum Well" at Huntington Beach, California,

covered by Easement No. 290-1 granted by the State

of California.

That from affiant's personal knowledge of the

course and formations through which said "Hunt-

ington Shore Well" was drilled and confirmed by

his examination and analysis of plats, course charts

and other data examined by him in connection with

the "Huntington Shore Well" and the "Petroleiun

Well", it is affiant's opinion that [29] said "Pe-

troleum Well" cannot be redrilled without coming

within one hundred (100) feet of the oil sands per-

forated by and from which production is obtained

by the "Huntington Shore Well", and it is affiant's

further opinion that the redrilling of the "Pe-

troleum Well" will cause infiltration of oil, mud,

cement and other foreign substances in the "Hunt-

ington Shore Well", resulting in irreparable dam-

age to and possible entire loss of said "Huntington

Shore Well."

That the "Huntington Shore Well" was placed

on j)roduction on August 15, 1937; that the aver-

age daily production of said "Huntington Shore

Well" for the past twelve (12) months has been

approximately two hundred ninety-five (295) bar-

rels per day; that the fair and reasonable value

of said "Huntington Shore Well" is, in affiant's
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opinion, approximately Three Hundred Fifty Thou-

sand ($350,000.00) Dollars.

JACK DAVE STERLING
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day

of April, 1940.

[Seal] BEATRICE M. FOREMASTER
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California.

[Endorsed]: Filed Apr. 20, 1940. Ernest R.

Utley, Referee, By Blanche Morris, Clerk.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 30, 1941. R. S. Zim-

merman, Clerk. By Louis J. Somers, Deputy Clerk.

[30]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE ON PETITION OF
TRUSTEE IN BANKRUPTCY FOR IN-

STRUCTIONS RELATIVE TO HUNTING-
TON SHORE WELL

Upon reading the verified petition of Hubert F.

Laugharn, as Trustee in Bankruptcy in the above

entitled matter, together with the affidavit of Ver-

non L. King, geologist and petroleum engineer, and

the affidavit of Jack Dave Sterling, and good cause

appearing therefrom.

It Is Ordered that the Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion, a corporation, be and appear before Honorable

Ernest R. Utley, Referee in Bankruptcy, 327 Fed-

eral Building, Temple and Spring Streets, Los An-
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geles, California, on the 26 day of April, 1940, at

2 o'clock P. M., then and there to show cause, if

any it has, why such order or orders should not be

made and entered by the above entitled court in

the above entitled matter to protect the "Hunting-

ton Shore Well" of the above entitled bankrupt

estate from damage resulting from the redrilling

of the ''Petroleum Well", and why such additional

further and future order or orders should not be

made and entered authorizing the Trustee in Bank-

ruptcy to institute, maintain and prosecute any ac-

tion, proceedings or suit in this or any other court

which may, in the opinion of the Trustee in Bank-

ruptcy, be necessary or advisable to protect the

"Huntington Shore Well" from damage as the re-

sult of the redrilling of the "Petroleum Well."

It Is Further Ordered by the above entitled court,

[31] that a copy of the petition of Hubert F.

Laugharn, as Trustee in Bankruptcy, and the af-

fidavit of Vernon L. King and the Affidavit of Jack

Dave Sterling, be served concurrently with the serv-

ice of this order.

Dated: April 20, 1940.

ERNEST R. UTLEY
Referee in Bankruptcy

[Endorsed]: Filed Apr. 20, 1940. Ernest R.

Utley, Referee. Blanche Morris, Clerk.

[Endorsed] Filed Jan. 30, 1941. R. S. Zim-

merman, Clerk. By Louis J. Somers, Deputy Clerk.

[32]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

INJUNCTION AGAINST BOLSA CHICA OIL
CORPORATION, ET AL.

The verified petition of Hubert F. Laugharn, as

Trustee in Bankruptcy in the above entitled matter,

and the order to show cause issued thereon directed

to the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, a corporation,

caine on regularly for hearing before Hon. Ernest

R. Utley, Referee in Bankruptcy, on April 26, 1940,

at two o'clock P. M. and after being partially heard

on said date, was continued for further hearing to

and the hearing thereof was concluded on May 1,

1940, at two o'clock P. M. The Trustee in Bank-

ruptcy appeared through and w^as represented by

Joseph J. Rifkind and Raphael Dechter, his attor-

neys, and the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, a cor-

poration, appeared through and was represented by

Cecil A. Borden and Warren S. Pallette, of Over-

ton, Lyman & Plumb, its attorneys. The Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, upon the calling of the mat-

ter, announced that it was appearing specially for

the sole purpose of objecting to the jurisdiction of

the court to make any order affecting said corpora-

tion; that thereupon the court informed counsel

that it would withhold ruling upon the question of

jurisdiction until sufficient evidence was introduced

to determine the question; that oral and documen-

tary evidence was introduced upon the part of the

Trustee in Bankruptcy and the witnesses called on

behalf of the Trustee in Bankruptcy were cross-
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examined by the attorneys for the Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation; the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, hav-

ing at the conclusion of the introduction of oral and

documentary evidence upon behalf of the Trustee

in Bankruptcy, [33] stipulated in open court to

the granting of the injunction as hereinafter more

particularl}^ set forth, the Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration stating that such stipulation was subject

to the objection to the jurisdiction of the court and

that such stipulation was not intended to confer

general jurisdiction on the court; the court having

been fully advised in the premises and the court

having overruled the objection of Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation to the jurisdiction of the court.

It Is, Therefore, Ordered as Follows:

That the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, its super-

intendent, agents and employees, shall be and they

hereby are restrained and enjoined from drilling,

redrilling or sidetrackings its '' Petroleum Well",

also known as "Fee No. 1 Well", at Huntington

Beach, California, so that it comes closer than 200

feet from the "Huntington Shore Well" of said

bankrupt estate, measured on a horizontal plane, at

any point below the depth of 3800 feet below sea

level as the course of the "Huntington Shore Well"

is shown on the plat or chart offered and received

in evidence and marked Trustee's Exhibit 5.

That in determining whether such drilled, re-

drilled or sidetracked portion of "Petroleum Well",

also knowTi as "Fee No. 1 Well", approaches with-

in 200 feet of the "Huntington Shore Well" shall
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be conclusive as to the parties as the same is de-

lineated on said plat and the distance therefrom

shall be conclusively determined by plotting the

course of the drilled, redrilled or sidetracked por-

tion of said ''Fee No. 1 Well" on said plat, based

upon single shot surveys taken during the course of

the drilling, redrilling or sidetracking of the "Pe-

troleum Weir', also known as "Fee No. 1 Well",

at approximately every 100 feet, which single shot

surveys shall be made available to the Trustee in

Bankruptcy or his representatives as the same are

from time to time taken and made. [34]

That the circulating fluid used in drilling, redrill-

ing or sidetracking of said "Petroleum Well", also

known as "Fee No. 1 Well", shall be virgin crude

oil maintained at a grade and gravity consistent

with good oil practice in said field, and that no mud
or other foreign substances of any kind shall be

used in lieu or as part of such circulating fluid, pro-

vided that a substitute circulating fluid may be used

as may be mutually agreed to in writing between

the petroleum engineers for the respective parties

thereto.

That there shall be no cementing of said "Pe-

troleum Well", also known as "Fee No. 1 Well",

nor shall any cement be used in connection with the

drilling, redrilling or sidetracking thereof unless

written consent is first obtained from the petroleum

engineer representing the Trustee in Bankruptcy,

provided that if the petroleum engineer for the par-

ties cannot agree as to whether such proposed ce-

menting will be detrimental to the "Huntington
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Shore Well" or not, then and in that event the

matter may, ui)on notice to the respective parties,

be submitted for determination at a hearing before

the Division of Oil and Gas of the State of Cali-

fornia.

That nothing in this order is intended to nor shall

any provision of this order preclude or in any man-

ner whatsoever impair the right of the Trustee in

Bankruptcy to institute, maintain or prosecute any

plenary action, proceeding or suit in any court of

competent jurisdiction concurrently, consecutively

or cumulatively for injimctive relief or to recover

any damages which may be sustained by the "Hunt-

ington Shore" by I'eason of the drilling, redrilling

or sidetracking of the "Petroleum Well", also

known as "Fee No. 1 Well."

Dated this 15th day of May, 1940.

EENEST R. UTLEY
Referee in Bankruptcy [35]

Approved as to Form and Contents

:

JOSEPH J. RIFKIND and

RAPHAEL DECHTER
By JOSEPH J. RIFKIND

Attorneys for Trustee in Bankruptcy

OVER^^ON, LYMAN & PLUMB
By CECIL A. BORDEN

Attorneys for Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, a corporation.

[Endorsed]: Filed May 15, 1940. Ernest R.

Utley, Referee. Phyllis Gray, Clerk.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 31, 1940, 12:03 P. M.

R. S. Zimmerman, Clerk. By C. A. Simmons,

Deputy Clerk. [36]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PETITION TO HAVE BOLSA CHICA OIL
CORPORATION, ET AL., CERTIFIED FOR
CONTEMPT, ETC.

Comes now Hubert F. Laugharn and respect-

fully represents and petitions as follows

:

I.

That he is the duly appointed, qualified and act-

ing trustee in bankruptcy in the above entitled

matter. That one of the assets of said bankrupt

estate is that certain oil well commonly known

and designated as ^'Huntington Shore Well" sit-

uated in the Coimty of Orange, State of Califor-

nia, and more particularly described as follows:

Lot Two (2) in Block Three Hundred Nine-

teen (319) of Huntington Beach Seventeenth

Street Section in the City of Huntington Beach,

as per Map recorded in Book 4, Page 10 of

Miscellaneous Maps, Records of said County,

and

covered by Easement No. 309-2A granted by the

State of California.

II.

That heretofore and pursuant to the hearing of

a verified petition filed by the trustee in bank-

ruptcy and the Order to Show Cause issued there-

on, an injunction was granted on May 15, 1940,

against the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, its super-

intendent, agents and employees providing ''that
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the circulating fluid used in the drilling, redrill-

ing or side-tracking of its "Petroleiun Well", also

known as **Fee No. 1 Well", shall be virgin crude

oil maintained at a grade and gravity consistent

with good oil practice in said field and that no [37]

mud or other foreign substances shall be used in

lieu of or as part of said circulating fluid, pro-

vided that a substitute circulating fluid may be

uped as may be mutually agreed to in writing be-

tween the pertoleiun engineers for the respective

parties thereto."

III.

That the trustee in bankruptcy has been informed

by Jack Dave Sterling, who is in charge of the

operation of said ''Huntington Shore Well", that

redrilling operations have been resumed on the

said "Petroleum Well", also known as "Fee No.

1 Well", and that mud is being used as a circu-

lating fluid in the redrilling in direct violation of

said injunction heretofore issued. That a copy of

said injunction was served upon the Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation and its attorneys in said proceed-

ings and a notice of the entry of said injunction

against the Bolsa Chico Oil Corporation was served

on or about May 17, 1940. That no petition for re-

view was filed and no appeal was taken from the

entry and issuance of said injunction within the

time provided by law -or otherwise, or at all, and

that said injunction now is and for several months

last past has been final and in full force and effect.
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IV.

That some agreement or arrangement has been

entered into by and between the Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, McVicar Rood, Inc., a corporation,

M. M. McCullmn Corporation, a corporation, H. H.

McVicar, C. M. Rood, M. M. McCullmn, Thomas

W. Simons, "John Doe" Anderson, and Warren

S. Pallette and William H. Cree, their attorneys,

as a subterfuge, scheme and device to circumvent,

evade and escape the force and effect of said in-

junction, and redrilling operations upon said "Pe-

troleum Well", also known as "Fee No. 1 Well",

have been or are about to be resumed with the

use of mud as a circulating fluid in violation of

said injunction heretofore issued and in force and

<^ffect.

V.

That the trustee in bankruptcy is of the opinion

and be- [38] lieves and therefore states that the

value of said "Huntington Shore Well" is $350,-

000.00. That prior to the commencement of the re-

drilling operations by the Bolsa Chica Oil Corpo-

ration of its "Petroleum Well", also known as

"Fee No. 1 Well", that said "Huntington Shore

Well" had produced an average daily production

over a period of twelve (12) months for the past

twelve (12) months preceding the redrilling of

said "Petroleum Well", also known as "Fee No. 1

Well", of 296 barrels per day. That as a result of

the redrilluig operation by the Bolsa Chica Oil
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Corporation of its "Petroleum Well", also known
as "Fee No. 1 Well", it was necessary to shut down
the operation of the "Himtin^ton Shore Well" be-

cause of the infiltration of the mud which was be-

ing used by the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation in

its redrilling and a colmnn of mud stood in the

"Himtington Shore Well" ranging from 1900 feet

to 3600 feet, that it was necessary for the trustee

in bankruptcy to pull, bale, wash and incur other

expenditures for material and labor in an endeavor

to preserve and protect the said "Himtington

Shore Well" from the damage resulting from the

infiltration of said mud used as a circulating fluid

in such redrilling, and the trustee in bankruptcy

has heretofore sustained damages as a result of

the loss of production and remedial work of ap-

proximately $10,000.00 and will continue to sus-

tain further damages and loss with the probabil-

ity of said well being irreparably damaged or in-

jured unless the use of mud as a circulating fluid

in said redrilling of said "Petroleum Well", also

known as Fee No. 1 Well", is ])ermanently re-

strained, prohibited and enjoined.

Wherefore, the trustee in bankruptcy prays that

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, McVicar-Rood, Inc.,

a corporation, M. M. McCuUum Corporation, a cor-

poration, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood, M. M. Mc-

CuUum, Thomas W. Simmons, "John Doe" Ander-

son, William H. Cree and Warren S. Pallette be

certified for contempt to the United States District

[39] Court for violating and aiding and abetting in
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the violation of said injunction and that in addition

thereto, or in the alternative thereof, that the in-

junction heretofore issued be modified and extended

to include each and all of said persons, their agents,

servants, employees, successors and assigns, and

that pending the hearing of said Order to Show

Cause that said persons, and each of them, their

agents, servants, employees, successors and assigns,

be restrained and enjoined from using of mud as

a circulating fluid in the redrilling of said ''Petro-

leum Well", also known as "Fee No. 1 Well".

HUBERT F. LAUaHARN,
Trustee in Bankruptcy.

JOSEPH J. RIFKIND and

RAPHAEL DECHTER,
By JOSEPH J. RIFKIND,

Attorneys for Trustee.

United States of America,

Southern District of California,

Central Division—ss.

Hubert F. Laugham, being by me first duly

sworn, deposes and says : that he is the Trustee in

Bankruptcy in the above entitled action; that he

has read the foregoing Petition to Have Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, et al. Certified for Con-

tempt, Etc., and knows the contents thereof; and

that the same is true of his own knowledge, except

as to the matters which are therein stated upon
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information or belief, and as to those matters he

believes it to be true.

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 22nd day

of August, 1940.

[Seal] MEREDITH KEITH,
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California.

[Endorsed] : Piled Aug. 22, 1940 at 30 min. past

4 o'clock P. M. Ernest R. Utley, Referee. Meredith

Keith, Clerk.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 31, 1940^-12:03 P. M.

R. S. Zimmerman, Clerk. By C. A. Simmons, Dep-

uty Clerk. [40]

[Title of District Court, and Cause.]

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE ON PETITION TO
HAVE BOLSA CHICA OIL CORPORA-
TION, ET AL., CERTIFIED FOR CON-
TEMPT, ETC.

Upon reading the verified petition filed by Hu-

bert F. Laugham as trustee in bankruptcy in the

above entitled matter, and good cause appearing

therefrom.

It Is Ordered that Bolsa Chica Oil Cory)oration,

McVicar-Rood, Inc., a 'corporation, M. M. McCul-

hun Corporation, a corporation, H. H. Mc-

Vicar, C. M. Rood, M. M. McCuUum, Thomas

W. Simmons, 'Mohn Doe" Anderson, and Wil-

liam H. Cree and Warren S. Pallette be
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and appear before Hon. Ernest R. Utley,

Referee in Bankruptcy, Room 324, Federal Build-

ing, Los Angeles, California, on the 30th day of

August, 1940, at 10:00 o'clock A. M., then and

there to show cause why they and each of them

should not be certified to the United States Dis-

trict Court for contempt for violating or aiding

or abetting in the violation of the injunction is-

sued against the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, et

al., on May 15, 1940, in the above entitled matter.

It Is Further Ordered that said persons, and

each of them, show cause at said time and place,

if any they have, why the said injimction should

not be modified, amended and supplemented to in-

clude said persons and each of them, and that

pending the hearing of this order to show cause, said

persons, each and all of them, their agents, serv-

ants, employees, successors and assigns be and they

are hereby restrained, prohibited and enjoined from

using mud as a circulating fluid in the redrilling of

the "Petroleum Well", also known as ''Fee No.

1 Well", at Huntington Beach, California.

Dated this 22 day of August, 1940.

ERNEST R. UTLEY,
Referee in Bankruptcy. [41]

[Endorsed]: Filed Aug. 22, 1940, at 30 min.

past 4 o'clock PM. Ernest R. Utley, Referee. Mere-

dith Keith, Clerk.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 31, 1940, 12:03 PM. R. S.

Zimmerman, Clerk. By C. A. Simmons, Deputy

Clerk. [42]
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[Title of District Court anl Cause.]

PETITION FOR AUTHORITY TO INSTITUTE
SUIT AGAINST BOLSA CHICA OIL COR-
PORATION.

Comes now Hubert F. Lau^harn and respectfully

represents and petitions as follows:

I.

That he is the duly appointed, qualified and act-

ing trustee in bankruptcy in the above entitled

matter. That one of the assets of said bankrupt

estate is that certain oil well commonly known
and designated as the ''Huntington Shore Well",

at Huntington Beach, California. That on or about

the 15th day of April, 1940, the Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation commenced the redrilling of its "Pe-

troleum Well", also known as "Fee No. 1 Well",

at Huntington Beach, California. That as a result

of the infiltration of mud which was being used

by the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation in the re-

drilling of its said well, it was necessary to shut

down the operation of said "Himtington Shore

Well" and to pull, bale, wash and incur other

expenditures for material, labor and technical as-

sistance in endeavoring to preserve and protect

said well from damage and in an endeavor to re-

pair, remove and remedy the damage sustained as a

result of the redrilling operations as aforesaid.
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II.

That the trustee in bankruptcy has heretofore

sustained as a result of said damages from said re-

drilling operations on account of loss of production

and remedial work the sum of approximately $12,-

540.00, and the trustee in bankruptcy will continue

to sustain [43] loss and damage as a result of the

permanent and irreparable diminution of produc-

tion from said well as a result of said redrilling

operations estimated at approximately $250,000.00.

That a copy of the proposed complaint for damages

against the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, which the

trustee in bankruptcy intends to file upon receiving

authority so to do, is attached hereto.

Wherefore, the trustee in bankruptcy prays that

he be authorized and empowered to institute action

against the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation for the re-

covery of the damages sustained and to be sustained

by the "Himtington Shore Well" resulting from

said redrilling operations as aforesaid and to incur

at the expense of the bankrupt estate all costs,

charges and expenses arising out of, incidental to

and connected with the said litigation.

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN
Trustee in Bankruptcy

JOSEPH J. RIFKIND and

RAPHAEL DECHTER
By JOSEPH J. RIFKIND

Attorneys for Trustee in Bankruptcy
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United States of America

Southern District of California

Central Division—ss.

Hubert F. Laugham, being by me first duly

sworn, deposes and says: that he is the Petitioner

in the above entitled action; that he has read the

foregoing Petition for Authority to Institute Suit

Against Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, and knows the

contents thereof; and that the same is true of his

own knowledge, except as to the matters which are

therein stated upon information or belief, and as to

those matters that he believes it to be true.

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20th day

of September, 1940.

[Seal] MEREDITH KEITH
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California. [44]
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In the Superior Court of the State of California in

and for the County of Los Angeles

No

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN, as Trustee in Bank-

ruptcy in the Matter of Jack Dave Sterling,

Bankrupt,

Plaintiff,

vs.

BOLSA CHICA OIL CORPORATION, a corpora-

tion, ONE DOE, TWO DOE, THREE DOE,
FOUR DOE, FIVE DOE COMPANY, a Cor-

poration, and SIX DOE COMPANY, a cor-

poration.

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES
Comes now the plaintiff and for the first cause of

action against the defendants complains and alleges

:

I.

That plaintiff is the duly elected, qualified and

acting Trustee in Bankruptcy in the Matter of Jack

Dave Sterling, Bankrupt, pending in the District

Court of the United States, Southern District of

California, Central Division, In Bankruptcy Con-

solidated Cause No. 26685-Y.

That said plaintiff was, pursuant to an order

made and entered in said bankruptcy proceedings,

authorized and empowered to institute, maintain

and prosecute this action against said defendants.
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II.

That the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation is a cor-

poration [45] organized and existing under and

pursuant to the laws of the State of California

with its principal office in the County of Los An-

geles, within said state. That the defendants Five

Doe Company and Six Doe Company are corpora-

tions organized and existing.

That the defendants One Doe, Two Doe, Three

Doe, Four Doe, Five Doe Company, a corporation,

and Six Doe Company, a corporation, are sued

herein under fictitious names for the reason that the

true names of said defendants are unknown to the

plaintiff and plaintiff will ask leave of court to

substitute the true names or said defendants when

the same are ascertained.

III.

That Hubert F. Laugharn, as trustee in bank-

ruptcy, was at all times hereinafter mentioned and

now is the owner of that certain oil well commonly

known as designated as the '' Huntington Shore

Well", drilled upon the real property in the County

of Orange and State of California, more particu-

larly described as follows:

Lot Two (2) in Block Three Hundred Nineteen

(319) of Huntington Beach Seventeenth Street

Section in the City of Huntington Beach, as

per Map recorded in Book 4, Page 10 of Mis-

cellaneous Maps, Records of said County.
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lY.

That the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation was at all times

herein mentioned the owner of and in charge of the

redrilling operations upon that certain oil well com-

monly known and designated as "Petroleum Well'^,

also sometimes known as "Fee No. 1 Well", drilled

upon that certain real property situated in the

County of Orange and State of California, more

particularly described as follows

:

Lots Twenty (20) and Twenty-two (22) in

Block One Hundred Nineteen (119) of the

Huntington Beach Seventeenth Street Section

in the City of Huntington Beach, as per Map
recorded in Book 4, Page 10 of Miscellaneous

Maps, records of said County. [46]

V.

That on or about the 15th day of April, 1940, the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation commenced the re-

drilling of its said "Petroleum Well", also known

as "Fee No. 1 Well", which was at that time and

had for more than six months next preceding said

date been off production. That as the direct and

proximate result of the redrilling operations upon

said "Petroleum Well", also known as "Fee No. 1

Well", carried on by the Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion mud, sand and other foreign substances infil-

trated through the oil sands and were forced up and

into the "Huntington Shore Well", owned by

plaintiff. That as the direct and proximate result

of a column of 3600 feet of mud, sand and other
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foreign substances being forced up and into the

*'Huntingi:on Shore Well" caused by the redrilling

operations carried on by the Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, plaintiff was compelled to and did shut

down and suspend operations of the said ''Hunting-

ton Shore Well" for a period of twenty (20) days

from June 7, 1940 to June 27, 1940, while pulling,

baling, cleaning, washing and other work was being

carried on to remove the mud, sand and other

foreign substances forced up and into said well.

VI.

That at the time of the commencement of said

redrilling operations by the Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration the said ''Huntington Shore Well" was

producing 265 barrels of clean oil per day. That as

the direct and proximate result of the infiltration

and forcing of mud, sand and other foreign sub-

stances through the oil sands up and into the

"Huntington Shore Well" caused by the redrilling

operations of the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, when

said "Huntington Shore Well" was again placed

upon production on or about June 27, 1940, it pro-

duced 168 barrels of oil per day.

VII.

That the damage to plaintiff resulting from the

loss of oil at 265 barrels per day computed at ninety

(90) cents per barrel, which was the fair and

reasonable market value of oil of said grade and

[47] gravity in said field at said period and the
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price which plaintiff would have received for said

oil during said time, amounted to $4,770.00; that

the damage to plaintiff as the result of twenty (20)

days loss from wet and dry gas, computed upon the

fair, reasonable and market value thereof and the

price which plaintiff would have received therefor,

amounted to $248.00; that the damage sustained by

plaintiff for the period from June 27, 1940 to Sep-

tember 1, 1940, as the result of the decline of oil

produced during said period computed upon the

fair and reasonable market value thereof and the

price plaintiff would have received therefor,

amounted to 3700 barrels of oil at ninety (90) cents

per barrel, or $3,330.00; that the damage sustained

by plaintiff for the period from June 27, 1940 to

September 1, 1940, as the result of the decline of

proceeds from wet and dry gas amounted to $550.00

;

that the damage sustained to plaintiff on account of

money expended and obligations incurred for pull-

ing, baling, washing and other material, labor and

technical assistance in the removal of the mud, sand

and other foreign substances which had infiltrated

and had been forced up and into said well amounted

to $3,642.00, all to plaintiff's aggregate damage to

September 1, 1940 of $12,540.00. That no part of

said damages have been paid and the whole thereof

is due, owing and unpaid.

VIII.

That in addition thereto, the production of oil and

gas from said "Huntington Shore Well" has been
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permanently and perpetually diminished and de-

creased for the balance of the life of said well to

I)laintiff 's further damage in the smn of $250,000.00.

That no part of said damage has been paid and the

whole thereof is now due, owing and unpaid.

Comes now the plaintiff and for a second cause of

action against defendants complains and alleges:

[48]

I.

Plaintiff adopts Paragraphs I, II, III and IV.

of his first cause of action as Paragraph I. of this,

his second cause of action.

II.

That on or about the 15th day of April, 1940, the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation commenced the re-

drilling of its said "Petroleum Well", also known

as ''Fee No. 1 Well", which was at that time and

had for more than six months immediately preced-

ing said date been off production. That as the direct

and proximate result of the careless, negligent and

unskillful operation, control and management of

the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation during the redrill-

ing of said well, mud, sand and other foreign sub-

stances were forced through the oil sands up and

into the ''Huntington Shore Well". That as the

direct and proximate result of the careless, negli-

gent and unskillful Operation, control and man-

agement of the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation during

the redrilling of said well, mud, sand and other
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foreign substances were forced up and into said

''Huntington Shore Well" forming a coliunn 3600

feet high so that said "Huntington Shore Well"

became mudded, sanded and clogged, resulting in

the cessation of operations for a period of twenty

(20) days from June 7, 1940 to June 27, 1940.

III.

That as the direct and proximate result of the

careless, negligent and unskillful operation, man-

agement and control of the Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, it was necessary for the plaintiff to pull,

bale, wash, and incur other expeditures for mate-

rial, labor and technical assistance in removing the

mud, sand and other foreign substances from said

"Huntington Shore Well" in order to restore said

well to production. That as the direct and proxi-

mate result of the careless, negligent and unskillful

operation, control and management of the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation the plaintiff has sustained

damages resulting from the loss of production oil

and gas and remedial work in restoring the said

"Huntington Shore Well" to September 1, 1940,

[49] of $12,540.00. That no part of said damages

has been paid and the whole thereof is now due,

owing and impaid.

IV.

That prior to the commencement of the redrilling

operations by the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation the

said "Huntington Shore Well" was producing 265

barrels of clean oil per day and the proceeds from
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wet and dry gas amounted to $328.00 per month.

That as the direct and proximate result of the care-

less, negligent and unskillful operation, manage-

ment and control of the Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion during such redrilling operations the produc-

tion of oil from said "Huntington Shore Well",

when said well was replaced upon production, had

decreased to 168 barrels per day and the income

of wet and dry gas had decreased to $154.00 per

month. That as the direct and proximate result of

said careless, negligent and unskillful operation,

management and control of Bolsa Chica Oil Corpo-

ration during said redrilling operations the said

"Huntington Shore Well" has become and is ir-

reparably and permanently damaged in that the

production of said "Huntington Shore Well" has

been diminished and reduced and plaintiff has

thereby sustained additional damages due to the

loss of future production from said "Himtington

Shore Well" to his further damage in the sum of

$250,000.00. That no part of said damages has been

paid to plaintiff and the whole is now due, owing

and unpaid.

Wherefore, plaintiff prays judgment against the

defendants for the sum of $262,540.00, together with

the costs of suit incurred herein.

JOSEPH J. RIFKIND and

RAPHAEL DECHTER,
By JOSEPH J. RIFKIND,

Attorneys for Trustee in

Bankruptcy. [50]
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State of California,

County of Los Angeles—ss.

Hubert F. Laugharn, being by me first duly

sworn, deposes and says: that he is the Plaintiff in

the above entitled action ; that he has read the fore-

going Complaint for Damages and knows the con-

tents thereof; and that the same is true of his own

knowledge, except as to the matters which are

therein stated upon information or belief, and as

to those matters that he believes it to be true.

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN
Subs<?ribed and sworn to before me this _ day

of September, 1940.

Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California.

[Endorsed] : Petition for Authority to Institute

Suit Against Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation—^filed

Sep. 20, 1940. Ernest R. Utley, Referee.

[Endorsed]: Filed Apr. 2-1941. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. [51]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER AUTHORIZING SUIT AGAINST
BOLSA CHICA OIL CORPORATION.

Upon reading the verified petition of Hubert F.

Laugharn, the trustee in bankruptcy in the above

entitled matter, for authority to institute suit
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against the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation for the re-

covery of damages sustained by the ^'Huntington

Shore Well" owned and operated by the bankrupt

estate as a result of the redrilling operations carried

on by the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation in connec-

tion with its '' Petroleiun Well", also known as

''Fee No. 1 Well", at Huntington Beach, Califor-

nia, and good cause appearing therefor,

It Is Ordered that Hubert F. Laugharn, as trus-

tee in bankruptcy in the above entitled matter, be

and he is hereby authorized and empowered to insti-

tute, prosecute and maintain any action, proceeding

or suit against the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation

which said trustee in bankruptcy may deem neces-

sary, proper and advisable to recover from the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation any and all damages

sustained or which may hereafter be sustained to

the "Huntington Shore Well" of said bankrupt es-

tate as the result of the operations carried on by the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation in connection with the

redrilling of its "Petroleum Well", also known as

"Fee No. 1 Well", at Huntington Beach, Cali-

fornia.

It Is Further Ordered that Hubert F. Laughani,

as trustee in bankruptcy in the above entitled

matter, be and he is hereby authorized and em-

])owered to pay from the proceeds of said bankrupt

[52] estate all of the -costs, expenses and charges

which may be incurred in connection with the insti-

tution, maintenance and prosecution of any such

'action which may be instituted, including any mo-
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tion for a new trial or appeal which may be taken

in connection therewith.

Dated this 20th day of September, 1940.

ERNEST R. UTLEY
Referee in Bankruptcy.

[Endorsed] : Filed Sep. 20, 1940, Ernest R. Utley,

Referee.

[Endorsed]: Filed Apr. 2, 1941, R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. [53]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE OF CONTEMPT
The petition to have Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

a corporation, McVicar-Rood, Inc., a corporation,

M. M. McCallen Corporation (whose name was mis-

spelled in the petition as M. M. McCullum Corpora-

tion), a corporation, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood,

M. M. McCallen (whose name w^as misspelled in the

petition as M. M. McCullum), Thomas W. Simmons,

Allen A. Anderson (designated in the petition as

"John Doe" Anderson), William S. Cree and War-

ren S. Pallette certified for contempt to the United

States District Court for violating and aiding and

abetting in the violation of that certain Injunction

entered on May 15, 1940, in the above entitled

matter, together with the Order to Show Cause is-

sued thereon, and personally served upon each of

said persons, came on regularly for hearing before

the Honorable Ernest R. Utley, Referee in Bank-
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ruptcy on August 30, 1940, at 10 o'clock A. M. and

was on said date continued to September 26, 1940, at

10 o'clock A. M. and after being partially heard on

said date was continued to September 30, 1940, and

after being again partially heard on said date was

continued to and concluded on October 1st, 1940.

The })etitioner, Hubert P. Laugharn, as Trustee in

Bankruptcy, appeared through and was represented

by Raphael Dechter and Joseph J. Rifkind, his at-

torneys; the respondents, Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion, a corporation, Thomas W. Simmons, Allen A.

Anderson and Warren S. Pallette appeared at each

of said hearings and were represented at each of

said hearings by attorneys, Eugene Overton and

Warren S. Pallette, of Overton, Lyman & Plumb,

attorneys; the respondents [54] McVicar-Rood,
Inc., a corporation, M. M. McCallen Corporation,

H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood, M. M. McCallen and

William H. Cree appeared at each of said hearings

and were represented at each of said hearings by

attorneys William H. Cree and Elizabeth R. Henzel.

Oral and documentary evidence having been intro-

duced, the law applicable to the matter having been

argued in open Court and by the filing of briefs by

the respective counsel, the Court having been fully

advised in the premises, now makes the following

findings of fact, conclusions of law and certification

to the United States District Court.
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FINDINGS OF FACT

That Hubert F. Laugharn now is and at all times

herein mentioned has been the duly appointed,

qualified and acting trustee in bankruptcy in the

above entitled matter. That one of the principal as-

sets of said bankrupt estate is that certain oil well

commonly known and designated as ''Himtington

Shore Well" situated in the County of Orange,

State of California, on that certain real property

more particularly described as follows:

Lot Two (2) in Block Three Hundred Nine-

teen (319) of Huntington Beach Seventeenth

Street Section in the City of Huntington Beach,

as per map thereof recorded in Book 4, Page 10

of Miscellaneous Maps, Records of said County,

That said well is located in what is commonly known

as the Huntington Beach Oil Field and said well

was drilled and is being operated under an easement

granted by the State of California, being Easement

No. 309-2A.

That on or about the 20th day of September, 1936,

the Termo Oil Company commenced the redrilling

of its Termo Well and that as a result of said re-

drilling, sand, cement, and other foreign substances

were forced through the oil sands up into the Hunt-

ington Shore Well, causing the equipment used in

the operation of the Huntington Shore [55] Well

to become clogged and stuck and making it impos-

sible to operate or produce from said well. That as

a result thereof the Trustee in Bankruptcy in an en-
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deavor to clean out and remove the said sand, ce-

ment and other foreign substances, to dislodge and

free the obstructions in said Huntington Shore

Well expended on what is commonly known as a

fishing job, the sum of approximately $20,000.(X).

That all efforts to free the equipment of said Hunt-

ington Shore Well proved unsuccessful and it was

necessary for the Trustee in Bankruptcy to redrill

said Huntington Shore Well at a cost of $80,000.00

and to surrender a 20% interest in said well in ad-

dition to said sum as part of the cost of redrilling

said well. That said Hmitington Shore Vv^ell after

being redrilled w^as placed on production on August

15th, 1937, and the average daily production from

said Huntington Shore Well since said date was

295 barrels per day.

That on or about April 15, 1940, the Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation commenced the redrilling of its well

commonly known and designated as ''Petroleiun

Well, also known as Fee No. 1 Well", situated in

the County of Orange, State of California, on that

certain real property more particularly described as

follows

:

Lots Twenty (20) and Twenty-two (22) in

Block One Hundred Nineteen (119) of the

Huntington Beach Seventeenth Street Section

in the City of Huntington Beach, as per Map
recorded in Book 4, Page 10 of Miscellaneous

Maps, records of said County,

That on said date the respondents were familiar

Avith and were aware of the effect of the drilling of

the Termo Well on the Huntington Shore Well.
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That thereupon an application was made to the

above entitled Court to enjoin the Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation from drilling its "Petroleum Well, also

known as Fee No. 1 Well" at Huntington Beach,

California, closer than 200 feet from the Himting-

ton Shore Well and from using mud as a circulat-

ing fluid in the redrilling of said well. That [56] at

said hearing testimony was introduced on behalf of

the Trustee in Bankruptcy that if said well were

drilled closer than 200 feet and if mud were used

as a circulating fluid in the redrilling of said well

that the mud so used in the said redrilling, which is

pumped into the well in a liquid state under hydrau-

lic pressure, would infiltrate and go through the oil

sands carrying with it sand and other foreign sub-

stances which would clog up the oil sands and be

forced up into the Huntington Shore Well and that

in all probability serious and irreparable damage

would result with a possible loss of said Huntington

Shore Well. That after the testimony introduced on

behalf of the trustee in bankruptcy and upon the

conclusion of the cross-examination by the attorneys

for the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation of the witnesses

called on behalf of the trustee in bankruptcy, the

attorneys for the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation stipu-

lated in open court to the granting of an injunction

against the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation restraining

them from coming closer than 200 feet from the

Huntington Shore Well and prohibiting the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation from using mud as a circu-
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lating fluid in the redrilling of this well. That pur-

suant to the stipulation entered into between the

attorneys for the trustee in bankruptcy and the at-

torneys for the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation an in-

junction was submitted to the above entitled court

which had been previously approved as to form and

content by the attorneys for the trustee in bank-

ruptcy and the attorneys for Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, and said injunction was issued by the

court on May 15, 1940. That notice of the entry of

said injunction together with a copy of the injunc-

tion was served upon Overton, Ljnnan & Plumb as

attorneys for the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, and

also upon the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation itself.

That no petition for review or appeal has been

taken from said injunction within the time provided

by law, or otherwise, or at all, and the said injunc-

tion has become by operation of law final and abso-

lute. [57]

That said injunction provides that the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, its superintendents, agents

and employees shall be, and they are, restrained and

enjoined from using any circulating fluid in the

drilling, redrilling or side-tracking of said Pe-

troleum Well, also known as Fee No. 1 Well, other

than virgin crude oil maintained at a grade and

gravity consistent with good oil field practice in

said field and further provides that no mud, or other

foreign substances of any kind, shall be used in lieu

or as part of said circulating fluid miless mutually

agreed to in writing by the petroleiun engineers for
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the respective parties thereto. That after the grant-

ing of said injunction and with full knowledge of

the granting of the injunction and the terms thereof

and after said injunction and the notice of the entry

thereof had been served upon said Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation and its said attorneys, the said Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation resumed the redrilling of

said Petroleum Well, also known as Fee No. 1 Well,

by using mud as a circulating fluid in the redrilling

thereof in direct violation of the express prohibi-

tion contained in said injunction against the use

thereof.

That the petroleum engineer of the Trustee was

aware of and had knowledge that the respondents

were using mud on said Fee No. 1 Well, contrary

to order of this Court, but said petroleum engineer

of the Trustee had no supervision or control over

the operations of respondents and said petroleum

engineer of the Trustee did caution said respondents

against using mud when they reached a depth of ap-

proximately 4025 feet, and if said warning of the

petroleum engineer of the Trustee had been heeded,

the damage resulting to the Trustee hereinafter set

forth would not have occurred; that no consent in

writing was ever given by the Trustee nor his en-

gineer to the use of mud by the respondents; that

it would have been good oil field practice when the

respondents reached a depth of approximately 4,000

feet, to have commenced coring the formation

through w^hich the well of respondents was being

drilled, and that if such cores had been taken they
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would have indicated a formation [58] extending

approximately over 200 feet containing streaks of

oil sand, which would have indicated to respondents

that they were approaching the main body of oil

sand and which would have indicated to respondents

the fact that to continue to use mud would mean

that such mud would permeate and migrate through

such sands to the well of the Trustee.

That as the result of the use of mud as a circu-

lating fluid in the redrilling of said well, mud in

liquid form, carrying with it sand and other foreign

substances infiltrated through the oil sands and was

forced up into the Huntington Shore Well, forming

a column of mud in said Huntington Shore Well of

3700 feet from the bottom of said well. That as a

result thereof, the production from and the opera-

tion of said Huntington Shore Well w^as shut down

and suspended for a period of 20 days from June 7,

1940 to June 27, 1940, while pulling, baling, Avashing

and other remedial work was being carried on on be-

half of the Trustee in Bankruptcy in an endeavor

to remove, clean out and dislodge the mud, sand and

other foreign substances which had been infiltrated

through the oil sands and forced up into said well

as a result of the use of mud as a circulating fluid

in said drilling operations. That said mud was

brought on to the premises of the ''Petroleum Well,

also knowm as Fee No. 1 Well" and mixed into

liquid form and in such liquid form forced into the

well being redrilled under hydrostatic pressure ; that
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said mud escaped and was lost in said redrilling,

and that it was received by and came up into the

well of the Trustee in Bankruptcy; that specimens

of the mud lost in the redrilling and received in the

Huntington Shore Well were tested, analyzed and

examined and showTi conclusively to be the mud
used in said redrilling.

That at the time of the commencement of said re-

drilling operations by the Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion, the Huntington Shore Well was producing 265

barrels of oil per day. That as the direct and proxi-

mate result of the infiltration and forcing of mud,

sand and other foreign substances through the oil

sands up and into the Huntington Shore Well [59]

as the result of the redrilling operations of the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, the Huntington Shore

Well, after being replaced upon production on or

about June 27, 1940, produced 160 barrels of oil

per day.

That the damage to the Trustee in Bankruptcy

as the result of the use of mud as a circulating fluid

in the redrilling of said well for the period of said

20 days was 265 barrels of oil per day at 90^ per

barrel, which was a fair and reasonable price of oil

of said gravity in said field during said period and

was the price that the Trustee would have received

for oil produced during said period, amounting to

$4,770.00. That the damage to the Trustee in Bank-

ruptcy resulting from 20 days' loss of pressure from

wet and dry gas at a fair and reasonable market

price for wet and dry gas which the Trustee would
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have received for such wet and dry gas amounts to

$248.00. That the damage sustained by the Trustee

as a result of the decline of oil produced during the

period from June 27, 1940, to September 1, 1940,

computed upon the fair and reasonable market value

thereof and the price the Trustee would have re-

ceived therefore, amounted to 3700 barrels of oil at

90<!^ per barrel, or $3,330.00. That the damage sus-

tained by the Trustee on account of money expended

and obligations incurred for pulling, baling, wash-

ing and other remedial material, labor and techni-

cal assistance in the removal of the mud, sand and

other foreign substances which had infiltrated

through the oil sands and had been forced up into

the said well, amounted to $3,642.00. All to the

Trustee's aggregate damage as of September 1, 1940,

in the sum of $12,540.00. That in addition thereto,

the production of oil and gas from the Huntington

Shore Well w^as shown to have been permanently

impaired and decreased for the balance of the life

of said well. That as the direct and proximate use

of mud as the circulating fluid in the redrilling of

said Petroleiun Well, also known as Fee No. 1 Well,

in violation of said injunction and the infiltration of

said mud through the oil sands and up into the

Huntington Shore Well, the production of said

Huntington Shore Well has been diminished by ap-

proximately 60 barrels of [60] oil per day for the

balance of the life of said well and that the reason-

able life of said well is another ten years.

That the use of mud as a circulating fluid in the
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redrilling operations were carried on by the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation with the knowledge and con-

sent and under the direction of Thomas W. Sim-

mons, its president, and Allen A. Anderson, the

superintendent in charge of redrilling operations,

both of whom were familiar with the issuance and

terms of said injunction of May 15, 1940.

That all of the damage sustained to and the im-

pairment of the production from the Huntington

Shore Well was anticipated by the Trustee in apply-

ing for said injunction and the purpose of issuing

said injunction was expressly to avoid said conse-

quences and such damage w^ould not have resulted

had mud not been used brought on to and used as a

circulating fluid in the redrilling of said well. That

such consequences were indicated and made known

at the time of the application for and the granting

of said injunction and said parties knew that such

consequences would probably result from the use of

mud as a circulating fluid, and nevertheless pro-

ceeded to use mud as a circulating fluid in open de-

fiance and in violation of the express terms of the

injunction.

That after said mud in liquid form carrying with

it sand, debris and other foreign substances had in-

filtrated through the oil sands and had clogged and

stopped up the Huntington Shore Well, further re-

drilling was suspended by the Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration on or about the 10th day of June, 1940.

That the attorneys for the Trustee in Bankruptcy

upon obtaining information that the Bolsa Chica Oil
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Corporation was about to resume the redrilling of

said well with the use of mud as a circulating fluid

sent a registered letter to the Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration on behalf of the Trustee in Bankruptcy,

on July 31, 1940, again directing its attention to the

injunction of this Court against the use of mud as

a circulating fluid and again enclosing a copy of

the injmiction and notifying the [61] Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation that unless it forthwith desisted

from using mud as a circulating fluid in the re-

drilling of said well that application would be made

to the Court to have them cited for and certified for

contempt for violating said injunction. That pur-

suant to said letter a conference was arranged by

Thomas W. Simmons, president of Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, on August 1st, 1940, at one o'clock

P. M., at which there was present Thomas W. Sim-

mons, president of Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

Warren S. Pallette and William H. Cree, attorneys

for said Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Mr. Allen A.

Anderson, drilling superintendent of Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation, Vernon L. King, petroleiun engi-

neer for the Trustee in Bankruptcy, Mr. R. D.

Holdredge, representing the Trustee, and Joseph J.

Rifkind, one of the attorneys representing the Trus-

tee. That the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, through

its president, superintendent and attorneys re-

quested and endeavored to procure an agreement or

stipulation eliminating from the injunction the pro-

vision against the use of mud as a circulating fluid.

That said Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, through said
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president on its behalf, was advised at said confer-

ence that as a result of the use of mud as a circulat-

ing fluid by the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation that a

column of mud 3700 feet high had been forced up

into the Huntington Shore Well; that it had been

necessary as a result thereof to shut down and sus-

pend operations and to pull bale and wash said well

in an endeavor to remove the mud and other ob-

structions from said well and that in addition to the

loss and expense in so doing, the production from

said well had been permanently impaired, that such

condition was the best evidence that the use of mud
as a circulating fluid was actually damaging the

Huntington Shore Well and that no modification of

the injunction in that respect would be stipulated to.

That Thomas W. Simmons, president of Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation stated at said conference that

a large amount of money had been expended in the

redrilling of said well and that mud was the only

fluid [62] that could be used to advantage in the re-

drilling of said well and that some way would have

to be found to resume redrilling operations despite

said injunction. That William H. Cree, one of the

attorneys for the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, at

said conference, stated that he advised the ignoring

of the injunction and the resumption of the redrill-

ing of said well using mud as a circulating fluid,

stating: ''If this were my well I wouldn't pay any

attention to the damned injunction." That counsel

for the Trustee, at said conference, stated that the

injunction was in full force and effect and until
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said injunction was set aside or vacated by the

Court or on review or on appeal, no other course

would be open to the Trustee in the event said in-

junction was violated and mud used as a circulating

fluid but to file a petition to have all of the offend-

ing parties cited for contempt of Court.

That previous to said conference Thomas W.
Simmons, as President of Bolsa Chica Oil Corpo-

ration, had a conference with Raphael Dechter the

other counsel for the Trustee, during the month of

July, 1940, in which a proposal was made that if

the Trustee would consent to the modification of the

injmiction permitting the use of nuid as a circulat-

ing fluid instead of virgin crude oil that the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation would be willing to assign

to the Trustee a 25% interest in its well to com-

mence participating after the costs of redrilling had

been repaid. That prior to said conference Thomas

W. Simmons as president of Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration also had a conference with J. D. Sterling

in an endeavor to work out a modification of said

injunction through him. That said injunction was

not as a result of any of said conferences, or other-

wise, or any time, or at all, in any manner whatso-

ever modified by consent of the parties on order of

Court.

That information was thereafter received by the

Trustee that an arrangement had been entered into

by and between the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation

through Thomas W. Simmons, its president, and

M. M. McCallen Corporation through H. H.
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McVicar and C. M. Rood, its President [63] and

Secretary, whereby the oil and gas lease of the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation would be assigned to

M, M. McCallen Corporation, which would resume

said drilling operations. That upon receipt of said

advice, a letter was sent by registered mail to Mc-

Vicar-Rood, Inc., dated August 21, 1940, advising

them of the injunction and the restriction against

the use of mud in the redrilling thereof.

That William H. Cree was at all times herein

mentioned and for many years last past has been

the attorney for H. H. McVicar and C. M. Rood

and was the attorney who organized and represented

the M. M. McCallen Corporation, which is jointly

and equally owned, controlled and managed by and

is the corporate instrumentality of said H. H. Mc-

Vicar and C. M. Rood; that said William H. Cree

prepared the assignment of the oil and gas lease

from the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation to M. M.

McCallen Corporation, dated August 14, 1940, and

the drilling and operating agreement between Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation and M. M. McCallen Corpo-

ration, dated August 14, 1940 ; that said William H.

Cree with full knowledge of said injunction, con-

ducted the negotiations and prepared the agreement

and assignment through which an attempt would be

made to have it appear that M. M. McCallen Cor-

poration, H. H. McVicar and C. M. Rood had suc-

ceeded to the rights of the Bolsa Chica Oil Corpo-

ration and had taken over the redrilling operations

of said corporation. And all of said parties at the
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time of said negotiations and the preparation and

execution of said assignment knew that said agree-

ment and assignment was for the purpose of mis-

leading and deceiving the Court and not bona-fide

or actual and was part of the conspiracy of said

parties to violate the injunction of the Court afore-

said.

That Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thomas W.
Simmons, Allen A. Anderson, M. M. McCallen Cor-

poration, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and William

H. Cree did at some time subsequent to August 1st,

1940, enter into a conspiracy for the purpose of vio-

lating and circumventing, and each of said parties

aided and abetted the violation and circumvention

[64] of said injunction and said assignment and

agreement were colorable and not bona fide and

were part of the subterfuge, scheme and device, de-

liberately, wilfully and premeditatedly planned and

carried out mider the belief and with the intent to

evade and escape the force and effect of said injunc-

tion against the use of mud as a circulating fluid in

the redrilling operation of the Petroleum Well, also

known as Fee No. 1 Well. That disregarding the

said injunction and the letters sent on behalf of the

Trustee and the express admonition in that respect,

the said parties commenced redrilling and again

commenced the use of mud as a circulating fluid in

the redrilling of said well on August 22, 1940. That

the Trustee upon learning of the resumption of

said redrilling operations and the use of mud as a

circulating fluid in connection therewith filed a peti-
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tion to have the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, et al.,

certified for contempt to the United States District

Court and an order to show cause was issued on

August 22, 1940, requiring said parties and each of

them to show cause on August 30, 1940, at 10 o'clock

A. M. why they should not be certified to the United

States District Court for contempt for violating,

aiding and abetting in the violation of the injunc-

tion of May 15, 1940, issued in the above entitled

matter, and specifically restraining each of said per-

sons from using mud as a circulating fluid pending

the hearing of said order to show cause. That copies

of said petition and the order to show cause issued

thereon was served upon said parties on August 22,

1940, at 7 o 'clock P. M. ; that despite said order to

show cause why said parties should not be cited for

contempt of court they continued to use mud as a

circulating fluid in the redrilling operations that

entire night and through the following day.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
The Referee in Bankruptcy concludes that Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, Thomas W. Simmons, Allen

A. Anderson are guilty of contempt of Court and

said persons and each of them with full knowledge

of said [65] injunction of May 15, 1940, resumed

and permitted the resumption of the use of mud as

a circulating fluid in the redrilling of said Pe-

troleum Well, also known as Pee No. 1 Well; that

the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thomas W. Sim-

mons, Allen A. Anderson, M. M. McCallen Corpo-
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ration, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and William H.

Cree are, and each of them is guilty in violating and

aiding and abetting in the violation of the injunc-

tion of May 15, 1940, in using and permitting the

use of naud as a circulating fluid when redrilling

operations were resumed on August 22, 1940.

CERTIFICATE

The Referee in Bankruptcy therefore certifies the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thomas W. Simmons,

Allen A. Anderson, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood,

M. M. McCallen Corporation and William H. Cree,

and each of them, to the United States District

Court, for violating the injunction of May 15, 1940,

issued in the above entitled matter, and for such

punishment as the United States District Court may
deem proper and appropriate for such contempt.

The Referee in Bankruptcy further certifies that

there are no extenuating or mitigating circumstances

on behalf of said persons, or any of them, and that

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thomas W. Simmons,

its president, and Allen A. Anderson, its superin-

tendent, is resmning redrilling subsequent to May
15, 1940, on the said Petroleum Well, also known as

Fee No. 1 Well, used mud as a circulating fluid in

direct violation of the express terms of the injunc-

tion and in the utter and open disregard thereof.

The referee in Bankruptcy finds no extenuating

or mitigating circumstances on behalf of the second

series of contempts occurring subsequent to August

1, 1940, but on the contrary that Bolsa Chica Oil
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Corporation, Thomas W. Simmons, Allen A. Ander-

son, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood, M. M. McCallen

Corporation and William H. Cree did wilfully and

premeditatedly plot and scheme and did enter into a

conspiracy for the express and deliberate purpose

of evading and circumventing the [_Q6'i injunction

against the use of mud as a circulating fluid and

knowing the damage likely to result from their

conduct.

The Referee in Bankruptcy transmits herewith

for the consideration of the United States District

Court, the following:

1. Injunction against Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion, et al., dated May 15, 1940.

2. Petition to have Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

et al., certified for contempt.

3. Order to Show Cause on Petition to have

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, et al., certified for con-

tempt, dated August 22, 1940.

4. Points and Authorities on behalf of the Trus-

tee in Bankruptcy re Order to Show Cause why
Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, et al., should not be

certified for contempt.

5. Points and Authorities on behalf of respond-

ents Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thomas W. Sim-

mons and Allen A. Anderson re Order to Show

Cause why they should not be certified for contempt.

6. Memorandum of Points and Authorities on

behalf of respondents M. M. McCallen Corporation,

H. H. McVicar, C. H. Rood and William H. Cree,

re Order to Show Cause why they should not be cer-

tified for contempt.
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7. Trustee's reply to Points and Authorities of

respondents Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thomas
W. Simmons, Allen A. Anderson, M. M. McCallen

Corporation, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood, and Wil-

liam H. Cree re Order to Show Cause in Contempt.

8. Smnmary by Trustee of loss and expense,

dated September 26, 1940 introduced as Trustee's

Exhibit No. 1.

9. Letter to Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation dated

July 30, 1940, introduced as Trustee's Exhibit No. 2.

10. Drilling and Operating Agreement between

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation and M. N. McCallen

Corporation dated August 14, 1940, introduced as

Trustee's Exhibit No. 3. [67]

11. Assignment of Oil and Gas Lease from Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation to M. M. McCallen Corpo-

ration, dated August 14, 1940, introduced as Trus-

tee's Exhibit No. 4.

12. Log offered for identification as Trustee's

Exhibit No. 5.

13. Letter to McVicar-Rood, Inc., dated August

21, 1940, introduced as Trustee's Exhibit No. 6.

14. Reporter's transcript of April 26, and May
1st, 1940.

15. Reporter's transcript of September 26, Sep-

tember 30 and October 1st, 1940.

Dated : this 30 day of December, 1940.

ERNEST R. UTLEY,
Referee in Bankruptcy.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 31, 1940. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. By C. A. Simmons, Deputy Clerk. [68]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION OF BOLSA CHICA OIL CORPORA-
TION, THOS. W. SIMMONS AND ALLEN
A. ANDERSON FOR AN ORDER TO SHOW
CAUSE WHY A CERTIFICATE OF CON-
TEMPT SHOULD NOT BE DISMISSED.

Come Now Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, a corpo-

ration, Tlios. W. Simmons and Allen A. Anderson

and move this court for an order directing George

T. Goggin, Trustee of the above entitled bankrupt

estate, and the Honorable Ernest R. Utley, Referee

in Bankruptcy of this court, to appear on January

20, 1941 at 10:00 o'clock A. M., or as soon thereafter

as counsel may be heard, and there and then to

show cause why a certificate of contempt heretofore

filed by the Honorable Ernest R. Utley on the 31st

day of December, 1940 in the files and records of

this court, should not be heard and dismissed. Said

motion is made on the following grounds, to-wit:

1. A referee in bankruptcy and a federal dis-

trict court have no jurisdiction to adjudge these

movants to be in contempt, it appearing on the face

of the record that said movants and each of them,

did not consent to any of the proceedings herein.

2. A referee in bankruptcy and a federal dis-

trict court have no jurisdiction or control over the

property of third persons when said property is

not an asset of the bankrupt estate or in the custody

or control of said district court.

3. Said certificate of contempt is not supported

by [69] the evidence.
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4. The Referee wrongfully excluded material

and competent testimony in said contempt proceed-

ings before him.

Said motion will be based upon the affidavits of

W. S. Pallette and Donald H. Ford attached hereto

and made a part of this motion, upon the records

and files of this proceeding and the memorandum of

points and authorities attached hereto.

Signed: OVERTON, LYMAN & PLUMB
EUGENE OVERTON
W. S. PALLETTE
DONALD H. FORD

By DONALD H. FORD
Address: 733 Roosevelt Building,

727 West 7th Street,

Los Angeles, California. [70]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT OF W. S. PALLETTE

State of California,

County of Los Angeles—ss.

W. S. Pallette, being duly sworn, deposes and

says:

That he is the Secretary of Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, one of the defendants herein. That said

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation has expended in the re-

drilling of its Petroleum Fee #1 well at Hunting-

ton Beach, California the sum of approximately
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$45,000.00, but that said well has not been com-

pleted. That in view of the injunction issued by the

Referee in Bankruptcy herein and the petition for

certification of contempt, Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion has been unable to conduct any work toward

the completion of said well since prior to the 1st day

of August, 1940. That said well is held under a cer-

tain Easement Agreement with the State of Cali-

fornia, pursuant to which the operator of said well

is entitled to produce oil from the tidelands lying

offshore at Huntington Beach, California, into

which tidelands said Petroleum Fee #1 well of

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation and the well belonging

to the Trustee for the bankrupt, are drilled.

That the lease under which Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration is entitled to the use of the land upon

which the surface location of the well is located,

will shortly expire, in which event Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation will no longer have any right, title or

interest in said well and will be unable to complete

or pro- [71] duce the same. That the State of Cali-

fornia, through representatives of the State Lands

Commission, having jurisdiction over the Easement

Agreement under which said well may be produced

from the state-owned tidelands, has threatened to

rescind and revoke, cancel and terminate said Ease-

ment Agreement for failure to produce said well,

unless drilling operations are forthwith re-com-

menced. That it is therefore necessary that an im-

mediate determination of the validity of the
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Referee's order of injunction by the United States

District Court be obtained, inasmuch as if it is de-

termined that the Referee was without jurisdiction

to make such order, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation

will then be in a position to make the necessary ar-

rangements with the State of California for the

completion of said well and thereupon complete the

same, with the opportimity of recouping its expen-

ditures to date of apj^roximately $45,000.00 in con-

nection with the redrilling of said well. That it is to

the advantage of the Trustee in Bankruptcy that

these proceedings be postponed, inasmuch as failure

to obtain an immediate determination will result in

the loss of this valuable property by Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation for the reasons above set forth, and

that affiant believes that the Trustee in Bankruptcy

will take no steps toward bringing this matter on

for hearing immediately.

W. S. PALLETTE
Subscribed and Sworn to before me this 9th day

of January, 1941.

[Seal] M. DE VINEY
Notary Public in and for the County of Los Ange-

les, State of California.

My Commission Expires March 2, 1943. [72]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD H. FORD

State of California,

County of Los Angeles—ss.

Donald H. Ford, being duly sworn, deposes and

says:

That he is an attorney-at-law duly admitted to

practice before the United States District Court,

Southern District of California, Central Division.

That he is one of the attorneys for defendants

herein, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thos. W.
Simmons and Allan A. Anderson. That he has made

an examination of the files and records in the above

entitled proceeding. That nothing appears of record

in said proceeding since the filing of the Certificate

of Contempt against said defendants and others on

December 31st, 1940, by the Honorable Ernest R.

Utley, Referee in Bankruptcy, with reference to

bringing said Certificate of Contempt on for hear-

ing before the Court. That an examination of the

Certificate of Contempt and the matters incorpo-

rated therein by reference reveals that while the

Certificate of Contempt on its face shows that these

defendants consented to the jurisdiction oftheReferee

to entertain the proceeding involved and to issue

the order of injunction therein, the order of injunc-

tion and the transcripts of the proceedings show on

their faces that these defendants at all times ob-

jected to and maintained their objections to the

jurisdiction of the Referee to entertain said pro-
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ceedings or to make and enter said order. That af-

fiant believes that said [73] order was beyond the

jurisdiction of the Referee in Bankruptcy to make

by summary proceeding in the absence of a plenary

suit. That on the face of the record neither the

Referee in Bankruptcy nor this Honorable Court

has jurisdiction to make or enter said order in the

absence of consent of said defendants. That any

damage which the trustee in bankruptcy may have

suffered is fully ascertainable and recoverable in an

action for damages in the proper tribunal. That the

trustee in bankruptcy has commenced an action in

the Superior Court of the State of California, in

and for the County of Los Angeles, being number

456167 in said C^ourt for the purpose of recovering

damages on account of the alleged actions of these

defendants, which said action is now pending in

said Court and which said action was fiJed on or

about the 20th day of September, 1940.

DONALD H. FORD
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 9th day

of January, 1941.

[Seal] M. DE VINEY,
Notary Public in and for said

County and State.

My Commission Expires March 2, 1943.

[Endorsed] : Motion, for Order to Show Cause.

Filed Jan. 9, 1941. [74]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE ON MOTION
OP BOLSA CHICA OIL CORPORATION,
THOS. W. SIMMONS AND ALLEN A. AN-
DERSON RELATIVE TO CERTIPICATE
OP CONTEMPT.

Upon reading and filing the motion of Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, Thos. W. Simmons and

Allen A. Anderson in the above entitled matter, to-

gether with the affidavits of W. S. Pallette and Don-

ald H. Pord, and good cause appearing therefrom,

It Is Ordered that George T. Goggin, Trustee of

the above entitled bankrupt estate, and the Honor-

able Ernest R. Utley, Referee in Bankruptcy of

this court, be and appear before the Honorable

Leon R. Yankwich in Court Room No. 5, Pederal

Building, Temple and Spring Streets, Los Angeles,

California on the 27th day of January, 1941 at

10:00 o'clock A. M., then and there to show cause,

if any they have, why the certificate of contempt

heretofore filed on December 31, 1940 in the files

and records of the above entitled proceeding should

not be dismissed.

It Is Purther Ordered by the above entitled court
that a copy of the motion of Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-
poration, Thos W. Simmons and Allen A. Anderson
and the affidavits of W. S. Pallette and Donald H.
Pord be served concurrently with the service of this
order.

Dated: January 9, 1941.

PAUL J. McCORMICK, Judge.

[Endorsed]: Piled Jan. 9, 1941. R. S. Zimmer-
man, Clerk. By C. A. Simmons, Deputy Clerk. [75]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE IN RE CONTEMPT
AGAINST BOLSA CHICA OIL CORPORA-
TION, THOS. W. SIMMONS AND ALLEN
A. ANDERSON, ET AL.

It appearing to the Honorable Ernest R. Utley,

Referee in Bankruptcy that Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, Thomas W. Simmons, Allen A. Anderson,

H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood, M. M. McCallen Cor-

poration and William H. Cree, and each of them, be

adjudged in contempt, and the Honorable Ernest R.

Utley, Referee in Bankruptcy, having certified the

facts to the Honorable Paul J. McCormick, United

States District Judge, now, therefore,

It Is Ordered that Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

Thomas W. Simmons, Allen A. Anderson, H. H.

McVicar, C. M. Rood, M. M. McCallen Corporation

and William H. Cree. and each of them, are hereby

directed to appear in the Courtroom of the Honor-

able Paul J. McCormick, United States District

Judge, in the Federal Building, Los Angeles, Cali-

fornia, on Monday, the 20th day of January, 1941,

at the hour of 10 o^clock A. M., and then and there

show cause if any they or any of them may have,

why an order should not be made adjudging them,

and each of them, as being in contempt.

It Is Further Ordered that service of this order

to show cause may be made on counsel of record who
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have heretofore appeared for said persons above

named before this Court.

Dated this 13 day of January, 1941.

EENEST E. UTLEY,
Referee in Bankruptcy.

[Endorsed]: Piled Jan. 14, 1941. E. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. By C. A. Simmons, Deputy Clerk. [76]

At a stated term, to wit: The September Term,

A. D. 1940, of the District Court of the United

States of America, within and for the Central Di-

vision of the Southern District of California, held

at the Court Eoom thereof, in the City of Los Ange-

les, California, on Thursday the 30th day of Janu-

ary in the year of our Lord one thousand nine hun-

dred and forty-one.

Present: The Honorable Leon R. Yankwich,

District Judge.

No. 26,685-Y Bkcy.

In the Matter of

JACK DAVE STERLING,
Bankrupt.

This matter coming before the Court for (1) fur-

ther hearing on return of order of Pebruary 9, 1941,

to George T. Goggin, Trustee, to show cause why
the certificate of contempt filed Dec. 31, 1941, should
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not be dismissed; (2) hearing on return of order of

January 13, 1941, to Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

Thomas W. Simmons, Allen A. Anderson, H. H.

McVicar, C. M. Rood, M. M. McCallen Corporation,

and W. H. Cree to show cause why they should not

be adjudged in contempt pursuant to the certificate

of the referee; Raphael Dechter and J. J. Rifkind,

Esqs., appearing as counsel for the Trustee; Eliza-

beth Hensel, Attorney, appearing as counsel for Re-

spondent Cree, et al. ; Eugene Overton and W. S.

Pallette, Esqs., being present for movants and re-

spondents Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation; and G. M.

Fox, Court Reporter, being present and reporting

the testimony and the proceedings:

The Court makes a statement; Attorney Dechter

argues further for the Trustee; Attorney Pallette

argues further for the respondent; Attorney Rif-

kind argues further for the Trustee; and Attorney

Hensel argues for Respondent Cree. Court recesses

to 2 o'clock P. M.

At 2 o'clock P. M. court reconvenes, and all being

present as before. Attorney Dechter argues further

for the Trustee. [77]

The Court comments on facts, record and authori-

ties. The Clerk is ordered to make petition and

order part of the record in this proceeding.

The Court sustains objection to the jurisdiction

and declines to hear further upon the certificate of

contempt.

Attorney Dechter asks that injunction remain in

effect.
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Counsel for prevailing parties will prepare for-

mal order. Meanwhile, injunction shall remain in

effect. [78]

In the District Court of the United States

Southern District of California

Central Division

In Bankruptcy Consolidated Cause No. 26685-Y

In the Matter of

JACK DAVE STERLING,
Bankrupt.

ORDER
Re: Certificate of Contempt

This cause came on to be heard on Monday, Janu-

ary 20, 1941, and was continued to Monday, Janu-

ary 27, 1941, before the Honorable Leon R. Yank-

wich. Judge of the above entitled Court, on Order

to Show Cause made by the Honorable Paul J.

McCormick, Judge of said Court, on January 9,

1941, on Motion of Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

Thos. W. Simmons and Allan A. Anderson, relative

to Certificate of Contempt filed by the Honorable

Ernest R. Utley, Referee in Bankruptcy, in said

Court, on December 31, 1940, and on Order to Show^

Cause in re Contempt against Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, Thos. W. Simmons and Allan A. Ander-

son, et al., made by said Honorable Ernest R. Utley,

Referee in Bankruptcy, on January 13, 1941, and on

said Certificate of Contempt and the pleadings and
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records referred to therein. Said cause, after being

partially heard on said January 27, 1941, was con-

tinued to January 30, 1941, for further hearing, and

was further heard and concluded on said day. The

Trustee in Bankruptcy, George T. Goggin, appeared

through and was represented by Joseph J. Rifkind

and Raphael Dechter, his attorneys; Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation, Thos. W. Simmons and Allan A.

Anderson appeared specially through and were rep-

resented by Overton, Lyman & Plumb, Eugene Over-

ton and W. S. Pallette, their attorneys ; and William

H. Cree, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and M. M. Mc-

Callen Corporation appeared specially through and

were represented by Elizabeth R. Hensel and Wil-

liam H. Cree, their attorneys. [79]

Said Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thos. W. Sim-

mons, Allan A. Anderson and William H. Cree,

H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and M. M. McCallen

Coi'poration, through their respective attorneys, at

the commencement of the hearing, stated to the

Court that each of them was appearing specially for

the sole purpose of objecting to any jurisdiction of

the District Court or the Referee in Bankruptcy to

hear or determine the issues involved in this cause.

The Court considered said Certificate of Contempt

and the pleadings and record supporting the same

and heard argument of counsel in connection there-

with. From such consideration and argument it ap-

j)eared to the Court that the Referee in Bankruptcy

and this United States District Court, and each of
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them, were at all times in this cause involved and

now are without jurisdiction to make or enter the

Injunction upon which said Certificate of Contempt

is based. The Court being fully advised in the prem-

ises, refused to hear any evidence upon or deter-

mine the merits of the controversy, and thereupon

Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed As follows:

1. That the objections of Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, Thos. W. Simmons, Allan A. Anderson,

William H. Cree, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and

M. M. McCallen Corporation, and each of them, to

the jurisdiction of the Referee in Bankruptcy and

this Court, and each of them, to make or enter said

Injunction or to hear or determine the issues pre-

sented by said Certificate of Contempt and the

pleadings and record in this proceeding are hereby

sustained, and the Certificate of Contempt filed by

the Referee in Bankruptcy in this cause on Decem-

ber 31, 1940, is hereby dismissed.

Dated this 7th day of February, 1941.

LEON R. YANKWICH,
Judge of the above entitled

Court. [80]
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Approved As to Form

:

JOSEPH J. RIFKIND and

RAPHAEL DECHTER,
By R. DECHTER

Attomeys for Trustee

OVERTON, LYMAN & PLUMB,
EUGENE OVERTON and

W. S. PALLETTE
By W. S. PALLETTE

Attornej^s for Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, Thos. W. Sim-

mons and Allan A. Anderson

ELIZABETH R. HENSEL and

WILLIAM H. CREE
By

Attorneys for William H. Cree,

H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood

and M. M. McCallen Corpo-

ration.

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 7, 1941. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. By C. A. Simmons, Deputy Clerk.

[81]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Notice is hereby p^iyen that Georg'e T. Go.^'gin,

Trustee in Bankruptcy of the above entitled bank-

rupt estate, hereby appeals to the Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the order dis-

missing the Referee's Certificate citing Bolsa Chica



Bolsa CJiica Oil Corp. et al. 87

Oil Corporation, a corporation, M. M. McCallen

Corporation, a corporation, H. H. McVicar, C. M.

Rood, Thos. W. Simmons, Allan A. Anderson and

William H. Cree, to the District Court for con-

tempt, the minute order of which was entered in

this proceeding on the 30th day of January, 1941,

and the formal order of dismissal being entered in

this proceeding on the 7th day of February, 1941.

Dated this 13th day of February, 1941.

RAPHAEL DECHTER and

JOSEPH J. RIFKIND
By R. DECHTER

Attorneys for Trustee

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 13, 1941. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. By C. A. Simmons, Deputy Clerk [82]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

No. 26685-Y

DIRECTIONS TO CLERK OF DISTRICT
COURT FOR A NOTIFICATION OF FIL-

ING OF NOTICE OF APPEAL AND
MAILING COPIES THEREOF TO ALL
PARTIES TO THE JUDGMENT OTHER
THAN THE PARTY TAKING THE AP-
PEAL.

To R. S. Zimmerman, Clerk of the above entitled

Court:

Pursuant to the provisions of Rule 73(b) of the

New Rules of Civil Procedure, you are hereby noti-
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fied to give Notice by Mail of the filing of the appeal

to the following parties to the judgment, other than

the party taking this appeal, or to their counsel of

record, as follows:

Name of Party Name of Counsel, and

Bolsa Chica Oil Address

Corporation, Overton, Lyman &

Thos. W. Simmons, and Plumb,

Allan A. Anderson Eugene Overton and

William H. Cree, W. S'. Pallette,

H. H. McVicar, 733 Roosevelt Bldg.

C. M. Rood, and Los Angeles, Calif.

M. M. McCallen Elizabetjh R. Hensel and

Corporation William H. Cree

410Park Central Bldg.

Los Angeles, Calif.

Dated: This 13th day of February, 1941.

R. DECHTER
Attorney for Appellant.

Mailed to above counsel, 2/13/41. E. L. S.

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 13, 1941. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. By C. A. Simmons, Deputy Clerk. [(S3]
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[Title of District Couii: and Cause.]

ORDER EXTENDING TIME TO DOCKET
APPEAL

Good cause appearing therefor,

It is hereby ordered that the time to docket the

appeal in the above entitled matter, is hereby ex-

tended to April 15th, 1941.

Dated this 25th day of March, 1941.

LEON R. YANKWICH
Judge of the District Court.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 25, 1941, R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. [94]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK

I, R. S. Zimmerman, Clerk of the United States

District Court for the Southern District of Cali-

fornia, do hereby certify that the foregoing pages,

numbered 1 to 105, inclusive, contain full, true and

correct copies of the Debtor's Petition under Sec-

tion 74 of the Bankruptcy Act; Order Approving

Debtor's Petition; Debtor's Petition for Adjudica-

tion; Adjudication and Order of Reference; Order

of Re-Reference; Appointment of Hubert F. Laug-

harn as Trustee ; Order Approving Bond of Trustee

Hubert F. Laugham; Resignation of Trustee Hu-

bert F. Laugharn; Appointment of George Goggin

as Trustee; Order Approving Bond of Trustee
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George Goggin; Petition of Trustee for Instruc-

tions; Affidavit of Vernon L. King; Affidavit of

Jack Dave Sterling; Order to Show Cause on Peti-

tion for Instructions; Injunction Against Bolsa

Chica Oil Cori)oration, et al. ; Petition to Have
Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, et al., Certified for

Contempt; Order to Show Cause on Petition to

Have Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, et al., Certified

for Contempt ; Petition for Authority to Sue Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, and Proposed Complaint

attached thereto; Order Authorizing Suit Against

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation; Certificate of Con-

tempt; Motion to Dismiss Certificate of Contempt;

Affidavit of W. S. Pallette; Affidavit of Donald H.

Ford; Order to Show Cause on Motion to Dismiss

Cei'tificate of Contempt; Order to Show Cause on

Certificate of Contempt; Minute Order Granting

Motion to Dismiss Certificate of Contempt; Order

Dismissing Certificate of Contempt; Notice of Ap-

peal; Service of Notice of Appeal; Statement of

Points Upon Which Appellant Intends to Rely on

Appeal; Appellant's Designation of Contents of

Record on Appeal; Appellee's Designation of Con-

tents of Record on Appeal; Appellant's Supple-

mental Designation of Contents of Record on Ap-

peal; Order Extending Time to Docket Cause on

Appeal; Order for [106] Transmittal of Original

Exhibits on Appeal; Trustee's Exhibits Nos. 1, 3

and 4 (filed by Referee on Sept. 26, 1940) ; which,

together with the originals of three volumes of Re-

porter's Transcript, and the originals of Trustee's
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Exhibits 1 to 5, inclusive, (filed by Referee April 26,

1940), transmitted herewith, constitute the record

on appeal to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

I do further certify that the Clerk's fee for com-

paring, correcting and certifying the foregoing

record is $21.20, which fee has been paid to me by

the Appellant.

Witness my hand and the seal of said District

Court, this 11th day of April, A. D. 1941.

[Seal] R. S. ZIMMERMAN,
Clerk.

By EDMUND L. SMITH,
Deputy Clerk. [107]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEED-
INGS IN RE: ORDEH TO SHOW CAUSE
RE : PETITION FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

Los Angeles, California.

Friday, April 26, 1940

Wednesday, May 1, 1940.

Appearances

:

Joseph J. Rifkind, Esq. and

Raphael Dechter, Esq.,

for the Trustee.

C. A. Borden, Esq. and

Warren S. Pallette, Esq.,

for Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation.
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The Referee: Are you ready to proceed in

the Sterling matter?

Mr. Rifkind: Yes, your Honor.

The Referee: You may proceed.

Mr. Rifkind: Mr. King, will you please

take the stand?

Mr. Borden: At this time I would like to

say we are here in obedience to the order to

show cause. I am representing the Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation. While, of course, we concede

your Honor's authority to make any orders

you may deem necessary with respect to di-

recting the Trustee in his work, we do not con-

cede any jurisdiction to make any order that

would affect us in this proceeding, we not being

a party to the proceeding, but are appearing

only specially here and are not submitting to

the jurisdiction of the Court.

The Referee: You are objecting to the ju-

risdiction of the Court to make any oi'ders

affecting your company?

Mr. Borden: Yes, your Honor.

Mr. Dechter: May it please the Court, even

if that objection was well-founded this Court

must necessarily receive evidence to l)e able

to rule on that objection. In other words, it

must receive sufficient evidence to determine

whether or not the Court has summary juris-

diction.

The Referee: Yes, 1 think that is true. [108]

Mr. Dechter: We contend this ('ourt would
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have summary jurisdiction to make an order

binding on the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

First, the property is in the property involved

and in the control of the bankruptcy court,

and the property so in the possession of the

bankruptcy court is, by the allegations in the

petition and by the proof we expect to put on,

is about to be threatened so as to be destroyed

almost completely by the actions of the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation. Also, the bankruptcy

court not only has the right to protect this

property, but also has the power to enforce or-

ders made by this Court. One of the orders

heretofore made by this Court was an order

to place this well imder production and to main-

tain and operate the same. It is our position

that if our proof is as we expect it to show,

that the Trustee in this case has a situation

analogous to a Trustee operating a department

store, and would be like someone coming into

the department store day in and day out re-

moving the property of the bankruptcy court.

We think that situation is analogous and we

expect our proof to so show.

Mr. Borden: If there was any such anal-

ogy we would agree to it.

The Referee: Well, let me swear the wit-

ness.

(Witness sworn).

The Referee: Well, I think gentlemen I

have studied this petition, and as I understand
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it the Sterling estate has a certain oil well.

This petition alleges this company is [109] con-

templating drilling a well in such a way as

might interfere with the well of the bankrupt

estate. I don't think this court would have any

jurisdiction to prevent this company or any

other company from drilling a well, but if it

interfered or threatened to interfere with the

bankrupt's property in any way, I think to

that extent the Court would have jurisdiction.

Mr. Borden: Under the very allegations of

the petition, your Honor, it does not appear

we are in any way trespassing upon the prop-

erty of the bankrupt. In other words, we are

drilling from our own drill-site. We are not

trespassing on their property according to the

very allegations of the petition.

I am not here to offer any objection or de-

murrer because we are appearing here object-

ing to the jurisdiction of the Court.

The Referee: Your objection may appear;

however, the Court must examine in a prelimi-

nary way this matter in order to determine

whether or not it does have jurisdiction.

Mr. Borden : I appreciate that, your Honor.

The Referee: Very well, you may proceed.
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TRUSTEE'S EXHIBIT NO. 1

Regulation Governing Redrilling Operations of

Wells Drilled in Lands of the State of Cali-

fornia.

No permit or consent for redrilling existing oil

and gas wells will be granted imless the following

conditions can be met:

(1) No point in the redrilled portion of the

well shall be farther than 100 feet from the

old hole. That is to say, the redrilled hole shall

be restricted to a cylinder of 100 feet radius

with the old hole as the axis of said cylinder.

(2) The bottom of the redrilled hole shall

be located not more than 100 feet from the bot-

tom of the old hole.

(3) No part of the redrilled hole not open

to production (blanked off) shall come closer

than 50 feet from any existing well other than

the abandoned well being redrilled.

(4) No part of the redrilled hole open to

production (perforated) shall come closer than

200 feet from the perforated portion of any

existing well other than the abandoned well be-

ing redrilled.

(5) All drilling within the oil zone shall

be done with oil as circulating fluid.

(6) No applications for redrilling will be

considered unless it is shown that the pro-

posed redrilling is necessary or desirable be-

cause of the poor mechanical condition of the

old well.
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The undersigned Executive Officer of the State

Lands Commission does hereby certify the forego-

ing to be a true and correct copy of a '^ Regulation

Governing Redrilling Operations of Wells Drilled

in Lands of the State of California" duly promul-

gated by the State Lands Commission at a meet-

ing held in the office of the Director of Finance,

State Capitol, Sacramento, December 30, 1938, and

that said regulation has not been amended or re-

pealed.

WEBB SHADLE
Executive Officer,

State Lands Commission.

Los Angeles

April 26, 1940.

[Endorsed]: Tr. Exhibit No. 1. Filed Apr. 26,

1940. Ernest R. Utley, M. K.. Referee.

[Endorsed]: Filed Mar 28 1941 R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. [110]

Mr. Dechter: All right, you may take the ^^^t-

ness.

The Referee: Do you want to cross examine

the witness?

Mr. Borden: I do, your Honor, without waiv-

ing my objection to jurisdiction.

The Referee: Very well. [130]
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TRUSTEE'S EXHIBIT NO. 2

Huntington Shore Oil Company

State of California

Department of Finance

Division of State Lands

State Capitol

Sacramento

Agreement for Easement No. 309

Huntington Beach

This Agreement made and entered into this 1st

day of March, 1934, by and between the State of

California, through the duly appointed, qualified

and acting Director of Finance of the State of

California, and the duly appointed, qualified and

acting Chief of the Division of State Lands of the

Department of Finance, State of California, party

of the first part,, hereinafter called the State, and

Jennie B. Durkee, Elizabeth Decker, Edna J. Deck-

er, John R. Johnson and Vera Johnson, husband

and wife, Rosa L. Boyd, John T. Keams and

Frances E. Keams, husband and wife, Jasper N.

Chamberlain and Amy Chamberlain, husband and

wife, Lewis Pendleton and Mattie Pendleton, hus-

band and wife, Vincent C. Croal, Mary J. Croal,

F. H. Rolapp, Receiver of Sunset Pacific Oil Com-
pany, a corporation, Simset Pacific Oil Company, a

corporation, Fannie E. Finley, Nathan Nash, Dr.

Fred M. Binkley and Mary Belle Binkley, luisband

and wife, lona S. Sharp, Nellie P. Mooers, Tide

Petroleum Company, a California corporation,

Irene Abel, a married woman, John C. Gardiner,
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Jacob E. Miller and Virginia Miller, Celestine R.

Young, Bertha L. Gregory, J. J. Thompson and M.

J. Thompson, John Kniss and Thelma A. Kniss,

Sovereign Oil Corporation, a Nevada corporation

sometimes erroneously referred to as Sovereign Oil

Company, Charles M. Box and John W. Topham,

Andlla Decker, Chas. S. Chaffee and Zaidee M.

Chaffee, Huntington Shore Oil Company, Nellie O.

Pendleton, William Hazlett, as Trustee for Hunt-

ington Shore Oil Company, parties of the second

part, hereinafter sometimes called the Grantee,

pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 593, Statutes

of California, 1933, Sections 654 and 675 of the

Political Code, Chapter 402, Statutes of California,

1931, as amended, Chapter 303, Statutes of Cali-

fornia, 1921, as amended, and such other statutes

as are applicable, and to any and all implied powers

of the State of California to compromise litigation,

all of which said statutory references are hereinafter

referred to as The Act:

Recital

The State of California is the owner in its sov-

ereign and proprietary capacities of certain lands

situated in the County of Orange, State of Cali-

fornia, hereinafter more particularly described!;;

containing quantities of oil, gas, and other petro-

leum products; that adjacent to a portion of said

lands so owned by the State of California and con-

taining said oil and gas and other petroleum ]u-od-

ucts is the Seventeenth Street Addition to the Citv
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of Huntington Beach, County of Orange, State of

California; that upon said Seventeenth Street Ad-

dition to the City of Huntington Beach One (1) oil

well, commonly known as No. 2, have been drilled

by Huntington Short Oil Company, a California

corporation, upon real property owned in fee sim-

ple by said Jennie B. Durkee, Elizabeth Decker,

Edna J. Decker, John R. Johnson, Vera John-

son, Rosa L. Boyd, John T. Kearns, Jasper N.

Chamberlain, Amy Chamberlain, Lewis Pendleton

and Mattie Pendleton, Vincent C. Croal and Mary

J. Croal, F. H. Rolapp, Receiver of Sunset Pacific

Oil Company, a corporation. Sunset Pacific Oil

Company, a corporation, Fannie E. Finley, Nathan

Nash, Dr. Fred M. Binkley and Mary Belle Bink-

ley, lona S. Sharp, Nellie P. Mooers, and Nellie G.

Pendleton, that said oil wells were drilled in such

manner as to cause the same to cross lands interven-

ing between the said Seventeenth Street Addition

to the City of Himtington Beach and the ordinary

high-water mark of the Pacific Ocean and to enter

in, upon, and under the said lands of the State of

California, to which reference is hereinbefore made,

and to enter the oil, gas and/or petroleum deposits

thereof, and the bottoms of said wells, and portions

of said wells, are now through, in and under said

lands of the State of California, and that said wells

have drained, taken, and received and are capable

of draining, taking and receiving oil, gas, and other

petroleum products from the oil and gas deposits

of said lands of the State of California ; the Grantee
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is willing to compensate the State of California for

all oil, gas and other petroleum products heretofore

drained, taken, and received from said lands of the

State of Califomia by means of the said wells knoAvn

as No. 2 and the State is willing to enter into an

agreement with the Grantee whereby comr>ensation

may be had for all such oil, gas and otlier petro-

leum products produced through the said wells,

and to permit the Grantee to continue to take oil,

gas and other petroleum products from said lands

of the State of California, through said oil wells

known as No. 2 and subject to the terms, covenants

and conditions hereinafter set forth. The said lands

belonging to the Grantee and the said lands be-

longing to the State of California, to which refer-

ences are hereinbefore made, are more particularly

hereinafter described.

Now, Therefore, Witnesseth:

Section 1. That the State, in consideration of the

royalties to be paid and the covenants to be ob-

served as herein set forth, does hereby grant to the

Grantee easements appurtenant to said lands of

Grantee first hereinafter described, through, in and

under the said lands belonging to the State of Cali-

fornia hereinafter more particularly described

(which said easements are more particularly herein-

after described), and the right to drain, take, re-

ceive, extract, remove, produce and use oil, gas, and

other petroleum products, through those certain oil

wells commonly known and designated as No. 2

respectively, the tops of which said wells are located
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upon those certain lands of Grantee situated in the

Comity of Oranp^e, State of California, and more

particularly described as follows, to-wit:

Lots Two (2) in Block Three Hundred Nine-

teen (319) of ''Hmitington Beach, Seventeenth

St. Section", as shown on a Map recorded in

Book 4, page 10 of Miscellaneous Maps, records

of Orange County, California,

and through any other wells which may hereafter

be drilled upon said property with the consent, in

writing, of the Chief of the Division of State Lands

being first had and obtained, and subject to the

terms, covenants, and conditions herein contained,

in so far as applicable, and othei'wise in accordan-^e

with rules and regulations of the Division of State

Lands now promulgated, and such I'easonable rules

and regulations of said Division of State Lands as

may be promulgated hereafter from those certain

lands in the Pacific Ocean belonging to the State of

California situated in the County of Orange, more

particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point in the ordinar}^ high

water mark of the Pacific Ocean where the

North-South quarter section line of Section 4

T. 6 S., R. 11 W., S. B. B. M., projected in a

straight line southerly, intersects said ordinaiy

high water mark; thence southeasterly along

said ordinary high water mark a distance of

three (3) miles to a point in said ordinary high

water mark; thence southwesterly at right an-



102 George T. Goggin vs.

gles with said ordinary high water mark and

in a straight line three (3) miles from said

ordinary high water mark to a point in the

Pacific Ocean; thence northwesterly along a

line which is parallel to said ordinary high wa-

ter mark a distance of three (3) miles to a point

in the Pacific Ocean ; thence northeasterly in a

straight line to the point of begimiing, (here-

inafter sometimes referred to as said lands of

the State of California)
;

for a period of twenty (20) years from the date

hereof, with the preferential right in the Grantee

to renew this agreement for successive periods of

ten (10) years each, upon such reasonable terms

and conditions as may be prescribed by the State,

acting through the Chief of the Division of State

Lands, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the

Chief, unless otherwise provided by law" at the

time of the expiration of such periods.

Section 2. In consideration of the foregoing, the

Grantee hereby agrees:

(a) To furnish a corporate surety bond, ap-

proved by the Chief, in the penal siun of two thou-

sands (2,000) dollars, for each easement herein

granted, conditioned upon compliance with the

terms, conditions and covenants of this agreement.

(b) To pay to the State of California a royalty

in accordance with the formula and schedule marked

Exhibit "A", attached hereto, and by reference

made a part, hereof, on the oil produced, drained.
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and saved from the said lands of the State of Cali-

fornia hereinbefore described, or on demand of the

State, acting through the Chief, a percentage of

the oil produced in accordance with said Exhibit

"A", the royalty when paid in value to be due and

payable monthly not later than the 25th of each

calendar month following the calendar month in

which produced; and when paid in kind, to be de-

livered in the field and taken by the State at the

receiving tanks of the Grantee on twenty-four (24)

liours notice of the Grantee that a tankful of oil

is ready for delivery; to pay to the State of Cali-

fornia at the times and in the manner herein speci-

fied for the payment of royalty on oil, one-fifth

(1/5) of the net proceeds received by the Grantee

upon all gas, whether dry or wet, and upon all

casinghead gasoline, produced and sold. Unless such

gas or casinghead gasoline is sold pursuant to a

sales-contract approved by the Chief, the price shall

be the reasonable market price as fixed by the Chief.

In case the gas produced and sold has a value both

for casinghead gasoline content and as a dry gas

from which the casinghead gasoline has been ex-

tracted, then the royalty above provided shall be

paid upon the proceeds of each of such values.

The State may take its royalty dry gas in kind

at its option, delivery thereof to be made at the

casinghead manufacturing plant where produced,

or at such other place as the parties hereto may

agree.
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(c) To file with the Division of State Lands

of the Department of Finance true and correct

copies of all sales-contracts for the disposition of

oil, gas and other petroleum products produced

hereunder, and in the event the State, acting

through the Chief, shall elect to take such oil or gas

royalty in money instead of oil or gas, not to sell

or otherwise dispose of the oil or gas produced

hereunder, except in accordance Avith such sales-

contracts or other method first approved in w^riting

by the State, acting through the Chief.

(d) To furnish monthly statements in detail in

such form as may be prescribed by the State, acting

through the Chief, showing, with respect to said

wells, the amount, gravity, quality, and value of all

oil produced, saved and/or sold, the amoimt of gas

produced, saved, and sold and the amount of casing-

head gasoline received or sold by the Grantee there-

from during the preceding calendar month, as the

basis for computation for royalties due the State;

to keep full and complete records and accounts of

the operation and of the production of oil and gas

and of the manufacture of casinghead gasoline de-

rived from each and every well for which an ease-

ment is herein granted, which said records and

accoimts shall be available at all reasonable times

to the inspection and examination by any person

authorized by the State; to consent to an examina-

tion of books and records of any individual, asso-

ciation, or corporation which has transported for
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or received from the Grantee any oil, gas or other

petroleum products produced from said wells, or

other wells belonging to the Grantee; to permit

inspection at all reasonable times, by any person

authorized by the State, of the said lands belonging

to the Grantee hereinbefore described, and the said

wells, improvements, machinery and fixtures used

in connection therewith.

(e) To furnish, concurrently with the execution

of this agreement, statements showing the quality,

quantity and gravity of all oil, gas, and other petro-

leum products heretofore produced from said wells

and manufactured from the products of said wells,

and the amounts received therefor; to file, concur-

rently upon the execution of this agreement, with

the Division of Oil and Gas of the Department of

Natural Resources of the State of California, as

confidential information logs of said wells, and all

surveys of said wells, and any and all plats thereof,

and other related information ; to waive the statutory

right of the Grantee to the inspection by the Director

of Finance or the Chief or a duly authorized em-

ployee of either of said data and information at

any time during the life of this agreement ; to waive

the statutory right of the Grantee to the use by the

Director of Finance or the Chief or a duly author-

ized employee of either of any other information

filed with said Division of Oil and Gas by the

Grantee; to consent to the wdthdrawal of such logs

and surveys of said wells, and any and all plats
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thereof, and other related information, either in

original form or by making copies thereof, from

the said Division of Oil and Gas at any time during

the life of this agreement, when determined desir-

able by the Director of Finance of the State of

California, for the purpose of making public record

of the same in the Division of State Lands, Depart-

ment of Finance, State of California. Any and all

information filed by the Grantee with the said Divi-

sion of Oil and Gas shall be available at all times

to the State for the purpose of forcing compliance

with the terms, covenants and conditions of this

agreement and rules and regulations now promul-

gated by the Division of State Lands and reasonable

rules and regulations which may hereafter be pro-

mulgated by the Division of State Lands.

(f) To pay when due all taxes lawfully assessed

and levied under the laws of the State, County,

City and United States of America, upon improve-

ments, oil gas and other petroleum products pro-

duced from the lands hereinbefore described, other

than taxes on the State's royalty oil, gas and petro-

leum products; to accord all workmen and em-

ployees freedom of purchase and to pay wages due

workmen and employees in accordance with the

laws of the State of California and of the United

States of America relating to employment of work-

men. To comply with all laws of the State of Cali-

fornia and all rules and regulations of any agency

of the State of California having jurisdiction there-
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in, and all laws of the United States of America,

and all rules and regulations of any agency of the

United States of America having jurisdiction there-

in, relating to the drilling, maintenance and opera-

tion of oil and gas wells and production of oil and

gas.

(g) Not to drill into the said lands of the State

of California any wells for the production of oil,

gas and petroleum products, or otherwise, without

the consent in writing of the Chief thereto first had

and obtained; nor to redrill, lengthen or deepen

without the consent in writing of the Chief first

had and obtained, and then only in strict compli-

ance with rules and regulations promulgated by the

Chief, and other agency of the State having juris-

diction thereof, said wells commonly known and

designated as No. 2, respectively; provided, how-

ever, if consent in writing is first had from the

Chief, to redrill, lengthen or deepen any one or

more of said wells commonly known and designated

as No. 2 the State shall not exact any royalty or

royalties in addition to those herein specified from

the Grantee in consideration of the granting of such

permission, and further provided, that when due to

collapse of casing or other mechanical difficulty or

obstruction in any of said wells, it becomes reason-

ably necessary to redrill any such well, the Grantee

may carry on and complete the necessary work of

redrilling any such well upon notice of intention,

specific in detail and precise in character, of the
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proposed work, being given to the State at least ten

(10) days before any such work is commenced,

and said work of redrilling any such well shall be

done in strict conformity with the laws of the State

of California and the rules and regulations pro-

mulgated thereunder by any agency of the State

having jurisdiction therein without regard to

whether such rules and regulations be general or

specific or both; and an accurate survey of any

new hole or side-tracking shall be made at intervals

of not less than one hundred (100) feet, and shall

immediately be filed with said Division of Oil and

Gas subject to the provisions contained in subdivi-

sion ''(e)" of Section "2" hereof, relating to the

inspection and use by the State and withdrawal by

the Director of Finance. All such operations shall

be carried on in strict accordance with the detailed

plan of said work as specified in such notice and be

varied only with the written consent of the State

first had and obtained.

(h) To exercise reasonable diligence consistent

herewith in the operation of said wells while said

products can be obtained in paying quantities, and

not to unreasonably or unnecessarily suspend con-

tinuous operations except with the consent of the

State, acting through the Chief. To carry on all

operations hereunder in good workman-like manner

in accordance with approved methods, having due

regard for the prevention of waste of oil and un-

reasonable waste of gas developed through said
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wells, or the entrance of water through said wells

to the oil sands or oil bearing strata to the destruc-

tion or injury of the oil deposits, or future produc-

tive operations and the health and safety of work-

men and employees; to plug securely, in the man-

ner prescribed by any agency of the State having

jurisdiction thereof, any well before abandoning

the same so as to effectively stop the flow of water

from the oil and gas bearing strata; to conduct all

drilling and related productive operations subject

to the inspection of authorized officials of the State

;

to furnish to the State detailed drawings of all

oil lines in any manner attached to the said wells

and to report changes or additions promptly; to

gauge all oil, to measure all gas, whether dry or

wet, in accordance with the rules and regulations

now or which may hereafter be promulgated by the

Chief, provided the State, through the Chief, shall

have, at any time, the right to gauge all oil and

measure all gas, and in the event of a disagreement

between the State and the Grantee concerning the

quality and/or quantity of the oil and/or gas so

gauged and/or measured, the burden to establish

the incorrectness of such gauging and/or measuring

shall rest upon the Grantee, and the Grantee is here-

by given the right to establish, by proper court

proceeding, the correct quality and/or quantity of

such oil and/or gas so gauged and/or measured;

to carry out at the expense of the Grantee all rea-

sonable orders and requirements of the State acting
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through the Chief, relative to prevention of unrea-

sonable waste and preservation of the property

and the health and safety of workmen, and on fail-

ure so to do the State, through its agent or agents,

shall have the right to enter on said lands of Gran-

tee to repair or prevent such unreasonable waste

at Grantee 's cost ; to abide and conform to the rules

and regulations in force at the time this easement

is granted, covering matters referred to in this

paragraph, and to comply with such reasonable

rules and regulations as may from time to time be

issued by the State, acting through the Chief, or

any other agency of the State having jurisdiction

therein; provided, however, that the Grantee shall

not be responsible for delay or casualties occasioned

by a cause beyond the control of the Grantee.

Section 3. The State expressly reserves:

(a) The right to grant easements or crossings

for wells over, under or along the courses of said

w^ells of the Grantee, and nothing herein contained

shall be construed as limiting the powers of the

State of California, or of the State, to lease, con-

vey, or otherwise transfer or encumber, during the

life of this agreement, said lands of the State for

any pury^ose whatsoever; and this agreement shall

not be construed as granting to the Grantee the

exclusive privilege to take oil, gas, or other petro-

leum products from said lands, or any portion there-

of, of the State of California.

(h) Full power and authority to cany out and

enforce all of the provisions of Section 15 of said
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Chapter 303, Statutes of California, 1921, as

amended, to the extent, if any, the same is legally

applicable, to insure the sale of the production of

such oil, gas and other petroleiun products from

said lands of the State of California to the public

at a reasonable price to prevent monopoly and to

safeguard the public welfare.

(c) The right to use any and all surplus gas,

whether dry or wet, produced from the said wells

for the purpose of repressuring the field provided

that such repressuring shall not imreasonably inter-

fere with or cause damage to the said wells of the

Grantee.

Section 4. The Grantee shall assume all respon-

sibility in connection with the maintenance and

operations of said oil wells, and shall at all times

hold the State free and harmless from any liability

to the State, its officers, agents and employees on

account of any negligent maintenance or operations

on the part of the Grantee and the officers, agents

and employees of the Grantee.

Section 5. In the event crossings are made or

attempted to be made by others across the lands,

hereinbefore described belonging to the Grantee for

the purpose of entering into or upon said lands of

the State of California, the Grantee shall join with

the State in any course of action determined by the

State for the purpose of preventing any such cross-

ing or crossings, or if such crossings have been

made, for the purpose of abatement of the same.
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Section 6. This agreement does not and shall not

be construed to authorize or purport to authorize

any rights of way or easements to the Grantee in,

through or under intervening lands for the purpose

of reaching the said lands of the State of Cali-

fornia hereinbefore described or for the purjiose of

maintaining and operating said oil wells in and

through any land or lands other than the said lands

of the State of California hereinbefore described;

and further, the cost of obtaining any and all rights

of way or easements necessary to effect an entrance

in and to said lands of the State of California shall

be at the sole cost and expense of the Grantee.

Section 7. The Grantee may use oil and/or gas

produced from said wells, or gas received in ex-

change for such gas so produced for fuel purposes,

for necessary operations of said wells on said prem-

ises, or for the drilling of new wells into said lands

of the State of California, or for recirculation of

any of said wells, or for repressuring the oil sand

or sands from which said well may be producing,

even though such gas is injected into such sand

through another well, the bottom of which is in said

lands of the State of California, free from any

royalty charges thereon.

If and when it becomes necessary to dehydrate

said oil, the Grantee may deduct the actual cost

of such dehydration but not to exceed five (5) cents

per barrel of net oil; such deduction shall be prior

to the calculation of the royalty to the State of the

said oil so dehydrated.
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Section 8. The State's royalty portion of oil, gas

or gasoline shall at all times be the sole property

of the State, whether or not reduced to possession,

and possession by the Grantee thereto at any time

shall be as Trustee thereof for the State until full

settlement of the royalty interests to the State shall

have been made. The Grantee shall be empowered

to sell and convey good title to the full amount of

royalty oil, gasoline or dry gas produced and saved,

if and when such sales have been approved in

writing by the Chief, as herein provided.

Section 9. The Grantee may, upon the consent of

the State, acting through the Chief, first had and

obtained in writing, surrender and terminate this

easement and agreement as a whole or as to any well

covered by same upon the payment of all royalties

or other obligations due and payable to the State

and upon the payment of all wages due and payable

to workmen and employees by the Grantee, and in

no case shall such termination be effective until the

Grantee shall have complied with all then existing

laws relative to the abandonment of oil or gas wells.

Section 10. If the Grantee shall fail to comply

with the provisions of the Act so far as applicable

or make default in the performance or observance

of any of the terms, covenants and stipulations

hereof, or of the rules and regulations of the Divi-

sion of State Lands now promulgated, and all rea-

sonable rules and regulations which may hereafter

be promulgated, and such default shall continue for

the period of thirty (30) days after written notice
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thereof by the State, acting through the Chief, and

no steps shall have been taken within that time, in

good faith, to remedy said default, tlien the State,

acting through the Chief, may enter upon the prem-

ises of the Grantee and take possession of the same

for the purpose of operating said wells of the

Grantee until such time as all money defaults of the

Grantee to the State have been fully satisfied, or if

such default cannot be satisfied by the payment

of money, then the Chief shall have the right and

power to cancel the respective easement and/or to

close said well or wells which are not being con-

ducted or operated in the manner prescribed by

the provisions of this easement, the rules and regu-

lations of the Division of State Lands now promul-

gated, and reasonable rules and regulations of the

Division of State Lands which may be hereafter

promulgated; but this proAdsion shall not be con-

strued to prevent the exercise by the State, through

the Chief, of any legal or equitable remedy which

the State might otherwise effect. The waiver of or

failure of the State to act upon any particular

cause of forfeiture shall not prevent the cancella-

tion and forfeiture of this easement for any other

cause of forfeiture or for the same cause occurring

another time.

Section 11. All notices herein provided to be

given or which may be given by either party to the

other shall be deemed to have been fully given

when made in writing and deposited in the United

States mail, registered and postage prepaid, and

addressed as follows:
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(To the State)

Division of State Lands

Department of Finance

State Capitol

Sacramento, California

and

(To the Grantee)

William Hazlett, Trustee,

Huntington Shore Oil Company,

918 Security Building,

Los Angeles, California

The addresses to which the notices shall or may
be mailed, as aforesaid, to either party, shall or

may be changed by written notice given by such

party to the other as hereinabove provided; but

nothing herein contained shall preclude the giving

of any such notice by personal service.

Section 12. It is further covenanted and agreed

that each obligation herein shall extend to and be

binding upon, and every benefit hereto shall inure

to, the heirs, executors, administrators, successors

and assigns of the respective parties hereto. Singu-

lar shall include the plural whenever applicable and

the neuter gender shall include the feminine and

masculine, and vice versa, whenever used in this

agreement.

Section 13. It is hereby understood and agreed

that this agreement, and, all the benefits derived

therefrom to the parties herein, are for the sole and

exclusive benefit of the parties hereto.
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Section 14. It is hereby agreed that the amount

of the royalty due and payable by the Grantee to

the State for all oil and gas and other petroleum

products produced by the Grantee from said wells

hereinbefore mentioned, up to the date of this agree-

ment, is the sum of One Thousand Ninety Six and

28/100 (1096.28) Dollars, which the State agrees to

accept and the Grantee agrees to pay in 48 equal

monthly installments, commencing on the 1st day of

March, 1934, and the Grantee further agrees to pay

to the State interest at the rate of six (6) per

centum per annum on the unpaid balance of said

principal sum as the same exists from time to time,

which said interest shall be due and payable amiu-

ally commencing one (1) year from the date of this

agreement, and annually thereafter until said prin-

cipal sum is fully paid.

Section 15. It is hereby agreed between the par-

ties hereto that this agreement may be terminated,

and any of the provisions hereof may be modified

and/or amended, upon the mutual consent of the

parties hereto.

Section 16. This agreement, or any easement

hereby granted, shall not be assigned, either in part

or in whole, voluntarily or invohmtarily, without

the consent in writing of the Chief first had and

obtained.

Section 17. The easement granted by this instru-

ment is more specifically described as follows,

to-wit

:

An easement in and to, under and through, said

lands of the State embracing and consisting of
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separate and distinct cylindrical areas, each 24

inches in diameter and extending throughout the

full length, course and distance of said respective

wells herein before mentioned, in so far as the same

traverse ore are in, upon or imder said lands of the

State, the center line of each of said respective

cylindrical areas being the center line of each of

said respective wells as disclosed by the surveys or

plats thereof filed with the said Division of Oil and

Gas of the said Department of Natural Resources

and/or as verified or altered by subsequent survey,

if any, and in addition thereto, similar cylindrical

areas following the respective courses and direc-

tions of the center lines of such other wells as may
hereafter be drilled by Grantee into and through

the lands of the State with the written consent of

the State or Chief, as hereinbefore provided, to-

gether with the right, under and in compliance with

the terms of this instrument, to enter in and upon

and to use said easement, or cylindrical areas for

the purpose of conducting therein or thereon the

operations authorized by the terms of this agree-

ment.

In the event any agreement or agreements are

hereafter entered into between the State acting

through the Director of Finance and/or the Chief

of the Division of State Lands, and persons, firais,

or corporations other than the Grantee herein, pur-

suant to the authority under which this agreement

is made, which said agreement or agreements shall

relate to the taking of oil, gas, and petroleum prod-
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ucts from said lands of the State of California

through wells drilled upon lands of Seventeenth

Street Addition to the City of Huntington Beach,

California, the Grantee shall have the option to

adopt the form of any such agreement in toto, in

lieu of this agreement, effective from date of such

adoption which shall not be later than ninety (90)

days after Grantee has knowledge of any such new

agreement or agreements.

Section 18. Should the State elect to take its

royalty oil or dry gas in kind, notice of thirty (30)

days shall be given to the Grantee of the State's

intention so to do; on such election, the State shall

continue to take its said royalty oil and/or dry gas

(as the case may be) in kind for a period of six

(6) months from the time it commenced to take

such royalty oil and/or dry gas (as the case may be)

in kind, and thereafter for like periods of six (6)

months unless the State shall, at least thirty (30)

days prior to the end of any such six (6) months'

period, notify the Grantee in writing of the State's

election to cease taking its royalty oil and/or dry

gas (as the case may be) in kind, and to take the

same in value.

Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding,

the Grantee, if operating a refinery, and if the

State is not then taking the same in kind, may use

such oil or gas, and 'account to the State for the

State's royalty in accordance with the provisions of

this agreement.
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In witness whereof, the parties hereto have exe-

cuted or caused to be executed this agreement, the

day and year first above written.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
By HOLLAND A. VANDEGRIFT

Rolland A. Vandegrift

Director of Finance

By W. S. KINGSBURY
Chief of the Division of State Lands

Department of Finance

Form approved March 12, 1934.

IJ. S. WEBB
Attorney General of California

[Seal] HUNTINGTON SHORE OIL
COMPANY

By W. M. CRAWFORD
President

By J. D. STERLING
Secretary

Executed Oct. 19, 1904.

WILLIAM HAZLETT
William Hazlett,

As Trustee for Huntington

Shore Oil Company

Executed Jime 24, 35.

CHARLES R. DETRICK
Mgr.

Huntington Shore Oil Company
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TRUSTEE'S EXHIBIT No. 3

State Lands Commission

Division of State Lands

Department of Finance

State of California

CERTIFICATE

I, Webb Shadle, Executive Officer of the State

Lands Commission of the State of California, do

hereby certify the attached to be a full, true and

correct copy of a memorandum dated February 14,

1940, from Tracy L. Atherton to Webb Shadle, on

file in the office of the State Lands Commission,

Room 302 California State Building, Los Angeles,

California ; that I have compared the same with the

original and that it is a correct transcript therefrom

and of the whole of the said memorandimi.

Witness my hand this 26th day of March, 1941.

WEBB SHADLE

State of California

Department of Finance

Division of State Lands

Date February 14, 1940

Office: Los Angeles

To: Webb Shadle—Los Angeles

From: T. L. Atherton

Subject: Proposed redrill—Easement No. 290-1

A study of the surveys as plotted and their inter-

section with the inclined planes shows that under

our present rule it would be impossible to redrill the

well under the above easement as at the following
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inclined planes the well 290-1 is located within 100

feet of the well or wells as indicated.

Inclined plane

3600 ft. Clear

3700 '' 309-2A

3800 " 309-2A and Wil. 18

3900 " 309- '' u u u

4000 " n

4100 '' Clear

TRACY L. ATHERTON (Signed)

T. L. A.

Copy

Intradivision Memorandum

[Endorsed]: Tr. Exhibit No. 3. Filed March 27,

1941. Ernest R. Utley, Referee.

[Endorsed]: Filed March 28, 1941. R. S. Zim-

merman, Clerk.

TRUSTEE'S EXHIBIT No. 4

Huntington Beach Townsite Association

SUB-SURFACE CROSSING PERMIT

Permit from Huntington Beach Townsite Asso-

ciation, a corporation, hereinafter referred to as

'^ Association", to Huntington Shore Oil Company,

a member of said Association, hereinafter referred

to as ''Member".

Article I.

1. The Association has simultaneously with the

acceptance by Member of this permit, entered into
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an agreement with Standard Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, and others, hereinafter referred to as

** Standard Oil Agreement", a copy of which said

agreement is attached to and made a part of this

agreement and marked Exhibit ^'A".

2. Subject to the terms, conditions and limita-

tions of this permit hereinafter set forth, and by

virtue of the right and power given to Association

by said Standard Oil Agreement, and for the same

period as given by said Standard Oil Agreement to

this Association, Association hereby gives Member

a sub-surface crossing permit for Member's well in

the City of Huntington Beach, California, known

and designated as Huntington Shore Oil Company

Well and the right to use, maintain, repair and

operate said well in its existing location and course

under, through and across lands of those corpora-

tions designated as *'Permittors" in said Standard

Oil Agreement, within the strip of land described

as follows:

In the City of Huntington Beach, California,

extending from the oceanward projection of

the westerly side of 13th Street to the ocean-

ward projection of the easterly side of 23rd

Street between the landward side of Ocean

Avenue and the high tide line.

Article II.

This permit is given upon and subject to each and

all of the terms and conditions, limitations and

stipulations hereinafter set forth, and upon accept-
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ance hereof Member thereby agrees to, and agrees

to be bound by, all of said terms, conditions, limi-

tations and stipulations.

1. This permit is, and at all times shall be, sub-

ject in each and every particular to the terms, con-

ditions and stipulations of said Standard Oil Agree-

ment, and that any revocation or cancellation or

termination of the permit given Association by said

Standard Oil Agreement shall automatically revoke

or cancel or terminate this permit.

2. All statements, representations, descriptions,

plats, surveys and data which said Standard Oil

Agreement states have been made or furnished by

Association to Permittors named in said Standard

Oil Agreement, were made or furnished to Asso-

ciation by Member for the purpose of enabling

Association to make or furnish them to the said

Permittors, and shall be deemed to have been made

direct by Member to said Permittors in order to

induce said Permittors to give said permit to Asso-

ciation, and that all thereof are true and accurate.

A. Member, with reference to said well, shall

and does hereby assume each and every responsibil-

ity, duty and obligation imposed by said Standard

Oil Agreement on Association; and Member shall

and does hereby relieve Association from all such

responsibility, obligation and duty; and shall at all

times hold and keep Association free and harmless

from any and all liability, cost or expense; and

should Association make an}^ payment, or incur any

expense by reason of any obligation or duty men-
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tioned in this i)aragrai)h and imposed upon it by

said Standard Oil Agreement, Member shall im-

mediately on demand of Association reimburse As-

sociation therefor.

4. This permit is personal to the Member with

reference to said well. It shall not be assigned in

whole or in part ^vithout the written consent of the

Association; furthermore, any act or circumstance

which, imder and by virtue of the terms of said

Standard Oil Agreement, would authorize said Per-

mittors to terminate the permit given to the Asso-

ciation by said Standard Oil Agreement, or to do

or take any other act, shall also authorize and em-

power the Association to terminate this permit, or

to do or take any such other act.

5. Should the Association incur any cost or ex-

pense in enforcing or effectuating this agreement

Member shall repay the same to the Association

upon demand.

6. Upon the termination of this permit, whether

by expiration of its term or by act of said Per-

mittors or by act of this Association or otherwise.

Member agrees to abandon and plug said well in

the manner provided for in Condition (d) of

said Standard Oil Agreement, but if Member fails

to commence the work of abandoning within ten

(10) days after such termination, and thereafter

fails to diligently prosecute the same to completion.

Association shall have the right to enter the lands

of Member, as the agent of Member, and at the



Bolsa Chica Oil Corp. et al. 129

risk of Member to abandon and plug such well in

such manner as the Association may deem proper,

or as may be required by said Permittors, and all

cost and expense of such abandonment and plug-

ging shall be paid by Member to the Association

upon demand; and in case of suit to collect the same

Member agrees to pay the Association in addition

a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed and allowed

by the court.

7. Any notice, information or data to be given

the Association by virtue of the terms of this agree-

ment shall be delivered in wiiting personally to

an Officer of the Association at the office of the As-

sociation, or shall be mailed by registered mail,

postage prepaid, to the Association at Huntington

Beach, Orange Comity, California.

8. Any notice or demand to be given to Member

by the Association shall be by mailing notice thereof

to the Member by registered mail, postage prepaid,

at the following address: Hubert F. Laugham, 633

Subway Terminal Bldg., Los Angeles, Calif, or at

such other address in the County of Orange or the

County of Los Angeles, State of California, as Mem-
ber may from time to time designate in writing by

notice to the Association, given as herein required.

9. Subject to all the terms and conditions of this

permit, it shall be binding upon the successors and

assigns of the parties hereto.

In Witness Whereof, Huntington Beach Town-

site Association has executed this permit in dupli-
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cate on the 11th day of (initialed H.S.H.) May,

1937 (initialed H.S.H.)

[Seal] HUNTINGTON BEACH TOWN-
SITE ASSOCIATION,

By EUGENE [Illegible]

President.

H. S. HANCOCK
Asst. Secretary.

Accepted

:

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN
Trustee for Huntington Shore

Oil Company, Bankrupt

Member
HUBERT F. LAUGHARN

Trustee for Jack Dave Ster-

ling, Bankrupt

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN
Trustee for Jack Dave Ster-

ling, Bankrupt

(Huntington Investment

Corporation)

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN^
Attorney in Fact for royalty

interests as per attached list

Himtington Shore Oil Company

List of names of persons having interests in the

Huntington Shore Oil Company, and Huntington

Shore Well #2 who have given powers of attorney
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to Hubert F. Laiigham to execute the surface cross-

ing permit, to-wit:

R. H. Garrison

H. S. Fentress

Elmer R. Stokesbary

Mrs. Jeanette Stokesbary

Wm. H. Rifkind

Mrs. Anna Rifkind

Rosa L. Boyd

George R. Finley, Executor Estate Fannie E.

Finley

Fanny A. Larson

Evangeline Adams Spozio

Marion Adams
Louis Solomon

Sylvia Soloman

David W. Butler

Ralph J. Brown
Preston R. Wyrick

Anglo California National Bank of San Fran-

cisco, by A. N. Baldwin, Vice President and

R. H. Holmberg, Assistant Secretary.

Henry C. Roher

Mrs. Edna L. Gosan

William Gosan

Joe Goussak

Ada Goussak

Albert G. Berenstein

Charlotte E. Berenstein

Sam N. Orenstein

Faye Orenstein
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George I. Orenstein

George A. Coffey

Spencer E. Sully

Katherine K Smith

Max Drefke

Mathilda Drefke

Fred Lovett

Virginia Rickman

Nat Shipper

Betty Shipper

Harry Greek

Rose Greek

Mary Errebo

Mrs. L. Grrille Coate

Mr. I. Searles, Attorney in fact for E. T. Chese

Golden Gate Gil Co., by H. R. Hamilton, Presi-

dent and S. F. Ballif, Jr., S'ecretary

John R. Kennedy

Peter Greek

Sarah Greek

Mrs. Lucy K. Latham

Herbert R. Kendall

Emma F. Hale

L. G'Rourke

Herbert M. Baruch

C. E. Parkman
Mrs. Kitty Parkman
George P. Wilson

C. P. Robinson

Sarah J. Woods
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Florence E. Markle

Bertha Woods Walker

Mrs. Gussie Houssels

Celistine R. Young

Mary A. Leslie

Lewis Pendleton

Mattie Pendleton

Joseph P. Zimmer

Robert E. Gilmore

Ross L. Gilmore

lona S. Sharp

Vera Johnson

Jasper N. Chamberlain

Sadie McConoughy

Harvey B. Snyder

Edna J. Decker

Elizabeth Decker

James J. Thompson

W. J. Thompson

Homer M. Gilmore

Lulu Gilmore

Nellie E. Cunningham-Beyer

Herman Sterling

Leo Pearlston

Dayton H. Boyer

Joseph Smooke

Pacific National Bank of San Francisco, Trus-

tee under selected Income Royalties No. 2.,

by D. W. Holgate, Trust Officer.

Joseph F. Reed
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Agnes Reed

Zena Kapelman

Harvey F. Nelson

Earl Foremaster

Frans Nelson Petroleum Company, by H. F.

Nelson, President

Esther Strin

Lena Abramson

Morris Abramson

Meyer M. Brill

Cele Brill per W.M.B.

Jack Strin

Nathan Smooke

Ben Sterling

David B. Rosenthal

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN
Attorney-in-Fact for above per

cent holders in accordance

with powers of attorney at-

tached hereto.

Huntington Shore Oil Company

(Jack Dave Sterling, Bankrupt)

The following are names of royalty interests not

located by the undersigned Trustee

:

Minnie M. Kruse

Flora Moore

Violet Olmstead

Anna Hasenyager

R. A. Calhoun
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C. W. Patrick

Jennie B. Durkee

Caroline E. Fish

Carter H. Lane

Minnie Patrick

Frank A. Moulton

Commonwealth Trust Company, Trustee for

Empire Investors Trustee, Series A
HUBERT F. LAUGHARN

Trustee of Jack Dave Sterling

(Huntington Shore Oil Com-

pany)

Bankrupt.

Holders of royalty interests on which no final

determination of validity has been made, the same

held as security only.

Oil Well Supply Company
Bank of America National Trust & Savings As-

sociation

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN
Trustee of Jack Dave Sterling

(Huntington Shore Oil Com-

pany)

Bankrupt.

Agreement between Standard Oil Company
of California, a corporation, Huntington Beach

Company, a corporation. Pacific Electric Rail-

way Company, a corporation, and Pacific
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Electric Land Company, a corporation, first

parties, hereinafter collectively referred to as

''Permittors", and Huntington Beach Town-

site Association, a corporation, hereinafter re-

ferred to as ''Association", second party:

The Association has entered into an agreement,

hereinafter referred to as "Association, Agree-

ment, dated as of April 30, 1934, with Huntington

Shore Oil Company, hereinafter referred to as

"Member", relative to the well of said Member

designated as follow^s, to-wit : Huntington Shore Oil

Company Well, hereinafter referred to as "Well".

Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations

hereinafter set forth, Permittors hereby give the

Association, and the Association may in turn give

said Member, a sub-surface crossing permit for, and

the right to use, maintain, repair and operate, said

Well in its existing location and course under,

through and across lands of the Permittors within

the strip of land described as follows:

In the City of Huntington Beach, California,

extending from the oceanward projection of the

w^esterly side of 13th Street to the oceanward

projection of the easterly side of 23rd Street

between the landward side of Ocean Avenue

and the high tide line.

Any such permit given by the Association to said

Member shall be subject in each and every particu-

lar to the tei*ms, conditions and stipulations of this
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permit; and any revocation or cancelling of this

permit shall automatically revoke or cancel any

such permit given by the Association to said

Member.

The Association has furnished the Permittors

with a statement specifying the above described

Well and giving a particular description of the

land upon which the derrick of said Well is located

;

the Association has also furnished Permittors with

plats and surveys of said Well showing the exist-

ing location and course of said Well, and a state-

ment of the casing maintained in said Well giving

the diameter and length of each string of casing and

the depth at which each string is landed. The Asso-

ciation hereby represents that to the best of its

knowledge and belief said statements and plats are

accurate.

This permit is given at the request of the Asso-

ciation and in reliance upon and in consideration

of representations by the Association and is also

given at the request of the Director of Finance and

Chief of the Division of State Lands of the Depart-

ment of Finance of the State of California, in order

that said Member may obtain and produce, through

his or its Well, oil, gas and other hydrocarbon sub-

stances from the tide and submerged lands of the

Pacific Ocean under compromise agreement between

the State of California, through its said Director

of Finance and Chief of the Division of State

Lands, and the said Member, dated March 1st, 1934,
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and this permit, subject to the limitations, represen-

tations and conditions hereinafter set forth, is given

for the duration of and shall run concurrently with

said compromise agreement, and each and every ex-

tension or renewal thereof. COPY OF SAID COM-
PROMISE AGREEMENT IS HERETO AT-

TACHED.
This permit is given in consideration also of the

following representations made to the Permittors

by the Association with reference to the said Well,

all of which representations the Association is in-

formed and believes are true and accurate, and all

of which representations shall be deemed to have

been made direct by the Member owning or oper-

ating said Well to the Permittors upon the accept-

ance by such Member of the peraiit from the Asso-

ciation above referred to:

1. That said Member is the owner or entitled

to the possession of the land upon which the derrick

of his or its said Well is located AND IS IN ALL
RESPECTS ENTITLED AND QUALIFIED TO
MAKE AND ENTER INTO THE STIPU-

LATION HEREOF WITH REFERENCE
THERETO AND TO SAID WELL; said land is

hereinafter sometimes referred to as the *'land of

the Member".

2. That said Well originates on the land of the

Member owning or operating said Well and is

slanted or deflected therefrom through lands of

Permittors within the strip hereinabove described
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into the land under the Pacific Ocean, that said

Well does not terminate otherwise than or take a

•course substantially different from that shown on

the plats and surveys of said Well furnished by

the Association to Permittors hereimder, and that

no portion of the perforated pipe in said Well

lies within the confines of any lands of Permittors.

3. That said Well is completed and producing,

or is capable of being produced FROM LAND
UNDER THE PACIFIC OCEAN, and that in

the drilling and construction of said Well the

Member owning or operating it has used and in-

stalled therein materials and equipment of good

quality and condition.

4. That the casing maintained in said Well is

of the diameters and lengths and is landed at the

depths specified in the statement furnished by the

Association to the Permittors; that all of said cas-

ing was at the time of installation new or in good

condition and was installed in a proper and work-

manlike manner; that all water sands have been

effectively and in a proper manner plugged off;

that any and all information and survey data now

or hereafter in possession of, or available to, said

Member relative to the history, location, course,

mechanical condition, equipment, pressures, water

shut-offs, oil production, perforations and condition

of said Well, and any such information now or

hereafter in possession of or available to the Asso-

ciation is now^ and will be available to Permittors.
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5. That said Well throughout its course is in a

safe condition and does not in any wise interfere

with or endanger existing w^ells or any other prop-

erty of the Permittors. That the existence, under-

ground location and course of said Well have been

ascertained by directional survey thereof and the

results of such survey have been furnished to Per-

mittors.

This permit is given subject to the following

terms and conditions, all of which are binding on

the Association and such Member with reference to

the said Well upon the acceptance by the Member

owning or operating said Well of the permit from

the Association above referred to:

(a) Said Well shall at all times be maintained

and operated in a good and workmanlike mamier

and so as to prevent and avoid danger of injury

or damage therefrom to the property of Permittors.

Permittors shall at all reasonable times have right

of access to said Well and to all records and survey

data pertaining thereto as to the history, location,

course, mechanical condition, equipment, pressures,

water shut-offs, oil production, perforations and

condition of said Well.

The Association and said Member, with reference

to the said Well, shall at all times promptly and

effectively take precautionary or other measures

to protect the Permittors and their property from

injury or damage from said Well, and will promptly

comply with the request of the Permittors to take

such precautionary or other measures.
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No work shall be done on said Well without writ-

ten notice by the Association, or the Member own-

ing or operating such Well, and the proper officer

of the State of California to Permittors, showing

the nature of the work proposed to be done and

written permission from Permittors to proceed

therewith; such permission will be given only when

so requested by the State of California and the

proposed work, in the opinion of Permittors, will

not injure, damage or jeopardize the property of

Permittors or any existing or contemplated well

of Permittors; provided that no notice to, or con-

sent by, the Permittors shall be required in event

said Member desires to, or does, bail or clean out

said Well, change the position of, pull, or fish for,

tubing in said Well, clean out or wash perforations

of same, fish for foreign objects in same, place

packer on said tubing, replace or change position

of tubing-catcher in same, or place, pull or replace

pumps, or fish for or replace sucker rods in said

Well.

If for any reasons operations of said Well are

voluntarily suspended for six (6) months, Permit-

tors shall have the right to terminate this permit.

(b) Permittors shall not be liable for any in-

jury, damage or loss to the Association or said

Member, or to any well drilled, operated or main-

tained by any Member, or to any property of the

Association or said Member, resulting from activi-

ties of Permittors on or in any property of Per-
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mittors in the Huntington Beach Oil Field through

which said Well may pass.

(c) The Association and said Member, with

reference to the said Well owTied or operated by

such Member, (1) shall protect and hold Permittors

harmless from any and all claims for loss, damage

or injury to others, including costs and reasonable

attorneys' fees in the event suit is brought, and

shall pay any loss, damage or expense which Per-

mittors may suffer or incur, arising out of or in

any way connected with the existence aud/or opera-

tion of said Well and from any operation or activity

of the Association and such Member on, in or in

connection with said Well and from or on account

of any contact, collision or other interference of

said Well with any other well, whether of Per-

mittors, of any other Member or of others, on, in or

which crosses the property of Permittors
; (2) shall

assume all risk and shall be accoimtable for any-

thing occurring on account of or due to the exist-

ence or operation of said Well and shall protect,

indemnify and hold the PeiTnittors harmless

THEREFROM AND against any and all injury,

damage or loss arising out of or due to the

enjoyment of this permit; (3) shall protect, indem-

nify and hold harmless Permittors and the land

of Permittors from any and all mechanics' and/or

other liens and any and all cost oi* expense incurred

on account thereof arising out of, ASSERTED, or

in any manner due to anything done or caused to be

done on or in connection with said Well.



Bolsa CJiica Oil Corp. et al. 143

(d) If, as and when said Well is abandoned,

the Association and the Member owning or operat-

ing such Well shall promptly abandon the same in

accordance with the regulations of the State of

California Department of Natural Resources, Di-

vision of Oil and Gas, and, in addition thereto,

shall promptly and effectively plug with cement, in

a good and workmanlike manner, such portion or

portions of the same and take such precautionary

and protective measures with reference thereto, as

may, in the determination of Permittors, be neces-

sary or proper to prevent any injury or damage to

or interference with the property or wells of Per-

mittors.

(e) The Association and said Member shall, on

request of Permittors, submit all data, surveys

and information respecting said Well relating to

its history, location, course, mechanical condition,

equipment, pressures, water shut-offs, oil produc-

tion, perforations and condition, and all data and

information as to any and all negotiations and/or

arrangements for surveying said Well and all sur-

veys thereof, whether ''single shot" or otherwise,

and whenever such surveys have been made, whether

before or after the date hereof. If any data, survey

or information furnished Peraiittors hereunder is

incorrect or for any reason, in the judgment of

Permittors, insufficient, the Association and the

Member owning or operating such Well, will, on

being notified of that fact, promptly furnish the

required information, including survey thereof, if
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required by Permittors, and if the Association or

such Member fails to furnish the data, survey and

information so required, Permittors, or the nomi-

nee of Permittors, shall have the rii^^ht, as the

agent of such Member and at such Member's and/or

the Association's risk and expense, to enter upon

such Member's lands and make such examination as

may be necessary to obtain the desired information,

including survey of said Well. In the event Per-

mittors, or the nominee of Permittors, should be

denied access to said Well for the purpose of mak-

ing such examination or survey, Permittors shall

have the right to terminate this permit.

(f) In the event it should be determined at

any time hereafter by Permittors that any portion

of the perforated pipe in said Well lies within the

confines of any lands of Permittors, Permittors

shall have, in addition to any other remedy, whether

at law or in equity, against the owner or operator

of such Well, the right to terminate this permit.

(g) Should said Well be so close to any well

PROPOSED TO BE drilled by Permittors on any

land owned or leased by Perinittors as, in the

JUDGMENT of Permittors, to injure, damage, in-

terfere or conflict with OR JEOPARDIZE the

same, Permittors shall have the right at any time

after commencement^ of drilling operations of such

well to terminate this permit whereuj)on the Mem-
ber and/or the Association shall PROMT^TJ^Y
abandon and ])lug said Well, as provided in condi-

tion (d) hereof.
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(h) Said Member, with reference to said Well,

shall comply v/ith all laws of the State of California

and all rules and res^iilations of any agency of the

State of California having jurisdiction therein, and

all laws of the United States of America, and all

rules and regulations of any agency of the United

States of America having jurisdiction therein, re-

lating to the drilling, maintenance and operation

of oil and gas wells and production of oil and gas.

Said Member, with reference to said Well, shall

comply with any reasonable conservation or curtail-

ment program or programs which may at any time

and from time to time affect the production of oil

and/or gas from the said Well, and which pro-

gram or programs are mutually agreed upon by

a majority of the operators in the field in which

such Wells are situated.

(i) This permit is personal to the Association

and to such Member with reference to the said

Well, and shall not be assigned, in whole or in part,

without the written consent of Permittors. In the

event this permit is assigned as to said Well,

whether vohmtarily or by operation of law, or in

the event such Well is operated or controlled by one

w^ho is not a Member of the Association, Permittors

shall have the right to terminate this permit as to

such Well; provided, however, that in the event the

land on which the derrick of said Well is located,

together with the Well and its equipment is re-

possessed by the lessor of said Meml^er, such rey)os-

session shall not be construed as an assignment,
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and in such event Permittors shall not terminate

this permit, provided such lessor becomes, immedi-

ately after such repossession, a member of the Asso-

ciation AND MAKES GOOD ANY FATLHRE: OF
THE PERMITTEE TO FULLY PERFORM
ANY UNFULFILLED PROVISION HEREOF.
Subject to all the terms and conditions hereof, this

])ermit shall he binding upon the successors and

assisrns of the parties hereto.

(j) Any and all cost or expense incurred by

Permittors in enforcing or effectuating this agree-

ment will be repaid to Permittors on demand by the

Association and the Member owning or operating

said Well.

(k) Should any of the foregoing representations

fail with reference to said well, or should the

Association or said Member be in default in the

strict and faithful observance of any of the fore-

going conditions ^^nth reference to said Well, or

should such Member cease to be a member of the

Association, or should such Member fail faithfully

to comply wdth his or its obligations under said

Association Agreement, or fail to comply with any

of the terms or conditions of any permit, which, by

virtue of this agreement, the Association may give

to such member, Permittors shall have the right

immediately to terminate this permit as to the said

well.

(1) Upon the termination of this permit,

whether by expiration of its term, or otherwise, the

Association and said Member, with reference to the



Bolsa Chica Oil Corp. ct ah 147

said Well, shall abandon and plug, in the manner

provided for in condition (d) hereof, the said Well,

but if the Association or such Member should fail

to commence the work of abandoning within ten

(10) days after such termination, and thereafter

fail to diligently prosecute the same to completion,

Permittors, or the nominee of Peniiittors, shall

have the right to enter the lands of such Member

as the agent of such Member and to abandon and

plug said Well in such manner as Permittors shall

deem proper for the protection of the property

or wells of Permittors, at the risk of the Associa-

tion and such Member, and all cost and expense

of such abandonment and plugging, together with

interest thereon at the rate of seven per cent (7%)

per annum, shall be paid by the Association for

such Member or by such Member, upon demand;

and in case of suit to enforce or collect the same,

the Association, for such Member, and such Member

agree to pay Permittors in addition a reasonable

attorney's fee to be fixed and allowed by the

court.

The Association severally agrees wdth the Per-

mittors :

A. Not to give any permit hereimder except

to said Member. Nothwithstanding any provision

in the permit from the Association to said Member,

the obligations of the Association and said Member

hereimder shall remain joint and several;

B. To notify the Permittors of the breach by

said Member of his or its obligations under the

Association Agreement.
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C. To immediately create and maintain with a

depositary annroved In^ Permittors an Tndenmity

Fund of not less than $100,000 for the disehar<]:e of

the oblio'ations of the Association and its Members

to the Permittors hereunder, and under any similar

permit, and said fund shall not be drawn upon for

any other purpose. Should any portion of said Fund

of $100,000 be used for such purpose, the Associa-

tion will, whenever and as often as said Fund is

so used, by assessment amons: its Members, in the

manner now provided in the existing- ac^reement

between the Association and its members dated as

of April 30, 1934, promptly raise said Fund to tbe

sum of $100,000. The Association shall not draw on

said fund without the written approval of Per-

mittors to the depositary, and the Association will

maintain with such depositary notice and direction

to that effect, acknowledgment of which shall be

sent to Permittors by Depositary.

In the event the Association should be dissolved

or in the event the Association should not strictly

and faithfully comply with each and all the pro-

visions hereof, the Permittors shall have the right

immediately to terminate this permit, v/hereupon

said Well shall be abandoned subject to and in

accordance with the provisions of this agreement.

The word "Permittors" whenever used in this

permit shall be deemed to include and refer to the

first parties herein, or any of them.

Permittors hereby designate Standard Oil Com-

pany of California, whose address is 225 Bush
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Street, S'an Francisco, Califoi-nia, as their repre-

sentative in all matters relating to this agreement.

Any notice, information or data to be given Per-

mittors heremider shall be valid if mailed by regis-

tered mail, postage prepaid, to Standard Oil Com-

pany of California at the above address; any no-

tice or other commmiication to be given the Asso-

ciation or said Member shall be valid if mailed

by registered mail, postage prepaid, to the Asso-

ciation at Huntington Beach, California.

If there is any conflict between the Association

Agreement and this agreement with respect to the

obligations of the Association and said Member

hereunder, the provisions of this agreement shall

prevail.

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have exe-

cuted these presents as of the 5th day of July,

1935.

STANDARD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA

[Seal] By B. W. LETCHER
Asst. Sec'y

HUNTINGTON BEACH
COMPANY

[Seal] By G. M. FOSTER
Ass't Secty

PACIFIC ELECTRIC RAIL-
WAY COMPANY

[Seal] By D. W. PONTIUS
Pres.
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PACIFIC ET.ECTRIC LAND
COMPANY

[Seal] By D. W. PONTIUS
Pres.

Permittors.

HUNTINGTON BEACH
TOWNSITE ASiSOCIATION

[Seal] By EUGENE MELTON
Pres.

H. S. HANCOCK
Asst Secy.

Association.

Dated May 11, 1937.

[Endorsed]: Tr. Exhibit No. 4. Filed April 26,

1940. Ernest R. Utley, Referee.

[Endorsed]: Filed March 28, 1941. R. S. Zhn-

merman. Clerk.

Mr. Dechter: That is all for the petitioner, for

the Trustee.

Mr. Borden: I think I made the statement in

the first instance that our cross examination was

not to be construed as any waiver of our objection

to the jurisdiction.

The Referee: Oh yes.

Mr. Borden: I don't think there is any question

about that. We have no evidence to offer at the

present time. I might have if there is any question

in your Honor's mind whether or not the Coui*t,
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in a summary proceeding of this kind against a

total stranger, and mider these circumstances, has

a right to take any action or to restrain us from

proceeding. I should like to have a continuance in

order to put on some testimony without conceding

the jurisdiction of the Court. I think the Court is

entitled to have the benefit, no matter what order

it makes with respect to directing the Trustee to

commence plenary action or any other remedy

available to him, of hearing testimony on both sides.

Mr. Dechter: We have no objection to giving

Mr. Borden [188] a reasonable length of time.

The Referee : From what I know about this case

here is the way I feel now: I don't think the bank-

ruptcy court has any jurisdiction to tell a stranger

where or how he should drill his well so long as that

stranger does not interfere or trespass upon the

rights of the bankrupt. Up to that point this Court

has not anything to say. If there is a danger of tres-

passing or damaging the bankrupt's property, I

think then the Court would have jurisdiction, that

is, covering that particular phase of it. That is my
offhand impression.

Mr. Borden: Well, I think there is no doubt if

we were actually trespassing upon the property of

the bankrupt, there is no doubt in my mind but

what the Court would have ample opportunity to

restrain us, but here we are drilling in separate

lots where there is no interference at all. We are

doing the same thing they have done since the

matter has been in bankruptcy, your Honor. They
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have drilled within one hundred feet of us, accord-

ing to the testimony before the Court, but now the}-

seek to enjoin us from proceeding to do the very-

same thing, to re-drill and place our well on pro-

duction.

The Referee: I can sa}^ right now this Court

will not attempt to prevent you from re-drilling, but

there is a certain course which this Court may pre-

vent you from taking.

Mr. Pallette: I think we can stipulate to an

order, if [189] you w^ant to make one, restraining

us from coming within a certain distance.

Mr. Dechter: That is agreeable.

The Referee: What would be a reasonable dis-

tance, the regulation of the Department?

Mr. Dechter: I am willing to make it within the

radius of one hundred feet, or the diameter of two

himdred feet. In other words, if counsel will agree

—

The Referee: Why not follow the regulation

Mr. Dechter: That is agreeable.

The Referee : as Exliibit 1 provides ?

Mr. Dechter: I might also call the Court's at-

tention to the Huntington Townsite agreement

which is binding on the Bolsa Chica Corporation,

which contains this provision:

"Said member, with reference to said well,

shall comply with all of the laws of the State

of California and all rules and regulations of

any agency of the State of California having

jurisdiction thereof."
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Now, other members of this association have

agreed to comply with those rules and this agency

has jurisdiction.

Mr. Borden : That is not before this Court. It is

a matter of whether or not we were interfering

with the bankrupt's property.

Mr. Rifkind: I understand it is agreeable that

an injunction be granted embodying the regula-

tions

—

•
—

Mr. Pallette: No. [190]

Mr. Rifkind : What is that ?

Mr. Pallette: No.

Mr. Rifkind: What do you suggest?

Mr. Pallette : I suggested we would be willing to

stipulate that an injunction be granted restraining

us from coming within a reasonable distance of the

well.

Mr. Dechter: All right.

Mr. Pallette: I think we will have to consult

with our engineers as to what they deem to be a

reasonable distance.

Mr. Dechter: If you make it one hundred feet

it will end the matter.

The Referee : Is it one hundred or two hundred ?

Mr. Dechter: Within a radius of one hundred

feet or a diameter of two himdred feet.

Mr. Borden: No one ever contended we would

get any closer than that.

The Referee: Suppose, gentlemen, I continue

this matter and then you can see if you can get

together on an order?
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Mr. Pallette: I wouldn't be surprised but what

w^e could stipulate on one hundred feet, but I don't

think I am justified in doing so without consulting

our engineers.

Mr. Borden : I think that is a good idea. Let the

record show, if your Honor please, that by suggest-

ing that we are willing to submit to the jurisdiction

of the Court, that we do not do so until we actually

do so.

The Referee : Yes, I imderstand that. Suppose I

continue [191] this matter for a week or ten days?

Mr. Pallette : Could it be continued for a shorter

time than that. We have a hearing set before the

State Lands Commission some time during the

middle of next week at which time we hope to get

the consent of the State to proceed.

The Referee : You are not going to proceed imtil

you do that?

Mr. Pallette : We are closed down. We have been

closed down for about a week, and we have no in-

tention of proceeding now. We hope to work out

an agreement with the Chairman of the State Lands

Commission some time during the week. I suggest

a continuance be granted until Tuesday or Wed-

nesday.

The Referee : Of this next week %

Mr. Pallette: Yes.

Mr. Dechter: Of the coming week, or the week

following ?

Mr. Pallette : Next Tuesday or next Wednesday.

Mr. Borden: I don't think it would take any

time at all.
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Mr. Dechter: I suggest we make it Wednesday,

your Honor.

The Referee: Well, due to the condition of my
calendar I will continue it until May 1st, in the

afternoon, 2 :00 P. M.

Mr. Rifkin: Do I understand that until that

time there will be no resumption of drilling?

Mr. Pallette: That is correct, we will consent to

not re-drill before next Wednesday, that is, to make

any holes.

The Referee : Very well.

(Whereupon an adjournment was taken to

the hour of 2:00 P. M., May 1st, 1940.) [192]

Los Angeles, California.

Wednesday, May 1, 1940.

2:00 o'clock, P. M. Session.********
The Referee: Have you accomplished anything

in the matter of Jack Dave Sterling?

Mr. Rifkin: Yes, your Honor. We have reached

a stipulation that an injunction may be issued by

the Court against the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation.

We have already given the specific language to the

reporter and I would like him at this time to read

it to the Court.

The Referee : Is the stipulation generally agreed

to between counsel?

Mr. Borden: Yes.

The Referee : You may state generally what it is.
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Mr. Borden : We have stipulated as to the order.

We do not concede jurisdiction of the Court. We
are going to agree that we will not review the order

of Court and will be bound by the order. However,

I make that statement because we do not want to

generally concede jurisdiction.

The Referee: You may review any order this

Court makes I would welcome a review—but if I

were going to be reviewed on a question of juris-

diction I would want to give serious consideration

to the question.

Mr. Borden: I will say you will not be required

to do so; but we do not w^ant to submit to any pro-

ceedings in a [193] court where we are strangers.

Mr. Rifkind: I would like to have the reporter

read aloud our stipulation.

The Referee: Very well.

Mr. Borden : I agree with you, but I wanted our

position made perfectly clear.

(Whereupon the stipulation referred to was

read by the reporter, as follows:)

"Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, its superin-

tendent, agents and employees, shall be re-

strained and enjoined from drilling, re-drilling

or sidetracking its Petroleum Well, also known

as Fee No. 1 Well at Huntington Beach, Cali-

fornia, so that it comes closer than 200 feet

from the Huntington Shore Well measured on

a horizontal plane at any point below the depth

of 3800 feet below sea level as the course of

the Huntington Shore Well is shown on the

plat or chart marked Trustee's Exhibit 5.
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^'In determining whether such drilled, re-

drilled or sidetracked portion of Petroleum

Well, also known as Fee No. 1 Well approaches

within 200 feet of the Huntington Shore Well,

measured as above set forth, the course of the

Himtington Shore Well in said plat shall be as

dilineated on said plat and shall be conclusive

as to the parties; and the distance therefrom

shall be conclusively determined by plotting the

course of the drilled, re-drilled or sidetracked

portion of said [194] Fee No. 1 Well on said

plat, based upon single shot surveys taken dur-

ing the course of the drilling, re-drilling or

sidetracking of the Petroleum Well, also known

as Fee No. 1 Well, at approximately every 100

feet, which single shot surveys shall be made

available to the Trustee in Bankruptcy or his

representatives as the same are from time to

time taken and made;

"That the circulating fluid in drilling, re-

drilling, or sidetracking of said Petroleum

Well, also known as Fee No. 1 Well, shall be

virgin crude oil maintained at a grade and

gravity consistent with good oil practice in

said field, and that no mud or other foreign

substances of any kind shall be used in lieu

or such circulating fluid, provided that a sub-

stitute circulating fluid may be used as may
be mutually agreed to in writing between the

petroleum engineers for the respective parties

thereto."
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Mr. Rifkind: Now, I think there should be no

cementing in the well unless agreed to between the

engineers of the parties. I understand you do not

contemplate any cementing and there shall be none

unless that becomes a matter of discussion?

Mr. Templeton: Or unless required by law or

some legally constituted authority.

Mr. Rifkind: If you engineers can agree that it

is good practice, all right. [195]

Mr. Anderson: On the other hand, suppose they

can't agree?

Mr. Rifkind: We will have to worry about that

later; but your superintendent here now says you

do not contemplate using any cement.

Mr. Anderson: But you never know what will

develop.

Mr. Templeton: Should we develop a hole in

the casing above our present cement shut-off it may
become necessary to place a cement job in that

portion of the hole, which should not in any way

jeopardize the Huntington Shore Well.

Mr. Rifkind: Well, that would develop a new

consideration. Right now it is not present, and when

it develops it should be made a subject of inquiry.

The Referee: Why not put it in this form, if

you are going to put it in at all

:

That application, if it could not be agreed

upon, could be made to the Court in the way of

a petition.

Mr. King: I believe the Division of Oil and Gas

could take care of that.
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Mr. Rifkind : If the petroleum engineers for the

parties cannot agree to the use of concrete, in the

event both engineers deem it necessary, the matter

may be submitted to the Court, if necessary.

Mr. Pallette: What about the Division of Oil

and Gas clamping down on us?

Mr. Rifkind: If they clamp down on you then

there is no [196] necessity for a hearing, but on the

other hand we may want to inquire into it.

Mr. Anderson: I think Mr. King will advise

you there will be no need for cement in the pro-

ductive interval. We do not contemplate going-

through the productive zone. There is no w^ater

below that horizon.

Mr. Rifkind : Is there any reason why you could

not submit that to our petroleum engineer, and he

may not raise the question; but on the other hand,

if he does raise the question, you will have to get

the permission of the Division of Oil and Gas.

Mr. Pallette: Make that in the alternative.

Mr. Rifkind: Before you do any cementing that

you submit it to our petroleum engineer for con-

sideration, and if there is any question, that we

come back here and submit the proposition to the

Court.

Mr. Pallette : Or to the Division of Oil and Gas.

Mr. Rifkind: All right.

The Referee: Is that stipulation agreeable, gen-

tlemen ?

Mr. Borden: Yes.

Mr. Rifkind : We will prepare an order.
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The Referee : Yqyj well, prepare a formal order.

Mr. Rifkind : It will be approved as to form and

contents by both sides.

Now, I want to introduce as Trustee's exhibit

next in order this plat showing among other things

the course of the [197] Huntington Shore A¥ell and

the course of the old Bolsa Chica Well.

Mr. Pallette : The present course.

Mr. Rifkind: The present course of the Bolsa

Chica Well, known as Petroleum Well, and also

known as Fee No. 1 Well.

The Referee: The plat will be marked Trustee's

Exhibit No. 5.

(The document referred to is marked Trustee's

Exhibit No. 5, in evidence.)
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[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 30, 1940. Ernest R.

Utley, Referee.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 31, 1940. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. [198]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OP PROCEED-
INGS IN RE: TRUSTEE VS. BOLSA
CHICA OIL CORPORATION.

Los Angeles, California.

Thursday, September 26, 1940; Monday, Septem-

ber 30, 1940; Tuesday, October 1, 1940.

Appearances

:

Elizabeth R. Hensel and William H. Cree, Esq.,

appearing specially for M. M. McCallen Cor-

poration, McVicar and Rood, H. H. McVicar,
C. M. Rood and W. H. Cree.

Overton, Lyman and Plumb, by Eugene Overton,

Esq. and Warren S. Pallette, Esq., for Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation.

Joseph J. Rifkind, Esq. and Raphael Dechter, Esq.,

for Hubert F. Laugharn, Esq., Trustee.

W. H. Abrams, Esq., for Division of Oil and Gas.

[199]
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Los Angeles, California.

Thursday, September 26, 1940.

10:00 O'clock, A. M. Session.

The Referee: Jack Dave Sterling.

Mr. Rifkind: Ready.

The Referee: You may proceed in this matter.

Mr. Cree: My name is William H. Cree, Attor-

ney at Law, 1216 Security Building, Long Beach.

I am appearing here specially for M. M. McCallen

Corporation, McVicar and Rood, H. H. McVicar,

'C. M. Rood, and myself, to object to the jurisdiction

of the Court to hear and dispose of this matter,

and at this time I was asked to associate Mrs.

Hensel, one of your local bar, as coimsel for myself

and the other defendants I just named.

The Referee: May we have the other repre-

sentations ?

Mr. Overton: Overton, Lyman and Plumb are

appearing for Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation and

appearing specially, represented by Mr. Pallette

and Mr. Overton. I am Mr. Overton and this is Mr.

Pallette. [200]

The Referee: As I recall, when this injunction

was issued counsel appearing at that time for the

respondents objected to the jurisdiction of the

Court. I think the Court stated at that time and

I think the record will so show the Court stated it

doubted its jurisdiction to prevent the drilling of

the well so long as it did not interfere \\nth [208]

the bankrupt's property, that it was only in con-

nection with any interference of the bankrupt's
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property that the Court might have jurisdiction of

the matter. After the objection to the jurisdiction

was overruled counsel who then appeared, together

with Mr. Rifkind, got together and worked out the

details of the restraining order.

Mr. Rifkind: That is correct.

Mr, Dechter: I might state, your Honor, counsel

in open court said they would consent to an injunc-

tion being granted along the lines stated in the

order.

The Referee : Yes, that is correct.

Mr. Dechter: In other words, there was a con-

tinuance had for the purpose of having Mr. Borden

discuss the matter with the engineer of the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation to work out how many feet

the Bolsa Chica Well should stay away from the

Huntington Shore Well. That was the only ques-

tion, if we could get together on the number of feet

they would consent to the order, and mud not being

used. Then they got together with the engineer

Miss Hensel: The order itself by its terms spe-

cifically reserves the right to objecting coimsel, or

reserves to them the right to object to the juris-

diction.

Mr. Dechter: I don't agree with coimsel.

Miss Hensel: After that later in the order the

Court does overrule the objection.

Mr. Dechter: In the order itself, in addition to

what [209] took place in court it states they con-

sented to the jurisdiction of this Court to make the

order in question.
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Miss Hensel: Yes, but I submit

Mr. Dechter: But reserved the right to object to

the general jurisdiction of the Court as to other

matters.

Mr. Rifkind: To keep the matter straight I will

read from page 83 of the transcript.

Miss Hansel: I would rather straighten out the

matter of the order first, and not from the tran-

script.

Mr. Rifkind: I will read from the transcript,

page 83, line 2:

''The Referee: From what I know about

this case here is the way I feel now: I don't

think the bankruptcy court has any jurisdic-

tion to tell a stranger where or how he should

drill his well so long as that stranger does not

interfere or trespass upon the rights of the

bankrupt. Up to that point this Court has not

an>i:hing to say. If there is a danger of tres-

passing or damaging the bankrupt's property,

I think then the Court would have jurisdiction,

that is, covering that particular phase of it.

That is my offhand impression.

Mr. Borden : Well, I think there is no doubt

if we were actually trespassing upon the prop-

erty of the bankrupt, there is no doubt in my
mind but what 'the Court would have ample

opportunity to restrain us, but here we are

drilling in separate lots where there is no [210]

interference at all. We are doing the same

thing they have done since the matter has been
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in bankruptcy, your Honor. They have drilled

within one hundred feet of us, according to the

testimony before the Court, but now they seek

to enjoin us from proceeding to do the very

same thing, to re-drill and place our well on

production.

The Referee : I can say right now this court

will not attempt to prevent you from re-drill-

ing, but there is a certain course which this

Court may prevent you from taking.

Mr. Pallette: I think we can stipulate to

an order, if you want to make one, restraining

us from coming within a certain distance."

Then I will skip on to page 85

:

^

' Mr. Pallette : I suggested we would be will-

ing to stipulate that an injunction be granted

restraining us from coming within a reasonable

distance of the well.

Mr. Dechter: All right.

Mr. Pallette: I think we will have to con-

sult Avith our engineers as to what they deem

to be a reasonable distance.

Mr. Dechter: If you make it one hundred

feet it will end the matter.

The Referee: Is it one hundred or two hun-

dred?

Mr. Dechter: Within a radius of one hun-

dred feet [211] or a diameter of two hundred

feet.

Mr. Borden: No one ever contended we

would get any closer than that.
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The Referee: Suppose, gentlemen, I con-

tinue this matter and then you can see if you

can get together on an order?

Mr. Pallette: I wouldn't be surprised but

what we could stipulate on one hundred feet,

but I don't think I am justified in doing so

without consulting our engineers.

Mr. Borden: I think that is a good idea.

Let the record show, if your Honor please, that

by suggesting that we are willing to submit to

the jurisdiction of the Court, that we do not

do so until we actually do so."

And then the Referee on page 86

:

"The Referee: Well, due to the condition

of my calendar I will continue it until May 1st,

in the afternoon, 2 :00 P. M.

Mr. Rifkind: Do I miderstand that until

that time there will be no resmnption of drill-

ing?

Mr. Pallette: That is correct, we will con-

sent to not re-drill before next Wednesday, that

is, to make any hole.

The Referee: Very well."

Whereupon an adjournment was taken to the

hour of 2 :00 P. M. May 1st, 1940. [212]

Now, skipping to page 87 of the transcript at the

session of Wednesday, May 1st, 1940 at 2:00 o'clock,

P. M.:

"The Referee: Have you accomplished any-

thing in the mattei' of Jack Dave Sterling?
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Mr. Rifkind: Yes, your Honor. We have

reached a stipulation that an injunction may
be issued by the Court against the Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation. We have already given the

specific language to the reporter and I would

like him at this time to read it to the Court.

The Referee: Is the stipulation generally

agreed to between counsel?

Mr. Borden: Yes.

The Referee : You may state generally what

it is.

Mr. Borden: We have stipulated as to the

order. We do not concede jurisdiction of the

Court. We are going to agree that we will not

review the order of Court and will be bound by

the order. However, I make that statement be-

cause we do not want to generally concede

jurisdiction.

The Referee: You may review any order

this Court makes—I would welcome a review

—

but if I were going to be reviewed on a ques-

tion of jurisdiction I would want to give serious

consideration to the question.

Mr. Borden: I will say you will not be re-

quired to do so; but we do not want to submit

to any proceedings in [213] a court where we
are strangers.

Mr. Rifkind: I w^ould like to have the re-

porter read aloud our stipulation.

The Referee: Very w^ell.

Mr. Borden: I agree with you, but I wanted

our position made perfectly clear.



170 George T. Goggin vs.

(Whereupon the stipulation referred to

was read by the reporter, as follows:)

'Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, its superin-

tendent, agents and employees, shall be re-

strained and enjoined from drilling, re-drill-

ing or sidetracking its Petroleum Well, also

known as Fee No. 1 Well at Huntington

Beach, California, so that it comes closer

than 200 feet from the Hmitington Shore

Well measured on a horizontal plane at any

point below the depth of 3800 feet below sea

level as the course of the Huntington Shore

Well is shown on the plat or chart marked

Trustee's Exhibit 5.

'In determining whether such drilled, re-

drilled or sidetracked portion of Petroleum

Well, also known as Fee No. 1 Well ap-

proaches within 200 feet of the Himtington

Shore Well, measured as above set forth, the

course of the Huntington Shore Well in said

plat shall be as delineated on said plat and

shall be conclusive as to the parties; and the

distance therefrom shall be conclusively de-

termined by plotting [214] the course of the

drilled, re-drilled or sidetracked portion of

said Fee No. 1 Well on said plat, based upon

single shot surveys taken during the course

of the drilling, re-drilling or sidetracking of

the Petroleum Well, also known as Fee No.

1 well, at ay^proximately every 100 feet, which

single shot surveys shall be made available
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to the Trustee in Bankruptcy or his repre-

sentatives as the same are from time to time

taken and made;

'That the circulating fluid in drilling, re-

drilling, or sidetracking of said Petroleum

Well, also known as Fee No. 1 Well, shall be

virgin crude oil maintained at a grade and

gravity consistent with good oil practice in

said field, and that no mud or other foreign

substances of any kind shall be used in lieu

of such circulating fluid, provided that a sub-

stitute circulating fluid may be used as may

be mutually agreed to in writing between the

petroleum engineers for the respective parties

thereto.'
"

Now, that covers that point.

Now, in connection with that I would like to

point out to the Court, and I think in this matter

the Court will have to take judicial knowledge that

an order was prepared by counsel for the Trustee,

that is an injunction and that objections were inter-

posed thereto by counsel for the Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, and your Honor permitted a confer-

ence [215] in chambers at which Mr. Borden, at-

torney for the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, and

others, were present, and I was present on behalf

of the Trustee, at which time certain revisions were

made in the order, that is the injunction as origi-

nally presented, and they were incorporated in the

final order.
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Going back to the transcript, page 91, by the way,

and referring to the stipulation which I have just

read, line 19, page 91:

^'The Referee: Is that stipulation agreeable,

gentlemen ?

Mr. Borden: Yes.

Mr. Rifkind: We will prepare an order.

The Referee: Very well, prepare a formal

order.

Mr. Rifkind : It will be approved as to form

and contents by both sides."

Now, in conformity Avith that we prepared an order

and the order was revised and as revised the in-

jmiction as revised and signed by your Honor bears

this notation on the last page:

"Approved as to form and contents: Joseph

J. Rifkind and Raphael Dechter by Joseph J.

Rifkind, attorneys for Trustee in Bankruptcy.

Overton, Lyman and Plumb, by Cecil A. Bor-

den, attorneys for Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion, a corporation."

Now, in connection with that I thmk the Court

should [216] have in mind the preamble of the in-

junction :

''The verified petition of Hubert F. Laug-

harn, as Trustee- in Bankruptcy in the above

entitled matter, and the order to show cause

issued thereon directed to the Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, a corporation, came on regularly

for hearing before Hon. Ernest R. Utley, Ref-
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eree in Bankruptcy, on April 26, 1940, at two

o'clock P. M. and after being partially heard

on said date, was continued for further hear-

ing to and the hearing thereof was concluded

on May 1, 1940, at two o'clock P. M. The Trus-

tee in Bankruptcy appeared through and was

represented by Joseph J. Rifkind and Raphael

Dechter, his attorneys, and the Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, a corporation, appeared through

and was represented by Cecil A. Borden and

Warren S. Pallette, of Overton, Lyman &

Plumb, its attorneys. The Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, upon the calling of the matter, an-

nounced that it was appearing specially for the

sole purpose of objecting to the jurisdiction of

the court to make any order affecting said cor-

poration; that thereupon the court informed

counsel that it would withhold ruling upon the

question of jurisdiction until sufficient evidence

was introduced to determine the question; that

oral and documentary evidence w^as introduced

upon the part of the Trustee in Bankruptcy

and the witnesses called on behalf of the Trus-

tee in Bankruptcy were [217] cross-examined

by the attorneys for the Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration; the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, hav-

ing at the conclusion of the introduction of

oral and documentary evidence upon behalf of

the Trustee in Bankruptcy, stipulated in open

court to the granting of the injimction as here-

inafter more particularly set forth, the Bolsa
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Chica Oil Corporation stating that such stipu-

lation was subject to the objection to the juris-

diction of the court and that such stipulation

was not intended to confer general jurisdic-

tion on the court; the court having been fully

advised in the premises and the court having

overruled the objection of Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration to the jurisdiction of the court,

It Is, Therefore, Ordered as Follows:"

Then I will skip portions of the injimction which

I do not deem pertinent at this moment, and turn-

ing to page 2 which incorporates that stipulation

made in open court and that particular portion of

it, to-wit:

"That the circulating fluid used in drilling,

re-drilling or sidetracking of said 'Petroleum

Weir, also known as 'Fee No. 1 Well', shall

be virgin crude oil maintained at a grade and

gravity consistent with good oil practice in said

field, and that no mud or other foreign sub-

stances of any kind shall be used in lieu or as

part of such circulating fluid, provided [218]

that a substitute circulating fluid may be used

as may be mutually agreed to in writing be-

tween the petroleum engineers for the respec-

tive parties thereto."

Mr. Pallette: I would like the record to show

Mr. Overton and I are appearing for Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation, Mr. Simmons, Mr. Anderson and

myself, and Mr. Cree and his associates are repre-
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senting the other respondents. Mr, Overton stated

we are appearing specially and I want to amplify

that and state we are appearing specially to con-

tinue at this time our objection to the jurisdiction

of the Court which was not waived at the former

hearing.

Miss Hensel: On behalf of Mr. Cree and myself

and the clients whom we represent we urge the mat-

ter of the jurisdiction of the Court most strenu-

ously. There can be no question that our clients

waived jurisdiction at the prior hearing. We are

simply wanting to point out to the Court Bolsa

Chica itself did not waive that objection at the prior

hearing, and now under our claim of right to the

property formerly owned and operated by Bolsa

Chica under an adverse title we certainly are ob-

jecting to the jurisdiction and appear specially only

for the purpose of determining w^hether the Court

has jurisdiction or not.

The Referee: Any argument?

Mr. Dechter: I think it would be preferable to

defer the argument imtil the close. We have quite

a number of cases to cite to your Honor. Even in

cases where the [219] injunction has not been con-

sented to, where there might have been some attack

made on the jurisdiction of the Court, that no ap-

peal having been taken from the order even though

the order was clearly erroneously made the parties

are bound by the injunction and cannot violate the

injunction willfully like it has in this case. If they

feel the injunction is erroneous they should apply
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to have it modified or vacated. It is our contention

as far as McVicar and Rood are concerned, they

are agents and accessories for the Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation in the attempt to circumvent this in-

junction; because the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation

felt it could not do it directly it did it indirectly.

Even though they were agents and accessories they

would be bomid by it.

Miss Hensel : In the first place, counsel will have

first to prove that McVicar and Rood and the other

parties are accessories and agents of the Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation. In that case if they could so prove

it is conceivable the Court might have jurisdiction

to issue such an injunction as this against these

clients, but until it is proven beyond any doubt our

clients certainly cannot be subser\dent to such an

injunction, so we will object to the introduction of

any evidence on any ground except the single

ground of showing the connection between our

clients and the Bolsa Chica at this time.

Mr. Dechter: An injunction having been issued

and being in full force and effect we have only to

show the injunction [220] is being violated, and it

behooves the respondents and all of them to condone

their conduct and show it did not come within the

purview of the language of the injunction. We do

not have to connect them up. In other words, the

authorities we have, not only State Court but United

States Supreme Court and various Federal Court

cases are conclusive that this injunction is in full

force and effect not only on those named but those
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aiding and abetting those named. The only way

they can escape the full force and effect of it is to

take a review or appeal or some other appropriate

proceeding. They cannot as long as the injunction

is in full force and effect ignore, violate or disobey

it, and they cannot attack the jurisdiction of the

Court, the merits of the matter or the propriety

of the injmiction in a contempt proceeding.

I think we should present evidence, your Honor,

but if your Honor deems otherwise, we are pre-

pared with proper authorities to maintain our po-

sition.

Mr. Pallette : I think we are in position to show

anyway that Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation has made

a bona fide sale of the well and if that can be estab-

lished, as I believe it can, it won't be necessary for

you to rule on the stipulation as far as Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation is concerned.

Now, I suggest a stipulation with counsel reserv-

ing our objections to the jurisdiction and making

an objection to the introduction of any evidence to

be determined by the [221] ruling on the question

of jurisdiction, and if we are not successful in satis-

fying you on our position in the matter that we

reserve argument on the question of jurisdiction

until after the introduction of such evidence.

Mr. Dechter: We do not care to make any such

stipulation. We are contending the Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation is estopped from making any such

objection. As far as the Court ruling on the ob-

jection to the jurisdiction, it is well established in
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bankruptcy courts that the bankruptcy court has

the right to hear enough evidence to determine

whether the objection to the jurisdiction is bona fide

or not. In other words, you cannot make it on the

mere statement of counsel and not inquire into the

matter to determine w^hether it has or has not

jurisdiction. [222]

The Referee: Well, gentlemen. The Court will

overrule the objection to the jurisdiction without

prejudice to the right of the parties to renew

their objection at the close of the evidence. [226]

EARL ROSS,

called as a witness on behalf of the Trustee, being

first duly sworn, testified as follows:

The Referee: Give your full name to the re-

porter. A. Earl Ross.

The Referee: Where do you reside?

A. 121 Kansas Street, Arcadia.

Direct Examination

By Mr. Rifkind:

Q. What is your business or occupation

A. Superintendent of Production.

Q. Are you Superintendent of the Himtington

Shore Well at Himtington Beach, California'?

A. Yes sir.

Q. How long have you been Superintendent in

charge of the Huntington Shore Well?

A. Two years and a half.
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(Testimony of Earl Ross.)

Q. And are you familiar with the well Imown

as the Petroleum Well and also known as Fee No.

1 Well at Himtington Beach, California'?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And is that well in the vicinity of the Hunt-

ington [227] Shore Wellt A. Yes sir. [228]

Q. Do you know if any mud came into the

Hunting-ton Shore Well as the result of that re-

drilling? A. Yes sir.

Q. Do you know how much mud did get into tlie

Huntington Shore WelH A. 3700 feet. [232]

Q. A column of 3700 feet of mud?

A. Yes, 3700 feet of mud.

Q. And what was the effect of that column of

3700 feet of mud on the Huntington Shore Well?

A. It cut off all production and gas, shut the

gas off at 7 :30 in the morning and at 8 :15 we were

pumping mud.

The Referee: T^Hiat date was that?

A. June 8.

Q. This year? A. Yes sir, 1940.

Mr. Rifkind: Q. How long were you shut

down?

A. AYe ynimped until 11:00 o'clock and started

pulling the tubing and rods out and then we shut

dowT:i for eleven days.

The Referee: You say 11:00 o'clock in the

morning? A. Yes, 11:00 A. M.

Mr. Rifkind: Q. Now, Mr. Ross, how long

have you been engaged in the oil business?
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A. Since 1915.

Q. 1915. Has your experience been confined to

the oil fields of California? A. Yes sir.

Q. How long have you been acting in the capac-

ity of Superintendent?

A. Over four years. [233]

Q. Will you state to the Court what effect or

what consequences resulted from the use of mud
as a drilling fluid and how it would and did affect

the Huntington Shore Well and what the continued

use of it might result in doing?

A. Well, it shuts the gas and oil off. We shut the

well [236] down for eight days waiting for the

casing to be cemented. We then went in to see if

there was any mud in the hole and foimd there

was and went on to bale and wash it out, and it

went on production on the 26th of June.

The Referee: You put the Himtington Shore

Well back on production?

A. We put the Himtington Shore Well back on

production on the 26th of June at 10:00 P. M.

Q. Was it necessary for you to do this baling

and so forth before you put it on production?

A. Yes.

Q. Explain what you mean by baling?

A. That is how you clean your wells out, you

have what you call a baler, two joints of pipe. You

go in and bale your well and keep baling it to see

if you can clean your mud all out. We cleaned it to

the bottom and there was no oil in it. We started
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to clean out the perforations and the bit to get the

oil to come back.

Mr. Rifkind: Q. N'ow, if I understand you

correctly, as the result of the infiltration of inud

through the oil sand and up into the Huntington

Shore Well, you were forced to shut down the oper-

ation of the Himtington Shore Well on or about

June 7, 1940? A. Yes sir.

Q. And you did not resume or were not able to

resume operations on the Huntington Shore Well

until on or about [237] June 27, 1940?

A. Yes.

Q. Is that correct? A. Yes.

Q. At the time the Huntington Shore Well was

forcibly shut down, what was its production?

A. It was doing 265 to 270 barrels a day.

Mr. Rifkind: Q. Now, when the Huntington

Shore Well was put back on production on Jime 27,

1940, what was its production?

A. The first 24 hours was 168 barrels.

Q. Now, between that date what Avork did you do

on the Huntington Shore Well to remove the mud
and foreign substances that had come into the well?

A. We were washing and baling.

Q. Aiid did that require labor and material and

any apparatus ? A. Yes.

Q. State to the Court what you mean by baling

and washing?

A. You have to have a crew of four men and

a machine to [238] pull your baler. You have a sand
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line with a baler and you use your tubiuG: to run

your washer in on to clean your perforations out.

Q. As a matter of fact, you alternately wash and

bale?

A. Yes, you j2^o in and wash for twenty-four

hours and then you ^2:0 in and bale.

Q. And all during- that time your well is off

production ? A. Yes.

Q. Your tubing and rods have been left out of

the well and are on the surface of the ground?

A. Yes.

Q. Or in the derrick rack?

A. Yes. Well, while you are baling and washing-

you use your tubing.

Q. You say that well was off production for ap-

proximately twenty days, is that right?

A. Yes sir.

Q. And that the daily production while that

well was shut down was approximately 165 barrels

per day?

A. When it first went off it was at 265 barrels

per day.

Q. I mean 265.

The Referee: It didn't do anything while it

was shut off?

A. Not a thing. For the nineteen or twenty days

there was no oil at all.

Mr. Rifkind: Q. Did yon get any gas during

the twenty days while it was shut down? [239]

A. No.
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Q. You lost all the gas? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know what the former income of

the wet and dry gas is ?

A. No, I don't. I didn't check Avith Texaco on

that.

Q. Now, did you examine the mud which you

took out of the Huntington Shore Well and com-

pare it with the mud that was being used by the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, or in the re-drilling

of the Bolsa Chica Well? A. Yes sir.

Q. And how did they compare?

A. The same.

Q. Well, prior to the re-drilling by the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, was there any mud in the

Huntinsrton Shore Well? A. No sir.

Q. How much was it cutting?

A. Four to tive per cent was the most the well

ever cut.

Q. And that was water, was it not?

A. 4.5 is the most it ever cut before of water.

Q. And none of that cut was mud or sand?

A. No sir.

Q. Or anything like that. Now, Mr. Boss, what

effect did this mud have upon the tubing and rods

of the Himtington Shore Well, or what effect would

the continued use of mud as [240] a re-drilling

fluid by the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation have upon

the tubing and rods and pump of the Huntington

Shore Well?
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A. Why, if we had mud in it would ruin it.

They would not be no good.

Q. In other w^ords, as long as the Bolsa Cliiea

Well continued to use mud the Huntington Shore

Well cannot operate *?

A. Not if it is in the same chamiel.

Q. And have you in your experience known of

wells which have been completely lost by reason of

freezing and clogging due to the use or seepage of

mud as a drilling fluid? A. Some, yes.

Q. Mud, when used as a drilling fluid, is in

liquid form? A. Yes.

Q. And it accumulates a certain amount of what

is commonly known as cuttings'? A. Yes,

Q. And sand? A. Yes.

Q. And other foreign substances'?

A. Yes.

Q. And the mud carries those foreign substances

through the oil sands up and into tlie well ?

A. Yes.

Q. And those foreign substances work between

the tubing and rods and get into the pum]), is that

correct? [241] A. That is it.

Q. Now, these oil sands, are they porous?

A. Yes, they channel. [242]

Q. Now, Mr. Ross, when this mud infiltrates

and passes through the porous oil sands you have

mentioned, does a certain amomit of it settle and

harden in the oil sand?
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A. A certain amount hardens and packs in and

shuts it off.

Q. When the mud with its cuttings and sand and

other foreign substances gets into the adjoining

well which is on production, doesn't a certain

amoimt settle to the bottom and cling to the sides

and clog up the tubing and rods in operation?

A. Yes sir.

Q. In other words, while the mud is in liquid

form in the process of re-drilling it solidifies when

it leaves the well that is being re-drilled, is that

it? A. Yes sir. [243]

Cross Examination

By Mr. Pallette

:

Q. I believe you testified, Mr. Ross, that the oil

comes into the hole through channels in the sands?

A. Yes. [252]

Q. Your well was on the pump on the 8th day

of Jime, along in that time? A. Yes sir.

Q. And the oil is sucked out of the hole through

these channels into the hole and through the action

of the plunger of the pump? A. Yes sir.

Q. Did you shut down your well or was your

well shut down at the time the mud appeared inside

the hole? A. No sir.

Q. Or was it pumping? A. Pmnping.

Mr. Pallette: That is all. [253]

Q. And when you say the Bolsa Chica Well lost

circulation and the Huntington Shore gained it, the
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circulation disappeared from the Bolsa Chica Well

and came in the Huntington Shore Well?

A. Yes sir.

Q. And at the time that took place Avas there

any mud of any kind being used on the Huntington

Shore Well? A. No sir.

Q. And the minute that mud appeared it started

to affect the operations of the Himtington Shore

Well? A. Yes.

Q. And pretty soon you had no oil at all in the

well? A. No oil, and pumping mud.

Q. You say Mr. Anderson told you they lost

circulation at 4413 feet. From your experience in

the Huntington Beach field, do you know whether

4413 feet is a part of the producing-oil zone in the

Huntington Beach oil field?

A. It is at the top strata of the gas zone.

Q. It is a part of the oil zone?

A. Yes. [254]

VERNON KING,

called as a witness on behalf of the Trustee, being

first duly sworn, testified as follows:

The Referee: Give your full name to the re-

porter? A. Vernon King.

Q. And your address?

A. 401 Haas Building.

The Referee: You may proceed.
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Direct Examination

By Mr. Dechter:

Q. What is your occupation or profession?

A. Petroleum geologist and engineer.

Q. Are you a graduate of any school in which

you majored in geology or petroleum engineering'?^

A. Yes sir.

Q. What imiversity'? A. Stanford.

Q. How long have you been engaged as a geolo-

gist and petroleum engineer? A. Since 1919.

Q. How long have you been practicing that pro-

fession in California? A. Since that time.

Q. Are you familiar with the Huntington Shore

oilfield? A. lam. [256]

Q, How long have you been engaged as a petro-

leum engineer and geologist in the Himtington

Beach oil field?

A. The first well there was in 1920 or '21; 1921,

I think.

Q. You have been engaged there continuously?

A. No, intermittently.

Q. Are you also familiar with the portion of the

Huntington Beach field which is called the tideland

area? A. I am.

Q. How long have you been engaged in that

particular area?

A. Since,—roughly, since 1932. I think it was

discovered about that time.
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Q. Are you familiar with the Himtington Shore

Well?

A. I am. I am familiar with the re-drilling of

it since 1937.

Q. In other words, you have been acting as

petroleum engineer on the Huntington Shore Well

from the time it was re-drilled in 1937?

A. Yes, I was the engineer on the well at the

time it was re-drilled in 1937.

Q. Have you been employed by the State of

California as Consulting Engineer in connection

with the Huntington Beach area? [257]

A. Well, I am not employed by them. I am on

their consulting staff.

Q. I see. Are you familiar with the Bolsa Chica

Petroleum Fee Well?

A. I am generally familiar with the operations

carried on there in June.

Q. You are also familiar with the general area

in the Himtington Beach tield? A. Yes.

Q. And the wells producing therefrom. In other

words, you have had access to the drilling records

and production records?

A. Access and examination of the completed

data, and have worked on a good many of the wells

as ejigineer.

Q. You have made an examination and analysis

of the surveys, plats, courses and charts on file with

the Division of Lands of the State of California
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showing the costs of the Petroleum Well at Hunt-

ington Beach, California! A. I have.

Q. You are also familiar with the nature of the

stratigraphy, as it is termed, of the oil sands in

the Huntington Beach area? A. Yes sir.

Q. Were you employed as petroleum engineer

of the Huntington Shore Well on or about June of

1940 when a column of mud appeared in the Hunt-

ington Shore Well while it was on [258] production

and pumping oil? A. I was.

Q. Will you please state to the Court just what

you observed as the result of your investigation?

A. Briefly, the Huntington Shore Well was on

steady production and had been for a number of

years producing at the rate of variously from 275

to 300 barrels per day. It was pumping at that

rate. The well suddenly failed—producing both oil

and gas, and the well suddenly, on about June 8,

shut off the gas or the gas stopped coming in and

in about an hour and a half started to produce

pure mud. Within a couple of hours a pulling unit

had arrived and the rods and tubing pulled out and

we found the mud was up to about 1900 feet from

the surface, or about 3700' feet of mud.

Q. In other words, a column of mud extending

from the bottom of the hole up 3700 feet?

A. Yes, up to the casing. That is the measured

depth of the hole.
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Q. What would have happened to the tubing and

rods if the tubmg and rods had not been removed

within an hour after that mud was discovered in

the well?

A. Generally they stick. You don't pull them

out.

Q. If the tubmg and rods should be frozen, as

the expression is used, by the hardening of the mud
that infiltrated into the Huntington Shore Well,

what would have happened to the Himtington Shore

Well? [259]

A. Anything from a fishing job to an abandon-

ment of the w^ell, depending on how much of that

mud could get out or whether you could get it all

out.

Q. Would you say there was grave danger of

the well being lost by reason of the infiltration of

mud? A. Yes, there is always a danger. [260]

Q. And calling your attention to the point at

4413 feet where the Bolsa Chica Petroleum Fee

Well enters tlie oil sand can you tell us what dis-

tance the bottom of the Bolsa Chica Well at that

depth was from the producing oil sands of the

Himtington Shore Well?

A. The well was approximately scaled on the

surface, scaled about 110 feet from the casing of

the Huntington Shore Well. That casing, however,

is blank down a couple of hundred feet below that,

I should say roughly 110 feet apart, and in the
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hole the mud would probably travel another 150 or

[261] 200 feet in the casing to get into the hole.

It would be a right-angle bend there. [262]

Q. What was the effect of the infiltration of this

column of mud, 3700 feet high, in the Huntington

Shore Well on the production of oil from the Himt-

ington Shore Well?

A. It absolutely cut it off. There was no produc-

tion at all either of oil or gas.

Q. And what was necessary to be done to bring

the Huntington Shore Well back on production

after that occurred •?

A. It was necessary to clean that mud out and

that was done by alternately baling and washing.

Q. Are you able to estimate the expense the

Huntington Shore Well was put to in replacing

the Himtington Shore Well on production?

A. The actual baling and cleaning operations

took some twenty days, something over—about

thirty-two to thirty-five hundred dollars. Then there

was a loss of oil there for those twenty days which

would amount to about 6,000 barrels of oil. The

market price w^as ninety cents.

Q. Was there any permanent effect on the

amount the Huntington Shore Well was capable of

producing after this [264] mud had entered and

after the well had been cleaned out and placed on

production again?
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A. Yes, the well after two months is making

fifty to seventy-five barrels less than it did before,

and making less gas than it did before.

Q. And in your opinion is that decrease in the

production of oil and gas in any wise chargeable

to the infiltration of mud in the Huntington Shore

Well? A. I believe it is.

Q. Isn't it a fact that mud has a tendency to

shut off the oil channels which have been constantly

piling and widening and opening?

A. Once sand is mudded up there are certain

physical conditions that govern the removal of that

sand and mud. We do not always understand ex-

actly what they are and sometimes when we do we

cannot correct them, but it generally happens once

a well has been mudded off, especially a well that

has been producing, some rejuvenation of that well,

or complete rejuvenation of that well, is not pos-

sible. [265]
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(TRUSTEE'S EXHIBIT NO. 1)

Hubert F. Laugharn

Trustee in Bankruptcy in the Matter of

Jack Dave Sterling, Bankrupt.

September 26, 1940

To

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation

In re: Huntington Shore Well, Huntington Beach, Calif.

Loss of production of oil for 20 days, June 7 to

June 27, 1940, 265 barrels per day at 90^ per

barrel _ [ $ 4,770.00

Loss of production of wet and dry gas, June 7 to

June 27, 1940, 20 days 248.00

Loss of production of oil as result of reduction in

output, June 27 to Sept. 1, 1940, 3,700 barrels

@ 90^ 3,330.00

Loss of production of wet and dry gas as result of

decline, June 27 to Sept. 1, 1940 _ 550.00

Pulling, baling, washing and other materials, labor

and technical assistance in removing mud, sand

and other foreign substances 3,642.00

$12,540.00

[Endorsed]: Trustee's Exhibit No. 1. Filed

Sept. 26, 1940. Ernest R. Utley, Eeferee.

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 31, 1940. E. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. [96]

Mr. Dechter: Q. Mr. King, did you prior to

June 7, 1940, give your consent in writing to the

Bolsa Chica Corporation for the use of drilling



194 George T. Goggin vs.

[Testimony of Vernon King.)

mud in their Bolsa Chica Well? A. No sir.

Q. Did you at any time prior to June 7, 1940^

verbally give your consent to their using drilling

mud in their well 1

A. In using drilling mud in their oil sand?

Q. In other words, calling your attention to the

language of the order for injunction, did you at

any time give your consent to use anything other

than crude oil while drilling in the oil sand?

A. No. At each time the question came up it

had come up of course there was to be virgin crude

oil to be used in the [269] oil sand. [270]

Cross Examination

By Mr. Pallette:

Q. I believe you testified you at no time gave

your consent to drilling with anything except virgin

crude oil in the oil sand? A. Yes.

Mr. Dechter: To which we object as incompe-

tent unless the consent had been in writing and

the writing is exhibited to the witness, the order

for injunction calling for consent in writing.

The Referee: Objection overruled.

The Repoii:er: ''Yes."

Mr. Pallette: Q. I take it from the fact you

limited your answei* to the oil sand that you did

consent to the use of mud above the oil sand, that

is in the shale body?

Mr. Dechter: To which we object as immaterial.

All the respondents are being charged with is using
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drilling mud in the oil sand in violation of that

portion of the injunction which requires them to

use virgin crude oil.

Mr. Cree: If that is the case—well, go ahead.

Mr. Pallette: Your objection then is to the use

of mud in the oil sand?

Mr. Dechter

Mr. Pallette

Mr. Dechter

That is right.

And that is all?

In the oil zone. I want to retract

that statement. Mr. Rifkind calls my attention to

the fact the [272] injmiction is broader than that,

and I will withdraw my objection.

The Referee: The objection to the question is

overruled. Read the question.

(The reporter read the pending question as fol-

lows :

"Q. I take it from the fact you limited your

answer to the oil sand that you did consent to the

use of mud above the oil sand, that is in the shale

body?")

A. I was naturally at the well considerably, a

several number of times and in discussing those

things I referred them that I was under, working

under the injunction and that I could not except

by writing do or give them consent to use mud in

the oil zone.

Mr. Pallette : You mean in the oil zone ?

A. In the oil zone, yes, and since the mud was

discussed previous to the time or during the time

the injunction was being sought. That was under-

stood by both parties.
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Mr. Pallette: Will you read that answer*?

(The reporter read as requested.)

The Referee: Do I understand by that answer

you never at any time gave any consent in writing

to use mud?
A. No. It was recognized by all parties mud was

being used until they reached the oil sand. Naturally,

they being the oil operators, it was incumbent on

them to tell just when they entered that zone.

The Referee : But you did not give them consent

yourself? [273]

A. No, no.

Mr. Pallette : Q. It is true, Mr. King, that you

were at the well, I won't say every day but several

days a week during the proceedings ?

A. Yes.

Q. And that all records and operations were

made available to you during that time by the

operators of the Bolsa Chica Well?

A. I think all of them.

Q. And all that you asked for? A. Yes.

Q. You were familiar with the fact that im-

mediately after circulation was lost it was necessary

for the Bolsa Chica to go back into the hole with

a mixture of Aquaj el in order to restore circulation?

A. Yes.

Q. And you were present at the well during

those operations? A. I was.

Q. And did you at any time discuss with Mr.

Anderson or Mr. Nichols what they were proj)osing



Bolsa Chica Oil Corp. et al. 197

[Testimony of Vernon King.)

to do at that time and how they were going to do it ?

A. Why yes. We had a number of discussions on

it and naturally wanted to be helpful and for that

reason we closed our well in for eight days so that

they might complete their operations even after

they had mudded our well up. [274]

Q. That is, completing their job by the use of

mud and Aquaj el to restore the necessary circula-

tion ? A. Yes.

Q. You knew^ in running their casing it was

necessary to restore circulation and in so doing they

were going to use mud and the mixture of Aquaj el?

A. Yes.

Q. You are also familiar with the fact that from

that time on for about approximately forty-five

days they continued to drill with mud?

A. In different holes. They had several different

holes there.

Q. In other words, I will reframe the question

—

A. Above the oil zone. They were above the oil

sand most of the time.

Q. They did not approach the oil sand again

until the latter part of July, and from the 8th of

June until the latter part of July they were not

in the oil sand and at all times were drilling with

mud with your knowledge and consent?

Mr. Dechter: To which we object on the ground

it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial. This

witness would have no right to give any consent

except by a document in writing.
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The Referee: Objection sustained.

Mr. Pallette: May it please the Court, with ref-

erence to your rulini^ on that objection if I may
make a statement [275] with reference to it ?

The Referee : Very well.

Mr. Pallette: At the time this injunction was

agreed to we had a conference between the engineers

here during the afternoon, if you will recall, which

was solely with reference to the direction and course

of the well. The engineers eventually agreed on a

course that was satisfactory. We then started to

draft the form of the order, Mr. Rifkind did, and

he suddenly said that he wanted a provision there

with reference to the use of a circulating medium

restricting it to oil, which was completely outside

of any argument which had taken place up to that

time. Mr. King was present, Mr. Templeton, Mr.

Anderson and Mr. Jussen. As I recall the conversa-

tion was to the effect that if we would agree to a

clause being inserted in the injunction to the effect

we would not use anything but oil except with Mr.

King's consent, that we would have no difficulty if

something vmforeseen came up if we had to use

mud, that they were sure the engineers could get

together on it and work it out w^ithout any trouble.

The provision as to the writing was put in by Mr.

Rifkind without any discussion, purely as I saw

it as a matter of evidence, something to evidence

that consent. It does not go to the fact of the matter

that what we were doing was to be subject at all
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times to the supervision and control of Mr. King,

but if something came up, we had to back up to

cement he was to have supervision [276] over that.

If it turned out there w^as some circulating medium

better than oil, and there was considerable discus-

sion about the Shell patented medium w^hich might

be better, our engineer was to get together with him

and everybody was sure there would no difficulty.

The main argument was about the course, and we

did not consider there would be any question at

all about,—any serious question arise as to the use

of mud which could not be settled between the

engineers.

Subsequently, it turned out we could not use oil

in our operations in the shale. It is my understand-

ing that Mr. King was contacted, that our engineer

did not understand at the time it was necessary

to get his consent in writing, that he conferred at

all times with reference to w^hat he was going to do

with Mr. King, that Mr. King had knowledge of

what was going on for a period of approximately

forty-five days.

The Referee: Isn't that a matter of defense on

the part of the respondents to the order to show

cause rather than on the affirmative ?

Mr. Pallette : Well, on direct here it was brought

out he at no time consented in writing to the use

of mud. I am merely trying to bring out he did

consent to the use of mud in the shale body and

at no time saw any objection to the use of mud
in the shale body until the 31st of July and for a



200 George T. Goggin vs.

[Testimony of Vernon King.)

period of approximately two months with the

knowledge and [277] oral consent of Mr. King we
in good faith proceeded to drill in the shale body,

and when he eventually requested us to change to

oil when we got to the oil body we did change to oil.

Mr. Dechter: If counsel's statement is a state-

ment in the nature of an offer of proof we object

as incompetent and as being a collateral attempt to

impeach an order which has now become final, and

the only way of securing relief from this order is

by making an application to the Court. [278]

The Referee: I think I will let my ruling stand

as made, and if you intend the statement just made

as an offer of proof I will sustain the objection to it.

[279]

(TRUSTEE'S EXHIBIT No. 2)

July 31, 1940.

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

555 South Flower Street,

Los Angeles, California

Gentlemen

:

An Injunction against the Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration fas issued In the Matter of Jack Dave

Sterling, Bankrupt, District Court of the United

States, Southern District of California, Southern

Division, In Bankruptcy No. 26685-Y, on May 15,

1940, enjoining the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, its

superintendent, agents and employees from using

mud as a circulating fluid in the redrilling of its

**Fee No. 1 Well" at Huntington Beach, California.
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We have been informed that despite said in-

junction and wthout our consent and in direct re-

fusal of our consent you are using mud as a circu-

lating fluid in the redrilling of said well.

This is to notify you that unless you forthwith

desist using mud as the circulating fluid in the

redrilling of said well that an application will be

made to the United States District Court to have

you cited and punished for contempt for violating

said injunction aforesaid.

Yours truly,

JOSEPH J. RIFKIND and

RAPHAEL DECHTER
By JOSEPH J. RIFKIND

Attorneys for Hubert F. Laug-

harn, as Trustee in Bank-

ruptcy of Jack Dave Sterling,

JJR:S Bankrupt.

c/c Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation

Huntington Beach, California Spec. Del.

Attn: Mr. Anderson, Superintendent Reg.

RRR
Overton, Lyman & Plumb,

Attn: Mr. Pallette. (blind)

Dechter

Laugharn

Sterling

King

(Receipts for Registered Articles Nos. 352963 and

352964 attached.)
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(Return Receipts dated August 1, 1940 and signed

by Bolsa Chica Oil Corp. by Mrs. Jr. Nichols and

By Bolsa Chica Oil Corp. by John W. Deichnian

attached)

[Endorsed]: Tr. Exhibit No. 2 (4 documents).

Filed September 26, 1940. Ernest R. Utley, Referee.

(TRUSTEE'S EXHIBIT No. 3)

DRILLING AND OPERATING AGREEMENT
This agreement, made and entered into this 14th

day of August, 1940,

By and between

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, a corporation,

as First Pai*ty, hereinafter called

''Bolsa Chica",

and

M. M. McCallen Corporation, a corpora-

tion, as Second Party, hereinafter called

''McCallen".

Witnesseth

:

That whereas, concurrently herewith Bolsa Chica

has assigned to McCallen that certain Oil and Gas

Lease, and the leasehold thereby created, made and

entered into on the 2pth day of February, 1940, by

and between The Petroleum Company, a corpora-

tion, as Lessor, and Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, as

Lessee, covering and demising the following de-

scribed real property, to-wit

:
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Lots Twenty (20) and Twenty-two (22), Block

One Hundred Nineteen (119), in the City of

Huntington Beach, County of Orange, State of

California, as per map recorded in Book 4,

Page 10 of Maps, Miscellaneous Records of

said Orange County,

which said assignment is absolute in form but is,

in truth and in fact, made subject to the agreements

and conditions hereinafter set forth in this Agree-

ment; [97]

And whereas, the parties hereto desire to and do

hereinafter set forth the agreements and conditions

upon w^hich and subject to which said absolute

assignment is made,

Now, therefore, the parties hereto do agree as

follows

:

1. Bolsa Chica hereby gives and grants to Mc-

Callen the right to take possession of the herein

premises, together with the idle oil well now lo-

cated thereon and the equipment appurenant there-

to, including all drilling equipment, casmg, cement,

oil, mud, bits, etc., now therein and thereon, with

the right to use all such equipment and personal

property, free of cost, in the reconditioning, re-

drilling and placing on production of the said well

as a producing oil w^ell, and together with the right

thereafter to produce the said premises, all upon

the terms and conditions hereinafter set out. McCal-

len agrees, at all times that it is in possession of

the herein premises, to faithfully perform the agree-

ments and observe the conditions in the Oil and Gas
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Lease demising the herein premises, or the leasehold

thereon, except as in this Agreement otherwise

provided. McCallen fui-ther agrees to immediately

commence operations in and on the said well now

standing idle on the herein premises and to there-

after carry on such operations without interruption,

until such time as said well has been placed on

production as a producing oil and gas well or \mtil

such time as the herein premises are reconveyed to

Bolsa Chica. In this connection, it is understood

that if McCallen fails, within a period of forty-five

(45) days to complete its drilling and reconditioning

operations hereunder, its rights to the hei'ein prem-

ises shall cease and terminate and it shall then be

under obligation to reconvey the said premises to

Bolsa Chica, free of any claim hereunder thereto;

and McCallen agrees so to do. [98]

2. If, as, when and after the herein premises

are, by the efforts of McCallen hereunder, made to

produce oil, gas and/or other hydrocarbon sub-

stances, it is understood that the proceeds realized

from the sale of all such production shall be dis-

bursed by McCallen as follows

:

First : All federal, state, county and munici-

pal taxes, assessments for the production fund

of the State and any other taxes, assessments

or levies which must be paid on account of the

discovery or production of oil, gas and other

hydrocarbon substances on or from the herein

premises, whether assessed upon the land, or as

mineral rights, severance taxes, or otherwise.
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Personal property taxes, however, shall be paid

by McCallen out of the operating allowance

agreed to in sub-paragraph Fourth of this

paragraph.

Second: Fifteen per cent. (15%) of the

balance of such proceeds shall be paid to the

Lessor and/or assigns of the Lessor named in

the Lease demising the herein premises and

owning the landowner's or Lessor's royalty, all

as agreed in the original Lease demising the

herein premises.

Third: All compensating royalties payable

to the State of California, and all expenses in-

curred incidental to obtaining and carrying

out the provisions of the compensating royalty

agreements and the fees and expenses payable

to the Huntington Beach Townsite Association

in connection with the maintenance and opera-

tion of the herein well.

Fourth: Then, out of the remaining pro-

ceeds, McCallen shall, each month, retain, for

the operation, maintenance and repair of the

herein well, during the productive life thereof,

the actual costs and expenses thereof, together

with the excess, if any, over the said actual

costs and expenses caused by the expense of

dehydrating the oil produced.

Fifth: The money remaining each month,

after making the payments in the preceding

sub-paragraphs of this Paragraph 2, shall be

retained or paid by McCallen as follows:
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(a) Eighty per cent. (80%) thereof shall

be retained by McCallen until such time as

it has been thereby repaid all costs and ex-

penses incurred by it in and about its opera-

tions hereunder in reconditioning, redrilling

and placing on production of the herein well.

(b) The balance, or twenty per cent.

(20%) thereof, shall be paid to Bolsa Chica

until such time as McCallen has been re-

imbursed as just hereinabove set out. [99]

Sixth: The money remaining each month,

after all the foregoing pa^nnents have been

made and reimbursements had, shall be retained

or paid by McCallen, as follows

:

(a) Eighty per cent. (80%) thereof shall

be paid to Bolsa Chica until such time as

Bolsa Chica has been thereby paid the sum

of Forty Thousand Dollars ($40,000.00). In

this connection, it is understood that the

money theretofore paid to it by McCallen,

as agreed in sub-paragraph Fifth hereof,

shall be a credit to McCallen toward the pay-

ment of said sum of Forty Thousand Dollars

($40,000.00).

(b) The balance, or twenty per cent.

(20%) thereof,. shall be retained by McCallen

until such time as Bolsa Chica has been paid

the sum of Forty Thousand Dollars ($40,-

000.00), as just hereinabove set out.
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Seventh: After all the payments have been

made and the reimbursements had, as set forth

in all of the foregoing sub-paragraphs of this

Paragraph 2, McCallen shall, each month, dur-

ing the remainder of the life of the herein

well, pay one-half (%) of such remaining

money to Bolsa Chica and shall retain the re-

maining one-half thereof.

All payments herein made shall be made on or

before the 25th day of each month for oil and gas

produced, saved and sold during the preceding cal-

endar month.

3. The costs and expenses of reconditioning, re-

drilling and otherwise working in and about the

herein well and placing the said well on production,

shall include all payroll expense, compensation and

other necessary insurance carried, costs of all ma-

terials and supplies and other personal property

used, including bits, welding, cement, cementing,

rentals and every other thing used or service re-

quired in and about such operations of McCallen

hereunder.

4. McCallen shall, at any time hereafter, have

the right to abandon operations on the herein well,

and thereupon all rights and obligations of each

party to the other shall cease and terminate; and

upon such abandonment, McCallen shall have the

right to remove from the premises the equipment

placed therein and thereon by it. [100]
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5. Title to all oil well drilling and producing

equipment and personal property in, on and about

the herein premises and the well hole thereof, shall

remain in Bolsa Chica until such time as Bolsa

Chica has been paid the sum of Forty Thousand

Dollars ($40,000.00), as hereinabove set forth.

Thereafter, such equipment shall be owned by the

parties hereto in equal undivided parts. It is agreed,

however, that all drilling and other miscellaneous

equipment not necessary for use in producing said

well, now owned by Bolsa Chica and in and on said

well, shall, at the tei-mination of its use by McCallen

be returned at the w^ell site to Bolsa Chica for re-

moval by it.

6. Bolsa Chica may, at all reasonable times, ex-

amine the herein premises, the work done and in

progress thereon, and the production therefrom, and

may inspect the books of account kept by McCallen

in relation to the production from said well and

the costs and expenses of all operations carried on

by McCallen hereunder.

7. McCallen shall, at all times hereafter, have

the absolute management, control and direction of

all drilling and producing operations on the herein

premises.

Nothing herein contained shall be considered as

making the parties hereto partners, joint adven-

turers, or associates of any kind, it being the inten-

tion of the parties hereto that the only interest of

Bolsa Chica hereunder shall be its right to be paid
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by McCallen the proceeds from production of the

herein well, as hereinabove agreed, as consideration

for the assignment of the herein Lease, leasehold and

well.

8. In the event commercial production is ob-

tained from said well, Bolsa Chica agrees to pay

the Four Thousand Dollars ($4,000.00) cash pay-

ment for the purchase price of certain personal

property on said premises, as set forth in

[101] Paragraph 16 of the above men-

tioned Oil and Gas Lease of February 20,

1940, and shall have no right to reimbursement

therefor hereunder as against McCallen. In short, it

is understood that the whole of said Four Thousand

Dollars ($4,000.00) shall be paid by Bolsa Chica

outside the agreements herein contained.

9. This Drilling and Operating Agreement shall

not be assigned, in whole or in part, by McCallen

without the written consent of Bolsa Chica first

obtained, and the herein premises shall not be under-

let or sublet, in whole or in part, without the like

written consent of Bolsa Chica first obtained.

10. This agreement shall be binding upon and

inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, admin-

istrators, successors and assigns of the parties

hereto.

It witness whereof, the parties hereto have caused

this Agreement to be executed by their respective

duly authorized officers, and their respective cor-
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porate seals to be hereunto affixed, all as of the day
and year first hereinabove written.

BOLSA CHICA OIL
[Corporate Seal] CORPORATION

By THOS. W. SIMMONS
President

By W. S. PALLETTE
Secretary

''First Party — Bolsa Chica"

M. M. McCALLEN
CORPORATION

By H. H. McVICAR
President

By C. M. ROOD
Secretary

''Second Party — McCallen"

[102]

State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

On this 14th day of August, 1940, before me, the

undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said

County and State, personally appeared Thos. W.
Simmons, known to me to be the President, and

W. S. Pallette, known to me to be the Secretary

of Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, the corporation that

executed the within Instrument, known to me to be

the persons who executed the within Instrument oji

behalf of the corporation therein named, and

acknowledged to me that such corporation executed

the same.
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Witness my hand and official seal.

[Seal] GERTRUDE M. KNIGHT
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California.

My Commission expires July 20, 1942.

State of California

County of —ss.

On this day of August, 1940, before me, the

undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said

County and State, personally appeared
,

known to me to be the President, and
,

known to me to be the Secretary of M. M. McCallen

Corporation, the corporation that executed the

within Instrument, known to me to be the persons

who executed the within Instrument on behalf of

the corporation therein named, and acknowledged

to me that such corporation executed the same.

It witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed my official seal the day and year in this

Certificate first above written.

Notary Public in and for said County and State.

[Endorsed]: Trustee's Exhibit No. 3. Filed Sept.

26, 1940, Ernest R. Utley, Referee.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 31, 1940, R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. [103]
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ASSIGNMENT OF OIL AND GAS LEASE

Know all men by these presents

:

That Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, a corporation,

for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars

($10.00) to it in hand paid, receipt of which is

hereby acknowledged, does hereby sell, assign, trans-

fer and set over unto M. M. McCallen Corporation,

a corporation, that certain Oil and Gas Lease, and

the leasehold thereby created, made and entered into

on the 20th day of February, 1940, by and between

The Petroleum Company, a corporation, as Lessor,

and Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, a corporation, as

Lessee, coA^ering and demising the following de-

scribed real property, to-wit

:

Lots Twenty (20) and Twenty-two (22), Block

One Himdred Nineteen (119), in the City of

Huntington Beach, County of Orange, State of

California, as per map recorded in Book 4,

Page 10 Maps, Miscellaneous Records of said

Orange County,

To have and to hold unto the said M. M. Mc-

Callen Corporation, a corporatiou, forever during

the remainder of the life of said Oil and Gas Lease

of February 20, 1940.-

It witness whereof, the Assignor herein has

caused this Assignment to be executed by its duly

authorized officers and its corporate seal to be here-
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unto affixed, all as of this 14th day of August, 1940.

BOLSA CHICA OIL
[Corporate Seal] CORPORATION

By THOS. W. SIMMONS
President

By W. S. PALLETTE
Secretaiy [104]

State of California

County of Los Angeles—^ss.

On this 14th day of August, 1940, before me, the

undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said

County and State, personally appeared Thos. W.
Simmons, known to me to be the President, and

W. S. Pallette, known to me to be the Secretary

of Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, the corporation that

executed the within Instrument, known to me to be

the persons who executed the within Instrument on

behalf of the corporation therein named, and

acknowledged to me that such corporation executed

the same.

It witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed my official seal the day and year in this

Certificate first above written.

[Notarial Seal] GERTRUDE M. KNIGHT
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California.

My Commission expires July 20, 1942.

[Endorsed]: Trustee's Exhibit No. 4. Filed Sept.

26, 1940, Ernest R. Utley, Referee.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 31, 1940, R. S. Zimmer-

man Clerk. [105]
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August 21, 1940

McVicar-Rood, Inc.

Huntington Beach,

California

Gentlemen

:

Hubert F, Laugham, as Trustee in Bankruptcy

of Jack Dave Sterling, Bankrupt, has been in-

formed that the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation has

or proposes to assign its oil and gas lease covering

or enter into an agreement with you respecting its

''Petroleum Well", also know as "Fee No. 1 Well",

at Huntington Beach, California.

The Trustee in Bankruptcy hereby directs your

attention to the fact that an injunction against the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation was issued In the

Matter of Jack Dave Sterling, Bankrupt, District

Court of the United States, Southern District of

California, Central Division, In Bankruptcy No.

26685-Y, on May 15, 1940, prohibiting the redrill-

ing of said "Petroleum Well", also known as "Fee

No. 1 Well", closer than 200 feet from the "Hunt-

ington Shore Well" of said bankrupt estate, meas-

ured on a horizontal plane, at any point beneath

the depth of 3800 feet below sea level, and further

providing that the circulating fluid used in the drill-

ing, redrilling or sidetracking of said "Petroleum

Well", also known as "Fee No. 1 Well", shall be

virgin crude oil, and that no mud or other foreign

substances shall be used as a circulating fluid.
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A certified copy of the Injunction against the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation is herewith enclosed

for your formal notice. It is the Trustee in Bank-

ruptcy's position that the Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion's assigns and successors are bound by said in-

junction. See Lake v. Superior Court, 165 Cal. 182.

Yours truly,

JOSEPH J. RIFKIND
JJR:S

Enc.

c/c Division of Oil and Gas,

State of California

629 South Hill Street,

Los Angeles, California

Division of Lands,

State of California,

State Building,

Los Angeles, California

c/c Hubert F. Laugharn, Esq. (blind)

Vernon L. King, Esq. **

J. D. Sterling, Esq. "

Raphael Dechter, Esq. **

Return receipt dated Aug. 22, 1940 signed by

McVicar-Rood, Inc. attached.

[Endorsed]: Tr. Exhibit No. 6. Filed Sept. 26,

1940. Ernest R. Utley, Referee.
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JACK DAVE STERLING,

called as a witness on behalf of the Trustee, being

first duly sworn, testified as follows:

The Referee: Give your full name to the re-

porter.

A. Jack Dave Sterling.

Direct Examination

Mr. Dechter:

Q. What is your business, Mr. Sterling?

A. Oil operator.

Q.- How long have you been so engaged?

A. Since 1928.

Q. Have those operations been confined to Cali-

fornia? A. Yes sir.

Q. During your experience as oil operator how

many wells [357] have you drilled or been inter-

ested in? A. Twenty-two.

Q. Where have those wells been located?

A. They have been located in Long Beach,

Himtington Beach, the Torrance field and Bakers-

field.

Q. Are you familiar with the Huntington Shore

Well? A. I am.

Q. You were the one who originally drilled the

Huntington Shore Well? A. Yes sir.

Q. Are you familiar with what happened in the

HuntLngton Shore Well in 1937 when it became

necessary to re-drill the same? A. I am.

Q. Will yoii state to the Court just what took

place at that time?
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A. In 1937—I don't know if I got the question

right. In re-drilling the well?

Q. What took place before it became necessary

to re-drill the well, if you know ?

A. In 1937 the well was drilled by the Termo

Oil Company and they used some cement in plug-

ging the hole

The Referee: You are telling now what hap-

pened to cause a re-drilling of the welH

A. That is right, your Honor. And cement caused

to stick the tubing in the Huntington Shore Well

which is called a [358] fishing job, and we were

unsuccessful in fishing tools out and therefore we

had to re-drill the well.

Mr. Dechter: Q. In other words, this cement

came from the Termo Well that at that time was

drilled at or about the same depth as the Hunting-

ton Shore Well? A. Yes sir.

Q. And caused your tubing and rods to be stuck

in the hole? A. That is right.

Q. And were you able to remove the tubing and

rods?

A. There wasn't any rods in the hole. It was a

flowing well.

Q. I see.

A. There was tubing in there, part of it we

recovered and part left in the hole.

Q. What happened to the original hole by rea-

son of cement coming in?



218 George T. Goygin vs.

(Testimony of Jack Dave Sterling.)

A. We had to plug it off or re-drill it.

Q. When you say you had to plug it off, or

re-drill it, do you mean you could use the original

hole? A. Part of it.

Q. How much of if?

A. About forty-two hundred feet.

Q. And what did it cost you to re-drill that hole ?

A. It cost us about $80,000 plus twenty per cent.

Q. And would the entrance of mud from an

adjacent drilling [359] well have the same effect

on your tubing as cement?

A. There is no question about it.

Q. In other words, cement in the drilling well

is in fluid or working condition just as drilling

mud? A. That is right.

Q. And after it loses its water it hardens, and

mud would harden the same as cement?

A. That is right.

Q. Were you the one who re-drilled this well

for the Trustee at a cost of $80,000? A. I did.

Q. Now, calling your attention to June 7. Are

you familiar with what happened to the Hunting-

ton Well on that particular date? A. I am.

Q. Will you state to the Court just what you

know about it?

A. In the morning Mr. Ross, he is Superin-

tendent of the well in Huntington Beach, he called

me and told me that the well started pumping mud

so I immediately went over to Huntington Beach
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and I instructed him immediately to pull the tub-

ing and the rods from the well in order not to stick

the tubing and rods in the well so we would not

have a similar job as we did in 1937 when the

cement came through from the Termo Well. Imme-

diately I went over to the Bolsa Chica Well and

we found that they have lost mud. We taken a [360]

sample of the mud that they lost and also taken

samples of the mud we have received in the Hunt-

ington Shore Well.

The Referee: You say you took a sample of

the mud that they lost. You mean you took a

sample of mud at their well ?

A. At their well and in the ditch and also a

sample of the mud we received.

Mr. Dechter : Q. You took a sample of the mud

at the Huntington Shore Well and at the Bolsa

Chica Well, and did you observe whether they were

the same or whether they were different *?

A. The same mud.

Q. What else did you do at that particular time?

A. I instructed Mr. Ross to leave the well after

pulling the tubing to stand until such time as they

finished their well and he carried out my instruc-

tions.

Q. What happened after that?

A. In about twenty days later they have quit

operating or doing any work on the well so we

went in the hole and we found about thirty-five
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hundred feet of mud in the hole, and we started

baling and washing out. After baling for about

two days and cleaning out the hole we found there

wasn't any oil, and after that we started washing

the perforations to bring in the oil, which we did,

and finally in a couple of days started to get the

oil in after pumping the well two or three days

finally putting it back on the same stroke as we

had before the well went off. We found the best

production [361] we can get is about 215 barrels,

maximum production.

Q. And what was your nv(Mv^"(" 't uliK'lion be-

fore the well was mudded off?

A. Between 285 to 300 barrels.

Q. In other words, there was a loss, a perma-

nent loss of about 75 barrels a day?

A. There is a permanent loss I would say of

from 60 to 1~ barrels a day.

Q, Do you have an opinion as an experienced

oil driller and operator as to what caused the Hunt-

ington Shore Well to be mudded off?

A. Well, their hole was so close to this hole and

when they broke circulation in their hole that

caused the mud to come through into the Shore

Well and mudded off.

Q. You testified before this Court on the hear-

ing leading up to the injunction against the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation?
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A. I did, and I stated in this court that that

thing would happen before they even commenced

drilling.

Q. In other words, you gave it as your opinion

to the Court before the injunction was issued that

if they used mud that is what would happen to the

Huntington Shore Well? A. Yes sir.

Q. Will you state to the Court what would have

happened if you had not maintained a constant

vigilance on the Huntington Shore Well?

A. I am sure we would have another fishing job,

a [362] re-drilling job.

Q. In other words, a similar experience to what

you had in 1937?

A. Yes sir, correct. [363]

ALLAN A. ANDERSON

Direct Examination

Q. Would you state what happened in connec-

tion with the well on or about the 19th day of May,

1940?

A. Why, sometime after the middle of July—of

May, I should say it was, we decided from our ex-

perience in encountering the lower portion of the

hole that it would be impractical to attempt to

complete the well from that particular location

with respect to the hole due to junk and materials
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that had been left in that particular hole on prior

operations. So we decided to plug the well back

and set a whipstock at some 130 feet above the old

hole and to mill through the casing. We did set a

w^hipstock and milled through the casing and in

milling through the casing you have to cut metal

from your casing and you must have some means

of bringing the cuttings to the surface and so,

knowing that, I contacted Mr. Vernon King and

explained the situation to him and obtained from

him his approval to the use of mud for the purpose

of milling through a new window^ in the casing.

Mr. Dechter: "We move to strike out the latter

portion of the answer as not responsive, and a

conclusion of the witness, and as incompetent for

the reason that under the order of this Court such

consent had to be in writing, and the statement of

the witness he secured his consent is his [368]

conclusion.

The Referee: It may be stricken.

Mr. Pallette: Q. Mr. Anderson, at the time

that you commenced to mill through the casing on

or about the 18th day of May, 1940, did you place

a telephone call to Mr. Vernon King, the engineer

for the Trustee in Bankruptcy of the Huntington

Shore Oil Well?

A. I did. It may be on the 17th of May but

anyway I talked to Mr. Vernon King continuously

during all operations and consulted and advised
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him at all times as to just exactly what we were

doing-.

Q. At this particular time, however, on the 17th

or 18th day of May at the time you commenced

your milling operations you had a telephone con-

versation with Mr. King?

A. I did. That is right.

Q. At that time did you ask him to consent to

the use of mud as a circulating medium for the

purpose of your milling operations ? A.I did.

Q. And did he consent? A. He did.

Mr. Dechter: To which we object as calling for

the conclusion of the witness. The question was did

he consent, and I move the answer be stricken out

for the purpose of the objection.

The Referee: Stricken. Motion to strike is

granted that [369] he consented, on the ground of

a conclusion.

Mr. Pallette: Q. At the time you made this

request of Mr. King during this telephone conver-

sation what did Mr. King say?

A. Why, this was over a period of three or four

days the milling operations and cutting this win-

dow through the casing, and during that time I was

talking with King from once to twice a day with

respect to or in regard to the use of mud to drill

through our fractured shale bodies from the win-

dow down to the top of the oil sand. When we

finally milled through the window I asked Vernon
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if it would be all right with him if we could con-

tinue to use mud to drill through the fractured

shale bodies from our window to the top of the oil

measure, and Vernon at first said he would have

to think it over or talk about it—I think his exact

words was to talk about it, so I continued talking

with him for the next two or three days and finally

obtained from Vernon the right to use mud.

Mr. Dechter: We move to strike out that state-

ment as a conclusion of the witness.

The Referee: It may be stricken.

Mr. Pallette: Q. What did he say?

A. Well, as to the exact wording, we were doing

this in personal talks together there in the field and

over the telephone, and the exact phraseology of it

I can't say. I don't recall that because there were

too many conversations. [370] It is an impossibility

to remember the exact wording, but Vernon King

knew at all times we were using mud and he gave

US his consent to use mud.

The Referee: That is a conclusion.

Mr. Dechter: And we move to strike it as a con-

clusion.

The Referee: It may be stricken. State as near

as you can what was said.

A. Well, I am sorry but I cannot quote him

word for word. Now, we were talking about the

lYiud—I can tell you this, that in attempting to get

Vernon King's O. K. I consulted another party,
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which party is interested in the field, and they in

turn talked with Vernon King and then after Vem
had talked with this party he gave me his consent

as to the use of mud.

Mr. Dechter: We move to strike out the state-

ment he gave his consent as to the use of mud as a

conclusion of the witness.

The Referee: Motion granted.

Mr. Pallette: Q. Mr. Anderson, cannot you tell

us approximately what Mr. King said—not his

exact words, but the substance of his statement.

A. I believe his exact words as close as I can

come to it it would be, all right to use mud down

to the top of the oil sand.

Q. In addition to that, did he not say it w£is his

suggestion you drill forty or fifty feet into the

oil sand? [371]

A. Mr. King

Mr. Dechter: We object to counsel leading the

witness.

The Referee: Objection sustained.

A. Mr. King

Mr. Dechter : Just a moment. There is no ques-

tion before you.

Mr. Pallette: Will you read ])ack, Mr. Reporter,

Mr. Anderson's last answer?

(The reporter read from the record as re-

quested).
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Mr. Pnlletto: O, Mr. Ander-on. did ho mnlro

p.nv PiH'lhov :^.t.'^foment with referenco to tlio di'illins:

of th? well pt that time?

A. Yes., he did. He recommended that dne to his

recent experience in the Hunting-ton Beach field

that it woidd he well for ns to set our casin<2; some

forty or fifty feet into the oil sand.

Q. What did yon say to that ?

A. I replied to him, "No, Vern. Our agreement

with you is when Ave get to the top of the oil sand

that we wdll use oil and therefore we don't want to

jeopardize our position in any manner so we prefer

to change over to oil when we get to the top of the

oil sand."

Q. Mr. Anderson, you continued to use mud in

all your drilling operations from approximately the

17th day of 17th or 18th or 19th. whatever it

vras, of May up until what time? [372]

A. Up until the time that we had again—I say

again hecause when our casing we pulled it and then

had to re-drill our hole until we had gained a depth

of 4408 feet which was our correlated marker of

where we should encounter the top <^f the oil sand in

the nev/ hole.

Q. What approximately was the date of that?

A, I would say that was in July, the last half of

July, the 17th or 18th or 19th.

Q. At that time what did you do?

A. At that time we changed over to oil.
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Q. And have you used mud in any drilling oper-

ations since that time? A. We have not.

Q. During the period from the time that you

just testified that you commenced using mud on or

about the 18th of May until the time you changed

to oil on or about the 17th day of July, 1940, was

Mr. King present at the well at an}^ time?

A. Why, Vernon King was at the well I would

say at least every other day, maybe there was

periods of three or four-day intervals when he was

not present but over that entire period he was in

constant contact with the well, either he or Mr.

Earl Ross or the Himtington Shore pumpers, and

of course I carried on conversations with Vernon

King by telephone every few days as well to keep

him advised when he didn't happen to be at the

well. [373]

Q. When he came to the well or when Mr. Ross

came to the well you would discuss with them what

you were doing and what circulating medium you

were using?

A. Why yes, we discussed the tj^pe of mud or,

for instance, when we lost circulation we made up a

mixture of Aquaj el and Fibratex for the purpose of

regaining circulation and so forth and Vernon King
was there while we were mixing it and it was a

matter of a few hours after we lost circulation that

we regained it and we were all commenting on the

ability of Fibratex to seal off the fractures and so

forth.
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Q. At no time during this period from the 17th

of May to the 17th day of Jnly did Mr. Kin^ or

any other representative of the Himtin«rton Shore

Oil Well ever object to you with reference to the

use of mud as a circulatins: medium in the well?

A. They did not, no. [374]

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Pallette:

Q. I believe you testified, Mr. Anderson, that

your correlation shows that you expected to reach

the top of the oil sand from which you expected to

produce at approximately 4400 feet?

A. That is correct.

Mr. Dechter: To which we object as incompetent

and not the best evidence. The correlating he spoke

about would be the best evidence.

The Referree: Objection overruled.

Mr. Pallette: Q. When you reached a deptli

of 4400 feet what did you do ?

A. We reached a depth of 4408 feet, Mr.

Pallette, and we changed to oil. [410]

Q. No, I am speaking of the

A. Oh, pardon me. We took a core, yes, at 4400.

Q. And will you explain to the Couii: what cor-

ing is?

A. Coring is the act of obtaining a sample of

the formation you are drilling through by the use

of a core barrel. A core barrel is very similar to

a bit with the exception it has a hole, a hollow space
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in the center with a barrel above with a core catcher

so that the formation is you drill aroimd the

formation.

The Referee: In other words, it is a means

A. Of recoverino' a sample of the formation you

are drilling in. It is representative. You receive a

sample and pull it to the surface so you can

physically make an inspection of the formation you

are drilling in.

Mr. Pallette: Q. You had not seen anything in

your cuttings which would indicate to you you were

already in the sand at the time you stopped actual

drilling and commenced coring?

Mr. Dechter: To which we object as leading and

suggestive.

The Referee: It is leading. Objection sustained.

Mr. Pallette: Q. Had you seen any sand, any

oil sand in your cuttings above the depth of 4400

feet?

A. Why, Mr. Pallette, we had seen sand in our

cuttings that we did not identify as the oil sand we

wished to produce from. [411]

Q. Excluding the Jones sand?

A. No, we had not. We had been watching the

ditch sam]:)les and correlating shale.

Q. Why did you core at 4400 feet?

A. We cored at 4400 because our examination

and correlations of the various wells I mentioned

this morning indicated we should top the oil sand

at approximately 4400 feet.
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Q. What did your thirteen feet of core show?

A. It consisted of oip^ht feet of shale, some of

Avhich vas fractured and some of which was solid.

Then there was a marker, a white limestone marker

varyinf^ in width from one inch to three inches.

That indicated to ns that we were at the top of the

oil sand, and then we had approximately four to five

feet of oil sand in the lower portion of the core.

Q. That was the first evidence you had that you

were in the sand?

A. That is correct, the first evidence we had.

Q. Whereupon, you immediately ceased further

drillinc:'? A. That is correct.

Q. "NTow, referrini^ to

The Feferree: Pardon me. Didn't you say you

went down 4408 feet and took your sample and then

went down to 4413 ?

A. Went to 4413? No, we started corins^ at 4400

feet even but our core was thirteen feet in length.

We actually recovered thirteen feet of formation in

the core. To 4408 was shale. [412]

Q. But from 440O feet to 4413 you used mud?

A. Yes. We could not toll exactly where we

would pick up the sand. As far as that is concerned,

we are under orders of the Division of Oil and Has,

Avho have police powers over the field, and they

stated we should obtain a core of the top of the oil

sand before setting casing. We were so advised by

the Deputy of the Division of Oil and Gas in writ-
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ing so it was necessary to core to comply with their

instructions.

Mr. PaUette: O. Now, referring to the period

around the 17th of July, 1940, I believe you testified

this mornins: that you drilled to a depth of some

4800 feet? A. 4858.

Q. At that time you were drilling with oil?

A. That is correct.

Q. And you had been drilling with oil from what

depth ?

A. We lost our hole as I further testified and

then recovered it by directing the hole into the old

hole by using the knuckle and whipstock and when

we obtained 4408 feet we changed to oil and made
the hole from 4408 to 4458 with oil.

Q. Will you explain to the Court what happened

when you reached the depth of 4458 feet?

A. Why, the oil—there had been some pressure

brought on us by the Stnte to use a lighter-gravity

oil than I had been using so we did turn to a lighter-

gravity oil and the [413] lighter-gravity oil cut the

mud cakes off the wall of the fractured shale body

and allowed the shale to come into the hole, lubri-

cated with this light oil, and the fact twenty-three-

gravity oil, a column of fluid say 4,000 feet of

twenty-three-gravity oil has a lesser weight at the

bottom of that column of fluid than is carried in the

fractured shale body. Fractured shale body has gas

pressure in it of about 1450 to 1500 pounds of ]ires-

sure so it becomes an absolute impossibility now to
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to drill through the lubricated shale body by the use

of oil. You can withhold the fractured shale as long

as you are applying your puinp pressure but when

you cease the pressure and pull the drill pipe from

the hole then your formation pressure exceeds that

that would be created by a column of fluid of

twenty-three-gravity oil.

Q. I want you to explain what you physically

did. Why didn't you drill any deeper?

A. Why, our pipe started to freeze on us on this

fractured shale coming in and it became locked so

we pulled our pipe out of the hole.

Q. Then you tried to go back in again?

A. Yes.

Q. How deep were you able to get?

A. Why, I believe the greatest depth we went

to was that is with oil.

Q. Yes.

A. We finally wormed our way and circulated

and backed up [414] and one thing another down

to 4186 or maybe 4286. I just caimot tell you the

exact depth, but between those depths.

Q. It was above 4200 feet?

A. It might have been a little below 4200;

might even have been 4210. I couldn't say without

the log.

Q. You testified the to]) of the oil sand was

4408? A. That is correct.

Q. Wliat was the reason you could not go any

deeper than approximately 4200 feet?
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(Testimony of Allan A. Anderson.)

A. On account of the pressure and the fractured

shale being lubricated with oil, permitting the shale

to come in and freeze the pipe. Wlien shale runs

in it draws friction on your drill pipe over a long

space like two or three hundred feet, and the final

section we pulled out, the casing had caved into the

hole and pulled it up a couple of hundred feet.

Q. And your hole is full of shale ? A. Yes.

Q. And that is why you could not go down

further without re-drilling?

A. That is right, due to gas pressure. This gas

pressure also aerates your light-gravity oil which

again lightens the ability of your oil to apply pres-

sure to the shale body.

Q. When you stopped drilling your hole was

only open to approximately 4200 feet, is that cor-

rect ?

A. I would say that is right, yes. [415]

Q. So far as you know, that is the condition of

the hole at the time the well was transferred to the

McCallen Corporation? A. Yes sir [416]

[Endorsed]: Filed October 10, 1940. Ernest R.

Utley, Referee.

[Endorsed]: Filed December 31, 1940. R. S.

Zimmerman, Clerk. [416]
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ary 9, 1941, to George T. Goggin, to show cause

any the certificate of contempt filed December

31, 1941, should not be dismissed.
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M. Rood, M. M. McCallen Corporation and W.
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Los Aiigeles, California,

Thursday, January 30, 1941, 10 A. M.

The Court: A calendar matter?

The Clerk: Yes. In the Matter of Jack Dave

Sterling, Bankrupt.

1. Further hearing on return of order of Feb-

ruary 9, 1941, to George T. Goggin, Trustee, to

show cause why the certificate of contempt filed

December 31, 1941, should not be dismissed.

2. Hearing on return of order of January 13,

1941, to Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thomas W.
Simmons, Allan A. Anderson, H. H. McVicar, C.

M. Rood, M. M. McCallen Corporation and W. H.

Cree to show cause w^hy they should not be adjudged

in contempt pursuant to the certificate of the

referee.

The Court: Proceed, gentlemen.

Mr. Dechter: Your Honor will recall that at the

conclusion of the hearing the other day your Honor

said he would consider the matter of the objection

to the jurisdiction, and if the court desired any

further argument by counsel you would so advise

us. Now, I have some additional cases, if the court

desires to have them.

The Court : I think I had better state my thought

at the present time. I will hear further argument.

Perhaps further argument may clarify my own

thought, because I have not reached definite con-

clusions in the matter, so I sent [456] for the peti-
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tion. I think the certificate of the referee should

contain not merely the order, but the petition on

which the order was made, because the violation

which is charged is contempt. The certificate is

like a selective judgment roll. In any judgment

roll the petition or the complaint upon which the

order was made is a necessary part of the record.

So I sent for them. The question arose on a peti-

tion for instructions ; is that correct ?

Mr. Pallette: That is correct.

The Court: The petition was filed on April 20,

1940, and on that petition the order to show cause

was directed to Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, and

the hearing was had, as a result of which the order

of May 5th was entered, which order has become

final through the failure to petition for review by

this court. [457]

The Court: Gentlemen, I have given a little

further thought to this matter. In fact, I spent

the entire noon hour in my chambers in going over

the record in the case in the hope that there was

some additional light I could find on the subject.

And my conclusion is that we are dealing here not

with a proposition where the bankru])tcy court, not

having the right to determine cei'tain matters by

summary proceedings, proceeds to determine them

nevertheless, thus bringing into question the propo-

sition Avhether the objector is bound by the record,

the finality of which he did not see fit to challenge.

I think the difficulty confronting us here arises from

the fact that a situation like this does not seem to
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have arisen in any of the cases which the industry

of coiuisel and my own industry have [505] been

able to discover.

I think it cannot be denied that in matters which

come under Section 23 of the Bankruptcy Act, in

controversies between a trustee and adverse claim-

ants to property acquired or claimed by the trustee,

the exception in subdivision (b) of that section ap-

plies. That is, where the trustee asserts a right to

property the adversary, if he have possession of the

property, need not submit to summary determina-

tion turn-over proceedings, but insist on a plenary

action being brought, but if he does insist he may, by

participating in a proceeding, perhaps waive his

right to challenge jurisdiction, or by failing to prop-

erly raise the question may waive it, or by doing

other acts which are tantamount to such a waiver.

Perhaps the case in which the strongest language

is found to support the position of the trustee is

In re Murray. I realize that much of the lan-

guage that is used there is merely by way of

theorizing, because ultimately the court disposes of

the actual controversy in the very paragraph in

which he states that Murray had not protected his

rights; had practically waived them. I like pretty

writing myself. I like to theorize. We are safer

to do it in an article than to do it in an opinion.

The court there, after giving the quotation from

the McDonald case, says this:

"Here, appellant filed his answer to the show

[506] cause order upon the merits. He volun-
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tarily conveyed the property to the trustee in

bankruptcy to abide the outcome of the hear-

ing; he presented all of his evidence upon an

accounting. It was too late for him thereafter

for the first time to question the jurisdiction

of the court over the subject matter. He had

waived his personal privilege of demanding that

the cause of action be asserted in a plenary

proceeding. He must be held to have consent-

ed to the jurisdiction."

So that even in those particular cases where the

objection is not, to use the phrase from the munici-

pal law, to the existence of the power but to the

mode of its exercise there must be some strong af-

firmative action before consent to jurisdiction is

presumed. And that is in line with the general

proposition that there is no presumption in favor

of jurisdiction in the federal courts, because they

are courts of limited jurisdiction, made so by the

Act of Congress of the United States, which began

with 1789, and in subsequent legislative action they

have simply declined to give to the federal coui^ts

the full constitutional jurisdiction, but have ham-

strmig our jurisdiction by diversity of citizenship

and by requirements that the controversy be in ex-

cess of the value of $3,000. [507]

This morning I gave some of the illustrations

where the Supreme Court, in dealing with its own

powerful jurisdiction, has declined to entertain ac-

tions in advance of actual controversv or harm ac-
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tually done. Those cases, of course, include the de-

claratory judgment statute, but if we examine the

famous case of Ashwander v. Valley Authority, 297

U. S. 288, we find that in that opinion the court

reasserts that principle in each one of the cases I

have cited. The court says, at page 324:

"The judicial power does not extend to the

determination of abstract questions. * * * It

was for this reason that the court dismissed

the bill of the State of New Jersey which

sought to obtain a judicial declaration that in

certain features the Federal Water Power Act

exceeded the authority of the Congress and en-

croached upon that of the State. New Jersey

V. Sargent, 269 U. S. 328. For the same rea-

son, the State of New York, in her suit against

the State of Illinois, failed in her effort to ob-

tain a decision of abstract questions as to the

possible effect of the diversion of water from

Lake Michigan upon hypothetical water power

developments in the indefinite future. New
York V. Illinois, 274 U. S. 488. At the last

term the Court held, in dismissing the bill of

the United States against the State of West

Virginia, that general [508] allegations that the

State challenged the claim of the United States

that the rivers in question were navigable, and

asserted a right superior to that of the United

States to license their use for powder produc-

tion, raised an issue Hoo vague and ill-defined

to admit of judicial determination.' United
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States V. West Virginia, 295 U. S. 463, 474.

Claims based merely upon ^assumed potential

invasions' of rights are not enough to warrant

judicial intervention. Arizona v. California,

283 U. S. 423, 462.

"The Act of June 14, 1934, providing for

declaratory judgments, does not attempt to

change the essential requisites for the exercise

of judicial power. By its terms it applies to

'cases of actual controversy', a phrase which

must be taken to connote a controversy of a

justiciable nature, thus excluding an advisory

decree upon a hypothetical state of facts."

I think it is well to review for the record how

these proceedings were instituted. The defendants

—we will call them defendants in this contempt pro-

ceeding—were not brought into court upon an alle-

gation that a controversy existed between them and

the trustee in regard to anything. That upon the

affidavit of a geologist and upon the affidavit of the

bankrupt and the verified petition, an order to show

cause was issued. The verified petition merely

stated: [509]

"That petitioner is informed and believes

and on that ground alleges that the proposed

course of redrilling said 'Petroleum Well' will

cause the same to come within 100 feet of the

'Himtington Shore Well' of the above entitled

bankrupt estate, which is situated on that cer-

tain T'eal y)roperty in the Coimty of Orange,
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State of California, more particularly described

as follows: * * * covered by Easement No.

309-21 granted by the State of California.

"That petitioner is further informed and be-

lieves and on that ground alleges that the sur-

veys, as plotted, and their intersection with the

inclined planes show that it will be impossible

to redrill the 'Petroleum Well' without com-

ing within 100 feet of the oil sands perforated

by and from which production is obtained by

the 'Huntington Shore Well', particularly at

3700 feet, 3800 feet, 3900 feet, and 4000 feet,

and thereby causing infiltration of oil, mud,

cement and other foreign substances, and that

the same will result in irreparable damage to

and possible loss of said 'Hiuitington Shore

Weir."

Then was given the date that the Himtingion

Shore Well was placed on production and refer-

ence was made to the affidavits.

"Wherefore, your petitioner, by reason of

the value of said well and the irreparable loss

and [510] damage which will possibly result

thereto by reason of the redrilling of the said

'Petroleum Well', desires that the court give

instructions to said petitioner as to the action

and proceedings which should be taken by the

Trustee in Bankruptcy in the matter."

The order to show cause merely stated that the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation is ordered to appear
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before the Referee in Bankruptcy and ''show cause,

if any it has, why such order or orders should not

be made and entered by the above entitled court

in the above entitled matter to protect the 'Hunt-

ington Shore Well' of the above entitled bankrupt

estate from damage resulting from the redrilling

of the 'Petroleum Weir, and why such additional

further and future order or orders should not be

made and entered authorizing the Trustee in Bank-

ruptcy to institute, maintain and prosecute any ac-

tion, proceedings or suit in this or any other court

which may, in the opinion of the Trustee in Bank-

ruptcy^, be necessary or advisable to protect the

'Huntington Shore Well' from damage as the re-

sult of the redrilling of the 'Petroleum Well' ".

There is no allegation of any controversy or any

demand having been made; merely that somebody

examined the survey and is satisfied that it is likely

to cause this damage as, if and when they drill in

accordance with the plan. Neither the order to

show cause intimated nor did the [511] petition in-

timate that an injimction would be asked to enjoin

them from proceeding in the manner intended. The

hearing was had. From the very beginning we find

objection to the jurisdiction of the court to hear

and determine the matter. I have read the begin-

ning and the end of the transcript. And, in fact,

sometimes when you have language read to you it

sounds differently, so I sat on the couch and had

Mr. Somers read to me the colloquy of counsel so

that I could reproduce, as it were, what took place
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before the Referee. And while there is some in-

timation at the end that some order might be agreed

to, throughout the entire proceedings the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, respondent, protested the

jurisdiction of the court to hear the matter, both

upon the proposition that they were not before the

court and upon the proposition that they are not

trespassing anybody's property, that they intend to

drill on their own property, and that the Referee

in Bankruptcy had no right whatsoever to tell them,

in advance of a commission of any tort, not to act

with their property in a certain manner.

We are not dealing here with an adverse claim

for property as between a trustee in bankruptcy

and a stranger. That phase of the case is entirely

eliminated. That is why all the teachings of these

cases dealing with controversies relating to prop-

erty and the waiver of any right thereto by consent-

ing or not objecting to summary proceed- [512]

ings, as set forth in patent law, do not help us at

all. Here we are dealing with the right of a court

of bankruptcy to hale before it, and on an order

to show cause, a person who owns adjoining prop-

erty and saying to him, "My trustee is asking for

instructions." And when he comes into court he is

confronted with the proposition, not upon the basis

of what he is doing, but upon the basis of what

happened to somebody else when somebody else

tried to drill in the proximity of the land, and upon

that basis he finds himself subject to an interdict,
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by a court whose jurisdiction he has challenged

throughout, not to deal with his own property in

the manner in which he chooses on pain of con-

tempt.

When we are dealing with that kind of property

we are dealing with a mere fundamental right, and

that is the right guaranteed by law to a person,

subject to governmental regulation, of course, to

use his property as he sees fit, being responsible

for any damage when he does it.

There is no relation between the Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation and the bankrupt estate. They were

not bound by any contract. It is true that they

leased from the same State of California, but they

did not have a pool agreement or any of those con-

tracts which might give them reciprocal rights.

They are just strangers dealing with their own

property as they saw fit, subject to the rule not

to damage another. [513]

Right from the beginning, and this is from page

2 of the transcript, we find this:

^'Mr. Borden: At this time I would like to

say we are here in obedience to the order to

show cause. I am representing tlie Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation. While, of course, we concede

your Honor's authority to make any orders you

may deem necessary wdth respect to directing

the Trustee in his work, we do not concede any

jurisdiction to make any order that would af-

fect us in this proceeding, we not being a party
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to the proceeding, but are appearing only spe-

cially here and are not submitting to the juris-

diction of the court.

^'The Referee: You are objecting to the

jurisdiction of the court to make any orders

affecting your company*?

"Mr. Borden: Yes, your Honor.

"Mr. Dechter: May it please the court, even

if that objection was well-foomded this court

must necessarily receive evidence to be able to

rule on that objection. In other words, it must

receive sufficient evidence to determine whether

or not the court has summary jurisdiction.

"The Referee: Yes, I think that is true."

Then Mr. Dechter asserts the power of the court,

by siunmary order, to bind Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration. Then he used the analogy of a trustee

operating a department store.

"The Referee: * * * I don't think this court

would [514] have any jurisdiction to prevent

this company or any other company from drill-

ing a well, but if it interfered or threatened

to interfere with the bankrupt's property in

any way, I think to that extent the court would

have jurisdiction.

"Mr. Borden: Under the very allegations of

the petition, your Honor, it does not appear

we are in any way trespassing upon the prop-

erty of the bankrupt. In other words, we are
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drilling from our own drill-site. We are not

trespassing- on their property according to the

very allegations of the petition. I am not here

to offer any objection or demurrer because we

are appearing here objecting to the jurisdiction

of the court.

"The Referee: Your objection may appear;

however, the court must examine in a prelimi-

nary way this matter in order to determine

whether or not it does have the jurisdiction.

''Mr. Borden: I appreciate that, your

Honor.

"The Referee: Very well, you may proceed."

I have gone into this rather fully, gentlemen,

because it is a phase on which I have not expressed

myself very fully and, also because, I am frank to

say, I was strongly impressed at first with the

thought that perhaps there was a consent decree

here. But the more I study the decree the more

I am convinced that that is not the case. I will go

into that matter in a moment.

I want to show from the record, which is also

before us [515] as a part of this, that there was

not at any time any information that jurisdiction

was being conceded and it was challenged at all

times. When the cross examination began, I think

the very first cross-examination, Mr. Borden made

it very clear that by cross-examining the witness

he was not waiving his objection to the jurisdiction.
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I have lost the place where it occurred, but I find

it again at the end, and the Referee confirmed the

statement of Mr. Borden. On page 82 we find this

:

"The Referee: Any further testimony?

''Mr. Dechter: That is all for the petitioner,

for the Trustee.

"Mr. Borden: I think I made the statement

in the first instance that our cross-examination

was not to be construed as any waiver of our

objection to the jurisdiction.

"The Referee: Oh, yes.

"Mr. Borden: I don't think there is any

question about that. We have no evidence to

offer at the present time. I might have if there

is any question in your Honor's mind whether

or not the court, in a summary proceeding of

this kind against a total stranger, and under

these circumstances, has a right to take any

action or to restrain us from proceeding, I

should like to have a continuance in order to

put on some testimony without conceding the

jurisdiction of the court. I think the court is

entitled to have the benefit, no matter what

order it makes with respect to [516] directing

the Trustee to commence plenary action or any

other remedy available to him, of hearing testi-

mony on both sides."

Later on, when the question of the form of stipu-

lation came up, on May 1st, we find this:
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''The Referee: Have you accomplished any-

thing in the matter of Jack Dave Sterling?

''Mr. Rifkind: Yes, your Honor. We have

reached a stipulation that an injunction may
be issued by the court against the Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation. We have already given the

specific language to the reporter and I would

like him at this time to read it to the court.

"The Referee: Is the stipulation generally

agreed to between counsel?

"Mr. Borden: Yes.

"The Referee: You may state generally

what it is.

"Mr. Borden: We have stipulated as to the

order. We do not concede jurisdiction of the

court. We are going to agree that we will not

review the order of court and will be bound

by the order. However, I make that statement

because we do not want to generally concede

jurisdiction."

Then follows the statement of the Referee that

as far as he is concerned you could review the order.

Then the wording of the stipulation is read and

nothing more seems to appear except general ques-

tions relating to the order [517] to be prepared.

Mr. Dechter: There is a further statement by

Mr. Borden that the stipulation is agreeable.

The Court: Yes, that is right. This is what it

says:
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'

' Mr. Rifkind : All right.

"The Referee: Is that stipulation agreeable,

gentlemen ?

''Mr. Borden: Yes.

"Mr. Rifkind: We will prepare an order.

"The Referee: Very well, prepare a formal

order.

"Mr. Rifkind: It will be approved as to

form and contents by both sides."

Now, we get to the order itself and we find that

imless we eliminate some phrases reserving juris-

diction it shows clearly on its face that jurisdiction

was reserved. The only jurisdiction that was before

the court is the jurisdiction to hear the matter and

bind them by any kind of an order. That is what

they are talking about. The order, of course, like

all composite orders which are the result of com-

promise between counsel, is not a model. And, in

my opinion, that is due to the fact that it was

drawn by one side, and then additions were made.

There are phrases here which could have been re-

worded and one or two which could have been

eliminated and left the matter clearer than it is.

In the first place, there is a recital here right from

the very beginning, page 1, line 21:

"The Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, upon the

calling [518] of the matter, annoimced that it

was appearing specially for the sole purpose

of objecting to the jurisdiction of the court, to

make any order affecting said corporation;"
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That is a challenge to the entire jurisdiction,

''that thereupon the court informed counsel

that it would withhold ruling upon the ques-

tion of jurisdiction until sufficient evidence was

introduced to determine the question: That

oral and documentary evidence was introduced

upon the part of the Trustee in Bankruptcy

and the witnesses called on behalf of the

Trustee in Bankruptcy were cross-examined by

• the attorneys for the Bolsa Chica Oil Corpo-

ration; the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, hav-

ing at the conclusion of the introduction of

oral and documentary evidence upon behalf of

the Trustee in Bankruptcy, stipulated in open

court to the granting of the injunction as here-

inafter more particularly set forth, the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation stating that such stipu-

lation was subject to the objection of the juris-

diction of the court".

That is the objection heretofore made. They use

the word ''jurisdiction"; not the word "general".

Then, this is a phrase that could very well have

been omitted, but it certainly does not detract from

the preceding one: "and that such stipulation was

not intended to confer general jurisdiction on the

court." The use [519] of the word "general" there

is not an absolute one, but it merely states nega-

tively what is already stated positively, that the

stipulation merely related to the form of the order
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to be made. The defendant insisted then, as he had

before, that they did not concede jurisdiction.

Incidentally, there is another paragraph here,

before the adjournment on the last date. Mr. Bor-

den made this statement, which appears on page 85,

after the discussion as to distance:

"Mr. Pallette: I wouldn't be surprised but

what we could stipulate to one hundred feet,

but I don't think I am justified in doing so

without consulting our engineers.

''Mr. Borden: I think that is a good idea.

Let the record show, if your Honor please, that

by suggesting that we are willing to submit to

the jurisdiction of the court, that we do not

do so until we actually do so."

In other words, he just says, ''Perhaps I will

agree to it or not object to it, but I am still not

ready to do it and may insist upon my point of

jurisdiction."

Referring back to the order:

"The court having been fully advised in the

premises and the court having overruled the

objection of the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation to

the jurisdiction of the court, it is, therefore,

ordered as follows:

Now, there is a notation here, "Approved as to

form and contents." The form does not comply

with our rule. [520] The form provided by the rule

is merely, "Approved as to form." And is coimsel
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desire to waive objection to the matters other than

form then they have to write in the direct words,

"No objection to the entry of the order," or words

of similar import. So I do not think that adds any-

thing to it, because I am satisfied of the reservation,

in a rather round-about manner, of jurisdiction.

It is absolutely apparent and I do not think any-

body w^as deceived by it.

There is one other proposition we must bear in

mind. Counsel have stated repeatedly that this is

a collateral attack. This is not a collateral attack.

This is a direct attack. A citation for contempt is

a direct proceeding arising ancillary to another,

and when you attack an invalid order in a contempt

proceeding you are attacking it directly; not col-

laterally. In other words, a man need not submit

to an order or go to the trouble of an appeal from

an order of court Avhich he challenges is without

jurisdiction. If the order is void because of lack of

jurisdiction he can attack it any time. Orders are

repeatedly made that way. What is that habeas

cor]:)us case?

Mr. Pallette: Kowland?

The Court: I have even a more const vuctivo

case, gentlemen, and one that to my mind, unless

our ideas of [521] courts change more rapidly than

even I would like to see them change, is still good

law. It is fundamental that you are not bound to

obey an order that is invalid. You may disobey it

and then, in a proceeding based on it, you may at-
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tack its validity, for this reason: The person who

cites you for contempt brings the order into court.

It is the basis of the order and you are not attack-

ing it collaterally when you say, ''This is not a

valid order." You are challenging the foundation

for the citation, a foundation which they must es-

tablish exists. Therefore, an attack, either by habeas

corpus after conviction or in any other manner in

a contempt proceeding, of the order made in the

main proceedings is a direct attack. Ex Parte

Sawyer is, to my mind, the most interesting that

I have been able to find on that point. I went at it

backwards. I started with about 280 and examined

about 7 or 8 cases, working backwards. I found it

as the leading case on the subject and the best case

under the law. Ex Parte Sawyer, 124 U. S. 20O

decided in 1888 and cited repeatedly since, is one

of the cases cited by Mr. Justice Holmes in one of

the late cases on the subject. And I am quite sure

that such a liberal as Mr. Justice Holmes would not

have approved the doctrine if he felt it did not

correctly express his views of civil rights. In this

case the City Council of Lincoln, Nebraska, was

about to remove from office a police judge upon

the ground that he had illegally kept some fees.

[522] So the police judge, Albert F. Parsons, went

before the federal District Court on the circuit side

—that was at a time when our courts were divided

into district courts and circuit courts, personified

in the same judge; the one court heard law and
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jurisdiction cases and the other heard equity cases

—

and alleged the fact that the City Council was about

to meet for the purpose of removing him from

office. Upon the basis of that sworn petition and

affidavit he secured an injunction enjoining the

mayor and City Council from holding the meeting.

They disobeyed the order, and held the meeting,

and removed the police judge. So the police judge

went before the court and satisfied the court that

his dignity had been outraged and flaunted and

that they had robbed him of a lawsuit which he

had alleged was within the jurisdiction of the fed-

eral court, because he was being deprived of rights

under the constitution, the due process and consti-

tutional laws of the United States. An order to

show cause was sent to the mayor and council and

the judge promptly found them all guilty of con-

tempt of court and fined them in sums ranging

from $50' to ft^BOO which, of course, at that time was

a lot of money, or stand committed to the custody

of the marshal until the fines were paid. They

declined to pay and were committed to the marshal.

Whereupon a writ of habeas corpus was sued out

on behalf of the contenders, and in the petition for

writ of habeas corpus it [523] was alleged:

*' 'That the court had no jurisdiction of said

suit commenced by said Albert F. Parsons

against your petitioners, and that said restrain-

ing order was not a lawful order, and that said

judgment of said court that your petitioners
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were in contempt, and the sentence of said

court, that your petitioners pay a fine and suf-

fer imprisonment for violating said restraining

order is void and wholly without the jurisdic-

tion of the Circuit Court of the United States,

and in violation of the Constitution of the

United States'; and further alleged 'as special

circumstances, making direct action and inter-

vention of this court necessary and expedient,

that it would be useless to apply to the Circuit

Court of the United States for the District of

Nebraska for a writ of habeas corpus, because

both the circuit and district judges gave it as

their opinion in the contempt proceedings that

the said restraining order was a lawful order

and within the power of the court to make. '

'

'

So they appealed, in the language of the famous

bishop, from the guardians of the Grod's truth direct

to the God himself. They appealed to the highest

court.

Mr. Dechter : The mayor and the councilmen had

never appeared in the injunction proceeding and

it was an ex parte injunction against them. [524]

The Court: But they were served with the pro-

cess.

Mr. Dechter: That is what the Supreme Court

points out in this case of Chicot County Drainage

District.

The Court: Well, I will let you make new law

on this case. I want to see if you can send a man to
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jail or penalize him thousands of dollars because

of his failure to appeal. You can't show me any

law and you haven't so far shown me any law to

the effect that if a man challenges the jurisdiction

of a court his only recourse is appeal.

Mr. Dechter: That is what the three Supreme

Court decisions hold.

The Court: They don't say that as I read them.

You read them differently than I do.

Mr. Dechter: The jurisdiction over the subject

matter was challenged.

The Court: I don't reconcile this with the other.

I think this is a contempt ]:)roceeding of much

greater weight. It is based on the constitutional

groimd that nobody is required to obey an order of

a court that is without jurisdiction of the subject

matter.

Here was a federal court. Its jurisdiction was

invoked in a State matter. This is exactly what the

court said. In discussing the ])roblem of whether

there was jurisdiction, civil or criminal in nature,

Mr. Justice Gray said

:

"But if those proceedings are to be consid-

ered as neither criminal nor judicial, but rather

in the [525] nature of an official inquiry by a

municij)al board intrusted by the law with the

administration i\nd regulation of the affairs of

the city, still, their only object being the removal

of a public officer from liis office, they are

equally beyond the jurisdiction and control of

a court of equity.
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"The reasons which preckide a court of

equity from interfering with the appointment

or removal of public officers of the government

from which the court derives its authority

apply with increased force when the court is a

court of the United States and the officers in

question are officers of a State." I am omitting.

"In any aspect of the case, therefore, the

Circuit Court of the United States was without

jurisdiction or authority to entertain the bill in

equity for an injimction.

"As this court has often said: 'Where a court

has jurisdiction, it has a right to decide every

question which occurs in the cause ; and whether

its decision be correct or otherwise its judgment

until reversed, is regarded as binding in every

other court. But if it act without authority, its

judgments and orders are regarded as nullities.

They are not voidable, but simply void.' editing

cases. [526]

"We do not rest our conclusion in this case,

in any degree, upon the groimd suggested in

argument; that the bill does not show a matter

in controversy of sufficient pecuniary value to

supjjort the jurisdiction of the circuit court

;

because an apparent defect of its jurisdiction

in this respect, as in that of citizenship of par-

ties, depending upon an inquiry into facts

which might or might not support the jurisdic-

tion, can be availed only by appeal or writ of
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error, and does not render its judgment or de-

cree a nullity."

Citing cases.

''Neither do we say that in a case belonging

to a class or subject which is within the juris-

diction both of courts of equity and of courts

of law, a mistake of a court of equity, in de-

ciding that in the particular matter before it

there could be no full, adequate and complete

remedy at law, will render its decree absolutely

void.

''But the ground of our conclusion is that

whether the proceedings of the City Council

of Lincoln for the remoA^-al of the police judge,

upon cliarges of misappropriating moneys be-

longing to the city, are to be regarded as in

their nature criminal or civil, judicial or

merely administrative, they relate to a subject

which the Circuit Court of tlie United States,

[527] sitting in equity, has no jurisdiction or

power over, and can neither try and determine

for itself, nor restrain by injunction the tri-

bimals and officers of the State and city from

trying and determining.

"The case cannot be distinguislied in prin-

ciple from that of a judgment of the Common
Bench in England in a criminal prosecution,

which was coram non judice; or the case of a

sentence passed by the Circuit Court of the

United States upon a charge of an infamous
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crime, without a presentment or indictment by

a grand jury."

Citing cases.

"The circuit court being without jurisdiction

to entertain the bill in equity for an injunction,

all its proceedings in the exercise of the juris-

diction which it assumed are null and void. The

restraining order, in the nature of an injunc-

tion, it had no power to make. The adjudication

that the defendants were guilty of a contempt

in disrega]'ding that order is equally void ; their

detention by the marshal under that adjudica-

tion is without authority of law, and they are

entitled to be discharged."

It is interesting to read a concurring opinion of

Mr. Justice Field:

''I concur in the judgment of the court, that

the Circuit Court of the United States had no

jurisdiction [528] to interfere with the pro-

ceedings of the Mayor and Common Council

of Lincoln for the removal of the police judge

of that city. The appointment and removal of

officers of a mimicipality of a State are not

subjects within the cognizance of the courts

of the United States. The proceedings detailed

in the record in the present case were of such

an irregular and unseemly character, and so

well calculated to deprive the officer named of

a fair hearing, as to cause strong comment. But,

however irregular and violent, the remedy
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could only be found imdei" the laws of the State

and in her tribunals. The police judge did not

hold his office under the United States, and in

his I'emoval the Common Coimcil of Lincoln

violated no law of the ITnited vStates." * * *

I cannot see any distinction between the situation

we have here, except a different charj>e of illegality,

and the situation we have here. The record here

clearly shows that what the bankruptcy court pro-

ceeded to do was to declare in advance of the com-

mission of a tort, that a tort was about to be com-

mitted, and enjoined its commission. I doubt very

much that even under the declaratory judgment

statute such a declaration could be enforced. The

other day I referred to an English case upon the

subject, the case of Thomas vs. Moore, 1 Kings

Bench 555. In that case a conspiracy had been al-

leged. [529] No damages as a result of the con-

spiracy were assessed. The trial judge, however,

granted a declaration. The court, in dismissing the

judgment and entering one for the defendants used

this language:

*'It may be convenient to have a claim for

a declaration as to the rights of the parties in

respect of contracts extending over a long space

of time, and not to wait until there is a breach

to have the rights determined. But T have never

heard of a declaration that a defendant is do-

ing wrong, unless perhaps it is followed by a

statement that damage has accrued or is likely



Bolsa Chica Oil Corp. et al. 261

to accrue, and that the defendant threatens to

continue his wrongful act against the plain-

tiff. The claim was for damages for conspiracy,

and no damage was proved. The two judgments

cannot stand together, and judgment must be

entered for all the defendants on the claim or

conspiracy." [530]

Under the law of California it is a complete de-

fense to an action if it is prematurely brought. In

fact, we have a section of the code that deals with

it, and the Supreme Court, in interpreting it, has

held repeatedly that it is a complete defense.

I call attention to the Ashwander case. And I will

call your attention to a recent opinion of my own,

Redlands Foothill Groves v. Jacobs, 30 Fed. Supp.,

995, in which, in declining to iuterfere wdth the en-

forcement of the Wage and Hour Act, in so far

as it applies to agriculture, I used this language:

*' Courts have refused to give relief under it

when there was not an actual threat of injury,

but merely a fear or apprehension of damages.'*

Mr. Dechter: I don't want to appear impertin-

ent, may it please the court, but in this Stoll v.

Gottlieb case, Ex Parte Sawyer was cited by the

losing side and disregarded by Justice Reed and the

rest of the court.

The Court: Well, they did not distinguish it.

It is very seldom that I am bothered with questions

of jurisdiction as I have been bothered in this case,

and the reason why it is so important in this case
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is quite apparent from its very nature. This order,

in addition to enjoining- the defendants, also gave

authority to the trustee to institute action for dam-

ages or for injunctive relief. They were brought

here on a contempt citation [531] and it was in-

sisted that the court penalize them for the violation

of this injunction of the court. In other words, the

court has power to impose a fine and impose it by

wa}^ of damages, then allow the estate later on to

assess additional damages for the loss caused by

the acts themselves after the court had imposed the

penalty for violation of its interdict. The courts

lately have scrutinized records and have raised

questions relating to jurisdiction when the thought

never occurred to counsel and was never even sug-

gested by counsel to the court below. I feel, in a

case of this character, where the challenge over

jurisdiction has been made, the court should in-

quire into it. I am satisfied that the court has no

jurisdiction whatsoever and that their appearance

and response to an ordei* to show cause, which they

have to obey imder penalty of having default taken

against them, didn't constitute a waiver. And if,

as I believe, it is beyond the power of the bank-

ruptcy court to, in effect, make a declaration that

miless the well is drilled in a certain way damage

will result and the man will be enjoined from doing

something on his own property, property which is

not the subject of bankruptcy, his actions therein,

in the failure to review, does not involve a waiver

on his part.
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I take it as an uncontroverted proposition that

an invalid order, issued against a person in a pro-

ceeding- to which he may have been an adversary

and to which he objected, [532] can be attacked in

two ways: That is, one, by appealing and, two, by

not appealing and challenging it as being void and

showing it is void. And that such an act is not a

collateral attack but a direct attack because, after

all, when you actually base a citation upon an order

you bring up the order yourself, and any showing of

invalidity which appears on the face of the record

is available in the matter.

Rather than send these back to the Referee I

shall order the clerk to make the petition and the

order a part of the record in this proceeding. They

should have been included in the certificate of the

Referee so that there would be a showing of the

basis upon which the order was made. These con-

stitute the pleadings upon which the order was

made.

Mr. Dechter: Exception noted by the trustee.

As I understand it, in order to make the record

clear, the court sustains the objection to the juris-

diction ^

The Court: Yes.

Mr. Dechter: And refuses to hear the matters

raised on the order to show cause in regard to the

contempt, by reason of its sustaining the objection

to the jurisdiction.

The Court: Yes. You can go to the court and

get a mandamus.
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Mr. Dechter: I also want to make clear that by

its [533] order the court is vacating the injunction

heretofore made. I don't believe that is involved in

this proceeding-, except indirectly.

The Court: I am making a finding that it is

void on its face.

Mr. Dechter: Then I would like to ask this

court to exercise its power as a Chancellor in Equity

to stay the effect of its order stating that it is an

invalid order pending an appeal, so that our rights

are protected in the meantime. On behalf of the

Trustee I would ask that that, at least, be given.

We will be diligent in prosecuting the necessary

steps on appeal.

The Court : There should be a formal order here

upon this hearing. I do not know whether a formal

objection

Mr. Dechter: A verbal objection was made here.

There was no written objection.

The Court: I know there was no Avritten ol)-

jection.

Mr. Dechter: I am willing to have counsel pre-

pare the order and submit it to me, or I will be

glad to prepare it and submit it to him, whichever

the court desires.

Mr. Pallette: I think we should i)T'epare it.

Mr. Dechter: May it be submitted to me before

it is signed'?

The Court: Yes. I think it is no more than

right that in a matter of this character you
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Mr. Dechter: In other words, this is the most

valuable [534] asset of the estate. If this is lost it

means about $400,000.

The Court: I will call your attention to this

about mandamus: The Circuit Court has recently

used some very strong language in regard to a case

that arose in my department where I dismissed a

complaint and, rather than appeal, they sought to

mandamus me to restore it and hear the matter on

its merits. However, this is a little different matter.

Mr. Dechter: I will be glad to do both, your

Honor. In other words, I have no desire to

The Court: It might have been the line of least

resistance for me to have heard the evidence. It

wouldn't have given me nearly the trouble. I have

worked very hard on it and I am very thoroughly

convinced that it would be a broad extension of the

powers of the bankruptcy court if we were to deter-

mine that it could issue injunctions of this char-

acter.

(Discussion off the record.)

The Court: It is rather a departure from the

rules to require a bond of a trustee. I can see where

a matter of this kind may result in a good deal of

damage to the parties, but I will give the matter

further thought, gentlemen, at the time you present

the order. Leave the question of the bond open,

leave a blank there, or draw an order in the alterna-

tive, one with bond and one without bond. [535]

Mr. Rifkind: That order is to be presented to

counsel before being signed by your Honor?
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The Court: Oh, yes.

[Endorsed]: Filed March 13, 1941. R. S. Zim-

merman, Clerk. [536]

[Endorsed]: No. 9790. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. George T.

Goggin, Trustee in Bankruptcy of the Estate of

Jack Dave Sterling, Bankrupt, Appellant, vs. Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, a corporation, Thos. W.
Simmons, Allan A. Anderson, William H. Cree,

H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and M. M. McCallen

Corporation, a corporation, Appellees. Transcript

of Record. Upon Appeal from the District Court

of the United States for the Southern District of

California, Central Division.

Piled April 14, 1941.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 9790

In the Matter of

JACK DAVE STERLING,

Bankrupt.

STATEMENT OF POINTS UPON WHICH AP-
PELLANT WILL RELY IN THIS APPEAL
1. The District Court erred in rendering the

order dismissing the Referee in Bankruptcy's Cer-

tificate of Contempt.

2. The District Court erred in sustaining objec-

tions to the jurisdiction of the District Court to

hear the matter arising under the Referee's Cer-

tificate of Contempt.

3. The District Court erred in permitting a col-

lateral attack to be made upon the jurisdiction of

the Referee to render the injunction, (the violation

of which was the basis of the Referee's Certificate

of Contempt), said injunction having become final,

and no appeal or other manner of review permitted

by law having been taken therefrom.

4. The District Court erred in sustaining objec-

tions to the jurisdiction of the Referee to issue the

injunction (the violation of which was the basis for

the Certificate of Contempt) for the reason that the

bankruptcy court is a court of equity and as such

has inherent power to enjoin threatened harm to.
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or interference with, the property in custody of the

bankruptcy court.

5. The District Court erred in sustaining objec-

tions to the jurisdiction of the Referee to issue the

injunction (the violation of which was the basis for

the Certificate of Contempt) for the reason that

the bankruptcy court is given power, under Section

2(15) of the Bankruptcy Act of 1938 to enjoin any

threatened harm to, or interference with, the prop-

erty in custody of the bankruptcy court.

6. The District Court erred in sustaining objec-

tions to the jurisdiction of the Referee to issue the

injunction (the violation of which was the basis for

the Certificate of Contempt), for the reason that

respondents are estopped from asserting such ob-

jections by virtue of their having submitted them-

selves to the jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court

by stipulating that the injunction might be entered

against them, by cross-examining the witnesses and

otherwise participating in the proceedings against

them.

7. The District Court erred in sustaining objec-

tions to the jurisdiction of the Referee to issue the

injunction (the violation of which was the basis for

the Certificate of Contempt) for the reason that re-

spondents are estopped from asserting such objec-

tions by virtue of their having failed to take an ap-

peal or review from the injunctive proceedings be-

fore the Referee.

8. The District Court erred in failing to hold

that any purported reservation of jurisdictional ob-
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jections by the respondents was waived and nulli-

fied by the effect of the general appearance made

by respondents in stipulating that the injunction

might be entered against them and by approving

the order of injunction not only as to form but as

to contents as w^ell.

9. The District Court erred in not considering

the Certificate of the Referee and not hearing any

evidence offered in addition thereto, because said

evidence would have shown that respondents inter-

fered with the property in the custody of the bank-

ruptcy court and did so wilfully and intentionally,

and with full knowledge of the harm being done

the property in custody of the bankruptcy court;

and that such conduct constitutes contempt of court

even had there been no injunction.

Dated this 11th day of April, 1941.

RAPHAEL DECHTER &
JOSEPH J. RIFKIND

By R. DECHTER
Attorneys for Appellant

Receipt of copy of the within instrument is

acknowledged this 11th day of Apr., 1941.

OVERTON, LYMAN & PLUMB
By E. RINGE

[Endorsed]: Filed Apr. 14, 1941. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

DESIGNATION OF CONTENTS OF RECORD
ON APPEAL

Appellant herein designates the following por-

tions of this record, proceedings and documents to

be contained in the record on appeal

:

1. Debtor's Petition mider Section 74 of the

Bankruptcy Act, filed on October 14, 1935.

2. Order approving Debtor's petition under Sec-

tion 74 of the Bankruptcy Act, filed on October 14,

1935.

3. Petition by debtor for adjudication, filed No-

vember 23, 1935.

4. Adjudication and order of reference filed No-

vember 26, 1935.

5. Reference to the Honorable Ernest R. Utley,

filed April 1, 1936.

6. Order Appointing Hubert F. Laugharn as

Trustee in Bankruptcy filed January 6, 1936.

7. Order appointing George T. Goggin as Trus-

tee in Bankruptcy, filed January 7, 1941.

8. Petition of Trustee for instructions relative

to Huntington Shore Well, filed April 20, 1940.

9. Order to show cause on Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, filed April 20, 1940.

10. Affidavit of Vernon L. King in connection

with the petition for instructions relative to Himt-

ington Shore Well, filed April 20, 1940.

11. Affidavit of Jack Dave Sterling in connec-

tion with petition for instructions relative to Hunt-

ington Shore Well, filed April 20, 1940.
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12. Exhibits introduced in evidence before the

Referee in the proceedings of April 26, 1940 and

May 1, 1940, said exhibits being described as fol-

lows :

No. 1—Certified copy of regulations covering

the re-drilling operations of wells.

No. 2—Document entitled '^Easement 309,

Huntington Beach'

\

No. 3—Memorandum.

No. 4—Agreement between the Huntington

Beach Townsite Association, by the

Huntington Shore Oil Company.

No. 5—Plat showing Huntington Shore Well

and Bolsa Chica Well courses.

13. Injunction against Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion, et al., filed May 15, 1940.

14. Petition to have Bolsa Chica Corporation,

et al., certified for contempt, filed August 22, 1940.

15. Order to Show Cause on Petition to have

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, et al, certified for

contempt, filed August 22, 1940.

16. Certificate of Contempt dated December 30,

1940.

17. Motion of Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, et

al, for an order to show cause why the Certificate

of Contempt should not be dismissed, filed January

9, 1941.

18. Order to Show Cause on Motion of Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, et al, relative to Certificate

of Contempt, filed January 9, 1941.

19. Order to Show Cause in re contempt against
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Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, filed January 13, 1941.

20. Minute Order of District Judge dated Janu-

ary 30, 1941.

21. Order re Certificate of Contempt filed Janu-

ary 7, 1941.

22. Notice of Appeal, filed February 13, 1941.

23. Directions to Clerk of District Court for

notification of filing of Notice of Appeal and mail-

ing copies thereof to all parties to the judgment,

filed February 13, 1941.

24. Pages 83 to 92, inclusive, of Reporter's

Transcript of April 26, 1940 and May 12, 1940, of

proceedings in re order to show cause on the peti-

tion of the Trustee for instructions, before the

Referee.

25. Order extending time to docket appeal.

26. Statement of points upon which Appellant

intends to rely in this appeal.

27. This Designation of Contents of record on

appeal.

Dated: April 11th, 1941.

RAPHAEL DECHTER &

JOSEPH J. RIFKIND
By R. DECHTER

Attorneys for Appellant

Receipt of copy of the within instrument is

acknowledged this 11th day of Apr., 1941.

OVERTON, LYMAN &
PLUMB

By E. RINGE

[Endorsed]: Filed Apr. 14, 1941. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 9790

GEORGE T. GOGGIN, as Trustee in Bankruptcy

in the Matter of JACK DAVE STERLING,
Bankrupt,

Plaintiff,

vs.

BOLSA CHICA OIL CORPORATION, et al.

Defendants.

COUNTER-DESIGNATION OF CONTENTS OF
RECORD ON APPEAL BY APPELLANT

Comes now the appellant, George T. Goggin, as

Trustee in Bankruptcy of the Estate of Jack Dave

Sterling, Bankrupt, and in response to the designa-

tion of contents of record on appeal of appellees,

files this counter-designation of contents of record

on appeal to be contained in the record on appeal,

in addition to the records, proceedings and docu-

ments heretofore designated by appellant and ap-

pellees :

1. All exhibits introduced in evidence in the

proceedings before the Referee on September 26,

September 30 and October 1, 1940

;

2. All exhibits introduced in evidence in the

proceedings before the Referee on April 26, 1940

and on May 1, 1940

;

3. The following portions of the Reporter's

Transcript of proceedings in re: Trustee vs. Bolsa
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Chica Oil Corporation, of September 26, September

30 and October 1, 1940, before the Referee:

(a) Page 29, line 4 to page 30, line 2, inclusive.

(b) Page 34, line 21 to page 35, line 24, inclusive.

(c) Page 38, line 22 to page 40, line 7, inclusive.

(d) Page 40, line 14 to page 44, line 3, inclusive.

(e) Page 45, lines 8 to 21 inclusive.

(f) Page 56, lines 2 to 22 inclusive.

(g) Page 58, line 1 to page 59, line 20, inclusive,

(h) Page 59, line 24 to page 62, line 6, inclusive,

(i) Page 63, line 17 to page 64, line 2, inclusive.

(j) Page 66, line 8 to page 67, line 9, inclusive.

(k) Page 67, lines 17 to 26 inclusive.

(1) Page 159, line 12 to page 165, line 4, inclu-

sive.

4. The following portions of the Reporter's

Transcript of proceedings on hearing before the

Honorable Leon R. Yankwich on January 30, 1941

:

(a) Page 2, line 1 to page 3, line 15, inclusive.

(b) Page 78, line 24 to page 80, line 5, inclusive.

5. This counter-designation.

Dated: April 19, 1941.

RAPHAEL DECHTER and

JOSEPH J. RIFKIND
By R. DECHTER

Attorneys for Appellant.
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[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

(AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL—
1013a, C. C. P.)

State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

E. Zaringer, being first duly sworn, says: That

affiant is a citizen of the United States and a resi-

dent of the County of Los Angeles; that affiant is

over the age of eighteen years and is not a party to

the within and above entitled action; that affiant's

business address is 633 Subway Terminal Bldg., 417

So. Hill St., Los Angeles, California; that on the

19th day of April, 1941, affiant served the within

Counter-Designation of Contents of Record on Ap-

peal by Appellant on the in said action,

by placing a true copy thereof in an envelope ad-

dressed to the attorneys of record for said appellees,

at the office address of said attorneys, as follows:

(Here quote from envelope name and address of

addressee.) "Messrs. Eugene Overton, Warren S.

Pallette, and Donald H. Ford, Attorneys at Law,

733 Roosevelt Bldg., Los Angeles, California"; and

by then sealing said envelope and depositing the

same, with postage thereon fully prepaid, in the

United States Post Office at Los Angeles, California,

where is located the office of the attorney for the

person by and for whom said sei'vice was made.

That there is delivery service by United States

mail at the place so addressed, or there is a regular
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communication by mail between the place of mailing

and the place so addressed.

E. ZARINGER

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day

of April, 1941.

[Seal] JESSIE DOLFIN
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California.

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

(AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL—
1013a, C. C. P.)

State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

E. Zaringer, being first duly sworn, says: That

affiant is a citizen of the United States and a resi-

dent of the County of Los Angeles; that affiant is

over the age of eighteen years and is not a party

to the within and above entitled action; that affiant's

business address is 633 Subway Terminal Bldg.,

417 So. Hill St., Los Angeles, California; that on

the 19th day of April, 1941, affiant served the

within Counter-Designation of Contents of Record

on Appeal by Appellant on the appellees in said

action, by placing a true copy thereof in an envelope

addressed to the attorneys of record for said ap-

pellees at the office address of said attorneys, as

follows: (Here quote from envelope name and ad-

dress of addressee.) "Elizabeth R. Hensel, Esq., 410
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Park Central Bldg., Los Angeles, California, Wm.
H. Cree, Esq., 1216 Security Bldg., Long Beach,

California"; and by then sealing said envelope and

depositing the same, with postage thereon fully pre-

paid, in the United States Post Office at Los An-

geles, California, where is located the office of the

attorney for the person by and for whom said

service was made.

That there is delivery service by United States

mail at the place so addressed, or there is a regular

communication by mail between the place of mailing

and the place so addressed.

E. ZARINGER

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day

of April, 1941.

[Seal] JESSIE DOLFIN
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 21, 1941. Paul J. O'Brien,

Clerk.

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

DESIGNATION OF CONTENTS OF RECORD
ON APPEAL BY APPELLEES M. M. Mc-

CALLEN CORPORATION, H. H. McVICAR,

C. M. ROOD AND WILLIAM H. CREE.

Appellees M. M. McCallen Corporation, H. H.

McVicar, C. M. Rood and William H. Cree, certain

of the appellees in the above entitled proceedings,
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designate the following portions of the record, pro-

ceedings and dociunents to be contained in the

record on appeal, in addition to the records, pro-

ceedings and documents heretofore designated by

appellant and by appellees Bolsa Chica Oil Corpo-

ration, Thos. W. Simmons and Allan A. Anderson:

1. Exliibits introduced in evidence before the

Referee in the proceedings of September 26, Sep-

tember 30 and October 1, 1940, said exhibits being

described as follows:

Exhibit 3. Drilling and operating agreement

between Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation and M. M.

McCallen Corporation dated August 14, 1940.

Exhibit 4. Assignment of oil and gas lease

dated August 14, 1940 from Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation to M. M. McCallen Corporation.

2. This designation.

Dated: April 18, 1941.

WILLIAM H. CREE
ELIZABETH R. HENSEL

By ELIZABETH R. HENSEL
Attorneys for Appellees

M. M. McCallen Corporation,

H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood

and William H. Cree.

Received copy of the within this 18th day of

AprH, 1941.

R. DECHTER
By H. WEBSTER

Attorney for Trustee.

i
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Received copy of the within this 18th day of

April, 1941.

OVERTON, LYMAN & PLUMB
Attorneys for Appellees

Bolsa Chica et al.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 21, 1941. Paul P. O'Brien,

Clerk.

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

DESIGNATION OF CONTENTS OF RECORD
ON APPEAL BY APPELLEES BOLSA
CHICA OIL CORPORATION, THOS. W.
SIMMONS AND ALLAN A. ANDERSON.

Appellees Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thos. W.
Simmons and Allan A. Anderson, certain of the

appellees in the above entitled action, designate the

following of the record, proceedings and documents

to be contained in the record on appeal, in addition

to the record, proceedings and documents heretofore

designated by appellant:

1. Order authorizing suit against Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation in the state court, filed September

20, 1940.

2. Petition (and attached exhibit) for leave to

sue Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation in the state court,

filed September 20, 1940.

3. Affidavits of Warren S. Pallette and Donald

H. Ford attached to the motion of Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation for an order to show cause why a cer-
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tificate of contempt should not be dismissed, filed

January 9, 1941.

4. The following portions of the Reporter's

Transcript of Proceedings in re: Order to Show
Cause Re: Petition for Instructions of April 26

and May 1, 1940 before the Referee

:

(a) Page 2, line 4 to page 4, line 21, inclusive.

(b) Page 24, lines 22 to 26, inclusive.

(c) Page 82, line 8 to page 83, line 1, inclusive.

5. The following portions of the Reporter's

Transcript of Proceedings in Re : Trustee vs. Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation of September 26, September

30 and October 1, 1940, before the Referee

:

(a) Page 2, lines 1 to 19, inclusive.

(b) Page 10, line 21 to page 24, line 14, inclusive.

(c) Page 28, lines 14 to 17, inclusive.

6. The following portions of the Reporter's

Transcript of Proceedings on Hearing before the

Honorable Leon R. Yankwich of January 30, 1941 :

(a) Page 51, line 13 to page 82, line 3, inclusive.

7. This designation.

Dated: April 18, 1941.

EUGENE OVERTON
WARREN S. PALLETTE
DONALD H. FORD

By DONALD H. FORD
' Attorneys for Appellees

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

Thos. W. Simmons and

Allan A. Anderson.
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Received copy of within April 18, 1941.

ELIZABETH R. HENSEL
Attorney for Certain Appellees.

Received copy of the within this 18th day of

April, 1941.

R. DECHTER
By H. WEBSTER

Attorney for Trustee.

[Endorsed]: Filed Apr. 21, 1941. Paul J. O'Brien,

Clerk.

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

COUNTER-DESIGNATION OF CONTENTS OF
RECORD ON APPEAL BY APPELLEES
BOLSA CHICA OIL CORPORATION,
THOS. W. SIMMONS AND ALLAN A.

ANDERSON.

Appellees Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thos. W.
Simmons and Allan A. Anderson, certain of the

appellees in the above entitled action, because of the

new matter contained in the coimter-designation of

contents of record on appeal by appellant, designate

the following of the record, proceedings and docu-

ments to be contained in the record on appeal, in

addition to the record, proceedings and documents

heretofore designated by appellant in his original

designation and in his counter-designation and in

addition to the record, proceedings and documents

heretofore designated by appellees M. M. McCallen
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Corporation, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and Wil-

liam H. Cree and these appellees

:

1. The following portions of the Reporter's

Transcript of Proceedings in Re: Trustee vs. Bolsa

Chica Oil Cor})oration of September 26, September

30 and October 1, 1940, before the Referee

:

(a) Page 54, line 22 to page 55, line 12,

inclusive. Testimony of witness Earl Ross.)

(b) Page 71, line 14 to page 72, line 1, in-

clusive. (Testimon}^ of witness Vernon King.)

(c) Page 74, line 1, to page 80, line 9, in-

clusive. (Testimony of witness Vernon King.)

(d) Page 81, lines 21 to 23, inclusive. (Testi-

mony of witness Vernon King.)

(e) Page 170, line 4, to page 176, line 16,

inclusive. (Testimony of witness Allan A.

Anderson.)

(f) Page 212, line 12, to page 218, line 4,

inclusive. (Testimony of witness Allan A. An-

derson.)

2. This counter-designation.

Dated: April 22, 1941.

EUGENE OVERTON
WARREN S. PALLETTE
DONALD H. FORD

By DONALD H. FORD
Attorneys for Appellees

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

Thos. W. Simmons and

Allan A. Anderson.
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Received Counter-Designation of Contents of

Record this 22nd day of April, 1941.

ELIZABETH R. HENSEL
By RITA L. STONE

Attorney for Appellees M. M.

McCallen Corporation, H. H.

McVicar, C. M. Rood and

William H. Cree.

Received copy of the above this 22nd day of April,

1941.

RAPHAEL DECHTER
By H. WEBSTER

Attorney for Trustee.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 24, 1941. Paul P. O'Brien,

Clerk.
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Jurisdiction.

The District Court was without jurisdiction to entertain

this proceeding inasmuch as it is a court of Hmited

jurisdiction and, sitting as a court of bankruptcy, cannot

entertain an action of the character here involved. Our

entire brief is devoted to this question.
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Statement of the Case.

The appellant's statement of the case, pages 2, 3 and 4

of appellant's opening brief, is, in the main, correct.

Appellees, however, wish to call the attention of the Court

to the fact that the appearance of attorneys for Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation was special only [Tr. p. 92], and

that the approval of the order of injunction by the appel-

lee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation [Tr. p. 29] and the

stipulation in open court by said appellee [Tr. p. 156]

were both expressly subject to the objection to the juris-

diction of the Court. It should further be pointed out

that the order of the district judge sustaining the objec-

tion of the appellees to the jurisdiction of the Court in

no way finds that the attack is collateral, but, on the

contrary, in his oral opinion the district judge expressly

finds the attack to be direct. [Tr. p. 252.]

Statement of the History of the Case.

A great many of the matters contained in appellant's

statement of the history of the case have no bearing upon

the question of jurisdiction involved in this appeal in

that they occurred after the injunction issued. They

are derived from the certificate of contempt which was

prepared by appellant and which, to a large extent, is not

supported by the evidence adduced before the referee and,

as a result, many of the statements have no support in

fact. Much of the factual matter set forth has lit-

tle, if any, bearin^ii' upon the matter at issue. In view

of the fact that tlie district judge expressly refused

to hear any evidence upon existence of a violation

of the injunction, but merely heard argument on

the question of jurisdiction, and examined the record

of the proceedings prior to the issuance of the injunction
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order, the facts occurring subsequent to the issuance of

the injunctive order are not at issue in this proceeding.

If they were, appellees are prepared to show from the pro-

duction record of appellant's well subsequent to the replac-

ing of the same on production that it has suffered no loss

of production or damage other than the expense of replac-

ing it upon production. Appellees dislike taking the

time of the Court in a discussion of matters not directly

before it, but feel that it is necessary, in view of the

statements of appellant, to make a proper statement of

the facts as disclosed by the record.

At the time of the institution of this proceeding appel-

lant and appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, were the

operators, respectively, of two oil wells located at Hunt-

ington Beach, California, the tops of which oil wells were

located on two separate parcels of property in the town of

Huntington Beach some distance apart, both of said wells

being bottomed beneath the ocean in property belonging to

the State of CaHfornia. [Tr. pp. 19, 44, 45, 101.] Both

of said wells were operated under identical easements

granted by the State of California permitting the opera-

tors to produce oil and gas from beneath the tideland.

These easements give each operator a cylindrical ease-

ment, twenty-four (24) inches in diameter, through the

land of the state, which easement is the only property

right involved. [Tr. p. 117.] At the time of the institu-

tion of these proceedings, appellant's well was producing,

but the well of Appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

was off production due to its casing having collapsed.

Both wells had produced for a number of years, both of

them having been drilled prior to 1934. Each of them had

been redrilled prior to this proceeding. At the time of the

redrilling, referred to by appellant, of its well, it was re-
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drilled in such a manner as to cause its course to come

close to the location of the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation

well, which was then producing. No damage was caused

by appellant to the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation well at

the time of the redrilling of appellant's well. The appel-

lees' well subsequently went off production due to collapse

of its casing, and, while Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation and

its predecessor in interest had made no objection to the re-

drilling of appellant's well, appellant instituted this pro-

ceeding before the referee in an attempt to prohibit the

redrilling of appellees' well, which attempt was success-

ful, inasmuch as said well, due to the present i)roceeding,

has never been completed, in spite of the expenditure of

in excess of $45,000.00 by appellees in such attempt.

The redrilling operation undertaken by appellees, at all

times after the injunction order was issued, was in accord-

ance with the rules and regulations of the State of Cali-

fornia, and expressly approved by the State of California,

the owner of the property into which the two wells were

drilled. Furthermore, the operations conducted by appel-

lees were at no time contrary to the terms of the injunc-

tion made and entered by the referee, even assuming that

such injunction order might have been valid. Appellant

has not alleged or claimed that the appellees' well was

drilled upon or collided with appellant's property or well.

Appellant bases his case on the use of mud by appellees as

the circulating medium. The use of mud in the redrilling

of appellees' well is the- customary procedure in Hunting-

ton Beach as well as elsewhere, and in accordance with

the rules and regulations of the State of California, so

long as such use is limited to areas above the oil bearing

sands. Appellees obtained the consent of appellant's en-

gineer to the use of mud as a circulating medium prior
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to any use thereof. [Tr. p. 225. J After appellant's well

was mudded off, on June 10, 1940, appellant's engineer

expressly approved the continued use of mud in the clean-

ing out of appellees' well, and the continued use of mud in

further redrilling operations of appellees' well from June

10, 1940, until July 18, 1940 [Tr. pp. 227, 195, 197], at

which time appellees had drilled to the top of the oil sand

and changed to oil as a circulating medium. [Tr. pp. 226,

227.] Appellees at no time improperly used mud when

drilling in the oil sand, or at any time after the injunc-

tion, without the consent of appellant's authorized agent.

The redrilling of wells in Huntington Beach field is

a common and usual practice and it is impossible to redrill

such wells without using mud as the circulating medium.

(In drilling an oil well, a fluid, usually special types of

clay and water (mud) is circulated through the drill pipe

for three reasons : ( 1 ) to remove from the hole the ma-

terial cut by the drill; (2) to lubricate the drill pipe; and

(3) to maintain a cap or weight to counter-balance the

gas pressure in the formation. If a well is drilled close

to a producing well, there is a possibility that the drilling

mud may pass through the producing formations into the

neighboring well. In this event, such neighboring well

may temporarily be shut down while the mud is cleaned

out, or such mud may be pumped out in the usual course

of pumping operations.) Many such wells have been re-

drilled without damage to adjoining wells. The damage to

appellant's well in this case was largely contributed to, if

not wholly caused by, appellant's own actions in failing to



stop pumping its well during such time as appellees were

drilling in the proximity of appellant's well. [Tr. p. 185.]

In the latter part of July, 1940, after appellee, Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, had drilled several hundred feet

into the oil sand and was about to complete its well, due to

the condition of the structure and the use of oil as a cir-

culating medium, the well caved in and it was, therefore,

necessary, in order to complete the same, to back up, re-

commence drilling above the oil sand, and use mud as a

circulating medium. [Tr. p. 231.] Appellees asked the

permission of appellant's engineer, in accordance with the

terms of the injunction, to change back to mud. This per-

mission was refused. Rather than violate the injunction,

even though it was believed to be void, appellee, Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, sold the well to appellee, M. M.

McCallen Corporation [Tr. p. 202], which thereupon took

over the well and cleaned out and surveyed the well. M.

M. McCallen Corporation conducted no drilling opera-

tions, although it did use mud to circulate the well while

cleaning it out to its then bottom far above the oil sand

and in surveying its course. These operations were sus-

pended shortly after the service of the contempt citation

and upon completion of surveying operations, and have

not been recommenced.

The above facts, to the extent the Court cannot take

judicial notice thereof. People v. Associated Oil Co., 211

Cal. 93, 105; Gilhreath v. States Oil Corp. (C. C. A. 5th),

4 Fed. (2d) 232, are supported by the record, and this

statement is made to disabuse the mind of the Court of

the impression to be gained from appellant's statement of

the history of the case that there was a violation of the

injunction and an intentional disregard of the order of

the referee.
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Questions Involved in This Appeal

1. Does a referee in bankruptcy have the power to en-

join, in a summary proceeding, without consent, or at all,

the drilling of an oil well in a lawful manner without

negligence by and on property of a third person, a

stranger to the bankruptcy proceeding?

2. May not the invalidity of the order of injunction

of the referee be shown upon hearing of the referee's

certificate of contempt for alleged violation of such order,

in the same bankruptcy proceeding and Court, when such

order was made in excess of the jurisdiction of the ref-

eree?

3. Upon direct attack on the validity of such order of

the referee, may not error be shown in the making of

such order as well as excess of jurisdiction, lack of juris-

diction or failure to exercise jurisdiction in the proper

manner ?

4. Does the act of stipulating that an order may be

entered by the referee upon the express condition that the

person so stipulating reserves his objections to jurisdic-

tion, timely made, prevent him from showing the lack of

jurisdiction of the referee to make such order, on hearing

of the certificate of contempt for alleged violation of such

order ?

5. May consent be given to the entry of an order in

excess of the jurisdiction of the referee which will pre-

clude the raising of such lack of jurisdiction, on hearing of

the certificate of contempt for alleged violation of such

order in the same bankruptcy proceeding and same district

court ?



ARGUMENT
I.

The District Court Had No Jurisdiction To Make the

Order of Injunction Which Is, Therefore, Invalid

and Void, and the District Court Did Not Err In

Dismissing The Contempt.

1. The Injunction Prohibiting Appellee From a Normal

and Lawful Use of Its Property, Was Beyond the Juris-

diction of Any Court.

2. The Order of Injunction Was Beyond the Jurisdiction

of the District Court.

The facts indicate that appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, an operator in the same oil field as appellant,

was about to redrill and deepen an oil well from a town lot

drilling site, not adjacent to, but in the neighborhood of

the town lot drilling site of appellant. Appellant con-

ceived the possibility that this operation might result in

harm to its well.

Anticipating that appellee Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

might in its drilling operations, mud off appellant's well,

appellant applied for and was given an injunction by the

referee in bankruptcy, which is the basis of the present

contempt proceedings.

It is our contention that such act was in excess of the

jurisdiction of the referee, and that had such an applica-

tion been made to any, court, such an injunction would

have been in excess of its jurisdiction.

Jurisdiction is a word that has been given so many

various meanings that its particular use in a given in-

stance needs definition. We propose here to discuss juris-

diction as it involves the power of the court, it being our



belief that no court, under the facts of the case at bar,

has jurisdiction to grant an injunction. Illustrative of

the lack of the type of jurisdiction that we believe here

exists is the following explanatory statement on jurisdic-

tion found in 28 Am. Jur. 423 reading as follows

:

"Under constitutional provisions which confer

power upon certain courts to issue writs of injunction

and all writs necessary to enforce their jurisdiction,

and statutes which in broad terms provide for cases

in which injunction may issue, such courts may issue

writs of injunction in all cases in which courts of

chancery would have power to issue them conform-

ably to established rules of equity. The legislature

may change the substantive law and in so doing in-

crease or reduce the subject matter upon which the

jurisdiction of courts to issue injunction operates.

Jurisdiction, in this connection, does not relate to

the right of the parties as between each other, but to

the power of the court. The question of its existence

is an abstract inquiry, not involving the existence of

an equity to be enforced, or the right of the plaintiff

to avail himself of it if it exists. It precedes these

questions, and a decision upholding the jurisdiction

of the court is entirely consistent with a denial of

any equity, either in the plaintiff or in anyone else.

It exists, in such sense as to render injunction obli-

gatory, when the court granting it has authority to

decide whether the application for it shall be granted

—it does not depend on the correctness of the de-

cision. Courts sometimes say that there is no jurisdic-

tion to award injunction, when they mean merely that

equity ought not to give the relief asked. In other

words, they are referring rather to a lack of sufficient

grounds for issuing the writ than to want of power.

The distinction should be kept in mind between total



—10-

want of jurisdiction—absolute absence of power to

entertain the injunction suit and award the remedy

—

and an unjustifiable or erroneous exercise of juris-

diction. A proper understanding of these two phases

of jurisdiction is necessary in determining the validity

and binding efifect of the injunction decree and its

vulnerability to collateral attack."

In the present case an injunction was issued on the mere

apprehension of injury. No injury was threatened, no

invasion of appellant's property was imminent. The pro-

ceedings that culminated in the injunction were unusual

to say the least. Appellant, an oil operator in a common

pool, hailed a fellow operator into court and asked that

the court instruct this fellow operator as to the use he

might make of his property. There was no claim that the

fellow operator was violating any law, or that he was

using his property or was about to use his property in an

unlawful manner. There was no charge of negligence.

There was no claim that appellee was about to perform

any act in redrilling its well that was not the usual or

customary practice in the industry. Yet appellee was

brought into court and was subjected to a broad injunction

which virtually gave to appellant control of appellee's drill-

ing operations.

In short, one property owner was permitted to control

and to dictate his neighbor's use of his property. Appell-

ant claims no property interest in appellee's property. Ap-

pellant points to no statute that makes appellee's property

subservient to appellant. There is no common law princi-

ple that would justify its assertion of dominion over its

neighbor. No nuisance was involved. No right of appell-

ant was invaded or even threatened. We submit that a

monstrous wrong was done to appellee; private rights
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were ruthlessly invaded and the referee in bankruptcy ex-

ceeded his power in granting such an injunction. He

purported to enjoin acts of appellee concerning which no

court had authority to invade by injunction.

This is not a situation where it may be said that the

referee was simply acting to protect the property of the

bankrupt estate. He was not so acting. He was super-

vising appellee's use of its property, under the guise of

protecting appellant's property.

If a referee in bankruptcy can tell appellee how to con-

duct its drilling operations, he can likewise supervise all

other neighboring operators, and as it is common knowl-

edge that due to the fugacious character of oil and gas,

what one operator does in a field to a greater or less de-

gree affects all operators in the field, it follows that a

referee under the disguise of protecting bankrupt assets,

may control an entire oil pool. Such is not the law.

It would be absurd to contend that by the scheme of in-

junction, or on the theory of protecting property in the

custody of the court, a trustee in bankruptcy of an estate

that had as an asset a motor vehicle, if a third person was

involved in an accident with this motor vehicle, could hold

in contempt of court and for damages in a contempt pro-

ceeding, such third person. The possibility of being in-

volved in an automobile accident is as imminent as dam-

age from drilling. Because there have been automobile

accidents, can a referee enjoin all residents of a district

from having an accident involving bankrupt property?

May he by injunction, dictate driving speeds for others,

the type of gasoline used, the kind of tires, and the like?

And may he, in the event of accident, hold third persons

guilty of contempt and assess damages, denying a jury
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trial, and ignoring all questions of negligence on the part

of such other person and contributory negligence on the

part of the operator of the trust estate vehicle? Such in

legal effect is appellant's case.

Illustrative of our contention as to our right to the law-

ful use of our property without interference from third

persons, see:

22 Cal Jttr. 419;

Hoffman v. Tuolumne County Water Co., 10 Cal.

413 (1858);

Sutliff V. Sweetzuater Water Co., 182 Cal. 34

(1920).

Equity will not restrain a property owner from a lawful

use of his property.

American Bank & Trust Co. v. Federal Reserve

Bank of Atlanta, 67 L. Ed. 1153, 262 U. S. 643

(1922);

City of Janesville v. Carpenter, 77 Wis. 288, 46

N. W. 128, 8 L. R. A. 808 (1890).

See also:

Beauchamp v. United States, 76 Fed. (2d) 663

(C. C. A. 9th, 1935);

Vallely v. Northern F. & M. his. Co., 254 U. S.

348, 65 L. Ed. 297 (1920).

In American Bank dr Trust Co. v. Federal Reserve

Bank of Atlanta, supra, plaintiff sought to enjoin the

Federal Reserve Bank, by offering superior facilities for

clearing of checks. In so doing, the Federal Reserve Bank

subjected country banks to losses. (Elimination of dis-

counts and by speed in clearance, loss of interest.) Plain-
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tiff sought to enjoin the Federal Reserve from so acting.

The court said:

"Country banks are not entitled to protection

against legitimate competition. Their loss here shown

is of the kind to which business concerns are com-

monly subjected when improved facilities are intro-

duced by others, or a more efficient competitor enters

the field. It is damnum absque injuria."

The injunction was denied.

Mr. Justice Brandeis' language is equally applicable

here. If, as a result of a lawful non-negligent use of our

property, plaintiff was damaged, it would have been dam-

num absque injuria. Under such circumstances a plain-

tiff, because he anticipates the possibility of a loss for

which the law gives him no remedy, cannot by the device

of an injunction, create a right that otherwise is non-

existent in the law.

This is strikingly illustrated by the case of City of

Janesville v. Carpenter, 77 Wis. 288, 46 N. W. 128, 8

L. R. A. 808 (1890). The City of Janesville and Janes-

ville Cotton Mills sought to enjoin defendant from erect-

ing a building on Rock River on property owned by de-

fendant. The building would involve the driving of pil-

ing. The theory of plaintiff city, when reduced to its

fundamentals, was that if defendant so built, other per-

sons might follow his example, and when similar build-

ings extend up and down the river, danger by fire and

flood, and to the public health would result. The theory

of the Janesville Cotton Mills was that the erection would

cause the water of the river to rise and set back to some

extent at the place where the mill took its water. There

v/as no evidence that this would be harmful.
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As to the city's contention the court said

:

''This is a most remarkable case, and there has

never been anything like it. It is not charged that

the proposed building will in itself do any harm in

any respect whatever, or that the defendant has not

the right to build it where he proposes to build it, but

that it may possibly be followed as an example by

others in building buildings which may possibly do

harm. It would be a new case where one had actually

done something in itself right and harmless, and he

should be sued, because others had done something

wrong and injurious by following his example, and

it would be a strange case to enjoin one from doing

something right and harmless in itself, because others

may possibly do something wrong and injurious by

following his example; and yet the latter is the pre-

sent case. A mere example is not actionable. Such

is the action in favor of the City."

Concerning the Janesville Cotton Mills case the court

said:

''We think the learned counsel of the appellant is

right in claiming that the complaint does not charge

facts sufficient to state any cause of action known to

the general laws of the land and the practice of courts

in favor of either plaintiffs. But, even if the com-

plaint sufficiently charged that the consequences pre-

dicted would be produced by the proposed building,

the City of Janesville has no such corporate interest

in them as would authorize it to maintain such an

action. Milwaukee v. Milwaukee & B. R. Co., 7 Wis.

85 ; Sheboygan v. Sheboygan & F. du L. R. Co., 21

Wis. 668.

But it is sufficient that no wrong, injury or dam-

age is charged. By the extended jurisdiction of the
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court in equity, by chapter 190 of the Laws of 1882

amending section 3180, Rev. Stat., there must be

some special injury or necessity to protect the rights

of some person, to grant an injunction. As a private

nuisance or a pubHc nuisance, by which some private

person has suffered some special and peculiar injury,

there must be material annoyance, inconvenience, dis-

comfort or hurt, and the violation of another's rights

in an essential degree. Wood, Nuis. 1-4.

The law gives protection only against substantial

injury, and the injury must be tangible, or the com-

fort, enjoyment or use must be materially impaired.

Stadler v. Griehen, 61 Wis. 500; Pcmioyer v. Allen,

56 Wis. 502, and many other cases in this court.

It is a maxim of the law that wrong without dam-

age or damage without wrong does not constitute a

cause of private action. It is charged that this build-

ing will be in violation of an ordinance of said City.

That would not give a cause of action for an injunc-

tion, even if the ordinance so provided. Waupoii v.

Moore, 34 Wis. 450.

The argument of the learned counsel of the re-

spondents, and the authorities cited on the question

whether the proposed building will obstruct the navi-

gation of the river, are impertinent to the case. There

is nothing in the case that involves any such question

in the remotest degree. Within any grounds or rea-

sons known to the well-settled principles and practice

of equity jurisprudence, the complaint states no case

for an injunction, or for any other purpose. The

action is not based on any statute which gives a right

of action in such a case. But the learned counsel of

the respondent cites chapter 423, Laws 1887, in sup-

port of the action. This Statute is, if possible more

marvelous than the complaint."
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The court then proceeds to bold the statute unconstitu-

tional as special legislation.

In the present case there was no wrong threatened on

which appellant was entitled to damages, and damage

without wrong does not constitute a cause of private

action. Where such are the facts, a complaint cannot

state a cause of action for an injunction—the court lacks

jurisdiction. Appellant here, by the guise of injunction

and the remedy of civil contempt, is seeking damages un-

der facts where the law denies it damages. It is seeking

to establish a principle of liability without fault to circum-

vent the law by its scheme of an injunction.

An analogous case is Beaiichamp v. United States, 76

Fed. (2d) 663, which establishes the law in this, the 9th

Circuit.

There, a referee in bankruptcy, following a trustee's

sale of the business of the bankrupt estate, an insurance

agency corporation, enjoined Beauchamp and his sons who

had owned all but qualifying shares of the corporation,

from reengaging in the same business, from competing

with the purchaser and from soliciting former customers

and patronage. It was held by this court as follows:

"Appellant was under no contractual obligation to

refrain from soliciting customers of the former busi-

ness of which he was an agent. The right to use his

own name in earning a livelihood should not be taken

away. While a covenant not to solicit can be implied

in a voluntary transfer, there is no such implication

in an involuntary transfer. The policy of the Bank-

ruptcy Act to give the bankrupt a fresh start in life

would be defeated if he were precluded from engag-
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ing in a similar business or from soliciting his old

customers. Were the policy of our bankrupt statutes

otherwise, instead of being a mode of relieving the

debtor, it would close to him every avenue of hope

for the future. Helmhold v. Henry T. Hclmbold

Mfg. Co., 53 How. Prac. (N. Y.) 453; Theobald-

Jansen Electric Co. v. Harry I. Wood E. Co., 285

F. 29 (C. C. A. 6) ; Bellows v. Bellows, 24 Misc. 482,

53 N. Y. S. 853.

The order of the referee appears invalid, for the

reason that it is permanent, extends to all business,

and is not restricted to any particular locality. The

Code provides that: 'One who sells the good-will of

a business may agree with the buyer to refrain from

carrying on a similar business within a specified

county, city, or a part thereof, so long as the buyer,

or any person deriving title to the good-will from

him, carries on a Hke business therein.' (Italics

ours.) Civ. Code Cal., Sec. 1674.

In order that disobedience of this injunction or-

der may constitute contempt, it is necessary that the

order be valid. Disobedience of a void mandate, or-

der, judgment, or decree, or one issued by a court

without jurisdiction of the subject-matter and the

parties litigant, is not contempt.

When '* * * a court of the United States un-

dertakes, by its process of contempt, to punish a man
for refusing to comply with an order which that

court had no authority to make, the order itself,

being without jurisdiction, is void, and the order

punishing for the contempt is equally void. * * *'

Ex parte Fisk, 113 U. S. 713, 5 S. Ct. 724, 726, 28 L.

Ed. 1117; Ex parte Terry, 128 U. S. 289, 9 S. Ct. 77,

32 L. Ed. 405; In re Ayers, 123 U. S. 443, 8 S. Ct.

164, 31 L. Ed. 216."



—18—

There as here, an order was made in excess of the

jurisdiction of the referee and it was there held that con-

tempt cannot be predicated on an order where such juris-

diction is lacking.

As a summary to this point we desire to (juote from

the oral opinion of the Honorable Judge Leon R. Yank-

wich in the court below:

''This order, in addition to enjoining the defend-

ants, also gave authority to the trustee to institute

action for damages or for injunctive relief. They

were brought here on a contempt citation and it

was insisted that the court penalize them for the

violation of this injunction of the court. In other

words, the court has power to impose a fine and im-

pose it by way of damages, then allow the estate

later on to assess additional damages for the loss

caused by the acts themselves after the court had

imposed the penalty for violation of its interdict.

The courts lately have scrutinized records and have

raised questions relating to jurisdiction when the

thought never occurred to counsel and was never

even suggested by counsel to the court below. I feel,

in a case of this character, where the challenge over

jurisdiction has been made, the court should inquire

into it, I am satisfied that the court has no juris-

diction whatsoever and that their appearance and re-

sponse to an order to show cause, which they have to

obey under penalty of having default taken against

them, didn't constitute a waiver. And if, as I believe,

it is beyond the power of the bankruptcy court to,

in effect, make a declaration that unless the well is

drilled in a certain way damage will result and the

man will be enjoined from doing something on his
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own property, property which is not the subject of

bankruptcy, his actions therein, in the faikire to re-

view, does not involve a waiver on his part."

We have heretofore discussed the question of jurisdic-

tion from the aspect of any equity court, and have con-

tended that no court has jurisdiction to enter the injunc-

tion order here for review. We desire briefly to consider

the special question of the jurisdiction of a Federal Dis-

trict Court, and of its Referee, as it applies to the facts

of the case.

The District Court is a court of limited jurisdiction.

{Simkins' Federal Practice, 3d Ed., Sec. 23, p. 36; 28

U. S. C. A., Sec. 41 (1).)

There is no presumption in favor of jurisdiction, but

on the contrary the presumption is against jurisdiction,

and jurisdiction must affirmatively appear on the face of

the record in order to vest the court with jurisdiction.

{Simkins Federal Practice, 3d Ed., Sec. 26, p. 38.)

The burden of establishing the jurisdiction is upon

plaintiff, and it never shifts. {Simkins' Federal Practice,

3d Ed., Sec. 29, p. 43.)

Objection to the jurisdiction may be raised at any stage

of the proceeding. {Siinkins' Federal Practice, 3d Ed.,

Sec. 27, p. 38.)

Under the Constitution of the United States, there must

be an actual existing factual controversy, and no advisory

opinion may be rendered by the Federal courts. (Sim-

kins' Federal Practice, 3d Ed., Sec. 24, p. 37, citing cases.)
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It follows from the above that it is incumbent upon the

appellant to establish from the record affirmatively the ex-

istence of the jurisdiction of the referee in the proceeding.

The rule is well stated in 20 American Jurisprudence,

Sec. 31, p. 224, as follows:

"It would seem to follow, and in fact has become

an established principle of equity, that one may not

be enjoined from doing lawful acts to protect or en-

force his rights of property or of person even though

damage or loss may result to another as a necessary

consequence thereof."

The mere fact then that appellant may have suffered

damage is not ipso facto sufficient as a ground for vesting

the Court with jurisdiction to have issued an order of

the character here involved. That which appellees have

done has not been shown to be an unlawful, wilful, negli-

gent or unreasonable use of their property, or a nuisance,

or anything else than customary and ordinary oil field

practice in the field in which the property is located. It

is the contention of appellees that no right of action of

any nature or character to recover damages exists in ap-

pellant in the absence of a showing of negligence or in-

tentional injury, which has not been alleged or proven.

The order of the referee did not enjoin appellees from

trespassing upon the property of the bankrupt. It af-

firmatively prohibited them from taking a i)articular course

in the drilling of their well, and from the use of certain
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materials in connection with such drilling. There is no

allegation that appellees approached closer to the well than

the prohibited distance. The only allegation is that ap-

pellees used mud as a circulating medium contrary to the

terms of the injunction, which is a fact appellees contend

is not the case, and cannot be proven, even if the injunc-

tive order were valid.

If the appellant is predicating his case upon the general

equity jurisdiction of the District Court, it is obvious that

no such jurisdiction existed for the following reasons

:

1. No diversity of citizenship between the parties was

alleged or appears from the record.

2. There is no allegation of inadequacy or uncertainty

of damages.

3. There is no allegation of continuous trespass.

4. There is no allegation of the existence of a nuisance.

5. There is no allegation of an unlawful act.

6. There is no allegation of the insolvency of appel-

lees.

7. There is no civil liability for the damage suffered

under any circumstances.

All of the cases cited by appellant in his brief, dealing

with the power to issue injunctions, are based upon one or

more of the above grounds. Appellant has filed suit for

damages in the Superior Court of the State of California,

which is now pending. If appellant is entitled to any dam-
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ages, he will recover them in that action. It is the conten-

tion of appellees in that action, as well as in this proceed-

ing, that there is no liability in any event in the absence

of negligence.

If, as heretofore considered, appellant is relying upon

the bankruptcy jurisdiction of the Court, it is equally

obvious that there is no jurisdiction, inasmuch as the

bankruptcy jurisdiction is limited to enjoining trespass

upon, or interference with the possession of property be-

longing to, and in the custody or possession of the bank-

ruptcy estate. All of the appellant's cited cases on this

point show, upon the facts and in the quotations, that the

power is so limited. In no case which the appellant has

cited, or which we have found, has the District Court

under the bankruptcy jurisdiction enjoined a stranger to

a bankruptcy proceeding from making a lawful use of his

own property which is not in the possession, custody or

control of the bankruptcy court.

We submit, therefore, that there was no jurisdiction for

the action of the referee in issuing an injunction such as

here before the Court. In so doing he exceeded his power

as an arm of the Federal District Court. We have shown

that no court of equity possesses the jurisdiction to make

such an order and that P>deral courts, being courts of

limited jurisdiction, certainly have no such jurisdiction,

and that even if they had, in the present case so many

other jurisdictional factors are absent that the injunction

was wholly void.
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II.

The Referee Had No Jurisdiction to Make the Order

of Injunction in a Summary Proceeding, Which
Order Is Therefore Invalid and Void.

Whether or not plenary jurisdiction existed in the Dis-

trict Court, the referee is without power or authority, in

a summary proceeding, to enjoin a stranger to the bank-

ruptcy from performing a lawful act upon his own prop-

erty. The jurisdiction, in this connection, of the referee,

is stated as follows at 8 Corpus Juris Secundum 981

:

"The jurisdiction and authority of a Referee in

Bankruptcy under a general reference is limited to

ordinary administrative proceedings in bankruptcy

and such controversial matters as arise therein and

are in effect a part thereof. He is without jurisdic-

tion to pass on issues raised in a plenary suit by the

trustee against a third party to set aside a fraudulent

transfer or conveyance and affecting property not in

the custody or control of the court of bankruptcy.

A Referee cannot entertain an action to collect a

debt or a suit for specific performance."

An examination of the authorities collected in 8 Corpus

Juris Secundum, page 982, indicates that the referee's

power to issue injunctions is limited to enjoining inter-

ference with the trustee's possession of property in his

control. The only case whch we have found dealing with

injunctive power over property not in the possession or

control of the bankruptcy is Jn re Ward, 104 Fed. 985

(Dist. Court, Mass.). In this case the referee attempted
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to enjoin disposition by a third party of property claimed

by the bankruptcy estate but in the possession of such

third party. The Court held that the referee was without

jurisdiction to order such injunction due to his lack of

power to recover possession. The so-called turn-over

cases, by analogy, are practically conclusive on the limited

nature of the referee's summary jurisdiction. As was said

in In re MciscUnan (C. C. A. 2nd), 105 Fed. (2d) 995:

*Tt is now settled that, if there is a real and

substantial controversy of law or fact as to property

held adversely to a bankrupt * * * the bankruptcy

court is 'without jurisdiction' to adjudicate the mat-

ter but the trustee must have resort to a plenary

suit."

Similarly, in Harrison v. Chamberlain, 271 U. S. 191,

70 L. Ed. 897, 46 S. Ct. 467, which involved a sum-

mary proceeding to determine title to property held

by a stranger to a bankrupt estate, the Court held

that, if there is any substantial (|uestion of law or

fact, even if fraudulent, it inust ])c determined in

a plenary action. In this case the defendant objected to

the jurisdiction, was overruled, and then answered, which

action did not estop him from later objecting to the sum-

mary jurisdiction.

A similar case is Weidhoni v. Levy, 253 U. S. 268,

64 L. Ed. 898, 40 S. Ct. 534, which case contains

a very good discussion as to the difference between

a bankrupcty "proceeding" and a "controversy."

This case holds that the referee is merel}- an officer
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of the Court and has no power in the absence of con-

sent to determine adverse claims.

A similar case, which is cited and discussed in Matter

V. Baldwin, 291 U. S. 610, cited and relied on by appel-

lant at page 46 of his brief, is Tauhel-Scott-Kitnmiller

Co. V. Fox, 264 U. S. 426, 68 L. Ed. 770, 44 S. Ct. 396.

This case involved a summary proceeding to declare void

a lien on property in possession of the sheriff and not

the trustee. The Court held that there was no jurisdic-

tion in the referee, either summary or plenary, to make

such declaration. The Court says, at page 438:

"Neither the judgment creditor nor the sheriff had

become a party to the bankruptcy proceeding. There

was no consent to the adjudication by the bankruptcy

court of the adverse claims. The objection to the

jurisdiction was seasonably made and was insisted

upon throughout. The bankruptcy court, therefore,

did not acquire jurisdiction over the controversy in

summary proceedings, nor did it otherwise."

Proceedings before the referee are informal and re-

quire no formal pleadings defining the issues in contro-

versy. It would be hard to find a better example of the

injustice which would result from extending the jurisdic-

tion of the referee than is present in this case. Appel-

lees believe, and contend that there is no liability of any

character under the circumstances, which contention they

will have an opportuinty to sustain under well established

rules of procedure in the Superior Court of the State of

California in the action now pending therein filed by ap-
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pellant. If the referee, upon informal proceedings arising

on a petition for instructions, with only a few days' no-

tice, with no issues defined, and involving a highly techni-

cal engineering matter which might easily be the subject

of protracted litigation requiring the testimony of highly

skilled technical engineers, has authority to enter an in-

junctive order of the character involved in the case at bar,

violation of which submits the appellees to civil damages,

where no legal liability or fault exists, the miscarriage

of justice is so apparent as to be obvious.

To summarize, the appellees contend:

1. That there is no liability of any character under

the circumstances in the absence of alleged and proven

fault, which has not been done.

2. There is no injunctive power in any court upon the

facts at bar.

3. Even if fault were alleged and could be proved,

and even if there were power to issue an injunction in the

State court, the Federal court has no such power, because

the case is not within either the equity or bankruptcy

jurisdictions of the District Court.

4. Even if all of the contentions above made could not

be sustained, the referee has no summary jurisdiction to

issue the order, violation of which is complained of by

the appellant in the absence of consent by appellees, which

consent was not given, as hereinafter in this brief is con-

clusively shown.
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III.

The Invalidity of the Order of Injunction May Be
Shown on the Hearing on the Certificate of Con-

tempt and the District Court Did Not Err in Per-

mitting the Attack and Dismissing the Contempt.

1. The Attack Was a Direct Attack, and Hence, Whether

the Order Is Void on Its Face or Merely Erroneous,

the District Court Properly Dismissed the Contempt

Proceeding.

2. Even if the Attack Was Collateral, It Could Be Made,

as the Order of Injunction Was Void on Its Face as

Beyond the Jurisdiction of the Court to Make.

3. In Any Event, the District Court Has Power to Vacate

or Modify Its Orders in Bankruptcy at Any Time Dur-

ing the Pendency of the Bankruptcy Proceeding, and

the Order of the District Court Dismissing the Certifi-

cate of Contempt and Impliedly Vacating the Order of

Injunction Was Validly Made and Is Conclusive on

Appeal in the Absence of Abuse of Discretion.

Whether the attack is direct or collateral, lack of juris-

diction being apparent on the face of the record, the ques-

tion as to whether or not the appellees may raise on con-

tempt proceedings the question of the authority of the

referee to render the injunction will stand or fall with the

determination of the Court of the first point made in this

brief that the referee had no jurisdiction to make the

order. (21 Corpus Juris Secundum, Sec. 116, p. 177.)

That is to say, if the referee had jurisdiction, this appeal

is determined adversely to appellees in any event (unless

the decision of the District Court is conclusive as herein-

after pointed out) ; if the referee did not have jurisdic-
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tion, such lack of jurisdiction being apparent from the

face of the record, whether the attack may be said to be

direct or collateral, it may be raised at the hearing upon

the certificate of contempt and this appeal is determined

adversely to appellant.

It hardly needs further argument than the mere state-

ment above made that, under the circumstances here in-

volved, the question of the nature of the attack is imma-

terial and the determination thereof is merely ancillary to

the determination of the main question as to whether or

not the referee had jurisdiction to make the order. In

view of the fact, however, that this is the point upon which

appellant mainly relies, rather than lack of jurisdiction

itself, and the one to which he has devoted the major por-

tion of his brief, it is well to discuss in general the cases

cited by him, and upon which he relies, even though his

theory of the case is erroneous.

It should be pointed out at the start that appellant has

not directed the attention of the Court to any case in-

volving a situation similar to that at bar. He has not

cited a single case arising on a contempt proceeding in

the same bankruptcy proceeding as that in which the order

violated was issued. Whether this is because he was un-

able to find any such case, or whether he studiously avoided

them, we are unable to say. In any event, he is forced

to argue by analogy, from cases citing the hornbook rule,

that a collateral attack may not be made upon a judgment

unless it is void on its face. Every case cited in appel-

lant's opening brief, with possibly one excei)tion, involved

two distinct proceedings. The attack in each instance was

made in a separate action upon a judgment or order ob-

tained in a prior action; hence, the attack was obviously
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collateral. The exception is the case of Robert H. Jack-

son V. Irving Trust Co., ct al., 85 L. Ed. Adv. Op. 310.

That case arose on motion to vacate. The Circuit Court

held the attack collateral. The Supreme Court does not

find it necessary to do so. It says (p. 313), ''The suit

in question was precisely within the terms of the Act."

That case was merely an attempt to retry all the issues of

the prior proceeding. It was not a contempt proceeding

and does not apply to the problem at bar even by way of

analogy.

The appellant is relying, as above stated, solely on anal-

ogy and general language used by the courts in discussing

the ordinary rule of collateral attack. Appellees are not,

but on direct authority. The District Judge, in rendering

his decision in this case, expressly stated that the attack

in this case is a direct attack and not a collateral attack.

He pointed out that it is inherent in a contempt proceed-

ing arising in the same bankruptcy proceeding in w^hich

the order of injunction is made, that the attack is by its

very nature direct and not collateral. In taking this view,

he relied upon the leading case of Ex parte Sawyer, which

he discusses in his opinion [Tr. pp. 253 to 259], and

which fully substantiates his view\ In addition to this

case, the leading case on the subject which has been cited

in a number of instances is Ex parte Fisk, 113 U. S. 713,

28 L. Ed. 1117, 5 S. Ct. 724, which expressly holds that

the matter of the validity of the original order may be

raised in a contempt proceeding, arising by virtue of vio-

lation of such order, and if the order is void for lack of

jurisdiction, the defendant may not be held in contempt.

In this case the Federal Court directed defendant to sub-

mit to examination. He refused and was committed for
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contempt. The case arises on writ of habeas corpus.

While, under some circumstances, the Court had the right

to order an examination, it was found that they were not

present in this case, and, hence, the order was beyond the

power of the Court to issue. The Supreme Court exam-

ined the record to ascertain this fact. The Fi'sk case is

relied upon by the Circuit Court of Appeals of the Ninth

Circuit in determining, in 1935, the case of Bcauchamp v.

United States, 76 Fed. (2d) 663, referred to hereinbefore.

In this case, an order to show cause was issued by the

referee in bankruptcy requiring the respondent to appear

before the referee to show cause why he should not be en-

joind from competing with the insurance business ther-

tofore conducted by the bankrupt corporation of which

he was stockholder. The referee enjoined the servants and

employees of the bankrupt from doing certain proscribed

competitive acts. The respondent subsequently performed

certain of the proscribed acts, and the contempt proceed-

ings were thereupon brought. The defendant demurred to

the information in the contempt proceeding and was over-

ruled, was found guilty and fined. Tlie Circuit Court

found that the order of the referee was invalid for the

reason that it was permanent, extended to all business, and

was not restricted to any particular locality, and hence, in

excess of the jurisdiction of the Court. The Court then

goes on to say:

"In order that disobedience of this injunction or-

der may constitute contempt, it is necessary that the

order be valid. Disobedience of a void mandate, or-

der, judgment, or decree, or one issued by a court

without jurisdiction of the subject-matter and parties

litigant, is not contempt.
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"When <* * * a court of the United States un-

dertakes, by its process of contempt, to punish a

man for refusing" to comply with an order which that

court had no authority to make, the order itself, be-

ing without jurisdiction, is void, and the order pun-

ishing for the contempt is equally void. * * *'

Ex parte Fisk, 113 U. S. 713, 5 S. Ct. 724, 726, 28

L. Ed. 1117; ii.r parte Terry, 128 U. S. 289, 9 S. Ct.

77, 32 L. Ed. 405; In re Ayers, 123 U. S. 443, 8

S. Ct. 164, 31 L. Ed. 316."

This case is squarely in point, and being decided by the

Ninth Circuit, is determinative of this appeal. That the

question of collateral attack was considered and deter-

mined is clearly shown by Justice Wilbur's concurring

opinion.

Now, turning to the case upon which appellant prin-

cipally relies, to-wit: Stall v. Gottlieb, 305 U. S. 165, 83

L. Ed. 104, 59 S. Ct. 134, we find the same distinction

made. The Court at page 176, in distinguishing the case

of Vallely v. Northern F. & M. Insurance Company, 254

U. S. 348, 65 L. Ed. 297, 41 S. Ct. 116, states as fol-

lows:

"The case is also distinguishable because the mo-

tion to vacate was made in the same bankruptcy pro-

ceeding as the order."

In other words, Stoll v. Gottlieb involved two distinct pro-

ceedings and, hence, the attack was collateral. Justice

Reed obviously had in mind llie fact that if the attack

arose in the same proceeding, still pending, in which the

order had been issued, the attack would be direct inas-
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much as, in bankruptcy, orders may be modified, vacated

or set aside at any time until the close of the particular

bankruptcy proceeding.

Re Cadillac Brczdng Co. (C. C. A. 6th), 102 Fed.

(2d) 369;

Wayne United Gas Co. z>. Ozvens Illinois Glass Co.,

300 U. S. 131, 57 S. Ct. 382, 81 L. Ed. 557.

In addition,

"When a court has erroneously exercised juris-

diction which it did not possess, it has power to cor-

rect any wrong which may have resulted from such

improper action by undoing what was done, as by

setting aside any ruling, order or judgment made by

it, at least so long as the subject of the controversy

is in its custody and the parties are before it." (21

Corpus Juris Secundum, p. 179, Sec. 119.)

The principal bankruptcy proceeding in which this

matter arises has been pending since 1935 and is still

pending with no particular imminence of termination.

The case of Vallely v. Noitheru F. & M. Insurance

Company, supra, discussed by Justice Reed, involved a

case in which an insurance cor])oration was adjudicated

an involuntary bankrupt in the teeth of the provisions

of the Bankruptcy Act excepting insurance corporations

therefrom. After the time for review of the adjudica-

tion had expired, the bankrupt filed a motion to vacate

the adjudication, which -was upheld by the Court. Quot-

ing from the case of Stoil v. Gottlieb, supra, at page 176,

in this connection

:

"It was pointed out that a determination of a

jurisdictional fact, such as whether an alleged bank-

rupt is a farmer, binds, but that where there was no
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statute of bankruptcy applic^ible 'necessarily there is

no power in the District Court to inckide', the ex-

cepted corporation. It was thought that to recognize

the binding effect of the judgment would be to ex-

tend the jurisdiction."

In other words, the case upon which appellant principally

relies, on its face shows that it is distinguishable from the

case at bar, inasmuch as it distinguishes a case on all

fours with the case at bar holding that in the same pro-

ceeding an attack may be made after the time for review

or appeal has elapsed on the validity of an order made

in excess of the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court.

Collier on Bankruptcy, 14 Ed., Vol. 1, page 146, in

discussing Stoll v. Gottlieb, says

:

"Of course, in every case, the issue may be raised

by proper direct attack in the district court or by

appeal."

In support of this statement he cites Davis v. Shackle-

ford (C. C. A. 8th), 91 Fed. (2d) 148, in which the

court says:

"It is true, as contended by appellees, that want

of jurisdiction may be raised in the Federal Court

at any stage of the proceeding * * *."

It is the contention of the appellees that, as was decided

by the District Judge, where an attack is in the same

proceeding, as in the case at bar, and as in the Vallely

case, the attack is direct and not collateral. No authority

has been cited by the appellant to the contrary, and the

conclusion of the District Court is directly supported by

the authorities herein set forth. Therefore, even if the

injunction order were not void on its face, it can be at-
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tacked in this proceeding- on the ground of erroneous

assumption of jurisdiction.

This conclusion is supported by the following additional

cases

:

Ex parte Lcnnou, 166 U. S. 548, 41 L. Ed. 1110,

17 S. Ct. 658;

Ex parte Rowland, 104 U. S. 604, 26 L. Ed. 861

;

Abbott V. Eastern, etc. Co., 19 Fed. (2d) 463, (C.

C. A. 1st)
;

Swart.z V. United States, 217 Fed. 866 (C. C. A.

4th);

Brougham v. Steam Navigation Co., 205 Fed. 857

(C. C. A. 2d);

In re Home Discount Co., 147 Fed. 538 (Dist.

Ct. Ala.);

In re Weiser, 19 Fed. Supp. 786 (Dist. Ct. N. Y.).

In Ex parte Roivland, supra, which case arose on an

application for writ of habeas corpus, and in which case

the court was found to have acted beyond its authority

in issuing a writ of mandamus, the United States Su-

preme Court states as follows

:

"But if the conimand was in whole or in part be-

yond the power of the court, the writ, or so much as

was in excess of jurisdiction, was void, and the court

had no right in law to punish for any contempt of

its unauthorized requirements. Such is the settled

rule of decision in this court."
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Similarly in Szvart::; v. United States, supra, the Court

says:

''It is true that the judgment for contempt as well

as the order for injunction, will be set aside on writ

of error when the trial court had no jurisdiction to

make the order of injunction."

The same rule has been enunciated by the courts of the

State of California. In Maier v. Luce, 61 Cal. App. 552

at 558, the Court makes the following statement of the

rule:

"No one may be punished for contempt because

of his disobedience of a void order."

Exactly the same language was used in IVatchuma Water

Company v. Superior Court, 215 Cal. 734, and the gen-

eral rule is so stated at 12 American Jurisprudence, page

408.

In the case of Sontag Chain Stores Co., Ltd, v. Su-

perior Court, 18 Adv. Cal. 65, decided by the Supreme

Court of the State of California on May 29, 1941, it

was held that the vSuperior Court may vacate an injunc-

tion against picketing when it later appears that the Court

acted beyond its jurisdiction in issuing the order due to

a misconception of its power. It was argued that this

was error only and could not be attacked, but the Court,

in distinguishing Uv.itcd States v. Swift & Co., 286 U. S.

106, relied upon by appellant, says that injunctions of the

character involved in this case are continuing in char-

acter and may be later vacated.
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It is interesting to note the following language appear-

ing at page 70:

"To compel defendant labor unions to seek redress

by the indirect method of violation of the terms of

the injunction and defense of a contempt proceeding,

or certiorari, or habeas corpus to secure relief from

the contempt commitment, would be to relegate them

to a remedy which is indeed circuitous. (See gen-

eral discussion in 47 Yale Law Journal, pp. 136, et

seq.y

The Court obviously recognizes that without question

the validity of the injunction order could be attacked in

the contempt proceeding. The only question was whether

a short cut could be taken by vacating the order. The

Court held that it could. This case conclusively deter-

mines appellees' rijfht of attack under the California law.

Such right, under the Federal law, is similarly conclu-

sively determined by Bcanchamp v. United States, supra.

It should be noted here that in cases of collateral at-

tack the attack is made by the moving party. In the pro-

ceeding at bar, appellant is the m.oving party, not appellees,

thereby bringing the matter again before the Court and

recommencing the litigation. The argument of multiplic-

ity of actions does not, therefore, apply, and appellees are

entitled to present all defenses.

Moreover, even if the attack could be said to be col-

lateral, which we have shown is not the case, it still can

be made inasmuch as the case at bar does not involve

error on the part of the referee, but complete lack of
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jurisdiction apparent on the face of the record, and, there-

fore, the ordinary rule that collateral attack will lie upon

a void order is applicable. It does not need the citation

of authorities to support this rule, which is universally

recognized. The only point that can be raised is in its

application, and this point is determined by the argument

first made in this brief as to the jurisdiction of the referee.

It has been shown that the referee was without jurisdic-

tion to make the injunctive order. Such fact is apparent

on the face of the record and it is not necessary to go

behind the record to determine such fact, although on the

state of the present record this can be done. In Shields

V. Shields, 26 Fed. Sup. 211 (Dist. Ct. Mo.), at page 215,

the Court says:

"This application for habeas corpus is a collateral

attack on the judgment of the State Court. Ex parte

Hans Nielsen, 131 U. S. 176, loc. cit. 182, 9 S. Ct.

672, ?>2> L. Ed. 118. Lack of jurisdiction may be

shown in a collateral proceeding. Ruckert v. Moore,

317 Mo. 228, 295 S. W. 794. But in such a pro-

ceeding an aflirmative finding of a jurisdictional fact

may not be contradicted by evidence aliimde. Hartz-

feld V. Taylor, 207 Mo. 236, 105 S. W. 599; In re

Lennon, 166 U. S. 548, loc. cit. 553, 17 S. Ct. 658,

41 L. Ed. 1110. Therefore, the residence of peti-

tioner may not be established in this proceeding by

parol testimony. But facts appearing upon the face

of the record may be utilized to show lack of juris-

diction, and where the record is silent as to a juris-

dictional fact the presumption of jurisdiction of a
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court of general jurisdiction may be overcome by

evidence of facts showing want of such jurisdic-

tion. In re Mayficld, 141 U. S. 107, loc. cit. 116, 11

S. Ct. 939, 35 L. Ed. 635."

Under these circumstances the injunction was void and

not voidable, and it may be subsequently attacked directly

or collaterally.

Much, if not all, of the argument made in the preceding

paragraphs in reply to appellant's brief is beside the point,

as appellant's argument is beside the point. The author-

ities reviewed therein show the continuing power of the

District Court to vacate or modify its orders. Obviously

this includes orders of a referee, a subordinate officer, so

long as the bankruptcy case is pending. What the Court

did here is tantamount to an implied vacation of the in-

junctive order. Had the Court, sua spontc, seen fit to

broaden its order to expressly do what it did impliedly,

that is, actually vacate the order, or had application been

made by appellees for an order vacating such order, af-

firmatively acted upon, the vacating by the District Court,

in the absence of abuse of discretion, would be conclusive

on this appeal. (Kcuyoii v. Chain O'Mines (C. C. A.

Colo.), 107 Fed. (2d) 160.

The result is the same in any event, and it is the posi-

tion of appellees that it was within the continuing juris-

diction of the Court under the circumstances to take the

action it did, of dismissal, and that such action, not being

an abuse of discretion, or even alleged to be, is not sub-

ject to review.
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IV.

The Stipulation to the Entry of the Order of Injunc-

tion Is Not Grounds for Holding the District Court

in Error in Permitting the Attack on Jurisdiction

and Dismissing the Contempt.

1. Such Stipulation, Made With Reservation of Objection

to the Jurisdiction, Did Not Constitute Grounds for

Estoppel.

2. Such Stipulation, So Made, Did Not Constitute a Waiver

of, or Consent to Summary Jurisdiction in the Referee.

3. Jurisdiction Cannot Be Conferred by Consent Where

No Jurisdiction Exists.

4. Where the Attack Is a Direct and Not a Collateral At-

tack, Lack of Jurisdiction May Be Shown Even Though

Not Apparent on the Face of the Record, and If It Does

Not Exist, Consent Cannot Confer It.

Appellant relies on the fact that certain of the appellees

stipulated to the issuance of the order of injunction, as

grounds for estoppel against the appellees now asserting

objections to the jurisdiction. This position is untenable.

In the first place the necessary grounds for estoppel are

not present in that there was nc reliance, no misleading

and no change of position. Appellant had the option in

this proceeding of choosing the proper tribunal and the

proper legal remedy. It was his choice, and not the choice

of appellees that gave rise to the present controversy. He
chose injunction as his remedy, and he chose the referee

as his tribunal. H he was in error in so doing, that is

not the fault of the appellees, and he cannot rely or be

misled under these circumstances. The appellees did not

choose to go before the referee, but strenuously objected
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and maintained their objections to his jurisdiction and

that of the Bankruptcy Court at all times, from first to

last. [Tr. pp. 29, 30, 92, 94, 96, 150, 154, 156.] They

were strangers to the bankruptcy proceeding. They were

not trespassing or threatening trespass upon, or damage

to the bankrupt's property. They were merely proposing

to drill an oil well on their own property. Under these

circumstances they were of the view that the referee and

the Bankruptcy Court did not have jurisdiction to in-

struct them as to their method of drilling, and so stated

to the referee. [Tr. p. 92.] They reserved at all times

their objections to the jurisdiction by appearing specially

only [Tr. p. 92], and availing themselves of the right of

cross-examination only subject to such objection. [Tr. p.

96.] They did not affirmatively take any part in the

proceeding. They did not put on witnesses of their own.

The referee, however, overruled their objections to the

jurisdiction. Appellees took the position that there was

no need to undertake the exi:)ense and delay of taking a

review, and stipulated to the entry of the order, without

conceding the validity of the order. |Tr. p. 156.] In

effect they said, "You have dragged us into the Referee's

Court. We do not believe that the Referee has any juris-

diction over us so long as we do not actually trespass upon

the bankrupt's property, which we have no intention of

doing. The order which you are willing to accept, but

which we believe is void, is one with which we believe

we can comply in any event. No further proceedings

are, therefore, necessary at this time, but if we should

violate the order we are advising you and tlic Referee

that we do not deem it valid and we are still objecting

to the jurisdiction of the Referee and the District Court

to enforce it." The appellant obtained what he asked

for, which was an order of the referee. It was his option
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proper suit. The appellees were not blowing hot and cold.

They were merely saying- that if the referee entered a

certain order he could do so if he desired, subject to their

objection to the fundamental right of the referee to enter

it, and that they did not intend to take a review from it.

In other words, the appellees were not put to an election.

The election was that of the appellant, and he himself

suffers the consequences of his own voluntary act in choos-

ing the wrong remedy and the wrong tribunal. Hence,

there is no misleading. The record is also devoid of any

reference to change of position.

We have shown that there is no estoppel. Further,

there is no waiver of any objection to the jurisdiction.

Section 23b of the Bankruptcy Act is the only provision

of law with which we are familiar, or which has been

urged by appellant in this proceeding, under which juris-

diction may be conferred by consent, in the absence of

actual jurisdiction over the subject matter. This provi-

sion refers, however, solely to cases of adverse possession

and has no bearing on the present controversy, which in-

volves only the power of a referee of the United States

District Court, either as a court of bankruptcy or a court

of equity, or an officer thereof, to enjoin strangers to the

bankruptcy proceeding from doing lawful acts on their

own property which do not constitute a trespass upon the

property of the bankrupt. It is well settled, however, that,

even were section 23b applicable, or consent could other-

wise constitute a waiver, what the appellees did in this

proceeding would not constitute consent to jurisdiction or

waiver of their objection to the summary jurisdiction of

the referee. A case relied upon by appellant in the Dis-

trict Court was /// re Murray (C. C. A. 7th), 92 Fed.

(2d) 612, which case the District Judge felt to be the
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strongest case in appellant's favor. All this case stands

for is that objection is made too late when it is not made

until after the order has been entered. Even in that case,

the Court admits that if objection to jurisdiction is made

timely, and such objection is overruled, defendant does

not waive such objection by then proceeding with the

action. In that case an answer was filed to a summary

proceeding to set aside a mortgage and trial was had and

an order was made before any objection was made to

the jurisdiction. The Court held that while the rule is

clear that the referee has no plenary jurisdiction under

'hese circumstances, the defendant may waive the same,

and failure to object until the order had been made con-

stituted a waiver.

In /// re Mitchie, 116 Fed. 749 (District Court, Mass.),

the case involved a petition to recover adversely held prop-

erty. In this case defendant filed an answer and then

demurred to jurisdiction. The Court found that the

referee had no jurisdiction without the consent of the

defendant and that the defendant did not consent. In

this connection the Court states that the consent re-

quired must be complete and explicit, and cannot be im-

])lied. This case was cited with approval In re Bastan-

chiiry Corporation, decided by the Ninth Circuit Court

of Appeals, 62 Fed. (2d) 537. This case arose on an

order to show cause directed to the trustee under a bond

issue to turn over property. The District Court made

a turn over order. The Circuit Court ordered the prop-

erty returned to the trustee under the bond issue, holding

the claim adverse, no consent, and no jurisdiction in the

referee. The rule is best emphasized by the decision. In

re Prima (C. C. A. 7th), 98 Fed. (2d) 952, which in-

volves two defendants, one of whom objected, as appel-
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lees objected here, the other of whom did not. After

the objection of the first was overruled, answer was

filed and the ordinary trial procedure followed. The Ap-

pellate Court ruled that, as to the non-objecting defendant,

there was a waiver of summary jurisdiction under section

23b of the Act, but as to the other defendant, there was

not. To the same effect see In re Schoenherg (C. C. A.

2d), 70 Fed. (2d) 321 ; In re White Satin Mills, 25 Fed.

(2d) 313 (Dist. Ct., Minn.); Louisville Trust Co. v.

Comingor, 184 U. S. 18, 22 S. Ct. 293, 46 L. Ed. 413.

The above discussion of cases has been presented merely

to show how explicit must be a waiver where even pro-

cedural jurisdiction is involved, and apply, as above stated,

merely where there is a statutory rule permitting consent

to summary jurisdiction, as compared to plenary jurisdic-

tion; in other words, a waiver of a procedural as distin-

guished from a basically jurisdictional right. The cases

cited by the appellant on the point of consent are not in

point. In each instance the defendant asked the Court for

affirmative relief which is inconsistent with objection to

jurisdiction. Appellees here at no time asked for any

affirmative relief. The only part they took in the pro-

ceeding at all, aside from the objecting to the jurisdiction

and cross-examining the appellant's witnesses under the

reserved right of objection, was to state, subject to such

objection, that they would not take a review from the

entry of an order, the form of which they approved, which

order the referee had indicated he would make in any

event. The cases cited by appellant do not involve any-

thing but the rule, which appellees admit, that a collateral

attack may not be made on a judgment which is merely

voidable or erroneous. None of them hold that consent

is given in the absence of an express intention to give
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consent by affirmative action or failure to object, or that

consent, when given, cures lack of jurisdiction of the sub-

ject matter. An examination of these cases indicates defi-

nitely only matters of error or personal jurisdiction where

involved, such as defective service. It is also a fact that

the case of Biirroiigh v. Bnrrouglu 10 Cal. App. (2d) 749,

cited by appellant, expressly holds that, if the record

shows lack of jurisdiction, it is subject to collateral at-

tack.

In other words, consent may be given to procedural

matters, and may cure error, but it cannot supply lack of

jurisdiction. Consent to cure procedural matters or er-

ror must be explicit. Such consent is not to be found in

the record of this case. The District Judge sets forth

fully in his opinion his examination of the record in this

connection and finds that there was no consent. [Tr.

pp. 240 to 252.] Such finding of fact, in any event, is

conclusive on this appeal, there being substantial evidence

to support it. We, therefore, have a situation whereby

the referee has exceeded his jurisdiction both by issuing

the injunction after merely a summary hearing, which

was not consented to, and assuming jurisdiction to exist

in himself, as an officer of the District Court, which even

the District Court did not have, and to which appellees

did not consent. In this connection it should be noted

that even the referee had doubts that he had the right

to enter an order as broad in its prohibitions as that en-

tered. Transcript, page 152, where the referee says:

"I can say right now this Court will not attempt

to prevent you from redrilling, but there is a certain

course which this Court may prevent you from tak-

ing."
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And again at page 156 of the transcript, where the ref-

eree says:

"You may review any order this Court makes.

I would welcome a review—but if I were going to

be reviewed on a question of jurisdiction I would

want to give serious consideration to the question."

There is no allegation of diversity of citizenship requi-

site to the general equity jurisdiction of the District Court.

There is also no allegation of lack of an adequate remedy

at law. In fact, the record shows the pendency of a civil

action to recover damages [Tr. p. 43], brought by the

appellant against one of the appellees. The injunction

does not enjoin trespass upon or damage to the property

of the bankrupt so as to bring the case within the bank-

ruptcy jurisdiction. The injunction enjoins a stranger to

the bankruptcy proceeding from doing a lawful act on his

own property. It tells him how he shall drill an oil well

on his own property. This is far beyond the contempla-

tion of the Congress or the courts as being within the

realm of what a referee in bankruptcy can do.

Inasmuch as the referee had no jurisdiction to make the

order, even if the holding of the District Court upon the

giving of the consent were not conclusive, and even if

consent had been given, it could not confer jurisdiction

under these circumstances. The rule is too plain to re-

quire citation of authority that the jurisdiction of a Court

of the United States, as a Federal Court, cannot be waived.

Simpkins' Federal Practice, 3d Ed., Sec. 30:

'The jurisdiction of a Court of the United States

as a federal court in the strict sense, viz., as regards

jurisdictional amount, diversity of citizenship, and



federal question cannot be waived. Nor can the

question of jurisdiction of the subject-matter be

waived."

Nor can jurisdiction be conferred by consent. Simp-

kins' Federal Practice, 3d Ed., Sec. 31

:

"It follows from what has been said in the pre-

vious section that federal jurisdiction in the strict

sense cannot be conferred by consent."

Similarly as to jurisdiction of the subject-matter, 21

Corpus Juris Secundum 127:

"It is not within the power of litigants to invest a

court with any jurisdiction or power not conferred on

it by law, and accordingly, it is well established as

a general rule that, where the court has not jurisdic-

tion of the cause of action or subject-matter involved

in a particular case, such jurisdiction cannot be con-

ferred by consent, agreement, or other conduct of the

parties. So, also, if the court cannot try the ques-

tion except under particular conditions or when ap-

proached in a particular way, the law withholds juris-

diction unless such conditions exist or unless the

court is approached in the manner provided, and con-

sent will not avail to change the provisions of the

law in this regard."

Just as the question of method of attack, raised by the

appellant, upon examination is determined by the sole

question involved in this proceeding—jurisdiction of the

referee—so is the question of consent. If the referee had
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jurisdiction of the subject-matter of this proceeding, then

the injunctive order was vaHd regardless of consent, and

the question of consent or collateral attack is not in-

volved. If the referee did not have jurisdiction to make

the order, no consent, even if given, could have rendered

the order valid, and such order may be attacked either

collaterally or directly.

In addition, even if it could be said that jurisdiction

of the subject-matter existed, the appellees were entitled to

a plenary suit in the District Court. And no consent was

given to summary procedure.

For the foregoing reasons we respectfully submit that

the order of the District Court should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

Eugene Overton,

Warren S. Pallette,

Donald H. Ford,

Attorneys for Appellees, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

Thos. W. Simmons, and Allan A. Anderson.
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APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF.

Jurisdiction.

This is an appeal from a decision of the United States

District Court, Southern District of California, Central

Division, rendered February 7, 1941, wherein and whereby

the District Court dismissed the certificate of contempt

of the Referee [Tr. pp. 83-85]. Notice of appeal was

given within thirty days from February 7, 1941, to-wit:

February 13, 1941 [Tr. pp. 86-87]. Section 24-A of the

Bankruptcy Act of 1938 vests the Circuit Court with jur-

isdiction over such appeal.

The District Court was vested with jurisdiction by vir-

ture of Sections 2(15) and 41 of the Bankruptcy Act

of 1938.
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Statement of the Case.

On April 20. 1940, an order to show cause was issued

by the Referee in Bankruptcy fTr. pp. 27-28], requiring

the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, to appear and

show cause why such appropriate order should not be

made to protect the "Huntington Shore" well, being an

asset of the bankrupt estate of Jack Dave Sterling, Bank-

rupt, from damage resulting from the redrilling of the

"Petroleum Well" owned by the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation. Said order to show cause was served, to-

gether with a copy of the petition of the Trustee and

copies of the affidavits of Vernon L. King, petroleum

engineer, and Jack Dave Sterling, the bankrupt [Tr. pp.

19-27], upon which said order to show cause was based.

Thereupon a hearing was had before the Referee, pur-

suant to said order to show cause, at which the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation appeared by its attorneys, and after

hearings on April 26, 1940 and on May 1, 1940, an order

was made by the Referee on May 15, 1940 [Tr. pp. 29-

32] which order, among other things, enjoined the appel-

lee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, its agents and employees,

from redrilling its "Petroleum Well" in such a manner as

would cause it to come closer than two hundred (200)

feet from the "Huntington Shore" well at any horizontal

plane at a point below the depth of 3800 feet below sea

level also, that the circulating fluid used in drilling said

"Petroleum Well" should be virgin crude oil, and that no

cementing operations be conducted without the written

consent of appellant; that said order of injunction was ap-

proved by the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation [Tr.

p. 32] ; that said order of injunction was stipulated to

in open court by the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation
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[Tr. p. 152, fol. 189; p. 153, £ol. 190, pp. 155, 156, 172]

;

that in said written order of injunction, while appellee,

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, acknowledged that it was

stipulating thereto, and approved the contents thereof, it

caused to be inserted a reservation of objection to the

general jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court.

That thereafter a petition to have the Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, et al, certified for contempt was filed by ap-

pellant with the Referee on August 22, 1940, and an order

to show cause issued thereon, directed to Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, McVicar-Rood, Inc., a corporation, M. M.

McCullum Corporation, a corporation, H. H. McVicar, C.

M. Rood, M. M. McCullum, Thomas W. Simmons, ''John

Doe" Anderson, and William H, Cree and Warren S.

Pallette [Tr. pp. 33-39], to show cause why they should

not be certified for contempt for violating or aiding and

abetting in the violation of the order of injunction issued

May 15, 1940.

That pursuant to said order to show cause hearings were

had before the Referee on August 30, 1940, September 26,

1940 and October 1, 1940, as a result of which the

Referee made a certificate of contempt containing find-

ings of fact and conclusions of law, based upon which the

Referee certified the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thomas

W. Simmons, Allen A. Anderson, M. M. McCallen Cor-

poration, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and William H.

Cree to the United States District Court as being in con-

tempt for violating the injunction of May 15, 1940, and

for such further proceedings as might be proper before



—4—

the District Court [Tr. pp. 53-72] ; that an order to show

cause was issued by the Referee on January 13, 1941, re-

quiring the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Thomas W.

Simmons, Allen A. Anderson, M. M. McCallen Corpora-

tion, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and William H. Cree to

appear and show cause why they should not be adjudged

in contempt pursuant to the certificate of the Referee [Tr.

pp. 80-81] ; that a motion in writing was filed by the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, Thos. W. Simmons and Allen A.

Anderson, together with affidavits of W. S. Pallette and

Donald H. Ford, upon which an order to show cause was

issued why the certificate of contempt of the Referee

should not be dismissed [Tr. pp. 73-79].

That thereafter the order to show cause of the Referee,

based on the certificate of the Referee for contempt, and

the order to show cause of the appellees, Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, Thos. W. Simmons and Allen A. Anderson,

came on for hearing on January 20, January 27, and Jan-

uary 30, 1941, before the Honorable Leon R. Yankwich,

on which dates the matter was argued without evidence

of any kind being received, and on February 7, 1941,

said District Judge made an order sustaining the objec-

tion of the appellees to the jurisdiction of the Referee to

issue such certificate of -contempt, and sustaining the col-

lateral attack of appellees that the Referee had no jurisdic-

tion to make the order of injunction of May 15. 1940, the

basis of such certificate of contempt; and made its further

order dismissing the Referee's certificate of contempt [Tr.

pp. 83-85].
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Statement of the History of the Case.

The certificate of contempt of the Referee, found on

pages 53-72 of the transcript, succinctly states the back-

ground leading up to the issuance of the injunction of

May 15, 1940, the violation of the injunction, hearing on

the order to show cause why the appellees should not be

certified in contempt, and the issuance of the certificate

after such hearing. Such background, as so disclosed by

the certificate, is as follows

:

That appellant owns an oil well known as the "Hunting-

ton Shore Well", located in what is known as the Hunting-

ton Beach oil field, and operated under an easement granted

by the state of California, being easement Number 309;

that said well constitutes one of the principal assets of the

bankrupt estate of the appellant ; that on or about Septem-

ber 20, 1936, the Termo Oil Company, being the holder

of a similar easement to that of the appellant in said Hunt-

ington Beach oil field, commenced the re-drilling of its

"Termo Well", and as a result of said re-drilling, mud,

together with sand, cement, and other foreign substances

were forced through the oil sands from the "Termo Well"

into the "Huntington Shore Well", causing the equipment

in the "Huntington Shore Well" to become stuck, and

making it impossible to operate or produce said "Hunting-

ton Shore Well" fTr. p. 55] ; that as a result, appellant

expended, on what is known as a "fishing job" the sum of

approximately $20,000.00 without being able to free such

equipment that was clogged and stuck by reason of such

operations of the Termo Oil Company; that thereafter it

became necessary for appellant to redrill said "Hunting-

ton Shore Well" at a cost of $80,000.00, plus a surrender

of a twenty per cent interest (20%) in said well, in addi-



tion thereto; that said "Huntington Shore Well", after

being redrilled was again placed on production on August

22, 1937, with an average daily production of about 295

barrels; that about April 15, 1940, appellee, Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation, commenced the redrilling of its well,

known as "Petroleum Well", which likewise was operated

under an easement from the state of California in the

Huntington Beach oil field; that on said date appellee,

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, was familiar with and was

aware of the damaging effect of the drilling of the "Termo

Well" on the "Huntington Shore Well" [Tr. p. 56] ; that

an application was made to enjoin appellee, Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation, from drilling its "Petroleum Well" closer

than 200 feet from the "Huntington Shore Well", and

from using mud as a circulating fluid in the redrilling of

said well; that the testimony showed that if said well was

drilled closer than 200 feet from the "Huntington Shore

Well", and if mud was used, that the mud would be car-

ried through the oil sands into the "Huntington Shore

Well" and would irreparably injure and damage said well:

that thereupon, and pursuant to the stipulation of the

attorneys for appellees, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, and

attorneys for appellant, made in open court, an injunction

was made by the Referee enjoining the appellee, Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, from coming closer than two hun-

dred feet from the "Huntington Shore Well", and from

using mud as a circulating fluid in the redrilling of its

"Petroleum Well" [Tr. p. 57] ; that said injunction was

issued on May 15, 1940, same being approved by the ap-

pellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation ; that written notice of

the entry of said injunction, together with a copy of the

order of injunction, was served upon both the appellee,

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, and its attorneys of record,



on May 17, 1940, [Tr. pp. 58-59] ; that no petition for

review or appeal was taken from said injunction, and that

said injunction has become final and absolute by operation

of law [Tr. p. 58].

That after the granting of said injunction and with full

knowledge thereof, appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

resumed the redrilling of said "Petroleum Well", by using

mud as a circulating fluid in direct violation of said in-

junction [Tr. p. 59] ; that as a result of the use of mud as

a circulating fluid in the redrilling of said well, mud in

liquid form, carrying with it sand and other foreign

substances, infiltrated through the oil sands and was

forced up into the said "Huntington Shore Well" forming

a column of mud in said well of 3700 feet from the bot-

tom of said well ; that as a result thereof, production from

said "Huntington Shore Well" ceased and said "Hunting-

ton Shore Well" was ofif production for a period of twenty

days during which operations were carried on by appel-

lant to clean out and dislodge such mud, sand and other

foreign substances [Tr. p. 60] ; that specimens of the mud

lost in the redrilling of said "Petroleum Well" were tested,

analyzed and examined, and shown conclusively to be the

mud used by the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

in said redrilling; that at the time of the commencement

of said redrilling operations, said "Huntington Shore

Well" was producing 260 barrels of oil per day; that as

a result of such mud being forced into said well, by rea-

son of such operations on the redrilling of the "Petroleum

Well", appellant lost production for twenty days, and the
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production of the well was permanently reduced to 160

barrels of oil per day [Tr. p. 61] : that as a result of the

use of mud as a circulating fluid in said "Petroleum Well",

the production of the "Huntington Shore Well" has been

reduced to the extent of approximately sixty (60) bar-

rels of oil per day for the life of said well [Tr. p. 62]

;

that mud was used by appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corpo-

ration, with the knowledge and at the instance and direction

of Thomas W. Simmons, its president, and Allen A.

Anderson, its superintendent; that the damage so

sustained by appellant was anticipated by appellant

in applying for said injunction and the purpose of

issuing such injunction was to avoid such damage to

the property of appellant; that the appellee, Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation, knew such consequence and damage

would result from the use of mud as a circulating fluid

in the redrilling of its "Petroleum Well"; that after said

mud, in liquid form, had infiltrated through the oil sands

from the "Petroleum Well" to the "Huntington Shore

Well", appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, suspended

drilling of its "Petroleum Well" on or about June 10,

1940 [Tr. p. 63] ; that information having come to the

appellant that appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, was

about to resume redrilling of said well by the use of mud

as a circulating fluid, a letter was addressed to said appel-

lee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation on July 31, 1940, call-

ing its attention to the injunction of the Court against

the use of mud, and enclosing a copy of said injunction;

that thereafter (and on August 1, 1940) a conference was



had between appellees, Thomas W. Simmons, president of

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Warren S. Pallette and

Wililam H. Cree, attorneys for said Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, Allen A. Anderson, drilling superintendent of

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, and Vernon L. King,

petroleum engineer for the Trustee in Bankruptcy, R.

D. Holdredge, representing the Trustee, and Joseph J.

Rifkind, one of the attorneys for the Trustee. At said

conference appellees aforesaid sought to secure an agree-

ment to eliminate from said injunction the provision

against the use of mud as a circulating fluid [Tr. p. 64]

;

that at said conference appellees' attention was called to

the fact that the use of mud in the "Petroleum Well"

theretofore had caused a column of mud 3700 feet high

to rise in the "Huntington Shore Well" and that such

fact was the best evidence that the use of mud as a cir-

culating fluid would damage the ''Huntington Shore Well"

and that no modification of the injunction would be stipu-

lated to; that said Thomas W. Simmons stated at said

conference that a large amount of money had been spent

by his company and some way would have to be found to

resume drilling operations despite the injunction; that said

William H. Cree, one of the attorneys for appellee, Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, advised that said injunction be

ignored [Tr. p. 65] ; that counsel for appellant stated that

the injunction was in full force and effect and that if mud
was used, contempt proceedings would be instituted; that

previous to this conference, a conference was had between

said Thomas W. Simmons and Raphael Dechter, also of
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counsel for appellant, wherein a modification of said in-

junction as to the provision against the use of mud was

sought and was refused [Tr. p. 66] ; that thereafter appel-

lant received information that some arrangement had been

effected between the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation and its

agents, officers and employees and H. H. McVicar, C. M.

Rood and M. M. McCallen Cor]M~»ration, the other appellees,

whereby drilling operations were being resumed in the

"Petroleum Well"; that a letter was then sent by appel-

lant to McVicar-Rood, Inc. under date of August 21,

1940, advising them of the injunction and the restriction

against the use of mud in the redrilling of said "Petroleum

Well" [Tr. p. 67 ]\ that the appellees entered into a con-

spiracy for the purpose of violating said injunction, and

in order to give color to said transaction, entered into an

agreement and an assignment, and in disregard of said in-

junction and the letters from appellant, commenced re-

drilling said well with the use of mud as a circulating

fluid on or about August 22, 1940; that thereupon appel-

lant filed a petition to certify said appellees for contempt,

and said appellees, even after the service upon them of

said petition, continued to use mud as a circulating fluid

in the redrilling of said "Petroleum Well" [Tr. pp. 68-

69]. From such facts, -the Referee concluded that said

appellees were in contempt of Court for violating said in-

junction and for aiding and abetting in the violation

thereof, and in accordance with the procedure prescribed

in section 41 of the Bankruptcy Act, duly certified the

appellees to the District Court for contempt.

i
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Questions Involved in This Appeal.

Where an order of injunction has been made by a

Referee in Bankruptcy, no review or appeal having

been taken therefrom within the time and in the

manner provided by law, can said order be col-

laterally attacked as being in excess of the jurisdic-

tion of the bankruptcy court?

Where the Referee, pursuant to section 41 of the

Bankruptcy Act, certifies for contempt the appel-

lees, for having violated a previous order of in-

junction which had become final, may the District

Judge permit a collateral attack on the order of

injunction, declare such order of injunction void,

and dismiss the Referee's certificate of contempt

based upon the violation of such order of in-

junction ?

Where the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

has stipulated and consented to the making of an

order of injunction, and has stated that no review

would be taken from such order and that such or-

der would be binding upon it, may said appellee,

after such stipulated order has become final, ques-

tion the jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court to

make such order of injunction, when certified for

contempt in violation of the terms of such consent

or stipulated order?

Where the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

has stipulated to an order of injunction and has

stated that no review will be taken therefrom and

that it will be bound thereby, is not said appellee

estopped from questioning the jurisdiction of the
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bankruptcy court to make such order of injunction,

at a subsequent hearing on an order to show cause

why it should not be certified for contempt for vio-

lating the provisions of such consent order of in-

junction ?

5. Does not the Bankruptcy Court have jurisdiction,

both as a court of equity, and under the provisions

of the Bankruptcy Act, to enjoin any interference

or threatened interference with property in the cus-

tody of the bankruptcy court?

6. Does not the Bankrutcy Court have the power to

adjudge appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, in

contempt for interfering with the property of the

bankrupt estate, particularly so where such appel-

lee had previous notice that the doing of an act in

a certain manner would interfere with the property

of the bankrupt estate, and where such appellee had

agreed in writing not to do certain acts, the result

of which would naturally cause damage to the prop-

erty of the bankrupt estate, and where such appel-

lee, contrary to its agreement, wilfully commits

such acts, as a natural result of which the property

of the bankrupt estate is damaged and the admin-

istration of the bankrupt estate interfered with.

Points Upon Which Appellant Relies.

The statement of the points upon which appellant will

rely in this appeal is to be found at pages 267-269 of the

transcript. These points are numbered and appear pre-

ceding the arguments addressed thereunder in this brief.
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ARGUMENT.

I.

The District Court Erred in Permitting a Collateral

Attack to Be Made Upon the Jurisdiction of the

Referee to Render the Injunction (the Violation of

Which Was the Basis of the Referee's Certificate

of Contempt), Said Injunction Having Become
Final, and No Appeal or Other Manner of Review
Permitted by Law Having Been Taken There-

from.

Point 1. The District Court erred in rendering the or-

der dismissing the Referee in Bankruptcy's Certificate of

Contempt.

Point 2. The District Court erred in sustaining objections

to the jurisdiction of the District Court to hear the matter

arising under the Referee's Certificate of Contempt.

Point 3. The District Court erred in permitting a col-

lateral attack to be made upon the jurisdiction of the Referee

to render the injunction (the violation of which was the basis

of the Referee's Certificate of Contempt), said injunction hav-

ing become final, and no appeal or other manner of review

permitted by law having been taken therefrom.

The order of injunction was made by the Referee on

May 15, 1940. Said order was stipulated to in open

court. In this connection, we quote from the findin^i^s

of the Referee embodied in the certificate of contempt, at

pages 57-58 of the transcript as follows:

"That after the testimony introduced on behalf of

the trustee in bankruptcy and upon the conclusion of

the cross-examination by the attorneys for the Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation of the witnesses called on be-

half of the trustee in bankruptcy, the attorneys for
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the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation stipulated in open

court to the granting of an injunction against the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation restraining them from

coming closer than 200 feet from the Huntington

Shore Well and prohibiting the Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration from using mud as a circulating fluid in the

redrilling of this well. That pursuant to the stipula-

tion entered into between the attorneys for the trustee

in bankruptcy and the attorneys for the Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation an injunction was submitted to the

above entitled court which had been previously ap-

proved as to form and content by the attorneys for

the trustee in bankruptcy and the attorneys for the

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, and said injunction was

issued by the court on May 15, 1940."

After the Trustee had introduced evidence, both oral and

written, in support of the order to show cause why an ap-

propriate order should not be made by the Referee to pro-

tect the property of the bankrupt estate, the following took

place, as shown by pages 150-160 of the transcript:

"Mr. Dechter: That is all for the petitioner, for

the Trustee.

Mr. Borden: I think I made the statement in the

first instance that our cross-examination was not to be

construed as any waiver of our objection to the jur-

isdiction.

The Referee: Oh yes.

Mr. Borden : I don't think there is any question

about that. We have no evidence to offer at the pres-

ent time. I might have if there is any question in

Your Honor's mind whether or not the Court, in a

summary proceeding of this kind against a total

stranger, and under these circumstances, has a right

to take any action or to restrain us from proceeding.
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I should like to have a continuance in order to put

on some testimony without conceding" the jurisdic-

tion of the Court. I think the Court is entitled to

have the benefit, no matter what order it makes with

respect to directing- the Trustee to commence plenary

action or any other remedy available to him, of hear-

ing testimony on both sides.

Mr. Dechter : We have no objection to giving Mr.

Borden [188] a reasonable length of time.

The Referee: From what I know about this case

here is the way I feel now: I don't think the bank-

ruptcy court has any jurisdiction to tell a stranger

where or how he should drill his well so long as that

stranger does not interfere or trespass upon the rights

of the bankrupt. Up to that point this Court has

not anything to say. If there is a danger of tres-

passing or damaging the bankrupt's property, I think

then the Court would have jurisdiction, that is, cover-

ing that particular phase of it. That is my offhand

impression.

Mr. Borden: Well, I think there is no doubt if

we were actually trespassing upon the property of the

bankrupt, there is no doubt in my mind but what the

Court would have ample opportunity to restrain us,

but here we are drilling in separate lots where there

is no interference at all. We are doing the same thing

they have done since the matter has been in bank-

ruptcy. Your Honor. They have drilled within one

hundred feet of us, according to the testimony before

the Court, but now they seek to enjoin us from pro-

ceeding to do the very same thing, to re-drill and

place our well on production.

The Referee: I can say right now this court will

not attempt to prevent you from re-drilling, but there

is a certain course which this Court may prevent you
from taking.
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Mr. Pallette : I think we can stipulate to an order,

if [189] you want to make one, restraining us from

coming within a certain distance.

Mr. Dechter: That is agreeable.

The Referee: What would be a reasonable dis-

tance, the regulation of the Department?

Mr. Dechter: I am willing to make it within the

radius of one hundred feet, or the diameter of two

hundred feet. In other words, if counsel will agree

—

The Referee: Why not follow the regulation

—

Mr. Dechter: That is agreeable.

The Referee: —as Exhibit 1 provides?

Mr. Dechter: I might also call the Court's atten-

tion to the Huntington Townsite agreement which is

binding on the Bolsa Chica Corporation, which con-

tains this provision:

'Said member, with reference to said well, shall

comply with all of the laws of the State of Califor-

nia and all rules and regulations of any agency of

the State of California having jurisdiction thereof.'

Now, other members of this association have agreed

to comply with those rules and this agency has jur-

isdiction.

Mr. Borden: That is not before this Court. It

is a matter of whether or not we were interfering

with the bankrupt's property.

Mr. Rifkind : T understand it is agreeable that an

injunction be granted embodying the regulations

—

Mr. Pallette: No. [190]

Mr. Rifkind: What is that?

Mr. Pallette: No.

Mr. Rifkind: What do you suggest?
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Mr. Pallette: I suggested we would be willing to

stipulate that an injunction be granted restraining us

from coming within a reasonable distance of the well.

Mr. Dechter: All right.

Mr. Pallette: I think we will have to consult with

our engineers as to what they deem to be a reason-

able distance.

Mr. Dechter: If you make it one hundred feet it

will end the matter.

The Referee: Is it one hundred or two hundred?

Mr. Dechter: Within a radius of one hundred

feet or a diameter of two hundred feet.

Mr. Borden: No one ever contended we would

get any closer than that.

The Referee: Suppose, gentlemen, I continue this

matter and then you can see if you can get together

on an order?

Mr. Pallette: I wouldn't be surprised but what

we could stipulate on one hundred feet, but I don't

think I am justified in doing so without consulting

our engineers.

Mr. Borden: I think that is a good idea. Let the

record show, if Your Honor please, that by suggest-

ing that we are willing to submit to the jurisdiction

of the Court, that we do not do so until we actually

do so.

The Referee: Yes, I understand that. Suppose I

continue [191] this matter for a week or ten days.

Mr. Pallette: Could it be continued for a shorter

time than that. We have a hearing set before the
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State Lands Commission some time during the middle

of next week at which time we hope to get the consent

of the State to proceed.

The Referee : You are not going to proceed until

you do that?

Mr. Pallette : We are closed down. We have been

closed down for about a week, and we have no inten-

tion of proceeding now. We hope to work out an

agreement with the Chairman of the State Lands

Commission some time during the week. I suggest a

continuance be granted until Tuesday or Wednesday.

The Referee: Of this next week?

Mr. Pallette: Yes.

Mr. Dechter: Of the coming week, or the week

following?

Mr. Pallette: Next Tuesday or next Wednesday.

Mr. Borden: I don't think it would take any time

at all.

Mr. Dechter : I suggest we make it Wednesday,

Your Honor.

The Referee: Well, due to the condition of my
calender I will continue it until May 1st, in the

afternoon, 2:00 p. m.

Mr. Rifkind : Do I understand that until that time

there will be no resumption of drilling?

Mr. Pallette: That is correct, we will consent to

not re-drill before next Wednesday, that is, to make

any holes.

The Referee: Very well.

(Whereupon an adjournment was taken to the hour

of 2:00 p. m., May 1st, 1940.) [192]
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Los Angeles, California. Wednesday, May 1, 1940.

2:00 o'clock p. m. Session.

The Referee: Have you accomplished anything in

the matter of Jack Dave Sterling?

Mr. Rifkind : Yes, Your Honor. We have reached

a stipulation that an injunction may be issued by the

Court against the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation. We
have already given the specific language to the re-

porter and I would like him at this time to read it to

the Court.

The Referee: Is the stipulation generally agreed

to between counsel ?

Mr. Borden: Yes.

The Referee: You may state generally what it is.

Mr. Borden: We have stipulated as to the order.

We do not concede jurisdiction of the Court. We
are going to agree that we will not review the order

of Court and will be bound by the order. However,

I make that statement because we do not want to gen-

erally concede jurisdiction.

The Referee : You may review any order this

Court makes I would welcome a review—but if I

were going to be reviewed on a question of jurisdic-

tion I would want to give serious consideration to the

question.

Mr. Borden: I will say you will not be required

to do so; but we do not want to submit to any pro-

ceedings in a [193] court where we are strangers.

Mr. Rifkind : I would like to have the reporter

read aloud our stipulation.

The Referee: Very well.

Mr. Borden: I agree with you, but I wanted our

position made perfectly clear.
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(Whereupon the stipulation referred to was read

by the reporter, as follows:)

'Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, its superintendent,

agents and employees, shall be restrained and en-

joined from drilling, re-drilling or sidetracking its

Petroleum Well, also known as Fee No. 1 Well at

Huntington Beach, California, so that it comes closer

than 200 feet from the Huntington Shore Well meas-

ured on a horizontal plane at any point below the

depth of 3800 feet below sea level as the course of

the Huntington Shore Well is shown on the plat or

chart marked Trustee's Exhibit 5.

In determining whether such drilled, re-drilled or

sidetracked portion of Petroleum Well, also known as

Fee No. 1 Well approaches within 200 feet of the

Huntington Shore Well, measured as above set forth,

the course of the Huntington Shore Well in said plat

shall be as delineated on said plat and shall be con-

clusive as to the parties ; and the distance therefrom

shall be conclusively determined by plotting the course

of the drilled, re-drilled or sidetracked portion of said

[194] Fee No. 1 Well on said plat, based upon single

shot surveys taken during the course of the drilling,

redrilling or sidetracking of the Petroleum Well, also

known as Fee No. 1 Well, at approximately every

100 feet, which single shot surveys shall be made

available to the Trustee in Bankruptcy or his repre-

sentatives as the same are from time to time taken

and made;

That the circulating fluid in drilling, re-drilling,

or sidetracking of said Petroleum Well, also known

as Fee No. 1 Well, shall be virgin crude oil main-

tained at a grade and gravity consistent with good

oil practice in said field, and that no mud or other

foreign substances of any kind shall be used in lieu
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of such circulating fluid, provided that a substitute

circulating fluid may be used as may be mutually

agreed to in writing between the petroleum engineers

for the respective parties thereto.'

The Referee: Is that stipulation agreeable, gentle-

men?

Mr. Borden: Yes.

Mr. Rifkind : We will prepare an order.

The Referee : Very well, prepare a formal order.

Mr. Rifkind: It will be approved as to form and

contents by both sides.

Now, I want to introduce as Trustee's exhibit next

in order this plat showing among other things the

course of the [197] Huntington Shore Well and the

course of the old Bolsa Chica Well.

Mr. Pallette: The present course.

Mr. Rifkind: The present course of the Bolsa

Chica Well, known as Petroleum Well, and also

known as Fee No. 1 Well.

The Referee: The plat will be marked Trustee's

Exhibit No. 5.

(The document referred to is marked Trustee's

Exhibit No. 5, in evidence.)"

It is the contention of the appellant that even had not

said order of injunction been stipulated to, and even had

the order been in excess of the jurisdiction of the Bank-

ruptcy Court, jurisdiction is an issue, like any other issue

in a case, which, after an order becomes final, is not

subject to any reopening or further hearing thereon. A
decision which is res judicata concludes all issues raised

thereunder, and that could have been raised thereunder.
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In this case one of the issues raised by appellees was the

question of the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court. Thus,

once having- raised such question, appellees are now finally

bound by the decision of the Bankruptcy Court in dis-

posing of such issue, and are forever concluded from

making a collateral attack thereon.

This point has been definitely decided by the United

States Supreme Court in the following decisions:

In the case of Baldzmn v. lozva State Traveling Men's

Ass'n., 283 U. S. 522, 51 S. Ct. 517, 75 L. Ed. 1244,

involving an action brought against defendant in the

United States District Court of Missouri, defendant hav-

ing appeared specially for the purpose of objecting to the

jurisdiction of the Court. The Court overruled the ob-

jection and the defendant took no further steps of any

kind in the proceeding after the Court overruled the

objection. Judgment, was rendered against defendant in

said proceeding. Later on the judgment creditor in said

suit brought an action at the residence of the defendant,

which was in the United States District Court of Iowa.

Defendant claimed that the Missouri District Court had

no jurisdiction to render the judgment. The Iowa Dis-

trict Court sustained this defense and dismissed the action.

The question of whether such a collateral attack could be

made on the first judgment was taken to the United States

Supreme Court, which Court, in a decision by Justice

Roberts, makes the following statement (283 U. S. pp.

524, 525, 526)

:

"The substantial matter for determination is

whether the judgment amounts to res judicata on the

question of the jurisdiction of the court which ren-

dered it over the person of the respondent. It is of
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no moment that the appearance was a special one ex-

pressly saving any submission to such jurisdiction.

That fact zvoiild he important upon appeal from the

judgment, and zvoidd save the question of the propri-

ety of the court's decision on the matter even though

after the motion had been overruled, the respondent

had proceeded, subject to a reserved objection and

exception, to a trial on the merits. * * * j^/^^

special appearance gives point to the fact that the re-

spondent entered the Missouri court for the very pur-

pose of litigating the question of jurisdiction over its

person. It had the election not to appear at all. If,

in the absence of appearance, the court had proceeded

to judgment and the present suit had been brought

thereon, respondent could have raised and tried out

the issue in the present action, because it would never

have had its day in court with respect to jurisdiction.

* * * It had also the right to appeal from the de-

cision of the Missouri district court, as is shown by

Harkness v. Hyde, 98 U. S. 476, 25 L. ed. 237, supra,

and the other authorities cited. It elected to follow

neither of those courses, but, after having been de-

feated upon full hearing in its contention as to juris-

diction, it took no further steps, and the judgment

in question resulted.

''Public policy dictates that there be an end of liti-

gation; that those who have contested an issue shall

be bound by the result of the contest, and that mat-

ters once tried shall be considered forever settled as

between the parties. We see no reason why this doc-

trine should not apply in ci'cry case zuhcre one volun-

tarily appears, presents his case and is fully heard,

and why he should not, in the absence of fraud, be

thereafter concluded by the judgment of the tribunal

to which he has submitted his cause." (Italics ours.)
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Another of such Supreme Court decisions is Chicot

County Drainage Dist. v. Baxter State Bank, 308 U. S.

371, 60 S. Ct. 317, 84 L. Ed. 329 (rehearing denied 309

U. S. 695, 60 S. Ct. 581, 84 L. Ed. 1035) which involved

a bankruptcy proceeding under the municipal reorganiza-

tion and adjustnient provision for the adjustment of

bonds of the drainage district. In this case it ap-

peared that the particular bondholder had been a

claimant in the reorganization proceedings. Notwith-

standing such reorganization, and notwithstanding the

fact that a claim had been filed, the bondholder filed suit

on its original bonds, contending that the bankruptcy

court in the reorganization proceeding was without juris-

diction, for the reason that the Municipal Reorganization

Act w^as ruled unconstitutional by the United States Su-

preme Court. Chief Justice Hughes, in writing the opin-

ion, states as follows at 308 U. S. at pp. 374, 375

:

"The courts below have proceeded on the theory

that the Act of Congress, having been found to be un-

constitutional, was not a law: that it was inoperative,

conferring no rights and imposing no duties, and

hence affording no basis for the alleged decree. Nor-

ton V. Shelby County, 118 U. S. 425, 442; Chicago,

I. & L. Ry. Co. V. Hackett, 228 U. S. 559, 566. It is

quite clear, however, that such broad statements as to

the effect of a determination of unconstitutionality

must be taken with qualifications. The actual ex-

istence of a statute," prior to such a determination, is

an operative fact and may have consequences which

cannot justly be ignored. The past cannot always

be erased by a new judicial declaration. The effect

of the subsequent ruling as to invalidity may have to

be considered in various aspects,—with respect to
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particular relations, individual and corporate, and

particular conduct, private and official. Questions of

rights claimed to have become vested, of status, of

prior determinations deemed to have finality and acted

upon accordingly, of public policy in the light of the

nature both of the statute and of its previous applica-

tion, demand examination. Those questions are

among the most difficult of those which have engaged

the attention of courts, state and federal, and it is

manifest from numerous decisions that an all-in-

clusive statement of a principle of absolute retro-

active invalidity cannot be justified. Without at-

tempting to review the different classes of cases in

which the consequences of a ruling against validity

have been determined in relation to the particular cir-

cumstances of past transactions, we appropriately

confine our consideration to the question of res judi-

cata as it now comes before us."

Also quoting from the syllabus, as follows:

"The lower federal courts, including the District

Court sitting as a court of bankruptcy, though their

jurisdiction is limited to that prescribed by Acts of

Congress, are nevertheless courts with authority, when

parties are brought before them in accordance with

the requirements of due process, to determine whether

or not they have jurisdiction to entertain the cause

and for this purpose to construe and apply the statute

under which they are asked to act. Their determina-

tions of such questions, zvhile open to direct review,

may not be assailed collaterally,"
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And at page Z76 the court said:

"The argument is pressed that the District Court

was sitting as a court of bankruptc3^ with the limited

jurisdiction conferred by statute, and that, as the

statute was later declared to be invalid, the District

Court was without jurisdiction to entertain the pro-

ceeding and hence its decree is open to collateral at-

tack. We think the argument untenable. The lower

federal courts are all courts of limited jurisdiction,

that is, with only the jurisdiction which Congress has

prescribed. But none the less they are courts with

authority, when parties are brought before them in

accordance with the requirements of due process, to

determine zvhether or not they have jurisdiction to en-

tertain the cause and for this purpose to construe and

apply the statute under which they are asked to act.

Their determinations of such questions, while open to

direct revieiv, may not be assailed collaterally/'

Also, at page 378, where it was said:

"The remaining question is simply whether re-

spondents having failed to raise the question in the

proceeding to which they were parties and in which

they could have raised it and had it finally determined,

were privileged to remain quiet and raise it in a sub-

sequent suit. Such a view is contrary to the well-

settled principle that res judicata may be pleaded as a

bar, not only as respects matters actually presented

to sustain or defeat the right asserted in the earlier

proceeding , 'but also as respects any other available

matter which might have been presented to that end/

Grubb V. Public Utilities Commission, 281 U. S. 470,

74 L. Ed. 972. 50 S. Ct. 374. supra; Cronnvell v. Sac.

County, 94 U. S. 351, 24 L. Ed. 195, supra.''

(Italics are those of appellants wherever they appear.)
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Another United States Supreme Court case directly in

point is Stoll v. Gottlieb, 305 U. S. 165, 59 S. Ct. 134, 83

L. Ed. 104 (rehearing denied 305 U. S. 675, 59 S. Ct. 250,

^?> L. Ed. 437), which involves a question arising out

of a proceeding under section 77-B of the Bankruptcy

Act. In said case the plaintiff had not filed a claim

in the original 77-B proceeding wherein an order of re-

organization had been made. However, after the order

approving the plan of reorganization had been made, he

filed a petition to vacate the same insofar as it eliminated

the liability of Stoll as a guarantor under the bonds held

by him. This petition to vacate was denied. Thereafter

the bondholder filed a suit in the Municipal Court of Chi-

cago for the full amount of his bonds, and contended that

the decree of the bankruptcy court was void for lack of

jurisdiction. The Municipal Court of Chicago held with

the bondholder and awarded him judgment against Stoll

for the full amount of the bonds, and disregarded the plan

of reorganization approved by the United States District

Court. An appeal was taken to the Appellate Court of

Illinois, which reversed the Municipal Court; then an ap-

peal was taken to the Supreme Court of Illinois which re-

versed the intermediate appellate court and upheld the

Municipal Court judgment. Thereupon a review was taken

to the United States Supreme Court which in turn re-

versed the Supreme Court of Illinois and held that when

the bondholder filed his petition to vacate the decree of

the District Court he subjected himself to the jurisdiction

of said court for all purposes, both as to subject-matter

and as to person.
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We quote from the language of the opinion by Justice

Reed at 305 U. S., pp. 171, 172, as follows:

"The inquiry is to be directed at the conclusiveness

of the order releasing the guarantor from his obliga-

tion assuming the Bankruptcy Court did not have

jurisdiction of the subject matter of the order, the

release in reorganisation of a guarantor from his

guaranty of the debto/s obligations,

"A court does not have the power, by judicial fiat,

to extend its jurisdiction over matters beyond the

scope of the authority granted to it by its creators.

There must be admitted, however, a power to inter-

pret the language of the jurisdictional instrument and

its application to an issue before the court. Where
adversary parties appear, a court must have the

power to determine whether or not it has jurisdiction

of the person of a litigant, or whether its geographi-

cal jurisdiction covers the place of the occurrence

under consideration. Every court in rendering a

judgment tacitly, if not expressly, determines its juris-

diction over the parties and the subject matter. An
erroneous affirmative conclusion as to the jurisdiction

does not in any proper sense enlarge the jurisdiction

of the court until passed upon by the court of last

resort, and even then the jurisdiction becomes en-

larged only from the necessity of having a judicial

determination of the jurisdiction over the subject

matter. When an er-roneous judgment, whether from

the court of first instance, or from the court of final

resort, is pleaded in another court or another jurisdic-

tion the question is whether the former judgment is

res judicata. After a federal court has decided the

question of the jurisdiction over the parties as a con-

tested issue, the court in which the plea of res judi-
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cata is made has not the power to inquire again into

that jurisdictional fact. We see no reason why a

court, in the absence of an allegation of fraud in ob-

taining the judgment, should examine again the ques-

tion whether the court making the earlier determina-

tion on an actual contest over jurisdiction between the

parties, did have jtirisdiction of the subject matter of

the litigation. In this case the order upon the petition

to vacate the confirmation settled the contest over

jurisdiction." (Italics ours.)

In this case of Stoll v. Gottlieb, supra, it was urged by

the respondent there, as it is urged by the appellees in the

present case, that the order was a complete nullity and sub-

ject to collateral attack. Such contention in the briefs of

respondent there were answered by the following lan-

guage in the decision, at page 172:

''Courts to determine the rights of parties are an

integral part of our system of government. It is just

as important that there should be a place to end as

that there shoidd be a place to begin litigation. After

a party has his day in court, with opportunity to pres-

ent his evidence and his mew of the law, a collateral

attack upon the decision as to jurisdiction there ren-

dered merely retries the issue previously determined.

There is no reason to expect that the second decision

will be more satisfactory than the first." (Italics

ours.

)

Incidentally, in said case of Stoll v. Gottlieb, supra, the

Supreme Court refers to the case of Fairbanks Steam

Shovel Co. V. Wills, 240 U. S. 642, 649, 60 L. Ed. 841,

36 S. Ct. 466, 36 Am. Bankr. Rep. 754, where the United

States Supreme Court said: ''The Bankruptcy Court is

one of general jurisdiction."
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We refer the Court to a recent case decided by the

California District Court of Appeal, Bank of America v.

McLaughlin etc. Co., 40 Cal. App. (2d) 620, quoting from

the syllabus as follows:

"A bankruptcy court has the authority to pass

upon its own jurisdiction, and also has the power to

adjudicate title to property listed in the debtor's

schedule."

Further quoting from the decision at pages 026-627, as

follows

:

"The controversy. between the parties on this point

naturally divides itself into three headings : ( 1 ) the

power of the bankruptcy court to pass upon its own
jurisdiction; (2) its power to adjudicate title to prop-

erty listed in the debtor's schedule; and (3) the effect

of its decree determining more than one issue.

(1) Preliminarily we start with the axiomatic ob-

servation that the decisions of the federal courts de-

termining the jurisdiction of their own courts is

controlling here as well as the decisions interpreting

and declaring the purport and effect of their own
judgments. Hence, when a judgment of a federal

court is received in a state court it is to be accepted

with the full faith and credit accorded that judgment

in the jurisdiction where it was rendered and in the

light of its interpretation in the federal decisions. This

is the effect of the recent decision of the Supreme

Court of the United States in Sfoll v. Gottlieb, 305

U. C. 165 (59 Sup. Ct. 134, 83 L. Ed. 104), where it

rejected the ruling of the Illinois state court refusing

to accept certain decrees of a bankruptcy court as res

judicata on the grounds that the bankruptcy court

had no jurisdiction to enter the decrees.
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"With this rule in mind we turn to the federal deci-

sions as determinative of the first two questions pre-

sented. In Chicot County Drainage Dist. v. Baxter

State Bank, 308 U. S. 371, 376 (60 Sup. Ct. 317,

319, 84 L. Ed. 329) (1940), the United States Su-

preme Court said:

'The court has the authority to pass upon its oimi

jurisdiction and its decree sustaining jurisdiction

against attack, while open to direct review, is res

judicata, in a collateral action. (Stoll v. Gottlieb, 305

U. S. 165, 171, 172, 59 Sup. Ct. 134, 137, 83 L. Ed.

104.)'"

The learned District Judge in the case at bar relied at

great length upon the case of Ex parte Sawyer, 124 U. S.

200, 31 L. Ed. 402, 8 S. Ct. 482, which was one of the

cases relied upon unsuccessfully by respondent in Stoll v.

Gottlieb, supra, and which is to be distinguished from the

case at bar in this respect : In Ex parte Sawyer, supra,

a restraining order was issued ex parte without notice,

against officers of the municipality. The officers of the

municipality never appeared in the proceeding out of

which the restraining order was issued. In other words,

the officers of the municipality had never had their day in

court, and the issue of jurisdiction of the subject matter

and of the person had never been raised by them. The

Supreme Court points out that where a person is served

with process, if he feels that such process is issued out of

a court that does not have jurisdiction, he may disregard

the same, and thereafter, when the same is sought to be

enforced against him, he may then raise the question of
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lack of jurisdiction. {Baldzviii v. Iowa State Traveling

Men's Ass'n, supra.) But if he appears in said action and

raises the question of jurisdiction and the objection to the

jurisdiction is overruled, it is incumbent upon him to carry

said issue to the highest tribunal, because once said matter

becomes final, either by a decision of the highest tribunal,

or because of the failure to raise such question, that issue

can no longer be raised.

In said case of Ex parte Saivyer, supra, there were two

dissenting opinions, one by Mr. Chief Justice Waite and

one by Mr. Justice Harlan. We quote from the language

of the dissent of the Chief Justice, as follows, at page

223:

"If the court can take jurisdiction of such a case

under any circumstances, it certainly must be per-

mitted to inquire, when a bill of that character is filed,

whether the case is one that entitles the party to the

relief he asks, and, if necessary to prevent wrong, in

the meantime, to issue in its discretion a temporary

restraining order for that purpose. Such an order

will not be void, even though it may be found on

examination to have been improvidently issued. While

in force it must be obeyed, and the court will not be

without jurisdiction to punish for its contempt. Such,

in my opinion, was this case: and I therefore dissent

from the judgment which has been ordered."

In this connection we' quote from the case of Stoil v.

Gottlieb, supra, as follows, at 305 U. S., page 177:

"We do not review these cases as we base our con-

clusion here on the fact that in an actual controversy

the question of the jurisdiction over the subject matter

was raised and determined adversely to the respond-
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ent. That determination is res adjudicata of that

issue in this action, whether or not power to deal with

the particular subject matter was strictly or quasi-

jurisdictional."

In the case of Jennings v. U. S., 264 Fed. 399, which

was a case where the United States District Court issued

an injunction, it is said:

"Another reason why the objections of Mr. Jen-

nings to the jurisdiction of the court below to issue

the order of injunction in the equity suit are not

tenable is that he is estopped from successfully ob-

jecting to that jurisdiction by the adjudication which

the court necessarily made that it had jurisdiction

when it issued the order of injunction on notice to

him of the hearing on motion for it, and by his failure

to appeal from it within the time fixed for his appeal

by the acts of Congress."

We also refer to the recent case of Sunshine Anthracite

Coal Co, V. Adkins, 310 U. S. 381, 84 L. Ed. 1263, 60

S. Ct. 907, quoting therefrom at 84 L. Ed., p. 1276, as

follows

:

"* * * The suggestion that the doctrine of res

judicata does not apply unless the court rendering the

judgment had jurisdiction of the cause is sufficiently

answered by Stoll v. Gottlieb, 305 U. S. 165, 83 L.

Ed. 104, 59 S. Ct. 134, 38 Am. Bank. Rep. (N. S.)

76, and Treinies v. Sunshine Min. Co., 308 U. S. 66,

ante, 85, 60 vS. Ct. 44. As held in these cases, in

general the principles of res judicata apply to ques-

tions of jurisdiction as well as to other matters

—

whether it he jurisdiction of the subject matter or of

the parties."
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Another recent decision of the United States Supreme

Court further supports appellant's contention. In the case

of Robert H. Jackson, Atty. Gen. of U. S. etc. v. Irving

Trust Co. et al, 85 L. Ed. (Adv. Op.) 310, it was held:

(Syl.) ''An unappealed decree of a Federal Dis-

trict Court "^^ * * is not subject to collateral at-

tack upon a subsequent motion ^ ^ ^ )^q have it

set aside upon the ground that the court was without

jurisdiction * h^ * where the court on the trial,

although it did not consider the jurisdictional question

as such, denied a motion made to dismiss the suit

* * * and all the issues necessary to a determina-

tion of the right to maintain the suit were before the

court in that suit.

"Whether a particular issue was actually litigated is

immaterial on the question of the conclusiveness of a

decree, where there was full opportunity to litigate

it, and it was adjudicated by the decree."

We also wish to refer the Court to the recent case of

Sampsell v. Imperial Paper & Color Corp., 85 L. Ed.

(Adv. Op.) 797, at p. 799, to the effect that ihe order of

a Referee cannot be collaterally attacked where no appeal

has been taken therefrom.

Also to the recent case of Pittsburgh Plate Glass Co.

V. National Labor Relations Board, 85 L. Ed. (Adv. Op.)

771, at p. 779 to the effect that the entry of an order upon

stipulation and consent does not in any wise detract from

its force and effect.
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Also to the case of Szmft & Co. v. United States, 276

U. S. 311, 72 L. Ed. 587, 48 S. Ct. 311, from which we

quote at 276 U. S. 326, as follows

:

"It is contended that the Supreme Court lacked

jurisdiction because there was no case or controversy

within the meaning of §2 of article 3 of the Consti-

tution. « * * Xhe defendants concede that there

was a case at the time when the Government filed its

petition and the defendants their answers; but they

insist that the controversy had ceased before the de-

cree was entered. The argument is that, as the Gov-

ernment made no proof of facts to overcome the

denials of the answers, and stipulated both that there

need be no findings of fact and that the decree should

not constitute or be considered an adjudication of

guilt, it thereby abandoned all charges that the de-

fendants had violated the law; and hence the decree

was a nullity." * * * ''Moreover, the objection

is one which is not open on a motion to vacate. * * *

On a motion to vacate, the determination by the

Supreme Court of the District that a case or con-

troversy existed is not open to attack."

Also, at page 324, as follows:

"But 'a decree, which appears by the record to

have been rendered by consent, is always affirmed,

without considering the merits of the cause.' Nash-

ville, C. & St. L. R. Co. V. United States, 113 U. S.

261, 266, 28 L. Ed. 971, 973, 5 Sup. Ct. Rep. 460.

* * * Where as here, the attack is not by appeal

or by biU of review, but by a motion to vacate, filed

more than four years after the entry of the decree,

the scope of the enquiry may be even narrower."
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Quoting, further, at page 372

:

"If the court erred in finding in these allegations

a basis for fear of future wrong sufficient to warrant

an injunction, its error was of a character ordinarily

remediable on appeal. Such an error is waived by the

consent to the decree. United States v. Babbitt, 104

U. S. 767, 26 L. Ed. 921 ; McGowan v. Parish, 237

U. S. 285, 295, 59 L. Ed. 955, 963, 35 Sup. Ct. Rep.

543. Clearly it does not go to the power of the court

to adjudicate between the parties."

It was likewise error for the District Court to go behind

the order of injunction, inasmuch as the only issue before it

was the question of contempt, and whether or not the

appellees had committed a contempt by violating the order

of injunction.

Remington on Bankruptcy (5th Ed.), Vol, 7, Sec.

3043.

Also:

Remington on Bankruptcy (5th Ed.), Vol. 5, Sec.

2428.
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II.

The Appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Was
Estopped From Questioning the Order of Injunc-

tion by Reason of Its Consent to the Making

Thereof.

Point 6. The District Court erred in sustaining objec-

tions to the jurisdiction of the Referee to issue the injunction

(the violation of which was the basis for the Certificate of

Contempt), for the reason that respondents are estopped from

asserting such objections by virtue of their having submitted

themselves to the jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court by

stipulating that the injunction might be entered against them,

by cross-examining the witnesses and otherwise participating

in the proceedings against them.

Point 7. The District Court erred in sustaining objections

to the jurisdiction of the Referee to issue the injunction (the

violation of which was the basis for the Certificate of Con-

tempt) for the reason that respondents are estopped from

asserting such objections by virtue of their having failed to

taken an appeal or review from the injunctive proceedings be-

fore the Referee.

Point 8. The District Court erred in failing to hold that

any purported reservation of jurisdictional objections by the

respondents was waived and nullified by the effect of the gen-

eral appearance made by respondents in stipulating that the

injunction might be entered against them and by approving

the order of injunction not only as to form but as to con-

tents as well.
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The appellee, Bolsa Cbica Oil Corporation, had the right

to submit to the Bankruptcy Court's jurisdiction, which

it did in this case. The evidence in this case shows that

the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, consented to

and stipulated to such order of injunction. Such consent

and stipulation are evidenced by the following references

to the record: [Tr. p. 57 and pp. 150-160] and quoted

under Point I of this brief.

The complete testimony before the Referee leading up

to the order of injunction of May 15, 1940, is not con-

tained in the record for the reason that appellee, Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, having stipulated thereto, and such

stipulation and consent being evidenced by the Referee's

certificate, and such order being based upon such consent,

appellant did not consider that such evidence was neces-

sary to be included in the transcript on appeal, although

the reporter's transcript of such evidence and proceedings

is in the possession of the clerk of the above court.

However, the principal question on this appeal is

whether the Referee had jurisdiction to make the order

of injunction and to issue the certificate of contempt.

The record clearly indicates that the Referee would not

have signed the order and would not have made the terms

of the injunction as broad as they are were it not for the

statements of the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

that it would be bound i)y the order and that it would not

take a review of such order. The Referee stated that if it

were not for such statement of agreement not to review,

he would want to give the matter further consideration

before making suph order. [Tr. p. 156.]
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It is a well established point of law that a person who

consents to the making of an order cannot question the

power and jurisdiction of the court thereafter. By his

consent and stipulation he recognizes the authority of the

Court to make the same.

Semple v. Wright, 32 Cal. 659;

Morrow v. Learned, 76 Cal. App. 538;

Jaekson v. Brown, 82 Cal. 275

;

Fitzgerald v. Tertninal Dev. Co., 11 Cal. App. (2d)

126.

It is appellant's contention that the appellee, Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation, by joining in the preparation of said

order of injunction fTr. p. 154], and by stipulating to the

same in open court, virtually asked that the bankruptcy

court give it relief and exercise its power. In this con-

nection we refer the Court to 3 Cal. Jur., p. 12, as follows:

''In determining whether an appearance is general

or special, the charaeteriaation given it by the party

is of no consequence zuhatever. * * * q^ ^j^g

other hand, if he appears and asks for any relief

which could only be given a party in a pending case,

or which itself would be a regular proceeding in the

case, it is a general appearance no matter how care-

fully or expressly it may be stated that the appear-

ance is special." (Italics ours.)

Upon the hearing before the Referee the questions to

be decided were whether the manner in which the appel-

lee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, was drilling its "Petro-

leum Well" would result in a trespass and damage to ap-

pellant's property, and whether to issue an order of in-
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Well" in such a manner as would result in a trespass and

injury to the property of the appellant. In connection

with such issues, it was necessary to decide how close

appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, should drill its well

to the well of appellant, the kind of circulating fluid to be

used, et cetera. By its stipulation, appellee, Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation, asked the Court to make such determina-

tion in accordance with the stipulation.

In the proceeding before the Referee, the appellee,

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, offered to enter into a

stipulation that an injunction be issued in accordance with

the agreement of appellant and appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation. In the written stipulation that followed, a

recital appears to the effect that by virtue of entering into

said stipulation the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

did not concede the general jurisdiction of the Bank-

ruptcy Court. This expression would appear inconsistent

with the submission to jurisdiction by said appellee. Quite

obviously the purpose and effect of such recital was to

limit the appearance of the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, to the particular matter of the injunction and

not to submit to the general jurisdiction of the Court for

other purposes as well. Furthermore, it is well settled

that a general appearance by a party-litigant waives any

objection that such party-litigant may have to the juris-

diction of the Court over such party-litigant. Having

submitted itself to the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy

Court by participating in the proceedings, by the cross-

examination of witnesses by offering to stipulate to the

issuance of the order of injunction, by agreeing not to

review the stipulated order of injunction, and by actually
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stipulating to the issuance of such injunction, the appellee,

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, thus forever concluded the

question of the Court's jurisdiction over it, irrespective

of any subsequent attempt to denominate such procedure

as being purely a special appearance for the purpose of

questioning the Court's jurisdiction. In other words,

a party-Htigant may question the jurisdiction of the Court,

but while doing so, it may not ask the Court for affirma-

tive relief and yet claim not to have submitted itself to

the Court's jurisdiction.

In the case of Burrows v. Burrows, 10 Cal. App. (2d),

749, 750, the Court said:

*'It is the well-settled rule that if a party defendant

raises any question other than that of jurisdiction or

asks for any relief which can only be granted upon

the hypothesis that the court has jurisdiction of his

person, his appearance is general, though termed

special, and he thereby submits to the jurisdiction of

the court as completely as if he had been regularly

served with summons. (Security Loan & Trust Co.

V. Boston & South Riverside Fruit Co., 126 Cal. 418

(58 Pac. 941, 59 Pac. 296) ; Olcese v. Justice's Court,

156 Cal. 82 (103 Pac. 317).)"

We also refer the Court to the case of Fddmaii Invest-

ment Co. V. Connecticut Life Insurance Co., 78 Fed. (2d)

838, from which we quote as follows

:

"An offer to confess judgment constitutes a general

appearance and waives objections to jurisdiction of

the person."
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In 6 Corpus Juris Secundum, section 1(c), page 9, it is

said:

"* * * A defendant appearing specially to object

to the jurisdiction of the court must, as a general

rule, keep out of court for all other purposes and

limit his appearance to that particular question. Con-

sequently, if, after he has appeared specially to ques-

tion the jurisdiction, defendant fails to limit his ap-

pearance to a consideration of that particular ques-

tion, or takes any step consistent with the hypothesis

that the court has jurisdiction of the cause and the

person, the special appearance is thereby converted

into a general appearance irrespective of whether or

not it is by its terms limited to a special purpose, and

an attempted reservation of the special appearance

and rights thereunder is wholly ineffectual/' * * *

(Italics ours.)

Citing

:

Benedict v. Seiherling, 17 Fed. (2d) 841 (D. Ct.

Ohio)

;

O'Brien v. Lashar, 273 Fed. 521 (C.C.A., Conn.)

;

Payne v. Pidlan, 44 Cal. App. 728.

We also wish to refer the Court to \^ol. v3, Am. Jnr.,

section 12, p. 790, as follows:

"If an appearance is in effect a general one, the

fact that the party making it characterizes it as a

special appearance or that it is expressly limited by

its terms as special, does not prevent it from being

general, as all appearances are presumed to be

general."
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Further, quoting- 3 Am. Jur., section 42, p. 811:

"And in an action is a federal court, where the de-

fendant appears specially for the purpose of raising

the question of jurisdiction over his person, is fully

heard upon such question, and, upon the overruling

of his motion to quash service, takes no further part

in the case and seeks no review, a judgment subse-

quently entered against him on the merits is res judi-

cata on the question of jurisdiction and is not subject

to be collaterally attacked on that same ground when

issued on in another state." (Citing Baldwin v.

Iowa State Traveling Men's Ass'ti, supra.)

We further refer the Court to the case of State ex rel.

Bingham v. District Court, 80 Mont. 97, 257 Pac. 1014

where the court stated

:

"In short, the rule is that counsel cannot asservate

and reprobate in the same breath; he cannot acknowl-

edge that the cause is in court for certain purposes

and at the same time assert that the court is without

jurisdiction to proceed in the cause in any manner.

In the situation in which counsel found himself in

March, he was at a juncture of the main highway and

a byway; he could not travel both, but was compelled

to choose which way he would go; having chosen the

highway leading to a final determination of the action,

he was barred from entering also upon the byway

or thereafter returning to it."

The evidence in this case shows that appellee, Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, not only participated in the hearing
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by cross-examining the witnesses of the trustee [Tr. pp.

57 and 150], but helped to prepare the order of injunction

and stipulated to such order. Said order was approved

not only as to form but also as to contents. [Tr. p. 32].

Appellant's contention is that appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, could not in one breath say "Vou can make

this order," and at the same time say ''You have no right

to make it."

Furthermore, it is appellant's contention that the ques-

tion of whether or not consent was given is a question of

fact (Remington on Bankruptcy (5th Ed.), Vol. 5, p.

336) and the Bankruptcy Court having found that consent

was given and no appeal having been taken, said matter

was forever concluded against the appellees.

It must be strongly emphasized that the consent of the

appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, was not necessary,

since the Bankruptcy Court may, in any event, issue in-

junctions to prevent interference or damage to the prop-

erty in its possession. But even assuming that the consent

of appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, was necessary,

we feel that it consented by virtue of its participation in

the injunction procedings and by virtue of its stipulation

to said order of injunction. Whether the appellee, Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation consented or not, is a question of

fact. The finding by the Referee that there had been such

consent, where supported by evidence, should not be dis-

turbed. Remington on Bankruptcy (5th Ed.), \'olume 5,

Section 2197, p. 336 and /// re Traylor, 27 F. Supp. 778,

779 (D. C. Ky.)
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III.

The Bankruptcy Court, Both Under the Bankruptcy

Act Itself, and as a Court of Equity, Has the

Inherent Power to Protect Property in Its Cus-

tody and to Enjoin Any Injury or Threatened

Injury Thereto.

Point 4. The District Court erred in sustaining objections

to the jurisdiction of the Referee to issue the injunction (the

violation of which was the basis for the Certificate of Con-

tempt) for the reason that the bankruptcy court is a court

of equity and as such has inherent power to enjoin threat-

ened harm to, or interference with, the property in custody

of the bankruptcy court.

Point 5. The District Court erred in sustaining objections

to the jurisdiction of the Referee to issue the injunction (the

violation of which was the basis for the Certificate of Con-

tempt), for the reason that the bankruptcy court is given

power, under Section 2(15) of the Bankruptcy Act of 1938

to enjoin any threatened harm to, or interference with, the

property in custody of the bankruptcy court.

The bankruptcy court under section 2(15) of the

Bankruptcy Act has the power to make such orders

and issue such process as may be necessary properly to

administer any property within its custody, control

or jurisdiction. The Bankruptcy Court is also a court

of equity and has the inherent power by injunction

to protect any property within its custody or control.

See Collier on Bankruptcy (14th Ed.), §2.61, Vol. 1,

p. 253, as follows:

"Clause (15)" (of section 2(a) of Bankruptcy

Act) "is an omnibus provision, phrased in such general

term$ as to be the basis for a broad exercise of power



in the due administration of a bankruptcy proceeding.

The most important and frequent example of this ex-

ercise is the use of the power to enjoin or restrain the

actions of others. While such power is probably in-

herent in the bankruptcy court as a court of equity,

clause (15) gives it express legislative sanction."

"The essential purpose of §2a(15) is to give the

court power to protect its custody of the estate and

the administration thereof."

See, also. Collier on Bankruptcy (14th Ed.), Vol. 1,

§2.65 from which we quote at page 280, as follows

:

"The injunctive power, when exercised, is subject

to the same rules and limitations as in the case of

other equitable writs of injunction, and its use is

available to prevent the infliction of threatened or

imminent, but not mere possible, injury." (Italics

ours.

)

In the Matter of Baldwin, 291 U. S. 610, the Supreme

Court said:

"To protect its jurisdiction from interference that

court (the bankruptcy court) may issue an injunction.

The power is not peculiar to bankruptcy or to the

federal courts. It is an application of the general

principle that where a court of competent jurisdiction

has, through its officers, taken property into its pos-

session the property is thereby withdrawn from the

jurisdiction of other courts. Having possession, the

court may not only issue all writs necessary to protect

its possession from physical interference, but is en-

titled to determine all questions respecting the same."

(Italics ours.)
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In Steelman v. All Continent Corp., 301 U. S. 172, 57

S. Ct. 705, 81 L. Ed. 1085, the United States Supreme

Court, referring to section 2a(15) of the Bankruptcy Act,

said:

"Referring to these statutes, this court has said that

*the power to issue an injunction when necessary to

prevent the defeat or impairment of its jurisdiction is

* * * inherent in a court of bankruptcy, as it is in

a duly estabHshed court of equity.'
"

A bankruptcy court under Sec. 2a(15) and in the exer-

cise of its equitable power, may issue injunctions and re-

straining orders to preserve the assets of the bankrupt's

estate.

In re Consumers' Albany Brewing Co. (D. C,
N. Y.), 224 F. 235.

Labor unions may be enjoined from interfering with

the operation of a brewery by a debtor in corporate re-

organization, notwithstanding the Norris-La Guardia

Anti-Injunction Act.

In re Cleveland and Sandusky Breimng Co. (D. C.

Ohio), 11 F. Supp. 198, 29 Am. B. R. (N. S.)

393, 127 A. L. R. 873.

In this connection, we again wish to refer the Court to

the case of Swift & Co. v. United States, supra, quoting

therefrom at 276 U. S., p. 326, as follows:

"The argument ignores the fact that a suit for an

injunction deals primarily, not with past violations,

but with threatened future ones; and that an injunc-

tion may issue to prevent future zvrong, although no

right has yet been violated. Vicksburg Waterworks
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Co. V. Vicksburg, 185 U. S. 65, 82, 46 L. Ed. 808, 815,

22 Sup. Ct. Rep. 585 ; Pierce v. Society of Sisters, 268

U. S. 510, 536, 69 L. Ed. 1070, 1078, 39 A. L. R.

468, 45 Sup. Ct. Rep. 571."

Also, at page 331, as follows:

*'If the court, in addition to enjoining acts that

were admittedly interstate, enjoined some that were

wholly intrastate and in no way related to the con-

spiracy to obstruct interstate commerce, it erred; and

had the defendants not waived such error by their

consent, they might have had it corrected on appeal.

But the error, if any, does not go to the jurisdiction

of the court. The power to enjoin includes the power

to enjoin too much." (Italics ours.)

We refer the Court to the case of Morehouse v. Giant

Pozvder Company, 206 Fed. 24, where it is said

:

"A court of bankruptcy has jurisdiction to grant

an injunction restraining any act which will interfere

with the administration of the bankruptcy law against

any person within its jurisdiction, whether a party

to the bankruptcy proceedings or not."

In said cited case, Morehouse, the party found in con-

tempt, was not a party to the bankruptcy procedings; was

not named in the injunction in the bankruptcy court; yet

the court, at pages 28 ^nd 29 of this case, states as fol-

lows:

"It is contended that the plaintiffs in error were

not and could not have been made parties to the bank-

ruptcy proceedings, and that, therefore, the District

Court had no jurisdiction over them, and no power

to enjoin them. But section 2, cl. 15, gives the bank-



ruptcy court power to issue injunctions against per-

sons within the court's jurisdiction, whether parties

to the bankruptcy proceedings or not, to prevent the

transfer or disposition of any part of the bankrupt's

property. * * * "p^ render a person amenable

to an injunction, it is neither necessary that he should

have been a party to the suit in which the injunction

was issued, nor to have been actually served with a

copy of it, so long as he appears to have had actual

notice.'
"

The evidence in this case clearly shows, that on two

occasions previous to the hearing on the contempt citation,

the property of the bankrupt estate had been seriously in-

terfered with and damaged, once due to the redrilling

operations of the Termo Company, (a neighboring opera-

tor of both appellant and appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration), which conpletely destroyed the well of the

bankrupt estate, necessitating its redrilling at a cost of

$80,000.00 [Tr. p. 56] ; and second due to the redrilling

operations of the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

which necessitated remedial operations, to again place

said well on production, damaging appellant to the

extent of $12,540.00. [Tr. p. 62]. The evidence in

this case shows that both the well of the appellant

and the well of the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion, as well as the well of the Termo Company, are bot-

tomed under the ocean oil the shore at Huntington Beach

;

that said wells are operated under easements from the

State of California; that appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corpo-

ration, was bound by the same restrictions and conditions,

in the operation of its well, as appellant [Tr. pp. 124-125]
;

that appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, without secur-
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ing the consent of the State of California [Tr. p. 154],

commenced operations to redrill its "Petroleum Well";

that said appellee intended to re-drill said well under State

easement 290-1 so that at the point where it struck the oil

sands its well would be within a distance of less than one

hundred feet from the ''Huntington Shore" well of appel-

lant being operated under State easement 309-2A [Tr. p.

125] ; that the regulations of the State of California re-

quired it to be at least a distance of 200 feet from any

other well [Tr. p. 95] ; that appellee intended to (and

actually did thereafter) use mud as a drilling fluid instead

of crude oil as required by the regulations of the State

of California [Tr. p. 95] ; that the oil sands being of a

porous and migratory nature would cause the mud used

in redrilling said well of the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, to enter the "Huntington Shore Well" of the ap-

pellant, and thereby damage said well of appellant [Tr.

p. 57, pp. 180-184] ; that this threatened destruction was

not based upon a mere possibiHty, as evidenced by the

fact that it had already happened in the case of the re-

drilling of the Termo Well which took place before opera-

tions were commenced on the re-drilling of the well of

the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, and that it also

occurred when the operations were conducted on the well

of said appellee.

Under such a showing it was competent for the Bank-

ruptcy Court to issue its injunction requiring drilling

operations to be conducted on the well of the appellee,

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, in the manner required by

law, so that they would not damage the property of the

bankrupt estate. The appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion recognized that the request of the bankrupt estate

was a reasonable one, and with the assistance of the engi-
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neers of the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, it

collaborated in the drafting and preparation of the order

of injunction, to which it stipulated, and which it ap-

proved. [Tr. pp. 150-160.] The Bankruptcy Court did

not interfere with the operation of the property of the

appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, but only enjoined

such operation to the extent that it would damage appel-

lant's well or interfere with the operation thereof by the

Trustee. The right of the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, to redrill its well, did not include the right

to destroy appellant's property rights and prevent future

operation of appellant's well. Hence, in issuing the order

of injunction against the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration, the Referee was within the proper exercise of

the equitable jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court.

In order for the Court to have a better understanding

of the situation confronting the appellant and the appellee,

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, in its operations, appellant

wishes to call the Court's attention to the fact that there

are a large number of wells, the surface locations of

which are situated on the land side of the beach at Hunt-

ington Beach ; that some of said wells are located as much

as five blocks from the ocean beach; that said wells were

originally drilled without the consent of the State of Cali-

fornia, and without the consent of the Standard Oil Com-

pany of California, which owns the wells located on the

beach at Himtington Beach ; and that all of said wells,

in order to be bottomed under the ocean, had to traverse

the land of the Standard Oil Company of California, and
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had to traverse the land of various other property owners

in the Huntington Beach area; that said wells cross each

other or cross within a short distance of each other in

reaching the oil sands ; that after said wells had been

drilled, injunction suits were filed by the Standard Oil

Company of California and the State of California; that

as a result of such suits, a settlement was effected wherein

and whereby easements were granted by the State of Cali-

fornia upon a royalty basis to produce oil from the ocean

bottom; that all of said easements are in identical form

to that of appellant [Tr. p. 97] ; that under said settlement,

it was further provided that all of said operators should

become members of an association called the "Huntington

Beach Townsite Association" [Tr. p. 125 J and that said

association, as a representative of such operators whose

wells were bottomed under the ocean and whose wells

crossed the lands of the Standard Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, would and did put up a bond to indemnify the

Standard Oil Comipany of California for any damage to

its wells by reason of any of said operators' wells inter-

fering with the production of the wells of the Standard

Oil Company of California in traversing the latter's lands.

In other words, under said arrangement, said ocean bot-

tomed oilfield was constitCited a common pool in which each

of said well owners was given an easement along and

through which it could construct a cylindrical hole, for

the purpose of extracting and producing oil [Tr. pp. 135-

150] ; that for the purpose of avoiding damage to each

other's wells, regulations were adopted by the State re-
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quiring tlie cylindrical hole of each operator to be a certain

distance apart from the others, and that oil be used as a

drilling fluid instead of mud so as to prevent mud from

interfering with the operations of any of said other wells

[Tr. p. 95] ; that the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion, was acquainted with all of the foregoing conditions,

and because it knew that the consent of the State of Cali-

fornia would not be given to the re-drilling of its wells in

such manner, arbitrarily proceeded with such re-drilling

without such consent. [Tr. p. 154.]

The learned District Judge indicated that an injunction

will not issue for a threatened trespass but only for an

actual trespass. We quote his language at page 8 of said

reporter's transcript of the argument before him, lines 21

to 24, as follows:

"But there is no case of that character in the fed-

eral courts holding that we can enjoin in advance of

the doing of a tortious act."

The law is clearly settled that a litigant does not have

to wait for a trespass that will cause irreparable injury

to take place before taking any action, but where any

threat of an act which will cause such damage is made,

grounds for injunction exist. In this connection, we refer

the Court to 24 Cal. Jur. 699 from which we quote as

follows

:

''Originally, the right to restrain by injunction mere

acts of trespass seems to have been confined to in-

stances where the injury was to the freehold, in the



—54—

nature of waste, such as the taking of wood or tim-

ber, extracting vakiable minerals and the Hke. But

the jurisdiction of equity is not now to be considered

as confined alone to such cases; * * "•'. Thus a

person may be protected in the enjoyment of an ease-

ment or right of way where his rights are threat-

e}ied." (Italics ours.)

In Slater v. Pacific American Oil Co., 212 Cal. 649, the

plaintiff obtained an injunction and damages against de-

fendant for allowing certain injurious substances to be

carried from defendant's wells onto plaintiff's property.

At page 655 of the foregoing case, the Court said:

"However indefinite the evidence may be as a stand-

ard for the measurement of damages, our examina-

tion of the record satisfies us that plaintiff sufficiently

established that some portion of the oil, salt and other

hydrocarbon substances causing the injury to his land

had come from the operation of the defendant's wells.

This showing is sufficient to warrant the granting of

injunctive relief." (Italics ours.)

Further, the Court says at page 655

:

"It is settled that a trespass of a continuing nature,

the constant recurrence of which renders the remedy

at law inadequate, unless by a multiplicity of suits,

affords sufficient ground for relief by way of injunc-

tion. (United Railroads v. Superior Court, 172 Cal.

80, 84 (155 Pac. 463, 464); Parker v. Larsen, 86

Cal. 236 (21 Am. St. Rep. 30, 24 Pac. 989).)"
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We also refer the Court to the case of Tristam v. Mar-

ques, 117 Cal. App. 393, from which we quote at page

397 as follows:

"The right to restrain by injunction may properly

be exercised whenever from the particular nature of

the property affected by the trespass the injury sus-

tained cannot be remedied by an action at law.

(Roberts v. Hall, 147 Cal. 434 (82 Pac. 66) ; High

on Injunction, 4th Ed., 661 ; Zicrath v. McCanii, 20

Cal. App. 561 (129 Pac. 808).)"

In the case of Parker v. Larscn, 86 Cal. 236, the plain-

tiff was held to be entitled to injunctive relief where de-

fendant allowed water to percolate or flow upon plaintiff's

land.

In Union Oil Co. v. Reconstruction Oil Co., 20 Cal.

App. (2d) 170, 182, the plaintiff sought to enjoin defend-

ants from slant-drilling an oil well under his land. The

action was brought before the plaintiff had any cause of

action for damages. The Court held the acts of defendant

constituted a trespass which could be enjoined.

In Union Oil Co. v. Domengeaux, 30 Cal. App. (2d)

266, it was held that slant-drilling of an oil well under

plaintiff's land was a trespass that could be enjoined. The

Court held further that in cases of subsurface trespass the

injury is irreparable in itself, citing with approval, Rich-

ards V. Dower, 64 Cal. 62 (28 Pac. 113).
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IV.

The Bankruptcy Court Had the Right to Adjudge

the Appellees in Contempt for Interfering With
the Property of the Bankrupt Estate, Even
Though No Injunction Had Ever Been Issued by

the Bankruptcy Court.

Point 9. The District Court erred in not considering the

Certificate of the Referee and not hearing any evidence of-

fered in addition thereto, because said evidence would have

shown that respondents interfered with the property in the

custody of the bankruptcy court and did so wilfully and inten-

tionally, and with full knowledge of the harm being done the

property in custody of the bankruptcy court ; and that such

conduct constitutes contempt of court even had there been no

injunction.

The filing of the bankruptcy proceeding constitutes a

caveat to the entire world. Acme Harvester Co. v. Beek-

man Co., 222 U. S. 300, 56 L. Ed. 208, 32 S. Ct. 96;

Taylor v. Sternberg. 293 U. S. 470, 79 L. Ed. 599, 55 S.

Ct. 260; Gross v. Irving Trust Co.^ 289 U. S. 342, 77

L. Ed. 1243, 53 S. Ct. 605; Taubel-Scott-Kitcmiller Co.

V. Fox, 264 U. S. 426, 68 L. Ed. 770, 44 S. Ct. 396.

By such caveat all persons are warned, admonished and

enjoined from interfering with the property of the bank-

rupt estate. From the time of the filing of the petition

in bankruptcy the property is in custodia legis. Lazariis

V. Prentice, 234 U. S. 263, 58 L. Ed. 1305, 34 S. Ct. 851

;

Mueller v. Nugent, 184 U. S. 1, 46 L. Ed. 405, 22 S. Ct.

269; Straton v. New, 283 U. S. 318, 75 L. Ed. 1060, 51

S. Ct. 465. The property being in custodia legis, the
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bankruptcy court has the inherent power to protect such

property under its custody and jurisdiction, and any per-

son knowing that such property is in the custody of the

court, who willfully interferes therewith, is guilty of con-

tempt.

In this connection, we quote from Remington on Bank-

ruptcy (5th Ed.), Vol. 7, Sec. 3028, pp. 123, 124, as fol-

lows:

'^Interference with property in the custody of the

bankruptcy court is of course a contempt. * * *

And such interference is punishable as contempt

even though no injunction be issued."

Clay V. Waters, 178 F. 385 (C. C. A., Mo.);

In re IVilk, 155 F. 943 (D. C, N. Y.).

We also wish to refer the Court to 23 R. C. L., Sec. 70,

p. 64, as follows:

"It is the duty of a court appointing a receiver to

protect him in the discharge of his duties and in the

control and possession of the property in his custody

as such against anyone interfering therewith, whether

a party to the receivership proceeding or not, and

whether he claims paramount to or under the right

which the receiver was appointed to protect. The

possession by the receiver is that of the court, and

consequently if any person without leave intentionally

interferes with such possession, he necessarily com-

mits a contempt of court, and is liable to punishment

therefor." /// re Tyler, 149 U. S. 164, 37 L. Ed. 689.
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At the time of the hearing on the petition why the ap-

pellees should not be certified for contempt, it was shown

that the appellees had consented to an order requiring

appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, to re-drill its well in

a certain manner; that such order was prepared with the

assistance of the engineers of said Bolsa Chica Oil Cor-

poration. Assuming, for the purpose of argument, that

such order might have been beyond the authority of the

Bankruptcy Court, it at least constituted a contract, and a

rule of conduct between appellant and appellee, Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation. By such contract it was estab-

lished what an ordinary prudent person should and should

not do; it was established that if such course of conduct

was not followed the bankrupt's property would be

destroyed and the administration of the bankrupt estate

necessarily interfered with. At such hearing on contempt

proceedings before the Referee, it was shown that the

appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, its president,

Thomas W. Simmons, its superintendent, Allan A. Ander-

son, and its attorney, William H. Cree, knew that the

Termo Company had, by doing the very things which it

was shown on the contempt hearing that said appellee,

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, was doing, irreparably

damaged the well of the bankrupt estate; that subsequent

to the making of such stipulated order of injunction, and

in violation thereof, the appellee, Bolsa Chica Oil Corpora-

tion, had caused a column of mud 3700 feet high to enter

the well of the appellant and that notwithstanding such

stipulated order and notwithstanding the notice and knowl-
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edge that it had of the damage which would necessarily

ensue to the property of the bankrupt estate, it proceeded,

aided and abetted by the other appellees, to carry on opera-

tions in the same manner as prohibited by the order of in-

junction, and in the same manner that had caused dam-

age to the bankrupt's well on two previous occasions. The

evidence clearly shows that all of said appellees knew that

said property was in the custody of the bankruptcy court

;

that all the appellees knew and were presumed to know

that the requirements of the State of California were to

use oil and not mud as a circulating fluid in the re-drilling

of any well in said field. [Tr. p. 95]. We feel that a

clearer case of interference with the property of the bank-

rupt estate would be difficult to prove.

We respectfully urge that under the law as hereinbefore

set forth, the order of the District Court should be re-

versed.

Respectfully submitted,

Raphael Dechter and

Joseph J. Rifkind,

By Raphael Dechter,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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PRELIMINARY STATEMENT.

In view of the fact that the appellees William H. Cree,

H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and M. M. McCallen Cor-

poration, in their supplementary brief have adopted by

reference the contents of the brief of appellees Bolsa Chica
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Oil Corporation, Thos. W. Simmons and Allan A. Ander-

son, we shall devote the larger portion of this brief to

replying to the br^'ef of the latter appellees, and shall de-

vote attention to the additional arguments of the supple-

mentary brief after first disposing of the brief of the

appellees Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, ct al.

STATEMENT OF THE HISTORY OF THE CASE.

We note first that appellees have taken issue with certain

matters contained in the statement of the history of

the case contained in our opening brief. It will be noted

that the statement contained in appellant's history of the

case is borrowed from the certificate of contempt of the

Referee. [Tr. 53 to 72.] This certificate of contempt of

the Referee contains the only findings of fact ever made

by the only tribunal that ever heard evidence. The hear-

ing before the Honorable Leon R. Yankwich, District

Judge, was one in which the District Court heard no

evidence whatsoever and refused to receive any evidence.

[Tr. 83 to 85.] Until the District Court hears the evi-

dence, or until some direct review is taken from the find-

ings of the Referee, the findings of fact of the Referee

must be deemed to be presumptively correct. General

Order No. 47.

Remington, Vol. 7, Sec. 3034, page 131;

Remington, Vol. 7, Sec. 3035, page 132.
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ARGUMENT.

The Bankruptcy Court Was Fully Empowered to Issue

the Injunctive Order Which Is the Basis of the

Contempt Proceeding Herein Involved.

Appellees' first argument is directed to the contention

that the bankruptcy court had no jurisdiction to make

the order of injunction which was violated by appellees

and gave rise to the contempt proceeding. Appellees con-

tend that the injunction was beyond the power of the

bankruptcy court. Yet appellees in searching for the

jurisdictional powers of the bankruptcy court appear to

have hunted every place but the one wherein the powers

of the bankruptcy court are specifically enumerated, to-wit,

the Bankruptcy Act. Appellees' brief fails even to mention

Section 2a (15) of the Bankruptcy Act of 1938, which

we cited again and again in our opening brief. This is a

significant silence in the light of the fact that Section

2a (15) unequivocally vests the bankruptcy court with all

of the jurisdiction necessary to sustain the injunctive

order in this case.

The Bankruptcy Act provides, as follows

:

"§2a. Courts; Jurisdiction and Powers.—The

courts of bankruptcy as defined in the previous chap-

ter, namely, the district courts of the United States in

the several states, the Supreme Court of the District

of Columbia, the district courts of the several terri-

tories and possessions to which this title is, or may

after July 1, 1898 be, applicable, and the United

States court in the district of Alaska, are hereby made



courts of bankruptcy, and are hereby invested, within

their respective territorial limits as established on

July 1, 1898, or as they may be thereafter changed,

with such jurisdiction at law and in equity as will

enable them to exercise original jurisdiction in bank-

ruptcy proceedings, in vacation in chambers and dur-

ing their respective terms, as they were on July 1,

1898 or may be thereafter held, * * * (15) make

such orders, issue such process, and enter such judg-

ments in addition to those specifically provided for as

may be necessary for the enforcement of the provi-

sions of this title; * * '^"

It is well established that this section vests the bank-

ruptcy court with the power to enjoin or restrain the

actions of any stranger who threatens to injure the prop-

erty of the bankrupt estate. Collier on Bankruptcy, 14th

Edition, Vol. 1 Sections 261 and 265.

In the Matter of Baldwin, 291 U. S. 610;

Steelman v. All Continent Corp., 301 U. S. 172, 57

S. Ct. 705, 81 L. Ed. 1085;

Morehouse v. Giant Powder Company, 206 Fed. 24.

These and other cases cited in our opening brief remain

unanswered by appellees.

Appellees contend that the bankruptcy court acted in

excess of its jurisdiction. To enjoin too much would not

deprive the court of its jurisdiction—and failure to appeal

on the extent of the injunction renders the injunction final

and binding. Thus the United States Supreme Court in

Szuift & Co. V. United States, 276 U. S. 311 (326), 72

L. Ed. 587, 48 S. Ct. 311, held that:

''The power to enjoin includes the power to enjoin

too much."
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Appellees' arguments on lack of jurisdiction lack con-

viction unless appellees can show that Section 2a (15) of

the Bankruptcy Act of 1938, is either void, unconstitu-

tional or non-existent. Congress vested the bankruptcy

court with the jurisdiction to restrain any interference

with its administration of estates for the very good and

obvious reason that without such authority the ends and

purposes of bankruptcy administration could be defeated

by outside interference. All of the cases passing upon

the right of the court to enjoin interference even from

strangers recite that even without the effect of Section

2a (15), the bankruptcy court would nevertheless be vested

with the necessary jurisdiction to prevent interference, such

jurisdiction always being inherent in a court of equity. A
court of bankruptcy is a court of equity. Continental III.

Nat. Bank^ etc. v. Chicago, Rock Island, etc. Ry. Co., 294

U. S. 648, 79 L. Ed. 1110, 55 Sup. Ct. 595.

Appellees contend that the injunction in this case was

issued on "mere apprehension of injury". Appellees con-

tend that at the time the injunction was issued "no injury

was threatened, no invasion of appellant's property was

imminent." We take issue with these broad statements

which are unsupported by the record. The record reveals

that appellee Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation was familiar

with the damage done to appellant's well by the "Termo

Well", which was occasioned by the use of mud. [Tr. 55,

56.] Testimony before the Referee showed that if mud
was used, mud would be carried through the oil sands into

appellant's well and would irreparably injure and damage

said well. [Tr. 57.] As a result of the violation of the

injunction by appellees, the use of mud in violation of

such injunction, caused a column of mud to be raised in



the bottom of appellant's well and stopped production of

said well. [Tr. 60.] The evidence further reflected that

the violation of the injunction through the use of mud

reduced the production of appellrmt's well from 260 barrels

of oil per day to 160 barrels of oil per day. [Tr. 61.]

And yet appellees unblushingly state "no injury was

threatened, no invasion of appellant's property was immi-

nent."

Again and again appellees reiterate that they were

making but a lawful use of their own property and that

the bankruptcy court had no authority to interfere. Page

120 of appellees' brief cites a number of inapplicable cases

to support appellees' contention that they had the right to

use their own property lawfully without interference from

the bankruptcy court. Counsel for appellees have lost sight

of the well-established doctrine, sic iitere tiio iit alienum

lion lacdas, which provides that it is unlawful for one to

so use his property as to cause injury to another. This

doctrine of liability even without negligence or fault was

first announced in the famous case of Ryland v. Fletcher,

L. R. 3, H. L. 330, and has been and is being followed

by the California courts.

In Green v. General Petroleum Corp. (1928), 205 Cal.

328, 270 Pac. 952, 60 A. L. R. 475, defendant was held

absolutely liable for damage done by an oil well "blow-out"

covering plaintiff's property with oil, sand, mud, rocks, etc.,

despite the fact that defendant had exercise the utmost

care. It was said:

"Appellant contends that it was absolved from all

liability for the damages to respondents' property

under the finding of the trial court that it had exer-



cised due care and caution in its drilling operations.

Respondents rely upon the application of the doctrine,

sic utere tuo ut alienum non laedas, to the facts in

the case. * * *

"The discovery and production of oil is a legitimate

and lawful business, and when properly carried on

and maintained, is not a nuisance per se. Under normal

conditions, the drilling operations cause no invasion

of the adjacent lands. The fact, therefore, that the

well of appellant was properly put down and carefully

cared for, appellant contends, eliminates the only

factor in the case which would justify a judgment for

respondents in the absence of negligence. We do not

think so. The present care does not arise from either

the conduct of a nuisance per se, or from an inevitable

calamity or act of God, but presents a situation to

which the doctrine of sic utere tuo ut alienum non

laedas may be applied in its broad and fundamental

import. The ancient maxim of jurisprudence is in-

corporated, in substance, in the statutory law of this

state. The Civil Code provides (Sec. 3514): 'One

must so use his own rights as not to infringe upon

the rights of another.' Where one, in the conduct

and maintenance of an enterprise lawful and proper

in itself, deliberately does an act under known con-

ditions, and, with knowledge that injury may result

to another, proceeds, and injury is done to the other

as the direct and proximate consequence of the act,

however carefully done, the one who does the act and

causes the injury should, in all fairness, be required to

compensate the other for the damage done. The
instant case offers a most excellent example of an

actual invasion of the property of one person through

the act of another."



See also the following cases which support and supple-

ment Green v. General Petroleum, supra:

Nollav. Orlando (1932), 119 Cal. App. 518, 6 Pac.

(2d) 984;

Kail V. Carruthers, 59 Cal. App. 555, 211 Pac. 43

(1922);

McGrath v. Basich Bros. Const. Co., 7 Cal. App.

(2d) 573, 46 Pac. (2d) 981 (1935).

Neither Beauchamp v. United States, 76 Fed. (2d) 663;

or American Bank & Trust Co. v. Federal Reserve Bank

of Atlanta, 67 L. Ed. 1153, 262 U. S. 643, cited by appel-

lees are pertinent to the issues. Neither of these cases

involve any interference with the property in the custody

of the bankruptcy court other than that of normal compe-

tition. Neither involved threats of trespass. In the instant

case appellee Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation had threatened

to use a means of procedure in the drilling of its well which

threatened physical injury to appellant's well. It is as

much a trespass for appellee to make an underground in-

vasion of appellant's property as it would be a trespass

if such invasion were on the surface.

E. A. Bell V. Bell View Oil Syndicate, 24 Cal. App.

(2d) 587, 76 Pac. (2d) 167;

Union Oil Company v. Mutual Oil Company, 19

Cal. App. (2d) 409, 65 Pac. (2d) 896.

The California court has held that it will enjoin sub-

terranean trespass.

Union Oil Co. v. Reconstruction Oil Co., 20 Cal.

App. (2d) 170, 66 Pac. (2d) 1215;

Union Oil Co. v. Domengeaux, 30 Cal. App. (2d)

266, 86 Pac. (2d) 127.



We find it difficult to comprehend appellees' impassioned

plea for sympathy on page 10 of its brief, in which appel-

lees submit ''that a monstrous wrong was done to appellee;

private rights were ruthlessly invaded and the referee in

bankruptcy exceeded his power in granting such an in-

junction." It ill becomes appellees to complain of a "mon-

strous wrong" and a "ruthless invasion" in view of the

fact that this so-called "monstrous wrong" and "ruthless

invasion" came by express invitation from appellees them-

selves. It will be noted from the record that in the pro-

ceeding before the Referee, Mr. Warren S. Pallette, then

and now counsel for appellees suddenly was inspired to

end the proceedings by suggesting the injunction by stipu-

lation. [Tr. 152 ff.] Accordingly, appellees present copi-

ous tears appear synthetically produced since nothing was

contained in the order of injunction which was not sug-

gested by appellees themselves and agreed to by appellees

themselves. The only "monstrous wrong" that we are

able to perceive is the contemptuous violation of the court's

injunction and the contemptuous withdrawals by appellees

of the word and integrity in which they agreed to the in-

junctive order. The only "ruthless invasion of private

rights" that we perceive is the damage done by appellees to

appellant's well despite the court's injunction and despite

the knowledge that such action would result in irreparable

damage and injury to appellant.

Appellees complain further that the referee lacked juris-

diction to issue the order of injunction because such order
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of injunction was secured in a summary proceeding. The

cases cited by appellees are all turnover cases against ad-

verse claimants who did not consent to the proceedings

against them. The facts of the instant case are distin-

guishable from the cited cases in that the referee in the in-

stant case acted by injunction to prevent threatened tres-

pass and injury to property within the custody of the court.

As we have heretofore pointed out (and which has been

entirely ignored by appellees) Section 2a (15) of the Bank-

ruptcy Act of 1938, as well as the general powers adher-

ent in a court of equity, furnish the authority upon which

the bankruptcy court can and must act to protect the prop-

erty in custodia legis. The instant case is not an adverse

claimant case. It is truly a trespass case and is dissimilar

from the adverse claimant cases in that in the latter the

property involved is not in the possession of the court and

the adverse claimant refuses to submit himself to the juris-

diction of the court. In the instant case the Referee in

Bankruptcy acted to prevent appellees from going upon the

property which was in the custody of the bankruptcy court

and injuring the same. It is fundamental that the trespass

by a subterranean invasion is as much a trespass as any

other, and the cases are legion that have granted injunctive

process to prevent subsurface trespass.



—11—

The District Court Erred in Permitting a Collateral

Attack Made Upon the Injunctive Order, the

Violation of Which Was the Basis for the Con-

tempt Proceeding.

Appellees insist that the attack upon the jurisdiction of

the Referee made before the District Court is a direct

rather than a collateral attack. They argue further that

the case of Stoll v. Gottlieb, 305 U. S. 165, 83 L. Ed. 104,

59 S. Ct. 134, is applicable only to cases involving collateral

rather than direct attacks upon jurisdiction of the court.

Appellees reach this conclusion by citing from the opinion

in Stoll V. Gottlieb, wherein the Supreme Court distin-

guishes the Stoll case from that of Vallely v. Northern F.

& M. Ins. Co., 254 U. S. 348, 65 L. Ed. 297, 41 S. Ct.

116. The Supreme Court held that the Vallely case

"is inapplicable here because there was not an actually con-

tested issue and order as to jurisdiction. The case is also

distinguishable because the motion to vacate was made in

the same bankruptcy proceeding as the order". Appellees

thereupon argue that this latter distinction constitutes dicta

to the effect that the decision in the Vallely case is justi-

fied because the attack upon the jurisdiction of the court

was made in the same bankruptcy proceeding as the order

involved. The language of the United States Supreme

Court, however, does not permit the drawing of such an

inference because immediately following the sentence here-

tofore quoted, the court said : "We do not comment upon

the significance of this variable." Fairness would have re-

quired of appellees not to have omitted this important quah-

fication to the quotation recited by appellees on page 31 of

their brief. The United States Supreme Court definitely

refused to comment upon the significance of the variance in

facts, thus leaving the question open for future considera-
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tion. Further decisions do provide us with the answer

of the United States Supreme Court on this point. No
less than two Supreme Court decisions subsequent to

Stoll V. Gottlieb have involved attacks made in the same

proceeding in which the order involved had been made.

One of these, Robert H. Jackson, Atfy. Gen. of U. S. v.

Irving Trust Co., et al., 85 L. Ed. (Adv. Op.) 310, was

cited in our opening brief and was referred to by appel-

lees in their answer (Appellees' brief p. 29) and referred

to by them merely as an exception to the rule. The other

case is that of Sampsell v. Imperial Paper & Color Corp.,

85 L. Ed. (Adv. Op.) 797, which was cited in our open-

ing brief and which received no answer whatsoever from

appellees. This latter case was a bankruptcy case and the

jurisdictional attack upon the order of the bankruptcy

court came zvithin the same bankruptcy proceeding, and

after time to review or appeal had expired. The United

States Supreme Court refers to this attack as a collateral

attack and not as a direct attack. The court says:

''Furthermore, there was no appeal from the order en-

tered in the summary proceedings. It therefore could

not be collaterally attacked in the proceedings by which

respondent sought priority for its claim."

Ex parte Sazuyer, 124 U. S. 200, 31 L. Ed. 402, 8 S. Ct.

482; £,r parte Fisk, 113 U. S. 713, 28 L.Ed. 1117, 5 S. Ct.

724; as well as other caaes cited by appellees must be con-

sidered in the light of the subsequent cases of the United

States Supreme Court, such as Stoll v. Gottlieb, supra;

Chicot County Drainage Dist. v. Baxter State Bank, 308

U. S. 371, 60 S. Ct. 317, 84 L. Ed. 329 (rehearing denied,

309 U. S. 695, 60 S. Ct. 581, 84 L. Ed. 1035) ; Treinies v.

Sunshine Minijig Co., 308 U. S. 66; Simshine Anthracite
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Coal Co. V. Adkins, 310 U. S. 381, 84 L. Ed. 1263, 60 S.

Ct. 907, 84 L. Ed. 1276; Robert Jackson v. Irving Trust

Co., et al., supra; and Sanipsell v. Imperial Paper & Color

Corp., supra. The Ex parte Sawyer case was not without

the vigorous dissenting opinions of Mr. Chief Justice

Waite and Mr. Justice Harlan which pointed the way to

the majority opinion in Stoll v. Gottlieb and subsequent

cases.

Appellees' contention that an attack upon the jurisdiction

of the court in making an original order from which a

contempt proceeding arises is a direct rather than a col-

lateral attack, not only is made by appellees without support

of any authority, but comes in the face of direct contra-

diction of express authority. No less than the United

States Supreme Court, in the case of Oriel v. Russell, et al.,

278 U. S. 358, 7Z L. Ed. 419, 49 S. Ct. 173, holds that a

turnover order cannot be collaterally attacked on a motion

for commitment for contempt. In this case the contempt

proceeding took place in the same bankruptcy proceeding

wherein the turnover order was made. The time for ap-

peal having expired, the attack upon such order was not a

direct one but a collateral one. The late Chief Justice

Taft, in writing the opinion of the court, said:

"The referee and the court, in passing on the issue

under such a turnover motion, should, therefore, re-

quire clear evidence of the justice of such an order be-

fore it is made. Being made, it should be given weight

in the future proceedings as one that may not be col-

laterally attacked by an effort to try over the issue

already held and decided at the turnover. Thereafter

on the motion for commitment the only evidence that

can be considered is the evidence of something that has
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happened since the turnover order was made showing

that since that time there has newly arisen an inabihty

on the part of the bankrupt to comply with the turn-

over order." (Italics ours.)

AVe are cognizant of the fact that the case of Bcauchamp

V. U. S., supra, cited by appellees, appears to permit an at-

tack upon the jurisdiction of the court to issue the order

the violation of which is the basis of the contempt proceed-

ings at any time including the contempt proceeding.

The Bcauchamp case was decided by this Honorable

Court before Stoll v. Gottlieb and before the United States

Supreme Court had definitely determined the sanctity of the

court's own determination as to its own jurisdiction. The

Bcauchamp case can now be reconciled on the special con-

curring opinion of Circuit Justice Wilbur, who pointed out

that the contempt proceeding itself was defective because

the allegations were insufficient to tie up the alleged con-

temnor with the violation of the injunction. Judge Wilbur

agreed that the injunction had been erroneously granted

by the referee but declared that it was too late to raise such

a defense. His Honor said

:

"I also agree that the injunction was erroneously

granted, but such error is not a defense to a charge

of contempt for violating the order. The remedy is by

an appeal from the order granting the injunction. The

court issuing the injunction had jurisdiction over the

parties enjoined and over the subject enjoined and over

the subject matter and the order was not void."
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We believe that the law has been very ably set forth In

a recent decision of the Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Second Circuit, in the case of U. S. v. Jaeger, 117 Fed.

(2d) 483. In this decision (opinion by Justice Clark) the

court said:

"Nevertheless it appears on the authorities that,

however harsh may be the result as to the relator

herein, that issue is not open to collateral attack. What

we have said indicates that in an appropriate case the

bankruptcy court could have made the order in ques-

tion. It is now well settled that on contempt pro-

ceedings no attack can be made on the regularity, cor-

rectness, or validity of the original order. Oriel v.

Russell, 278 U. S. 358, 49 S. Ct. 173, 72> L. Ed. 419,

affirming In re Oriel, 2 Cir., 23 F. 2nd 409, 413 ; In re

Siegler, 2 Cir., 31 F. 2nd 972; In re Arctic Leather

Garment Co., supra; Id., 2 Cir., 106 F. 2nd 99; cases

collected 3 Moore's Collier on Bankruptcy, 14th Ed.,

535-537. A like rule applies to habeas corpus pro-

ceedings; they cannot be used to review, as on appeal,

the court action which has led to the commitment or-

der. Craig v. Hecht, 263 U. S. 255, 44 S. Ct. 103,

68 L. Ed. 293, affirming Ex parte Craig, 2 Cir., 282

F. 138; Ex parte Kearney, 7 Wheat. 38, 20 U. S. 38,

5 L. Ed. 391 ; United States ex rel. Paleais v. Moore,

2 Cir., 294 F. 852.

Relator has appealed from neither the commitment

nor the contempt order; he therefore can raise here

the issue of jurisdiction only. Yet he had opportun-

ity to and did raise that issue in the prior proceedings,
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and the court found against him. Even if we as-

sume that the court was acting upon erroneous

grounds as indicated above, yet Stoll v. Gottlieb, 305

U. S. 165, 59 S. Ct. 134, 83 L. Ed. 104, makes it clear

that the matter is settled against collateral attack.

There the issue whether or not the bankruptcy court

could release a guarantor in reorganization from his

guaranty was decided by the Court in favor of its

jurisdiction. Yet the Supreme Court holds that, even

if that ruling be erroneous, and the matter without the

power of a bankruptcy court {In re Diversey Bldg.

Corp., 7 Cir., 86 F. 2nd 456; In re Nine North Church

Street, Inc., 2 Cir., 82 F. 2nd 186), the issue cannot

be raised collaterally. The situation seems the same

as that here presented. Later decisions of the Court

reiterate and reinforce this conclusion. lackson v.

Irving Trust Co., Jan. 6, 1941, 61 S. Ct. 326, 85 L.

Ed ; Chicot Coumty Drainage Dist. v. Baxter

State Bank, 308 U. S. 371, 378, 60 S. Ct. 317, 84 L.

Ed. 329; cf. 40 Col. L. Rev. 1006, 1008; 53 Harv. L.

Rev. 652, 659; 49 Yale L. J. 959; and see also Ripper-

ger v. A. C. Allyn & Co., 2 Cir., 113 F. 2nd 332, cer-

tiorari denied 61 S. Ct. 136, 85 L. Ed ; Commer-

cial Cable Staffs' Assn. v. Lehman, 2 Cir., 107 F. 2nd

917, 921."

In the light of this case it is obvious that the jurisdic-

tional question having been raised by appellees before the

referee, the contempt proceeding is a subsequent proceed-

ing and a collateral attack on the jurisdictional question can

no longer be heard.
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The Stipulation to the Entry of the Order of Injunc-

tion Was a Consent to the Jurisdiction of the

Court

Appellees argue that the stipulation to the entry of the

order of injunction is not grounds for holding the Dis-

trict Court in error for permitting an attack upon the

jurisdiction of the court and dismissing the contempt pro-

ceedings. Appellees argue that the stipulation was made

with the reservation of objection to the jurisdiction of the

court. In our opening brief, we pointed out by authori-

ties which have not been refuted by appellees that the

stipulation to a judgment is a consent to jurisdiction.

Once one has submitted himself to the jurisdiction of

the court, it is impossible to retract that consent. In

the proceeding which led up to the injunction, the pro-

ceedings were terminated because of the voluntary consent,

in fact proposal by appellees, that an injunction be stipu-

lated to. Thus, appellees submitted themselves to the

jurisdiction of the court. The subsequent attempt to re-

serve the question of jurisdiction was ineffectual. If a

party litigant

''takes any step consistent with the hypothesis that

the court has jurisdiction of the cause and the per-

son, the special appearance is thereby converted into

a general appearance irrespective of whether or not

it is by its terms limited to a special purpose, and an

attempted reservation of the special appearance and

rights thereunder is wholly ineffectual. * * *"

(Italics ours.)

6 Cor. fur. §1, (c), p. 9.

"An offer to confess judgment constitutes a gen-

eral appearance and waives objection to jurisdiction

of the person."

Feldman Investment Co. v. Connecticut, etc., 78

Fed. (2d) 838.
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In addition to the authorities cited in our opening brief,

a recent CaHfornia decision illustrates the sanctity with

which the courts regard stipulations in open court. In

Cathcart v. Gregory, 45 A. C. A. 252, at page 259, the

court said:

"In Webster v. Webster, supra (216 Cal. 485, 14

P. (2d) 522) the Supreme Court said: 'Such a

stipulation made in open court constitutes ''not only

an agreement between the parties but also between

them and the court, which the latter is bound to en-

force, not only for the benefit of those interested,

but for the protection of its own honor and dig-

nity." '
"

Reply to Supplementary Brief of Appellees William

H. Cree, H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and M. M.
McCallen Corporation.

The additional argument of appellees Cree, McVicar,

Rood and McCallen Corporation in their supplementary

brief can be summarized as follows:

That the injunction was against the Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation, its servants, agents and employees only, and

that as vendees of the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, these

appellees are not subject to the injunction and therefore

are not in contempt in violating the same. The theory

upon which these appellees were brought into the picture

was that they, with full knowledge of the injunction,

aided and abetted in its -violation. One who is not named

or referred to in an injunction may nevertheless be guilty

of contempt for its violation when such party conspires

with others or aids or abets others in violating such in-

junction. 12 Am. Jur, sec. 26, page 407.

Where an injunction operates /// rem against specific

property or against an illegal use of such property, the
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decree is a limitation upon the use of the property, of

which all subsequent owners, lessees or occupants must

take notice. 12 Am. Jur. sec. 27, page 409.

Any interference with property in the custody of the

law whether there had been an injunction or not, con-

stitutes contempt. 12 Am. Jur. sec. 22, page 404.

Of particular significance is the admission in the brief

of appellees Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation et al., on page

6, that the well was sold to the McCallen Corporation

"rather than violate the injunction". This is not the

proper occasion to go into a discussion of the facts. Ap-

pellees Cree et al. complain that they have not had their

day in court (Appellees Brief page 6) These appellees

will have their day in court at such time as the case is

sent back to the District Court to hear the evidence.

The evidence will determine whether or not these appellees

conspired with the other appellees in violating the injunc-

tion and whether or not they aided or abetted in the viola-

tion of the injunction. As previously pointed out, the

certificate of contempt of the referee in bankruptcy is pre-

sumptively correct. The referee in bankruptcy having

been the only tribunal to hear evidence, the contemptuous

conduct of these appellees is sustained by the referee's

findings.

CONCLUSION.

We respectfully urge that the decision of the lower

court, if permitted to stand, would have the effect of

crippling the administration of bankruptcy estates by

courts of bankruptcy. The decision of the District Court

denies to the bankruptcy court the power to enjoin a

threatened trespass upon property in its custody.

Furthermore, the decision of the District Court lends

judicial approval to an anomalous submission to the
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jurisdiction of the court. In other words, the decision

of the District Court permits a party litigant to be both

in and out of court to his own advantage. Appellees could

have refused to have submitted themselves to the juris-

diction of the referee in bankruptcy by not appearing- in

the proceeding at all. Instead of that they elected to

appear, to litigate the question of the court's jurisdiction,

to consent to a stipulated order, and to permit such order

to become final and binding. The United States Supreme

Court has upheld the power of a court of record to deter-

mine for itself whether or not it has jurisdiction in a

particular case and that determination itself is res judicada

if permitted to become final. It follows therefore that

appellees having permitted the injunctive order of the

referee in bankruptcy which overrules appellees' jurisdic-

tional objections to become final, cannot now challenge

that order collaterally, after they decide to violate it.

The record reveals that appellees had ample notice of

the harm that would be done to appellant's oil well by

the use of mud as a circulating medium in the drilling

of their own well. This knowledge was brought to them

by the experience suffered as a result of the ''Termo"

well and by the engineering and geological testimony pre-

sented before the referee as to the threat to appellant's

property involved in appellee's proposed use of mud. To
use a colloquialism, the shameless violation of the injunc-

tive order became the "proof of the pudding", in view of

the fact that irreparable damage was incurred by appel-

lant's well as a result of such misconduct by appellees.

For which reasons appellant respectfully urges the re-

versal of the decision of the District Court.

Respectfully submitted,

Joseph J. Rifkind and

Raphael Dechter,

By Raphael Dechter,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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I.

If the court finds that the injunction was properly issued within

the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court, against Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, its superintendent, agents and em-

ployees, and that said injunctive order had become final,

and was not subject to attack in the contempt proceeding,

was that injunction valid and subsisting as against a vendee

of Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, a vendee not being a party

named or referred to in the injunction? 5

II.

If such a vendee is bound by such an injunction, can he be

held liable for damages arising from acts committed more

than two months before he acquires any interest in the

property? As a corollary, can such a vendee be liable in a

contempt proceeding when he has not done any of the acts

prohibited by the injunction? 9

III.

(a) Where an attorney acquires information in representing

one client of the existence of an injunctive order, is he

under any obligation to disclose that information to an-

other client, unrelated to the action and not included in

the terms of the injunction? 10

(b) If he is so obligated, may he and his second clients be

held liable for violation of the terms of the injunction as

aiders and abettors because of the attorney's representa-

tion of both clients? 10
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Opening Statement.

Appellees M. M. McCallen Corporation, a corporation,

H. H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and William H. Cree wish

to adopt, in so far as it is applicable to them and their

position, the brief already filed herein by appellees Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, Simmons and Anderson. It will

serve no purpose and will cumber the Court to go into the

questions and argument of the matter which has been so

ably covered in that brief. However, these appellees are
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in an entirely different pc^sition^ as a matter of law than

the others; they are even farther from the jurisdiction of

the Bankruptcy Court. For the sake of making the situa-

tion graphic, and at the risk of repeating briefly some facts

already contained in the record so far, these appellees

submit the following statement of facts:

Statement of Facts.

The Court is well acquainted with the situation which

lead up to and immediatly followed the entry of the injunc-

tion order in the Referee's Court. Two phrases in that

injunction are of particular importance to these appellees.

The injunction was addressed to and against "The Bolsa

Chica Oil Corporation, its superintendents, agents and em-

ployees". [Tr. p. 30.] The injunction prohibited the use

of "circulating fluid used in drilling, redrilling or side-

tracking of said Petroleum Well." [Tr. p. 31.] This in-

junction was dated May 15, 1940. [Tr. p. 32.] The al-

leged damage to the well of the bankrupt estate, due as

they claim to mudding up, occurred on June 8, 1940. [Tr.

p. 179.] At that time the well was under the manage-

ment and control and was owned by Bolsa Chica Corpora-

tion. The well was transferred to McCallen Corporation

by an Assignment of Oil and Gas Lease [Tr. p. 212], and

Drilling and Operating Agreement [Tr. p. 202], under

date of August 14, 1940. Subsequent to that time, there

is no evidence that McCallen Corporation, or any of these

appellees conducted any drilling, redrilling or side-tracking

operations in the hole at any time. On the contrary, the



—3—
evidence shows that the hole was filled with fractured

shale body and that it was impossible to penetrate any

deeper than 4200 feet. [Tr. p. 233.] This is well above

the oil sand and at a point where the testimony shows the

appellants had not objected to the use of mud as a circulat-

ing fluid. [Tr. pp. 225 and 226.]

These appellees were not parties to the original hearing

in which the Trustee asked for instructions and in which

the injunctive order was finally entered. They had no

opportunity to be heard at that time. They never stipu-

lated or consented to the making or entering of any order

against themselves. They appeared, for the first time, in

response to the order to show cause on the petition to have

Bolsa Chica and themselves certified for contempt issued

against them on August 22, 1940, specially and only for

the purpose of objecting to the jurisdiction of the Court

to hear or determine the matter. [Tr. pp. 164 and 165.]

The Court overruled their objection to the jurisdiction but

reserved it to be renewed at the conclusion of the evidence.

[Tr. p. 178.] The objection was renewed at that time.

The questions involved in this appeal are supplementary

to the questions discussed by the other appellees, and are

of importance only if the Court finds against Bolsa Chica

Oil Corporation, on all points urged in their brief.



Questions Supplementary to Appellee Bolsa Chica Oil

Corporation's Brief.

I.

If the Court finds that the injunction was properly issued

within the jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court, against

Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, its superintendent, agents and

employees, and that said injunctive order had become final,

and was not subject to attack in the contempt proceeding,

was that injunction valid and subsisting as against a

vendee of Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, a vendee not

being a party named or referred to in the injunction?

II.

If such a vendee is bound by such an injunction, can

he be held liable for damages arising from acts committed

more than two months before he acquires any interest in

the property? As a corollary, can such a vendee be liable

in a contempt proceeding when he has not done any of

the acts prohibited by the injunction?

III.

(a) Where an attorney acquires information in repre-

senting one client of the existence of an injunctive order,

is he under any obligation to disclose that information to

another client, unrelated to the action and not included in

the terms of the injunction?

(b) If he is so obligated, may he and his second clients

be held liable for violation of the terms of the injunction

as aiders and abettors because of the attorney's representa-

tion of both clients?
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ARGUMENT.

I.

If the Court Finds That the Injunction Was Properly

Issued Within the Jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy

Court, Against Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, Its

Superintendent, Agents and Employees, and That

Said Injunctive Order Had Become Final, and Was
Not Subject to Attack in the Contempt Proceed-

ing, Was That Injunction Valid and Subsisting as

Against a Vendee of Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation,

a Vendee Not Being a Party Named or Referred

to in the Injunction?

For the sake of clarity may we designate Bolsa Chica

Corporation, Mr. Simmons and Mr. Anderson as the

First Appellees and McCallen Corporation, Mr. McVicar,

Mr. Rood and Mr. Cree as Second Appellees. First Ap-

pellees' brief, we feel, demonstrates that the Court had no

jurisdiction to enter the injunction order which is the basis

of this contempt proceeding, and that consequently that

injunctive order is void and of no effect upon any of the

appellees. If the Court disagrees with us, the Second Ap-

pellees on this point, may we respectfully submit the fol-

lowing arguments on our own behalf.

Second Appellees were not parties to the injunction pro-

ceeding. [Tr. pp. 27 and 29, et seq.] They did not ac-

quire title to the property until long after all damage was

done and there is no evidence in the record which shows

that Second Appellees at any time "drilled, redrilled or

side-tracked". The injunction was dated May 15, 1940.

[Tr. p. 32.] The damage was done June 8, 1940. [Tr.

p. 179.] The transfer to the McCallen corporation was by

a usual form of assignment of oil and gas lease and drill-



ing and operating agreement, both dated August 14, 1940.

[Tr. pp. 202 and 212.] The first notice to the McCallen

Corporation of the injunction was by letter under date

of August 21, 1940. [Tr. p. 214.] Second Appellees

therefore have never had their day in Court. They have

never had an opportunity to be heard as to the merits of

their situation. When they were hailed into Court on this

contempt citation [Tr. p. 39], they appeared specially only

for the single purpose of objecting to the jurisdiction of

the Court [Tr. pp. 174 and 175], which objection was

overruled with the right reserved to the appellees to renew

the objection at the close of the evidence. The objection

was then renewed.

It is elementary that a party cannot be divested of rights

without a day in Court. It is equally elementary that an

injunction cannot be broader than its terms. This in-

junction made no effort to bind successsors in interest of

the Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation. Its terms made it ap-

plicable to Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, its superintendent,

agents and employees and their was no mention of vendees,

assignees or successors in interest.

An injunction operates in personam.

32 Cor. Jur. 83; -

Scott V. McDonald, 165 U. S. 107, 17 S. Ct. 262, 41

L. Ed. 648;

Taylor v. S. P. Co., 122 Fed. 147.

A person must be a party respondent or defendant or

be expressly named in the injunction to be bound thereby.

Mere knowledge that an injunction has been issued and
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exists is not enough. There must be some definite con-

necting' Hnk between the parties involved.

Gompers v. Stove Co., 221 U. S. 418;

Garrigan v. U. S., 163 Fed. 16;

Kirby v. Society, 95 Cal. App. 757, 273 Pac. 609;

Cohan v. Shihley, 289 Pac. 169.

In the case of Berger v. Superior Court, 175 Cal. 719,

167 Pac. 143, 15 A. L. R. Z7Z, an injunction was issued

restraining certain parties and organizations, "their offi-

cers, members, agents, clerks, attorneys and servants" from

])icketing a theatre. Berger was not a party to the action

and no relation between himself and any of the parties

named was shown. He picketed the theatre and during

the time he was thus picketing he was served with a copy

of the injunction, but continued his activities. In dis-

cussing the matter and reversing the trial court, the Court

said as follows:

"The judgment of contempt was based solely on the

fact that he did the specified thing, with actual notice

that other persons were enjoined from doing the same
thing by a judgment in a civil action to which he

was not a party and which did not by its terms pro-

hibit him from doing anything."

In discussing the fact that he had actual notice of the

injunction, the Court said:

"But despite expressions in some authorities that at

first blush lend support to the contention of respond-

ent, it is generally held that a theory of disobedience

of the injunction cannot be predicated on the act of

a person not in any way included in its terms or act-

ing in concert with the enjoined party in support of



his claims. Rigas v. Livingston, 178 N. Y. 20, 70

N. E. 107."

The most significant case on this question is that of,

Alemite Mfg. Co. v. Staff, 42 Fed. (2d) 832. The plain-

tiff sued Joseph Staff, Louis, John and Samuel Staff. John

swore that the business was his alone and a dismissal was

entered as to Joseph and Louis. Samuel was never served.

A decree was entered in the action against John, ''his

agents, employees, associates and confederates". At that

time Joseph was a salesman for John, but he later quit

and started in business for himself. It was proved that,

in this new business, he infringed the very patent which

had been the subject of the injunction. Proceedings to

punish for contempt were brought in the original suit. In

passing on this point the Court said:

"We agree that a person who knowingly assists a

defendant in violating an injunction subjects himself

to civil as well as criminal proceedings for contempt.

This is well settled law. Ex Parte Lennon, 166 U. S.

548, 17 S. Ct. 65, 41 L. Ed. 1110; Conkey v. Russell,

111 Fed. 417; Wellesley v. Mornington, 1 Ch. 545.

On the other hand no court can make a decree which

will bind anyone but a party; a court of equity is as

much so limited as a court of law; it cannot lawfully

enjoin the world at large, no matter how broadly it

words its decree. If -it assumes to do so, the decree is

pro tanto briitnm fulmen, and the persons enjoined are

free to ignore it. It is not vested with sovereign

powers to declare conduct unlawful, its jurisdiction is

limited to those over whom it gets personal service,

and who therefore can have their day in Court."

In conclusion on this point, then, if the injunction as

issued was valid, Second Appellees were not affected or

bound by it.



II.

If Such a Vendee Is Bound by Such an Injunction, Can

He Be Held Liable for Damages Arising From
Acts Committed More Than Two Months Before

He Acquires Any Interest in the Property? As a

Corollary, Can Such a Vendee Be Liable in a Con-

tempt Proceeding When He Has Not Done Any
of the Acts Prohibited by the Injunction?

Second Appellees never violated the injunction in any

way. There is not the slightest evidence that they under-

took any "drilling, redrilling or side-tracking", or that

they used mud as a circulating Hquid within 200 feet

above the oil sands. [Tr. p. 233.] In fact there is no

evidence that the injunction as such was violated at any

time subsequent to June 8, 1940, if at all. This was a

period of two months prior to the date that Second Appel-

lees acquired title. How conceivably they could be made

responsible for the damage, if any, which was sustained

on June 8, 1940, we are at a loss to see.
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III.

(a) Where an Attorney Acquires Information in Rep-

resenting One Client of the Existence of an In-

junctive Order, Is He Under Any Obligation to

Disclose That Information to Another Client, Un-

related to the Action and Not Included in the

Terms of the Injunction?

(b) If He Is So Obligated, May He and His Second

Clients Be Held Liable for Violation of the Terms
of the Injunction as Aiders and Abettors Because

of the Attorney's Representation of Both Clients?

Since Second Appellees were not named in the injunc-

tion, were not parties to the action in which it was issued,

and have never had a day in Court on the matter, the

only conceivable theory upon which they might be

susceptible to liability would be that they aided and abetted

Bolsa Chica in a fraudulent scheme to violate the injunc-

tion by subterfuge. If that is appellant's theory in seek-

ing to impose liability on the Second Appellees, they have

fallen dismally short of proving their case. The only evi-

dence in the record which shows any connection between

first and second appellees, other than the dubious honor

of having been hailed into Court together on the contempt

citation, is the fact that during a minor portion of the

negotiations after the injunction was issued, William H.

Cree represented Bolsa Chica Oil Corporation, as one of

its attorneys. He also represents, and has for many years

past, McCallen Corporation, McVicar and Rood. It is a

fundamental principle of an attorney's code of ethics that

all information he acquires from any client is confidential.

He is under no duty to disclose any information he acquires

from one client to any other client, whether that informa-

tion is of a personal nature or whether it is a matter of
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public record. During his limited representation of Bolsa

Chica, Mr. Cree stated that he believed the injunction

was invalid and that if he were advising Bolsa Chica what

to do, he would tell them to proceed with their drilling

operations. Several weeks later the well was sold to his

client, McCallen Corporation, but no evidence was offered

to show he had any connection with the negotiations for

that sale, except for drawing the instruments after the

deal had been made. This is the only evidence in the record

of a direct or indirect connection between First and Sec-

ond Appellees. We submit that Mr. Cree was under no

obligation to disclose the existence of the injunction to

McCallen Corporation, McVicar and Rood. In fact we will

go further and state that if he had done so, he would have

violated the confidential nature of his relations to his client.

In the matter of Slater v. Merritt, 75 N. Y. 268, an in-

junction was issued restraining a defendant, his attorneys,

agents, servants and assistants from entering a certain

farm. Thereafter two married daughters of the defendant

and his mother occupied the premises. The mother and

one of the daughters had been advised by the defendant's

attorney to get and keep possession, if they could, he of

course knowing of the injunction and being embraced

within its terms. The trial court found the defendant and

his attorney guilty of contempt. On appeal the appellate

court held: first, that before parties can be punished by

fine or imprisonment, there must be proof against them

tending to show illegal actions ; and second, that the above

observation applies still more strongly to the case of the

attorney. The Court said:

"Indeed, it can hardly be pretended that there is any
evidence against him of counseling or abetting the

violation of the injunction unless his admitted advice
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to the grandmother to get possession if she could, as

dowress, and his advice to the sister to keep posses-

sion under her mortgage is claimed to be such. But

this court has recently held in People v. Randall, 73

N. Y. 416, that where an attorney has two clients, one

of ivhotn is enjoined and the other, in an independent

position is not enjoined, such attorney cannot ordi-

narily he charged with violation of the injunction in

advising or acting professionally for the latter. He
is enjoined as an attorney for the defendant merely,

and this cannot limit or restrain his professional ac-

tion in behalf of others." (Italics ours.)

To the same effect is the case of In re Watts & Sachs,

190 U. S. 1, 47 Law Ed. 933, 10 A. B. R.

Furthermore a contempt proceeding against an aider

and abettor is by nature a criminal proceeding. It is not

remedial, but is for the purpose of punishing the wrong

doer for contempt. As in all criminal proceedings, the

guilt must be established beyond a reasonable doubt and

the punishment is by imprisonment and not in civil

damages.

32 Corpus Juris, 502-3;

Garrigan v. U. S., 163 Fed. 16, 89 C. C. A. 494;

Berger v. Ct., supra.

There is scarcely any evidence here of any relation be-

tween the parties, except as vendor and vendee. There is

certainly nothing that would indicate that Second Appellees

aided and abetted First Appellees in a scheme to evade an

injunction order.
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in conclusion, Second Appellees, submit that they have

never had their day in Court. They are charged with

violation of an injunction to which they were not parties,

and in which they were not named. There can be no con-

tention that they consented to the entry of the injunction

or that they waived their objection to the jurisdicion of

the Bankruptcy Court to hear and determine the contro-

versy as to them. They have been cited for contempt of

an injunction which they have not in any way violated,

they have not "drilled, redrilled or side-tracked" or used

"mud as a circulating fluid" in any of these operations.

An attempt is being made to force upon them the onus of

an injunction, questionable at best, with which their only

connection is that they were represented by the same at-

torney, who for a short period represented one of the par-

ties named in the injunction.

Respectfully submitted,

Cree & Brooks, and

Elizabeth R. Hensel,

By Elizabeth R. Hensel,

Attorneys for Appellees M. M. McCalien Corporation, H.

H. McVicar, C. M. Rood and William H, Cree,
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In the United States District Court in and for the

Southern District of California

Central Division

No. 14531 M
In the Matter of the Application of

GIN SOON GING
For a Writ of Habeas Corpus

PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

To the Honorable Judge in the above-entitled

Court, Your Petitioner, Gin Ting, Respectful^

States

:

I.

That he was born in the United States and that

under the Constitution thereof, he is a citizen of

the United States; that as evidence of his said

American citizenship, he holds United States Citi-

zen's Certificate of Identity No. 5888 issued to him

by the Commissioner of Immigration and Naturali-

zation at San Francisco, California, on November

7, 1911; and that he has never expatriated himself

as such a citizen;

. II.

That he has a son by the name of Gin Soon Ging

born to him and his wife in China on May 25, 1926,

and that under the provisions of Section 1993 of

the Revised Statutes, the said Gin Soon Ging is

also a citizen of the United States; and that on or

about June 30, 1940, his said son came to the port
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of San Pedro, California and applied to the Im^

migration and Naturalization Authorities thereof

for admission so as to join the petitioner in this

country

;

III.

That on July 9, 1940, a board of special inquiry

was convened to hear the application of the afore-

said Gin Soon Ging for admission to the United

States as a natural born citizen thereof; that your

petitioner and his clansman Gin Wing Fun ap-

peared [2] before the said board as witnesses in the

applicant's behalf; that after hearing the testimony

concerning the applicant's ancestors, parents, broth-

ers, and other relatives, his family home, ancestral

village and schooling in China, and many other col-

lateral matters pertaining to the applicant's claimed

relationship to your petitioner, the board of special

inquiry denied the said application, not because of

any inconsistencies in the testimony between your

petitioner and the said Gin Soon Ging but because

of certain discrepancies between your petitioner and

his older son Gin Hong Goon in certain proceedings

which took place in 1931 and 1937 to which the

present applicant Gin Soon Ging was not a party;

IV.

That the board of special inquiry upon receipt

of an anonymous letter to the effect that the ap-

plicant was your petitioner's grandson instead of

his son, reopened the hearing on July 23, 1940 in
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order to question the parties hereto along the line

of the information so anonymously received ; and

that at the conclusion of this supplementary hear-

ing, the applicant was again excluded

;

V.

That an appeal from the excluding decision by

the board of special inquiry was forthwith taken

to the Board of Review of the Attorney-General,

but the appellate board on September 24th, 1940

dismissed the appeal and instructed the District

Director of Immigration and Naturalization for

the port of San Pedro, California to deport the said

Gin Soon Ging on the first available steamer leav-

ing for China; that unless this Honorable Court

intervene, Gin Soon Ging will be promptly taken

out of the United States; and that the aforesaid

proceedings involved a question of citizenship and

denial of a fair hearing to an American citizen,

over which this Honorable Court has undisputed

jurisdiction,—Wong Hai Sing vs. Nagle, C. C. A. 9,

49 Fed. (2d) 1016; and,

VI.

That the evidence adduced before the Immigra-

tion Authorities [3] established to a reasonable

certainty that the applicant Gin Soon Ging is the

son of your petitioner in that there was not a single

discrepancy in the testimony concerning the appli-

cant's family history, relatives, home life, ancestral



William A. Carmichael. 5

village, and schooling, the movements of various

members of applicant's father's family, important

events as well as collateral matters which were com-

monly known to members of this family; that it

was arbitrary and unfair for the Immigration

Authorities to exclude the applicant where the evi-

dence submitted has so conclusively established the

relationship of father and son between your peti-

tioner and the said Gin Soon Ging—Jue Yim Ton

vs. Nagle, C. C. A. 9, 48 Fed. (2d) 752; that the

immigration tribunals may ascertain facts in any

reasonable and fair way they see fit, but they cannot

reject sworn, consistent, unimpeached and uncon-

tradicted testimony without real reason which fair-

minded persons would regard as adequate—Ward
vs. Flynn ex rel Yee Gim Lung, 74 Fed. (2d) 145;

that the discrepancies developed in the hearings of

Gin Hong Goon in 1931 and 1937 to which the

present applicant Gin Soon Ging was not a party,

utilized by the Immigration Authorities to exclude

the applicant conclusively showed unfairness and

prejudice—Flynn ex rel Chin King vs. Tillinghast,

32 Fed. (2d) 359; Ex parte Ng Bin Fon, 20 Fed.

(2d) 1014; and U. S. ex rel Fong Lung Sing vs.

Day, 29 Fed. (2d) 619; and, that it was unfair and

a violation of the due process of law for the Immi-

gration Authorities to base an excluding decision

on mere suspicion brought about by an anonymous

letter—Wong Gook Chun vs. Proctor, C. C. A. 9,

84 Fed. (2d) 763.
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VII.

Your petitioner further states that the said Gin

Soon Ging has been since July 9th, 1940 and is

now being held in detention at the Immigration

Station at San Pedro, California in the custody of

[4] William A. Carmichael, District Director of

Immigration and Naturalization, for which reason,

the said Gin Soon Ging is unable to verify this

petition, so your petitioner as his father therefore

verifies this petition in his behalf.

Wherefore your petitioner prays that a writ of

habeas corpus be issued and directed to the afore-

said District Director of Immigration and Naturali-

zation as respondent herein, commanding him to

hold the body of the said Gin Soon Ging within

the jurisdiction of this Honorable Court and to

present the said body before this Court at a time

and place to be specified in the said order, together

with the time and cause of his detention, so that

the same may be inquired into to the end that the

said Gin Soon Ging may be restored to his liberty

and go hence without day.

Dated at Los Angeles, California, this 25th day

of September, 1940.

Y. C. HONG,
Attorney for Petitioner.
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State of California,

County of Los Angeles—ss.

Gin Ting, being duly sworn, deposes and states:

That he is the petitioner named in the foregoing

petition ; that the same has been read and explained

to him and that he knows the contents thereof which

is true of his own knowledge except those matters

which are therein stated on information and belief,

and as to such matters, he believes the same to be

true.

GIN TING,

Petitioner.

Subscribed and Sw^orn to before me this 25th

day of September, 1940.

[Seal] Y. C. HONG,
Notary Public.

Los Angeles, California

September , 1940. [5]

Let the writ issue as prayed for returnable before

United States District Judge Paul J. McCormick

on the 7th day of October 1940 at 2 o'clock in the

afternoon.

PAUL J. McCORMICK,
United States District Judge.

Dated Sept. 25, 1940 at 2:10 P. M.

[Endorsed] : Filed Sep. 25, 1940. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. By P. D. Hooser, Deputy. [6]
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United States District Court

Central Division, Southern District of California

[Title of Cause.]

HABEAS CORPUS

The President of the United States of America

To William A. Carmichael, District Director of

Immigration and Naturalization, Los Angeles,

California—Greeting

:

You Are Hereby Commanded, that the body of

Gin Soon Ging, by you restrained of his liberty,

as it is said detained by whatsoever names the said

Gin Soon Ging may be detained, together with the

day and cause of being taken and detained, you

have before the Honorable Paul J. McCormick,

Judge of the United States District Court in and

for the Southern District of California, at the court

room of said Court, in the City of Los Angeles at

2:00 o'clock p. m., on the 7th day of October, 1940,

then and there to do, submit to and receive what-

soever the said Judge shall then and there consider

in that behalf; and have you then and there this

writ.

Witness the Honorable Paul J. McCormick,

United States District Judge at Los Angeles, Cali-

fornia, this 25th day of September, A. D. 1940,

[Seal] R. S. ZIMMERMAN,
Clerk.

By GEO. E. RUPERICH,
Deputy Clerk.

[Endorsed]: Filed Oct. 7, 1940. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. By B. B. Hansen, Deputy Clerk. [7]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

RETURN TO WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

I, William A. Carmichael, District Director of

U. S. Immigration and Naturalization Service, Los

Angeles, California District No. 20, Respondent

herein, for my Return to Writ of Habeas Corpus

issued herein and in compliance with the said Writ

of Habeas Corpus, now produce the body of Gin

Soon Ging on this 7th day of October, 1940 before

this Honorable Court, and for my Return to said

Writ deny that I am unlawfully imprisoning and

detaining and confining and restraining the liberty

of the aforesaid Gin Soon Ging.

For further Return to said Writ, Respondent

admits that the said Gin Soon Ging arrived from

China at the Port of San Pedro, California the

30th day of June, 1940 on the SS "President Cleve-

land" and made application for admission into the

United States, and certifies that the true cause of

said Gin Soon Ging's detention is the finding and

order of a duly and regularly constituted Board of

Special Inquiry denying him admission into the

United States made July 9, 1940, and the order of

the Department of Justice, Washington, D. C,

made on or about September 24, 1940 confirming

the decision of the said Board of Special Inquiry

and ordering the return of said Gin Soon Ging

to the country whence he came; that Respondent

was preparing to return the said Gin Soon Ging to
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the country whence he came when this Writ of

Habeas Corpus was issued.

For further Return, Respondent makes a part

hereof Department of Justice File No. 56040/574,

duly certified, containing transcript of the testi-

mony and summary and findings of the Board of

Special Inquiry, San Pedro, California and sum-

mary and findings of the Board of Immigration

Appeals, Washington, D. C; also certain [8] U. S.

Immigration and Naturalization Service records,

identified by file numbers: 10508/10558, 25882/4-4,

30348/4-13, 37221/7-27 (San Francisco, Califor-

nia); 7032/2754 (Seattle, Washington); 31160/503

(San Diego, California); 1521/506, 1521/310,

1522/18 (Tucson, Arizona); Exhibits "A" and

*'B", and a group photograph.

Respectfully submitted,

WILLIAM A. CARMICHAEL,
District Director of U. S. Immigration and Nat-

uralization Service, Los Angeles, California,

District No. 20, Respondent.

[Endorsed]: Filed Oct. 7, 1940. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. By B. B. Hansen, Deputy Clerk. [9]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

TRAVERSE TO RETURN

To the Honorable United States District Judge,

now presiding in the United States District

Court, in and for the Southern District of Cali-

fornia, Central Division,

Your Petitioner by way of traverse to the Re-

spondent's Return herein respectfully alleges:

I

That he realleges and incorporates herein each

and every allegation contained in his Petition veri-

fied the 25th day of September, 1940 ; and

II

That the denial contained in the said Return is

only a conclusion of law and does not show facts

sufficient to warrant the restraint, detention, and

contemplated deportation of the said Gin Soon Ging

by the Respondent;

Wherefore, it is respectfully submitted that the

Writ should be sustained and Gin Soon Ging be

discharged from the custody of the Respondent.

Dated at Los Angeles, California, this 10th day

6f October, 1940.

Y. C. HONG
Attorney for Petitioner. [10]
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United States of America

State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

Gin Ting, Being Duly Sworn, Deposes and States

that he is the petitioner in the foregoing traverse;

that same has been read and explained to him and

that he knows the contents thereof; that the same

is true of his own knowledge except as to those

matters which are therein stated on his information

and belief, and as to those matters, he believes it

to be true.

GIN TING
Petitioner.

Subscribed and Sworn to Before Me This 10th

day of October, 1940.

[Seal] Y. C. HONG
Notary Public, Los Angeles County

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 10, 1940. [11]

At a stated term, to wit: The February Term,

A. D. 1941 of the District Court of the United

States of America, within and for the Central Di-

vision of the Southern District of California, held

at the Court Room thereof, in the City of Los An-

geles on Wednesday the 2nd day of April in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred and

forty-one.
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Present

:

The Honorable: Campbell E. Beaumont, District

Judge.

No. 14531-B Crim.

In the Matter of the Petition of

GIN SOON GING

for a Writ of Habeas Corpus

This matter having heretofore come before the

Court and documentary evidence having been sub-

mitted and counsel having submitted written briefs

and the Court having fully considered the same and

being fully advised as to the facts and the law, now
denies petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus and dis-

misses said Writ. [13]

United States District Court

Southern District of California

Central Division

No. 14531-B

In the Matter of

GIN SOON GING

MEMORANDUM AND ORDER
The writ challenges a denial of admission to the

United States of Gin Soon Ging, a Chinese boy,

who claims to be a son of a native United States

citizen. The Board of Special Inquiry held that
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the relationship had not been established, and upon

appeal its decision was affirmed by the Board of

Review.

After a study of the record herein the Court

cannot say that the Board of Special Inquiry com-

mitted a manifest abuse of the power and discre-

tion conferred upon it. In this case the evidence

is such that reasonable men might differ as to its

probative effect. It was the Board's duty to de-

termine such effect, and it cannot be said that its

decision, which represented the unanimous agree-

ment of its members, was reached unfairly or arbi-

trarily. In such circumstances its decision will not

be disturbed. Lum Sha You v. United States (C.

C. A. 9th), 82 Fed. (2d) 83; Quon Quon Poy v.

Johnson, 273 U. S. 352; United States v. Ju Toy,

198 U. S. 253; Chin Yow v. United States, 208 U.

S. 8; Chin Share Nging v. Nagle, 27 Fed. (2d) 848;

Mui Sam Hun v. United States, 78 Fed. (2d) 612.

Petition is denied and the writ discharged. April

1, 1941.

BEAUMONT, J.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 10, 1941. [14]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL
To the Clerk of the above-entitled Court, to Wil-

liam A. Carmichael, District Director of Im-

migration and Naturalization, and to William

Fleet Palmer, Esq., United States Attorney,

Attorney for Respondent:

You and each of you will please take notice that

Gin Soon Ging, the applicant in the above-entitled

matter, hereby appeals to the United States Circuit

(Court) of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, from the

Order and Judgment rendered, made and entered

herein on April 2, 1941, discharging the writ of

habeas corpus.

April 11th, 1941, Los Angeles, California.

Y. C. HONG
Attorney for Petitioner

Received Copy of the Within Notice of Appeal

this 11th day of April, 1941.

RUSSELL LAMBEAU,
By MMH

Received Copy of the Within Notice of Appeal

this day of April, 1941.

A. DI GIROLAMO,
Asst. U. S. Atty.

Copy mailed to District Director 4/11/41, E. L. S.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 11, 1941. [15]



16 Gin Soon Ging vs.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STATEMENT OF POINTS ON WHICH AP-

PELLANT INTENDS TO EELY AND
DESIGNATION OF THE PARTS OF REC-
ORD WHICH APPELLANT THINKS
NECESSARY FOR THE CONSIDERATION
THEREOF.

Comes now Gin Soon Ging, the Appellant in the

above-entitled matter, respectfully stating that he

intends to rely upon the following points on which

the District Court erred, to-wit:

I

In holding that the Board of Special Inquiry at

the port of San Pedro, California, did not commit a

manifest abuse of the power and discretion conferred

upon it, whereas the minutes of the administrative

proceedings showed that the said Board's finding to

the effect that the appellant was Gin Ting's inad-

missible grandson was only based upon anonymous

information instead of substantial evidence;

II

In holding that the hearing accorded by the Board

of Special Inquiry at San Pedro, California, was

not unfair and arbitrary whereas the record of the

administrative proceedings showed that the said

Board's dissatisfaction as to the appellant's claim

of relationship to his alleged father. Gin Ting, was

based solely upon certain discrepancies between his

alleged father and alleged brother Gin Hong Goon

developed in certain immigration proceedings had

in 1931 and 1937 to which the present appellant was
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not a party and on a matter which did not concern

the appellant or his relationship to his alleged

father Gin Ting;

III

In failing to hold that the consistent and unim-

peached testimony of the appellant and his alleged

father, Gin Ting, and other uncontradicted [16]

evidence of record submitted to the Board of Spe-

cial Inquiry at San Pedro, California, had reason-

ably established his claimed relationship to his al-

leged father Gin Ting ; and,

IV
In dismissing the writ of habeas corpus after it

was affirmatively shown that the Immigration Au-

thorities had manifestly abused its power and dis-

cretion, and arbitrarily and unfairly denied to the

appellant admission to his own country.

Y
Therefore, the appellant deems it necessary to,

and does hereby request that all the original im-

migration files and records heretofore submitted as

exhibits before the District Court be made exhibits

before the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit by filing the same with the Clerk of the said

appellate court in accordance with the stipulations

adopted on April 25, 1941, by and between the par-

ties hereto.
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Dated this 25th day of April, 1941, at Los An-

geles, California.

Y. C. HONG
Attorney for Appellant

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 25, 1941. R. S. Zimmer- J

man. Clerk. By P. D. Hooser, Deputy. [17]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION AND ORDER REGARDING
ORIGINAL RECORDS AND FILES OF
THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.

It is hereby stipulated and agreed by and between

Y. C. Hong, Attorney for Appellant herein, and

William Fleet Palmer, Attorney for the Appellee

herein, that the original files and records of the

Department of Justice covering the application of

the above-named party, which were files in the

hearings in the above-entitled cause, may be by the

Clerk of this court sent to the Clerk of the Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, as part of

the appellate record, in order that the said original

immigration files may be considered by the Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit in lieu of

a certified copy of the said records and files, and

that the same need not be printed.
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Dated this 25th day of April, 1941, at Los An-

geles, California.

Y. C. HONG
Attorney for Appellant

WM. FLEET PALMER
United States Attorney

By ATTILIO DI GIROLAMO
Asst. United States Attorney

Attorneys for Appellees

On this 25th day of Apr., 1941.

It is so ordered.

PAUL J. McCORMICK
United States District Judge [18]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION AND ORDER IN RE PRINT-
ING OF TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

It is hereby stipulated and agreed by and between

the parties to the above-entitled cause, through their

respective counsel, that the Clerk of the above-

entitled Court, in preparing the printed transcript

of record on appeal, may omit the heading of all

papers filed except the citation, petition for writ of

habeas corpus, and assignments of error, substitut-

ing in the place and stead thereof the phrase '* Title

of Court and Cause", and that the said Clerk may
omit all backs of documents except the filing en-

dorsements.
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Dated this 25th day of April, 1941, at Los An-

geles, California.

Y. C. HONG
Attorney for Appellant

WM. FLEET PALMER
United States Attorney

By ATTILIO DI GIROLAMO
Asst. United States Attorney

Attorneys for Appellee

It is so ordered.

Apr. 25th, 1941.

PAUL J. McCORMICK
United States District Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 25, 1941. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. By P. D. Hooser, Deputy. [19]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

DESIGNATION OF RECORD ON APPEAL
To the Clerk of the Said Court

:

Please prepare and duly authenticate the tran-

script of the following portions of the record in the

above-entitled case for appeal to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit;

1. Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus and

Order granting writ;

2. Writ of Habeas Corpus;

3. Return to writ of Habeas Corpus;

4. Traverse to Return;
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5. Minute and Memorandum and Order of Dis-

trict Court discharging- writ;

6. Notice of Appeal;

7. Cost Bond on Appeal;

8. Stipulation and Order Regarding Original

Records and Files of the Department of Justice;

9. Stipulation and Order in re Printing of

Transcript of Record;

10. Statement of Points on Which Appellant

intends to Rely and Designation of the Parts of

Record Which Appellant Thinks Necessary for the

Consideration Thereof.

11. Designation of Record on Appeal.

April 25, 1941.

Y. C. HONO
Attorney for Petitioner and Appellant.

Approved

:

WM. A. CARMICHAEL H
District Director of Immigration

Respondent-Appellee.

WM. FLEET PALMER
United States Attorney

By ATTILIO DI GIROLAMO
Asst. United States Attorney

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 25, 1941. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk, by P. D. Hooser, Deputy. [21]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

COST BOND ON APPEAL
Know All Men by These Presents:

That the undersigned Fidelity and Deposit Com-

pany of Maryland is held and firmly bound unto

the United States of America, in the full and just

sum of Two Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($250.00),

to be paid to the United States of America, or their

attorney, successors or assigns, to which payment,

well and truly to be made, the midersigned binds

himself, his heirs, executors and administrators,

jointly and severally by these presents.

Sealed with his seal and dated this 25th day of

April, 1941, at Los Angeles, California.

Whereas, lately in a habeas corpus proceeding in

the United States District Court for the Southern

District of California, Central Division, between the

petitioner Gin Soon Ging and the respondent Wil-

liam A. Carmichael, District Director of Immigra-

tion and Naturalization with supervision over the

port of San Pedro, California, as aforesaid, an

order, judgment and decree was rendered by the

said Court on the 1st day of April, 1941, against

the said Gin Soon Ging, discharging the writ of

habeas corpus and remanding the said petitioner to

the custody of the respondent for deportation, and

the said petitioner Gin Soon Ging thereupon on the

11th day of April, 1941, filed his notice of appeal

with the Clerk of the said Court to have the United
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States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, to review and reverse the said order, judgment

and decree in the aforesaid habeas corpus pro-

ceeding.

Now, the condition of the above obligation is such

that if the said Gin Soon Ging shall prosecute his

appeal to effect and answer all costs if [23] he fails

to make his plea good, then the above obligation to

be void, else to remain in full force and virtue.

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT
COMPANY OP MARYLAND

By ROBERT HECHT
Attorney in Fact

Attest

:

[Seal] S. M. SMITH
Agent

State of California,

County of Los Angeles—ss.

On this 25th day of April, 1941, before me Ther-

esa Fitzgibbons, a Notary Public, in and for the

County and State aforesaid, duly commissioned and

sworn, personally appeared Robert Hecht and S.

M. Smith, known to me to be the persons whose

names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument

as the Attorney-in-Fact and Agent respectively of

the Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland, and

acknowledged to me that they subscribed the name

of Fidelity and Deposit Company thereto as Prin-
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^cipal and their own names as Attorney-in-Fact and

Agent, respectively.

[Seal] THERESA FITZGIBBONS
Notary Public in and for Los Angeles County, State

of California.

My Commission Expires May 3, 1942.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 28, 1941. [24]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK
I, R. S. Zimmerman, Clerk of the District Court

of the United States for the Southern District of

California, do hereby certify that the foregoing

pages numbered from 1 to 25 inclusive, contain full,

true and correct copies of Petition for Writ of

Habeas Corpus; Order for Writ; Writ of Habeas

Corpus; Return to the Writ; Traverse to the Re-

turn; Minute of Decision; Memorandum and Order

Discharging the Writ ; Notice of Appeal ; Statement

of Points on Appeal; Stipulation and Order Re

Original Immmigration Records; Stipulation and

Order Re Printing; Designation of Record on Ap-

peal; and Cost Bond on Appeal, which together with

the Original Records of the Immigration and

Naturalization Service transmitted herewith con-

stitute the record on appeal to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.
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I do further certify that the fees of the Clerk for

comparing, correcting and certifying the foregoing

record amount to $4.70 and that the said amount has

been paid to me by the Appellant.

Witness my hand and the seal of the District

Court of the United States for the Southern Dis-

trict of California, this 16th day of May, A. D.

1941.

[Seal] R. S. ZIMMERMAN,
Clerk,

By: EDMUND L. SMITH
Deputy.

[Endorsed]: No. 9826. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Gin. Soon

Ging, Appellant, vs. William A. Carmichael, Dis-

trict Director of Immigration and Naturalization

Service, Appellee. Transcript of Record. Upon Ap-

peal from the District Court of the United States

for the Southern District of California, Central

Division.

Filed May 17, 1941.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.



26 Gin Soon Ging vs.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 9826

GIN SOON GING,
Appellant,

vs.

WM. A. CARMICHAEL, District Director of Im-

migration and Naturalization,

Appellee.

STATEMENT OF POINTS ON WHICH AP-
PELLANT INTENDS TO RELY ON THE
APPEAL AND DESIGNATION OF NECES-
SARY PARTS OF RECORD FOR THE
APPEAL.

STIPULATION

(Rule 19, Subdivision 6 of Circuit Court of

Appeals in and for the Ninth Circuit.)

It is hereby stipulated by and between the par-

ties hereto through their respective counsel pur-

suant to Rule 19, Subdivision 6 of the Rules of the

Circuit Court of Apj)eals in and for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, that the Statement of Points and Designation

of Parts of Record filed in the District Court on

the 25th day of April, 1941, and each and every

part thereof, shall be and is hereby designated as

necessary for the consideration of the appeal herein.
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Dated this 25th day of April, 1941, at Los An-

geles, California.

Y. C. HONG
Attorney for the Appellant

WM. FLEET PALMER
United States Attorney

By ATTILIO di GIROLAMO
Asst. United States Attorney

Attorneys for the Appellee

[Endorsed] : Filed May 17, 1941. Paul P. O'Brien,

Clerk.
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No. 9826.

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Gin Soon Ging,

Appellant,

vs.

Wm. a. Carmichael, District Director of Immigration

and Naturalization,

Appellee.

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT.

Pleadings.

This is an appeal from an order of the District Court

dismissing the writ of habeas corpus previously issued

upon the application of the appellant. The petition was

made by appellant's father, Gin Ting, on September 25th,

1940 [Tr. of R. pp. 2-7], the writ was issued and served

on the same day [Tr. of R. p. 8], the appellee's return

to the writ attaching the Immigration records involved

was filed on October 7, 1940 [Tr. of R. pp. 9-10], and

traverse to the return was submitted in the appellant's

behalf on October 10th, 1940 [Tr. of R. pp. 11-12].

Issue was thus joined.

Jurisdictional Statement.

Jurisdiction of the court below to review the proceedings

of the Immigration Service was invoked by the appellant

on the ground that he was denied a fair hearing of his

case under the provisions of 28 U. S. C, Section 451
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(R. S., Section 751). The present appeal is authorized

by the provisions of 28 U. S. C, Section 225-a (Jud.

Code, 128, as amended).

Facts of the Case.

Gin Soon Ging, the appellant, was a 14-year-old boy of

the Chinese race who came to the port of San Pedro, Cali-

fornia on June 30th, 1940 and applied to the Immigration

authorities there for admission as a natural born American

citizen by virtue of the provisions of Section 1993 of the

Revised Statutes. He left China to join his American-

born father, Gin Ting, in this country. As evidence of

his citizenship, Gin Ting presented United States Citizen's

Certificate of Identity No. 5888 issued to him by the

Commissioner of Immigration and Naturalization at San

Francisco, California on November 7th, 1911. Appellant

claimed that he was born to the said Gin Ting and wife

on May 25th, 1926 in China, and that he was therefore

entitled to admission as the foreign-born son of a native-

born American citizen under the aforesaid statute.

Appellant's application was heard by a board of special

inquiry on July 9th, 1940. His alleged father. Gin Ting,

and clansman, Gin Wing Fun, appeared before the board

to testify in his behalf. After hearing the testimony of

the appellant and his two witnesses on matters concerning

his ancestors, parents, brothers and other relatives, the

detailed description of his Chinese home, ancestral village

and schooling as well as many other matters and events

which the board believed the appellant and his alleged

father should have common knowledge by virtue of their

relationship to each other, no discrepancies or inconsistent

statements were developed. The board nevertheless, denied

the appellant the right of admission and based its exclud-
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ing decision solely on the ground that there were some dis-

crepancies between the testimony of his alleged father and

Gin Hong Goon in certain Immigration proceedings had

in 1931 and 1937 to which the appellant was not even a

party. The board was also in receipt of an anonymous

letter saying that the appellant was Gin Ting's grandson

and not his son, so an additional finding to that efifect was

made for the appellant's exclusion.

Appeal was then taken to the Immigration Board of

Review in Washington, D. C., that the hearing was unfair

and findings were not supported by facts. The appellate

board, however, dismissed the appeal and confirmed the

excluding order of the trial board. Thereupon, a writ of

habeas corpus was applied for by the appellant's father

in his behalf to obtain judicial review of the same. This

is an appeal from the order of the court below dismissing

the writ.

Specifications of Error.

The court below held that the board of special inquiry

did not commit a manifest abuse of the power and dis-

cretion conferred upon it and that the excluding decision

rendered against the appellant was not reached unfairly

or arbitrarily [Tr. of R. pp. 12-14]. Appellant beheves

the court below was in error. Specifications of error are

expressed in his statement of points for appeal filed on

April 25th, 1941 [Tr. of R. pp. 16-18].

The question at issue may therefore be succinctly stated

as follows: Was the hearing accorded the appellant by the

Immigration Authorities arbitrary and unfair? Appellant

contends that he was denied the fair hearing to which he

was entitled.



ARGUMENT.

I.

The Board of Special Inquiry Committed a Manifest

Abuse of the Power and Discretion Conferred

Upon It by Arbitrarily Rejecting the Uncontra-

dicted Testimony of the Appellant's Alleged

Father Concerning His Relationship to the

Appellant.

There was not a single discrepancy developed between

the testimony of the appellant and his alleged father before

the board of special inquiry. The examination accorded

them touched upon every detail pertaining to their ancestral

history, family, relatives, home, village, and hundreds of

various collateral events which took place during their

Hves. The pedigree reputation was also corroborated by

the testimony of their clansman Gin Wing Fun. The

board, however, arbitrarily brought into the picture certain

discrepancies developed in 1931 and 1937 between the

testimony given by the appellant's father and appellant's

alleged brother, Gin Hung Goon, who failed to gain admis-

sion to this country, and sought thereby to discredit the

appellant's father's present testimony.

Of course, the law's method of ascertaining the credibil-

ity of witnesses is nothing new and has been known for

centuries. Aside from the appearance of the witness, his

demeanor on the stand, the reasonableness of his testi-

mony, and his character, he can only be inii)eached by

evidence of contradictory statements made cjut of court

or in another tribunal on material matters. Gmig You v.
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Nagle (CCA. 9th), 34 Fed. (2d) 848, 852. The matter

material to appellant's case is the relationship between the

appellant and his alleged father. Not only was there no

disclaimer of such parentage by appellant's father in the

1931 and 1937 proceedings, the official records of those

proceedings are replete with antecedent testimony by him

concerning the birth and existence of the appellant in his

family and home in China. There was, therefore, no valid

ground for the board to reject either the present or previ-

ous testimony of the appellant's father pertaining to his

relationship to the appellant. To do so is an unwarranted

abuse of power and discretion.

On appeal to the appellate board in Washington, D. C,

the language used in the decision rendered on September

18th, 1940, reads as follows:

"The Board of Special Inquiry appears to have

found the appellant's alleged father to be discredited

as a witness by reason of the record fact that in 1931

and again in 1937 he testified in support of the claim

of one Gin Hung Quon to be his son and, therefore,

entitled to admission as a citizen, which claim was

not found to be estabHshed with the result that the

said Gin Hung Quon was returned to China at the

conclusion of those two proceedings. Reference to

the records of those two applications, however, fails

to show that fraud zvas proved or even alleged in

either of them. Thus, it is not believed that the Board

of Special Inquiry is warranted in finding the alleged

father discredited by reason of his testifying in those

proceedings/' (Emphasis ours.)



II.

The Board of Special Inquiry Was Arbitrary and

Unfair in Relying on the Questionable Contents of

an Anonymous Letter to Base an Order of Exclu-

sion Because the Rights and Privileges of Citizen-

ship Cannot Be So Lightly Denied the Appellant.

Shortly previous to the supplementary hearing held on

July 23rd, 1940, the board of special inquiry was in receipt

of an anonymous communication to the effect that the

appellant was Gin Ting's grandson and not his son as

claimed. During the course of the hearing, appellant's

father produced a family group photograph taken in China

many years ago as additional evidence of relationship

which was overlooked in the first hearing and in which

appeared the appellant, his mother Lee Shee, his younger

brother Gin Soon Pang, his older brother Gin Hung Goon

and the latter's wife Wong Shee. After the unexpected

introduction of this photograph, the board showed it to

the appellant who without any hesitation identified and

named each and every person therein. The board, how-

ever, paid Hp service to the law as laid down by our

Supreme Court in Kwock Jan Fat v. White, 253 U. S.

454, 40 S. Ct. 566, 64 L. Ed. 1010, by stating that the

anonymous information was given "no credence" because

of its source, came out \yith the wqld stab in the dark by

finding that the said photograph appeared to be that of a

"father and mother and two children and a grandmother",

which alleged opinion if it were based on fact, would

furnish support to the allegation contained in the anony-

mous letter, and, of course, would make the appellant's

mother his grandmother. This remarkable finding of the

board may be characterized solely as a prejudicial eflfort

to give full weight and credence to the anonymous infor-
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mation whipsawing the evidence around to suit the con-

venience of the suspicion of the members of the board by

making the wish the father to the thought. Even the

Immigration Board of Appeals had to acknowledge the

invalidity of such a ground on September 18, 1940, as

follows

:

"Also, it appears that while the Board of Special

Inquiry has given no credence to anonymous informa-

tion that this appellant is a grandson instead of a son

of his alleged father
;
yet, that Board appears to have

indirectly given some zveight to that information in-

finding that the group photograph presented \voidd

appear to he the photograph of father and two chil-

dren and a grandmother' , which would accord with

the anonymous information, instead of being, as the

alleged father and appellant testify, a picture of the

appellant and his mother, and his older brother and

the latter's wife, and his younger brother." (Emphasis

ours.)

Under the same circumstances, this Honorable Court

held in the case of Chew Hoy Quong v. White (CCA.
9th), 249 Fed. 869, 870, as follows:

"Aside from that, we hold that the fact that the

immigration authorities received a confidential com-

munication concerning the applicant's right to admis-

sion, upon which they acted, and v/hich was for-

warded to the Department of Labor for its consider-

ation, was sufficient to constitute the hearing unfair.

However far the hearing on the application of an

alien for admission into the United States may depart

from what in judicial proceedings is deemed necessary

to constitute due process of law, there clearly is no

warrant for basing decision, in whole or in part, on



confidential com-muvication, the source, motive, or

contents of winch are not disclosed to the applicant

or her counsel, and where no opportunity is afforded

them to cross-examine, or to offer testimony in

rebuttal thereof, or even to know that such communi-

cation has been received." (Emphasis ours.)

See, also:

Wong Gook Chun r. Proctor (CCA. 9th), 84

Fed. (2d) 763.

III.

The Board of Special Inquiry Acted Most Arbitrarily

and Unfairly by Disregarding Direct and Material

Evidence on the Issue of Relationship Between the

Appellant and His Alleged Father in Order to

Render Its Decision of Exclusion.

By reason of the fact that Gin Ting had not been back

to China since 1927 when the appellant was an infant two

years old, the board of special inquiry disregarded the

testimony in support of the claimed relationship. This

Honorable Court in the case of Gung You v. Nagle, 34

Fed. (2d) 848, 852, said:

"Relationship is not usually proz'cd hy physical

facts, and never is where the mother docs not testify,

but by pedigree reputation in the family, and by the

conduct of the parties, including the manner in which

they live. The fact that a small child lives in the

home of its alleged parents and that they maintain

toward each other the obligation involved in the rela-

tionship is evidence favorable to the issue, and evi-



dence that they did not live together and did not

conduct themselves as parent and child is evidence to

the contrary. Such evidence is not collateral evidence;

it is direct and material evidence on the issue/' (Em-
phasis ours.)

The mere fact that the appellant's father has not seen

the appellant in person since the latter was an infant there-

fore could not reasonably discredit his father's testimony

on his conduct toward the appellant, or testimony of others

on the pedigree reputation in their family. In 22 Corpus

Juris 172, Section 103 g, the following passage is found,

viz.:

"Relationship. The rule admitting declarations

concerning pedigree applies to a question of relation-

ship; in addition to which a person may testify as

to his relationship to another person, especially where

the statement is based on his own knowledge; and

parentage may be proved by general reputation."

And in 22 Corpus Juris 173, Section 106 (3), the following

is noted:

'Tdentity. In the absence of direct evidence by the

conclusion of witnesses, or by inspection of the court

and jury, identity may be established circumstantially

not only by proving extrinsic facts which render its

existence probable, but by proof of indicative mani-

festations, such as declarations showing peculiar

knowledge, or by conduct, such as residence in a par-

ticular country, state, or other place, or service in the

army at a certain time. A family tradition may assist

in identification, and hearsay statements in the nature

of declarations regarding pedigree are competent for

the same purpose." (Emphasis ours.)
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It is readily seen that the law does not require physical

identification of the appellant by his alleged father, who

may or may not be able to recognize him in person as they

have been separated from each other ever since the appel-

lant was an infant, although in this particular case, the

father was able to do so because of having kept in constant

touch with his family during all these years and of having

received pictures of the appellant from the bo\'s mother

from time to time, one of which was contained in the

family group photograph used as an exhibit herein and

another attached to the affidavit of relationshij). It was

therefore arbitrary and unfair for the Immigration officials

to disregard this unimpeached, direct, and material testi-

mony given by the appellant's father on the relationship

issue. This flagrant disregard of the principles of justice

constituted a denial of due process of law.

In the court below, the appellee cited in this connection,

the Massachusetts case of Chung Fong Kiuoii i\ Tilling-

hast, 35 Fed. (2d) 398, and TilUnghast v. Chin King, 38

Fed. (2d) 5, neither of which has any application to the

case at bar. The first one, a District Court case, refers to

the failure of the applicant as a native born to produce a

birth certificate showing his birth in this country where

recording of such vital statistics is required by statute.

There is no such a requirement in China. The second case

refers to the testimony of the identifying witness who has

not seen the applicant since he was five and a half years

old and not to the testimony of the applicant's father. The

identifying witness Gin Wing Fun in the case at bar,

testified that he saw the appellant in China in August,

1937 and again in April, 1938 when the appellant was

about 12 or 13 years of age [p. 11, Immigration board

hearing of July 9, 1940].
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IV.

The Appellant Having Satisfied His Burden of Proof

by Establishing With Evidence to a Reasonable
Certainty That He Was the Son of Gin Ting, the

Board of Special Inquiry Was Arbitrary and
Unfair in Excluding Him Without Some Sub-

stantial Evidence to the Contrary.

The American citizenship of appellant's alleged father

Gin Ting was conceded by the board of special inquiry.

His trip to China making possible his claim of paternity

to the appellant was a matter of official record, San Fran-

cisco Immigration File No. 25882/4-4, showing that he

departed from the United States on August 22, 1925 and

returned from China on May 15th, 1938 when he reported

to the Immigration Authorities that he had a son by the

appellant's name was born to him and his wife on this trip.

Thereafter, on each and every occasion of his several

appearances before the Immigration Authorities at San

Francisco, San Diego, Tucson and San Pedro, he reiterated

the existence of a son by the appellant's name and age.

This Honorable Court in Lome Poy Hok v. Nagle, 48

Fed. (2d) 753, 755, said:

''A similar case arose in Ng Yuk Ming v. Tilling-

hast, 28 Fed. (2d) 547, 549 (CCA. 1st). Ther^e,

'13 years before * * * the alleged father * * *

testified before the immigration authorities that he has

a son bearing the name of the applicant^ * * >ic

which he confirmed on every other occasion upon

which he was called to testify/ The decision of the

Court was that the decision of the immigration officials

was not supported by the evidence and the prisoner

was ordered released from custody. See, also, Gung
You V. Nagle, 34 Fed. (2d) 848 (CCA. 9th). In

the instant case the cumulative effect of the repeated
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assertions by the father and the previously entered

alleged brothers that there was a third son, Louie

Fung Leung, born October 1, 1909, certainly go far-

ther than a mere indication that the three were suffer-

ing from a delusion; the effect of the testimony in

the mind of any reasonable man must be to create the

belief that there was a third son somewhere in the

offing." (Emphasis ours.)

Other cases holding the same view are: U. S. ex rel. Lee

Kin Toy v. Day, 45 Fed. (2d) 206; Johnson v. Ng Ling

Fong, 17 Fed. (2d) 11, 12; U. S. ex rel. Leong Ding v.

Broiigh, 22 Fed. (2d) 926, 927; and U. S. ex rel Ng Gon

Yuen V. Reimer, 20 Fed. Supp. 976, 977.

The appellant and his father were given a most search-

ing examination by the board of special inquiry at San

Pedro. Appellant testified that his name was Gin Soon

Ging; that he was born on May 25, 1926 in the Fung Wah
Village, Gon Ung Bow section, Hoy-shan district in

China ; that he had resided in that Chinese village continu-

ously since his birth up to the time of departure for the

United States on this trip; that he was destined to his

father, Gin Yan Oy, in Los Angeles; that his father's

name was Gin Tan (Ting) and Gin Yan Oy was his

father's marriage name; that his father was about 60

years of age and a cook by occupation ; that his father was

married only once, and that was to his mother, Lee Shee;

that his mother Lee Shee was 56 years old and her birth-

day came on the 20th day of the 1 st month each year ; that

his mother was a native of the Nom village, Hoy-shan

district in China; that there were three boys in his family

including himself; that the oldest boy in the family was

Gin Hung Goon, who was about 30 years old and married
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to Wong Shee from the Ngor May village in 1933, and

they had one son named Gin Thloon Jon born in 1935;

that he, the applicant, was the second child in the family;

that his younger brother Gin Soon Pang, who was born to

his parents in 1927, constituted the third member of his

family; that his oldest brother Gin Hung Goon had made
two attempts to gain admission into the United States, first

time in 1931 and 1937, without any success; that his

paternal grandfather was Gin San, or Gin Yat Gim by

his marriage name, who died long ago and was buried

in the Gai Gung How hill located about a third of a mile

north of his home village; that his mother told him his

grandfather was married twice—first to Fong Shee of

Ung Nan village and after her death to another woman
from the same clan and that his father was the son of his

andfather's first wife; that his grandmother and step-

'^randmother were buried with his grandfather in the

aforesaid hill; that as these people died before his birth,

he had never seen any of them; that his father had no

brothers or sisters ; and that his mother was the only child

in her family. So much intimate knowledge of the family

history the appellant had readily displayed and his alleged

father under cross-examination corroborated the same in

practically every detail.

As to his native village in China, the appellant testified

that he lived in the 4th house on the 2nd row from the

head of the Fung Wah village in China all his life up to

May 10, 1940 when he left home for the United States;

that the Fung Wah village consisted of 12 dwellings, 12

toilets or outhouses, and one school building; that the

school-house is on the first row and there were three other

rows of houses, each row thereof having four dwellings;

that the houses on each row all adjoin each other; that
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there was a fishpond in front of the village; that the

villagers got their drinking water from a well located at

the tail-end of the village close to the tishpond; and that

the bamboo hedges at the rear and the two sides and the

fishpond in front acted as protective barriers to the village.

He made a diagram of the village for the enlightenment

of the members of the board of special inquiry and the

same was marked Exhibit "B" in the record.

With reference to his ancestral home, the house in which

he was born and lived up to the present time, he described

as follows:

"It IS a one story green brick house consisting of

two bedrooms; two kitchens and one parlor. It has

a tile roof and cement floor. There are two outside

windows in each bedroom, one above and one below

the loft and there are two inside windows between the

bedrooms and the parlor. There is one skylight in

each bedroom protected by glass and each bedroom

has a cross-loft. There is a shrine loft in the parlor,

there are two outside entrances, entering into the

kitchens."

He further testified that his oldest brother. Gin Hung

Goon's family shared this house with them ; that his brother

Goon occupied the big door side bedroom with his wife

and son, while the appellant and his mother and youngest

brother Pang slept in the small door side bedroom. His

description of the home was used in the cross-examination

of his alleged father and no discrepancies thereon could

be developed. There could be no question that they shared

a very thorough knowledge of the family residence in

China.
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As to out of ordinary eventr, I'lo appellant testified that

in CR 27 (1938) some bandits attacked his village and

kidnapped his mother and oldest brother Gin Hung Goon

and that they were later released only upon payment of a

ransom. He also told about the unexpected visits by an

old friend of his father's by the name of Gin Wing Fun

from the United States in 1937 and 1938 bringing money

as well as tidings of his father's good health across the

ocean. Gin Wing Fun appeared before the board to verify

this and identified the appellant as the boy whom his friend

and clansman Gin Ting requested him to see when he got to

China. Appellee in the court below sought to discredit this

testimony because this matter was not contained in a cer-

tain questionnaire signed by this witness aboard the incom-

ing steamer upon his return to this country at Seattle in

June, 1938. The appellee should be quite familiar with

the hasty methods used in filling these form reports when

everything is done under pressure and time is very limited

for checking and discharging passengers. In the case of

Chan Cheung, Immigration Bureau No. 55702/44, In-

spector Roy M. Porter of Seattle, a man of years of

experience in such work, frankly admitted as follows

:

"However, it is known by all experienced officers

that the statements taken from incoming Chinese on

board the steamers are practically worthless so far as

the real truth is concerned, as the examining officers

are hurried in their work and the Chinese persons

examined have not the time necessary to think and

recall when subjected to such questions in a hurried

way. It is well known that nearly every Chinese who
departs from the United States takes some letter or

money from some friend in the United States to his

family in China/' (Emphasis ours.)
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Therefore, it was not without reason for the court to

hold in the case of Flynn v. TilUnghast, 32 Fed. (2d) 359,

that such alleged answers to a "stock omnibus question"

form is a "very slight and insufficient ground on which to

adjudge testimony unreliable."

In reviewing the evidence, there was ample direct and

material testimony in support of the relationship claimed

by the appellant to his alleged father Gin Ting on the one

hand, and not a scintilla of evidence to support the findings

of the board of special inquiry to the contrary or to the

effect that the appellant was a grandson instead of a son

of Gin Ting on the other. Administrative tribunals may

ascertain facts in any reasonable and fair manner they

see fit, but they cannot reject sworn, consistent and unim-

peached testimony without some real reasons which a fair-

minded person would regard as adequate; Ward v. Flynn

ex rel. Yee Gim Lung, 74 Fed. (2d) 145. The burden

of proof was so satisfactorily met by the appellant that

the board could not cite one material discrepancy between

the testimony of the appellant and his father in the hear-

ing. Our courts have repeatedly held that there must be

at least some substantial evidence to support an excluding

decision; Nagle v. Wong Ngook Hong (C.C.A. 9th), 27

Fed. (2d) 650; Johnson v. Leung Look Yung, 16 Fed.

(2d) 65; Johnson v. Ng Ling Long, 17 Fed. (2d) 11 ; and

Leong Ding v. Brough, 22 Fed. (2d) 926.

Our courts had long ago repudiated the theory that the

Immigration Authorities have the power to reject the

testimony of any number of apparently credible witnesses
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and decide against them in favor wf n presumption that an

applicant is not an American citizen, but on the contrary,

have time and time again restated the rule that the testi-

mony of one credible witness is sufficient in lazv to over-

come that presumption; Giing Von v. Nagle (CCA. 9th),

34 Fed. (2d) 848, 852.

Conclusion.

This case certainly falls under the principle laid down

by our Supreme Court in Tisi v. Todd, 264 U. S. 131,

44 S. Ct. 260, 63 L. Ed. 590, that the error of an admin-

istrative tribunal may be so flagrant as to render the hear-

ing unfair. The uncontradicted evidence established con-

clusively the relationship of father and son between Gin

Ting and the appellant and it was a manifest abuse of

power and discretion for the Immigration Authorities to

disregard the same without some substantial reason other

than the questionable information contained in tfhe anony-

mous communication. Go Lun v. Nagle (CCA. 9th), 22

Fed. (2d) 246; Homi Chung v. Nagle (CCA. 9th), 41

Fed. (2d) 126; Nagle v. Jin Suey (CCA. 9th), 41 Fed.

(2d) 522; and Gung You v. Nagle (CCA. 9th), 34 Fed.

(2d) 848.

It is well-settled that, when a claim of citizenship, which

is more than colorable, is denied, the courts will scrutinize

the administrative proceedings with great care to the end

that American citizens shall not be unjustly deprived of
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their citizenship; Wong Hal Sing v. Nagle (CCA. 9th),

47 Fed. (2d) 1021, 1024; Woon Sun Seiing v. Proctor

(CCA. 9th), 99 Fed. (2d) 285. Let us not forget our

Supreme Court's admonition in Kwock Jan Fat v. White,

252 U. S. 454, 40 S. Q. 566, 64 L. Ed. 1010, that:

"It is better that many Chinese immigrants should

be improperly admitted than one natural born citizen

of the United States should be permanently excluded

from his country."

It is therefore respectfully requested that the order of

the court below in dismissing the writ be reversed with

direction to discharge the appellant from the illegal custody

of the Immigration Authorities.

Dated at Los Angeles, California, June 23rd, 1941.

Respectfully submitted,

You Chung Hong,

Attorney for Appellant.
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No. 9826

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

In the Matter of

Gin Soon Ging,

On Habeas Corpus.

BRIEF OF APPELLEE.

Statement of the Case.

This is an appeal taken from an order of the District

Court denying appellant's petition for a Writ of Habeas

Corpus. [Tr. p. 13.] By stipulation and order [Tr. p.

18], certain original immigration and naturalization rec-

ords have been filed with the clerk of this Court. These

files comprise the entire record upon which the adminis-

trative finding and order under attack herein was made.

Wherever the occasion arises these records will be referred

to by their file numbers appearing on the jacket in the

righthand corner, excepting the certified Department of

Justice file No. 56040/574, which will be referred to as

the "Immigration Record". This latter file contains a

complete transcript of the hearing accorded Gin Soon

Ging by the Board of Special Inquiry.
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The appellant, Gin Soon Ging, hereinafter called the

"applicant", was born in China and is of the Chinese race.

He has never been in the United States. On June 30,

1940, he arrived at San Pedro, California, from China on

the SS "President Cleveland" and sought admission to

the United States as the foreign-born son of Gin Ting.

The United States citizenship of Gin Ting is conceded by

the immigration authorities and is not at issue here. The

applicant's case was heard by a Board of Special Inquiry

appointed under Section 17 of the Immigration Act of

February 5, 1917 (8 U. S. C. A. 153). After hearing the

testimony offered by the applicant and his witnesses, the

Board of Special Inquiry determined the applicant had not

established his claimed citizenship status and therefore

unanimously voted to exclude him from the United States.

From this decision the applicant appealed to the Attorney

General. After a hearing by the Board of Immigration

Appeals at Washington, D. C, the decision of the Board

of Special Inquiry was affirmed and the appeal dismissed.

Thereupon the applicant petitioned for a writ of habeas

corpus. From an order denying the writ the applicant

has appealed to this Court.

The Issue.

This case presents but one issue:

Was the Applicant Accorded a Fair Hearing?

"* * ^ jf it (]oes not affirmatively appear that the

executive officers have acted in some unlawful or im-

proper way and abused their discretion, their finding

upon the question of citizenship must be deemed con-

clusive and is not subject to review by the court."

Tang Tun v. Edsell, 223 U. S. 673, 675.
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ARGUMENT.

The rules of law applicable to this case have long been

clearly defined. In the case of:

Jung Sam v. Haff (C. C. A. 9, decided December

18, 1940), 116 Fed. (2d) 384,

at page 387, the Court, speaking through Judge Garrecht,

stated the principles controlling a review of these pro-

ceedings as follows:

"It is established by a large number of decisions

that 'the findings of the immigration officers on ques-

tions of fact affecting the right of an alien to enter

this country are conclusive against any inquiry by the

courts.' Fong Quong Hay v. Nagle, 9 Cir., 17 F. 2d

231, 232. Just as firmly fixed is the rule, in cases of this

character, that before this court on review can over-

turn the determination of immigration authorities it

must appear that the evidence submitted on the appli-

cation for admission so conclusively established the

fact in issue that the order of exclusion must be held

arbitrary or capricious. Mui Sam Hun v. United

States, 9 Cir., 78 F. 2d 612, 615. Denial of fair

hearing is not established merely by proving the deci-

sion of the immigration officers was wrong. United

States ex rel. Tisi v. Tod, 264 U. S. 131, 133, 44 S.

Ct. 260, 68 L. Ed. 590; Kishan Singh v. Carr, 9 Cir.,

88 F. 2d 672, 679. It is of no consequence that this

court may have found differently than the immigra-

tion officers upon the evidence adduced, for it is not

our function to weigh the evidence, but to consider

whether or not the applicant was accorded a fair hear-

ing. Mui Sam Hun v. United States, supra; Ong
Guey Foon v. Blee, 9 Cir., 112 F. 2d 678, 689; Dong

Ah Lon V. Proctor, 9 Cir., 110 F. 2d 808, 809, 810."



—4—

The applicant seeking admission to the United States has

the burden of submitting satisfactory proof of his citizen-

ship.

United States ex rel. Polymeris v. Trudell, 284

U. S. 279;

Quon Qiwn Poy v. Johnson, 273 U. S. 352;

Mui Sam Htm v. United States (C. C. A. 9), 7S

R (2d) 612;

Won Ying Loon v. Carr (C. C. A. 9), 108 R (2d)

91, 92.

The appHcant in the case at bar has never resided in the

United States. He was born in China and is of the Chinese

race. Under the treaty, laws and rules governing the ad-

mission of Chinese (22 Stat. L. 826; 58, 115, 476, 477:—

28 Stat. L. 7; 32 Stat. L. 176) he is inadmissible unless he

can satisfactorily establish that he is a citizen of the United

States. He claims he is the legitimate foreign-born son

of Gin Ting and that therefore he is a citizen of the United

States under Section 1993, Revised Statutes. On this

question the applicant, who had the burden of proof, of-

fered no evidence except the oral testimony of himself, his

alleged father, Gin Ting,' and an unrelated witness, Gin

Wing Fun. No documentary evidence of any kind was

produced or offered to support the claimed relationship

between the applicant and Gin Ting.

It was the duty and function of the immigration authori-

ties to determine if the claimed parent-son relationship

actually existed. This question of fact was decided ad-



—5—
versely to the applicant by a tribunal authorized by law to

consider and decide such a question. Commenting upon

this function of the Board of Special Inquiry in the recent

case of

Young Nguey Sek v. Carmichael (C. C. A. 9, de-

cided March 11, 1941), 118 F. (2d) 105,

Circuit Judge Denman said

:

"* * * The Board and the Secretary of Labor had

to decide no more than that appellant had failed in his

burden to show ajfirmatively the parent-son relation-

ship." (Emphasis ours.)

After hearing and weighing the testimony the Board of

Special Inquiry, composed of three members, decided the

applicant had failed to show affirmatively the parent-son

relationship.

This case is a matter of identification involving citizen-

ship. The only evidence presented on this issue was the

oral testimony of the interested parties themselves, namely,

the applicant and his alleged father, Gin Ting. The testi-

mony of the witness Gin Wing Fun is of no value on this

point. He is not related to the applicant and has no per-

sonal knowledge of the relationship between the applicant

and Gin Ting. He merely testified that he had seen the

applicant twice in China, once in 1937 and again in 1938.

[Immigration Record, Q. 100-103.] But even in this there

is a conflict. Seattle file 7032/2754 shows that when this

witness returned from a trip to China June 15, 1938, he

was asked under oath if he had visited the home in China



of any resident of the United States or if he had been

introduced to the son, wife, or daughter of any resident of

this country while in China, and he repHed in the negative.

When confronted with this contradictory prior testimony

the witness attempted to explain this by saying that the

interpreter told him it was not necessary to mention what

village and who he had visited in China. It was not incum-

bent upon the Board to accept this explanation and it did

not do so.

The testimony of the applicant and that of his alleged

father was to the effect that applicant was born in the

Fung Wah Village, China, C. R., 15-4-14 (May 25, 1926).

[Hearing p. 26 and Immigration Record, Q. 76.] Gin

Ting further testified that he had three sons born in China

as follows [Q. 76] :

"1. Gin Hung Guon—age 30, born Jan. 30 or 31,

1912, in Fung Wah Village, China.

2. Gin Soon Gan (applicant), age 15, born June

24 or 25, 1926, in Fung Wah Village, China, and

3. Gin Son Pang, age 14, born May 4 or 5, 1927,

in Fung Wah Village."

The applicant, likewis'e, states his alleged father has

three sons, as follows [Q. 8] :

"1. Gin Hing Goon; married marriage name Gin

Man Toy, age 30; I never asked my mother when he

was born, so I don't know; he was married in our

village, C. R. 22-12-20 (Feb. 3, 1933) to Wong Shee

of Ngor May Village, Hoy Shan. He was born in

our village. He has tried to come to America twice

and has been deported twice * * *^
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2. Myself.

3. Gin Soon Pang, age 14, born C. R. 16-5-15

(June 14, 1927) at our village and is now home at-

tending the Que Gee School located about one or two

li to the South of our village."

It is with respect to the alleged brother-son. Gin Hung

Goon, that the most serious discrepancy in the testimony

of the applicant and his alleged father appears. File No.

37221/7-27 relates to this alleged brother-son. It shows

he twice sought admission to the United States as the son

of Gin Ting and was twice rejected. Each time the alleged

father Gin Ting appeared and gave testimony. But there

were so many discrepancies between his testimony and that

of the applicant on family matters and on the question of

the age of the applicant that the claim of relationship was

rejected. The court's attention is invited to the summary

of the Board of Special Inquiry appearing in file 37221/7-

27 [pp. 40-45]. The record also shows that a review of

that decision was sought in the courts through habeas

corpus proceedings but the petition was denied.

The applicant in the instant case now testifies he is the

blood brother of Gin Hung Quon. and in so testifying he

makes some of the same mistakes his alleged father made

regarding this same Chinese. The present applicant identi-

fies a photograph of said Gin Hung Quon as his brother.

[Q. 13 and 14.] He testified that said Gin Hung Quon

has one son named Gin Thloon Jom, born C. R. 24-6-13

(July 15, 1935) in the Fung Wah Village and that Gin

Hung Quon never had any other children. [Q. 10, 11.]
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The alleged father, when testifying on behalf of said Gin

Hung Quon at San Francisco on August 13, 1937, testified

as follows [San Francisco file 37221/7-27, p. 27] :

''Q. How many of your sons have been married?

A. My oldest son. Gin Hung Quon.

Q. When, where and to whom was he married?

A. I do not know when he was married. He was

married in Hong Kong to Wong Shee.

Q. Can you state during what year he was mar-

ried? A. It was either C. R. 22 or 23 (1933 or

1934). I received a letter from him telling me
about it.

Q. Did you keep the letter referred to? A. No,

I tore it up.

Q. Has applicant's wife borne him a child or chil-

dren? A. He unvote to me in the second letter stat-

ing he had a daughter; that is all. It was about a year

after he was married that he sent me this second

letter.

Q. Did applicant Gin Hung Quon inform you

what the name of his daughter was? A. Gin Joon

Shem.

Q. Do you know where the wife and daughter of

applicant now reside? A. They are now living at the

Fung Wah Village." (Emphasis ours.)

And in the same proceeding, Gin Hung Quon himself

testified on August 13, 1937, as follows [San Francisco

file 37221/7-27, p. 17]

:

"Q. How many times have you been married?

A. Once only.

Q. When, where, and to whom were you mar-

ried? A. In C. R. 23-12-12, changes, 23-12-20 (Jan.

24, 1935) to Wong Shee in Fung Wah Village.

Q. Has your wife borne you a child or children?

A. No.
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Q. Is she an expectant mother? A. I don't

know."

Thus we have Gin Hung Quon testifying in 1937 that

he had no children, Gin Ting testifying in the same year

that Gin Hung Quon had a daughter, Gin Joon Shem, and

the appHcant in the case at bar testifying that Gin Hung
Quon has a son, Gin Thloon Jom, born July 15, 1935.

Speaking of such contradictions in the case of

Won Ying Loon v. Carr, supra,

Circuit Judge Mathews said

:

"Whether in testifying as they did, appellant and

Won Doo Mo (alleged father) were deliberately lying

or were stating what they honestly believed to be true

is, for present purposes, immaterial. Whatever their

intentions or beliefs may have been, their testimony

was partly, if not wholly, false. Knowing this, and

not knowing which part, if any, of their testimony

was true, the board was warranted in rejecting it all

and holding that appellant's claim that he was Wong
Ying Loon had not been established."

The Board of Special Inquiry unquestionably had a

right to consider prior departmental records and to base

its decision on the discrepancies developed through the use

of such records:

Soo Hoo Yen v. Tillinghast (C. C. A. 1), 24 F.

(2d) 163;

U. S. ex rel. Ng Kec Wong v. Corsi (C. C. A. 2),

65 F. (2d) 564;

Ex parte Wong Foo Gwong (C. C. A. 9), 50 F.

(2d) 360;

Tang Tun v. Edsell, supra.
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It is clear, therefore, that testimony of an alleged prior

deported brother in conflict with the present applicant may

properly be considered by the Board of Special Inquiry

and form the basis of an excluding decision. And it has

been held that where one applicant's claim is dubious, the

claim of the others that he is their brother weakens their

assertion

:

Chung Fong Kwon et al. v. Tillinghast, 33 F. (2d)

398 (affirmed 35 F. (2d) 1016).

But there is more than this fatal conflict in the testimony

of the principal actors in the case at bar. In 1931 Gin

Hong Quon, whom the applicant claims is his blood brother,

testified that his father. Gin Ting, had been married twice

and that he and all the other sons were issue of the second

wife, Lee Shee. Both the present applicant and the alleged

father have testified that the latter was married once.

Having in mind these contradictions in the testimony,

it cannot be fairly said that the Board of Special Inquiry

(the triers of the fact) acted capriciously in rejecting the

claimed relationship. And, when considering further the

fact that there has been no direct identification of the

applicant as the son of Gin Ting, it cannot be fairly said

that the applicant has sustained the burden of proof. Here

the alleged father, Gin Ting, is in no position to identify

the applicant as his son. He has not been in China since

1927 when the applicant was slightly over a year old. It

is not unreasonable to refuse to accept his testimony under

such circumstances. In the case of
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Tillinghast v. Flynn ex rel. Chin King, 38 F.

(2d) 5,

it was held that where the identifying witness had not seen

the appHcant since the latter was 5^ years old and the

applicant was then 13 years, refusal to accept his testimony

was not unreasonable.

Respondent submits that the administrative proceeding

in the case at bar was fair in every respect and that there

is ample justification for rejecting the applicant's claim.

Reply to Appellant's Brief.

Counsel complains that the Board was arbitrary in re-

fusing to believe the testimony of the applicant because of

the discrepancies developed and because the testimony of

the applicant and his witnesses agreed in many details.

It is observed that counsel includes in his brief the

statement of a certain Inspector Roy M. Porter, of Seattle

(p. 15). This particular statement is not a citation from

any case but a purported extract from a Department file,

which presumably is a part of the Department records at

Washington. It is not in evidence or alluded to by admin-

istrative officials in the case at bar. It is, of course, recog-

nized that examination of arriving aliens vary in each par-

ticular case. This case is like many which involve the

citizenship of Chinese applicants. The facts are wholly

within the knowledge of interested witnesses, and fabrica-

tion can only be detected by the inconsistencies between

their versions, or inherent contradictions, since the bare
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narration is seldom antecedently improbable. The object

of bringing out discrepancies is to impeach the witness or

to give a ground for disbelieving him. There is no rule by

which the seriousness of discrepancies can be measured.

Each case depends upon its own facts.

White V. Chan Wy Sheiing (C. C. A. 9), 270 F.

764;

Tom Ung Chai v. Burnett (C. C. A. 9), 25 F. (2d)

574;

Young Mew Song v. United States (C. C. A. 9),

36 R (2d) 563;

Chan Nom Gee v. United States (C. C. A. 9), 57

F. (2d) 846.

In the case of

Horn Dong Wah v. Weedin, 24 F. (2d) 774,

this court quoted with approval from the opinion in the

case of Sui Say v. Nagle, 295 F. 676, as follows

:

'Tn cases of this character, experience has demon-

strated that the testimony of the parties in interest as

to the mere fact of relationship, cannot be safely ac-

cepted or relied upon. Resort is therefore had to col-

lateral facts for corroboration, or the reverse. If the

witnesses are in accord as to a number of collateral

facts which they should know if the claimed relation-

ship exists, and probably would not know if the claim

of relationship did not exist, there is at least a reason-

able probability that the testimony is true. If, on the

other hand, the witnesses disagree as to the collateral

facts which they should or would know if the claimed

relationship exists, especially such an important fact

as membership in the immediate family of the parties,

there is a strong probability that the claimed relation-

ship is false and fraudulent."
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Although there are details upon which the testimony

agrees, as contended by counsel, it is not possible to recon-

cile the discrepancies hereinabove commented upon. On

this point in the case of

Weedin v. Yee Wing Soon (C. C. A. 9), 48 F.

(2d) 36,

Circuit Judge Wilbur said:

"In the case at bar, we have a multitude of agree-

ments upon a great variety of details in the testimony

which are quite consistent with the claimed relation-

ship and point with great emphasis to the truth of the

claim. On the other hand, we have a discrepancy that

is difficult if not impossible to reconcile with the al-

leged relationship. * * *"

And, in further comment on this aspect of the case, said:

"* * * At the outset it must be conceded that there

is a complete accord in the testimony upon such a

multitude of details as would hardly be expected if

the claim of relationship did not exist. Indeed, such

a complete accord would hardly be anticipated if the

relationship did exist unless there was some previous

conference between the witnesses to refresh their

memory upon the numerous details upon which they

might reasonably expect to be examined."

Counsel also attempts to apply rules of evidence to the

proceedings before the Board of Special Inquiry; how-

ever, it is not open to the courts to consider either the

admissibility or the weight of proof according to the ordi-

nary rules of evidence, and the fact that the rules of evi-
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dence as applied in courts of law are violated does not

show that the hearing was unfair.

Healey v. Backus, 221 Fed. 358;

Frick V. Lewis, 195 Fed. 693;

Lee Lung v. Patterson, 186 U. S. 168, 176.

Appellee submits that the discrepancies developed in this

case are sufficiently serious to preclude the determination

that the applicant was not given a fair hearing or that the

District Court erred in sustaining such finding. The

record fully bears out District Judge Beaumont in his

conclusion [Tr. p. 14] that:

''After a study of the record herein the Court can-

not say that the Board of Special Inquiry committed

a manifest abuse of the power and discretion con-

ferred upon it. In this case the evidence is such that

reasonable men might differ as to its probative effect."

Conclusion.

For the reasons hereinabove stated, appellee respectfully

submits that the lower court did not err in holding and

finding that there was no manifest abuse of discretion by

the immigration authorities, and that the administrative

order was not a result of an arbitrary or unfair hearing.

Wherefore, appellee prays that the decision of the lower

court be affirmed and appeal dismissed.

Respectfully submitted,

Wm. Fleet Palmer,

United States Attorney,

By Russell K. Lambeau,

Assistant United States Attorney,

Attorneys for Appellee.










